

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 20, 2018                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 20th Jun 2018 - Page 1 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m. 


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda 


   


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Expulsions 14-17-18 and 15-17-18 Information for a vote in Open Session 


2.2. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action 


2.3. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 


Information for possible action 


2.4. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from the Trustees regarding negotiations 
with the SCCCE for 2017-18 


2.5. Liability Claim (Govt. Code 54956.95) Claimant: Alexander Pebbles                                           
Agency Claimed Against: Santa Cruz City Schools 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  


3.2. Agenda changes, additions or deletions  


   


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


1 of 778







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 20, 2018                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 20th Jun 2018 - Page 2 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


5. Superintendent's Report  


5.1. Superintendent's Report  


   


6. Board Members' Reports  


6.1. Board Members' Reports  


6.2. Board President's Report  


   


7. Approval of Minutes  


   


8. General Public Business  


   


8.1. Consent Agenda: These matters may be 
passed by one roll call motion.  


 


8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  


8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  


8.1.3. Warrant Register  


8.1.4. Budget Transfers  


8.1.5. Disposition of Surplus Property  


   


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.2.1. Superintendent: Consultant Service 
Agreement (CSA) : 2018-19 Consulting 
Services - Carolyn Post 


 


8.2.2. Superintendent: Contract: Boardvantage 
Electronic Board Book Program 


 


8.2.3. Business Services/Transportation: CSA: 
Drivers Edge Bus Driver Training 


 


2 of 778







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 20, 2018                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 20th Jun 2018 - Page 3 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.2.4. Educational Services/CIA: Contract: Rosetta 
Stone Renewal & Licensing for Title I 
Students 


 


8.2.5. Business Services: Contract for Bay View 
ES/Mission St. Mural 


 


8.2.6. Contracts: SCCS Cabinet Members  


   


8.3. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects 
Contracts, Agreements, Proposals, Bids 
& Change Orders 


 


8.3.1. Contract: Kleinfelder -geological & seismic 
investigation Branciforte Small Schools 
classroom building project 


 


8.3.2. Contract: Cen-Con Change Order #1-Soquel 
HS Marquee Sign 


 


   


8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.4.1. Vote on Expulsions  


8.4.1.1. Expulsion 14-17-18  


8.4.1.2. Expulsion 15-17-18  


8.4.2. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


   


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


   


8.5.1. Educational Services  


8.5.1.1. New Business: 2018-19 Santa Cruz City 
Schools Local Control Accountability Plan 
(LCAP) Approval 


Recommendation: Approve the Santa Cruz City Schools 
2018-19 LCAP 


8.5.1.2. New Business: LCAP Federal Addendum & 
Consolidated Application                                       


 


Recommendation: Approve the LCAP Federal Addendum 
and Consolidated Application 


   


3 of 778







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 20, 2018                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 20th Jun 2018 - Page 4 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.2. Business Services  


8.5.2.1. New Business: Approve/Adopt the 2018-19 
Santa Cruz City Schools Budget 


Recommendation: Approve/Adopt the 2018-19 Santa Cruz 
City Schools Budget 


8.5.2.2. Information: 2018-19 Budget Update Receive updated information about the 2018-19 Budget 


   


8.5.3. Human Resources  


8.5.3.1. New Business: Approve the SCCCE 
Tentative Agreement 


Recommendation: Approve the agreement as submitted 


8.5.3.2. New Business: Final Reading/Approval of 
Classified Job Descriptions 


Recommendation: Approve the job descriptions 


8.5.3.3. Staff Report: Partnership between 
Administration and Labor (PAL) 


GSCFT President Casey Carlson and Assistant 
Superintendent Molly Parks will share about work on PAL 
this year.  


 


8.5.3.4. New Business: Approve Tentative 
Agreement-GSCFT & SCCS 


Recommendation: Approve the agreement as submitted 


8.5.3.5. New Business: 2018-19 Declaration of Need: 
Certificated 


Recommendation: Approve the elementary and secondary 
declarations 


   


8.5.4. Governance/Superintendent  


8.5.4.1. Discussion: Possible Items for Future 
Meeting Agendas 


At the May 23, 2018 Governance Session, the Board of 
Education agreed that each board meeting agenda would 
include an opportunity for discussion of future agenda 
items. 


   


9. Adjournment  


   


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


12. Adjournment  


 


4 of 778







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 20, 2018                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 20th Jun 2018 - Page 5 of 5 


The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, Room 303, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA.    
 
 
 
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting 
as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in 
open session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be 
considered in closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Nancy 
Lentz by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Nancy Lentz por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 


 
 


5 of 778



http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html





This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM 8.1.1 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  
  
  
AGENDA ITEM:                    Certificated Personnel Actions 
  
DATE:                                   June 20, 2018 
  
FROM:                                  Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
  
THROUGH:                          Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
  
  
  
Recommendation: 
Approve the certificated personnel actions as submitted. 
  
Background: 
The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 
California Education Code and the negotiated contract.  
 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college 
and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
  
  
  
  
  
 


7 of 778







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM 8.1.1 


 
2018-2019 APPOINTMENTS: 
  
Certificated: 
  
Elena Dobb, 1.0 Behavior Specialist/PBIS Coach.  Elena’s educational background includes a 
BA in Humanities from New College of California and an MA in Education from National 
University.  Elena will have Behavior Analyst Board Certification.  Her status is Probationary 
1 and she has nine years of experience. 
 
Madeline Mitchell, 1.0 School Psychologist.  Madeline’s educational background includes a 
BA in Psychology from the University of New Mexico and an MA in School Psychology from 
Humboldt State University.  Madeline holds a Clear Pupil Personnel Services Credential for 
School Psychology.  Her status is Probationary 1 and she completed her internship at Blue 
Lake Elementary School (Blue Lake, CA). 
 
Oscar Rodriguez, 1.0 Spanish Teacher at Harbor High.  Oscar’s educational background 
includes a BA in Spanish from CSU Monterey Bay and an MA in Spanish from San Jose State 
University.  Oscar will hold an Intern Single Subject Credential for Spanish and an English 
Learners Authorization.  His status is Temporary and he has one year teaching experience. 
 
  
  
  
 


9 of 778







This page has been left blank







 


 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           
 
AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 
  
MEETING DATE:      June 20, 2018 
 
FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 
  
THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   
  
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 
  
  
BACKGROUND: 
The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 
SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 
 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
  
  


  


  
  


11 of 778







This page has been left blank







CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 


Reviewed by Director of Classified Personnel:  Kenee Houser 6/13/2018 


•Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments•


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 


None  


Promotion: 


None 


Demotion:  


None 


Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 


None 


Additional FTE/Position:  


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE:  


None 


63-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


Transfer:  


None 


Transfer W/Increase FTE: 


None 


Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  


None 


Leave of Absence:  


None 


Separation from Service: 


Beck, Jennifer, Occupational Therapist - SE, 24hrs/10mos, resignation, effective 8/2/18 


Hilton, Evander, Instructional Technician/ASES - MH, 10hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 6/6/18 


Ledesma, Jasmine, Learning Assistant, BS, 26hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 6/8/18 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


13 of 778







 


 


Medina, Hannah, Instructional Technician/EI - DL, 15hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 6/7/18 


Naranjo Huerta, Estephany, Program Coordinator/ASES - MH, 18hrs/10mos, resignation, 


effective 6/6/18  


Page II, James, Instructional Technician/PBS - HH, 26hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 6/30/18 


Taylor Buell, Shannon, IT/EI - 7.5hrs/9mos and Learning Assistant - 7.5hrs/9mos - WL, 


resignation, effective 6/7/18  


Retirement: 


Tweddle, Barbara, Instructional Technician - SQ, Retirement, Effective 6/7/18 


 


•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 


New Temporary Employees/EWA: 


None 


Existing Temporary Employees/EWA: 


None 


Existing Regular Employees/EWA: 


Alley, Mary, Food Service Worker - Summer School - FS not to exceed 75hrs, 7/1/18 to 8/30/18 


Alvarez, Sandra, Food Service Worker - Summer School - FS, not to exceed 55hrs, 6/1/18 to 


6/30/18 


Alvarez, Sandra, Food Service Worker - Summer School - FS not to exceed 75hrs, 7/1/18 to 


8/30/18 


Guzman, Georgiana, Food Service Worker - Summer School - FS not to exceed 20hrs, 7/1/18 to 


8/30/18 


Jorgensen, Kimberly, Food Service Worker - Summer School - FS, not to exceed 55hrs, 6/1/18 to 


6/30/18 


Perez, Katya, Instructional Technician - SE , not to exceed 50hrs, 5/24/18 to 6/7/18 


Smith, Jennifer, School Registrar - SQ, not to exceed 70hrs, 6/15/18 to 6/29/18 


Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 


None 


Out of Class: 


None  


 


•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 


Stipend: 


None  


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


14 of 778







 


 


 


Playground Recess Coach, Yard Duty, Child Care: 


None  


 


•Eligibility Lists Established• 


Paraeducator After School 


Instructional Specialist - Life Lab 


Paraeducator 


Library/Media Assistant 


Paraeducator-Academic Intervention 


Paraeducator - Special Ed 


 


  


 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


15 of 778







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 
 
vendor warrants cover 


 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2018  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report.  The report covers vendor warrants 
issued from 6/1/18 – 6/7/18. Hard copies of the report are available for public review at the 
Board Meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


17 of 778







This page has been left blank







19 of 778







20 of 778







21 of 778







This page has been left blank







  


                        


  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4 
C:\Users\bssec\Desktop\Boardpad 062018\Budget Transfers cover.docx 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Budget Transfers  
 
MEETING DATE:   June 20, 2018 
  
FROM:               Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent of Business 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve 2017-2018 budget transfers dated 
from 5/1/18 through 5/31/18, BE#157823– 163144.  The report follows.  Hard copy of the 
report is available for public review at the Board Meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ed Code 42600 requires that the Board approve budget transfers that are made between major 
expense object codes or from reserves. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
  


23 of 778







This page has been left blank







Note Account Decrease Increase
BE 157823      Applied: 05/01/2018  Created: 05/01/2018


BD-ED-EWA#14466 Saunders 01-3010-0-1110-1000-1130-424-0000 $0.00 $198.00


BD-ED-EWA#14466 Saunders 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3101-424-0000 $0.00 $29.00


BD-ED-EWA#14466 Saunders 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3331-424-0000 $0.00 $3.00


BD-ED-EWA#14466 Saunders 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3601-424-0000 $0.00 $4.00


BD-ED-EWA#14466 Saunders 01-3010-0-1110-1000-4300-424-0000 $234.00 $0.00


BE 157823 Total $234.00 $234.00


BE 157865      Applied: 05/01/2018  Created: 05/01/2018


BD- To cover negatives
LedgerID#157864


01-3010-0-1110-1000-1140-423-0044 $0.00 $336.00


BD- To cover negatives
LedgerID#157864


01-3010-0-1110-1000-3311-423-0044 $0.00 $14.00


BD- To cover negatives
LedgerID#157864


01-3010-0-1110-1000-3331-423-0044 $0.00 $5.00


BD- To cover negatives
LedgerID#157864


01-3010-0-1110-1000-3501-423-0044 $0.00 $1.00


BD- To cover negatives
LedgerID#157864


01-3010-0-1110-1000-3601-423-0044 $0.00 $6.00


BD- To cover negatives
LedgerID#157864


01-3010-0-1110-1000-4300-423-0044 $362.00 $0.00


BE 157865 Total $362.00 $362.00


BE 157866      Applied: 05/01/2018  Created: 05/01/2018


BD- ELA/ ELD  Design Task Force 01-4203-0-1110-1000-1130-420-0000 $0.00 $2,640.00


BD- ELA/ ELD  Design Task Force 01-4203-0-1110-1000-3101-420-0000 $0.00 $381.00


BD- ELA/ ELD  Design Task Force 01-4203-0-1110-1000-3331-420-0000 $0.00 $39.00


BD- ELA/ ELD  Design Task Force 01-4203-0-1110-1000-3501-420-0000 $0.00 $2.00


BD- ELA/ ELD  Design Task Force 01-4203-0-1110-1000-3601-420-0000 $0.00 $47.00


BD- ELA/ ELD  Design Task Force 01-4203-0-1110-1000-4399-420-0000 $3,109.00 $0.00


BE 157866 Total $3,109.00 $3,109.00


BE 157877      Applied: 05/01/2018  Created: 05/01/2018


BD- Adjusting for SCIL 2nd installment 01-4035-0-1110-1000-1160-520-0000 $750.00 $0.00


BD- Adjusting for SCIL 2nd installment 01-4035-0-1110-1000-3101-520-0000 $108.00 $0.00


BD- Adjusting for SCIL 2nd installment 01-4035-0-1110-1000-3331-520-0000 $10.00 $0.00


BD- Adjusting for SCIL 2nd installment 01-4035-0-1110-1000-3601-520-0000 $13.00 $0.00


BD- Adjusting for SCIL 2nd installment 01-4035-0-1110-1000-4399-920-0000 $0.00 $881.00


BE 157877 Total $881.00 $881.00


BE 157888      Applied: 05/01/2018  Created: 05/01/2018


BD- ELA/ELD design task force 01-4035-0-1110-1000-1130-520-0000 $0.00 $792.00


BD- ELA/ELD design task force 01-4035-0-1110-1000-3101-520-0000 $0.00 $115.00


BD- ELA/ELD design task force 01-4035-0-1110-1000-3331-520-0000 $0.00 $12.00


BD- ELA/ELD design task force 01-4035-0-1110-1000-3501-520-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BD- ELA/ELD design task force 01-4035-0-1110-1000-3601-520-0000 $0.00 $14.00


BD- ELA/ELD design task force 01-4035-0-1110-1000-4399-920-0000 $934.00 $0.00


BE 157888 Total $934.00 $934.00


BE 158141      Applied: 05/01/2018  Created: 05/01/2018


BGT-RB-MYSTERY SCIENCE 01-6300-0-1110-1000-5300-527-0000 $0.00 $999.00


BGT-RB-MYSTERY SCIENCE 01-6300-0-1110-1000-5800-527-0000 $999.00 $0.00


BE 158141 Total $999.00 $999.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 1 of 36


25 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BE 158142      Applied: 05/01/2018  Created: 05/01/2018


BGT-AMB-SET UP AK- SETTLEMENT
FUNDS


01-6500-0-5770-2700-5800-230-0000 $0.00 $40,000.00


BGT-AMB-SET UP AK- SETTLEMENT
FUNDS


01-6500-0-5750-1180-5100-230-0000 $6,858.00 $0.00


BGT-AMB-SET UP AK- SETTLEMENT
FUNDS


01-6500-0-5750-1180-5800-230-0000 $33,142.00 $0.00


BE 158142 Total $40,000.00 $40,000.00


BE 158143      Applied: 05/01/2018  Created: 05/01/2018


BGT-AMB-COV PO 18-03164 C/O 01-6500-0-5770-1120-4300-230-0000 $0.00 $50.00


BGT-AMB-COV PO 18-03164 C/O 01-6500-0-5001-3120-4300-230-0000 $50.00 $0.00


BE 158143 Total $50.00 $50.00


BE 158150      Applied: 05/01/2018  Created: 05/01/2018


BGT-JKB-RENEE FIGURA CS FOR ALL
SUB


01-9010-0-1150-1000-4300-500-4050 $135.00 $0.00


BGT-JKB-RENEE FIGURA CS FOR ALL
SUB


01-9010-0-1150-1000-1140-527-4050 $0.00 $135.00


BE 158150 Total $135.00 $135.00


BE 158154      Applied: 05/01/2018  Created: 05/01/2018


BGT-EWA#14385 M.JIMENEZ
SCIENCE CAMP STIPEND


01-0700-0-1150-1000-1160-023-0000 $0.00 $338.00


BGT-EWA#14385 M.JIMENEZ
SCIENCE CAMP STIPEND


01-0700-0-1150-1000-3101-023-0000 $0.00 $49.00


BGT-EWA#14385 M.JIMENEZ
SCIENCE CAMP STIPEND


01-0700-0-1150-1000-3331-023-0000 $0.00 $5.00


BGT-EWA#14385 M.JIMENEZ
SCIENCE CAMP STIPEND


01-0700-0-1150-1000-3501-023-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14385 M.JIMENEZ
SCIENCE CAMP STIPEND


01-0700-0-1150-1000-3601-023-0000 $0.00 $6.00


BGT-EWA#14385 M.JIMENEZ
SCIENCE CAMP STIPEND


01-0700-0-1110-1000-4300-023-0000 $399.00 $0.00


BE 158154 Total $399.00 $399.00


BE 158155      Applied: 05/01/2018  Created: 05/01/2018


BGT-EWA#14264  A.COPE 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1160-834-0000 $0.00 $1,000.00


BGT-EWA#14264  A.COPE 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1130-834-0000 $1,000.00 $0.00


BE 158155 Total $1,000.00 $1,000.00


BE 158180      Applied: 05/01/2018  Created: 05/01/2018


BGT-EWA#14429,14431,14432
CHILDCARE


01-0700-0-0000-2495-2930-023-0000 $0.00 $147.00


BGT-EWA#14429,14431,14432
CHILDCARE


01-0700-0-0000-2495-3312-023-0000 $0.00 $10.00


BGT-EWA#14429,14431,14432
CHILDCARE


01-0700-0-0000-2495-3332-023-0000 $0.00 $3.00


BGT-EWA#14429,14431,14432
CHILDCARE


01-0700-0-0000-2495-3502-023-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14429,14431,14432
CHILDCARE


01-0700-0-0000-2495-3602-023-0000 $0.00 $3.00


BGT-EWA#14429,14431,14432
CHILDCARE


01-0700-0-1110-1000-4300-023-0000 $164.00 $0.00


BE 158180 Total $164.00 $164.00


BE 158249      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


BGT-BL-BURNEY FALLS FT 01-7220-7-1451-1000-5800-035-0000 $0.00 $1,000.00


BGT-BL-BURNEY FALLS FT 01-7220-7-1451-2700-4300-035-0000 $1,000.00 $0.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 2 of 36


26 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BE 158249 Total $1,000.00 $1,000.00


BE 158253      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


BGT-MOVE EXCESS PAYR BUDG TO
4300


01-0700-0-1110-1000-1100-034-0000 $1,807.00 $0.00


BGT-MOVE EXCESS PAYR BUDG TO
4300


01-0700-0-1110-1000-1140-034-0000 $0.00 $188.00


BGT-MOVE EXCESS PAYR BUDG TO
4300


01-0700-0-1110-1000-3101-034-0000 $279.00 $0.00


BGT-MOVE EXCESS PAYR BUDG TO
4300


01-0700-0-1110-1000-3311-034-0000 $0.00 $2.00


BGT-MOVE EXCESS PAYR BUDG TO
4300


01-0700-0-1110-1000-3331-034-0000 $86.00 $0.00


BGT-MOVE EXCESS PAYR BUDG TO
4300


01-0700-0-1110-1000-3601-034-0000 $103.00 $0.00


BGT-MOVE EXCESS PAYR BUDG TO
4300


01-0700-0-1110-1000-4300-034-0000 $0.00 $2,085.00


BE 158253 Total $2,275.00 $2,275.00


BE 158354      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


SS- B40 FT  TR 1808 3/12 01-9010-0-1250-1000-5710-031-FACU $0.00 $90.00


SS- B40 FT  TR 1808 3/12 01-9010-0-1400-4200-4300-031-FACU $90.00 $0.00


SS- B40 FT  TR 1808 3/12 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5710-048-0000 $90.00 $0.00


SS- B40 FT  TR 1808 3/12 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8980-030-0000 $90.00 $0.00


SS- B40 FT  TR 1808 3/12 01-0000-0-0000-0000-8980-000-0000 $0.00 $90.00


SS- B40 FT  TR 1808 3/12 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $0.00 $90.00


BE 158354 Total $270.00 $270.00


BE 158380      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


ST-Add budget for AD Ipads 01-0000-0-1400-4200-4400-830-0807 $0.00 $8,650.00


ST-Add budget for AD Ipads 01-0000-0-1400-4200-2160-831-0807 $8,650.00 $0.00


BE 158380 Total $8,650.00 $8,650.00


BE 158409      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


SS- GAULTASES FT TR 1820 01-6010-0-1110-1000-4400-424-0000 $68.00 $0.00


SS- GAULTASES FT TR 1820 01-6010-0-1110-1000-4300-424-0000 $50.00 $0.00


SS- GAULTASES FT TR 1820 01-6010-0-1110-1000-5710-424-0000 $0.00 $118.00


SS- GAULTASES FT TR 1820 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5710-048-0000 $118.00 $0.00


SS- GAULTASES FT TR 1820 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8980-030-0000 $118.00 $0.00


SS- GAULTASES FT TR 1820 01-0000-0-0000-0000-8980-000-0000 $0.00 $118.00


SS- GAULTASES FT TR 1820 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $0.00 $118.00


BE 158409 Total $354.00 $354.00


BE 158418      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


SS-HH FT TR 1821 01-0000-0-1110-1000-5710-033-0000 $0.00 $144.00


SS-HH FT TR 1821 01-0000-0-1110-1000-5800-033-0000 $144.00 $0.00


SS-HH FT TR 1821 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5710-048-0000 $144.00 $0.00


SS-HH FT TR 1821 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8980-030-0000 $144.00 $0.00


SS-HH FT TR 1821 01-0000-0-0000-0000-8980-000-0000 $0.00 $144.00


SS-HH FT TR 1821 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $0.00 $144.00


BE 158418 Total $432.00 $432.00


BE 158422      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


BGT-BW-FOR REPAIRS 01-8150-0-0000-8110-5800-049-0000 $5,000.00 $0.00


BGT-BW-FOR REPAIRS 01-8150-0-0000-8110-5600-049-0000 $0.00 $5,000.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 3 of 36


27 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BE 158422 Total $5,000.00 $5,000.00


BE 158423      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


BGT-BL-FIELD TRIP 01-7220-7-1451-1000-5800-035-0000 $0.00 $600.00


BGT-BL-FIELD TRIP 01-7220-7-1451-2700-4300-035-0000 $600.00 $0.00


BE 158423 Total $600.00 $600.00


BE 158424      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


BGT-PS-FIELD TRIP 01-0000-0-1110-1000-5800-033-0000 $0.00 $800.00


BGT-PS-FIELD TRIP 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-033-0000 $800.00 $0.00


BE 158424 Total $800.00 $800.00


BE 158425      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


ST-Add budget for league fees 01-0000-0-1400-4200-5300-835-0807 $700.00 $0.00


ST-Add budget for league fees 01-0000-0-1400-4200-5800-835-0807 $0.00 $2,430.00


ST-Add budget for league fees 01-0000-0-1400-4200-5800-830-0807 $1,730.00 $0.00


BE 158425 Total $2,430.00 $2,430.00


BE 158426      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


BGT-BL-SR.AWARD PROGRAM 01-0000-0-0000-2700-5800-835-0014 $0.00 $585.00


BGT-BL-SR.AWARD PROGRAM 01-0000-0-0000-2700-4300-835-0014 $585.00 $0.00


BE 158426 Total $585.00 $585.00


BE 158454      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


ST-Cannot pay from Measure O 01-0000-0-1400-4200-4400-830-0807 $8,650.00 $0.00


ST-Cannot pay from Measure O 01-0000-0-1400-4200-2160-831-0807 $0.00 $8,650.00


BE 158454 Total $8,650.00 $8,650.00


BE 158455      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


ST-Add budget for I pads PE Teachers 01-0000-0-1110-1000-1140-834-0000 $8,390.00 $0.00


ST-Add budget for I pads PE Teachers 01-0000-0-1400-1000-4400-030-0004 $0.00 $8,390.00


BE 158455 Total $8,390.00 $8,390.00


BE 158456      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


ST-Add budget for Dale Scott Continue
Disclosure Fee


01-0000-0-0000-7300-5800-899-0000 $0.00 $5,840.00


ST-Add budget for Dale Scott Continue
Disclosure Fee


01-0000-0-1110-1000-1140-831-0000 $5,840.00 $0.00


BE 158456 Total $5,840.00 $5,840.00


BE 158464      Applied: 05/02/2018  Created: 05/02/2018


ST-Move Budget for ATT 01-0000-0-0000-7200-5913-838-0000 $0.00 $15.00


ST-Move Budget for ATT 01-0000-0-0000-8200-4300-838-0000 $15.00 $0.00


ST-Move Budget for ATT 01-0000-0-0000-2700-3202-857-0000 $602.00 $0.00


ST-Move Budget for ATT 01-0000-0-0000-2420-3202-857-0000 $1,370.00 $0.00


ST-Move Budget for ATT 01-0000-0-0000-7700-5913-857-0000 $0.00 $1,972.00


ST-Move Budget for ATT 01-0000-0-0000-7600-5913-056-0000 $0.00 $260.00


ST-Move Budget for ATT 01-0000-0-0000-7600-5800-056-0000 $260.00 $0.00


ST-Move Budget for ATT 01-0724-0-5750-3600-5913-048-0000 $0.00 $20.00


ST-Move Budget for ATT 01-0724-0-5750-3600-5200-048-0000 $20.00 $0.00


ST-Move Budget for ATT 01-0000-0-0000-8200-5913-835-0000 $0.00 $20.00


ST-Move Budget for ATT 01-0000-0-1110-1000-1140-835-0000 $20.00 $0.00


ST-Move Budget for ATT 13-5310-0-0000-3700-5913-046-0000 $0.00 $100.00


ST-Move Budget for ATT 13-5310-0-0000-3700-3202-846-0000 $100.00 $0.00


ST-Move Budget for ATT 01-8150-0-0000-8110-5913-049-0000 $0.00 $2,500.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 4 of 36


28 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
ST-Move Budget for ATT 01-8150-0-0000-8110-4300-049-0000 $2,500.00 $0.00


BE 158464 Total $4,887.00 $4,887.00


BE 158468      Applied: 05/03/2018  Created: 05/03/2018


BGT-EWA X 6- NGSS LEADERSHIP 01-6264-0-1110-1000-1130-520-0020 $0.00 $990.00


BGT-EWA X 6- NGSS LEADERSHIP 01-6264-0-1110-1000-3101-520-0020 $0.00 $143.00


BGT-EWA X 6- NGSS LEADERSHIP 01-6264-0-1110-1000-3331-520-0020 $0.00 $15.00


BGT-EWA X 6- NGSS LEADERSHIP 01-6264-0-1110-1000-3501-520-0020 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA X 6- NGSS LEADERSHIP 01-6264-0-1110-1000-3601-520-0020 $0.00 $18.00


BGT-EWA X 6- NGSS LEADERSHIP 01-6264-0-1110-1000-4399-520-0020 $1,167.00 $0.00


BE 158468 Total $1,167.00 $1,167.00


BE 158469      Applied: 05/03/2018  Created: 05/03/2018


BGT-EWA#14493 SPREAD BENEF 01-9010-0-1110-1000-3101-530-0071 $0.00 $48.00


BGT-EWA#14493 SPREAD BENEF 01-9010-0-1110-1000-3331-530-0071 $0.00 $5.00


BGT-EWA#14493 SPREAD BENEF 01-9010-0-1110-1000-3501-530-0071 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14493 SPREAD BENEF 01-9010-0-1110-1000-3601-530-0071 $0.00 $6.00


BGT-EWA#14493 SPREAD BENEF 01-9010-0-1110-1000-1130-530-0071 $60.00 $0.00


BE 158469 Total $60.00 $60.00


BE 158472      Applied: 05/03/2018  Created: 05/03/2018


BGT-EWA#14485-14488  PBIS
PLANNING


01-9010-0-1110-1000-1130-623-0080 $0.00 $924.00


BGT-EWA#14485-14488  PBIS
PLANNING


01-9010-0-1110-1000-3101-623-0080 $0.00 $133.00


BGT-EWA#14485-14488  PBIS
PLANNING


01-9010-0-1110-1000-3331-623-0080 $0.00 $13.00


BGT-EWA#14485-14488  PBIS
PLANNING


01-9010-0-1110-1000-3501-623-0080 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14485-14488  PBIS
PLANNING


01-9010-0-1110-1000-3601-623-0080 $0.00 $16.00


BGT-EWA#14485-14488  PBIS
PLANNING


01-9010-0-1110-1000-4300-623-0080 $1,087.00 $0.00


BE 158472 Total $1,087.00 $1,087.00


BE 158473      Applied: 05/03/2018  Created: 05/03/2018


BGT-EWA#14504 D.YARBROUGH
CAASPP TESTING


01-9010-0-0000-3160-1960-530-0064 $0.00 $309.00


BGT-EWA#14504 D.YARBROUGH
CAASPP TESTING


01-9010-0-0000-3160-3101-530-0064 $0.00 $45.00


BGT-EWA#14504 D.YARBROUGH
CAASPP TESTING


01-9010-0-0000-3160-3331-530-0064 $0.00 $5.00


BGT-EWA#14504 D.YARBROUGH
CAASPP TESTING


01-9010-0-0000-3160-3601-530-0064 $0.00 $6.00


BGT-EWA#14504 D.YARBROUGH
CAASPP TESTING


01-9010-0-0000-3160-4300-530-0064 $365.00 $0.00


BE 158473 Total $365.00 $365.00


BE 158480      Applied: 05/03/2018  Created: 05/03/2018


BGT-EWA#14468 01-6264-0-1110-1000-1130-530-0030 $0.00 $330.00


BGT-EWA#14468 01-6264-0-1110-1000-3101-530-0030 $0.00 $48.00


BGT-EWA#14468 01-6264-0-1110-1000-3331-530-0030 $0.00 $5.00


BGT-EWA#14468 01-6264-0-1110-1000-3501-530-0030 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14468 01-6264-0-1110-1000-3601-530-0030 $0.00 $6.00


BGT-EWA#14468 01-6264-0-1110-1000-4399-530-0030 $390.00 $0.00


BE 158480 Total $390.00 $390.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 5 of 36


29 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BE 158483      Applied: 05/03/2018  Created: 05/03/2018


BD- Reimbursements 01-3010-0-0000-2110-5200-430-0000 $0.00 $127.00


BD- Reimbursements 01-3010-0-1110-1000-4399-430-0000 $127.00 $0.00


BE 158483 Total $127.00 $127.00


BE 158485      Applied: 05/03/2018  Created: 05/03/2018


BGT-JKB-MILEAGE M.ROBB 01-0000-0-0000-2140-5200-520-0000 $200.00 $0.00


BGT-JKB-MILEAGE M.ROBB 01-0000-0-0000-2110-5200-520-0000 $0.00 $200.00


BE 158485 Total $200.00 $200.00


BE 158530      Applied: 05/03/2018  Created: 05/03/2018


BGT-DMG-CRAIGS LIST ADS- SCH
COMM COORD


01-0000-0-0000-7400-5200-047-0000 $225.00 $0.00


BGT-DMG-CRAIGS LIST ADS- SCH
COMM COORD


01-0000-0-0000-7400-5800-047-0000 $0.00 $225.00


BE 158530 Total $225.00 $225.00


BE 158565      Applied: 05/04/2018  Created: 05/04/2018


BGT-MOVE TO 5200 FOR M.LUNA
REIMB


01-9010-0-0000-3110-5200-600-0050 $0.00 $31.00


BGT-MOVE TO 5200 FOR M.LUNA
REIMB


01-9010-0-0000-3110-4395-600-0050 $31.00 $0.00


BE 158565 Total $31.00 $31.00


BE 158566      Applied: 05/04/2018  Created: 05/04/2018


BGT-COVER M.LUNA MILEAGE
REIMB./NEG BALANCE


01-3010-0-1110-1000-5200-600-0000 $0.00 $38.00


BGT-COVER M.LUNA MILEAGE
REIMB./NEG BALANCE


01-3010-0-1110-1000-4300-630-0000 $25.00 $0.00


BGT-COVER M.LUNA MILEAGE
REIMB./NEG BALANCE


01-3010-0-1110-1000-4300-620-0000 $13.00 $0.00


BE 158566 Total $38.00 $38.00


BE 158567      Applied: 05/04/2018  Created: 05/04/2018


BGT-COVER D.LEE REIMB. 01-9016-0-6000-1000-4300-033-0051 $0.00 $250.00


BGT-COVER D.LEE REIMB. 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-033-0051 $250.00 $0.00


BE 158567 Total $250.00 $250.00


BE 158568      Applied: 05/04/2018  Created: 05/04/2018


BGT-COVER A.HERNANDEZ REIMB.
ELD CONF


01-3010-0-1110-1000-5200-424-0044 $0.00 $252.00


BGT-COVER A.HERNANDEZ REIMB.
ELD CONF


01-3010-0-1110-1000-5800-424-0044 $252.00 $0.00


BE 158568 Total $252.00 $252.00


BE 158569      Applied: 05/04/2018  Created: 05/04/2018


BGT-COVER E.FRATES REIMB.
TRUCK SERV


01-0724-0-5750-3600-5800-048-0000 $0.00 $1,170.00


BGT-COVER E.FRATES REIMB.
TRUCK SERV


01-0724-0-5750-3600-4300-048-0000 $1,170.00 $0.00


BE 158569 Total $1,170.00 $1,170.00


BE 158733      Applied: 05/04/2018  Created: 05/04/2018


ST-Move budget 01-6230-0-0000-8500-6274-030-0000 $0.00 $3,000.00


ST-Move budget 01-6230-0-0000-8500-6274-020-0000 $0.00 $3,000.00


ST-Move budget 01-6230-0-0000-8110-4300-049-0000 $6,000.00 $0.00


BE 158733 Total $6,000.00 $6,000.00


BE 158785      Applied: 05/04/2018  Created: 05/04/2018


BGT-PS-TISSUE 01-0000-0-0000-3140-4300-033-0000 $0.00 $36.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 6 of 36


30 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BGT-PS-TISSUE 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-033-0000 $36.00 $0.00


BE 158785 Total $36.00 $36.00


BE 158836      Applied: 05/04/2018  Created: 05/04/2018


BD-Reimbursements 01-3060-0-7110-2495-5200-420-0000 $0.00 $76.00


BD-Reimbursements 01-3060-0-7110-2495-5913-420-0000 $76.00 $0.00


BE 158836 Total $76.00 $76.00


BE 158912      Applied: 05/07/2018  Created: 05/07/2018


ST-Kat mileage to SLO COE to
reimburse


01-0000-0-0000-2700-5200-032-0000 $0.00 $218.00


ST-Kat mileage to SLO COE to
reimburse


01-0000-0-0000-2700-5200-032-0000 $218.00 $0.00


BE 158912 Total $218.00 $218.00


BE 158913      Applied: 05/07/2018  Created: 05/07/2018


ST-M. Mckinney gravel to SLO COE to
reimburse


01-0700-0-0000-2140-5200-520-0000 $0.00 $218.00


ST-M. Mckinney gravel to SLO COE to
reimburse


01-0700-0-0000-2110-4399-520-0700 $218.00 $0.00


BE 158913 Total $218.00 $218.00


BE 158925      Applied: 05/07/2018  Created: 05/07/2018


BGT-COVER A.RUIZ REIMB 01-3060-0-7110-2495-5200-420-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-COVER A.RUIZ REIMB 01-3060-0-7110-2495-5913-420-0000 $1.00 $0.00


BE 158925 Total $1.00 $1.00


BE 158953      Applied: 05/07/2018  Created: 05/07/2018


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-2700-1300-450-0000 $0.00 $1,600.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-2700-3101-450-0000 $0.00 $231.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-2700-3331-450-0000 $0.00 $23.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-2700-3501-450-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-2700-3601-450-0000 $0.00 $28.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-1000-1130-450-0000 $0.00 $792.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-1000-3101-450-0000 $0.00 $115.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-1000-3331-450-0000 $0.00 $12.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-1000-3601-450-0000 $0.00 $14.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-2700-2490-450-0000 $0.00 $1,182.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-2700-3202-450-0000 $0.00 $184.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-2700-3312-450-0000 $0.00 $74.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-2700-3332-450-0000 $0.00 $18.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-2700-3502-450-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1115-2700-3502-450-0000 $0.00 $22.00


BD- Summer School June prep hours 01-3010-0-1110-1000-4399-430-0000 $4,297.00 $0.00


BE 158953 Total $4,297.00 $4,297.00


BE 159121      Applied: 05/07/2018  Created: 05/07/2018


ST-HRHS OFFICIALS/FEE 01-0000-0-1400-4200-5800-833-0807 $0.00 $1,000.00


ST-HRHS OFFICIALS/FEE 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4399-058-0807 $1,000.00 $0.00


BE 159121 Total $1,000.00 $1,000.00


BE 159133      Applied: 05/07/2018  Created: 05/07/2018


BD-EL PLC meeting 01-4203-0-1110-1000-1130-430-0000 $0.00 $413.00


BD-EL PLC meeting 01-4203-0-1110-1000-3101-430-0000 $0.00 $60.00


BD-EL PLC meeting 01-4203-0-1110-1000-3331-430-0000 $0.00 $6.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 7 of 36


31 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BD-EL PLC meeting 01-4203-0-1110-1000-3501-430-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BD-EL PLC meeting 01-4203-0-1110-1000-3601-430-0000 $0.00 $8.00


BD-EL PLC meeting 01-4203-0-1110-1000-4399-430-0000 $488.00 $0.00


BE 159133 Total $488.00 $488.00


BE 159151      Applied: 05/07/2018  Created: 05/07/2018


AG/COMM FOUN/JEDI 01-9016-0-8100-5900-5800-036-3611 $0.00 $1,000.00


AG/COMM FOUN/JEDI 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-036-3611 $0.00 $1,000.00


AG/SJSU-MSTR TCHR 01-0150-0-1110-1000-1160-020-0000 $0.00 $700.00


AG/SJSU-MSTR TCHR 01-0150-0-0000-0000-8699-020-0000 $0.00 $700.00


AG/BV/SC WARRIORS 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4300-021-4041 $0.00 $114.00


AG/BV/SC WARRIORS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-021-4041 $0.00 $114.00


AG/DL/SC WARRIORS 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4300-023-4041 $0.00 $18.00


AG/DL/SC WARRIORS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-023-4041 $0.00 $18.00


AG/GLT/SC WARRIORS 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4300-024-4041 $0.00 $125.00


AG/GLT/SC WARRIORS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-024-4041 $0.00 $125.00


AG/MHMS/SC WARRIORS 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4300-032-4041 $0.00 $24.00


AG/MHMS/SC WARRIORS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-032-4041 $0.00 $24.00


AG/MNRCH/SC WARRIORS 01-9010-0-3100-1000-4300-025-4041 $0.00 $24.00


AG/MNRCH/SC WARRIORS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-025-4041 $0.00 $24.00


AG/WL/SC WARRIORS 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4300-027-4041 $0.00 $85.00


AG/WL/SC WARRIORS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-027-4041 $0.00 $85.00


AG/INS/DOL2-14/HHS 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-IN49 $0.00 $2,710.00


AG/INS/DOL2-14/HHS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-IN49 $0.00 $2,710.00


AG/ITRANS INV1819 01-0723-0-0000-3600-2290-848-0000 $0.00 $167.00


AG/ITRANS INV1819 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8699-848-0000 $0.00 $167.00


AG/ITRANS INV1806/1807 01-0723-0-0000-3600-2290-848-0000 $0.00 $689.00


AG/ITRANS INV1806/1807 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8699-848-0000 $0.00 $689.00


AG/ITRANS INV/GLT/PUMPKIN 01-0723-0-0000-3600-2290-848-0000 $0.00 $162.00


AG/ITRANS INV/GLT/PUMPKIN 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8699-848-0000 $0.00 $162.00


AG/FL/YRBKS 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-021-2141 $0.00 $440.00


AG/FL/YRBKS 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-021-2141 $0.00 $440.00


AG/FL/RD-A-THON 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-021-2101 $0.00 $355.00


AG/FL/RD-A-THON 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-021-2101 $0.00 $355.00


AG/MB/OSS 01-9016-0-1150-1000-5800-023-0201 $0.00 $140.00


AG/MB/OSS 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-023-0201 $0.00 $140.00


AG/MB/OSS 01-9016-0-1150-1000-5800-023-0201 $0.00 $290.00


AG/MB/OSS 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-023-0201 $0.00 $290.00


AG/RB/COLUMBIA 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-027-2710 $0.00 $60.00


AG/RB/COLUMBIA 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-027-2710 $0.00 $60.00


AG/RB/COLUMBIA 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-027-2710 $0.00 $180.00


AG/RB/COLUMBIA 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-027-2710 $0.00 $180.00


AG/RB/COLUMBIA 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-027-2710 $0.00 $80.00


AG/RB/COLUMBIA 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-027-2710 $0.00 $80.00


AG/LO/ART 01-9010-0-1510-1000-4300-031-0089 $0.00 $40.00


AG/LO/ART 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8689-031-0089 $0.00 $40.00


AG/AH/BAND 01-9016-0-1250-1000-5800-032-3266 $0.00 $785.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 8 of 36


32 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
AG/AH/BAND 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-032-3266 $0.00 $785.00


AG/PS/AP TESTS 01-9010-0-1294-3160-5800-033-0088 $0.00 $386.00


AG/PS/AP TESTS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-033-0088 $0.00 $386.00


AG/PS/LIBRARY 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4100-033-0089 $0.00 $32.00


AG/PS/LIBRARY 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8689-033-0089 $0.00 $32.00


AG/PS/COMP SCI 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-033-3385 $0.00 $279.00


AG/PS/COMP SCI 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-033-3385 $0.00 $279.00


AG/PS/PKG 01-9010-0-0000-8300-4300-033-0088 $0.00 $22.00


AG/PS/PKG 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-033-0088 $0.00 $22.00


AG/PS/AP TESTS 01-9010-0-1294-3160-5800-033-0088 $0.00 $813.00


AG/PS/AP TESTS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-033-0088 $0.00 $813.00


AG/PS/LIBRARY 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4100-033-0089 $0.00 $34.00


AG/PS/LIBRARY 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8689-033-0089 $0.00 $34.00


AG/PS/50TH ANN 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4300-033-3350 $0.00 $500.00


AG/PS/50TH ANN 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-033-3350 $0.00 $500.00


AG/PS/PARKING 01-9010-0-0000-8300-4300-033-0088 $0.00 $58.00


AG/PS/PARKING 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-033-0088 $0.00 $58.00


AG/PS/CRIM JUST 01-9016-0-6000-1000-4300-033-0051 $0.00 $250.00


AG/PS/CRIM JUST 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-033-0051 $0.00 $250.00


AG/BL/SHF DON 01-9016-0-1150-1000-4300-035-0051 $0.00 $9,431.00


AG/BL/SHF DON 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-035-0051 $0.00 $9,431.00


AG/FACU/SC SWIM/2 INV 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $1,388.00


AG/FACU/SC SWIM/2 INV 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $1,388.00


AG/FACU/SC SWIM/2 INV 01-9010-0-0000-8200-2290-899-FACU $0.00 $176.00


AG/FACU/SC SWIM/2 INV 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-899-FACU $0.00 $176.00


AG/FACU/SC SWIM/3 INV 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $725.00


AG/FACU/SC SWIM/3 INV 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $725.00


AG/FACU/DL/KIDSART 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $416.00


AG/FACU/DL/KIDSART 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $416.00


AG/FACU/B40MS/SCQUAKES 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $700.00


AG/FACU/B40MS/SCQUAKES 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $700.00


AG/FACU/B40MS/SCQUAKES 01-9010-0-0000-8200-2290-899-FACU $0.00 $704.00


AG/FACU/B40MS/SCQUAKES 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-899-FACU $0.00 $704.00


AG/FACU/SCHS/PCS 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $30.00


AG/FACU/SCHS/PCS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $30.00


AG/FACU/GRCPNT/MHMS 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $100.00


AG/FACU/GRCPNT/MHMS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $100.00


AG/FACU/SCYPOPWARNER/SCHS 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $1,980.00


AG/FACU/SCYPOPWARNER/SCHS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $1,980.00


AG/FACU/SCYPOPWARNER/SCHS 01-9010-0-0000-8200-2290-899-FACU $0.00 $1,584.00


AG/FACU/SCYPOPWARNER/SCHS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-899-FACU $0.00 $1,584.00


AG/FACU/SCHS/SCUNITED 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $375.00


AG/FACU/SCHS/SCUNITED 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $375.00


AG/FACU/SCHS/SCUNITED 01-9010-0-0000-8200-2290-899-FACU $0.00 $220.00


AG/FACU/SCHS/SCUNITED 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-899-FACU $0.00 $220.00


AG/FACU/SHS/PARADIGM/2 INV 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $540.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 9 of 36


33 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
AG/FACU/SHS/PARADIGM/2 INV 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $540.00


BE 159151 Total $0.00 $57,862.00


BE 159152      Applied: 05/07/2018  Created: 05/07/2018


BGT-BL-YR END CHALLENGE 01-7220-7-1451-1000-4300-035-0000 $0.00 $2,500.00


BGT-BL-YR END CHALLENGE 01-7220-7-1451-2700-4300-035-0000 $2,500.00 $0.00


BE 159152 Total $2,500.00 $2,500.00


BE 159156      Applied: 05/07/2018  Created: 05/07/2018


AG/NSF CK/#3212 CLUNIE/SHS 01-9010-0-1294-3160-5800-035-0088 $282.00 $0.00


AG/NSF CK #3212/SHS/CLUNIE 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-035-0088 $282.00 $0.00


AG/NSF CK 2226/WL/KERCHER 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-027-2710 $180.00 $0.00


AG/NSF CK 2226/WL/KERCHER 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-027-2710 $180.00 $0.00


AG/NSF CK #442/SALGUERO/DLV 01-9016-0-1150-1000-5800-023-0201 $290.00 $0.00


AG/NSF CK #442/SALGUERO/DLV 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-023-0201 $290.00 $0.00


BE 159156 Total $1,504.00 $0.00


BE 159232      Applied: 05/08/2018  Created: 05/08/2018


BD- Summer School Prep Materials 01-3010-0-1115-1000-4300-450-0000 $0.00 $120.00


BD- Summer School Prep Materials 01-3010-0-1110-1000-4399-430-0000 $120.00 $0.00


BE 159232 Total $120.00 $120.00


BE 159235      Applied: 05/08/2018  Created: 05/08/2018


BGT-EWA#14534 S.HEADY NGSS MTG01-6264-0-1110-1000-1130-520-0020 $0.00 $33.00


BGT-EWA#14534 S.HEADY NGSS MTG01-6264-0-1110-1000-3101-520-0020 $0.00 $76.00


BGT-EWA#14534 S.HEADY NGSS MTG01-6264-0-1110-1000-3331-520-0020 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14534 S.HEADY NGSS MTG01-6264-0-1110-1000-3601-520-0020 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14534 S.HEADY NGSS MTG01-6264-0-1110-1000-4399-520-0020 $111.00 $0.00


BE 159235 Total $111.00 $111.00


BE 159238      Applied: 05/08/2018  Created: 05/08/2018


BGT-DB-COVER NEG 13-5310-0-0000-3700-4400-046-0000 $5,000.00 $0.00


BGT-DB-COVER NEG 13-5310-0-0000-3700-4300-046-0000 $0.00 $5,000.00


BE 159238 Total $5,000.00 $5,000.00


BE 159295      Applied: 05/08/2018  Created: 05/08/2018


BGT-JB-RESERVED PARKING
GRADUATION


01-0000-0-0000-2700-5800-834-0014 $0.00 $210.00


BGT-JB-RESERVED PARKING
GRADUATION


01-0000-0-0000-2700-4300-834-0014 $210.00 $0.00


BE 159295 Total $210.00 $210.00


BE 159296      Applied: 05/08/2018  Created: 05/08/2018


BGT-PS-FAMILY ID 01-0000-0-1400-4200-5800-033-0807 $0.00 $716.00


BGT-PS-FAMILY ID 01-0000-0-1400-4200-4300-033-0807 $716.00 $0.00


BE 159296 Total $716.00 $716.00


BE 159297      Applied: 05/08/2018  Created: 05/08/2018


BGT-BL-CHROMECART 01-9016-0-1150-1000-4400-035-0051 $0.00 $1,096.00


BGT-BL-CHROMECART 01-9016-0-1150-1000-4300-035-0051 $1,096.00 $0.00


BE 159297 Total $1,096.00 $1,096.00


BE 159337      Applied: 05/08/2018  Created: 05/08/2018


BGT-JB-SUPPLIES 01-0000-0-0000-2700-4300-034-0000 $0.00 $100.00


BGT-JB-SUPPLIES 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-034-0000 $100.00 $0.00


BE 159337 Total $100.00 $100.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 10 of 36


34 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BE 159381      Applied: 05/08/2018  Created: 05/08/2018


BGT-PS-FOLDERS 01-0000-0-1110-1000-5800-033-0000 $0.00 $580.00


BGT-PS-FOLDERS 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-033-0000 $580.00 $0.00


BE 159381 Total $580.00 $580.00


BE 159382      Applied: 05/08/2018  Created: 05/08/2018


BGT-PS-SIT STAND 01-0000-0-0000-2700-4300-033-0000 $0.00 $347.00


BGT-PS-SIT STAND 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-033-0000 $347.00 $0.00


BE 159382 Total $347.00 $347.00


BE 159401      Applied: 05/09/2018  Created: 05/09/2018


BGT-EWA#14549 & COV NEG 01-0000-0-0000-8110-2290-849-0000 $0.00 $344.00


BGT-EWA#14549 & COV NEG 01-0000-0-0000-8110-2230-849-0000 $0.00 $1,904.00


BGT-EWA#14549 & COV NEG 01-0000-0-0000-8110-3202-849-0000 $0.00 $55.00


BGT-EWA#14549 & COV NEG 01-0000-0-0000-8110-3312-849-0000 $0.00 $22.00


BGT-EWA#14549 & COV NEG 01-0000-0-0000-8110-3332-849-0000 $0.00 $5.00


BGT-EWA#14549 & COV NEG 01-0000-0-0000-8110-3602-849-0000 $0.00 $6.00


BGT-EWA#14549 & COV NEG 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $2,336.00 $0.00


BE 159401 Total $2,336.00 $2,336.00


BE 159417      Applied: 05/09/2018  Created: 05/09/2018


BGT-EWA#14529-14533 SCIENCE
MEETING


01-6264-0-1110-1000-1130-530-0030 $0.00 $165.00


BGT-EWA#14529-14533 SCIENCE
MEETING


01-6264-0-1110-1000-3101-530-0030 $0.00 $24.00


BGT-EWA#14529-14533 SCIENCE
MEETING


01-6264-0-1110-1000-3331-530-0030 $0.00 $3.00


BGT-EWA#14529-14533 SCIENCE
MEETING


01-6264-0-1110-1000-3601-530-0030 $0.00 $3.00


BGT-EWA#14529-14533 SCIENCE
MEETING


01-6264-0-1110-1000-4399-530-0030 $195.00 $0.00


BE 159417 Total $195.00 $195.00


BE 159418      Applied: 05/09/2018  Created: 05/09/2018


BGT-AMB-COV NPS REQ#48962 LINE
1


01-6500-0-5750-1180-5800-220-0000 $0.00 $25,000.00


BGT-AMB-COV NPS REQ#48962 LINE
1


01-6500-0-5770-1130-5100-220-0000 $25,000.00 $0.00


BE 159418 Total $25,000.00 $25,000.00


BE 159419      Applied: 05/09/2018  Created: 05/09/2018


BGT-AMB-COV ELEM APS - REQ
48964 & 49517


01-6500-0-5770-1180-5800-220-0000 $0.00 $25,000.00


BGT-AMB-COV ELEM APS - REQ
48964 & 49517


01-6500-0-5770-1130-5800-220-0000 $25,000.00 $0.00


BE 159419 Total $25,000.00 $25,000.00


BE 159446      Applied: 05/09/2018  Created: 05/09/2018


SS- GAULT FT 9/19 TR 1805 01-0700-0-1110-1000-4300-024-0000 $499.00 $0.00


SS- GAULT FT 9/19 TR 1805 01-0700-0-1110-1000-5710-024-0000 $0.00 $499.00


SS- GAULT FT 9/19 TR 1805 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5710-048-0000 $499.00 $0.00


SS- GAULT FT 9/19 TR 1805 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8980-030-0000 $499.00 $0.00


SS- GAULT FT 9/19 TR 1805 01-0000-0-0000-0000-8980-000-0000 $0.00 $499.00


SS- GAULT FT 9/19 TR 1805 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $0.00 $499.00


BE 159446 Total $1,497.00 $1,497.00


BE 159537      Applied: 05/09/2018  Created: 05/09/2018


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 11 of 36


35 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
SS- SCHS FT 2/20 TR 1822 01-9016-0-1250-1000-5710-034-3435 $0.00 $80.00


SS- SCHS FT 2/20 TR 1822 01-9016-0-1250-1000-4300-034-3435 $80.00 $0.00


SS- SCHS FT 2/20 TR 1822 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5710-048-0000 $80.00 $0.00


SS- SCHS FT 2/20 TR 1822 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8980-030-0000 $80.00 $0.00


SS- SCHS FT 2/20 TR 1822 01-0000-0-0000-0000-8980-000-0000 $0.00 $80.00


SS- SCHS FT 2/20 TR 1822 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $0.00 $80.00


BE 159537 Total $240.00 $240.00


BE 159539      Applied: 05/09/2018  Created: 05/09/2018


BGT-LO-PRINTER 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-031-0000 $950.00 $0.00


BGT-LO-PRINTER 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4400-031-0000 $0.00 $950.00


BE 159539 Total $950.00 $950.00


BE 159541      Applied: 05/09/2018  Created: 05/09/2018


BGT-AMB-PARENT MILEAGE -REQ
51019


01-6500-0-5750-1110-5200-230-0000 $0.00 $1,000.00


BGT-AMB-PARENT MILEAGE -REQ
51019


01-6500-0-5750-1180-5800-230-0000 $0.00 $1,500.00


BGT-AMB-PARENT MILEAGE -REQ
51019


01-6500-0-5750-1180-5100-230-0000 $2,500.00 $0.00


BE 159541 Total $2,500.00 $2,500.00


BE 159574      Applied: 05/09/2018  Created: 05/09/2018


BGT-PS-BREAKFAST MEETING 01-0723-0-0000-3600-4395-048-0000 $0.00 $86.00


BGT-PS-BREAKFAST MEETING 01-0723-0-0000-3600-4300-048-0000 $86.00 $0.00


BE 159574 Total $86.00 $86.00


BE 159579      Applied: 05/09/2018  Created: 05/09/2018


BGT-BL-AP INSTITUTE JS 01-6387-0-6000-1000-5200-435-0000 $0.00 $1,815.00


BGT-BL-AP INSTITUTE JS 01-6387-0-6000-1000-4300-435-0000 $1,815.00 $0.00


BE 159579 Total $1,815.00 $1,815.00


BE 159584      Applied: 05/09/2018  Created: 05/09/2018


ST-Move budget to cover OOS bus for
WL.  Our buses not available


01-9010-0-1150-1000-5800-048-IN48 $0.00 $1,020.00


ST-Move budget to cover OOS bus for
WL.  Our buses not available


01-9010-0-0000-3600-4300-048-IN48 $1,020.00 $0.00


BE 159584 Total $1,020.00 $1,020.00


BE 159615      Applied: 05/10/2018  Created: 05/10/2018


BGT-EWA#14495 C.THOMAS SPANISH
CREATE ART


01-9016-0-1120-1000-2130-021-0052 $0.00 $396.00


BGT-EWA#14495 C.THOMAS SPANISH
CREATE ART


01-9016-0-1120-1000-3312-021-0052 $0.00 $25.00


BGT-EWA#14495 C.THOMAS SPANISH
CREATE ART


01-9016-0-1120-1000-3332-021-0052 $0.00 $6.00


BGT-EWA#14495 C.THOMAS SPANISH
CREATE ART


01-9016-0-1120-1000-3502-021-0052 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14495 C.THOMAS SPANISH
CREATE ART


01-9016-0-1120-1000-3602-021-0052 $0.00 $8.00


BGT-EWA#14495 C.THOMAS SPANISH
CREATE ART


01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-021-0052 $283.00 $0.00


BGT-EWA#14495 C.THOMAS SPANISH
CREATE ART


01-9016-0-1250-1000-4300-021-0052 $153.00 $0.00


BE 159615 Total $436.00 $436.00


BE 159616      Applied: 05/10/2018  Created: 05/10/2018


BGT-EWA#14536 J.ATKINSON MIX
MEDIA ENRICH.


01-0000-0-1120-1000-2130-832-0807 $0.00 $330.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 12 of 36


36 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
MEDIA ENRICH.


BGT-EWA#14536 J.ATKINSON MIX
MEDIA ENRICH.


01-0000-0-1120-1000-3312-832-0807 $0.00 $21.00


BGT-EWA#14536 J.ATKINSON MIX
MEDIA ENRICH.


01-0000-0-1120-1000-3332-832-0807 $0.00 $5.00


BGT-EWA#14536 J.ATKINSON MIX
MEDIA ENRICH.


01-0000-0-1120-1000-3502-832-0807 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14536 J.ATKINSON MIX
MEDIA ENRICH.


01-0000-0-1120-1000-3602-832-0807 $0.00 $6.00


BGT-EWA#14536 J.ATKINSON MIX
MEDIA ENRICH.


01-0000-0-1110-1000-2130-832-0807 $363.00 $0.00


BE 159616 Total $363.00 $363.00


BE 159617      Applied: 05/10/2018  Created: 05/10/2018


BGT-COVER PARENT MILEAGE 01-0724-0-5750-3600-5200-048-0000 $0.00 $83.00


BGT-COVER PARENT MILEAGE 01-0724-0-5750-3600-4300-048-0000 $83.00 $0.00


BE 159617 Total $83.00 $83.00


BE 159645      Applied: 05/10/2018  Created: 05/10/2018


BD- Summer bus pass Purchase 01-3061-0-7110-1000-5800-420-0000 $0.00 $960.00


BD- Summer bus pass Purchase 01-3061-0-7110-1000-4300-420-0000 $960.00 $0.00


BE 159645 Total $960.00 $960.00


BE 159658      Applied: 05/10/2018  Created: 05/10/2018


BD-ELA/ELS Task Froce 01-4203-0-1110-1000-1130-420-0000 $0.00 $792.00


BD-ELA/ELS Task Froce 01-4203-0-1110-1000-3101-420-0000 $0.00 $115.00


BD-ELA/ELS Task Froce 01-4203-0-1110-1000-3331-420-0000 $0.00 $12.00


BD-ELA/ELS Task Froce 01-4203-0-1110-1000-3501-420-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BD-ELA/ELS Task Froce 01-4203-0-1110-1000-3601-420-0000 $0.00 $14.00


BD-ELA/ELS Task Froce 01-4203-0-1110-1000-4399-420-0000 $934.00 $0.00


BE 159658 Total $934.00 $934.00


BE 159797      Applied: 05/10/2018  Created: 05/10/2018


BD-Reimbursements 01-3060-0-7110-2495-5200-420-0000 $0.00 $552.00


BD-Reimbursements 01-3060-0-7110-1000-4300-420-0000 $84.00 $0.00


BD-Reimbursements 01-3060-0-7110-2495-4395-420-0000 $82.00 $0.00


BD-Reimbursements 01-3060-0-7110-2495-5913-420-0000 $386.00 $0.00


BE 159797 Total $552.00 $552.00


BE 159804      Applied: 05/10/2018  Created: 05/10/2018


BD-Reimbursements 01-3010-0-1110-2495-5200-430-0000 $0.00 $254.00


BD-Reimbursements 01-3010-0-1110-1000-4399-430-0000 $254.00 $0.00


BE 159804 Total $254.00 $254.00


BE 159868      Applied: 05/11/2018  Created: 05/11/2018


BGT-SQHS SATURDAY SCHOOL COV
NEG


01-0000-0-1560-1000-1130-835-0000 $0.00 $2,657.00


BGT-SQHS SATURDAY SCHOOL COV
NEG


01-0000-0-1560-1000-3101-835-0000 $0.00 $288.00


BGT-SQHS SATURDAY SCHOOL COV
NEG


01-0000-0-1560-1000-3311-835-0000 $0.00 $41.00


BGT-SQHS SATURDAY SCHOOL COV
NEG


01-0000-0-1560-1000-3331-835-0000 $0.00 $39.00


BGT-SQHS SATURDAY SCHOOL COV
NEG


01-0000-0-1560-1000-3501-835-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-SQHS SATURDAY SCHOOL COV
NEG


01-0000-0-1560-1000-3601-835-0000 $0.00 $44.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 13 of 36


37 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BGT-SQHS SATURDAY SCHOOL COV
NEG


01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $3,070.00 $0.00


BE 159868 Total $3,070.00 $3,070.00


BE 159876      Applied: 05/11/2018  Created: 05/11/2018


BGT-JKB-ELEM MUSIC CONCERT
STIPENDS


01-0000-0-1250-1000-4300-520-0804 $2,589.00 $0.00


BGT-JKB-ELEM MUSIC CONCERT
STIPENDS


01-0000-0-1250-1000-1160-520-0804 $0.00 $2,589.00


BE 159876 Total $2,589.00 $2,589.00


BE 159877      Applied: 05/11/2018  Created: 05/11/2018


BGT-JB-CONFERENCE 01-9016-0-1531-1000-5200-034-0051 $0.00 $226.00


BGT-JB-CONFERENCE 01-9016-0-1531-1000-4300-034-0051 $226.00 $0.00


BE 159877 Total $226.00 $226.00


BE 159891      Applied: 05/11/2018  Created: 05/11/2018


BD- COver transfer of Expenditures from
Rs. 6010


01-3010-0-1250-1000-2130-424-0000 $0.00 $2,327.00


BD- COver transfer of Expenditures from
Rs. 6010


01-3010-0-1250-1000-3312-424-0000 $0.00 $145.00


BD- COver transfer of Expenditures from
Rs. 6010


01-3010-0-1250-1000-3332-424-0000 $0.00 $34.00


BD- COver transfer of Expenditures from
Rs. 6010


01-3010-0-1250-1000-3502-424-0000 $0.00 $2.00


BD- COver transfer of Expenditures from
Rs. 6010


01-3010-0-1250-1000-3602-424-0000 $0.00 $41.00


BD- COver transfer of Expenditures from
Rs. 6010


01-3010-0-1110-1000-4300-424-0000 $2,549.00 $0.00


BE 159891 Total $2,549.00 $2,549.00


BE 160078      Applied: 05/14/2018  Created: 05/14/2018


BGT-EWA#14610 K.RUCKER SPECIAL
ASSIGN


01-0000-0-0000-7300-2330-858-0000 $0.00 $1,200.00


BGT-EWA#14610 K.RUCKER SPECIAL
ASSIGN


01-0000-0-0000-7300-3312-858-0000 $0.00 $75.00


BGT-EWA#14610 K.RUCKER SPECIAL
ASSIGN


01-0000-0-0000-7300-3332-858-0000 $0.00 $18.00


BGT-EWA#14610 K.RUCKER SPECIAL
ASSIGN


01-0000-0-0000-7300-3502-858-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14610 K.RUCKER SPECIAL
ASSIGN


01-0000-0-0000-7300-3602-858-0000 $0.00 $21.00


BGT-EWA#14610 K.RUCKER SPECIAL
ASSIGN


01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $1,315.00 $0.00


BE 160078 Total $1,315.00 $1,315.00


BE 160208      Applied: 05/14/2018  Created: 05/14/2018


BGT-MB-MOVE TO 2700 FUNC 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-023-0000 $600.00 $0.00


BGT-MB-MOVE TO 2700 FUNC 01-0000-0-0000-2700-4300-023-0000 $0.00 $600.00


BE 160208 Total $600.00 $600.00


BE 160209      Applied: 05/14/2018  Created: 05/14/2018


BGT-JKB-A.HARRIS STANFORD
MINDSET MATH SUMR


01-6264-0-1110-1000-4399-530-0030 $994.00 $0.00


BGT-JKB-A.HARRIS STANFORD
MINDSET MATH SUMR


01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-530-0030 $0.00 $994.00


BE 160209 Total $994.00 $994.00


BE 160216      Applied: 05/14/2018  Created: 05/14/2018


BD- To cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-1140-423-0044 $0.00 $337.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 14 of 36


38 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BD- To cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3311-423-0044 $0.00 $14.00


BD- To cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3331-423-0044 $0.00 $5.00


BD- To cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3601-423-0044 $0.00 $6.00


BD- To cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-4300-423-0044 $362.00 $0.00


BE 160216 Total $362.00 $362.00


BE 160248      Applied: 05/14/2018  Created: 05/14/2018


BGT-RB-FOR TRUFLIX 18-19
SUBSCRIPTION


01-6300-0-1110-1000-5800-527-0000 $0.00 $717.00


BGT-RB-FOR TRUFLIX 18-19
SUBSCRIPTION


01-6300-0-1110-1000-4300-527-0000 $717.00 $0.00


BE 160248 Total $717.00 $717.00


BE 160250      Applied: 05/14/2018  Created: 05/14/2018


BGT-BL-BRINKS 01-0000-0-0000-2700-5800-835-0014 $0.00 $98.00


BGT-BL-BRINKS 01-0000-0-0000-2700-4300-835-0014 $98.00 $0.00


BE 160250 Total $98.00 $98.00


BE 160251      Applied: 05/14/2018  Created: 05/14/2018


BGT-ED-BENCHMARK BOOKS 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-024-0051 $71.00 $0.00


BGT-ED-BENCHMARK BOOKS 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4200-024-0051 $0.00 $71.00


BE 160251 Total $71.00 $71.00


BE 160256      Applied: 05/14/2018  Created: 05/14/2018


BGT-EWA#14528 D.LEDBETTER
NGSS LEADER


01-6264-0-1110-1000-2130-530-0030 $0.00 $337.00


BGT-EWA#14528 D.LEDBETTER
NGSS LEADER


01-6264-0-1110-1000-3312-530-0030 $0.00 $21.00


BGT-EWA#14528 D.LEDBETTER
NGSS LEADER


01-6264-0-1110-1000-3332-530-0030 $0.00 $5.00


BGT-EWA#14528 D.LEDBETTER
NGSS LEADER


01-6264-0-1110-1000-3502-530-0030 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14528 D.LEDBETTER
NGSS LEADER


01-6264-0-1110-1000-3602-530-0030 $0.00 $6.00


BGT-EWA#14528 D.LEDBETTER
NGSS LEADER


01-6264-0-1110-1000-4399-530-0030 $370.00 $0.00


BE 160256 Total $370.00 $370.00


BE 160258      Applied: 05/14/2018  Created: 05/14/2018


BGT-EWA#14585 ELLIOT-PERKINS 01-0000-0-0000-3110-2430-031-0000 $0.00 $328.00


BGT-EWA#14585 ELLIOT-PERKINS 01-0000-0-0000-3110-3202-031-0000 $0.00 $21.00


BGT-EWA#14585 ELLIOT-PERKINS 01-0000-0-0000-3110-3312-031-0000 $0.00 $5.00


BGT-EWA#14585 ELLIOT-PERKINS 01-0000-0-0000-3110-3332-031-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14585 ELLIOT-PERKINS 01-0000-0-0000-3110-3602-031-0000 $0.00 $6.00


BGT-EWA#14585 ELLIOT-PERKINS 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-031-0000 $361.00 $0.00


BE 160258 Total $361.00 $361.00


BE 160265      Applied: 05/15/2018  Created: 05/15/2018


BGT-COVER R.SAARNI REIMB 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5300-048-0000 $0.00 $10.00


BGT-COVER R.SAARNI REIMB 01-0723-0-0000-3600-4300-048-0000 $10.00 $0.00


BE 160265 Total $10.00 $10.00


BE 160269      Applied: 05/15/2018  Created: 05/15/2018


BGT-BL-TISSUES 01-9010-0-1110-3140-4300-035-FACU $0.00 $4.00


BGT-BL-TISSUES 01-9010-0-0000-2700-4300-035-FACU $4.00 $0.00


BE 160269 Total $4.00 $4.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 15 of 36


39 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BE 160270      Applied: 05/15/2018  Created: 05/15/2018


BGT-FOR ASSET TAGS 01-0000-0-0000-7500-5800-049-0000 $0.00 $560.00


BGT-FOR ASSET TAGS 01-0000-0-0000-7500-4300-049-0000 $560.00 $0.00


BE 160270 Total $560.00 $560.00


BE 160271      Applied: 05/15/2018  Created: 05/15/2018


BGT-EWAS 14589-14601 CAP LDRS
STIPENDS


01-0000-0-1110-1000-1160-035-0000 $0.00 $2.00


BGT-EWAS 14589-14601 CAP LDRS
STIPENDS


01-0000-0-1110-1000-3101-035-0000 $0.00 $455.00


BGT-EWAS 14589-14601 CAP LDRS
STIPENDS


01-0000-0-1110-1000-3331-035-0000 $0.00 $46.00


BGT-EWAS 14589-14601 CAP LDRS
STIPENDS


01-0000-0-1110-1000-3501-035-0000 $0.00 $2.00


BGT-EWAS 14589-14601 CAP LDRS
STIPENDS


01-0000-0-1110-1000-3601-035-0000 $0.00 $56.00


BGT-EWAS 14589-14601 CAP LDRS
STIPENDS


01-0000-0-1110-1000-5200-035-0000 $561.00 $0.00


BE 160271 Total $561.00 $561.00


BE 160287      Applied: 05/15/2018  Created: 05/15/2018


BGT-JKB-14 TEACHERS TO MBAMP
SUMMER INST


01-6264-0-1110-1000-4399-520-0020 $2,800.00 $0.00


BGT-JKB-14 TEACHERS TO MBAMP
SUMMER INST


01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-520-0020 $0.00 $2,800.00


BE 160287 Total $2,800.00 $2,800.00


BE 160289      Applied: 05/15/2018  Created: 05/15/2018


BGT-JKB-14 TEACHERS TO MBAMP
SUMMER INST


01-6264-0-1110-1000-4399-520-0020 $2,800.00 $0.00


BGT-JKB-14 TEACHERS TO MBAMP
SUMMER INST


01-6264-0-1110-1000-5200-520-0020 $0.00 $2,800.00


BE 160289 Total $2,800.00 $2,800.00


BE 160290      Applied: 05/15/2018  Created: 05/15/2018


BGT-BL-COV PETTY CASH 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-035-0000 $0.00 $350.00


BGT-BL-COV PETTY CASH 01-0000-0-1110-1000-5800-035-0000 $350.00 $0.00


BE 160290 Total $350.00 $350.00


BE 160291      Applied: 05/15/2018  Created: 05/15/2018


BGT-JKB-COV NEG 01-9010-0-1150-1000-1140-527-4050 $22.00 $0.00


BGT-JKB-COV NEG 01-9010-0-1150-1000-3101-527-4050 $0.00 $17.00


BGT-JKB-COV NEG 01-9010-0-1150-1000-3331-527-4050 $0.00 $2.00


BGT-JKB-COV NEG 01-9010-0-1150-1000-3501-527-4050 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-JKB-COV NEG 01-9010-0-1150-1000-3601-527-4050 $0.00 $2.00


BE 160291 Total $22.00 $22.00


BE 160312      Applied: 05/15/2018  Created: 05/15/2018


AG/INS/DOL 1-3-18 01-9010-0-0000-8110-5600-049-IN49 $0.00 $2,400.00


AG/INS/DOL 1-3-188 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-IN49 $0.00 $2,400.00


AG/INS/DOL 3-19-18 01-9010-0-0000-3600-5600-048-IN48 $0.00 $4,626.00


AG/INS/DOL 3-19-18 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-048-IN48 $0.00 $4,626.00


AG/TRANS/9-19-18 01-0723-0-0000-3600-2290-848-0000 $0.00 $311.00


AG/TRANS/9-19-18 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8699-848-0000 $0.00 $311.00


AG/TRANS 1810 01-0723-0-0000-3600-2290-848-0000 $0.00 $160.00


AG/TRANS 1810 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8699-848-0000 $0.00 $160.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 16 of 36


40 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
AG/FL/YRBKS 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-021-2141 $0.00 $30.00


AG/FL/YRBKS 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-021-2141 $0.00 $30.00


AG/FL/LIB/DON. 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-021-2101 $0.00 $50.00


AG/FL/LIB/DON. 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-021-2101 $0.00 $50.00


AG/MB/OSS 01-9016-0-1150-1000-5800-023-0201 $0.00 $100.00


AG/MB/OSS 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-023-0201 $0.00 $100.00


AG/MB/OSS 01-9016-0-1150-1000-5800-023-0201 $0.00 $90.00


AG/MB/OSS 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-023-0201 $0.00 $90.00


AG/RB/OSS 01-9016-0-1150-1000-4300-027-2706 $0.00 $335.00


AG/RB/OSS 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-027-2706 $0.00 $335.00


AG/LO/AMER STUD 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-031-3111 $0.00 $50.00


AG/LO/AMER STUD 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-031-3111 $0.00 $50.00


AG/LO/DONATION 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-031-3156 $0.00 $1,100.00


AG/LO/DONATION 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-031-3156 $0.00 $1,100.00


AG/FACU/ACT/SHS 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $1,020.00


AG/FACU/ACT/SHS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $1,020.00


BE 160312 Total $0.00 $20,544.00


BE 160319      Applied: 05/15/2018  Created: 05/15/2018


BGT-PS-FOOD MTGS 01-0000-0-0000-2700-4395-033-0000 $0.00 $26.00


BGT-PS-FOOD MTGS 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-033-0000 $26.00 $0.00


BE 160319 Total $26.00 $26.00


BE 160321      Applied: 05/15/2018  Created: 05/15/2018


BGT-JKB-GINO GOOGLE TRIP 01-0000-0-0000-2130-4300-500-0000 $228.00 $0.00


BGT-JKB-GINO GOOGLE TRIP 01-0000-0-0000-2140-5200-530-0000 $0.00 $228.00


BGT-JKB-GINO GOOGLE TRIP 01-0000-0-0000-2130-5800-500-0000 $200.00 $0.00


BGT-JKB-GINO GOOGLE TRIP 01-0000-0-0000-2140-5200-520-0000 $0.00 $200.00


BE 160321 Total $428.00 $428.00


BE 160322      Applied: 05/15/2018  Created: 05/15/2018


BGT-RB-COLUMBIA MERCER
CAVERN


01-9016-0-1110-1000-5800-027-2710 $0.00 $900.00


BGT-RB-COLUMBIA MERCER
CAVERN


01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-027-2710 $900.00 $0.00


BE 160322 Total $900.00 $900.00


BE 160325      Applied: 05/15/2018  Created: 05/15/2018


BGT-JB-FOR SCHS PROJECTOR
INSTALL


01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $5,000.00 $0.00


BGT-JB-FOR SCHS PROJECTOR
INSTALL


01-9010-0-0000-8110-5800-049-FACU $0.00 $5,000.00


BE 160325 Total $5,000.00 $5,000.00


BE 160363      Applied: 05/16/2018  Created: 05/16/2018


BD to cover negatives 01-6264-0-1110-1000-1140-520-0020 $0.00 $3,955.00


BD to cover negatives 01-6264-0-1110-1000-3311-520-0020 $0.00 $83.00


BD to cover negatives 01-6264-0-1110-1000-4399-520-0020 $4,038.00 $0.00


BE 160363 Total $4,038.00 $4,038.00


BE 160394      Applied: 05/16/2018  Created: 05/16/2018


BGT-EWA#14650 01-0000-0-0000-7300-2490-858-0000 $0.00 $974.00


BGT-EWA#14650 01-0000-0-0000-7300-3202-858-0000 $0.00 $154.00


BGT-EWA#14650 01-0000-0-0000-7300-3312-858-0000 $0.00 $61.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 17 of 36


41 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BGT-EWA#14650 01-0000-0-0000-7300-3332-858-0000 $0.00 $15.00


BGT-EWA#14650 01-0000-0-0000-7300-3502-858-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14650 01-0000-0-0000-7300-3602-858-0000 $0.00 $17.00


BGT-EWA#14650 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $1,222.00 $0.00


BE 160394 Total $1,222.00 $1,222.00


BE 160624      Applied: 05/16/2018  Created: 05/16/2018


BGT-DMG-COVER FOOD PURCHASE 01-0000-0-0000-7400-5200-047-0000 $20.00 $0.00


BGT-DMG-COVER FOOD PURCHASE 01-0000-0-0000-7400-4395-047-0000 $0.00 $20.00


BE 160624 Total $20.00 $20.00


BE 160626      Applied: 05/16/2018  Created: 05/16/2018


BGT-DMG-CRAIGSLIST AD 01-0000-0-0000-7400-5200-047-0000 $75.00 $0.00


BGT-DMG-CRAIGSLIST AD 01-0000-0-0000-7400-5800-047-0000 $0.00 $75.00


BE 160626 Total $75.00 $75.00


BE 160666      Applied: 05/16/2018  Created: 05/16/2018


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1250-1000-2130-832-0807 $0.00 $66.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1250-1000-3312-832-0807 $0.00 $4.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1250-1000-3332-832-0807 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1250-1000-3602-832-0807 $0.00 $2.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1260-1000-2130-832-0807 $0.00 $264.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1260-1000-3312-832-0807 $0.00 $17.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1260-1000-3332-832-0807 $0.00 $4.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1260-1000-3602-832-0807 $0.00 $5.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1400-1000-2130-832-0807 $0.00 $132.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1400-1000-3312-832-0807 $0.00 $9.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1400-1000-3332-832-0807 $0.00 $2.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1400-1000-3602-832-0807 $0.00 $3.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1516-1000-2130-832-0807 $0.00 $132.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1516-1000-3312-832-0807 $0.00 $9.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1516-1000-3332-832-0807 $0.00 $2.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1516-1000-3602-832-0807 $0.00 $3.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1535-1000-2130-832-0807 $0.00 $66.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1535-1000-3312-832-0807 $0.00 $4.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1535-1000-3502-832-0807 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1535-1000-3602-832-0807 $0.00 $2.00


BGT-EWAS ENRICHMENT 01-0000-0-1110-1000-2130-832-0807 $728.00 $0.00


BE 160666 Total $728.00 $728.00


BE 160671      Applied: 05/16/2018  Created: 05/16/2018


BGT-EWA 14594/95 MUSIC STIPENDS
SPREAD BENEF


01-0000-0-1250-1000-3101-520-0804 $0.00 $318.00


BGT-EWA 14594/95 MUSIC STIPENDS
SPREAD BENEF


01-0000-0-1250-1000-3331-520-0804 $0.00 $32.00


BGT-EWA 14594/95 MUSIC STIPENDS
SPREAD BENEF


01-0000-0-1250-1000-3501-520-0804 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA 14594/95 MUSIC STIPENDS
SPREAD BENEF


01-0000-0-1250-1000-3601-520-0804 $0.00 $39.00


BGT-EWA 14594/95 MUSIC STIPENDS
SPREAD BENEF


01-0000-0-1250-1000-1160-520-0804 $390.00 $0.00


BE 160671 Total $390.00 $390.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 18 of 36


42 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BE 160687      Applied: 05/16/2018  Created: 05/16/2018


BGT-MOVE LEGAL BUDGET 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5800-053-5310 $0.00 $395.00


BGT-MOVE LEGAL BUDGET 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5800-053-5311 $0.00 $355.00


BGT-MOVE LEGAL BUDGET 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5800-053-5312 $0.00 $7,118.00


BGT-MOVE LEGAL BUDGET 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5800-053-5313 $0.00 $1,669.00


BGT-MOVE LEGAL BUDGET 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5800-053-0000 $9,537.00 $0.00


BE 160687 Total $9,537.00 $9,537.00


BE 160702      Applied: 05/16/2018  Created: 05/16/2018


SS- SCHS BAND TR 1824 01-9016-0-1250-1000-5710-034-3473 $0.00 $259.00


SS- SCHS BAND TR 1824 01-9016-0-1250-1000-4300-034-3473 $259.00 $0.00


SS- SCHS BAND TR 1824 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5710-048-0000 $259.00 $0.00


SS- SCHS BAND TR 1824 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8980-030-0000 $259.00 $0.00


SS- SCHS BAND TR 1824 01-0000-0-0000-0000-8980-000-0000 $0.00 $259.00


SS- SCHS BAND TR 1824 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $0.00 $259.00


BE 160702 Total $777.00 $777.00


BE 160704      Applied: 05/16/2018  Created: 05/16/2018


SS- TR 1825 FT CABRILLO M.A. ROBB 01-3010-0-1110-1000-5710-430-0000 $0.00 $209.00


SS- TR 1825 FT CABRILLO M.A. ROBB 01-3010-0-1110-1000-5800-430-0000 $209.00 $0.00


SS- TR 1825 FT CABRILLO M.A. ROBB 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5710-048-0000 $209.00 $0.00


SS- TR 1825 FT CABRILLO M.A. ROBB 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8980-030-0000 $209.00 $0.00


SS- TR 1825 FT CABRILLO M.A. ROBB 01-0000-0-0000-0000-8980-000-0000 $0.00 $209.00


SS- TR 1825 FT CABRILLO M.A. ROBB 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $0.00 $209.00


BE 160704 Total $627.00 $627.00


BE 160706      Applied: 05/16/2018  Created: 05/16/2018


SS- TR 1826 COSTANOA FT  3.14 01-3010-0-3200-1000-5710-436-0000 $0.00 $196.00


SS- TR 1826 COSTANOA FT  3.14 01-3010-0-3200-1000-5800-436-0000 $196.00 $0.00


SS- TR 1826 COSTANOA FT  3.14 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5710-048-0000 $196.00 $0.00


SS- TR 1826 COSTANOA FT  3.14 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8980-030-0000 $196.00 $0.00


SS- TR 1826 COSTANOA FT  3.14 01-0000-0-0000-0000-8980-000-0000 $0.00 $196.00


SS- TR 1826 COSTANOA FT  3.14 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $0.00 $196.00


BE 160706 Total $588.00 $588.00


BE 160708      Applied: 05/16/2018  Created: 05/16/2018


SS- HH TR1827 FT 12.12 CIVIC 01-9016-0-1170-1000-5710-033-0051 $0.00 $271.00


SS- HH TR1827 FT 12.12 CIVIC 01-9016-0-1170-1000-4300-033-0051 $271.00 $0.00


SS- HH TR1827 FT 12.12 CIVIC 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5710-048-0000 $271.00 $0.00


SS- HH TR1827 FT 12.12 CIVIC 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8980-030-0000 $271.00 $0.00


SS- HH TR1827 FT 12.12 CIVIC 01-0000-0-0000-0000-8980-000-0000 $0.00 $271.00


SS- HH TR1827 FT 12.12 CIVIC 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $0.00 $271.00


BE 160708 Total $813.00 $813.00


BE 160716      Applied: 05/16/2018  Created: 05/16/2018


SS- DL FT (2) TR 1828  ARENA 2.20 01-0700-0-1110-1000-5710-023-0000 $0.00 $174.00


SS- DL FT (2) TR 1828  ARENA 2.20 01-0700-0-1110-1000-4300-023-0000 $174.00 $0.00


SS- DL FT (2) TR 1828  ARENA 2.20 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5710-048-0000 $174.00 $0.00


SS- DL FT (2) TR 1828  ARENA 2.20 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8980-030-0000 $174.00 $0.00


SS- DL FT (2) TR 1828  ARENA 2.20 01-0000-0-0000-0000-8980-000-0000 $0.00 $174.00


SS- DL FT (2) TR 1828  ARENA 2.20 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $0.00 $174.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 19 of 36


43 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BE 160716 Total $522.00 $522.00


BE 160720      Applied: 05/16/2018  Created: 05/16/2018


SS- SHS FT 3.7 SCHS 01-0000-0-1270-4100-5710-035-0807 $0.00 $174.00


SS- SHS FT 3.7 SCHS 01-0000-0-1270-4100-5800-035-0807 $174.00 $0.00


SS- SHS FT 3.7 SCHS 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5710-048-0000 $174.00 $0.00


SS- SHS FT 3.7 SCHS 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8980-030-0000 $174.00 $0.00


SS- SHS FT 3.7 SCHS 01-0000-0-0000-0000-8980-000-0000 $0.00 $174.00


SS- SHS FT 3.7 SCHS 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $0.00 $174.00


BE 160720 Total $522.00 $522.00


BE 160730      Applied: 05/17/2018  Created: 05/17/2018


BD- Cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-1140-424-0044 $0.00 $685.00


BD- Cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3101-424-0044 $0.00 $33.00


BD- Cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3311-424-0044 $0.00 $20.00


BD- Cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3331-424-0044 $0.00 $10.00


BD- Cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3601-424-0044 $0.00 $12.00


BD- Cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-5800-424-0044 $760.00 $0.00


BE 160730 Total $760.00 $760.00


BE 160733      Applied: 05/17/2018  Created: 05/17/2018


BD- Reimbursments 01-3010-0-0000-2110-5200-430-0000 $0.00 $45.00


BD- Reimbursments 01-3010-0-1110-1000-4399-430-0000 $45.00 $0.00


BE 160733 Total $45.00 $45.00


BE 160794      Applied: 05/17/2018  Created: 05/17/2018


BD- Cover Negatives 01-6264-0-1110-1000-1140-530-0030 $0.00 $786.00


BD- Cover Negatives 01-6264-0-1110-1000-3311-530-0030 $0.00 $14.00


BD- Cover Negatives 01-6264-0-1110-1000-4399-530-0030 $800.00 $0.00


BE 160794 Total $800.00 $800.00


BE 160799      Applied: 05/17/2018  Created: 05/17/2018


BGT-BW-POOL COVERS 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4400-049-FACU $7,750.00 $0.00


BGT-BW-POOL COVERS 01-9010-0-0000-8110-6400-049-FACU $0.00 $7,750.00


BE 160799 Total $7,750.00 $7,750.00


BE 160807      Applied: 05/17/2018  Created: 05/17/2018


AG/B40MS/ASB TECH 01-9051-0-0000-2700-2430-031-0000 $0.00 $583.00


AG/B40MS/ASB TECH 01-9051-0-0000-0000-8699-031-0000 $0.00 $583.00


AG/HHS ASB/MISC 01-9051-0-1270-1000-2130-033-0000 $0.00 $768.00


AG/HHS ASB/MISC 01-9051-0-0000-0000-8699-033-0000 $0.00 $768.00


AG/HHS ASB/MISC 01-9051-0-1270-1000-2160-033-0000 $0.00 $326.00


AG/HHS ASB/MISC 01-9051-0-0000-0000-8699-033-0000 $0.00 $326.00


AG/HHS ASB/MISC 01-9051-0-1400-4200-2160-833-0000 $0.00 $6,390.00


AG/HHS ASB/MISC 01-9051-0-0000-0000-8699-833-0000 $0.00 $6,390.00


AG/SHS/JACOBSON 01-9051-0-1110-1000-1160-035-0000 $0.00 $354.00


AG/SHS/JACOBSON 01-9051-0-0000-0000-8699-035-0000 $0.00 $354.00


AG/SCHS ASB 01-9051-0-1400-4200-2260-034-0000 $0.00 $548.00


AG/SCHS ASB 01-9051-0-0000-0000-8699-034-0000 $0.00 $548.00


AG/SCHS ASB 01-9051-0-0000-8200-2290-034-0000 $0.00 $366.00


AG/SCHS ASB 01-9051-0-0000-0000-8699-034-0000 $0.00 $366.00


AG/SCHS ASB 01-9051-0-1400-4200-1160-834-0000 $0.00 $2,218.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 20 of 36


44 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
AG/SCHS ASB 01-9051-0-0000-0000-8699-834-0000 $0.00 $2,218.00


AG/SCHS ASB 01-9051-0-1400-4200-2160-834-0000 $0.00 $7,279.00


AG/SCHS ASB 01-9051-0-0000-0000-8699-834-0000 $0.00 $7,279.00


AG/FACU/SC SISTER 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $44.00


AG/FACU/SC SISTER 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $44.00


AG/FACU/HHS/NCVA 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $660.00


AG/FACU/HHS/NCVA 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $660.00


AG/FACU/HHS/NCVA 01-9010-0-0000-8200-2290-899-FACU $0.00 $176.00


AG/FACU/HHS/NCVA 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-899-FACU $0.00 $176.00


BE 160807 Total $0.00 $39,424.00


BE 160808      Applied: 05/17/2018  Created: 05/17/2018


BGT-EWA#14625 A.CHAVEZ INSTR
AIDE


01-0700-0-1110-1000-2130-027-0000 $0.00 $483.00


BGT-EWA#14625 A.CHAVEZ INSTR
AIDE


01-0700-0-1110-1000-3202-027-0000 $0.00 $77.00


BGT-EWA#14625 A.CHAVEZ INSTR
AIDE


01-0700-0-1110-1000-3312-027-0000 $0.00 $30.00


BGT-EWA#14625 A.CHAVEZ INSTR
AIDE


01-0700-0-1110-1000-3332-027-0000 $0.00 $7.00


BGT-EWA#14625 A.CHAVEZ INSTR
AIDE


01-0700-0-1110-1000-3502-027-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14625 A.CHAVEZ INSTR
AIDE


01-0700-0-1110-1000-3602-027-0000 $0.00 $9.00


BGT-EWA#14625 A.CHAVEZ INSTR
AIDE


01-0700-0-1110-1000-4300-027-0000 $607.00 $0.00


BE 160808 Total $607.00 $607.00


BE 161073      Applied: 05/17/2018  Created: 05/17/2018


BGT-BL-BENQ REPAIR 01-9010-0-1110-1000-5600-035-IN35 $0.00 $386.00


BGT-BL-BENQ REPAIR 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4300-035-IN35 $386.00 $0.00


BE 161073 Total $386.00 $386.00


BE 161074      Applied: 05/17/2018  Created: 05/17/2018


BGT-AH-REFEREE FEES 01-0000-0-1400-4200-5800-832-0807 $0.00 $2,000.00


BGT-AH-REFEREE FEES 01-0000-0-1400-4200-4300-832-0807 $2,000.00 $0.00


BE 161074 Total $2,000.00 $2,000.00


BE 161300      Applied: 05/21/2018  Created: 05/21/2018


BGT-MM-REIMBURSEMENT 01-0000-0-0000-2110-4300-055-0000 $84.00 $0.00


BGT-MM-REIMBURSEMENT 01-0000-0-0000-2110-5200-055-0000 $0.00 $84.00


BE 161300 Total $84.00 $84.00


BE 161303      Applied: 05/21/2018  Created: 05/21/2018


BGT-GM-REIMBURSEMENT 01-0000-0-3100-1000-5200-025-0000 $0.00 $35.00


BGT-GM-REIMBURSEMENT 01-0000-0-3100-1000-4300-025-0000 $35.00 $0.00


BE 161303 Total $35.00 $35.00


BE 161304      Applied: 05/21/2018  Created: 05/21/2018


BGT-JKB-MAR TO MONTEREY COE
CONF JUNE 11


01-0000-0-0000-2130-5800-500-0000 $100.00 $0.00


BGT-JKB-MAR TO MONTEREY COE
CONF JUNE 11


01-0000-0-0000-2130-5200-500-0000 $0.00 $100.00


BE 161304 Total $100.00 $100.00


BE 161313      Applied: 05/21/2018  Created: 05/21/2018


BGT-EWA#14677 R.KIMPTON
TUTORING


01-0700-0-3100-1000-2130-025-0000 $0.00 $368.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 21 of 36


45 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
TUTORING


BGT-EWA#14677 R.KIMPTON
TUTORING


01-0700-0-3100-1000-3202-025-0000 $0.00 $58.00


BGT-EWA#14677 R.KIMPTON
TUTORING


01-0700-0-3100-1000-3312-025-0000 $0.00 $23.00


BGT-EWA#14677 R.KIMPTON
TUTORING


01-0700-0-3100-1000-3332-025-0000 $0.00 $6.00


BGT-EWA#14677 R.KIMPTON
TUTORING


01-0700-0-3100-1000-3502-025-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14677 R.KIMPTON
TUTORING


01-0700-0-3100-1000-3602-025-0000 $0.00 $7.00


BGT-EWA#14677 R.KIMPTON
TUTORING


01-0700-0-3100-1000-4300-025-0000 $463.00 $0.00


BE 161313 Total $463.00 $463.00


BE 161440      Applied: 05/21/2018  Created: 05/21/2018


BGT-COVER F.CASTANEDA REIMB 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5200-048-0000 $0.00 $23.00


BGT-COVER F.CASTANEDA REIMB 01-0723-0-0000-3600-5200-048-0000 $23.00 $0.00


BE 161440 Total $23.00 $23.00


BE 161489      Applied: 05/21/2018  Created: 05/21/2018


BGT-RB-ART STIPEND NOLTE 01-9016-0-1120-1000-4300-027-2729 $0.00 $400.00


BGT-RB-ART STIPEND NOLTE 01-9016-0-1260-1000-4300-027-2729 $400.00 $0.00


BE 161489 Total $400.00 $400.00


BE 161493      Applied: 05/21/2018  Created: 05/21/2018


BGT-JKB-C/O HOME DEPOT PO#
18-01391


01-6300-0-1110-1000-4300-530-0000 $67.00 $0.00


BGT-JKB-C/O HOME DEPOT PO#
18-01391


01-6300-0-1110-1000-4300-533-0000 $0.00 $67.00


BE 161493 Total $67.00 $67.00


BE 161541      Applied: 05/21/2018  Created: 05/21/2018


BGT-PS-GRADUATION 01-9016-0-0000-2700-4300-033-0051 $0.00 $2,289.00


BGT-PS-GRADUATION 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-033-0051 $2,289.00 $0.00


BE 161541 Total $2,289.00 $2,289.00


BE 161580      Applied: 05/22/2018  Created: 05/22/2018


BGT-COVER PARENT MILEAGE 01-0724-0-5750-3600-5800-048-0000 $0.00 $123.00


BGT-COVER PARENT MILEAGE 01-0724-0-5750-3600-4300-048-0000 $123.00 $0.00


BE 161580 Total $123.00 $123.00


BE 161583      Applied: 05/22/2018  Created: 05/22/2018


BGT-COVER K.HOUSER REIMB 01-0000-0-0000-7400-4200-047-0000 $31.00 $0.00


BGT-COVER K.HOUSER REIMB 01-0000-0-0000-7400-4300-047-0000 $0.00 $30.00


BGT-COVER K.HOUSER REIMB 01-0000-0-0000-7400-5200-047-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BE 161583 Total $31.00 $31.00


BE 161668      Applied: 05/22/2018  Created: 05/22/2018


BGT-LO-COVER REF FEES 01-0000-0-1400-4200-4300-031-0807 $1,982.00 $0.00


BGT-LO-COVER REF FEES 01-0000-0-1400-4200-5800-031-0807 $0.00 $1,982.00


BE 161668 Total $1,982.00 $1,982.00


BE 161677      Applied: 05/22/2018  Created: 05/22/2018


BD-Cover negatives 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1140-027-0000 $0.00 $1,825.00


BD-Cover negatives 01-0700-0-1110-1000-3101-027-0000 $0.00 $130.00


BD-Cover negatives 01-0700-0-1110-1000-3311-027-0000 $0.00 $51.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 22 of 36


46 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BD-Cover negatives 01-0700-0-1110-1000-3331-027-0000 $0.00 $26.00


BD-Cover negatives 01-0700-0-1110-1000-3501-027-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BD-Cover negatives 01-0700-0-1110-1000-3601-027-0000 $0.00 $32.00


BD-Cover negatives 01-0700-0-1110-1000-4300-027-0000 $2,065.00 $0.00


BE 161677 Total $2,065.00 $2,065.00


BE 161678      Applied: 05/22/2018  Created: 05/22/2018


BD- To cover negatives 01-4035-0-1110-1000-1140-527-0000 $0.00 $899.00


BD- To cover negatives 01-4035-0-1110-1000-3101-527-0000 $0.00 $48.00


BD- To cover negatives 01-4035-0-1110-1000-3311-527-0000 $0.00 $35.00


BD- To cover negatives 01-4035-0-1110-1000-3331-527-0000 $0.00 $13.00


BD- To cover negatives 01-4035-0-1110-1000-3601-527-0000 $0.00 $15.00


BD- To cover negatives 01-4035-0-1110-1000-5200-527-0000 $1,010.00 $0.00


BE 161678 Total $1,010.00 $1,010.00


BE 161717      Applied: 05/22/2018  Created: 05/22/2018


AG/SACTOCOE/LCAP STI 01-9010-0-1110-1000-1160-530-0080 $0.00 $200.00


AG/SACTOCOE/LCAP STI 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-530-0080 $0.00 $200.00


AG/MAA REIM SS 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4300-600-0061 $0.00 $21,057.00


AG/MAA REIM SS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-600-0061 $0.00 $21,057.00


AG/MAA REIM SS 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4300-600-0061 $0.00 $8,884.00


AG/MAA REIM SS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-600-0061 $0.00 $8,884.00


AG/MAA REIM SS 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4300-600-0061 $0.00 $22,878.00


AG/MAA REIM SS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-600-0061 $0.00 $22,878.00


AG/MAA REIM B40SS 01-9010-0-3100-1000-4300-038-0061 $0.00 $6,246.00


AG/MAA REIM B40SS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-038-0061 $0.00 $6,246.00


AG/MAA REIM B40SS 01-9010-0-3100-1000-4300-038-0061 $0.00 $6,675.00


AG/MAA REIM B40SS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-038-0061 $0.00 $6,675.00


AG/MAA REIM B40SS 01-9010-0-3100-1000-4300-038-0061 $0.00 $3,363.00


AG/MAA REIM B40SS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-038-0061 $0.00 $3,363.00


AG/FL/OSS DON 01-9016-0-1150-1000-5800-021-0201 $0.00 $250.00


AG/FL/OSS DON 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-021-0201 $0.00 $250.00


AG/FL/LIBRARY 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-021-2101 $0.00 $20.00


AG/FL/LIBRARY 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-021-2101 $0.00 $20.00


AG/FL/GARCIA DON 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-021-0051 $0.00 $119.00


AG/FL/GARCIA DON 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-021-0051 $0.00 $119.00


AG/GM/MCS DON. 01-9016-0-3100-1000-2130-025-2561 $0.00 $15,835.00


AG/GM/MCS DON. 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-025-2561 $0.00 $15,835.00


AG/LO/AMER STUD 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-031-3111 $0.00 $170.00


AG/LO/AMER STUD 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-031-3111 $0.00 $170.00


AG/FACU/B40MS/HAND DOWN 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $50.00


AG/FACU/B40MS/HAND DOWN 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $50.00


AG/FACU/MAIN BEACH/HHS 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $360.00


AG/FACU/MAIN BEACH/HHS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $360.00


AG/FACU/MAIN BEACH/HHS 01-9010-0-0000-8200-2290-899-FACU $0.00 $176.00


AG/FACU/MAIN BEACH/HHS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-899-FACU $0.00 $176.00


AG/FACU/SC SWIM/HHS 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $3,713.00


AG/FACU/SC SWIM/HHS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $3,713.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 23 of 36


47 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
AG/FACU/BOYS&GIRLS/MHMS 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $1,300.00


AG/FACU/BOYS&GIRLS/MHMS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $1,300.00


AG/FACU/BOYS&GIRLS/MHMS 01-9010-0-0000-8200-2290-899-FACU $0.00 $1,408.00


AG/FACU/BOYS&GIRLS/MHMS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-899-FACU $0.00 $1,408.00


AG/WS DANCE/SCHS 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $400.00


AG/WS DANCE/SCHS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $400.00


BE 161717 Total $0.00 $186,208.00


BE 161806      Applied: 05/23/2018  Created: 05/23/2018


BGT-BW-FOR ACCOUNT CODE
CORRECTION


14-9720-0-0000-8500-6200-021-0000 $12,616.00 $0.00


BGT-BW-FOR ACCOUNT CODE
CORRECTION


14-9720-0-0000-8500-6200-023-0000 $0.00 $12,616.00


BE 161806 Total $12,616.00 $12,616.00


BE 161807      Applied: 05/23/2018  Created: 05/23/2018


BGT-MB-DRAFT 54863 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-023-0000 $55.00 $0.00


BGT-MB-DRAFT 54863 01-0000-0-0000-8200-4300-023-0000 $0.00 $55.00


BE 161807 Total $55.00 $55.00


BE 161810      Applied: 05/23/2018  Created: 05/23/2018


BGT-MOVE LEGAL BUDGET 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5800-053-5311 $0.00 $5,135.00


BGT-MOVE LEGAL BUDGET 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5800-053-5312 $0.00 $4,568.00


BGT-MOVE LEGAL BUDGET 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5800-053-5310 $0.00 $84.00


BGT-MOVE LEGAL BUDGET 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5800-053-0000 $9,787.00 $0.00


BE 161810 Total $9,787.00 $9,787.00


BE 161811      Applied: 05/23/2018  Created: 05/23/2018


BGT-EWA#14693 I.LAZO
TRANSLATION


01-0700-0-3100-2495-2230-825-0000 $0.00 $396.00


BGT-EWA#14693 I.LAZO
TRANSLATION


01-0700-0-3100-2495-2200-825-0000 $396.00 $0.00


BE 161811 Total $396.00 $396.00


BE 161813      Applied: 05/23/2018  Created: 05/23/2018


BGT-EWA#14726 Z.SAUNDERS
SCIENCE FOSS


01-9016-0-1110-1000-1130-024-0051 $0.00 $83.00


BGT-EWA#14726 Z.SAUNDERS
SCIENCE FOSS


01-9016-0-1110-1000-3101-024-0051 $0.00 $12.00


BGT-EWA#14726 Z.SAUNDERS
SCIENCE FOSS


01-9016-0-1110-1000-3331-024-0051 $0.00 $2.00


BGT-EWA#14726 Z.SAUNDERS
SCIENCE FOSS


01-9016-0-1110-1000-3501-024-0051 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14726 Z.SAUNDERS
SCIENCE FOSS


01-9016-0-1110-1000-3601-024-0051 $0.00 $2.00


BGT-EWA#14726 Z.SAUNDERS
SCIENCE FOSS


01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-024-0051 $100.00 $0.00


BE 161813 Total $100.00 $100.00


BE 161953      Applied: 05/23/2018  Created: 05/23/2018


ST-S4C DUES FOR 17/18 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5800-053-0000 $6,241.00 $0.00


ST-S4C DUES FOR 17/18 01-0000-0-0000-7150-5300-820-0000 $0.00 $2,385.00


ST-S4C DUES FOR 17/18 01-0000-0-0000-7150-5300-830-0000 $0.00 $3,856.00


BE 161953 Total $6,241.00 $6,241.00


BE 162052      Applied: 05/23/2018  Created: 05/23/2018


BGT-EWA#14730 P.SLAKEY CLERICAL01-0700-0-0000-2700-2430-032-0000 $0.00 $495.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 24 of 36


48 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BGT-EWA#14730 P.SLAKEY CLERICAL01-0700-0-0000-2700-3202-032-0000 $0.00 $79.00


BGT-EWA#14730 P.SLAKEY CLERICAL01-0700-0-0000-2700-3312-032-0000 $0.00 $31.00


BGT-EWA#14730 P.SLAKEY CLERICAL01-0700-0-0000-2700-3332-032-0000 $0.00 $8.00


BGT-EWA#14730 P.SLAKEY CLERICAL01-0700-0-0000-2700-3502-032-0000 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14730 P.SLAKEY CLERICAL01-0700-0-0000-2700-3602-032-0000 $0.00 $9.00


BGT-EWA#14730 P.SLAKEY CLERICAL01-0700-0-1110-1000-4300-032-0000 $623.00 $0.00


BE 162052 Total $623.00 $623.00


BE 162056      Applied: 05/23/2018  Created: 05/23/2018


BD- reimbursement 01-3010-0-1110-1000-5200-430-0000 $0.00 $100.00


BD- reimbursement 01-3010-0-1110-1000-4399-430-0000 $100.00 $0.00


BE 162056 Total $100.00 $100.00


BE 162188      Applied: 05/24/2018  Created: 05/24/2018


AG/SJSU/MSTR TCHR 01-0150-0-1110-1000-1160-020-0000 $0.00 $100.00


AG/SJSU/MSTR TCHR 01-0150-0-0000-0000-8699-020-0000 $0.00 $100.00


AG/RB/REF COLUM TRIP 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-027-2710 $0.00 $325.00


AG/RB/REF COLUM TRIP 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-027-2710 $0.00 $325.00


AG/RB/PTA DON 01-9016-0-1120-1000-2130-027-2729 $0.00 $1,800.00


AG/RB/PTA DON 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-027-2729 $0.00 $1,800.00


AG/LO/AMER STUD 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-031-3111 $0.00 $55.00


AG/LO/AMER STUD 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-031-3111 $0.00 $55.00


AG/LO/LIBRARY 01-9016-0-1110-2420-4300-031-0051 $0.00 $50.00


AG/LO/LIBRARY 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-031-0051 $0.00 $50.00


AG/LO/AMER STUD 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-031-3111 $0.00 $25.00


AG/LO/AMER STUD 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-031-3111 $0.00 $25.00


AG/FACU/BULLDAWGS 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $1,680.00


AG/FACU/BULLDAWGS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $1,680.00


AG/FACU/BULLDAWGS 01-9010-0-0000-8200-2290-899-FACU $0.00 $1,056.00


AG/FACU/BULLDAWGS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-899-FACU $0.00 $1,056.00


AG/FACU/G-BALL 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $25.00


AG/FACU/G-BALL 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $25.00


AG/FACU/WALDORF 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $660.00


AG/FACU/WALDORF 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $660.00


AG/FACU/PCS 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $60.00


AG/FACU/PCS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $60.00


BE 162188 Total $0.00 $11,672.00


BE 162277      Applied: 05/24/2018  Created: 05/24/2018


BGT-MOVE TO 5800 FOR WEST
INTERACTIVE INVOICE


01-0000-0-0000-7700-5900-857-0000 $8,120.00 $0.00


BGT-MOVE TO 5800 FOR WEST
INTERACTIVE INVOICE


01-0000-0-0000-7700-5800-857-0000 $0.00 $8,120.00


BE 162277 Total $8,120.00 $8,120.00


BE 162281      Applied: 05/24/2018  Created: 05/24/2018


BGT-ML-REIMBURSEMENT 01-9010-0-0000-3140-4300-600-0061 $23.00 $0.00


BGT-ML-REIMBURSEMENT 01-9010-0-0000-3140-4395-600-0061 $0.00 $23.00


BE 162281 Total $23.00 $23.00


BE 162287      Applied: 05/25/2018  Created: 05/25/2018


BGT-COVER K.CARMICHAEL REIMB 01-6500-0-5750-1110-4300-227-0000 $0.00 $1.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 25 of 36


49 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BGT-COVER K.CARMICHAEL REIMB 01-6500-0-5750-1110-5800-227-0000 $1.00 $0.00


BE 162287 Total $1.00 $1.00


BE 162307      Applied: 05/25/2018  Created: 05/25/2018


BGT-PAPER/FORMS & COVER NEG 01-0000-0-0000-7200-4300-899-0000 $0.00 $1,300.00


BGT-PAPER/FORMS & COVER NEG 01-0000-0-0000-7200-5800-899-0000 $1,300.00 $0.00


BE 162307 Total $1,300.00 $1,300.00


BE 162310      Applied: 05/25/2018  Created: 05/25/2018


BGT-EWA#14675 R.KALE TECH WEB
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1450-1000-2130-032-3263 $0.00 $206.00


BGT-EWA#14675 R.KALE TECH WEB
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1450-1000-3312-032-3263 $0.00 $13.00


BGT-EWA#14675 R.KALE TECH WEB
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1450-1000-3332-032-3263 $0.00 $3.00


BGT-EWA#14675 R.KALE TECH WEB
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1450-1000-3502-032-3263 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14675 R.KALE TECH WEB
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1450-1000-3602-032-3263 $0.00 $4.00


BGT-EWA#14675 R.KALE TECH WEB
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-032-3263 $227.00 $0.00


BE 162310 Total $227.00 $227.00


BE 162333      Applied: 05/25/2018  Created: 05/25/2018


BGT-BL-GEORGIA COLLEGE VISIT -
BB


01-0700-0-1110-1000-5200-035-0000 $0.00 $110.00


BGT-BL-GEORGIA COLLEGE VISIT -
BB


01-0700-0-1110-1000-4300-035-0000 $110.00 $0.00


BE 162333 Total $110.00 $110.00


BE 162334      Applied: 05/25/2018  Created: 05/25/2018


BGT-AH-FAMILYID INVOICE 01-9010-0-1400-4200-5800-032-facu $0.00 $716.00


BGT-AH-FAMILYID INVOICE 01-9010-0-1110-1000-5800-032-faCU $716.00 $0.00


BE 162334 Total $716.00 $716.00


BE 162373      Applied: 05/25/2018  Created: 05/25/2018


BGT-GM-REIMBURSEMENT 01-0000-0-3300-1000-5200-039-0000 $0.00 $56.00


BGT-GM-REIMBURSEMENT 01-0000-0-3300-1000-4300-039-0000 $56.00 $0.00


BE 162373 Total $56.00 $56.00


BE 162382      Applied: 05/25/2018  Created: 05/25/2018


BGT-GM-REIMBURSEMENT 01-0000-0-1400-4200-5200-038-0807 $0.00 $35.00


BGT-GM-REIMBURSEMENT 01-0000-0-1400-4200-4300-038-0807 $35.00 $0.00


BE 162382 Total $35.00 $35.00


BE 162383      Applied: 05/25/2018  Created: 05/25/2018


BGT-FL-MIDAMERICA BOOKS
INVOICE


01-9016-0-1110-2140-4200-021-2101 $0.00 $258.00


BGT-FL-MIDAMERICA BOOKS
INVOICE


01-9016-0-1110-2420-4300-021-2101 $258.00 $0.00


BE 162383 Total $258.00 $258.00


BE 162406      Applied: 05/29/2018  Created: 05/29/2018


BGT-COVER C.BUTLER REIMB 01-0000-0-0000-7400-5800-854-5406 $0.00 $164.00


BGT-COVER C.BUTLER REIMB 01-0000-0-0000-7400-4300-854-5406 $164.00 $0.00


BE 162406 Total $164.00 $164.00


BE 162407      Applied: 05/29/2018  Created: 05/29/2018


BGT-COVER D.LINNEMAN REIMB BUS
PASSES


01-6520-0-5770-1190-5800-230-0000 $0.00 $135.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 26 of 36


50 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BGT-COVER D.LINNEMAN REIMB BUS
PASSES


01-6520-0-5770-1190-5200-230-0000 $135.00 $0.00


BE 162407 Total $135.00 $135.00


BE 162478      Applied: 05/29/2018  Created: 05/29/2018


ST-Add Budget for ramp 01-0000-0-0000-2700-4400-836-0014 $0.00 $5,000.00


ST-Add Budget for ramp 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $5,000.00 $0.00


BE 162478 Total $5,000.00 $5,000.00


BE 162500      Applied: 05/29/2018  Created: 05/29/2018


AG/FL/OSS DON. 01-9016-0-1150-1000-5800-021-0201 $0.00 $7,000.00


AG/FL/OSS DON. 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-021-0201 $0.00 $7,000.00


AG/AH/LIBR DON. 01-9016-0-1110-2420-4300-032-0051 $0.00 $1,600.00


AG/AH/LIBR DON. 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-032-0051 $0.00 $1,600.00


AG/PS/ADMIN DON 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-033-0051 $0.00 $10,648.00


AG/PS/ADMIN DON 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-033-0051 $0.00 $10,648.00


AG/PS/LOST BKS 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4100-033-0089 $0.00 $167.00


AG/PS/LOST BKS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8689-033-0089 $0.00 $167.00


AG/PS/PRKG 01-9010-0-0000-8300-4300-033-0088 $0.00 $24.00


AG/PS/PRKG 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-033-0088 $0.00 $24.00


AG/FACU/SCLACROSSE 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $17.00


AG/FACU/SCLACROSSE 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $17.00


AG/FACU/SCLACROSSE 01-9010-0-0000-8200-2290-899-FACU $0.00 $176.00


AG/FACU/SCLACROSSE 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-899-FACU $0.00 $176.00


BE 162500 Total $0.00 $39,264.00


BE 162508      Applied: 05/29/2018  Created: 05/29/2018


AG/NSF CK #5891/FIELD/HHS/AP 01-9010-0-1294-3160-5800-033-0088 $188.00 $0.00


AG/NSF CK #5891/FIELD/HHS/AP 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-033-0088 $188.00 $0.00


AG/NSF CK
241/HUYNH-NGUYEN/HHS/AP


01-9010-0-1294-3160-5800-033-0088 $184.00 $0.00


AG/NSF CK 241/HUYNH-NGUYEN 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-033-0088 $184.00 $0.00


BE 162508 Total $744.00 $0.00


BE 162514      Applied: 05/29/2018  Created: 05/29/2018


BGT-AH-CFP-SCHOLASTIC BOOKFAIR 01-9010-0-1110-2420-4200-032-0088 $0.00 $2,929.00


BGT-AH-CFP-SCHOLASTIC BOOKFAIR 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4300-032-0088 $2,929.00 $0.00


BE 162514 Total $2,929.00 $2,929.00


BE 162515      Applied: 05/29/2018  Created: 05/29/2018


BGT-PS-AP TESTING 01-7338-0-1110-1000-5800-533-0000 $0.00 $4,993.00


BGT-PS-AP TESTING 01-7338-0-1110-1000-4399-533-0000 $4,993.00 $0.00


BE 162515 Total $4,993.00 $4,993.00


BE 162516      Applied: 05/29/2018  Created: 05/29/2018


BGT-PS-AP TESTING 01-7338-0-1110-1000-5800-533-0000 $0.00 $372.00


BGT-PS-AP TESTING 01-7338-0-1110-1000-4399-533-0000 $372.00 $0.00


BE 162516 Total $372.00 $372.00


BE 162572      Applied: 05/29/2018  Created: 05/29/2018


ST-New Furniture for 133 Mission St
Move


01-9010-0-0000-7300-4399-899-0999 $78,900.00 $0.00


ST-New Furniture for 133 Mission St
Move


01-9010-0-0000-7600-6400-899-0999 $0.00 $78,900.00


BE 162572 Total $78,900.00 $78,900.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 27 of 36


51 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BE 162584      Applied: 05/29/2018  Created: 05/29/2018


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2700-1300-835-0000 $0.00 $19.00


Retro increase 01-6512-0-5750-3120-1200-221-SAIL $0.00 $19.00


Retro increase 01-6512-0-5750-3120-1200-231-SAIL $0.00 $57.00


Retro increase 01-6512-0-5750-3120-1200-233-SAIL $0.00 $63.00


Retro increase 01-3320-0-5730-3150-1200-221-0000 $0.00 $76.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5001-3120-1200-221-SAIL $0.00 $76.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3110-1200-835-0805 $0.00 $87.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5001-3120-1200-231-SAIL $0.00 $98.00


Retro increase 01-3010-0-3200-1000-1100-436-0000 $0.00 $104.00


Retro increase 01-4201-0-1110-1000-1100-430-0000 $0.00 $104.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3120-1200-220-0000 $0.00 $118.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-3150-1200-232-0000 $0.00 $129.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3120-1200-200-0000 $0.00 $139.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3120-1200-231-0000 $0.00 $152.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-3200-1000-1100-036-0000 $0.00 $162.00


Retro increase 01-4203-0-1110-1000-1100-433-0000 $0.00 $163.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5730-3120-1200-200-0000 $0.00 $167.00


Retro increase 01-6512-0-5750-3120-1200-221-0000 $0.00 $169.00


Retro increase 01-3010-0-0000-3110-1200-433-0000 $0.00 $171.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-3150-1200-200-0000 $0.00 $177.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-3150-1200-231-0000 $0.00 $178.00


Retro increase 01-3010-0-1110-1000-1100-431-0000 $0.00 $188.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-3110-1200-834-0000 $0.00 $230.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-3150-1200-224-0000 $0.00 $230.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5001-3120-1200-233-SAIL $0.00 $231.00


Retro increase 01-3310-0-5730-1190-1100-238-0000 $0.00 $233.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5730-3150-1200-238-0000 $0.00 $233.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1120-1100-200-0000 $0.00 $233.00


Retro increase 01-6512-0-5750-3120-1200-233-0000 $0.00 $233.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5730-3150-1200-234-0000 $0.00 $237.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3120-1200-235-0000 $0.00 $240.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-3110-1200-835-0000 $0.00 $242.00


Retro increase 01-6264-0-0000-2140-1900-535-0030 $0.00 $249.00


Retro increase 01-3310-0-5730-1190-1100-234-0000 $0.00 $255.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-3150-1200-227-0000 $0.00 $255.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-3150-1200-221-0000 $0.00 $256.00


Retro increase 01-3320-0-5730-1190-1100-221-0000 $0.00 $260.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3120-1200-238-0000 $0.00 $263.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-831-0804 $0.00 $263.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3120-1200-224-0000 $0.00 $274.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-832-0804 $0.00 $280.00


Retro increase 01-3060-0-7110-1000-1100-430-0000 $0.00 $289.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-3200-2140-1900-836-0000 $0.00 $291.00


Retro increase 01-3310-0-5730-3150-1200-227-0000 $0.00 $292.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-3100-3110-1200-825-0000 $0.00 $293.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 28 of 36


52 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
Retro increase 01-0000-0-3100-2420-1200-838-0805 $0.00 $315.00


Retro increase 01-3410-0-5770-3110-1200-230-0000 $0.00 $315.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-3100-2420-1200-838-0804 $0.00 $326.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-3100-3110-1200-838-0000 $0.00 $343.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5750-1110-1100-230-0000 $0.00 $344.00


Retro increase 01-9094-0-7110-6000-1900-854-0000 $0.00 $370.00


Retro increase 01-6512-0-5750-3120-1200-230-0000 $0.00 $389.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1120-1100-227-0000 $0.00 $391.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3120-1200-221-0000 $0.00 $394.00


Retro increase 01-6512-0-5750-3120-1200-238-0000 $0.00 $394.00


Retro increase 01-6512-0-5750-3120-1200-224-0000 $0.00 $396.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1100-031-0000 $0.00 $420.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5730-3150-1200-227-0000 $0.00 $438.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-3110-1200-832-0000 $0.00 $451.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-3150-1200-223-0000 $0.00 $456.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5730-1190-1100-227-0000 $0.00 $472.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-3110-1200-627-0000 $0.00 $479.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5730-3120-1200-221-0000 $0.00 $479.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1190-1100-232-0000 $0.00 $479.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3110-1200-827-0000 $0.00 $485.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3120-1200-227-0000 $0.00 $497.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-3110-1200-624-0000 $0.00 $497.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3110-1200-824-0000 $0.00 $512.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-824-0806 $0.00 $523.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-3110-1200-621-0000 $0.00 $523.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3110-1200-821-0000 $0.00 $524.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1250-1000-1100-831-0804 $0.00 $536.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-823-0806 $0.00 $556.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-821-0806 $0.00 $557.00


Retro increase 01-3310-0-5730-1190-1100-227-0000 $0.00 $578.00


Retro increase 01-6264-0-0000-2140-1900-534-0030 $0.00 $578.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-3110-1200-623-0000 $0.00 $585.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5001-3120-1200-231-0000 $0.00 $585.00


Retro increase 01-3010-0-1110-1000-1100-431-0430 $0.00 $587.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1100-034-0000 $0.00 $588.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3110-1200-823-0000 $0.00 $600.00


Retro increase 01-3010-0-0000-2110-1300-430-0045 $0.00 $644.00


Retro increase 01-3310-0-5770-1120-1100-224-0000 $0.00 $662.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-827-0806 $0.00 $671.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5001-3120-1200-221-0000 $0.00 $682.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-6000-1000-1100-836-0807 $0.00 $690.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1190-1100-227-0000 $0.00 $709.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-2140-1900-830-0000 $0.00 $718.00


Retro increase 01-4203-0-0000-2490-1900-420-0047 $0.00 $718.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5001-3140-1200-200-0000 $0.00 $728.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1190-1100-231-0000 $0.00 $741.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 29 of 36


53 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1120-1100-239-0000 $0.00 $754.00


Retro increase 01-6512-0-5750-3120-1200-227-0000 $0.00 $762.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-3100-3110-1200-838-0805 $0.00 $768.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-824-0804 $0.00 $786.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1120-1100-224-0000 $0.00 $799.00


Retro increase 01-3310-0-5750-1110-1100-227-0000 $0.00 $805.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-823-0804 $0.00 $828.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3120-1200-230-0000 $0.00 $834.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-2140-1900-820-0000 $0.00 $844.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-821-0804 $0.00 $857.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-3300-1000-1100-837-0000 $0.00 $861.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1250-1000-1100-832-0806 $0.00 $874.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3110-1200-832-0806 $0.00 $901.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5750-1110-1100-231-SAIL $0.00 $904.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-827-0804 $0.00 $914.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1400-4200-1100-833-0807 $0.00 $920.00


Retro increase 01-5640-0-5001-3140-1200-200-0000 $0.00 $925.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5001-3120-1200-233-0000 $0.00 $950.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1190-1100-224-0000 $0.00 $975.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1400-4200-1100-834-0807 $0.00 $1,020.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-833-0805 $0.00 $1,024.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5001-3120-1200-235-0000 $0.00 $1,024.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1190-1100-221-0000 $0.00 $1,026.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1120-1000-1100-520-0804 $0.00 $1,059.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-831-0806 $0.00 $1,096.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-832-0806 $0.00 $1,149.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-2140-1900-530-0000 $0.00 $1,159.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-2490-1900-420-0047 $0.00 $1,159.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1100-033-0000 $0.00 $1,176.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3130-1300-600-0000 $0.00 $1,197.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3110-1200-831-0806 $0.00 $1,206.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-2140-1900-520-0000 $0.00 $1,212.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-2140-1100-200-0000 $0.00 $1,212.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-2140-1900-827-0000 $0.00 $1,213.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1120-1100-238-0000 $0.00 $1,230.00


Retro increase 01-3310-0-5770-1120-1100-232-0000 $0.00 $1,247.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5750-1110-1100-227-0000 $0.00 $1,247.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1190-1100-220-0000 $0.00 $1,247.00


Retro increase 01-6512-0-5770-1190-1100-230-0000 $0.00 $1,247.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1100-821-0000 $0.00 $1,266.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5750-1110-1100-231-0000 $0.00 $1,271.00


Retro increase 01-3010-0-0000-2490-1900-420-0047 $0.00 $1,293.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3140-1200-600-0000 $0.00 $1,297.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1100-823-0000 $0.00 $1,302.00


Retro increase 01-3010-0-0000-2490-1900-430-0047 $0.00 $1,319.00


Retro increase 01-3320-0-5730-1110-1100-221-0000 $0.00 $1,329.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 30 of 36


54 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
Retro increase 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1100-824-0000 $0.00 $1,374.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1400-4200-1100-835-0807 $0.00 $1,377.00


Retro increase 01-3310-0-5770-1120-1100-227-0000 $0.00 $1,416.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-3150-1200-230-0000 $0.00 $1,416.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-1110-2140-1900-530-0000 $0.00 $1,446.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5750-3120-1200-220-0000 $0.00 $1,462.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-6000-3110-1200-830-0807 $0.00 $1,465.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1100-833-0000 $0.00 $1,465.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5750-1110-1100-235-0000 $0.00 $1,471.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2110-1300-600-0000 $0.00 $1,480.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-834-0805 $0.00 $1,502.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1120-1100-232-0000 $0.00 $1,596.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1120-1100-225-0000 $0.00 $1,655.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5750-1110-1100-234-0000 $0.00 $1,665.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2110-1300-430-0000 $0.00 $1,683.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2700-1300-821-0000 $0.00 $1,737.00


Retro increase 01-6387-0-6000-1000-1100-434-0000 $0.00 $1,773.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5750-1110-1100-221-SAIL $0.00 $1,804.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2700-1300-824-0000 $0.00 $1,851.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1190-1100-223-0000 $0.00 $1,853.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2700-1300-823-0000 $0.00 $1,858.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1100-835-0000 $0.00 $1,905.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1120-1100-231-0000 $0.00 $1,964.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1100-831-0000 $0.00 $2,032.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1100-832-0000 $0.00 $2,043.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2700-1300-827-0000 $0.00 $2,052.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1120-1100-223-0000 $0.00 $2,065.00


Retro increase 01-3310-0-5770-1120-1100-221-0000 $0.00 $2,096.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1190-1100-200-0000 $0.00 $2,141.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-2420-1200-835-0805 $0.00 $2,220.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-1110-1000-1100-834-0000 $0.00 $2,266.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1250-1000-1100-500-0806 $0.00 $2,502.00


Retro increase 01-3010-0-1110-1000-1100-433-0000 $0.00 $2,575.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1110-1100-200-0000 $0.00 $2,638.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1120-1100-235-0000 $0.00 $2,657.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2110-1300-520-0000 $0.00 $2,668.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-7400-1300-854-0000 $0.00 $2,668.00


Retro increase 01-0501-0-0000-6000-1900-854-0000 $0.00 $2,729.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5750-1110-1100-233-0000 $0.00 $2,729.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1120-1000-1100-500-0806 $0.00 $2,933.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2110-1300-855-0000 $0.00 $2,973.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5750-1110-1100-233-SAIL $0.00 $3,118.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-6000-1000-1100-835-0807 $0.00 $3,163.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-3110-1200-630-0000 $0.00 $3,297.00


Retro increase 01-1400-0-1110-1000-1100-824-0000 $0.00 $3,352.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3110-1200-834-0805 $0.00 $3,353.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 31 of 36


55 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
Retro increase 01-0000-0-6000-1000-1100-834-0807 $0.00 $3,414.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5001-3120-1200-230-0000 $0.00 $3,444.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-7150-1300-853-0000 $0.00 $3,495.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-3110-1200-833-0805 $0.00 $3,532.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2700-1300-831-0000 $0.00 $3,542.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-6000-1000-1100-833-0807 $0.00 $3,612.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1120-1100-233-0000 $0.00 $3,626.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2700-1300-832-0000 $0.00 $3,884.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1120-1100-234-0000 $0.00 $3,914.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-3300-1000-1100-837-0000 $0.00 $4,114.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-3200-1000-1100-836-0000 $0.00 $4,316.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2700-1300-838-0000 $0.00 $5,373.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5001-2110-1300-200-0000 $0.00 $5,481.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2700-1300-833-0000 $0.00 $5,565.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-2700-1300-834-0000 $0.00 $5,614.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-5770-1190-1100-230-0000 $0.00 $6,217.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-3100-1000-1100-825-0000 $0.00 $6,362.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-3300-1000-1100-839-0000 $0.00 $15,138.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-1000-1100-824-0000 $0.00 $15,533.00


Retro increase 01-1400-0-1110-1000-1100-835-0000 $0.00 $20,955.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-1000-1100-831-0000 $0.00 $22,064.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-1000-1100-821-0000 $0.00 $24,005.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-1000-1100-832-0000 $0.00 $28,275.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-1000-1100-823-0000 $0.00 $28,789.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-1000-1100-827-0000 $0.00 $31,063.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-1000-1100-835-0000 $0.00 $35,835.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-1110-1000-1100-833-0000 $0.00 $50,847.00


Retro increase 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $367,951.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-6512-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $3,729.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-3320-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $1,665.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-6500-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $74,559.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-3010-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $6,881.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-4201-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $104.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-0700-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $31,499.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-4203-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $881.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-3310-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $7,584.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-6264-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $827.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-3060-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $289.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-3410-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $315.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-9094-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $370.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-5640-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $925.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-6387-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $1,773.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-0501-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $2,729.00 $0.00


Retro increase 01-1400-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $24,307.00 $0.00


BE 162584 Total $526,388.00 $526,388.00


BE 162585      Applied: 05/29/2018  Created: 05/29/2018


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 32 of 36


56 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
GT-Retro Distribution 01-0000-0-1110-1000-1100-899-9998 $467,315.00 $0.00


GT-Retro Distribution 01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $0.00 $467,315.00


BE 162585 Total $467,315.00 $467,315.00


BE 162608      Applied: 05/30/2018  Created: 05/30/2018


BGT-PS-CYBER SCHOOL 01-0700-0-1110-1000-5800-033-0000 $0.00 $250.00


BGT-PS-CYBER SCHOOL 01-0700-0-1110-1000-4300-033-0000 $250.00 $0.00


BE 162608 Total $250.00 $250.00


BE 162641      Applied: 05/30/2018  Created: 05/30/2018


BGT-BL-GRAD EXPENSES 01-0000-0-0000-2700-5800-835-0014 $0.00 $917.00


BGT-BL-GRAD EXPENSES 01-0000-0-0000-2700-4300-835-0014 $917.00 $0.00


BE 162641 Total $917.00 $917.00


BE 162666      Applied: 05/30/2018  Created: 05/30/2018


BGT-MOVE LEGAL BUDGET 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5800-053-5313 $0.00 $2,294.00


BGT-MOVE LEGAL BUDGET 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5800-053-0000 $2,294.00 $0.00


BE 162666 Total $2,294.00 $2,294.00


BE 162669      Applied: 05/30/2018  Created: 05/30/2018


BD- Cover Negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-1140-431-0000 $0.00 $409.00


BD- Cover Negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3311-431-0000 $0.00 $15.00


BD- Cover Negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-4300-431-0000 $424.00 $0.00


BE 162669 Total $424.00 $424.00


BE 162672      Applied: 05/30/2018  Created: 05/30/2018


BD- To Cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-1140-431-0430 $0.00 $135.00


BD- To Cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3311-431-0430 $0.00 $4.00


BD- To Cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3602-431-0430 $139.00 $0.00


BE 162672 Total $139.00 $139.00


BE 162675      Applied: 05/30/2018  Created: 05/30/2018


BD- To cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-1140-433-0000 $0.00 $206.00


BD- To cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-3311-433-0000 $0.00 $2.00


BD- To cover negatives 01-3010-0-1110-1000-4300-433-0000 $208.00 $0.00


BE 162675 Total $208.00 $208.00


BE 162694      Applied: 05/30/2018  Created: 05/30/2018


BGT-BL-CSADA AD CONF 01-9016-0-1110-1000-5200-035-0051 $0.00 $260.00


BGT-BL-CSADA AD CONF 01-9016-0-1363-2700-5800-035-0051 $0.00 $500.00


BGT-BL-CSADA AD CONF 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-035-0051 $760.00 $0.00


BE 162694 Total $760.00 $760.00


BE 162695      Applied: 05/30/2018  Created: 05/30/2018


BGT-GM-EXPENSE VOUCHER
SPORTS


01-0000-0-1400-4200-5200-038-0807 $0.00 $38.00


BGT-GM-EXPENSE VOUCHER
SPORTS


01-0000-0-1400-4200-4300-038-0807 $38.00 $0.00


BE 162695 Total $38.00 $38.00


BE 162699      Applied: 05/30/2018  Created: 05/30/2018


BGT-JKB-CS FOR ALL COMMITTEE
HOURS


01-9010-0-1150-1000-4300-500-4050 $6,295.00 $0.00


BGT-JKB-CS FOR ALL COMMITTEE
HOURS


01-9010-0-1150-1000-1130-520-4050 $0.00 $1,166.00


BGT-JKB-CS FOR ALL COMMITTEE
HOURS


01-9010-0-1150-1000-1130-530-4050 $0.00 $5,129.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 33 of 36


57 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
BE 162699 Total $6,295.00 $6,295.00


BE 162700      Applied: 05/30/2018  Created: 05/30/2018


BGT-BW-FOR SERVICES 01-8150-0-0000-8110-5600-049-0000 $7,000.00 $0.00


BGT-BW-FOR SERVICES 01-8150-0-0000-8110-5800-049-0000 $0.00 $7,000.00


BE 162700 Total $7,000.00 $7,000.00


BE 162707      Applied: 05/30/2018  Created: 05/30/2018


GT-Move exp adj 01-9010-0-0000-7300-4399-899-0999 $6,937.66 $0.00


GT-Move exp adj 01-9010-0-0000-7300-5800-899-0999 $0.00 $6,937.66


BE 162707 Total $6,937.66 $6,937.66


BE 162708      Applied: 05/30/2018  Created: 05/30/2018


GT-Move exp adj 21-9720-0-0000-8500-6200-020-0999 $0.00 $29,100.00


GT-Move exp adj 21-9730-0-0000-8500-6200-030-0999 $0.00 $67,900.00


GT-Move exp adj 21-9720-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $29,100.00 $0.00


GT-Move exp adj 21-9730-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $67,900.00 $0.00


BE 162708 Total $97,000.00 $97,000.00


BE 162736      Applied: 05/30/2018  Created: 05/30/2018


SS PER ST- SLVUSD TRANS INV SCI
CAMP


01-0723-0-0000-3600-4300-048-0000 $990.00 $0.00


SS PER ST- SLVUSD TRANS INV SCI
CAMP


01-0723-0-0000-3600-5800-048-0000 $0.00 $990.00


BE 162736 Total $990.00 $990.00


BE 163055      Applied: 05/31/2018  Created: 05/31/2018


BGT-BL-AP TEST 01-9010-0-1110-1000-5800-535-0069 $0.00 $1,460.00


BGT-BL-AP TEST 01-9010-0-1110-1000-4300-535-0069 $1,460.00 $0.00


BE 163055 Total $1,460.00 $1,460.00


BE 163058      Applied: 05/31/2018  Created: 05/31/2018


BGT-BL-AP TEST 01-9010-0-1294-3160-5800-035-0088 $0.00 $884.00


BGT-BL-AP TEST 01-9010-0-1294-3160-4300-035-0088 $884.00 $0.00


BE 163058 Total $884.00 $884.00


BE 163059      Applied: 05/31/2018  Created: 05/31/2018


BGT-BL-AP TEST 01-9016-0-1110-1000-5800-035-0051 $0.00 $820.00


BGT-BL-AP TEST 01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-035-0051 $820.00 $0.00


BE 163059 Total $820.00 $820.00


BE 163062      Applied: 05/31/2018  Created: 05/31/2018


BGT-FINAL INVOICE EWING
CONSULTING


01-0000-0-0000-7400-5800-847-0004 $0.00 $8,000.00


BGT-FINAL INVOICE EWING
CONSULTING


01-0000-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $8,000.00 $0.00


BE 163062 Total $8,000.00 $8,000.00


BE 163083      Applied: 05/31/2018  Created: 05/31/2018


BGT-COVER LE#163082
CORRECTING FUNCTION


01-3010-0-1110-2420-4200-433-0000 $0.00 $982.00


BGT-COVER LE#163082
CORRECTING FUNCTION


01-3010-0-1110-1000-4200-433-0000 $982.00 $0.00


BE 163083 Total $982.00 $982.00


BE 163087      Applied: 05/31/2018  Created: 05/31/2018


AG/SACTO COE/TVSA 01-9010-0-1110-1000-1160-520-0080 $0.00 $600.00


AG/SACTO COE/TVSA 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-520-0080 $0.00 $600.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 34 of 36


58 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
AG/JB/AUTO/TSHIRTS 01-9016-0-1531-1000-4300-034-0051 $0.00 $240.00


AG/JB/AUTO/TSHIRTS 01-9016-0-0000-0000-8699-034-0051 $0.00 $240.00


AG/JB/AP TEST 01-9010-0-1294-3160-5800-034-0088 $0.00 $160.00


AG/JB/AP TEST 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-034-0088 $0.00 $160.00


AG/JB/LANG/LST BK 01-9010-0-1180-1000-4200-034-0089 $0.00 $15.00


AG/JB/LANG/LST BK 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8689-034-0089 $0.00 $15.00


AG/JB/ENG/LST BK 01-9010-0-1190-1000-4200-034-0089 $0.00 $53.00


AG/JB/ENG/LST BK 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8689-034-0089 $0.00 $53.00


AG/JB/LIB/LST BK 01-9010-0-1110-2420-4200-034-0089 $0.00 $20.00


AG/JB/LIB/LST BK 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8689-034-0089 $0.00 $20.00


AG/JB/TRANS 01-9010-0-0000-3110-4300-034-3405 $0.00 $15.00


AG/JB/TRANS 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-034-3405 $0.00 $15.00


AG/TRANS INV 1830 01-0723-0-0000-3600-2290-848-0000 $0.00 $105.00


AG/TRANS INV 1830 01-0723-0-0000-0000-8699-848-0000 $0.00 $105.00


AG/FACU/COMM MSC SCHL 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $1,357.00


AG/FACU/COMM MSC SCHL 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $1,357.00


AG/FACU/ORCA/4 INV 01-9010-0-0000-8110-4300-049-FACU $0.00 $1,620.00


AG/FACU/ORCA/4 INV 01-9010-0-0000-0000-8699-049-FACU $0.00 $1,620.00


BE 163087 Total $0.00 $8,370.00


BE 163098      Applied: 05/31/2018  Created: 05/31/2018


BGT-PS-CAKE 01-0000-0-0000-2700-4395-033-0000 $0.00 $88.00


BGT-PS-CAKE 01-0000-0-1110-1000-4300-033-0000 $88.00 $0.00


BE 163098 Total $88.00 $88.00


BE 163099      Applied: 05/31/2018  Created: 05/31/2018


BGT-EWA#14741 G.FEINSTEIN
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1110-1000-2130-027-0051 $0.00 $360.00


BGT-EWA#14741 G.FEINSTEIN
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1110-1000-3312-027-0051 $0.00 $23.00


BGT-EWA#14741 G.FEINSTEIN
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1110-1000-3332-027-0051 $0.00 $6.00


BGT-EWA#14741 G.FEINSTEIN
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1110-1000-3502-027-0051 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA#14741 G.FEINSTEIN
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1110-1000-3602-027-0051 $0.00 $7.00


BGT-EWA#14741 G.FEINSTEIN
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1110-1000-4300-027-0051 $397.00 $0.00


BE 163099 Total $397.00 $397.00


BE 163144      Applied: 05/31/2018  Created: 05/31/2018


BGT-EWA #14672/14673 CODING
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1450-1000-2130-032-3263 $0.00 $698.00


BGT-EWA #14672/14673 CODING
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1450-1000-3312-032-3263 $0.00 $93.00


BGT-EWA #14672/14673 CODING
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1450-1000-3332-032-3263 $0.00 $22.00


BGT-EWA #14672/14673 CODING
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1450-1000-3502-032-3263 $0.00 $1.00


BGT-EWA #14672/14673 CODING
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1450-1000-3602-032-3263 $0.00 $28.00


BGT-EWA #14672/14673 CODING
ENRICH


01-9016-0-0000-2700-4300-032-3263 $776.00 $0.00


BGT-EWA #14672/14673 CODING
ENRICH


01-9016-0-0000-3140-4300-032-3263 $49.00 $0.00


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 35 of 36


59 of 778







Note Account Decrease Increase
ENRICH


BGT-EWA #14672/14673 CODING
ENRICH


01-9016-0-1250-1000-5800-032-3263 $17.00 $0.00


BE 163144 Total $842.00 $842.00


BE 163158      Applied: 05/31/2018  Created: 05/31/2018


GT-Prop 39 Rev 01-6230-0-0000-0000-8590-020-0000 $0.00 $38,683.00


GT-Prop 39 Rev 01-6230-0-0000-0000-8590-030-0000 $0.00 $203,426.00


GT-Prop 39 Rev 01-6230-0-0000-0000-9790-000-0000 $0.00 $242,109.00


BE 163158 Total $0.00 $484,218.00


Grand Total : $1,524,722.66 $2,370,036.66


Budget Entry Report Budget Entry Management SCCS


6/14/2018 1:13:11 PM 2017 - 2018 Page 36 of 36


60 of 778







      AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.5 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 062018\SURPLUS COVER.DOC 


 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property  
 
MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property on the attached list(s) in 
accordance with Board Policy 3270 and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code Section 17545(a) provides that the Board of Education may sell for cash any 
personal property belonging to the District if the property is not required for school purposes, or if 
it should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not suitable for 
school use. (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal property 
authorized under this section by means of a public auction conducted by employees of the district 
or other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. The board may delegate to the 
district employee responsible for conducting the auction the authority to transfer the personal 
property to the highest responsible bidder upon completion of the auction and after payment has 
been received by the district.  
 
Section 17546(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two thousand 
five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by any employee 
of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. (b) Any item or items of property having 
previously been offered for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which no qualified bid was 
received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board.  (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote of those 
members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of arranging a 
sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization deemed appropriate by the board, 
or it may be disposed of in the local public dump on order of any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board. 
 
Per Ed Code 60530(b), instructional materials may be destroyed by any economical means, 
provided that no instructional material shall be destroyed until 30 days after the governing board 
has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice. 
 


61 of 778







This page has been left blank







SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2018 
 


SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 


Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  


                 
SITE:   STUDENT SERVICES 


        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 


 
1. Saico screening audiometer, 


Model AS7M 
25512  60+ years Obsolete $0 


2. Titmus Vision Screener None  20 years Obsolete, good condition $0 
3. Titmus Vision Screener 26944  20 years Obsolete, poor condition $0 
       
       


       
     Total $0 


  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 


       


63 of 778







This page has been left blank







SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2018 
 


SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 


Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  


                 
SITE:   ADULT EDUCATION SCHOOL 


        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 


 
1. HP computer & monitor 15031  10+ years Fair 0 
2. Four small computer tables, 


30/36” wide x 27” high, laminate 
top, metal base 


None  10+ years Fair 0 


3. Two metal book shelf units, 12” x 
36” x 42” high 


None  10+ years Poor 0 


4. Five vertical legal file cabinets, 
27/18” x 52” high 


None  10-20 
years 


Fair 0 


5. Two small children’s desks None  20+ years Fair 0 
       
       
       
       
     Total $0 


  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 


       


65 of 778







This page has been left blank







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: 2018-19 Consultant Service Agreement: Superintendent’s Office: 
Carolyn Post – Coaching and Support for Board Members and 
Superintendent 


      
MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve this annual support/coaching consultant service agreement for services through June 
2019. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Leadership Associates Coach and former County Superintendent of Schools Carolyn Post will 
provide support/coaching/feedback for Trustees and Superintendent through the school year. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Cost is not to exceed $20,000 through June 2018. 
 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


67 of 778







This page has been left blank







5/13/13 vjm 


 Santa Cruz City Schools  


405 Old San Jose Road 


Soquel, CA  95073 


 


REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 


Review guidelines of Board Policy and A.R. 3600 – Consultant Services Agreements.  Agreements are to be 


submitted to the responsible Assistant Superintendent at least two weeks before the Board meeting (for over 


$2500) and/or prior to the Consultant beginning work.  Must attach Page Two 


 


Site:  District Office Principal/Director: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 


Describe Work to be Performed and District and/or Site Goals Supported:   


Trustee and Superintendent Coaching and Support 


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching. 


Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 


 
 


Qualifications of Consultant: Former Monterey County Supt. of Schools & current Leadership Associates Coach. 


 


Name of Consultant: Carolyn Post  SSN: on file 


  (Vendor Data form to Purchasing) 


Address: on file Telephone #: on file 


City/State/Zip: on file Email:  on file  


Date(s) of Service:  2017-18 school year Time: N/A 


Number of Hours:  NA   hours per day  X   N/A  days   = Total hours    N/A  


Hourly/Daily Rate (specify): N/A Meals:  N/A   


Lodging: N/A  Transportation:  N/A 


TOTAL FEE: Not to exceed $20,0000.00 Account #: 01-0000-0-0000-7110-5800-053-0000 


Write out meaning of account number: Board of Education – Services provided 
 


Authorized Signature of Consultant:   Date:    


(NOTE:  Consultant must submit invoice for payment upon completion of work) 
 


   
Signature of Administrator Requesting Service   
 


Date:  June 15, 2018   


PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION 


I hereby certify that the consultant has satisfactorily completed the services in accordance with the above 


Agreement and that payment is in order. 
 


               


Signature of Administrator Requesting Payment Date 
 


    


Approval of Assistant Superintendent   Date 
 


 Board of Education Approval:    CSA#:    
(Required if over $2500)     (Assigned by Accounting)


69 of 778







6/15/2018 nl 


Must be Attached Page Two 


 


REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 


 


Review guidelines of Board Policy and A.R. 3600 - Consultant Services Agreements. 


 


Site: District Office Principal/Director: Superintendent Kris Munro/Board of Education 


 


 


1. Statement of specific need (Refer to district/site goals and plans, unique needs of school, program or office 


which necessitates the services of a consultant). 


 
Trustee and Superintendent Coaching and Support 


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching. 


Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 


 


2. State efforts made to identify qualified staff available within the district to carry out the requested services. 


 


Carolyn’s is uniquely qualified as a Leadership Associates Coach and a former County Superintendent. 


 


3. If this agreement is for staff development or for one-time services, state the site's plan to reduce or eliminate 


the need for this consultant's services in the future. 


 


       Carolyn will provide coaching for one year.  Additional services will be negotiated at the end of the year. 


 


 


4. Statement of expected outcomes (Can include specific student outcomes desired, benefits to district students 


and/or staff, etc.). 


 


Carolyn will support the Superintendent and Board with coaching services and also provide individual 


feedback.  


 


 


5. Evaluation Process (survey evaluation, specific student outcomes such as increased skills, product such as a 


publication, documentation of benefits to students and/or staff). 


 


The Superintendent and the Board of Education will evaluate the training on an on-going basis during the       


2018-19 school year. 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


70 of 778







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Boardvantage Electronic Board Book Program 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the agreement with Boardvantage as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In October, 2017, Santa Cruz City Schools received word that our electronic board book vendor 
had been acquired.  The new vendor would not offer the BoardPad program.  As we had 
already begun our school year, we were allowed to keep the program for the remainder of the 
year.   
 
Following reviews, demonstrations and research on electronic board book programs available 
to our District, the Boardvantage program has been selected for our use beginning in the 2018-
19 school year.  This program most closely meets the needs of Santa Cruz City Schools for the 
preparation of materials for the Trustees, Administrators and the Public. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
2018-19 fees: $13,750 (including a $2500 implementation/set-up fee) LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
2019-2021 fees: $11,250 annually LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


71 of 778







This page has been left blank







 


Proposal for Santa Cruz City Schools | CONFIDENTIAL  


CORPORATE SOLUTIONS 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


NASDAQ BOARDVANTAGE® PROPOSAL 


Dear Nancy,  


Thank you for the opportunity to present a proposal to Santa Cruz City Schools. 


Nasdaq Corporate Solutions is an industry leader of innovative solutions that fuel better business, brand and board 


decisions. Forward-thinking public and private companies rely on Nasdaq to turn communications and governance into a 


source of competitive advantage.  


This proposal has been tailored to meet your specific needs and requirements, as expressed in our recent conversation. 


Please let me know if you have any questions. Again, thank you for the opportunity to partner with you. We look 


forward to next steps.  


Best Regards, 
Lydia Leu 


Director, West Sales  


Board & Leadership Solutions  


Desk + 1 415 243 3162 


Email Lydia.Leu@nasdaq.com 


 


 
73 of 778



mailto:Lydia.Leu@nasdaq.com





 


Proposal for Santa Cruz City Schools | CONFIDENTIAL  


CORPORATE SOLUTIONS 


NASDAQ BOARDVANTAGE® 
Enterprise Governance Software for Boards, Committees and Leadership Teams 


 


 


Nasdaq Boardvantage is a governance suite that can be scaled to meet the dynamic meeting, 
collaboration and governance needs of private equity firms and their operating partners.  
Streamline meeting processes, accelerate decision making, and strengthen corporate 
engagement with this flexible board portal. 


 
A COMPLETE SOLUTION FOR BOARD EFFECTIVENESS 


 
Over 4,000 global companies and 130,000 users worldwide rely on Nasdaq’s board portals to enhance and streamline 


their governance and engagement programs as well as internal and external collaboration. It is not just a platform for 


meeting preparation, but also for centralized and actionable intelligence.  


Nasdaq Boardvantage makes every aspect of board meetings and collaboration among directors and leadership 


teams simpler and easier to manage. The platform’s intuitive interface and robust security features allow directors 


and leadership teams to work together far more efficiently, productively and strategically. Widely recognized as the 


leading platform for managing board operations, Nasdaq Boardvantage has also earned industry awards including 


the 2018 Stevie Gold Award for Best New Product and Bronze Award for Front Line Customer Service excellence, 


as well as the 2018 RiskTech 100 Award for Operational Risk and GRC. 


  


 


 


 
 


 
 
 
 


 


Nasdaq Boardvantage has 


been honored as a 2018 Gold 


Stevie Winner by the 


American Business Awards 


for Best New Product of the 


Year 


74 of 778







 


Proposal for Santa Cruz City Schools | CONFIDENTIAL  


CORPORATE SOLUTIONS 


 


 
Security  
Nasdaq Boardvantage incorporates end-to-end security features for governance and workflow management from one 
central platform. Additionally, Nasdaq Boardvantage is hosted in an environment protected by multiple layers of 
security 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 


 


 


 


Service 


 Dedicated Service Manager as well as 24 / 7 / 365 Customer Support 
(phone or web based). Full time Nasdaq employees with an average of 5 
years’ experience. ¾ of our clients rate us a 5 out of 5 for our customer 
service. 


 Implementation – customized experience led by a dedicated 
Implementations Manager.  
Together, the parties will establish project timelines and deliverables 


 Training – Live web based training (onsite training available upon request, 
additional fees may apply) 


 Localization – Product platform available in Arabic, Danish, Finnish, French, 
German, Italian, Japanese, Portuguese, Simplified and Traditional Chinese, 
Spanish, Swedish and Turkish 
 
 


 


24/7 60+ 
Employees globally working in 
Information Security at Nasdaq 50+ 


Unique Sources which 
Nasdaq receives threat 
intelligence from on a daily 
basis  


Global Security 
Operations Center 
(GSOC) 


 The Nasdaq security operations center monitors all layers of security 
events related to the Nasdaq Boardvantage environment and its supporting 
infrastructure  


 Physical access to data centers is protected 24 / 7 / 365 days a year 


 Data centers employ documented security policies and procedures 
regarding access 


 Primary data centers are configured with redundant power lines, internet 
circuits, and UPS/generator capabilities 


 US, CA, EU and Singapore primary data centers are SSAE-16 audited 


“We are thrilled to be named the winner of the Operational Risk and GRC category.  Nasdaq provides the 


technology to help companies achieve their ambitions, build trust and be transparent, whether it’s driven 


by GRC, board & leadership communications or (pre-) trade risk management & surveillance efforts.” 
 


Lars Ottersgård, EVP & Head of Market Technology, Nasdaq. 


75 of 778







 


Proposal for Santa Cruz City Schools | CONFIDENTIAL  


CORPORATE SOLUTIONS 


 


CUSTOM PACKAGE DETAILS       Currency: USD 


        


 USER LICENSING (Per Annum)       


  Number of Licenses Per License Fee Total License Fee 


Admin License 5 $850 $4,250 


End User License 10 $700 $7,000 


        


 IMPLEMENTATION & TRAINING (One-Time)  


Initial Implementation & Training (web-based) $2,500 


        


 PREMIUM FEATURE & PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  (Optional) 


Onsite End User Training & Support  One-time Waived 


        


  TOTAL FIRST YEAR FEES 


CONTRACT INITIAL TERM: 
 User Licensing: 


$11,250 


36 Months 
 Implementation: 


$2,500 


  
 Professional Services: 


Waived 


  GRAND TOTAL: $13,750 


        


*Pricing Valid Through:  6/1/18       


 


76 of 778







 


Proposal for Santa Cruz City Schools | CONFIDENTIAL  


CORPORATE SOLUTIONS 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This proposal is valid until the date set forth above. After this period, Nasdaq Corporate Solutions reserves the right to amend any and all details of this proposal. The 


information or statements contained in this proposal are proprietary and confidential and should not be considered an offer to enter into a contract. No part of this 


proposal may be reproduced, distributed, performed, publicly displayed or made into a derivative work without the prior written consent of Nasdaq Corporate Solutions 


and no warranty is given regarding the accuracy of the information contained in this proposal. Nasdaq Corporate Solutions shall have no legal obligation to any recipient 


of this proposal until a written contract for services is signed by a duly authorized representative. The pricing set forth above is quoted in US Dollars if nothing else is 


indicated, is exclusive of taxes and is conditioned on the following: (i) a minimum 1 year agreement for recurring services; (ii) using the Nasdaq Corporate Solutions 


standard contract with the State of New York as the governing law for all services; and (iii) agreeing to the standard information security policies and procedures.  


Notwithstanding the above, all pricing is subject to change if any of the terms set forth above are modified. 


 


 


NASDAQ, INC. 


Nasdaq, Inc. (Nasdaq: NDAQ) is a leading provider of trading, exchange technology, listing, information and public company services across six 


continents. Through its diverse portfolio of solutions, Nasdaq enables customers to plan, optimize and execute their business vision with confidence, 


using proven technologies that provide transparency and insight for navigating today’s global capital markets.  As the creator of the world’s first 


electronic stock market, its technology powers more than 70 marketplaces in 50 countries, and 1 in 10 of the world's securities transactions. Nasdaq 


is home to more than 3,700 listed companies with a market value of approximately $9.6 trillion and nearly 10,000 corporate clients. 


Your Annual Licensing Fee is inclusive of:  User licensing, as detailed above   


 Web based training and product education   


 Access to Nasdaq produced thought leadership and best 


practice content 


 Mobile Apps  


 Document Storage for a consolidated view of files and projects 


 Team Spaces aligned with your organization’s divisions and 


departments 


 Customer Support accessible via phone, email, and online 


support portal 


 Implementation by a dedicated Onboarding Manager  


 Kickoff call to review rollout plan and schedule initial training 


date 


 Portal set up based on client completed Configuration Sheet  


 Web based training for Admins and End Users 


Your Implementation Fee is inclusive of: 


77 of 778







This page has been left blank







Russell Williamson CSA bus driver trainer cover 


AGENDA ITEM 8.2.3 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve Consultant Services Agreement with Russell A. Williamson 


MEETING DATE: June 20, 2018 


FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services    


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Consultant Service Agreement for California Certified Driver Trainer Russell A. 
Williamson to provide California Department of Education (CDE) Mandated school bus driver 
training, and to be recognized as the Certified Driver Trainer of Record for District school bus 
drivers. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools does not have a Certified School Bus Driver Trainer, nor is there a 
current job position with the duties of a Certified School Bus Driver Trainer.  Since 2015, Russell 
A. Williamson has provided the annual service of certifying District bus drivers according to the 
guidelines mandated by the CDE and the California Highway Patrol.  Certification includes 
classroom and behind-the-wheel training as outlined by statute.   In addition, if the duties of a 
Certified School Bus Driver Trainer are incorporated into a District job position, Russell A. 
Williamson will train, qualify, and certify a District employee as ready to attend the CDE Driver 
Trainer Academy in Sacramento to become a Certified Driver Trainer.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Total cost is not to exceed $3,500.00.  (Project up to 100 hours of training will be required to 
maintain school bus driver certifications and to train an employee to attend the CDE Driver 
Trainer Academy).  Cost will be paid from Home to School Transportation funds (Restricted). 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


Prepared by Emil F. Frates, Transportation Supervisor  
 


79 of 778







This page has been left blank







81 of 778







82 of 778







  


  


                        


                                         AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.4 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Approve Rosetta Stone Contract for 2018-19 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2018 
 
FROM:    Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board approve the Rosetta Stone contract for 2018-19. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Elementary and secondary students who are recent arrivals to the US (less than 2 years in US 
schools) use the Rosetta Stone program on the computer to improve their speaking, listening, 
reading and writing skills in English.  The program is individualized and teachers use individual 
student reports to monitor progress, as well as monitoring student use in the classroom. 
Rosetta Stone is only one component of students’ English Language Development program.  
 
Each June licenses must be purchased for the next school year. At that time the ELIRT reviews 
with teachers select student reports as part of a discussion about who benefited from using the 
program that year and how many students would benefit from access to it for the following 
year. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Annual cost of: $7.750 out of Title I (Restricted).  
(50%, 25 licenses, elementary & 50%, 25 licenses, secondary)  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-


secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


83 of 778







This page has been left blank







        


P r e p a r e d  b y  c s u l l  o n  1 5 - J u n - 1 8  a t  1 : 2 3  P M  E S T  


Page 1 of 2 


 


Rosetta Stone Ltd.  
135 West Market Street 
Harrisonburg, Virginia 22801 
(P) 800-788-0822   (F) 540-437-2843 
www.rosettastone.com 


 


  
 


SOF No.: 615201812332 
 
June 15, 2018 
 
Rosetta Stone Contact: Alison Casey, Inside Territory Manager 
Phone: (800) 788-0822 ext. 5259   
Email: acasey@rosettastone.com 
 
Customer Address: 
 
Jessica Murray 
English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
405 Old San Jose Rd. 
Soquel, CA 95073 
US 
 
Contact Phone: (831) 429-3410 x254 
Contact Email: jmurray@sccs.net 


Billing Address: 
 
Jessica Murray 
English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
405 Old San Jose Rd. 
Soquel, CA 95073 
US 
 
Billing Contact Phone: ______________ 
Billing Contact Email: _______________ 


 


   
We are excited to present this quotation for products and services in the Rosetta Stone


®
 Language Learning Suite. Rosetta 


Stone Ltd. provides language learning software and services under its Rosetta Stone®  brand.  Rosetta Stone  language 
products and any related online services, training and user documentation are referred to collectively herein as “Rosetta Stone 
Product.” 
 


PRODUCT DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE


Rosetta Stone Foundations for K-12 (Silver)  is a fixed term license 
for online access to language lessons and  solo activities and stories 
in one of all commercially available languages and all available levels 
for use on Windows and Mac computers and includes administrator 
tools and access to all product specific mobile applications for iOS or 
select Android devices (the "License"). The License includes a digital 
download of Supplementary Materials for the following languages: 
English US, Spanish (Latin America), French, and German. Licenses 
are for named users for a subscription period specified below where 
all licenses start and end on the same date. Licenses may be 
transferred to other Authorized End Users during the subscription 
period.  


50 USD 155.00 USD 7,750.00 


Notes 


 Any applicable sales, use, excise, property or other federal, 
state, county, municipal, local or foreign taxes, levies,  VAT, 
GTS, or other indirect taxes, customs duties, tariffs, or other 
imposts are the responsibility of the purchaser; any such 
amounts included in this quote are estimates for 
informational purposes only. 


 Renewal: Existing site expires 6/13/2018. 


Industry : Education K-12 


 
Pricing is valid through June 29, 2018. 


Grand Total: USD 7,750.00


 


85 of 778







        


P r e p a r e d  b y  c s u l l  o n  1 5 - J u n - 1 8  a t  1 : 2 3  P M  E S T  


Page 2 of 2 


TERM AND TERMINATION 
This Order Form becomes effective upon its execution by both parties and continues in effect for a period of 12 months 
following the service activation date of June 13, 2018 (the “Term”). The Term of this Order Form is renewable upon mutual 
agreement of the parties. 


Rosetta Stone, without prejudice to its other rights hereunder, may immediately and without notice, suspend the availability of 
the Rosetta Stone Product and/or terminate this Order Form in the event that Customer: (i) fails to make any payment when 
due or (ii) becomes insolvent or bankrupt or ceases paying its debts generally as they mature.  Without derogation of Rosetta 
Stone’s rights under the preceding sentence, either party may, without prejudice to its other rights, terminate this Order Form 
forthwith on duly providing written notice to the other party to that effect in the event that the other party neglects or fails to 
perform or observe any of the material covenants, conditions or agreements contained in this Order Form, and such default is 
continued for thirty (30) days after the date of the non-defaulting party’s notice to the other party.  In the event of the expiration 
or termination of this Order Form for any reason, all rights granted to Customer hereunder shall terminate, and Customer shall 
immediately discontinue, and cause your authorized users to immediately discontinue, all use of Rosetta Stone Product.  In the 
event of the expiration or termination of this Order Form, Rosetta Stone shall have the right to notify all authorized users that 
their rights to access the Rosetta Stone Product have been terminated. 


 


INVOICING AND PAYMENT TERMS 


Rosetta Stone will invoice Customer for the total purchase price stated above plus all applicable taxes upon execution of this 
Order Form by both parties. Invoices are payable on net 60 day terms, F.O.B. Point of Origin.  


 


ACCEPTANCE 


This quote also serves as an order form (the “Order Form”). To place this order, please sign this Order Form below and fax it 
along with any applicable purchase order to 540-437-2843. Alternatively, this order may also be placed by inserting the serial 
number appearing on the top of this quote on the applicable purchase order, attaching this quote to the purchase order and 
faxing the purchase order and this quote to the above fax number.  
 


In placing this order, Customer accepts the terms and conditions described in the Rosetta Stone Enterprise License Agreement 
(“ELA”), available at www.rosettastone.com/legal. The ELA, together with this Order Form, constitutes the entire agreement (the 
“Agreement”) between Rosetta Stone and Customer. CUSTOMER AND ROSETTA STONE AGREE THAT THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT SUPERSEDE ANY PROVISIONS OF ANY CUSTOMER DRAFTED PURCHASE 
ORDER AND SUPERSEDE ALL PROPOSALS, WRITTEN OR ORAL, AS WELL AS OTHER COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN 
CUSTOMER AND ROSETTA STONE RELATING TO THE SUBJECT MATTER HEREOF. ANY ADDITIONAL OR 
CONFLICTING PROVISIONS ON ANY PURCHASE ORDER ARE EXPRESSLY EXCLUDED FROM THE AGREEMENT. IN 
THE EVENT OF ANY CONFLICT BETWEEN THE TERMS OF THIS ORDER FORM AND THE ENTERPRISE LICENSE 
AGREEMENT, THE ORDER FORM SHALL GOVERN. 
 
ROSETTA STONE LTD.     SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 
By: _______________________________   By: _______________________________  
 Authorized Signing Authority           Authorized Signing Authority 


 
     _______________________________        _______________________________  
 Printed Name/Title        Printed Name/Title 
 


     _______________________________        _______________________________  
 Date                       Date 
 
 
 


86 of 778







AGENDA ITEM:  8.2.5 
Mural Matching Grant Agreement Update Cover 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Modified Fiscal Sponsorship Agreement and Mural Matching 


Grant Agreement  
 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2018 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the modified Mural Matching Grant Agreement regarding the Bayview Mural.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Beth Tobey from the City of Santa Cruz has advised that the primary fiscal sponsor for the Bayview 
Mural project has changed.  The new primary fiscal sponsor for the project is the Tim Brauch 
Foundation.  The City has sent for our approval amended documents which reflect the 
replacement of the primary  fiscal sponsor from COI (Clean Oceans International) to the Tim 
Brauch Foundation.   
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 


6. SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent 
 


87 of 778







This page has been left blank







 


 


  
 


MURAL MATCHING GRANT AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the 1st day of June, 2018, by and between the CITY OF 
SANTA CRUZ (the "City"), a municipal corporation of the State of California, TIM BRAUCH 
FOUNDATION (“Sponsor”), a 501(c)(3), non-profit organization, SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS, a 
California public school district (“District”), and TAYLOR REINHOLD, the artist (“Artist”). 


 
I.  GENERAL RECITALS. 


  
a. Purpose of this Agreement 


 
The purpose of this Agreement is to implement the City’s Mural Matching Grant 
Policy in accordance with the best interests of the City and the health, safety, 
morals and welfare of its residents, and in accordance with the public purposes 
and provisions of applicable federal, state and local laws and requirements. 
Implementation of this Agreement will further the goals and objectives of the 
City to promote arts for the benefit of all City residents and visitors. 
  


b. The Matching Grant Program for Murals 
  


i. The Santa Cruz City Arts Commission has approved the Mural Matching 
Grant Program. The Matching Grant Program provides financial assistance 
in the form of matching grants to business owners/tenants/property 
owners to develop exterior wall murals within commercial corridors of 
the City.   


 
ii. Project Site: City agrees to fund improvements to the sound wall 


(hereinafter “Mission St. Wall”) with a mural (“Mural”) at the District’s 
Bay View Elementary School (“Property”) which is located at 1231 Bay St, 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 at which location the  Mission St. Wall runs the 
length of the Property along Mission St. as described below.   


 


 
The District warrants that it owns the real property comprising the 
Property for the Mural. 


89 of 778







 


`  


 
iii. The City and the District have approved Sponsor’s selection of Artist to 


create and install the Mural. 
 


c. Term of Agreement 
  
This Agreement shall remain in effect for ten (10) years (hereinafter referred to 
as “Agreement Term”), including maintenance obligations and payment of costs 
as provided below, unless this Agreement is terminated as provided herein.  
 


2. MURAL/SCOPE OF WORK. 
  


a. Artist agree to perform the following services pursuant to this Agreement:  
Design, fabrication, and installation of Mural (“Services”) to span the Mission St. 
Wall.   


 
b. The Mural is represented in the sketch and accompanying information attached 


hereto as Attachment No. 1.  This Mural has been approved by Sponsor, the City 
and the District. 


 
c. Sponsor acknowledges responsibility for coordinating with the Artist and the 


District in creating and installing the Mural. 
 


d. The District agrees to provide reasonable access to the Property, to the extent 
it does not disrupt the District’s operations, in order for Artist to install the 
Mural, including access to the parking lot and water. All access to the District’s 
Property shall be scheduled in advanced and approved by the District. 


 
e. Sponsor and Artist each respectively acknowledge that they have accurately 


identified the details and costs associated with the Mural in the "Scope of the 
Approved Work," attached hereto as Attachment No. 2 and incorporated herein 
by this reference. 


 
3. CHANGES IN SCOPE OF WORK. 


 
a. Any proposed significant changes in the scope, design, color, size, material, 


utility and support requirements, texture, or location to the Mural, as originally 
approved, by Sponsor or Artist, must be presented to the City and the District in 
writing, drawing or other appropriate media for further review and approval, 
which may be reasonably denied by the City or the District.  A significant change 
includes any change which affects the installation, scheduling, site preparation 
or maintenance of the Mural, or the concept of the Mural as represented in the 
original approved design. 


 
b. If the City or the District requests any changes, it may make the request in 


writing to the Sponsor and to Artist. If changes are approved by Sponsor and 
Artist, this Agreement may be amended, in writing, specifying the agreed upon 


90 of 778







 


`  


changes, including, but not limited to, a description of services, adjustment to 
budget, payment schedule and/or timetable. 


 
c. In the event the City or the District does not agree to changes requested by 


Sponsor and/or Artist, or if Sponsor and/or Artist do not agree to City’s or the 
District’s request to modify the Mural, either the City or the District shall be 
entitled to terminate the Agreement for cause pursuant to Section 17 herein.  


 
d. The City may, at its option, also engage other artists to complete the Mural if 


Artist is unable to perform the Services under this Agreement. 
 


4. ARTIST’S OBLIGATIONS. 
 


a. Artist shall be responsible for providing Services described in Attachments 1 and 
2 including, but not limited to, the quality and timely completion of the Services. 
Artist shall be responsible for creating and installing the Mural without exceeding 
the approved overall budget for the project. Artist shall, without additional 
compensation, correct or revise any errors, omissions, or other deficiencies in 
the Mural. 


 
b. Artist agrees that an essential element of this Agreement is the skill and 


creativity of the respective artist. Artist agrees to not assign the creative or 
artistic portions of this project to another party for its production and/or 
installation without the prior written consent of the City. Failure to conform to 
this provision may be cause for termination of this Agreement, at the sole option 
of the City. 


 
c. The parties agree that during performance of the Services under this 


Agreement, Artist is an independent contractor and not an employee, agent, 
joint venturer or partner of the District or the City.  Nothing in this Agreement 
shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of 
employer and employee between the Artist, its agents, and either the District 
or the City.  The parties acknowledge that Artist is not an employee for state 
or federal tax purposes.  Artist shall retain the right to perform services for 
others during the term of this Agreement. 


d. Artist agrees to act responsibly and diligently to coordinate his respective 
performance with the tasks and/or performance required of the Sponsor, City, 
and the District to timely complete and install the Mural. 


 
e. Artist shall perform the Services in a manner and time so as not to cause 


interference with any of the operations, construction, or maintenance of the 
City or the District. 


 
f. Artist shall supervise clean-up as may be reasonably necessary and/or as 


requested by the District or designated agent at the Mission St. Wall where Artist 
performs work. After completing the project, Artist shall remove his equipment 


91 of 778







 


`  


promptly and as requested by the District or designated agent so that the 
Property is returned to its usual and customary condition.  


 
g. In the event that Artist, during the course of performing the Services under this 


Agreement, requires the service of any subcontractors, other professional 
associates or volunteers in connection with Services or activities covered by 
this Agreement, Artist must secure the prior written approval of the City and 
the District. Artist agrees to have such subcontractor or other third party 
execute a waiver, as shown in Attachment 4. 


  
5. WARRANTIES/STANDARDS. 


 
a. Artist warrants that: (i) the Mural being commissioned is original; and  


(2) that the Artist shall not sell or reproduce the Mural design/artwork, 
separate from portfolio reproductions, or allow others to do so without the 
prior written consent of the Sponsor and the City. 
 


b. Artist shall guarantee the Mural to be free from faults of material and 
workmanship for a period of one (1) year after installation and final acceptance 
by the City. Artist shall deliver the Mural to the City free and clear of any liens 
from any source whatever. These guarantees shall apply only to those aspects 
of the Artist’s work which is entirely that of the Artist, his respective agents, 
or persons responsible to the Artist, as installed, and shall not apply to 
materials or workmanship of projects in which Artist’s work is integrated or 
combined, or to materials purchased, acquired, or installed by a person or 
entity not responsible to the Artist. 
 


c. Artist shall faithfully perform the Services required under this Agreement in 
accordance with standards of care, skill, training, diligence and judgment 
provided by highly competent professionals who perform work of a similar 
nature to the project described in this Agreement. 
 


6. WAIVER OF ARTIST’S RIGHTS TO WORK OF ART. 
 
As a material part of the consideration provided by Artist under the terms of this 
Agreement, Artist respectively waives any and all rights Artist may have with respect 
to the Mural and any and all works of art produced under the terms of this Agreement 
pursuant to the federal Visual Artists Rights Act of 1990 (17 U.S.C. §§ 106A and 
113(d)), the California Art Preservation Act (Cal. Civil Code § 987 et seq.), and any 
other local, state, federal or international laws that convey rights of the same nature 
as those conveyed under 17 U.S.C. section 106A, Cal. Civil Code section 987 et seq., or 
any other type of moral right protecting the integrity of works of art.  Artist expressly 
agrees that the work performed hereunder is “Work Made for Hire” under the 
provisions of 17 U.S.C. section 101.  The provisions of this paragraph shall apply to 
modify any of Artist’s respective rights of attribution and integrity as set out in the 
Visual Artists Rights Act, 17 U.S.C §§ 106A and 113(d) (“VARA”), the California Art 
Preservation Act, Cal. Civil Code §§ 987 and 989 (“CAPA”), and any rights arising under 
United States federal or state law or under the laws of another country that convey 


92 of 778







 


`  


rights of the same nature as those conveyed under VARA and CAPA, as against the City, 
its officers, officials, employees and agents. The  District has the absolute right to 
change, modify, destroy, remove, relocate, move, replace, transport, repair or 
restore the Mural, in whole or in part. 
 
Mural on Mission St. Wall, in whole or in part. 


 
 


7. COPYRIGHT. 
 


a. Artist agrees that the work and Services performed under this Agreement shall 
comply with all applicable patent, trademark and copyright laws, rules, 
regulations and codes of the United States. Artist further agrees that the Mural 
will not utilize any protected patent, trademark or copyright in performance of 
work under this Agreement unless Artist has obtained proper permission and all 
releases and other necessary documents. If Artist specifies any material, 
equipment, process or procedure which is protected, Artist shall disclose such 
patents, trademarks and copyrights in the construction drawings and technical 
specifications. 
 


b. Artist agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, the District, 
and Sponsor, and their respective officials, officers, employees and agents 
from any and all claims, damages, suits, costs, expenses, liabilities, actions or 
proceedings of any kind resulting from the performance of Artist’s work or 
Services under this Agreement which infringes upon any patent, trademark or 
copyright protected by law. 


 
8. COMPENSATION. 


 
a. The City agrees to grant to Sponsor the approved Matching Grant Amount as 


described in Attachment No. 2, Scope of Approved Work.  Such sum may be 
increased as necessary to allow for changes approved by the City in writing, but 
in no event shall the total approved grant amount exceed the sum of   twenty 
thousand dollars ($20,000) for the Mural.  The grant funds shall be paid by the 
City upon performance of the work as described in the Scope of the Approved 
Work (Attachment No. 2) or upon completion of the Mural as follows: 
 


i. Sponsor shall submit to the City an itemized invoice as requested by the 
City, verifying project completion and approval by the City in order for 
Sponsor to request the Mural matching grant funds from the City. City 
reserves the right to request copies of all original, dated receipts from 
the Sponsor related to the work.  The City may reimburse eligible 
expenses including permits only with appropriate proof of payment. All 
invoices and receipts, if requested, shall be submitted to the City 
pursuant to Section 5, "Notices," of this Agreement.  
  


ii. A representative of the City shall inspect the completed work within five 
(5) working days after City's receipt of the invoice(s) and receipts.  


93 of 778







 


`  


  
iii. After determination by the City's representative that the work has been 


completed in conformance with the Mural (Attachment No. 1) and the 
Scope of Approved Work (Attachment No. 2), the City will issue a check 
made payable to Sponsor in an amount equal to the lessor of fifty percent 
(50%) of the total invoice or for the approved grant amount. 


 
iv.  In the event that the City determines that the Services for which it has 


been invoiced do not meet the contract specifications and that it 
intends to withhold payment, the City shall provide detailed written 
notice to the Sponsor within fifteen (15) days of receipt of invoice, 
specifying the failure of performance for which the City intends to 
withhold payment. The Sponsor shall thereafter meet contract 
standards to the satisfaction of the City or advise the City that Sponsor 
dispute(s) the City’s determination that the specifications have not 
been met. 


 
v. The City shall pay all invoices that meet contract specifications within 


thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice. 
 


vi. No payment to the Sponsor for any work performed or services rendered 
shall constitute a waiver or release by the City of any claims, rights or 
remedies it may have against the Sponsor and/or Artist under this 
Agreement or by law, nor shall such payment constitute a waiver, 
remission, or discharge by the City of any failure or fault of the Sponsor 
and/or Artist, to satisfactorily perform the work and services as 
required under this Agreement.  


 
b. Sponsor agrees to pay for the non-City financed portion of the Mural. Any and 


all costs of the work described in the Scope of Approved Work (Attachment No. 
2) which are in excess of the maximum amount of grant funds shall be the sole 
responsibility of and be borne by Sponsor and/or Artist. City's payment per 
paragraph a.(iii) shall terminate City’s payment obligations under this 
Agreement.   


 
c. Sponsor and Artist respectively relieve the City and District from any 


responsibility relating to any payment dispute between Sponsor and Artist 
relating to payment of costs owed by Sponsor, or which are not associated with 
or are in excess of funds agreed upon by the City relating to the Mural Matching 
Grant Program. In the event the Artist incurs costs in excess of the estimated 
price, the City shall not be required to pay any part of such excess, and the 
Sponsor and Artist shall have no claim against the City or District on account 
thereof.   


 


 


 


 
9. COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION DATE. 


94 of 778







 


`  


  
a. Under no circumstances shall the work as described in the Scope of Approved 


Work (Attachment No. 2) commence before the Artist waives any and all rights 
the Artist may have with respect to the work and any and all works of art 
produced under the terms of this Agreement pursuant to the federal Visual 
Artists Rights Act of 1990 (17 U.S.C. sections 106A and 113(d)), the California Art 
Preservation Act (Cal. Civil Code sections 987 et seq.), and any other local, state, 
federal or international laws that convey rights of the same nature as those 
conveyed under 17 U.S.C. § 106A, Cal. Civil Code § 987 et seq., or any other type 
of moral right protecting the integrity of works of art, including, without 
limitation, the rights of authorship, attribution, integrity, and reproduction. The 
parties to this Agreement acknowledge and agree that the Artist shall waive such 
rights by providing a signed waiver, as approved as to form by the City Attorney, 
to the City for its records.  


 
b. Within thirty (30) days after the effective date of this Agreement, Sponsor shall 


have authorized Artist to perform the work described in the Scope of Approved 
Work (Attachment No. 2).  In the event Sponsor fails to authorize Artist to 
perform said work within such 30-day period, the City may, at its option, 
terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Sponsor.  In such event, no 
party shall have any further rights against or liability to the other parties in 
connection with this Agreement.  


 
c. Within ten (10) months after the effective date of this Agreement, the Approved 


Work (Attachments Nos. 1 and 2) must be completed and the Sponsor must 
submit an itemized invoice with copies of all original, dated receipts to City for 
review and payment.  


 
d. If the Approved Work (Attachments Nos. 1 and 2) is not completed or an itemized 


invoice and receipts are not submitted to City within the ten (10) months City 
may, in its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement, in which event no party 
shall have any further rights against the City in connection herewith. 


 
e. Consistent with Section 2 herein, any and all work on the Mission St. Wall must 


be scheduled with and approved by the District.   
 


f. City shall grant a reasonable extension of time to the Artist in the event that 
there is a delay on the part of the City and/or Sponsor in performing its 
obligations under this Agreement or if conditions beyond the Artist’s control or 
Acts of God render timely performance of the Artist’s Services impossible or 
unduly burdensome. Failure to fulfill contractual obligations due to conditions 
beyond any party's reasonable control will not be considered a breach of 
contract; provided that such obligations shall be suspended only for the duration 
of such conditions. 


 


 


 


 


95 of 778







 


`  


10. LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL LAW. 
  
Sponsor and Artist each shall cause the work on the Mission St. Wall to be 
performed in conformity with all applicable laws, including all applicable federal 
and state labor standards.   
 


11. CITY AND OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY PERMITS.  
 
Prior to the commencement of the work described in the Scope of Approved Work 
(Attachment No. 2) on the Mission St. Wall, Sponsor shall secure, or cause to be 
secured, any and all approvals/permits which may be required by the City, the 
District, or any other governmental agency affected by the work.  Grant Funds 
may be used to pay the costs of any and all required permits.  
  


12. ANTI-DISCRIMINATION.  
  
Sponsor and/or Artist, on their own behalf and for their respective successors 
and assigns, each agree that in selecting the Artist and/or subcontractors to 
perform the work described in the Scope of Approved Work (Attachment No. 
2), Sponsor and/or Artist, respectively, will not discriminate on the basis of 
race, color, creed, religion, sex, age, handicap, marital status, ancestry, 
national origin, sexual orientation, height, weight or physical characteristics.    


 
13. MAINTENANCE OF THE PROPERTY AND MURAL. 


 
The District covenants and agrees, for itself, its successors, its assigns and every 
successor in interest to the Mission St. Wall or any part thereof, to maintain the 
Mural and walls on the Mission St. Wall in a clean and orderly condition, in 
conformance with applicable Laws, free of graffiti, and in good condition and 
repair, and will keep the Mission St. Wall free from any accumulation of debris 
and waste materials at the District own cost and expense. Any damage to the 
Mural is to be repaired within at least 30 calendar days to the District’s 
satisfaction and approval. The District shall promptly hire Artist or other skilled 
artist to touch up painted areas and perform any other repairs needed to 
maintain the Mural and preserve an attractive building appearance on the Mission 
St. Wall at its own cost and expense. The foregoing covenants shall remain in 
effect for the duration of the Agreement Term.  During the Agreement Term of 
ten (10) years, the District agrees, for itself, its successors, its assigns and every 
successor in interest, that it will not alter the Mural except to the extent 
necessary to further public health, safety and welfare.  
  


14. INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE. 
  


a. Sponsor. 
Sponsor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City,  the District, 
and their respective officials, officers, employees, and agents to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, from any and all liability, claims, demands, actions, 
damages, judgments, and costs (including attorney’s fees) in any way arising 


96 of 778







 


`  


from or related to Sponsor’s acts or omissions by Sponsor and its respective 
employees, agents, subcontractors, or volunteers under this Agreement, except 
for any liability arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct by the City 
or the District.   
 
Sponsor agrees and acknowledges that the City and the District are  not 
responsible in any way related to the Mural, for, among other things, the 
quality of Artist’s work and/or any claim related to the Mural by any third party 
including, but not limited to, the Sponsor and Artist, and their respective 
employees, agents, volunteers and subcontractors.  Sponsor thus agrees to not 
to sue City or the District, their respective officials, officers, employees and 
agents relating to the acts or omissions of Sponsor, Artist, and Sponsor’s and 
Artist’s respective employees, agents, volunteers or subcontractors.  


 
Sponsor’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold the District, the City, and 
their respective officials, officers, employees and agents harmless hereunder 
shall include, but shall not be limited to, any claims Sponsor may have with 
respect to the Mural under the federal Visual Artists Rights Act of 1990 (17 U.S.C. 
sections 106A and 113(d)), the California Art Preservation Act (Cal. Civil Code 
sections 987 et seq.), and any other local, state, federal or international laws 
that convey rights of the same nature as those conveyed under 17 U.S.C. § 106A, 
Cal. Civil Code § 987 et seq., or any other type of moral right protecting the 
integrity of works of art, including, without limitation, the rights of authorship, 
attribution, integrity, and reproduction.  


 
b. Artist.  


Artist agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City,  District, and 
their officials, officers, employees, and agents to the fullest extent permitted 
by law, from and against any and all liability, claims, demands, actions, 
damages, judgments, and costs (including attorney’s fees) arising in any manner 
from or related to his acts or omissions under this Agreement, and that of his 
employees, agents, subcontractors or volunteers, except for any liability arising 
from the sole negligence or willful misconduct by the City or District. 


 
Artist’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold the District, the City, and their 
respective officials, officers, employees and agents harmless hereunder shall 
include, but shall not be limited to, any claims he may have with respect to the 
Mural under the federal Visual Artist Rights Act of 1990 (17 U.S.C. sections 106A 
and 113(d)), the California Art Preservation Act (Cal. Civil Code sections 987 et 
seq.), and any other local, state, federal or international laws that convey rights 
of the same nature as those conveyed under 17 U.S.C. § 106A, Cal. Civil Code § 
987 et seq., or any other type of moral right protecting the integrity of works of 
art, including, without limitation, the rights of authorship, attribution, integrity, 
and reproduction.  
 
Artist agrees and acknowledges that the City and the District are not responsible 
for, among other things, the quality of the work, and/or any claim related to the 
work by any third party including, but not limited to, by Artist and/or Sponsor.  


97 of 778







 


`  


 
Artist further agrees and acknowledges that the City and the District are not 
responsible for any acts or omissions of either Artist or that of Sponsor, their 
respective employees, agents, subcontractors or volunteers under this 
Agreement and so also agrees to not to sue City or District , their respective 
officials, officers, employees and agents relating to the acts or omissions of 
Artist or that of Sponsor, and their respective employees, agents, volunteers or 
subcontractors.  
 


c. The City and District. 


 


City and District (either are referred to as the “Indemnifying Party”) each 
agree to  defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other, its respective elected 
or appointed officials, agents, boards, commissions and employees (hereinafter 
referred to collectively as “the Indemnitees” in this Section) from all loss, 
damages or claims of whatever nature, including attorney’s fees, expert 
witness fees and costs of litigation (collectively, “Damages”), but only in 
proportion to and to the extent such Damages are caused by the Indemnifying 
Party, or its agents’  negligence, intentional or willful misconduct relating to 
this Agreement. The Indemnitee(s)ct shall give the Indemnifying Party prompt 
notice of any claim made or suit instituted that may subject the Indemnifying 
Party to liability under this Section and the Indemnifying Partyhall have the 
right to compromise and defend the same to the extent of its own interest. The 
Indemnittee(s)  shall have the right, but not the duty, to participate in the 
defense of any claim or litigation with attorneys of the Indemnifying Party’s 
selection and at the Indemnifying Party’s cost without relieving the 
Indemnifying Party of any obligations under this Agreement. The City’s and 
District’s mutual obligations under this Section survive any termination of this 
Agreement.Indemnifying Party further agrees to waive any rights of subrogation 
against Indemnitee(s) under this Section. 


 
15. INSURANCE. 


 
Sponsor and Artist shall each respectively obtain and maintain throughout the 
Agreement Term insurance policies as designated in Attachment 3. Sponsor and Artist 
shall each provide City and the District with a certificate of insurance and 
endorsements, prior to commencement of any work, indicating Sponsor’s and Artist’s 
respective compliance with all insurance requirements. 
 
 


 
16. PREVAILING WAGE. 


 
Sponsor and Artist, and their respective subcontractor(s) performing the work herein 
shall conform to any and all prevailing wage requirements applicable to the work under 
this Agreement.  Sponsor and Artist and their respective subcontractor(s) shall adhere 
to the prevailing wage determinations made by the Director of Industrial Relations 
pursuant to California Labor Code Part 7, Chapter 1, Article 2, applicable to the work, 


98 of 778







 


`  


if any.  All workers employed in the execution of a public works contract (as such term 
is defined California Labor Code Section 1720 et seq. and Section 1782(d)(1)) must be 
paid not less than the specified prevailing wage rates for the type of work performed. 
Reference: California Labor Code Sections 1720, 1774 and 1782.  


 


Sponsor and Artist agrees to the prevailing requirements to the extent applicable to 
the scope of work and services under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, 
the following: 


  
a.            If a worker is paid less than the applicable prevailing wage rate owed for a 
calendar day (or any portion thereof), Artist shall pay the worker the difference 
between the prevailing wage rate and the amount actually paid for each calendar day 
(or portion thereof) for which the worker(s) was paid less than the prevailing wage 
rate, as specified in Labor Code section 1775;  
b.           Sponsor and/or Artist shall maintain and make available payroll and worker 
records in accordance with Labor Code sections 1776 and 1812; 
c.            If Sponsor and/or Artist employs (and/or is legally required to employ) 
apprentices in performing the work and/or services under this Agreement, Sponsor and 
Artist shall  ensure compliance with Labor Code section 1777.5; 
d.            Sponsor and/or Artist are aware of the limitations imposed on overtime work 
by Labor Code sections 1810 et seq. and shall be responsible for any penalties levied in 
accordance with Labor Code section 1813 for failing to pay required overtime wages; 
e.            Sponsor and/or Artist shall post a copy of the applicable wage rates at each 
jobsite at a location readily available to its workers. 
 
Any failure of Sponsor and Artist, or their respective subcontractor(s) to comply with 
the above requirements shall constitute a breach of this Agreement that excuses the 
City’s performance of this Agreement at the City’s sole and absolute option, and shall 
be at the sole risk of Sponsor and/or Artist. In such a case, the City may refuse payment 
to Sponsor and/or Artist of any Grant Funds and/or Matching Grant Funds under this 
Agreement and the City shall be released, at its sole and absolute option, from any 
further performance of this Agreement or any portion thereof. By accepting the Grant 
Funds and/or Matching Grant Funds, as a material term of this Agreement, Sponsor and 
Artist, each respectively, agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and 
the District, and their officials, officers, employees, agents, and representatives, and 
each of them, from and against any and all claims, liabilities, losses, costs, expenses, 
attorney’s fees, damages, expenses, fines, financial consequences, interest, and 
penalties, of any kind or nature, arising from or relating to any failure (or alleged failure) 
of the Sponsor and/or Artist and/or their respective subcontractor(s) to pay prevailing 
wages or to otherwise comply with the requirements of prevailing wage law. 


 


 


  
17. TERMINATION. 


 
a. Any party may terminate this Agreement with or without cause by providing 


thirty (30) days’ notice, in writing, to the other parties. Upon the expiration 
date of said notice, this Agreement shall become of no further force or effect 


99 of 778







 


`  


whatsoever and each of the parties shall be relieved and discharged here from, 
except as provided below.  


 
b. In the event that the Agreement is terminated by the City without cause, the 


City shall pay the Sponsor up to 50% of all work performed and services 
rendered up to the effective date of the termination, subject to verifiable 
invoice and receipts, and so long as it does not exceed $20,000, which 
represents the City’s maximum contribution of matching funds.  


 
c. In the event that the Agreement is terminated by the Sponsor and/or Artist, 


the Sponsor and/or Artist shall promptly reimburse the City for all payments 
made to either of them respectively under this Agreement prior to the 
termination by the Sponsor and/or Artist. If the Sponsor and/or Artist seek to 
terminate this Agreement, the party seeking to terminate shall reimburse the 
other party for reasonable costs incurred prior to the effective date of 
termination and subject to verification with receipts. 


 
d. In the event that the City determines that either the Sponsor and/or Artist 


substantially failed to fulfill his/her obligations as provided under this 
Agreement, the City shall provide that party with written notice detailing the 
specific obligations which the City claims the Sponsor and/or Artist failed to 
fulfill and notify that party of the breach of the Agreement. If the breach is not 
cured or if the City and that party cannot agree on a schedule for curing the 
breach, the Agreement will be deemed terminated on a date specified by the 
City which will be no sooner than ten (10) days from the date of issuance of the 
notice. In the event that the Agreement is so terminated by the City, the 
Sponsor and/or Artist shall promptly reimburse the City for all payments made 
under this Agreement prior to the termination by the City. 


 
e. If, because of the death, or any other occurrence, it becomes impossible for 


the Artist to render services or perform work under this Agreement, the 
Agreement shall be deemed terminated. 


 
f. In the event that one of the parties terminates this Agreement, and the Mural 


is not completed on the Mission St. Wall, the Artist and/or Sponsor will be 
responsible for returning the Mission St. Wall to its condition existing at the 
time of full execution of the Agreement. 
 
 


18. NOTICES.  
 
Notices, requests for payment and other communications are to be hand delivered or 
mailed to the respective parties as follows, or to such other address as any party may 
designate by written notice in accordance with this Section. 


100 of 778







 


`  


 
CITY 
City of Santa Cruz  
Attn:  Beth Tobey 
Arts Program Manager 
337 Locust Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 
 
ARTIST                                 
Taylor Reinhold 
 
 
___________________ 
Address 


 
SPONSOR 
Tim Brauch Foundation 
Cindi Busenhart, CEO 
PO Box 1807 Soquel Ave. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95073 
 
 
 
DISTRICT 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
Attn: Superintendent 
405 Old San Jose Road  
Soquel, CA 95073 
        


 
 


 


19. PUBLICITY/MEDIA. 
  


a. Mural to Include Funding Acknowledgment. 
  
The Mural shall include, prominently displayed on the mural and/or a plaque on 
site, the following text: “City of Santa Cruz” with logo, as practical. 
 


b. Acknowledgment of City. 
  
Whenever interviewed or otherwise contacted by the media with reference to 
the Mural, Sponsor and Artist agree to reference the City’s Mural Matching Grant 
Program and the fact that the improvements were partially underwritten with 
City funds granted to Sponsor and/or Artist in connection with that Program. 
  


c. City Publicity.  
  
In order to assist the City in publicizing its Mural Matching Grant Program, upon 
reasonable advance notice provided by City, Sponsor, Artist, and District shall 
allow City to photograph or otherwise record the subject Mural before, during 
and following its installation so as to document the project itself as well as the 
visual impact of the Mural on the Property. In order to avoid disruption of District 
operations, Sponsor shall schedule all such documentation of project in advance 
with District. Sponsor, Artist, and District hereby permit City to use any such 
visual images for its promotion of the City’s Murals Matching Grant Program, for 
the promotion of the City in general. All such visual images of the Mural obtained 
by the City pursuant to this provision of the Agreement shall be, and remain, the 
property of the City. All such visual images shall constitute public records that 
are subject to disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act.   


 
d. Representative Interview. 


101 of 778







 


`  


  
Upon reasonable notice by City, Sponsor and/or Artist shall make a 
representative available to City to record an interview arranged by the City’s 
Economic Development Department in which the Sponsor and/or Artist will be 
asked to comment upon the City’s Mural Matching Grant Program and their 
experience as a beneficiary of that Program. All such recordings may be used by 
the City for those promotional purposes referenced in subsection (c), shall be, 
and remain, the property of the City and shall constitute public records that are 
subject to disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act.   


  
20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT, WAIVERS AND AMENDMENTS.   


 
This Agreement integrates all of the terms and conditions herein or incidental hereto 
and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the parties with 
respect to all or any part of the subject matter hereof. All waivers of the provisions of 
this Agreement must be in writing and signed by the parties. It is expressly understood and 
agreed that this Agreement may not be altered, amended, modified or otherwise changed 
in any respect whatsoever except by a writing duly executed by the parties hereto.   


 
21. ASSIGNMENT. 


 
This Agreement, or any interest herein, shall not be assigned, transferred or otherwise 
encumbered, under any circumstances, by Sponsor and/or Artist, without the prior written 
consent of City and District.  


 
22. LEGAL ACTION/ATTORNEY’S FEES. 


 
If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in addition 
to any other relief to which he or she may be entitled. The Santa Cruz County Superior 
Court shall have jurisdiction over any such action and that Court shall be authorized to 
determine which party is the prevailing party and what amount constitutes reasonable 
attorneys' fees to be awarded to the prevailing party.   
 
 


23. SEVERABILITY. 
 


In the event any of the provisions, or applications thereof, of this Agreement are held to 
be unenforceable or invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the validity and 
enforceability of the remaining provisions, or applications thereof, shall not be affected. 


 
 


24. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT. 
 


Each of the parties acknowledge that they reviewed this Agreement and that the normal 
rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the 
drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement. 


 


102 of 778







 


`  


25. COUNTERPARTS. 
   
This Agreement may be executed on one or more copies and each counterpart will be 
considered an original and binding to the party executing it. A scanned, electronic, 
facsimile or other copy of a party’s signature shall be treated the same as an original. 


 
    26. BOARD APPROVAL. 
 


This Agreement shall not be effective until approved or ratified by the Santa Cruz City 
Schools Board of Education. 


 
     27. WARRANT OF AUTHORITY. 
 


The signatories to this Agreement warrant and represent that each is authorized to 
execute this Agreement and that their respective signatures serve to legally obligate 
their respective representatives, agents, successors and assigns to comply with the 
provisions of this Agreement. 


 
CITY      SPONSOR     
 
City of Santa Cruz    Tim Brauch Foundation    


        


 
By:_________________________  By: _______________________   
     Bonnie Lipscomb              date                      Cindi Busenhart         date                 
 Economic Development Director             Tim Brauch Foundation 
 
ARTIST      DISTRICT      
 
 
By: ___________________   By:______________ 
    Taylor Reinhold                  Kris Munro 
     Artist         Superintendent 
           Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________ 
 
 
#### 


ATTACHMENT NO. 1 
 MURAL SKETCH AND RELATED INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 


103 of 778







 


`  


 
 
 


 
 


  


104 of 778







 


`  


ATTACHMENT NO. 2 
 
 SCOPE OF APPROVED WORK 
 


 
 
 
 


  


105 of 778







 


`  


ATTACHMENT NO. 3 
 


INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 


 
Sponsor and Artist (each is herein referred to as “Contractor”) shall each procure and 
maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons or 
damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder and the results of that work by Contractor, Contractor’s respective employees, 
subcontractor(s), agents, representatives, or volunteers. 
 
Minimum Scope and limit of Insurance  
 
Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 


1. Commercial General Liability (CGL):  Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form CG 00 01 
covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, 
property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less 
than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the 
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 
25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.   
 


2. Automobile Liability:  ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering Code 1 (any auto), or if 
Artist has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and Code 9 (non-owned autos), with limits 
no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 
 


3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with 
Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.  


 
The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of 
the City of Santa Cruz and the District for all work performed by Contractor, and Contractor’s 
respective employees. 
 
If Contractor has no employees, Contractor shall complete and sign a Workers’ Compensation 
Exemption Declaration and Release of Liability. 
 
If Contractor will use volunteers for the commissioned artwork/work made for hire, 
Contractor will ensure that all volunteers complete and sign an agreement to release, 
indemnify and hold harmless the City of Santa Cruz, and the District as provided in 
Attachment 4. 
 
If Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown 
above, the City of Santa Cruz and the District requires and shall be entitled to the broader 
coverage and/or higher limits maintained by Contractor.  Any available insurance proceeds in 
excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the 
City of Santa Cruz and the District. 
 


106 of 778



http://intranet/Modules/ShowDocument.aspx?documentid=5534

http://intranet/Modules/ShowDocument.aspx?documentid=5534





 


`  


 
Other Insurance Provisions 
 
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
Additional Insured Status 
The City of Santa Cruz and the District, and each of their respective officers, officials, 
employees, agents, and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy 
with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of 
Contractor, including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work 
or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement by 
Contractor (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or, if not available, through the 
addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if later 
editions are used). 
 
Primary Coverage 
For any claims related to this contract, insurance coverage of Contractor shall be primary 
coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the City of Santa Cruz and the 
District, and their respective officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers. Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City of Santa Cruz, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents, or volunteers shall be excess of insurance of Contractor and shall not 
contribute with it. 
 
Notice of Cancellation 
Each insurance policy required above shall provide that coverage shall not be canceled, 
except with notice to the City of Santa Cruz and the District. 
 
Waiver of Subrogation 
Contractor shall grant to the City of Santa Cruz and the District a waiver of any right to 
subrogation which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against the City of Santa Cruz or 
the District by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to 
obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation, but this 
provision applies regardless of whether or not the City of Santa Cruz and the District has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  The Workers’ Compensation 
policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the City of Santa Cruz and 
the District for all work performed by Contractor, and Contractor’s respective employees. 
 
Self-Insured Retentions 
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City of Santa Cruz. The City 
of Santa Cruz may require Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide 
proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense 
expenses within the retention.  The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, 
that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or the City of 
Santa Cruz.  
 
Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, 
unless otherwise acceptable to the City of Santa Cruz and the District. 


107 of 778







 


`  


Verification of Coverage 
Contractor shall furnish the City of Santa Cruz and the District with original certificates and 
amendatory endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage 
required by this contract.  All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved 
by the City of Santa Cruz and the District before work commences.  However, failure to 
obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive Artist’s obligation 
to provide them.  The City of Santa Cruz and the District reserves the right to require 
complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including declarations and 
endorsements required by these specifications, at any time.   
 
The City’s and the District standard Certificate of Insurance requirements include the 
following: 
 


1. The Certificate(s) will show current policy number(s) and effective dates; 
 


2. Coverage and policy limits will meet, or exceed, the requirements above; 
 


3. The Certificate Holder will be City of Santa Cruz, Risk Management, 877 Cedar 
Street, Suite 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95060; 


 
4. The Certificate will be signed by an authorized representative. 


 
Subcontractors  
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 
requirements stated herein, and Artist shall ensure that City of Santa Cruz and the District, 
their respective officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers are additional insureds 
on insurance required from subcontractors. For CGL coverage subcontractors shall provide 
coverage with a form at least as broad as CG 20 38 04 13.  
 
Special Risks or Circumstances 
City of Santa Cruz and the District reserves the right to modify these requirements, including 
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances.  
 
 
  


108 of 778







 


`  


ATTACHMENT 4 


 


109 of 778







 


`  


 


110 of 778







 
   AGENDA ITEM 8.5.4.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Contracts for SCCS Cabinet Members 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the following documents as submitted: 


1. Superintendent – Addendum 
2. Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources – Addendum 
3. Assistant Superintendent, Business Services – Addendum 
4. Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services – New Contract 


 
BACKGROUND: 
The addendums for the Superintendent and two Assistant Superintendents provide a one-year 
contract extension.  The contract for Educational Services details the agreement for new 
employee Dorothy Coito. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


111 of 778







This page has been left blank







THIRD ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 


 


This is the third addendum ("Addendum") to the Employment Agreement between the 


Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City Schools ("Board" or "District") and Kristen Munro 


("Superintendent"), originally dated April 16, 2015 ("Agreement").  The Board and the 


Superintendent are collectively referred to herein as the "Parties." 


 


To this end, the Parties hereby mutually agree to modify the terms of the Agreement and, where 


applicable, all prior addenda thereto as follows: 


 


1. Consistent with Section 1 of the Agreement, as Superintendent received a Satisfactory 


evaluation from the Board for the 2017-2018 work year, the Agreement term is hereby 


extended by one (1) additional year and the term shall be through June 30, 2021, unless 


terminated earlier or extended as pursuant to the terms of the Agreement or as required 


by law. 


 


2. Section 5 of the Agreement shall be amended as follows: 


 


5. Evaluation of Superintendent 


 


The Board and the Superintendent shall annually develop and agree upon performance 


goals and objectives that shall serve as the basis for an annual evaluation.  Such goals and 


objectives shall be established no later than the first meeting of the Board in September 


of each year. 


 


(Schedule Board Meeting) 


 


The Board shall devote a portion of at least one meeting annually for discussion and 


evaluation of the performance and working relationship between the Superintendent and 


the Board.  Every effort will be made to conduct this meeting by a date to be determined 


by the Board and the Superintendent.  Such meeting shall be conducted in closed session 


unless mutually agreed otherwise.  Evaluations shall be based upon the mutually 


developed and agreed upon performance goals and objectives for that year’s evaluation 


and the standards for Superintendents developed by CSBA and ACSA.  In addition 


thereto, the Board and the Superintendent shall assess the quality and effectiveness of 


their working relationship.  After reviewing the performance of the Superintendent based 


upon the agreed upon goals and objectives established for the school year, the Board shall 


notify the Superintendent in writing, by June 30th of the year under evaluation, whether, 


in the Board’s judgment, the Superintendent has performed satisfactorily or 


unsatisfactorily. 


 


(Unsatisfactory Evaluation) 


 


If the Board concludes that the Superintendent’s performance is unsatisfactory, the Board 


shall identify in writing specific areas in which improvement is required, provide written 


recommendations for improvement, and notify the Superintendent that another evaluation 


113 of 778







will be conducted within six months. Such written recommendations and specifications 


for improvement shall be provided within 30 days of the date of the evaluation. 


 


(Majority of Board) 


An evaluation shall be deemed “satisfactory” if a majority of Board members rated the 


Superintendent’s performance as satisfactory in individual evaluations prepared by such 


Board members. 


 


(Deadline) 


The Board will provide a formal evaluation of the Superintendent's performance at least 


once annually, no later than June 30th of each year.  The Board and the Superintendent 


shall also meet quarterly during the course of the year to give oral feedback to the 


Superintendent concerning the Superintendent's progress towards meeting the mutually 


agreed upon goals and objectives, and making any agreed upon modifications to those 


goals and objectives. 


 


(Mutually Agreed Format) 


The Board and the Superintendent shall agree upon a written evaluation format, which 


shall be used during the Term. 


 


(Unsatisfactory Evaluation) 


If the Board concludes that the Superintendent's performance is unsatisfactory in any 


respect, the Board shall identify in writing specific areas in which improvement is 


required, provide written recommendations for improvement, and notify the 


Superintendent that another evaluation will be conducted within six (6) months.  Such 


written recommendations and the specifications for improvement shall be provided 


within thirty (30) days of the date of the evaluation. 


 


(Confidentiality) 


Unless otherwise agreed to in writing with the Superintendent, the Board shall maintain 


confidentiality concerning the contents of any evaluation. 


 


It is hereby agreed. 


 


 


 


  


Kristin Munro 


Superintendent 


 Claudia Vestal, Board President 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


   


   


   


Date  Date 


 


This Third Addendum to Employment Agreement was approved by the Board of Education at 


its regularly scheduled meeting held on ________, 2018. 
 


00224-00004/4267381.1  


114 of 778







ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 


 


This is an addendum (“Addendum”) to the Employment Agreement between the Governing 


Board of the Santa Cruz City School (“Board” or “District”) and Patrick Gaffney (“Assistant 


Superintendent”) dated 6/1/16 (“Agreement”).  The Board and the Assistant Superintendent 


are collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”.  


To this end, the Parties herby mutually agree to modify the terms of the Agreement as follows: 


1. Consistent with Section 8 of the Agreement, as Assistant Superintendent received a 


satisfactory evaluation for the 2017-18 school year, the Agreement term is hereby 


extended by one additional year.  Accordingly, the term shall be through June 30, 2020, 


unless terminated earlier or extended as pursuant to the terms of the Agreement or as 


required by law.   


 


It is hereby agreed. 


 


 


________________________________  _________________________________ 


Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent  Claudia Vestal, Board President 


 


 


________________________________  __________________________________ 


Date      Date 


115 of 778







This page has been left blank







ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 


 


This is an addendum (“Addendum”) to the Employment Agreement between the Governing 


Board of the Santa Cruz City School (“Board” or “District”) and Molly Parks (“Assistant 


Superintendent”) dated 6/1/16 (“Agreement”).  The Board and the Assistant Superintendent 


are collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”.  


To this end, the Parties herby mutually agree to modify the terms of the Agreement as follows: 


1. Consistent with Section 8 of the Agreement, as Assistant Superintendent received a 


satisfactory evaluation for the 2017-18 school year, the Agreement term is hereby 


extended by one additional year.  Accordingly, the term shall be through June 30, 2020, 


unless terminated earlier or extended as pursuant to the terms of the Agreement or as 


required by law.   


 


It is hereby agreed. 


 


 


________________________________  _________________________________ 


Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent  Claudia Vestal, Board President 


 


 


________________________________  __________________________________ 


Date      Date 


117 of 778







This page has been left blank







 1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


CERTIFICATED CABINET EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT 


 


 


     THIS IS AN EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT made, by and between the SANTA CRUZ 


CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT of Santa Cruz, California, a political subdivision of the State of 


California, and Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services.  The parties are 


called District and Assistant Superintendent, respectively, throughout this Contract. 


 


1. EMPLOYMENT:  The District hereby agrees to employ Dorothy Coito as Assistant 


Superintendent and the Assistant Superintendent agrees to serve as such, subject to the 


terms and conditions of this Contract set out below. 


 


2. TERM:  The term of this contract shall be July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020, unless 


terminated earlier by mutual agreement.  The continuation of this contract into the second 


year is contingent upon the Assistant Superintendent receiving a written evaluation 


completed no later than April 30, 2019, which indicates an overall rating of satisfactory 


performance for the previous school year.  In the event that the overall rating is less than 


satisfactory, this contract shall terminate on June 30, 2019, provided that written notice of 


termination is given to the Assistant Superintendent no later than May 15, 2019. 


 


3.  SALARY:  In consideration of the performance of the duties required by this Contract, 


the District agrees to pay the Assistant Superintendent an annual salary of one hundred 


seventy-seven thousand, five hundred eleven dollars $177,511  per year.  Such salary 


shall be payable in monthly installments on the last day of each month following 


rendition of service. In addition to this salary, an additional $1,133 (annually) or $94.42 


(monthly) will be added for a master stipend and $1,887 (annually) or $157.25 (monthly) 


added for a doctorate stipend. The Assistant Superintendent shall receive a salary 


increase in the same percentage amount as given to other management employees 


provided she has received an overall satisfactory evaluation. 


 


4. FRINGE BENEFITS:  The Assistant Superintendent shall receive the following fringe 


benefits.   


119 of 778







 2 


a. Health Insurance Benefits.  The Assistant Superintendent shall receive 


District-paid health, dental, vision and other fringe benefits in the same 


manner and subject to the same limitations as other District management 


employees as those benefits may change from time-to-time. 


b. Cell Phone: A cell phone will be provided to the Assistant Superintendent. 


 


5. DUTIES. Assistant Superintendent agrees to perform the duties of the Assistant 


Superintendent of Educational Services, for the District in the manner prescribed by the 


laws of the State of California and under the policies, rules and regulations made for or 


on the behalf of said District. Assistant Superintendent agrees to devote her full-time 


attention and skills to said employment during the term of this Contract, with the 


exception that the Assistant Superintendent, by prior arrangement with the 


Superintendent, may be assigned other professional duties and obligations not 


inconsistent with her duties as Assistant Superintendent.  Also by prior arrangement with 


the Superintendent, the Assistant Superintendent may undertake speaking, writing, 


training or lecturing engagements.  If such engagements are undertaken for 


compensation, the Assistant Superintendent will take non-duty days 


 


6. WORK YEAR:  The Assistant Superintendent shall be required to render two hundred 


four  (224) days of service per year.  The Assistant Superintendent shall submit a work 


calendar to the Superintendent for prior approval no later than May 1, 2019.  The 


Assistant Superintendent may be compensated on a per diem basis for additional 


workdays upon the recommendation of the Superintendent and prior approval of the 


Board. 


 


7. GOALS and OBJECTIVES: On or prior to the commencement of this Agreement, the 


Superintendent and the Assistant Superintendent shall meet to establish goals and 


objectives for the ensuing school year.  The goals and objectives shall be reduced to 


writing and shall be among the criteria by which the Assistant Superintendent is 


evaluated.  Each school year the Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent will meet 


to establish goals and objectives for the next succeeding school year, in the same manner 


and with the same effect as described.  The goals and objectives will be monitored and 


reviewed regularly during the school year for progress and revisions, as necessary.  


120 of 778







 3 


 


8. EVALUATIONS:  The Superintendent and the Assistant Superintendent as fore 


mentioned goals and objectives shall be included in the evaluation instrument.  The 


Superintendent shall evaluate and assess in writing the performance of the Assistant 


Superintendent at least once a year, by May 30th during each year in this Agreement.  A 


copy of the written evaluation shall be delivered to the Assistant Superintendent.  The 


Assistant Superintendent shall have the right to make a written response to the evaluation, 


which shall become a permanent attachment to the Assistant Superintendent’s personnel 


file.  Within fifteen (15) days of delivery of the written evaluation to the Assistant 


Superintendent, the Superintendent shall meet and discuss the evaluation.  If documented 


unsatisfactory performance occurs: 


(A) The Superintendent shall prepare a plan for remediation; 


(B) The Assistant Superintendent shall have a period of ninety (90) days to remediate 


the performance.  If remediation is successful, the regular evaluation timeline and 


conditions for evaluation shall be re-implemented.  


(C) Upon an overall satisfactory evaluation of the Assistant Superintendent’s 


performance for the previous year, the Superintendent shall place on the open 


session agenda of the next regular meeting of the Board her recommendation that 


this Agreement be extended for an additional year. 


 


9.   AMENDMENTS:   This Contract may be amended by mutual consent of both parties 


and any adjustment in salary of the Assistant Superintendent during the term of this Contract 


shall be deemed an amendment not a new Contract.  In the event that a new Contract is 


agreed upon between the parties, execution of said Contract shall be deemed as automatic 


termination of this Contract pursuant to the rules and regulations of the State of California, 


the State Board of   Education, and the rules and regulations of the Board of Trustees of the 


Santa Cruz City School District.  Said laws, rules, regulations, and policies are hereby made 


a part of the terms and conditions of this agreement as though fully set forth herein. 


 


10.  TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT:  


a. Mutual Consent.  This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual 


consent of the Board and the Assistant Superintendent. 


b. Non-Renewal of Agreement by the District.  The Board may elect not to renew 


this Agreement based on the Superintendent’s recommendation by providing 


121 of 778







 4 


written notice to the Assistant Superintendent in accordance with Education Code 


35031 (currently 45 days prior notice) or other applicable provisions of law.  The 


Assistant Superintendent’s position is designated as a senior management position 


and therefore not entitled to permanent status. 


c. Termination for Cause.  For the purpose of this Agreement, “cause” shall mean 


grounds for dismissal of the employee as described in the applicable provisions of 


the Education Code.  In the event the Superintendent contends that there is any 


basis to terminate the Assistant Superintendent prior to the end date of this 


Agreement, she shall be entitled to all the rights provided to an employee 


contained in the applicable provisions of the Education Code. 


d. Early Termination.   The Assistant Superintendent may terminate this 


Agreement at any time with at least a 60-day advance written notification to the 


Superintendent.  The Board may, without cause or a hearing, terminate this 


Agreement at any time, with at least a fourteen (14) day notice with 


Superintendent recommendation.  In consideration for exercise of this right, the 


District shall pay to the Assistant Superintendent, for the remainder of the term of 


this Agreement or eight (8) months whichever is less, a sum equal to the 


difference between Assistant Superintendent’s gross monthly salary at the rate in 


effect during the last month of service and the amount earned from any other 


employment-related source (whether as an employee, independent contractor, 


consultant or self-employed).  In addition, the Assistant Superintendent shall 


notify the District immediately if she earns income from any employment- related 


activity as defined above.  The Assistant Superintendent shall also be entitled to 


District paid health benefits, as those benefits may change from time-to-time, for 


a period of 3 months or until the Assistant Superintendent obtains other 


employment, which provides at least the same level of health benefits, whichever 


occurs first.  The parties agree that damages to the Assistant Superintendent that 


may result from the Board’s early termination of this Agreement cannot be readily 


ascertained.  Accordingly, the parties agree that the damage payment made 


pursuant to this early termination clause, along with the District’s Agreement to 


provide paid health benefits, constitutes reasonable liquidated damages for the 


Assistant Superintendent, fully compensates the Assistant Superintendent for all 


tort, contract and other damages and does not result in penalty.  The parties agree 


122 of 778







 5 


that the District’s completion of its obligations under this provision constitutes the 


Assistant Superintendent’s sole remedy of the fullest extent provided by law.  


Finally, the parties agree that this provision meets the requirements governing 


maximum cash settlements as set forth in Government Code Sections 53260 et 


seq. 


e. Disability.  Upon expiration of the Assistant Superintendent’s sick leave 


entitlement and upon written evaluation by a licensed physician of the Assistant 


Superintendent’s choice, indicating the inability of the Assistant Superintendent to 


perform the essential functions of the position as a result of a physical or mental 


disability, with or without reasonable accommodation, for a period of time of at 


least six months, this Agreement may be immediately terminated by the Board 


upon written notice to the Assistant Superintendent. 


f. Death.  Death of the Assistant Superintendent terminates the Agreement 


immediately.  In such event, all salary and other monetary amounts due to the 


Assistant Superintendent at the time of death shall be paid to the Assistant 


Superintendent’s estate unless otherwise declared in writing. 


g. Termination for Inappropriate Fiscal Practices.  Notwithstanding any other 


provision of this Agreement to the contrary, if the Board believes, and 


subsequently confirms through an independent audit, that the Assistant 


Superintendent has engaged in fraud, misappropriation of funds, or other illegal 


fiscal practices, then the Board may terminate the Assistant Superintendent and 


the Assistant Superintendent shall not be entitled to any cash, salary payments, 


health benefits or other non-cash settlement (e.g. health benefits) as set forth 


above.  If the Assistant Superintendent elects to contest the Board’s determination 


in this regard, the Assistant Superintendent may request a hearing before an 


administrative law judge who shall determine the amount of the cash settlement in 


accordance with the requirements of Government Code section 53260(b).   


h. Abuse of Office Provisions.  In accordance with Government Code section 


53243 et seq., and as a separate contractual obligation, if the Assistant 


Superintendent receives a paid leave of absence or cash settlement and this 


Agreement is terminated for any reason, such paid leave or cash settlement shall 


be fully reimbursed to the District by the Assistant Superintendent if the Assistant 


Superintendent is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of office or the position 


123 of 778







 6 


of Assistant Superintendent. In addition, if the District funds the criminal defense 


of the Assistant Superintendent against charges involving abuse of office or 


position and the Assistant Superintendent is then convicted of such charges, the 


Assistant Superintendent shall fully reimburse the District all funds expended for 


the Assistant Superintendent’s criminal defense. Notwithstanding any other 


provision of this Agreement to the contrary, if the Board believes, and 


subsequently confirms through an independent audit, that the Assistant 


Superintendent has engaged in fraud, misappropriation of funds, or other illegal 


practices, then the Board may terminate the Assistant Superintendent and the 


Assistant Superintendent shall not be entitled to the cash, salary payments, health 


benefits or other non-cash settlement as set forth above.  This provision is 


intended to fully implement the requirements of Government Code section 53260, 


subdivision (b).  In addition, if this Agreement is terminated, any cash settlement 


related to the termination that Assistant Superintendent receives from the District 


shall be fully reimbursed to the District if the Assistant Superintendent is 


convicted of a crime involving an abuse of her office or position.  For purposes of 


this provision, “abuse of office or position” means either of the following:  (a) an 


abuse of public authority, including, but not limited to, waste, fraud, and violation 


of the law under color of authority and (b) a crime against public justice, 


including but not limited to, a crime described in Title 7 (commencing with 


Section 92) of Part 1 of the Penal Code.  


 


Santa Cruz City School District  


 


 


_________________________________________   __________________ 


Board President       Date Signed 


    


     


 


EMPLOYEE 


 


 


__________________________________________  _________________ 


 Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services   Date Signed  


 


 


Approved by the Board on:_____________________ 


124 of 778







 7 


 
 
 


125 of 778







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve Kleinfelder Proposal for Geological and Seismic Hazards 
Assessment and Geological Engineering Investigation for the Branciforte 
Small Schools Campus Classroom Buildings Project 


MEETING DATE: June 20, 2018 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Kleinfelder proposal for geological and seismic hazards assessment and geological 
engineering investigation for the Branciforte Small Schools campus classroom buildings project.


 BACKGROUND: 
The proposal is for professional services. It is based on the DSA requirement to have an independent 
approved Laboratory of Record do described special materials testing and inspection services. The 
purpose of this work is to identify and evaluate the potential for such hazards to impact the 
planned development, and to explore the subsurface conditions to present recommendations 
for grading, foundations, retaining walls and drainage and construction considerations. 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
$39,900.00, Measure “B” Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.30% of the overall site budget 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


127 of 778







This page has been left blank







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P79330 Page 1 of 8 June 5, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


 
 
 
June 5, 2018 
Proposal No.: LOCALMKT.WEOH 
 
 
Trevor Miller 
Director of Facility Services 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 
CC: Eva Sabala (MADI Group, Inc.) 
 
SUBJECT: Proposal for Geologic and Seismic Hazards Assessment  


and Geotechnical Engineering Investigation for the 
Branciforte Small Schools Campus Classroom Buildings 


 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
Pursuant to your Request for Proposal (RFP) for Geotechnical Investigation and Geologic 
Hazards Study, Kleinfelder is pleased to present this proposal to provide a geologic and seismic 
hazards assessment and a geotechnical engineering investigation for the two (2) planned new 
classroom buildings at the Branciforte Small Schools Campus. This proposal is based on the 
RFP, our site visit, and our experience with similar school projects for Santa Cruz City Schools 
(SCCS) and throughout the Bay Area.  
 
The purpose of our study includes performing a geologic and seismic hazards assessment to 
identify and evaluate the potential for such hazards to adversely impact the planned development 
and a geotechnical engineering investigation that will explore and characterize the subsurface 
conditions and provide mitigation measures for the identified geologic seismic hazards in addition 
to presenting recommendations for grading, foundations, retaining walls and drainage and 
construction considerations. In addition, we have included pre-bid and pre-construction meetings 
as part of our scope.  
 
We have structured our proposed services to satisfy California Geological Survey (CGS) Note 
48 guidelines for public schools and the review requirements of the Division of the State Architect 
(DSA), specifically Interpretation of Regulations (IR) A-4.13 – Geohazard Report Requirements:  
2013 & 2016 California Building Code (Revised 10-07-16). The following includes our anticipated 
scope of services, an estimate of our fees, schedule, and project limitations. 
 
Kleinfelder has a long history and extensive experience in performing geologic and seismic 
hazard assessments and geotechnical engineering studies during both the design and 
construction phases of public schools for numerous school districts, universities, and essential 
facilities. Our certified engineering geologists and geotechnical engineers are innovative and 
practice value engineering to address technical design issues and develop recommendations. In 
addition, our professionals have a close working relationship with the CGS reviewers and interact 
with them on regular basis to address their concerns and facilitate project reviews and approval. 
 


129 of 778







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P79330 Page 2 of 8 June 5, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 


A conceptual site plan prepared by Madi Architecture and Planning dated 05/25/2018 was 
provided to us.  We understand that the current project consists of constructing two (2) new 
at-grade, classroom buildings (approximately 7,000 sf and 6,200 sf) on the eastern side of 
Branciforte Small Schools Campus.  All the existing portable buildings located on the eastern side 
are planned to be demolished for construction of the new buildings. Minor site work is expected 
to be associated with the buildings and consists of new asphalt parking, hardscape and landscape  
 
If the project differs from that presented above, we should be contacted to review the applicability 
and potential modifications to our scope of services detailed below. 
 


ANTICIPATED CONDITIONS 


Based on published geologic mapping in the area prepared by the CGS and US Geological 
Survey, the project site is underlain by Pleistocene lowest emergent coastal terrace deposits, 
semi-consolidated, generally well-sorted sand with a few thin, relatively continuous layers of 
gravel.  We anticipate that we may encounter sandstone/siltstone bedrock within our proposed 
depth of exploration. Historical information indicates that we may encounter groundwater in upper 
10 feet of the ground surface. 
 
Since the site is underlain by dense soils and shallow bedrock, the potential for liquefaction or 
future settlement due to seismic events is considered low. In addition, the site is not situated within 
an Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone or a mapped land slide zone. Thus, we have determined 
that there is no need to do a site specific hazards analysis for this location. 
 


SCOPE OF SERVICES 


Approach 


The scope of our investigation as presented herein has been structured to adhere to the 
requirements of the California Code of Regulations, Title 24, and 2016 CBC (effective 
January 1, 2017) for California Public Schools and Essential Services Buildings. The scope of 
services presented under the Geologic and Seismic Hazards Assessment below has been 
established to address the geologic and seismic hazards in order to comply with guidelines 
established by the California Geological Survey (CGS) in Note 48, the reviewing agency for the 
DSA, Office of Regulation Services. 
 
Our proposed scope of services will consist of a site reconnaissance, subsurface investigation, 
laboratory testing, and engineering analysis as described below. Our findings will be summarized 
in a report prepared under the supervision of a California registered Geotechnical Engineer (GE) 
and a Certified Engineering Geologist (CEG), as required by CGS Note 48. 
 
Task 1  Geologic and Seismic Hazards Assessment 


The purpose of the geologic and seismic hazards assessment is to identify potential geologic or 
seismic-related hazards that could impact development of the campus or restrict the use of the 
campus. This scope of work will include the following: 
 
1. Review of the regional and local geologic and seismic setting of the site and surrounding area, 


including research and review of available geologic/seismic reports published by the USGS 


130 of 778







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P79330 Page 3 of 8 June 5, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


and the CGS, and a review of available geologic and geotechnical site-specific studies 
performed by other consultants on near site. 


2. Review of aerial photograph and historical topographic maps covering the site area to assess 
the geologic and geomorphic setting, and possible evidence of faulting, landslides, and other 
geologic hazards on or in the vicinity of the site. 


3. Performing a site reconnaissance visit by our CEG. 


4. Reviewing subsurface data (including depth to groundwater) from the geotechnical 
investigation and correlating the data with published geologic mapping. 


5. Preparing a Geologic and Seismic Hazards Assessment report for the site that covers the 
checklist items in CGS Note 48, and which presents the conclusions and results of our study. 
The report may likely include the following: 


a) A site vicinity map 
b) A site plan and geology map 
c) An area geologic map 
d) A regional geology map 
e) A geologic cross section 
f) Regional fault and historic epicenter map 
g) FEMA flood zone map 
h) Dam failure inundation map 
i) A description of regional geology, area geology, and nearby earthquake faults 
j) Discussion of the site location as it pertains to the Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault 


Zone or Seismic Hazards Zone pertaining to liquefaction and slope stability 
k) A description of site’s seismicity 
l) Conclusions regarding:  


1. Fault-related ground surface rupture 
2. Seismically-induced ground failures including liquefaction, lateral spreading, and 


dynamic compaction 
4. Expansive, collapsible, peaty, or compressible soils 
5. Presence of fill soils 
6. Slope stability and landslides (seismically-induced or otherwise) 
7. Land subsidence due to soil oxidation and/or fluid extraction 
10. Spring activity and seepage 
11. Flooding, tsunami-related hazard, seiches 
14. Naturally-occurring asbestos 
15. Radon gas 
16. Soil corrosion 


 


Task 2 – Pre-Field Activities and Utility Clearance  


Prior to drilling, we will mark the proposed boring locations and contact Underground Service Alert 
(USA) to clear the proposed boring locations and area of field work. Kleinfelder will work with the 
District and the drilling subcontractor to provide at least three working days’ notice to Underground 
Service Alert (USA), as required by law. We request that the District provide existing utility plans 
for the site or have a maintenance staff member meet with our representative at the site during 
our site visit to mark boring locations. It should be noted that USA will only check for utilities on 
the public right-of-way, and does not include private property. Therefore, we have planned on 
utilizing the services of a private utility locator to clear the locations of our subsurface exploration 
points. 


131 of 778







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P79330 Page 4 of 8 June 5, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


A project-specific health and safety plan will be prepared prior to accessing the site to explore 
and investigate the subsurface conditions. Prior to each day’s during the subsurface exploration, 
tailgate safety meetings will be held with all onsite personnel to discuss safety issues and 
protocols. 
 
Task 3 – Subsurface Investigation  


According to CGS Note 48 and the 2016 CBC, one boring or exploration point for each 
5,000 square feet of building area footprint, with a minimum of two borings provided for any one 
building’ is a requirement. We have attached our Proposed Boring Plan based on the exhibit 
prepared by the project architect MADI and provided as part of the RFP package. We will advance 
four (4) borings at the site. Two borings are planned for each new classroom building based on 
available site access and the site plan and square footage provided by MADI. Based on our site 
visit, we have assumed two of the four boring locations will require coring through the existing 
hardscape. The hardscape will be cored full depth. Cores will be about 8 inches in diameter and 
are expected to be up to about 6 inches thick.  
 
We anticipate the four (4) soil borings will be drilled between 25 and 50 feet in depth or practical 
refusal, whichever occurs first. If shallow bedrock is encountered, we will drill a minimum of 5 feet 
into bedrock. Soil samples will be obtained at about every 2½ feet to a depth of 10 feet, and 
approximately 5-foot intervals thereafter. The borings will be used to evaluate and characterize 
the subsurface conditions and to obtain soil samples for laboratory testing. Since access near 
some of the planned boring location is not feasible, we will locate exploration points within a 
reasonable proximity for standard geotechnical engineering practice. We have assumed our field 
exploration will take about 2 days with coring done concurrently.  
 
The borings will be drilled using a truck-mounted drill rig equipped with hollow-stem augers, 
depending on access constraints. If groundwater is encountered then the drilling method will be 
switched to rotary-wash, and the 50-foot deep boring will be drilled using mud rotary methods.  
The drilling spoils will be drummed and off-hauled. An experienced engineer or geologist from 
Kleinfelder will maintain a log of the soils encountered and obtain samples for visual examination, 
classification, and laboratory testing. If encountered, groundwater depths will also be measured. 
In addition, we assume on campus gated fences will be accessible prior to the start of our field 
exploration. 
 
Upon completion, the shallow borings will be backfilled with soil cutting and the deeper boring will 
be backfilled with grout. Excess cuttings will be spread thin near the boring locations. The 
hardscape surfaces will be patched with either cold-patch asphalt or cement grout following 
backfill. The patched surface will be topped off and leveled with a standard I-beam level to the 
adjacent grade.  
 
Task 4 – Laboratory Testing 


Laboratory tests will be performed on selected soil samples to evaluate pertinent physical 
characteristics and engineering properties for design. Laboratory tests that we plan on performing 
include measurement of natural moisture content and dry density, Atterberg Limits, R-value, sieve 
analyses and strength tests. In addition, laboratory testing will include corrosion testing of up to 
two sample by an independent sub-consultant. After the field investigation is complete, if we find 
it necessary to perform additional tests, we will contact you for prior approval. 
 
  


132 of 778







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P79330 Page 5 of 8 June 5, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


Task 5 – Analysis & Report Preparation 


We will evaluate the field and laboratory data and perform geotechnical engineering analyses to 
develop conclusions and recommendations for foundation support and earthwork for the project. 
Results of our field explorations, laboratory tests and engineering analysis will be summarized in 
a written report prepared under the supervision of a registered Geotechnical Engineer. At this 
time, we anticipate that the report will include the following items at this time: 


• Vicinity map and site plan showing the approximate boring locations; 


• Logs of borings; 


• Results of laboratory tests; 


• Discussion of general site subsurface conditions, as encountered in our field exploration; 


• Recommendations for design of footings and drilled piers including allowable soil bearing 
pressures, embedment depths, and resistance to lateral loads (if piers are planned); 


• Anticipated total and differential settlements; 


• Slab-on-grade and flatwork support recommendations; 


• Discussion of liquefaction and settlement potential and magnitude; 


• Recommendations for surface and subsurface drainage; 


• Recommendations for site preparation, earthwork, and fill compaction specifications; 


• Recommendations for flexible pavement design; 


• Corrosion test results; and 


• Discussion of construction considerations. 


 
Task 6 – Plan Review & Attendance at Pre-Bid and Pre-Construction Meetings 


As part of our scope we plan on performing a geotechnical plan review of the final DSA approved 
plan set.  We would then issue a letter stating the plans conformance to the design intent.  We 
have also anticipated attending pre-bid and pre-construction meetings either at the site or at the 
District offices after the issuance of our geologic and seismic hazards and geotechnical 
engineering report for the project. 


 


FEE ESTIMATE 


Fees for our services will be charged on a lump sum, fixed fee basis in the amount of $39,900. 
For the scope of services outlined in this proposal, our fee will be as follows: 
 
  


133 of 778







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P79330 Page 6 of 8 June 5, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


Task Description Fee  


1 Geologic and Seismic Hazards Assessment $7,000 


2 Geotechnical Investigation  


 Site visit, field coordination, notify USA North, locate borings/test pits, generate 
HASP 


$1,400 


 Private Utility Locator $700 


3 Subsurface Investigation  


 Kleinfelder field staff (assume up to 2 days) $4,100 


 Coring subcontractor (prevailing wage) $950 


 Drilling contractor (prevailing wage, assume 2 days, includes 7 drums off-haul) $11,700 


4 Laboratory Testing   


 Geotechnical lab testing (in-house) $2,850 


 Corrosivity/geochemical testing (outside lab) $750 


5 Engineering Analysis and Geotechnical Report Preparation (including 
project management/administration) 


$8,500 


6 Plan Review & Pre-Bid and Pre-Construction Meetings $1,950 


ESTIMATED PROJECT TOTAL  $39,900 


 
This fee estimate will not be exceeded without your prior authorization for the scope of services 
outlined above. If weather, access, and/or site conditions restrict our field operations, we may 
need to revise our quotation. Our fee does not include any site access charges and assumes that 
the site work is not restricted by current usage. Also, our fee applies to work commenced within 
90 days of this proposal. After that time, we should review our proposal. All outside services will 
be marked up 10 percent and mileage will be charged at current IRS rate. 
 
The California Prevailing Wage Law requires payment of a local “prevailing wage” to workers on 
publicly funded projects. It is our understanding that this project falls under the definition of a 
prevailing wage project. Therefore, the drillers have increased their hourly rates for drilling 
services that are subject to prevailing wage. We also need to be notified if certified payroll is 
required. The fees presented in this proposal are based on prompt payment for services 
presented in our standard invoicing format. Late fees will be charged if payment is not received 
in accordance with terms contained in our contract. 
 


START DATE AVAILABILITY 


We are prepared to commence work on this project immediately following your authorization to 
proceed. We will schedule subcontractors, prepare a health and safety plan, clear underground 
utilities through Underground Service Alert and utilize the services of a private utility locator. 
 
We expect that the fieldwork can commence within about two to three weeks after receiving 
authorization pending availability of drill rigs.  
 
  


134 of 778







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P79330 Page 7 of 8 June 5, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


We anticipate the field work to be completed within 2 days including coring the existing hardscape.  
We expect to perform our fieldwork during weekdays. If we are requested to perform our fieldwork 
during weekends, we will need to adjust our cost estimate. 
 


SCHEDULE OF DELIVERABLES 


Preliminary results of the boring logs could be made available within one week of the completion 
of the field work, if deemed necessary. Laboratory testing is expected to take approximately two 
weeks to complete after the conclusion of the field exploration activities. We anticipate the final 
report containing the geologic and seismic hazards assessment, site-specific ground motion 
analysis, and geotechnical engineering study will be available within about three to four weeks 
following completion of the laboratory testing. 
 
If a portion of this proposal does not meet your needs, or if those needs have changed, Kleinfelder 
is prepared to consider appropriate modifications, subject to the standards of care to which we 
adhere as professionals. Modifications such as changes in scope, methodology, scheduling, and 
contract terms and conditions may result in changes to the risks assumed by the Client as well 
as adjustments to our fees. 
 


WORK SAFETY 


The safety of our employees is of paramount concern to Kleinfelder. You will be notified if the 
location of your project represents a potential safety concern to our employees. Unsafe conditions 
for fieldwork will require a modification of our estimated scope of work and associated fees. We 
will advise you of the additional costs necessary to mitigate these unanticipated conditions, if 
applicable. 
 


ADDITIONAL SERVICES 


Kleinfelder should review project plans and details to check conformance with the general intent 
of our conclusions and recommendations. Also, we should provide geotechnical observation and 
testing services during construction to identify any unanticipated subsurface conditions, to modify 
our recommendations, as appropriate, and to verify that geotechnical aspects of foundation 
construction and earthwork were performed in general accordance with the intent of our 
recommendations. At your request, and after the project plans and a construction schedule are 
available, we can prepare a separate proposal for providing a plan review and geotechnical 
observation and testing services during construction. 
 
Kleinfelder has an accredited construction materials department and testing laboratory, as well 
as an environmental department, and would appreciate the opportunity to provide separate 
proposals for providing materials testing and environmental services for this project once the 
project plans have been finalized. 
 


AUTHORIZATION AND LIMITATIONS 


If the proposed scope of services and fee estimate meet your needs, please contact our project 
manager and issue a notice-to-proceed with our described scope of services. 
 
It should be noted that penetrating the site's surface is inherently risky. It is impossible to 
determine with certainty the precise location of all structures including utilities, which may be 


135 of 778







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P79330 Page 8 of 8 June 5, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


buried in the ground. Kleinfelder's fee is inadequate to compensate for both the performance the 
services and the assumption of risk of damages to such structures. Prior to drilling at the site, 
USA will be notified so the member utility companies can mark their facilities prior to our field 
investigation. As noted above, we will also utilize the services of a private utility locator to provide 
further information on the location of buried structures. We also request that any as-built drawings 
indicating the locations of private underground structures or utilities (e.g., data lines, power for 
exterior lighting, irrigation) be made available to us at least three working days ahead of our 
scheduled field exploration. It may be prudent for an informed representative of the District’s 
maintenance crews to meet our field crews on site to indicate whether or not our planned 
exploration locations are clear of buried private structures. Disruption of utilities or damage to 
unmarked underground structures will be the responsibility of the owner. Services rendered by 
Kleinfelder to repair them will be billed to the client at cost. 
 


This proposal was prepared specifically for the SCCS (client) and its designated representatives 
and may not be provided to others without Kleinfelder’s express permission. 
 


Our work will be performed in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by other members of Kleinfelder’s profession practicing in the Bay Area, under similar 
conditions and at the date the services are provided. Our conclusions, opinions, and 
recommendations will be based on a limited number of observations and data. It is possible that 
conditions could vary between or beyond the data evaluated. Kleinfelder makes no guarantee or 
warranty, express or implied, regarding the services, communication (oral or written), report, 
opinion, or instrument of service provided. 
 


MAIN CONTACT (PERSONAL AND CONTACT INFORMATION) 


Andrea M. Traum, PE 
Senior Project Manager 
75 W. Santa Clara Street 
San Jose, CA 95112 
Cell (408) 595-3275 
atraum@kleinfelder.com 
 


CLOSURE 


We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal, and look forward to providing geologic 
and geotechnical engineering services for SCCS on this project. If you have any questions or 
desire additional clarification, please do not hesitate to contact our project manager. 
 


Sincerely, 


KLEINFELDER, INC. 
 
 
 


Andrea M. Traum, PE  LEED AP    Gabriel J. Alcantar, PE  
Senior Project Manager     Geotechnical Engineer   
 
Attachment:  Proposed Boring Plan 


Work Order 
 


AM/CN/SMD:ss 


136 of 778







H


Y
D


28.37'


3
2
.4
0
'20.09'


TS


TS


TS


FIRE


LANE FIRE


LANE


BUS


ONLY


F
IR
E


L
A
N
E


F
IR
E


LA
N
E


FIRE LA
NE NO 


PARKIN
G


15


MINUTE


15


MINUTE


15


MINUTE


TV


S
B


PG&E


P
G
&
E


EB


E
L
E
C
.


EB


E
B


E
B


E
B


E
B


E
B


E
B


SSCO


SSCO


SSCO


SSCO


SSCO


SSCO


SSCO


SSCO


T
E
L


TEL


BFP


WM


W
M


W
M


W
M


WM


B
F
P


Y


GV


WV


EB


EB


EB


GV


WV


MH


MH


MH


S


EB


8


16


( )


8K.P
.1


12333
6


DOUB
LE PO


LY


WAVE 
SLIDE


(E) PARKING LOT 1


DSA# 66403


(E) PARKING LOT 2


DSA# 01-111529


WATER ST.


B
R


A
N


C
IF


O
R


T
E


 A
V


E


B
E


N
IT


O
 A


V
E


BENITO AVE


(E) SPORTS FIELD


(N) SAND VOLLEYBALL


COURT


(E) SCHOOL GARDEN


3
0


"
x


4
8
"
 C


L
R


DW


RESOURCE


CLASSROO M


CLASSROO M


CLASSROO M


KITCH EN


BOOK


OFFICE


OFFICE


OFFICE


OFFICE


OFFICE


OFFICE


ARCHIV ES


ARCHITECTS & PLANNERS


www.madi-arch.com


1


CTE NEW BUILDING


05/25/18


SITE PLAN


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL


DISTRICT


SCALE:  1" = 20'-0"
1


SITE PLAN CTE


137 of 778



Mariana

Polygon



Mariana

Text Box

AFEBUILDINGS



Mariana

Text Box

CTEBUILDING



GAlcantar

Ellipse



GAlcantar

Ellipse



GAlcantar

Ellipse



GAlcantar

Ellipse



GAlcantar

Ellipse



GAlcantar

Text Box

Proposed exploratory boring







LOCALMKT/SAL18W79331  ____________  KLEINFELDER 
© 2018 Kleinfelder  ____________ CLIENT 


EXHIBIT 1: WORK ORDER NO: SAL18W79331 


 
Issued Pursuant to Master Services Agreement (Date of Execution: September 14, 2016) 
 
Effective Date: _____________ by and between Kleinfelder, Inc. (KLEINFELDER) and Santa Cruz City 
Schools (CLIENT). 
 
CLIENT Office: (Location) Soquel, CA     KLEINFELDER Project No:       
 
      Work Order Type:  Time and Material 
     Fixed Price 
     Other (describe):        
 
CLIENT Reference No:           
 
KLEINFELDER Office: 40 Clark Street, Salinas, CA 
 
KLEINFELDER Contact:  Andrea Traum 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK: Perform Geologic and Seismic Hazards Assessment and Geotechnical 
Engineering Investigation services for the Branciforte Smalls Schools Campus Classroom Buildings, per the 
attached proposal: LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P79330, dated June 5, 2018. 
 
2. LOCATION/CLIENT FACILITY INVOLVED: Branciforte Smalls Schools Campus Classroom 
Buildings, 840 N Branciforte Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 95062 
 
3. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE: FROM:    TO:  
 
4. AUTHORIZED FEES: $39,900 
 
5. SPECIAL PROVISIONS:       
 
 
 
NOTICE TO PROCEED IS GIVEN ON (DATE):       
 
 
CLIENT ______________________________________  KLEINFELDER, INC. 
 
By ____________________________________  By  ___________________________________ 
 
Name ____________________________________  Name  ___________________________________ 
 
Title ____________________________________  Title  ___________________________________ 
 
Dated ____________________________________  Dated  ___________________________________ 
 


138 of 778







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT


AGENDA ITEM: Approve Change Order # 1 for the Cen-Con, Inc. for Additional 
Electrical and Footing Work for the Soquel High Marquee 


MEETING DATE: June 20, 2018 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Change Order #1 for the Cen-Con, Inc. for additional electrical and footing work for 
the Soquel High Marquee.


BACKGROUND: 


The change order includes additional electrical work and deeper excavation/pouring with longer 
vertical reinforcing steel to support the new Soquel High new marquee.  


FISCAL IMPACT: 
Original Contract Amount $25,309 
Change Order #1  $4,067.11 (16% increase of the original contract amount) 
Total $29,376.11  
Funded by Building Fund (Restricted). 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management 


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


139 of 778







This page has been left blank







141 of 778







This page has been left blank







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2018 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Santa Cruz City Schools 2018-19 Local Control Accountability Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and annual update provide 
details regarding Local Educational Agencies' (LEAs') actions and expenditures to 
support pupil outcomes and overall performance pursuant to Education Code 
sections 52060, 52066, 47605, 47605.5, and 47606.5. 
  
On June 13, 2018, the 2018-19 LCAP was presented to the Board Members for 
review, and a Public Hearing was held to allow public input prior to being 
submitted for adoption at this meeting.  After Board adoption, the LCAP will be 
submitted to the County Office of Education for final approval. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


● Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access 
post-secondary college and career opportunities. 


● Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


● Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between 
demographic groups within the SCCS student community. 


● Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on 
supporting effective teaching. 


● Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
● Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 


community. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  
Elementary LCFF Supplemental Funds - $1,636,103 (Restricted) 
Secondary LCFF Supplemental Funds - $2,851,263 (Restricted) 
Total Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Supplemental Funds $4,487,366 (Restricted) 
 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


143 of 778







This page has been left blank







Page 1 of 174


LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20) 
 


            2018-19    


 


 
Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template 


Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template 


Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements.  


Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations 


Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits) 


LCFF Evaluation Rubrics: Essential data to support completion of this 
LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template. 
 


 
LEA Name 


Santa Cruz City Schools            


Contact Name and Title 


Kris Munro            
Superintendent 


Email and Phone 


kmunro@sccs.net            
(831) 429-3410 ext 220 


 
 


2017-20 Plan Summary 
The Story 
Describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them. 


Santa Cruz City Schools is committed to ensuring demographics do not determine student outcomes 
in our school district.  We work to create schools where the adults know the students well, where we 
can identify each student's needs for growth and support each student academically and personally.  
We want to engage the hearts and minds of every student, every day. 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools is a unique district in that we are two districts (elementary and secondary) 
governed by one board. We also have one LCAP and one Federal Addendum. However, because 
we are two districts, we do have two California Dashboards, two different funding models (our 
elementary district is a Basic Aid district while secondary is an Average Daily Attendance (ADA) 


145 of 778



https://www.caschooldashboard.org/#/Details/44698150000000/3/EquityReport





Page 2 of 174


district), and two different CAASPP reporting reports. Our district is also unique in that there are 
many other small elementary districts in Santa Cruz County that feed into our secondary district. 
 
We are fortunate to have tremendous support from our community.  Voters in our District have 
provided four parcel taxes and two school bonds to ensure our students have rich educational 
programs and updated, repaired facilities to support a twenty-first century education.  These parcel 
taxes provide all students with counseling services, library services, reduced class sizes, music, art, 
life lab, after school programs including athletics, career technical education and more. 
 
During the 2017-18 school year, 6,720 students in kindergarten through 12th grades attended 13 
schools in Santa Cruz City Schools District. Of those students, 55 (.88%) were Foster Youth (FY), 
787 (11.73%) were English Learners (EL), and 2,459 (36.65%) were Low Income (LI), 792 (12%) 
were Special Education (SpEd) students, and 804 (12%) were Reclassification Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP) students. While RFEP students are not specified as a targeted subgroup for LCAP 
funding purposes, we are allocating resources to supporting these students as well. 
 
Since 2010, Santa Cruz City Schools has had the same six strategic goals. After receiving the 
California Scale Up MTSS Statewide (SUMS) initiative grant, we have participated in statewide 
training on Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS). We have utilized the MTSS framework to help 
us examine our progress towards our district goals and identified four strategic areas of focus: 
Literacy, Mathematics, English Learner Progress, and School Connectedness. These focus areas 
were identified through examination of state and local assessments, attendance data, student 
mobility data, discipline data, drop out data, and A-G completion. We paid close attention to the 
results and needs of our English Learners, Low Income students, and foster youth, as well as other 
traditionally underserved student groups. 
 
Using our strategic four focus areas and our corresponding data analysis, we identified two tiers of 
support for each focus area within each grade span that will provide supports to our English 
Learners, Low Income students, and Foster Youth. As part of the MTSS process, we worked to 
ensure our LCAP resources are strategically aligned to these identified tiers of support, which are 
aligned to our four strategic focus areas. This year's LCAP reflects the implementation of these 
identified tiers of support which include evidence based practices to maximize student achievement. 
 
The six strategic District goals are: 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups 
within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 
teaching. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 
 


146 of 778







Page 3 of 174


         


 
 


LCAP Highlights 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 


Through analysis of our state and local data, input from administrators, teachers, counselors, 
Response to Intervention Coordinators, instructional coaches, classified staff, students, and 
parents, and research on effective practices, our LCAP was developed to include the following 
programs and services: 
 
Our primary focus is using Multi-Tiered Systems of Support and the Response to Intervention (RtI) 
frameworks to ensure the success of all students. RtI has been in place in our elementary and 
middle schools since the 2011 school year for both academics and social emotional supports, 
providing resources, professional development and coaching at the core, strategic and intensive 
levels. RtI expanded to our high schools in 2015.  Academically, students are assessed using 
multiple measures and are monitored for progress during the year to provide strategic support (e.g., 
before/after school extended learning, flexible intervention groupings within the school day, or 
tutoring) or more intensive interventions (e.g., replacement for core programs, credit recovery) as 
required. Social emotional and behavioral supports are also provided at every school site. 
 
Every grade span is implementing tiered academic and social emotional supports to remove 
obstacles to achievement.  In our elementary schools, these supports include the Walk to Read 
Program and math interventions, supported by RtI Coordinators, Instructional Technicians and 
Learning Assistants. In middle school, RtI Coordinators have had a concentrated focus on 
mathematics interventions and supports during the school day. For the 2018-19 school year, middle 
schools will also have one intensive math intervention at each school.  They have also supported 
English Language Arts interventions. Our high school RtI Coordinators are building tiers of support 
with a concentrated focus on mathematics in response to parent and student feedback. The high 
schools are also implementing reading intervention courses for students in need of literacy 
supports.  Summer and after school programs target filling academic gaps for students K-12.  
These programs focus on building math and English skills and provide opportunities for high school 
credit recovery.  We are using the Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) assessment system as a 
local assessment to monitor the academic growth of all students as well as measure the impact of 
intervention programs. 
 


147 of 778







Page 4 of 174


Instructional coaching is another core component of our LCAP.  Coaches support teachers with the 
implementation of the Common Core State Standards, NGSS and the new ELD framework.  This 
year we are restructuring our Instructional Coaching program. In elementary school, we are shifting 
coaching to be focused on high impact instructional strategies that span all content areas. We are 
specifically emphasizing instructional practices that support English Language Learners. In middle 
school, we are continuing to have a .2 coach at each site focused on supporting the implementation 
of the Common Core Literacy standards. In addition, our secondary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT) will provide focused Integrated ELD coaching for all middle school 
teachers and Costanoa High School teachers. In our comprehensive high schools, RtI Coordinators 
will support math teachers with implementing high impact instructional strategies, with a specific 
focus on student collaboration and academic talk. In addition, our science coach will be continuing 
to support the implementation of the Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) and will be 
working with the district NGSS Leadership vertical team as we develop our district's NGSS 
implementation plan. 
 
Further, we are refining our services for our English Learners. Using both Supplemental dollars and 
Title I, we have implemented Newcomer programs at Gault Elementary, Branciforte Middle School, 
and Harbor High School. As a district, all grade spans have agreed to focus our instructional 
professional development on Integrated ELD, to support the academic growth and achievement of 
our English Learners. Our teacher leaders that are apart of their site's Santa Cruz Instructional 
Leaders (SCIL) team, will be participating in ongoing Integrated ELD training throughout the year to 
build their capacity to support their fellow teachers. In addition, all site and district administrators 
will participate in Integrated ELD trainings. In addition, each school (with the exception of Westlake) 
will have a School Community Coordinator supporting our newcomers and monolingual Spanish 
speaking families. 
 
This year we are also focusing on monitoring and increasing our students' connection to school and 
removing social and emotional obstacles to student success. All comprehensive elementary 
schools are implementing Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports (PBIS) supported by 
counselors, a full time Behaviorist/PBIS coach, and part-time PBIS aides. LCAP resources also 
support middle school counseling and after school programs staffed with coordinators and 
instructional technicians. In 2017-18, the middle schools will be working to implement PBIS to 
support positive classroom climates and to overtly teach behavioral expectations to support student 
success. At Mission Hill, a .2 increase in counseling services will better support school 
connectedness. At the secondary level, social workers and school counselors are supporting 
removing obstacles to attendance and school success. Social workers are providing Tier 3 supports 
to students and families, helping students to attend school and access their education. In addition, 
this year we are able to add .4 Activities Directors at each of the comprehensive High Schools, .1 at 
Costanoa High School, and .2 at Branciforte Middle School. The goals of the Activities Director are 
to increase school connectedness for all students, collect data to monitor student participation of all 
students by subgroups in all co-curricular program, and support the school’s efforts to ensure 
equitable participation and engagement of all students. 
 
We will continue to support Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID) programs for our 
traditionally underserved students in middle and high school.  The AVID program supports students 
with the "hidden curriculum" of schools and with meeting the requirements to prepare for college 
and university admittance. 
 
 
 
 


148 of 778







Page 5 of 174


 
 
         
 


 


Review of Performance 
Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other 
information, what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that 
success? This may include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in 
services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for 
these students. 
 
Greatest Progress 
Strengths of Elementary Program: 
Elementary students continue to make academic progress with reading using the Walk-to-Read 
model. Results on student reading comprehension as measured by the Scholastic Reading 
Inventory (SRI) have increased steadily with each year. In addition, we studied our student 
subgroups, all of which made positive growth. Our Hispanic subgroup shows greater gains than all 
other subgroups analyzed. For example, at one school, the achievement gap between hispanic and 
white students was reduced by 48% (or nearly half) in a two-year period. 
 
We have implemented the Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) assessments for 3rd through 5th 
graders in Reading and Math. These assessments closely correlate with the end of year California 
annual Smarter Balanced Assessments (SBAC) in Reading and Math. What we have learned about 
student achievement based on the MAP assessments is that students are meeting or exceeding 
their growth goals in both Reading and Math. However, our district average MAP scores for grades 
3-5 in both Reading and Math, when translated to SBAC scores, on average we are scoring at the 
"Standard Nearly Met" range. 
 
In regards to the SCCS Elementary District CA Dashboard, we have many strengths. Some of these 
highlights include: 
• An extremely low suspension rate (Blue: Highest rating possible) 
• An increase in English Learner progress (Green: 2nd to highest rating possible) 
 
Strengths of the Secondary Program: 
In secondary, we are in year three of having RtI Coordinators at each of the comprehensive middle 
schools and high schools. With the exception of Harbor, all secondary RtI Coordinators began their 
focus on mathematics, as this was our content area of most need according to district and site 
CAASPP and grade data. 
 
Over the past three years RtI Coordinators have been researching, creating, implementing, and then 
refining Tier 2 Math Interventions. For more specifics on the middle school and high school math 
interventions, please see the Addendum. Now that we are in year three with RtI Coordinators, all 
three comprehensive high schools and both middle schools have made huge strides in aligning their 
Tier 2 interventions based on research and evidence of student success. 
 
Our two collective strengths of our secondary Tier 2 Math Interventions are that students in our Math 
Interventions are exhibiting great growth on the MAP growth tests; these are students who are in the 
most need of growth. We also, in general, are seeing students in Tier 2 Math Interventions with 
passing grades in their Tier 1 math class. 


149 of 778







Page 6 of 174


 
In addition, our middle schools have worked very hard to improve their students’ language arts 
achievement. They have implemented Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions in reading to ensure that 
students have access and are successful in the core with instructional support. Based on our MAP 
Growth data we are projected to have 59% of our 6th-8th graders meeting or exceeding the 
standard on the 2018 end of school year CAASPP assessments. 
 
At the high school level, we have implemented MAP Growth testing in Math for students in our 
Integrated 1 and 2 courses and also have also created and implemented common district semester 
finals for these courses. This is the first year we've had common districtwide measures for growth in 
mathematics and we're using the data we've gathered as baseline data. Our MAP Growth data in 
Math indicates that our students are making good growth as a whole, and grew 4 RIT points in one 
semester, which is slightly more than the expected growth for this timeframe. RIT is the achievement 
scale that MAP uses, and in high school, most students growth 4 RIT points in one year, so growing 
4 RIT points in one semester is twice the growth expected. In addition, this year we implemented 
MAP Growth assessments in 9th grade English, which is the first time we have had a common 
district measure for English. 
 
Our graduation rates are also increasing: 90% of our students graduated from high school in 2015-
16, which is above the county/state averages. In addition, due to our Tier 1 Common Core math 
instruction and our Tier 2 Math Intervention called Math Plus, we continue to see increased success 
with our 9th grade students passing their freshmen level math class, which meets the Algebra 1 
graduation requirement: Integrated 1 College Preparatory Mathematics (CPM). In 2011-12 we had 
60% of 9th graders passing Algebra the first time, compared to 76% of 9th grade students in 2015-
16 passing Integrated 1 the first time, compared to last school year (2017-18) when we had 87% of 
our 9th grade students passing Integrated 1 for the first time with a C- or better. 
 
In regards to the SCCS Secondary District CA Dashboard, we have many strengths. Some of these 
highlights include: 
• An increase in English Learner progress (Blue: Highest rating possible) 
• An increase in our graduation rate (Green: Second to highest rating possible) 
• A High (Green) rating on the English Language Arts academic indicator (based on end of year CAASPP 


data) 
 
 
 
 


 
Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which 
overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not 
Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has determined 
need significant improvement based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What 
steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas with the greatest need for improvement?  
 
Greatest Needs 
The California state dashboard highlights our areas of greatest need. An orange performance rating 
is a 2 on a 5 point scale with 5 being the highest, and a red performance rating is the lowest rating 
for the dashboard.  In our elementary district, our English Learners received an overall rating of "red" 
for English Language Arts and an overall rating of "orange" in mathematics.  Low Income students, 
Students with Disabilities and Hispanic students had overal performance ratings of "orange" in both 
English Language Arts and mathematics.  In our secondary district, our English Learners received 


150 of 778







Page 7 of 174


an overall performance rating of "red" in English Language Arts and mathematics on the California 
state dashboard. Students with Disabilities received and overall performance rating of "red" for both 
English Language Arts and mathematics.  Foster Youth in our secondary schools had a "red" rating 
for suspension rates.  Homeless students in the secondary district recieved "red" ratings for English 
Language Arts, mathematics and graduation rate.  The academic ratings are based on the CASSPP, 
our state academic assessments. 
 
The dashboard results for our Homeless students in the secondary district placed our district into 
"Differentiated Assistance" with the County Office of Education.  We have appreciated the technical 
support from the Santa Cruz County Office of Education's Educational Services Team.  In our initial 
meeting with county leadership, we discussed our need to focus on more than the Homeless student 
population as indicated by our data above.  The LCAP reflects our planning through our Multi-Tiered 
Systems of Support work and the guidance provided through the Differentiated Assistance process. 
 
In addition to the state measures, we looked closely at our local measures to inform our areas of 
greatest need.  In our elementary Response to Intervention Programs currently, 41%  of elementary 
students in grades 1 - 5 are being served in Walk to Read intervention groups. At the sites, the 
number of students in Walk to Read intervention groups ranges from 29% to 58%. The large number 
of students currently served in our Walk to Read Intervention strongly indicates the need for an 
aligned, effective Tier 1 core literacy program in reading and writing that effectively meets the needs 
of 80 - 85% of our students, including English learners. 
 
This year our district implemented a progress monitoring assessment in English Language Arts and 
Math grades 3-10 called Measures of Academic Progress (MAP). MAP predicts students ratings on 
the CAASPP, the end of year California standardized assessment.  The district average on these 
assessment for all students and our targeted sub group results on MAP indicate a need for strategic 
focus in these academic areas. Based on our MAP Reading data, MAP predicts that we will have 
51% of our elementary students grades 3-5 meeting or exceeding the standard on the 2018 English 
Language Arts CAASPP assessment. 2% of our English Learners grades 3-5 are predicted to meet 
or exceed the standard on the 2018 English Language Arts CAASPP. 21% of our Low Income 
students grades 3-5 are predicted to meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 English Language 
Arts CAASPP. (Note: We have too few foster youth in our elementary school district to get a 
CAASPP prediction). 
 
Similarly, based on our MAP Math data, MAP predicts that we will have 32% of our elementary 
students grades 3-5 meeting or exceeding the standard on the 2018 Math CAASPP assessment. 
5% of our English Learners grades 3-5 are predicted to meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 
Math CAASPP. 9% of our Low Income students grades 3-5 are predicted to meet or exceed the 
standard on the 2018 Math CAASPP. 
 
In our secondary district, based on our MAP Reading data, MAP predicts that we will have 59% of 
our secondary students grades 6-8 meeting or exceeding the standard on the 2018 English 
Language Arts CAASPP assessment. 2% of our English Learners grades 6-8 are predicted to meet 
or exceed the standard on the 2018 English Language Arts CAASPP. 34% of our Low Income 
students grades 6-8 are predicted to meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 English Language 
Arts CAASPP. (Note: We have too few foster youth in our secondary school district to get a 
CAASPP prediction). 
 
Similarly, based on our MAP Math data, MAP predicts that we will have 41% of our secondary 
students grades 6-8 meeting or exceeding the standard on the 2018 Mathematics CAASPP 
assessment. 2% of our English Learners grades 6-8 are predicted to meet or exceed the standard 


151 of 778







Page 8 of 174


on the 2018 Mathematics CAASPP. 18% of our Low Income students grades 6-8 are predicted to 
meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 Mathematics CAASPP. 
 
As a part of our Multi-Tiered Systems of Support retreat, 76 members of our Santa Cruz City 
Schools team, including teachers, counselors, RtI Coordinators, instructional coaches, and 
administrators)  evaluated state and local assessments, attendance data, student mobility data, 
discipline data, drop out data, and A-G completion.  As a result of this evaluation of data, we have 
identified four strategic focus areas to support student achievement. 
 
1) Literacy 
2) Mathematics 
3) English Learner Progress 
4) School Connectedness 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student 
group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA 
planning to take to address these performance gaps? 
 
Performance Gaps 
There is a significant and pervasive achievement gap illustrated by student performance on the 
CAASPP.  The charts below illustrate that in both English Language Arts and Mathematics, English 
Learners, Low Income, Hispanic, African American and Students with Disabilities are achieving at 
levels significantly below our white students and our overall student average districtwide. 
 
Our Performance Gap is also seen when looking at the SCCS Elementary District California 
Dashboard. The gap exists in English Language Arts where our "All" student group is yellow, and 
our EL student group is red (two levels lower than the "All" student group). 
 
Our Performance Gap is also seen when looking at the SCCS Secondary District California 
Dashboard. The gap exists in our suspension rates in which our "All" student group is yellow, and 
our Foster Youth student group is red (two levels lower than the "All" student group). Our 
Performance Gap also exits in our Graduation Rate in which our "All" student group is green and our 
English Learner student group is orange (three levels lower than the "All" student group) and 
Homeless student group is red (four levels lower than the "All" student group). Additionally, our 
Performance Gap exists in English Language Arts and in Math. In English Language Arts, our "All" 
student group is is green and our Homeless, Low Income, and Hispanic student groups are all 
orange (three levels lower than the "All" student group), while our English Learners and Students 
with Disabilities student groups are red (four levels lower than the "All" student group). In Math, our 
"All" student group is is yellow and our Homeless, English Learners, and Students with Disabilities 
student groups are all red (two levels lower than the "All" student group). 
 
As a district, we are working to use the Multi-Tiered Systems of Support framework to address four 
identified areas of strategic focus: 
1)  Literacy 
2)  Mathematicws 
3)  English Learner Progress 


152 of 778







Page 9 of 174


4)  School Connectedness 
 
The following includes Tier 1 school-wide efforts and Tier 2 targeted supports planned for each 
strategic focus area in each grade span: 
 
LITERACY 
Elementary: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Identify and begin to implement an articulated K-5 Tier 1 literacy program, including adopted 
instructional materials and effective instructional practices, in order to give ELLs and ALL students 
full access to and engagement in the academic demands of the Common Core State Standards. 
Convene task force of teachers this spring and summer 
Provide professional development on current effective literacy practices 
Pilot materials under consideration 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Systematic approach to intervention developed based on adopted curriculum 
 
Middle School: 
See English Learners Focus Area below for Tier 1 and Tier 2 plans for Literacy 
 
High School: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Examine the impact of standards based grading practices, rubrics and assessment on student 
achievement. Investigate standards based grading practices. 
Follow up with training needs for teachers in making this shift, work with departments 
PLC work at each school site; time for district-wide standards alignment built into curriculum master 
plan 
Create common writing assessments to measure student progress 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Continue reading strategies courses at the high schools 
Explore potential reading / writing interventions in lieu of current READ 180 course 
SCHS will pilot a writing center and writing coach 
 
 
MATHEMATICS 
Elementary: 
Tier 1 Focus- Universal Math Training - Strong Core Differentiated Instruction with a focus on re-
engagement 
Continue to extend our collective Tier 1 practice in mathematics instruction to meet the needs of ALL 
students through the Eureka curriculum, language routines, and other research based tools, bringing 
in professional development whenever possible. 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Support RtI Coordinators with exploring math interventions and systems for providing Tier 2 
supports 
 
Middle Schools: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Restructure Math Course 1 - 2 sequence 


153 of 778







Page 10 of 174


Provide paid time for middle school math teachers this summer to dive deeply into the power 
standards for College Preparatory Math Core Connections Course 1 & Course 2, and reorganize the 
Course 1 & Course 2 curriculum to allow for deeper instruction on key Course 2 concepts 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Use exploratories to integrate math skills and develop real world math curriculum 
Add Math Plus Intervention sections at each middle school. 
Provide paid time for teachers this summer to research and integrate real world, relevant math into 
exploratory math courses and after school math enrichment programs. 
 
High Schools: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Establish Priority Standards & Practices for CPM 
Provide paid time for math teachers  to develop priority standards in June in order to determine the 
district priority standards for Integrated Courses 1, 2, & 3, and refine the scope and sequence for 
each course to align to these priority standards. 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Expand Math Plus Intervention 
Add Math Plus Intervention sections at each high school to support flexible intervention for students 
struggling in their primary math classes. 
 
 
ENGLISH LEARNER PROGRESS 
District-wide: There was clear consensus from all participants at the MTSS retreat that K-12 we 
need to focus on Integrated ELD so that our English Language Learners develop their academic 
language skills and receive access to the college prep curriculum 
 
Elementary: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Integrated ELD 
Instructional coaching to support student acquisition of academic language in all content areas. 
ELA task force will find a program to adopt that includes both designated and integrated ELD. 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Refine the Language Review Team process to improve progress monitoring and interventions for 
students who are not making progress towards redesignation. 
 
Middle School: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Integrated ELD 
Summer GLAD training for teachers leading Integrated ELD instructional practices implementation at 
their sites.  4 PD/coaching sessions will follow the summer training during the 2018-19 school year 
focused on implementing specific academic English instructional strategies that support all students, 
with a specific focus on supporting ELs in content classes. 
English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher (ELIRT)  will continue to support middle schools 
and Costanoa with professional development and instructional coaching focused on implementing 
Integrated ELD instructional strategies into the classroom. 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
EL Social Emotional Support Groups 


154 of 778







Page 11 of 174


 
High School: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Integrated ELD 
Summer GLAD training for training for teachers leading Integrated ELD instructional practices 
implementation at their sites.  4 PD/coaching sessions will follow the summer training during the 
2018-19 school year focused on implementing specific academic English instructional strategies that 
support all students, with a specific focus on supporting ELs in content classes. 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Academic and Social-Emotional Interventions/Supports for Ever ELs 
 
 
SCHOOL CONNECTEDNESS 
Elementary: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Support students with self regulation and remove obstacles to accessing academic instruction 
Hire a full time K-5 Positive Behavior Intervention Support (PBIS) coach/Behavior Specialist to 
support PBIS as well as support our teachers with students with challenging behaviors 
 
Tier 2 Focus - 
Have PBIS Coach / Behaviorist train part time PBIS Instructional Technicials to support students 
with behavior plans 
 
Middle School: 
Tier 1 Focus- Implement School-wide Social Emotional Learning 
Hire extra counseling support or activity director to support and monitor students' school 
connectedness - differentiated per site needs 
 
Tier 2 Focus- Social Emotional Tier 2 Interventions 
Hire additional MFT Interns to ensure they are available to all sites 
 
High School: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Explore Homeroom/Advisory Teacher/Student Connection 
Hire activity directors to increase the number of students involved in activities and track the data of 
students groups engaged and connected to school in order to inform the programs and services 
provided to students 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Explore ways to add Additional Mental Health Counseling Support through grants or county 
partnerships 
Not enough funds available at this time to increase current staffing levels, which include one MFT 
intern at each site 
 
 
 
 
 


155 of 778







Page 12 of 174


 
 
If not previously addressed, identify the two to three most significant ways that the LEA will increase or improve 
services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth. 
 
Increased or Improved services 
This year our increased and/or improved services include: 
1) Refining our Instructional Coaching program focusing on supporting teachers to implement 
instructional strategies that support English Learners and struggling students. 
2) Providing mandatory Integrated ELD Professional Development to all site Santa Cruz Instructional 
Leader team members, Principals and Assistant Principals, and district office administrators. 
3) Adding sections for academic intervention, Tier 2 math and ELA support classes, and sections of 
a more comprehensive Tier 3 Math Support class at our comprehensive high schools and middle 
schools, with a strategic focus on support for 
unduplicated pupils. 
4) Adding a full time elementary Behaviorist/PBIS Coach to support the implementation of PBIS and 
increase student connectedness, with a strategic focus on support for unduplicated pupils. 
5) Adding Positive Behavior Instructional Technicians at our elementary schools to support school 
connectedness and remove obstacles for student learning, , with a strategic focus on support for 
unduplicated pupils. 


156 of 778







Page 13 of 174


6) Adding part time School Community Coordinators at Soquel High and Santa Cruz High and 
increasing the hours of the School Community Coordinators at the middle schools to ensure access 
and outreach for our families of unduplicated pupils. 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Budget Summary 
Complete the table below. LEAs may include additional information or more detail, including graphics. 
 
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
Total General Fund Budget Expenditures For LCAP Year $78,856,304 


 


Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to 
Meet The Goals in the LCAP for LCAP Year 


$7,567,548.00 


 
The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool but may not describe all General Fund Budget 
Expenditures. Briefly describe any of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the LCAP 
year not included in the LCAP. 


The following revenues and expenditures are not accounted for in our LCAP: 
 
Salary and Benefits 
Routine Restricted Maintenance 
Building Fund 
Food Services 
Lease Revenue 
Parcel Taxes 
Bond 
         
 
 
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year $63,995,203 


 


157 of 778







Page 14 of 174


Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 


 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 


Goal 1 
All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.           


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 


State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #1        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
EAP Scores        


17-18 
Increase college readiness by 5% in ELA and Math        


Baseline 
2015-16 cohort 
 
ELA  22% College Ready 
Math 14% College Ready 
        
 


 2016-17 cohort 
 
ELA  27% College Ready - We met our goal on the EAP in ELA, by 
increasing 5%. 
Math 12% College Ready - We did not met our goal on the EAP in Math. We 
decreased 2%. 
 
 
 


158 of 778







Page 15 of 174


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
A-G rates        


17-18 
Target 5% increase for each student sub group        


Baseline 
2015-16 Graduates 
All Students                             54% 
Hispanic / Latino                     38% 
African American                     56% 
English Learners                      7% 
RFEP                                       56% 
Low Income                             39% 
Students with Disabilities        12% 
 
        
 


 A-G rates for 2016-17 Graduates 
 
All Students                            61% (increase of 7%) 
Hispanic / Latino                    44% (increase of 6%) 
African American                   43% (decrease of 7%) 
English Learners                    13% (increase of 6%) 
RFEP                                     45% (decrease of 11%) 
Low Income                            47% (increase of 8%) 
Students with Disabilities       17 % (increase of 5%) 
 
We met our goal of increasing by 5% or more in each of our subgroups 
except for our African American subgroup and RFEP subgroup. 
 
 
 


Metric/Indicator 
Graduation Rate        


17-18 
Target  3% increase for each student sub group        


Baseline 
2015-16 cohort 
 
All Students                            92.5% 
Hispanic / Latino                    83.4% 
English Learners                   73.3% 
Low Income                           89.1% 
Students with Disabilities      83.7% 
 
 
        
 


 Graduation Rate---NOT YET AVAILABLE 
 
2016-17 cohort 
 
All Students 
Hispanic/Latino 
English Learners 
Low Income 
Students with Disabilities 
 
 
 


Metric/Indicator 
Dropout Rate        


17-18 
Reduce by 1% for each student sub group, reduce by 3% for ELs        


 Dropout Rate---NOT YET AVAILABLE 
 
2016-17 cohort 
 
All Students 
Hispanic/Latino 
English Learners 
Low Income 


159 of 778







Page 16 of 174


Expected Actual 


Baseline 
2015-16 cohort 
 
All Students                              4.2% 
Hispanic / Latino                     6.4% 
English Learners                    15.2% 
Low Income                             6.3% 
Students with Disabilities      4.7% 
        
 


Students with Disabilities 
 
 


Metric/Indicator 
AP and Honors Enrollment        


17-18 
Increase subgroup participation by 5%         


Baseline 
2016-17 cohort - duplicated count 
 
Groups                                Total              5% increase is:           New count 
needed to meet goal: 
 
All Students                         2,294                +115                                      
2409 
Hispanic / Latino                    597                  +30                                        
627 
Low Income                           575                  +29                                        
604 
Students with Disabilities       46                     +2                                          
48 
        
 


 AP and Honors Enrollment 
 
2017-18 cohort - duplicated count 
 
Groups                                Total                    Met Goal: 
 
All Students                         2,322                       N    (increase of 1%) 
Hispanic / Latino                   626                         Y    (increase of 5%) 
Low Income                           577                        N    (no increase or 
decrease) 
Students with Disabilities        51                         Y    (increase of 11%) 
 
We met our goal of increasing by 5% or more in our Hispanic / Latino 
subroup and Students with Disabilities subgroup 
 
 


Metric/Indicator 
College and Career Readiness Indicator - California Dashboard        


17-18 
Increase percent of students rated College and Career Ready by 5%        


Baseline 
34% of the class of 2015 were rated prepared on the new state dashboard 
College and Career Readiness Indicator        
 


 45.4% of the class of 2016 were rated prepared on the new state dashboard 
College and Career Readiness Indicator. 
 
We met and surpassed our desired goal of a 5% increase. We increased 
11.4% on the College and Career Readiness Indicator. 
 
 


 


160 of 778







Page 17 of 174


Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 


         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Counselors assist in ensuring 
access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities (LCFF 
Supplemental, LCFF Base, Title 1) 
 
Provide 4 year planning workshops 
for all 9th grade students 
 
Continue to implement Common 
Core Standards, following the 
Curriculum Master Plan 
 
Facilitate strategies for improving 
A-G completion rates including 
transcript audits supported by the 
Riverside Counseling Collaborative 
 
Refine our articulation efforts with 
our partner school districts – Live 
Oak, Soquel and the county’s four 
small districts 
 
Build common assessments and 
adopt MAP to monitor student 
progress on the standards 
 
Collaboratively determine math 
placement tools with partner 
districts 
 
 
 
 


 In elementary we employed 2.25 
FTE Total Counselors (.50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL & 
.25 Monarch). 
 
In secondary we employed .65 
FTE Total Counselors (.25 
Counselor @ MHMS & .20 @ 
SCHS & SQHS). 
 
Our high school counselors are 
working with our CTE Counselor to 
implement post-secondary college 
and career opportunities at each 
grade level. 
 
In addition, our high school 
counselors are providing 4 year 
planning workshops for all 9th 
grade students. 
 
We revised the Curriculum Master 
Plan to reflect our 4 strategic areas 
of focus: Literacy, Mathematics, 
English Learner Progress, and 
School Connectedness. We are 
implementing the Curriculum 
Master Plan, currently focusing on 
math instruction K-12. 
 
We continue to work with our 
partner districts for articulation 
purposes and have room for 


 2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL & 
.25 Monarch 1200 CERT PUPIL 
SUPP Supplemental 141,997  


 2.20 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL & 
.20 Monarch 1200 CERT PUPIL 
SUPP Supplemental 160,728 


2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL  & 
.25 Monarch 1200 CERT PUPIL 
SUPP Base 141,997  


 2.00 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL  
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Base 
140,916 


2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL & 
.25 Monarch 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 52,338  


 2.20 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL & 
.20 Monarch 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 49,709 


2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL  & 
.25 Monarch 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Base 52,338  


 2.00 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL  
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Base 40,301 


.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
Supplemental 57,107  


 .70 FTE Total = .30 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
Supplemental 57,449 


.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 20,920  


 .70 FTE Total = .30 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 21,659 


MAP Assessment 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Base 
90,000  


 MAP Assessment 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Base 
84,445 


161 of 778







Page 18 of 174


growth in working with Soquel 
Elementary School District. 
 
This was our first year 
implementing MAP Growth 
Reading and Mathematics 
Assessments in grades 3-10. 
These assessments were 
administered at least twice in each 
of these grade levels. We are 
working to support teachers in 
using the data to impact 
instruction. 
 
SCCS District RtI Coordinators 
worked to create district Math 
Placement policies that include 
multiple measures for placing 
students in mathematics. RtI 
Coordinators are working with our 
feeder districts to get feedback 
regarding these placement 
policies. 
 
 
 


Action 2 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Continue to work with the County 
Office to ensure a smooth 
transition of ROP staff to Santa 
Cruz City Schools 
 
Implement  new Computer Science 
pathways, support increased 
enrollment in pathway options 
 
 


 In our high schools, we employed 
the following Career and Technical 
Education (CTE) FTE: 3.585 FTE 
HHS, 1.515 FTE SCHS, 3.00 FTE 
SQHS, .60 FTE Costanoa. 
 
The Secondary Director of 
Curriculum, Instruction, and 
Assessment is working with the 
County Office to ensure a smooth 
transition of ROP staff to SCCS. 


 CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (3.585 FTE HHS, 
1.515 FTE SCHS, 3.00 FTE 
SQHS, .60 FTE Costanoa) 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Base 672,351  


 CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (3.00 FTE HHS, 1.33 
FTE SCHS, 2.80 FTE SQHS, .60 
FTE Costanoa) 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Base 598,925 


CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (3.585 FTE HHS, 
1.515 FTE SCHS, 3.00 FTE 
SQHS, .60 FTE Costanoa) 3000 


 CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (3.00 HHS, 1.33 FTE 
SCHS, 2.80 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 


162 of 778







Page 19 of 174


 
We implemented Computer 
Science Pathways at each of our 
comprehensive High Schools. 
 


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base 
180,918  


Costanoa) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Base 173,701 


CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (.30 FTE HHS, .30 
FTE SCHS, .20 FTE SQHS, .20 
FTE Costanoa) 1200 CERT 
PUPIL SUPP Base 94,386  


 CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (.30 FTE HHS, .30 
FTE SCHS, .20 FTE SQHS, .20 
FTE Costanoa) 1200 CERT 
PUPIL SUPP Base 98,809 


CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (.30 FTE HHS, .30 
FTE SCHS, .20 FTE SQHS, .20 
FTE Costanoa) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Base 40,654  


 CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (.30 FTE HHS, .30 
FTE SCHS, .20 FTE SQHS, .20 
FTE Costanoa) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base 
29,109 


For Computer Science Pathway 
4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Other 369,105  


 For Computer Science Pathway 
4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Other 358,681 


 


Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Counselors provide Tier 1 curriculum to all students in the areas of academic and career goal setting. They provide classroom lessons 
as well as lead school wide initiatives. Some examples in this area are reviewing what college is, designing lessons for the S4C 
college commitment, interest inventories and career matches, career visits from parents, leading college week activities. In the social 
emotional realm, they support the implementation of Second Step for all students TK-5. Much of the work of the school counselor is in 
providing Tier 2 supports. The counselors are instrumental in the implementation of PBIS, behavior intervention plans, and the work of 
the PBIS IT. They have designed and created easy access to a host of social emotional and behavioral interventions which teachers 
can utilize in the classroom. 
 
Secondary School Counselors provide services in three areas: academic counseling, career counseling and social emotional support 
through a framework of Mult Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS). Counselors provide Tier 1 curriculum to all students through 
classroom lessons as well as school wide initiatives. The secondary Tier 1 counseling programs include 8th grade boot camp in which 
students learn about credits and classes, 9th grade Four Year Planning workshops, 10th grade career inventories and career units 
including understanding CTE pathways, college search, application support and financial aid workshops, and senior checklists as 
students ready for the next stage of life. 


163 of 778







Page 20 of 174


 
All of this support is being provided while counselors also respond to the day to day needs of their students. They coordinate 
scheduling, course selection, credit checks, and work with teachers to provide for the special circumstances and needs of students 
and their families. In addition, our high school counselors have been continuing to assist all students in accessing post-secondary 
college and career opportunities. This year we brought on board a Career and Technical Education Counselor that works with all four 
high schools and their counseling teams to implement a career and college readiness curriculum she developed for all students in 9th, 
10th, 11th, and 12th grade. Our high school counselors also continue to work with all 9th grade students and their parents in 
developing their 4 year planning. 
 
This year we also worked on revising and updating the Curriculum Master Plan to reflect our four strategic areas of focus: Literacy, 
Mathematics, English Learner Progress, and School Connectedness. We are in the process of developing comprehensive plans for 
each of these focus areas at each grade span to focus our Tier 1 and Tier 2 efforts. Part of the focus of these plans is to continue the 
implementation of the Common Core State Standards (CCSS) by having a district instructional focus that supports implementation of 
the CCSS. 
 
This was our first year implementing MAP Growth Assessments district-wide in grades 3-10. While we had some bumps with 
technology and administering the assessments, overall we've made huge strides in implementing a common assessment districtwide 
that we are able to use as a Universal Screener and as a Progress Monitoring tool. Currently RtI Coordinators and Administrators are 
using MAP data. As we plan for the 2018-19 school year, one K-12 focus will be on PLC work and supporting teachers to use MAP 
data to inform instruction and student areas of need. 
 
SCCS District RtI Coordinators worked to create district Math Placement policies that include multiple measures for placing students in 
mathematics. RtI Coordinators are working with our feeder districts to get feedback regarding these placement policies. 
 
 
         
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The elementary counseling program has been evaluated by monitoring the number of office discipline referrals (ODR). The ODR has 
dropped significantly since the incorporation of the full counseling program of PBIS, Second Step and school counselors. In 2008 
before we had school counselors we had 889 office discipline referrals district wide. Last year we had less than 150. When students 
are settled and ready to learn, academic achievement will follow. A recent study suggests each behavior referral to the office means a 
student is on average out of class for 45 minutes. Our data suggests we have reduced unproductive out of class time from 667 hours 
to 112 hours for our students. 
 
It is not easy to isolate the role of the school counselor when it comes to outcomes for students. Some of the criteria we use are the 
same as the evaluation of the entire school program such as drop out, transfer and graduation rates and college placement rates. 


164 of 778







Page 21 of 174


Counselors take seriously the charge they have to support students to graduation. They do measure their own success through the 
success of their students. Anecdotally, we know that counselors save lives. There is no greater measure of success than to have a 
student tell you, that your intervention kept them alive. 
 
This year was our initial year implementing MAP Growth Assessments in Mathematics and Reading, and we learned a lot from the 
administration of the assessments to reading the data reports. 
         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Our budget estimates were relatively close, and the only material difference noted for Goal 1 is that we had slightly less Career and 
Technical Education (CTE) FTE than anticipated. We are using this year's actuals to help us refine our estimates for next year.          
 


 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
We are proud of the work we are doing to support our English Learners in meeting A-G requirements, and we saw an increase of 6% 
(from 7% to 13%). 
 
As we are still in the initial implementation phase of our Curriculum Master Plan, we are still developing criteria and metrics to use as 
indicators of our plan's effectiveness. Next year we plan to continue to revise and refine the Curriculum Master Plan by bringing 
together a committee of teacher leaders from each school throughout the first half of the school year to give input into the plan. Our 
finalized Curriculum Master Plan will be complete in February 2019. 
 
Regarding MAP, our universal screener and progress monitoring assessments in math and reading, we plan to continue to refine the 
process for administering assessments including bolstering specific school's internet capacity (Santa Cruz High and Mission Hill 
Middle). We also need to continue to train and support our teachers in how to read and interpret the data, ultimately using it as an 
indication of a student's progress and impacting instruction to meet students' areas of need. 
 
We are going to continue to refine our Math Placement policy and process for middle and high school students by working with our 
feeder schools and districts. 
 
These changes can be found in Goal 1 of the Goals, Actions, Expenditures, 2018-19 LCAP. 
         
 


 


165 of 778







Page 22 of 174


Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 


 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 


Goal 2 
SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social emotional 
well-being of all students.          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 


State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #2        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Suspensions rates 
 
Expulsion rates 
 
Chronic Absenteeism 
        
17-18 
Reduce Suspensions by 3% 
Reduce Expulsions by 5% 
Reduce chronic absentee rate by 2% at each grade span 
        


 In 2017-18 as of May 17, 2018 (to be revised with end of year data) 
 
103 suspensions (in school and out of school)  Goal Met and Exceeded - 
Suspensions reduced by 54% 
13 expulsions - Goal Met and Exceeded - Expulsions reduced by 57% 
Elementary Chronic Absenteeism    13.70% - Goal Met 
Middle School Chronic Absenteeism 10.02% - Goal Met 
High School Chronic Absenteeism    14.82% - Goal Met 
 
 


166 of 778







Page 23 of 174


Expected Actual 


Baseline 
In 2016-17: 
224 suspensions (in-school and out of school) 
30 expulsions 
 
2016-17: 
Elementary Chronic Absenteeism    15.8% 
Middle School Chronic Absenteeism 12.9% 
High School Chronic Absenteeism    17.7% 
        
 


 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 


         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Counselors (See Goal #1) 
Youth Services Interns to provide 
social emotional counseling and 
supports 
Collaboration with County Office of 
Education on Foster Youth 
Services 
 
 
 


 All planned actions were carried 
out. We provided counselors, 
social work interns and 
collaborated with the County Office 
of Education for Foster Youth 
services as planned last spring.  


 SCCCS Youth Services (8K Elem 
& 16K Secondary) 5800 OTHER 
SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental 24,000  


 SCCCS Youth Services (8K Elem 
& 16K Secondary) 5800 OTHER 
SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental 24,000 


Foster Youth Services (3,300 E & 
6,700 S) 5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental 10,000  


 Foster Youth Services (3,300 E & 
6,700 S) 5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental 10,000 


Secondary 5200 MILEAGE, 
TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 
Supplemental 1,000  


 Secondary 5200 MILEAGE, 
TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 
Supplemental 1,000 


500 E & 2,000 S 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 2,500  


 600 E & 1920 S 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 2,520 


Action 2 
         


Planned  
         


Actual  
         


Budgeted  
         


Estimated Actual  
167 of 778







Page 24 of 174


Actions/Services Actions/Services Expenditures Expenditures 
Primary Intervention Program for 
each intervention and social 
emotional support 
 


 Primary Intervention Programs 
were provided at each elementary 
site as planned.  


 1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES 
Supplemental 53,986  


 1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES 
Supplemental 47,954 


1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 5,142  


 1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 4,070 


Action 3 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Social Workers to remove 
obstacles to school success 
 


 Two social workers have provided 
services to our secondary sites as 
planned.  


 2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
Supplemental 149,145  


 2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
Supplemental 150,403 


2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 53,227  


 2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 53,739 


Action 4 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Positive Behavior Intervention and 
Support Coach  
 


 We were unable to hire a .4 PBIS 
Coach.  In lieu of providing a 
coach, we hired additional 
behavioral support aides (PBIS 
ITs) through ABRITE and 
contracted for coaching services 
from ABRITE to support the aides.  


 .4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 24,595  


 ABRITE SERVICES 5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
28,962 


.4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 4,367  


 Paid Via Object 5800    


 


168 of 778







Page 25 of 174


Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
As stated above, we provided counselors, social workers, primary intervention aides and foster youth services for our students.            
 


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
Elementary Counseling 
Counselors provide Tier 1 curriculum to all students in the areas of academic and career goal-setting. They provide classroom lessons 
as well as lead school wide initiatives. Some examples in this area are reviewing what college is, designing lessons for the Santa Cruz 
County College Commitment (S4C), interest inventories and career matches, career visits from parents, and leading college week 
activities. In the social-emotional realm, they support the implementation of Second Step for all students TK-5. 
 
Much of the work of the school counselor is in providing Tier 2 supports. The counselors are instrumental in the implementation of 
Positive Behavioral Intervention and Supports (PBIS), behavior supports and the work of the PBIS Instructional Technicians. They 
have designed and created easy access to a host of social-emotional and behavioral interventions, which teachers can utilize in the 
classroom. They provide one-to-one counseling, small group counseling and skill development groups. Some examples of the groups 
they have developed are classroom skill development, friendship groups, anger management, groups for students whose parents are 
incarcerated, groups for children whose parents have recently divorced, grief groups, 5th grade girls group, 5th grade boys group, and 
others as needed. They provide consultation for staff and parents on the developmental issues of children. They also coordinate 
parent education efforts in the area of Positive Parenting Program (Triple P) and Positive Discipline.  They also work to connect 
families to community resources when there is a need that cannot be met at school. 
 
Secondary Counseling 
 
Secondary School Counselors provide services in three areas: academic counseling, career counseling and social-emotional support 
through a framework of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS). Counselors provide Tier 1 curriculum to all students through 
classroom lessons as well as school wide initiatives. 
 
The counseling connection begins during the transition between fifth and sixth grade. The counselors have designed a series of 
lesson, school visits, parent night and teacher-led lessons to support this transition to middle school. Some examples are practice with 
opening a locker, learning how to read a schedule, following a map to find their way on a school visit, and viewing the locker room. 
They write letters to their 6th grade core teachers describing who they are, what their interests are and how they learn. 
Simultaneously, information is provided to parents on the developmental task and changes as their child moves from 5th to 6th grade 
ranging from hygiene to the new academic demands of six classes. 


169 of 778







Page 26 of 174


 
The secondary Tier 1 counseling programs continue with 8th grade boot camp in which students learn about credits, classes, 9th 
grade Four Year Planning workshops, 10th grade career inventories and career units including understanding CTE pathways, college 
search, application support and financial aid workshops, and senior checklists as students ready for the next stage of life.  All of this 
support is being provided while counselors also respond to the day-to-day needs of their students. They coordinate scheduling, course 
selection, credit checks, and work with teachers to provide for the special circumstances and needs of students and their families. In 
the social-emotional domain, counselors provide classroom lessons on bullying, harassment, and understanding feelings. In the Tier 
2, support counselors are responding on a daily basis to the needs of their students ranging from short term challenges of 
adolescence to longer term mental health needs including depression, anxiety, grief, and mental illness. 
 
During parent and community meetings, parents spoke out about the strength of our counseling programs at both the elementary and 
secondary levels and the supports they provide to students. Parents also asked for additional counseling. This request for additional 
counseling was also seen in our annual LCAP parent survey. 
 
PBIS Intructional Technicians 
Behavior support aides were provided in lieu of the PBIS coach.  The goal of the behavior support program is to provide in depth 
assistance to our general education students who are not able to access the curriculum due to serious behavior concerns. We provide 
one- to-one aides who are implementing a behavior support plan. The aides track behavior and provide incentives that the students 
have earned. The goals are to reduce the number of classroom disruptions, reduce the number of office discipline referrals, increase 
student time on learning, increase teacher time on teaching rather than disciplining, increase the time of the principal in instructional 
leadership rather than on discipline support. The goal is also to decrease the need for Special Education services due to behavior. 
The aides are eventually faded as the teachers learn to implement the support plan. The data shows a dramatic decrease in disruptive 
behavior and office discipline referrals. The data also shows a change in teacher interactions with the student from negative to positive 
interactions. 
 
Primary Intervention Program (PIP) Child Aide 
Targeted students are students with mild to moderate school adjustment concerns grades TK-5 in the comprehensive elementary 
schools.  At least 96 students will be served in the 2017-18 school year. In the past the student demographics have averaged 52% 
Hispanic, 41% white and 7% other. Foster and homeless youth are also a priority for this program. The Primary Intervention Program 
(PIP) is designed to provide support to students who are having some form of difficulty in adjusting to school. By connecting students 
to one caring adult, the research shows students will generalize this connection to other adults at school and learn that school is a 
caring, safe place to be. 
 
Foster Youth Services 
We contract with the SC County Office of Education to provide services for our foster youth. FosterEd is a program of SCCOE’s Foster 
Youth Services Coordination Program, and the mission is to increase the educational outcomes of foster youth. We do so by ensuring 
that each foster youth is supported by an education team, Education Champion, and education plan, based on identified strengths and 
areas of need.  All of our foster youth are assigned an adult to monitor their school progress. This Champion is especially important as 


170 of 778







Page 27 of 174


students move schools. The program has assisted our school teams in setting goals with students and increasing participation of the 
foster parents and team in school conferences. 
 
Social workers and Intern Program 
Targeted Students: Grades 7-12 
Number of students served: 226 to date. 
 
The social worker and intern program is designed to provide Tier 3 social and emotional supports as well as case management to 
students and their families. Nationwide it is reported: 
* 25 % of all teens are impacted by anxiety disorder. Median age of onset is age 11. 
* 8.3% of teens suffer major depression for more than one year. 
* 11% of middle schoolers and 30% of high school students report being sad for more than two weeks at a time. 
* Adverse Childhood Experiences Study score:  2/3 of all adults report experiencing adverse childhood experiences. 
* Approximately 5 % of our students are homeless. 
* Between 11-17% of our students miss 10% or more of the school year. 
Our goal is to reduce absenteeism, increase student achievement, increase student mental wellness. 
 
Social workers and interns are in place at each of our six secondary sites. With this presence, we are able to serve many students 
who were not being served in the past. The student needs cover a wide range: anxiety, depression, grief, domestic violence, dating 
violence, unsafe housing, no housing, long term trauma, suicidal ideation, self-harm, substance abuse, recent immigrants with trauma 
and fear, and acting-out behaviors. We have two skilled social workers, a skilled Marriage and Family Therapist providing training to 
four interns. The training program consists of individual and group supervision weekly. Simply knowing this resource is available can 
bring calm to a campus as they know there is help for our most needy students. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
We were not able to hire a part-time Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Coach for our elementary schools.  In lieu of this, 
we provided PBIS Instructional Technicians through ABRITE to support general education students whose behaviors were impeding 
their access and others' access to academic success.  We also contracted with ABRITE to train and coach the PBIS ITs to meet the 
needs of the students they were serving.          
 


171 of 778







Page 28 of 174


 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
We were unable to hire a .4 PBIS Coach.  In lieu of providing a coach, we hired additional behavioral support aides (PBIS ITs) through 
ABRITE and contracted for coaching services from ABRITE to support the aides. This was a short term support that replaced the 
immediate need for a .4 PBIS Coach. For the 2018-19 school year, we are planning to hire a full time elementary Behaviorist/PBIS 
Coach to fulfill the need we have in supporting students with challenging behaviors and supporting teachers in learning strategies and 
developing systems for supporting behaviorally challenging students.  Using Title I carryover, we we are currently enrolling our 
homeless elementary students in the Boys and Girls Club summer program.  In addition, we changed our bus route to have a pick up 
and drop off spot at the Rebele Family Shelter to support better attendance of homeless students.  Principals have also reached out 
and are working to coordinate with the shelter Director to provide more support for families.  We have dedicated Title I resources for 
Homeless students for supplies and materials.  The addition of School Community Coordinators at SHS and SCHS will further support 
unduplicated count students and homeless students at the high schools. We will continue to work with FosterEd to provide supports 
and services for our TK-12 foster youth. 
 
We are also adding .4 FTE Activities Directors to each of the 3 comprehensive high schools and .1 FTE Activities Director to our 
alternative high school Costanoa. The focus of Activities Directors will be specifically to monitor our EL, Low Income, and Foster Youth 
connectedness to school and work on providing opportunities, supports, and connections to these students to increase their feeling of 
school connectedness. Similarly, at the middle school level we are adding .2FTE counseling at each middle school to focus on 
providing opportunities, supports, and connections to these students to increase their feeling of school connectedness. 
 
These changes can be found in Goal 2 of the Goals, Actions, Expenditures section of 2018-19 LCAP. 
         
 


 


172 of 778







Page 29 of 174


Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 


 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 


Goal 3 
We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS student community          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 


State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #3        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
SBAC/CAASPP met or exceeds standards in ELA and Math 
 
9th Grade Integrated Course 1 Pass Rate 
 
Ever ELs identified as ALTEL or LTEL (At risk of becoming a long term 
English Learner or a Long Term English Learner (LTEL). 
 
        


 2017-18 data will be used when we receive our official score reports in the fall 
of 2018. Data updates will appear here as soon as we have it. 
 


173 of 778







Page 30 of 174


Expected Actual 


17-18 
The percentage of students in targeted sub groups scoring met or exceeds 
standards on the SBAC/CAASPP will increase by 5% 
 
The rate of 9th-graders passing Algebra 1 with a C- or better on the first try 
will increase by 3% from 79% to 81%. 
 
We will reduce the percent of Ever ELs identified as ATEL or LTEL. 
 
 
        


174 of 778







Page 31 of 174


Expected Actual 


Baseline 
SBAC/CAASPP Met standards: 
 
The percentage of EL, LI, and SWD students who scored Met or Exceeds 
Standard in ELA and Math in 5th, 8th and 11th grade are listed below: 
 
2016 CAASPP Results Met or Exceeded Standards 
 
5th Grade ELA 
ALL           64% 
ELs           40% 
LI               38% 
SWD         30% 
RFEP        50% 
 
5th Grade Math 
ALL           48% 
ELs            28% 
LI               18% 
SWD         26% 
RFEP       14% 
 
8th Grade ELA 
ALL            65% 
ELs            41% 
LI               46% 
SWD         24% 
RFEP        47% 
 
8th Grade Math 
ALL           51% 
ELs           35% 
LI               32% 
SWD         20% 
RFEP        30% 
 
11th Grade ELA 
ALL          46% 
ELs          41% 
LI              39% 
SWD        22% 
RFEP       46% 
 
11th Grade Math 
ALL         44% 
ELs          6% 
LI            24% 
SWD        8% 
RFEP       26% 
 
The rate of 9th-graders passing Algebra 1 with a C- or better on the first try 
will increase by 3% from 76% to 79%. 
 
In 2017, 17% of our Ever ELs were identified as ALTEL or LTEL (At risk of 
becoming a long term English Learner or a Long Term English Learner 
(LTEL). 
 
 
SBAC/CAASPP Met standards: 
 
The percentage of EL, LI, and SWD students who scored Met or Exceeds 
Standard in ELA and Math in 5th, 8th and 11th grade are listed below: 
 
2017 CAASPP Results Met or Exceeded Standards 
 
5th Grade ELA 
ALL           60% 
ELs           11%  - Goal Not Met 
LI               38% - Goal Not Met 
SWD         29%  - Goal Not Met 
RFEP        57% - Goal Met 
 
5th Grade Math 
ALL           48% 
ELs           3%   - Goal Not Met 
LI               23% - Goal Met 
SWD         31% - Goal Not Met 
RFEP        46% - Goal Met 
 
8th Grade ELA 
ALL            55% 
ELs            8% - Goal Not Met 
LI               30% - Goal Not Met 
SWD         24% - Goal Not Met 
RFEP        32% - Goal Not Met 
 
8th Grade Math 
ALL           42% 
ELs           5% - Goal Not Met 
LI               20% - Goal Not Met 
SWD         16% - Goal Not Met 
RFEP        21% - Goal Not Met 
 
11th Grade ELA 
ALL          59% 
ELs          3% - Goal Not Met 
LI              41% - Goal Not Met 
SWD        17% - Goal Not Met 
RFEP       42% - Goal Not Met 
 
11th Grade Math 
ALL         34% 
ELs          2% - Goal Not Met 
LI            18% - Goal Not Met 
SWD        3% - Goal Not Met 
RFEP       24% - Goal Not Met 
 
The rate of 9th-graders passing Algebra 1 with a C- or better on the first try 
increased by 11% from 76% to 87%. Goal Met & Exceeded 
 
In 2017, 17% of our Ever ELs were identified as ALTEL or LTEL (At risk of 
becoming a long term English Learner or a Long Term English Learner 
(LTEL).  In 2018, this number was reduced to 13% of our Ever ELs.  Goal 
Met 
 
        
 


175 of 778







Page 32 of 174


 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 


         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


The overall implementation of the 
actions and services to achieve the 
articulated goals include: 
 
*Elementary English Learner 
Instructional Coach 
*RTI Coordinators Elementary - 
Walk to Read 
*Instruction Techs and Learning 
Assistants for Walk to Read and 
EL Support 
* EL Task Force Implementation 
and Progress Monitoring of EL 
Master Plan 
 
Elementary Site discretionary 
funds address various goals 
supporting targeted services and 
materials for unduplicated students 
as identified by individual sites and 
approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
 
 


 We implemented all of the planned 
actions and services as outlined 
below: 
 
*Elementary English Learner 
Instructional Coach 
*RTI Coordinators Elementary - 
Walk to Read 
*Instruction Techs and Learning 
Assistants for Walk to Read and 
EL Support 
* EL Task Force Implementation 
and Progress Monitoring of EL 
Master Plan 
 
 
Elementary Site discretionary 
funds address various goals 
supporting targeted services and 
materials for unduplicated students 
as identified by individual sites and 
approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
 


 4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 339,012  


 4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 342,040 


4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 
108,183  


 4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 
103,726 


.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 55,777  


 .6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 57,047 


.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 14,035  


 .6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 14,220 


.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Title I 35,726  


 3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Title I 36,457 


.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title I 10,475  


 3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title I 9,087 


6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants 
& Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 2000 >CLASS 


 5.2125 FTE - Learning Assistants 
& Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 2000 >CLASS 


176 of 778







Page 33 of 174


PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental 182,310  


PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental 213,314 


6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants 
& Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 30,566  


 5.2125 FTE - Learning Assistants 
& Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 29,631 


Elementary Sites - Targeted 
Support Allocations 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 95,884  


 Elementary Sites - Targeted 
Support Allocations 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 109,782 


Action 2 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Elementary Summer School 
Interventions 
 


 We held Elementary Summer 
School during the summer of 2017. 


 Elementary Summer School 
Principal 1330 CERT SUPRVSR 
ADMIN - EWA Supplemental 
5,000  


 Elementary Summer School 
Principal 1330 CERT SUPRVSR 
ADMIN - EWA Supplemental 
6,880 


Elementary Summer School 
Teachers 1130 TEACHER 
SALARIES - EWA Supplemental 
11,000  


 Elementary Summer School 
Teachers 1130 TEACHER 
SALARIES - EWA Supplemental 
12,474 


Elementary Summer School - 
Instr Aides & Clerical Support 
2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Supplemental 6,400  


 Elementary Summer School - 
Instr Aides & Clerical Support 
2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Supplemental 8,814 


All Elementary Benefits for 
Certificated & Classified 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 6,600  


 All Elementary Benefits for 
Certificated & Classified 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 5,577 


Elementary Summer School 
Supplies 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental 1,000  


 Elementary Summer School 
Supplies 
 


177 of 778







Page 34 of 174


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 424 


Action 3 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Secondary RtI Coordinators 
Soquel High Counseling for 
Attendance Intervention 
Bilingual Math Tutors 
Math Coaches 
Advance via Individual 
Determination for first generation 
college bound and traditionally 
underrepresented students 
(Stipends;,Sections, Tutors; and 
Field Trips) 
 
 


 We implemented all of the planned 
actions and services as outlined 
below: 
 
Secondary RtI Coordinators 
Soquel High Counseling for 
Attendance Intervention 
Bilingual Math Tutors 
Math Coaches 
Advance via Individual 
Determination for first generation 
college bound and traditionally 
underrepresented students 
(Stipends;,Sections, Tutors; and 
Field Trips) 
 


 5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS - Secondary 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 421,720  


 5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS - Secondary 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 432,846 


5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS - Secondary 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 121,500  


 5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS - Secondary 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 129,493 


.20 FTE - Math Coach - 
Secondary 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 
Supplemental 14,695  


 .20 FTE - Math Coach - 
Secondary 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 
Supplemental 16,620 


Counseling & Attendance - SQHS 
- Secondary 1230 CERT PUPIL 
SUPP-EWA Supplemental 12,891  


 Counseling & Attendance - SQHS 
- Secondary 1230 CERT PUPIL 
SUPP-EWA Supplemental 
26,400 


Bilingual Math Tutors & 
Homework Club @ HRHS, 
SCHS, SQHS, Costanoa - 
Secondary 1130 TEACHER 
SALARIES - EWA Supplemental 
60,354  


 Bilingual Math Tutors & 
Homework Club @ HRHS, 
SCHS, SQHS, Costanoa - 
Secondary 
Also paid under 5800 object 
 1130 TEACHER SALARIES - 
EWA Supplemental 60,354 


.20 FTE - Math Coach - Ark, 
Counseling & Attndance - 
SQHS, & Bilingual Math Tutors & 
Homework Club @ HRHS, 


 .20 FTE - Math Coach - Ark, 
Counseling & Attndance - 
SQHS, & Bilingual Math Tutors & 
Homework Club @ HRHS, 


178 of 778







Page 35 of 174


SCHS, SQHS, Costanoa - 
Secondary 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 16,974  


SCHS, SQHS, Costanoa - 
Secondary 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 19,665 


Avid - Stipends & EWA's 1130 
TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Supplemental 2,156  


 Avid - Stipends & EWA's 1160 
TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND 
Supplemental 2,483 


Avid - Stipends & EWA's 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 383  


 Avid - Stipends & EWA's 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 558 


UCSC - AVID Tutors for BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
40,000  


 UCSC - AVID Tutors for BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
42,948 


AVID Field Trips for BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
10,000  


 AVID Field Trips & Conference 
for BRMS, MHMS, /HRHS, 
SCHS, SQHS 5800 OTHER 
SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental 2,850 


Action 4 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Read 180 & Reading Intervention 
Sections Middle and High School 
Math Plus Intervention Sections 
Credit Recovery Program Staffing 
and Materials 
Middle School After School 
Intervention Staffing 
Secondary site discretionary funds 
address various goals supporting 
targeted services and materials for 
unduplicated students as identified 
by individual sites and approved by 


 We implemented all of the planned 
actions and services as outlined 
below: 
 
Read 180 & Reading Intervention 
Sections in Middle and High 
School 
Math Plus Intervention Sections 
Credit Recovery Program Staffing 
and Materials 
Middle School After School 
Intervention Staffing 


 1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 
122,058  


 1.20 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS,  SQHS 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 
83,837 


2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, 
AVID & Music @ BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 149,445  


 2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, 
AVID & Music @ BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 163,282 


179 of 778







Page 36 of 174


both site councils and the 
Governing Board. 
 
 


Secondary site discretionary funds 
address various goals supporting 
targeted services and materials for 
unduplicated students as identified 
by individual sites and approved by 
both site councils and the 
Governing Board. 
 


.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 54,660  


 .60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 54,445 


1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, 
AVID & Music @ BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 93,820  


 1.20 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, 
AVID & Music @ BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 85,453 


Credit Recovery Contract Cyber 
High 4200 BOOKS OTHER 
THAN TEXTBOOKS 
Supplemental 15,170  


 Credit Recovery Contract Cyber 
High / Also paid Fresno COE for 
exams in object 5800 4200 
BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS Supplemental 
15,170 


Site Discretionary @ Middle, 
High, Costanoa, Ark & AFE - 
Secondary 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental 
288,622  


 Site Discretionary @ Middle, 
High, Costanoa, Ark & AFE - 
Secondary 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental 
263,876 


.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - 
After School Coordinator @ 
BRMS & MHMS 2200 CLASS 
PUPIL SUPPORT SALARIES 
Supplemental 37,850  


 .90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - 
After School Coordinator @ 
BRMS & MHMS 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental 35,034 


.9375 Total - Instructional Techs 
@ BRMS & MHMS 2000 
>CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Supplemental 29,876  


 1.00 Total - .50 @ each site. 
Instructional Techs @ BRMS & 
MHMS 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental 31,441 


180 of 778







Page 37 of 174


.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - 
After School Coordinator @ 
BRMS & MHMS.9375 
Total - Instructional Techs @ 
BRMS & MHMS 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 20,445  


 .90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - 
After School Coordinator @ 
BRMS & MHMS 
1.00 Total - .50 @ each site. 
Instructional Techs @ BRMS & 
MHMS 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 11,243 


Action 5 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Middle and High School Summer 
School Interventions 
Secondary English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher 
Newcomer Sections and Supports 
 
 


 We implemented all of the planned 
actions and services as outlined 
below: 
 
Middle and High School Summer 
School Interventions 
Secondary English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher 
Newcomer Sections and Supports 
 


 Summer School Teachers for 
Middle & High Schools 1130 
TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Supplemental 30,000  


 Summer School Teachers for 
Middle & High Schools () 1130 
TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Supplemental 14,778 


Summer School Principals for 
Middle & High Schools 1330 
CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - EWA 
Title I 13,000  


 Summer School Principals for 
Middle & High Schools (Includes 
from 0700 - $6,560) 1330 CERT 
SUPRVSR ADMIN - EWA Title I 
14,320 


Summer School for Middle & High 
Schools - LA,  Instr Techs, 
Clerical Support & Custodial 
Services EWA's 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental 16,500  


 Summer School for Middle & 
High Schools - LA,  Instr Techs, 
Clerical Support & Custodial 
Services EWA's  (Includes from 
Tilte I - $4,141) 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental 14,579 


Summer School Benefits for all 
Certificated & Classified for 
Middle & High Schools 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
11,775  


 Summer School Benefits for all 
Certificated & Classified for 
Middle & High Schools (Includes 
Rs 0700 $5,078) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
9,806 


Summer School Benefits for all 
Certificated & Classified for 
Middle & High Schools 5800 


 Summer School Benefits for all 
Certificated & Classified for 
Middle & High Schools (Includes 


181 of 778







Page 38 of 174


OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
5,000  


from 0700 $528) 5800 OTHER 
SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental 5,508 


Summer School Teachers for 
Middle & High Schools 1130 
TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Title I 4,225  


 Summer School Teachers for 
Middle & High Schools 1130 
TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Title I 14,751 


1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary 1900 
OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Title I 87,339  


 1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary 1900 
OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Title I 87,447 


1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
22,304  


 1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
18,252 


.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Title I 26,235  


 .40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Title I 40,135 


.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title I 5,456  


 .40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title I 10,093 


Action 6 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Newcomer Program Classes and 
Supports 
 


 We implemented all of the planned 
actions and services as outlined 
below: 
 
Newcomer Program Classes and 
Supports 
 


 .4375 FTE - Learning Assistant 
for Newcomer @ BRMS 2200 
CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES Title I 9,300  


 .4375 FTE - Learning Assistant 
for Newcomer @ BRMS - Vacant 
Position 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES Title I 0 


.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant 
for Newcomer @ BRMS 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
886  


 .4375 FTE - Learning Assistant 
for Newcomer @ BRMS - Vacant 
Position 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 0 


.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, 
Tutorial, Sea Science, Math ELD) 


 .80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, 
Tutorial, Sea Science, Math ELD) 


182 of 778







Page 39 of 174


@ HRHS 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Title I 62,211  


@ HRHS 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Title I 62,661 


.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, 
Tutorial, Sea Science, Math ELD) 
@ HRHS 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 19,852  


 .80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, 
Tutorial, Sea Science, Math ELD) 
@ HRHS 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 20,293 


.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault 
(Also funded from 4201 & 4203 to 
= 1.00 FTE) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR Title I 
35,681  


 .50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault 
(Also funded from .50 4203 to = 
1.00 FTE) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR Title I 
45,545 


.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault 
(Also funded from 4201 & 4203 to 
= 1.00 FTE) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 9,305  


 .50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault 
(Also funded from .50 4203 to = 
1.00 FTE) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 23,790 


Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - 
Newcomer @ Gault (Also funded 
from 4201 & 3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Title III 40,894  


 .50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault 
(Also funded from .50 4203 to = 
1.00 FTE) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR Title III 
39,954 


Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - 
Newcomer @ Gault (Also funded 
from 4201 & 3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title III 10,703  


 .50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault 
(Also funded from .50 4203 to = 
1.00 FTE) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title III 10,093 


Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - 
Newcomer @ Gault (Also funded 
from 4203 & 3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Title III 4,009  


 No Funding Received for 2017/18 
School Year for Elementary - 
Changed funding 3010/4203 
(50/50 split)   0 


Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - 
Newcomer @ Gault (Also funded 
from 4203 & 3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title III 1,050  


 No Funding Received for 2017/18 
School Year for Elementary - 
Changed funding 3010/4203 
(50/50 split)   0 


183 of 778







Page 40 of 174


 


Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The following actions and services were provided to support eliminating the achievement gaps that currently exist between 
demographic groups within the SCCS student community: 
 
*Instructional Coaching in Mathematics and for English Learners (ELIRT) 
*Response to Intervention Coordinators supporting interventions in literacy and mathematics 
*Intervention courses -- READ 180, Math Plus 
*Bilingual Math Tutors at our High Schools 
*Summer School Intervention and credit recovery programs 
*Middle School After School Interventions 
*AVID program supports for all secondary schools 
*Newcomer sections and supports K-12 
         
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The district has not achieved our goals of increasing achievement on the CAASPP.  Interventions have supported student growth 
towards meeting standards when reviewing our new local Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) asessment this year. 
 
In our high school math plus sections, students made almost twice the growth on the MAP math assessment from the fall to winter 
administration (see chart below). 
 
The goal of increasing 9th graders passing Integrated Course 1 was met and exceeded with an 11% increase, moving from 76% of 
students passing with a C- or better to 87%.  This represents significant growth over the last several years, as we have increased the 
percentage passing by 27% since 2012. 
 
Response to Intervention Purpose and Goals 
Santa Cruz City Schools has been using the Response to Intervention (RtI) framework over the past five years as a means to ensure 
that ALL students are making academic progress. In the RtI framework, there are 3 tiers (or levels) of support for students. Tier 1 is 
the universal tier, the academic support that all students receive in all classes. According the the RtI framework, 80% of students 
should be successful (i.e., meet grade level expectations) in a strong Tier 1 program. Tier 2 is a flexible support provided to students 
that need more than the Tier 1 program to be successful. These students make up approximately 15% of students. Lastly, Tier 3 is the 
highest level of support given to students. Students in Tier 3 interventions in elementary receive additional time and are in the smallest 


184 of 778







Page 41 of 174


groups. At secondary, this level of support is usually in the form of an additional class focused on providing intensive support in the 
area of need. The number of students in Tier 3 support should be only approximately 5% of the student population. 
 
In addition, as part of the RtI framework the following types of assessments and data are used and collected by our RtI Coordinators 
to ensure that all students are making growth: 
1) Universal Assessments (MAP Growth Reading & Mathematics) 
2) Progress Monitoring (MAP Growth Reading & Mathematics, grades, teacher-created assessments) 
 
Our purpose and goal in using the RtI framework is to use a data-based systematic process to provide the necessary supports at the 
right time to the right students to ensure ALL student are academically successful. RtI Coordinators work with teachers, administrators, 
and counselors to ensure that students who are not successful in their class(es) are provided with evidence-based targeted 
interventions in their areas of need. 
 
The content area focus of elementary and secondary RtI Coordinators has been different and are outlined below. 
 
Elementary RtI Program Background 
Our Elementary RtI coordinators and Walk to Read programs are in their sixth year. The RtI coordinators organize, oversee, and 
provide interventions for all elementary students who have been identified as reading below grade level. Using research-based tools 
such as SIPPS (Systematic Instruction in Phoneme awareness, Phonics and Sight words), Lexia, Doug Fischer’s ACT (Accessing 
Complex Text), MAP (Measure of Academic Progress), CPAA (Children’s Progress Academic Assessment), and authentic literature, 
RtI coordinators and grade level teams provide 40 minutes of differentiated small group reading instruction to 1st through 5th graders, 
four times a week. The Walk to Read program targets all students with leveled literacy instruction. 
 
Our Walk to Read program is a model of collaboration between general education and special education staff, with special education 
students learning side by side with other students at their instructional level. Special education students are in learning groups 
according to their present levels, not necessarily grouped with other special education students. 
 
Sites hold Student Learning Team meetings, or SLTs, two times a year to assess student progress and to determine the best 
placement for each student. Meeting by grade level, the SLT meetings include all teachers (classroom and resource teachers), Walk 
to Read instructional technicians, RtI coordinator, and site administrator. Any changes in placement, groupings, or instructor are made 
in this meeting. Sites also discuss curriculum and make changes and recommendations for small group as well as classroom 
instruction. This model allows site teams the flexibility to vary their strategies and interventions as they respond to student needs as 
identified by  student performance data. 
 
Strengths of the Elementary Program 
Results on student reading comprehension as measured by the Scholastic Reading Inventory have increased steadily with each year, 
as indicated in the chart below. Following the colors diagonally, it is possible to track the growth of each cohort: 
15-16 74.00% 66.67% 73.33% 73.00% 


185 of 778







Page 42 of 174


14-15 50.00% 61.75% 74.00% 79.25% 
13-14 67.00% 62.50% 77.00% 74.50% 
12-13 56.00% 56.52% 68.00% 72.00% 
*11-12 28.00% 28.00% 46.00% 47.00% 
*Data prior to Walk to Read implementation 
 
While all subgroups studied made positive growth, the Hispanic subgroup shows greater gains in the period analyzed. For example, at 
one school, the achievement gap between Hispanic and white students was reduced by 48% (or nearly half) in a two-year period. 
 
Secondary RtI Program Background: 
In secondary, we are in year three of having RtI Coordinators at each of the comprehensive middle schools and high schools. With the 
exception of Harbor, all secondary RtI Coordinators began their focus on mathematics, as this was our content area of most need 
according to district and site CAASPP and grade data. 
 
Over the past three years RtI Coordinators have been researching, creating, implementing, and then refining Tier 2 Math 
Interventions. Now that we are in year three with RtI Coordinators, all three comprehensive high schools and both middle schools 
have made huge strides in aligning their Tier 2 interventions based on research and evidence of student success. 
 
Strengths of the Secondary Program: 
Our two collective strengths of our secondary Tier 2 Math Interventions are that students in our Math Interventions are exhibiting great 
growth on the MAP growth tests; these are students who are in the most need of growth.  We also, in general, are seeing students in 
Tier 2 Math Interventions with passing grades in their Tier 1 math class. 
 
English Learner and Newcomer Programs 
In reviewing our services to English Learners and newcomers, we look at the number of students who have been in our schools and 
are not making adequate progress towards reclassification.  In 2017, 17% of our Ever ELs were identified as ALTEL or LTEL (At risk of 
becoming a long term English Learner or a Long Term English Learner (LTEL).  In 2018, this number was reduced to 13% of our Ever 
ELs.  This illustrates that the district is making progress in ensuring the progress of our English Learners. 
 
16-17     17-18 
< 3 years in US schools           27%       23% 
ALTEL + LTEL                         17%        13% 
Progressing ELs                      9%          10% 
Redesignated EL                     46%        54% 
 
 
 
         


186 of 778







Page 43 of 174


 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Our budget estimates were relatively close. We are using this year's actuals to help us refine our estimates for next year.          
 


 


187 of 778







Page 44 of 174


Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
To Goal 3 of the 2018-19 LCAP, we are adding REFP CAASPP data as a subgroup we are going to monitor, which will help us to 
determine how our English Learners do academically once they have Redesignated. We are adding this as a metric because we have 
noticed that our CAASPP RFEP data is not as good as other district's, and we are working with Live Oak School District and San Luis 
Coastal School District to learn about their systems, instructional focus, and curriculum that has supported them in seeing continued 
success with their Redesignated English Learners. 
 
Another change to note, is that we are moving the funding of our Elementary English Learner Instructional Coach, to Goal Area 4 in 
our 2018-19 LCAP. Goal Area 4 focuses on collaboration and professional development and our Instructional Coaches are an 
essential component of professional collaboration and Professional Development, which we feel is a better fit. 
 
In addition, due to the success of our math and reading interventions, we are adding additional sections of intervention to Goal 3 in the 
2018-19 LCAP. 
 
 
         
 


 


188 of 778







Page 45 of 174


Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 


 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 


Goal 4 
We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 


State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   Goal #4        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Teacher Working Conditions Survey 
 
Develop a Coaching Survey (baseline data January 2018) 
 
 
 
        


 48.6% of teachers reported that they had sufficient training to fully utilize 
instructional technology.  The goal was not met.  This represents a decline 
from 56% in 2017.  We have shifted to a new Student Information System 
and a new district-wide assessment system that have created new 
challenges on school sites.  We are shifting our strategy for professional 
development on technology next year. 
 
69% of teachers report that professional development deepens their content 
knowledge.  The goal was not met.  This represents a slight decline from 71% 
last year.  We are working with our union leadership and our SCIL teams to 
differentiate PD and better meet teachers' needs. 
 
76.3% of teachers report that professional development enhances teachers' 
ability to implement instructional strategies that meet diverse student learning 
needs.  The goal was not met.  This represents a decline from 86.2% last 
year.  With our strategic focus on Integrated ELD this next year and 
restructuring of our instructional coaching program, we are working to 
address these results. 


189 of 778







Page 46 of 174


Expected Actual 


17-18 
Measures from working conditions survey will increase by the following 
percentages: 
 
+ 5% technology 
 
+ 3% PD enhances teachers ability to implement instructional strategies that 
meet diverse student learning needs. 
 
+5% PD differentiated to meet individual teacher needs 
 
+3% Provided supports translate to improvements instructional practices by 
teachers 
 
Coaching Survey targets determined in spring 2018 
 
 
        
Baseline 
56% of teachers reported that they had sufficient training to fully utilize 
instructional technology. 
 
71% of teachers report that professional development deepens their content 
knowledge 
 
86.2% of teachers report that professional development enhances teachers' 
ability to implement instructional strategies that meet diverse student 
learning needs. 
 
63.5% of teachers report that professional development is differentiated to 
meet the individual needs of teachers. 
 
86.9% of teachers report that provided supports (i.e. instructional coaching, 
professional learning communities, etc.) translate to improvements in 
instructional practices by teachers. 
 
Coaching Survey data will be available in Jan. 2018. 
 
 
        
 


 
53.5% of teachers report that professional development is differentiated to 
meet the individual needs of teachers as compared to 63.5% the previous 
school year. Differentiating professional development and providing coaching 
that supports instruction is an important goal, and we are changing out 
coaching model based on this feedback. 
 
81.5% of teachers report that provided supports (i.e. instructional coaching, 
professional learning communities, etc.) translate to improvements in 
instructional practices by teachers as compared to 86.9% last school year.  
Again, the goal was not met, and we are adjusting our action plans for 2018-
19. 
 
2018 Coaching Survey data baseline: 
Teachers reporting that they worked with a district instructional coach: 68 
teachers reported working one on one with a coach, 49 teachers reported 
working with a coach during the PLCs, 78 teachers reported working with a 
coach on "consultation" regarding programs and/or policies (Coaching 
survey) 
 
90% of 159 teachers that worked with an instructional coach recommend that 
others should work with an Instructional Coach (Coaching survey) 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


190 of 778







Page 47 of 174


Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 


         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Provide coaching to teachers: 
*Educational Technology Coach 
*Math Coaches 
*Next Generation of Science 
Standards (NGSS) Coach 
*Common Core State Standards 
(CCSS) Coach 
* English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teachers to coach 
teachers on implementing CA ELD 
standards and scaffolding 
instruction in core content areas. 
(See Goal #3) 
 
Continue to support and refine 
roles of Santa Cruz Instructional 
leaders (SCIL) (Teacher leaders 
who support site Professional 
Development) (Title II & Title I) 
 
Continue to support our Teacher 
Leader PLC and work to support 
future school leaders through on-
going trainings 
 
Determine metrics for evaluating 
impact of instructional coaches and 
develop a coaching effectiveness 
survey to collect baseline data in 
coaching impact. 
 
 
 


 All planned actions and services 
were carried out as planned. We 
provided the following coaching to 
teachers: 
*Educational Technology Coach 
*Math Coaches 
*Next Generation of Science 
Standards (NGSS) Coach 
*Common Core State Standards 
(CCSS) Coach 
* English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teachers to coach 
teachers on implementing CA ELD 
standards and scaffolding 
instruction in core content areas. 
(See Goal #3) 
 
The Santa Cruz Instructional 
Leadership Team (SCIL) 
districtwide continued to support 
professional learning community 
work at all school sites. 
 
The Teacher Leader PLC 
continued to support future school 
leaders through on-going trainings. 
 
Metrics for evaluating impact of 
instructional coaches were 
established and a coaching 
effectiveness survey to collect 
baseline data in coaching impact 
was developed and administered. 


 1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E 
& .50 S) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 
Supplemental 94,643  


 1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E 
& .50 S) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 
Supplemental 97,057 


1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E 
& .50 S) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 23,576  


 1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E 
& .50 S) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 27,284 


2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E 
& 1.00 S) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 
Supplemental 142,044  


 2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E 
& 1.00 S) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 
Supplemental 156,786 


2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E 
& 1.00 S) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 48,220  


 2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E 
& 1.00 S) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 41,067 


1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 86,805  


 1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 89,178 


1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 21,749  


 1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 21,991 


.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 1900 
OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 34,797  


 .40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 1900 
OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 35,065 


.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 9,605  


 .40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 8,052 


191 of 778







Page 48 of 174


  SCIL Stipends - Secondary 1160 
TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND 
Title I 21,000  


 SCIL Stipends - Secondary   
1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND Title I 22,500 


SCIL Stipends - Secondary 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
3,728  


 SCIL Stipends - Secondary  3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
3,958 


Action 2 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Provide Professional Development 
for Integrated ELD 
Provide support for new teachers 
to clear their credential and for 
interns to earn their preliminary 
credential (Title 2) 
Continue to support and refine 
roles of Santa Cruz Instructional 
leaders (SCIL) (Teacher leaders 
who support site Professional 
Development) (Title II & Title I) 
 
 


 All planned actions and services 
were carried out as planned. We 
provided Professional 
Development for Integrated ELD in 
both of the elementary and 
secondary district. 
 
All new teachers were provided 
coaching through the Santa Cruz 
New Teacher Project induction 
program, supporting their 
professional growth and meeting 
the requirements to clear their 
credentials. 
 
The Santa Cruz Instructional 
Leadership Team (SCIL) 
districtwide continued to support 
professional learning community 
work at all school sites. 
 
 


 Subs for Integrated ELD - 
Secondary 1140 TEACHER 
SALARIES-SUBSTITUTES Title I 
12,740  


 Subs for Integrated ELD - 
Secondary 1140 TEACHER 
SALARIES-SUBSTITUTES Title I 
12,740 


Subs for Integrated ELD - 
Secondary 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 2,262  


 Subs for Integrated ELD - 
Secondary 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 2,262 


SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(28,502 E 105,240 S) 5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Title II 133,742  


 SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(29,040 E & 78,930 S) 5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Title II 107,970 


SCIL Stipends (42,307 E & 
26,715 S) 1160 TEACHER 
SALARIES-STIPEND Title II 
69,022  


 SCIL Stipends (42,000 E & 
39,000 S) 
 
 1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND Title II 81,000 


SCIL Stipends (6,728 E & 4,248 
S) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title II 10,976  


 SCIL Stipends (7,426 E & 6,895 
S) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title II 14,321 


SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(14,810 E  39,465 S) 5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
54,275  


 SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(14,810 E  39,465 S) 5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
54,275 


 


192 of 778







Page 49 of 174


Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
We provided the following coaching to teachers: 
*Educational Technology Coach 
*Math Coaches 
*Next Generation of Science Standards (NGSS) Coach 
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) Coach 
* English Learner Instructional Resource Teachers to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards and scaffolding instruction 
in core content areas. (See Goal #3) 
 
The Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership Team (SCIL) participated in district-wide professeional development in August of 2017.  At 
each site, SCIL leaders supported monthly professional development and department and grade level professional learning 
community work. 
 
The Teacher Leader PLC continued to support future school leaders through on-going trainings.  Several members of this PLC are 
pursuing adminsitrative credentials either through a University program or the state administrative credential assessment. One of our 
PLC participants will move to an administrative position this next fall. 
 
Metrics for evaluating impact of instructional coaches were established and a coaching effectiveness survey to collect baseline data in 
coaching impact was developed and administered. 
 
We provided Professional Development for Integrated ELD for all elementary teachers. The elementary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT) supported integrated ELD in math professional development and the professional learning for our vertical 
team working to implement the Next Generation Science Standards.  In addition to this district-wide effort, the ELIRT provided one-on-
one coaching for elementary teachers. 
 
Both middle schools and small schools have worked extensively with the secondary English Leaner Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) on Integrated ELD.  In addition, the ELIRT supported the SHS History team with Integrated ELD training and supported all 
secondary ELD teachers through the monthly English Learner Professional Learning Community collaboration and some individual 
coaching. 
 
All new teachers were provided coaching through the Santa Cruz New Teacher Project induction program, supporting their 
professional growth and meeting the requirements to clear their credentials. 
 
         


193 of 778







Page 50 of 174


 


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
We did not achieve the student achievement results we were seeking, which is a possible indicator that our instructional coaching 
model is not as effective as it could be. We also have had a very limited number of teachers working with an instructional coach 
because it has been voluntary to work with a coach, and due to the fact that we have over 100 elementary teachers working with one 
math coach and one English Learner focused coach. Because we have not achieved our academic goals, we are shifting our coaching 
model in the 2018-19 school year. The new plan for instructional coaching has been informed by visits to two districts that are seeing 
much better results for their English Learners than we are in Santa Cruz and instead of content focused coaches we are moving 
towards general Common Core Instructional Coaches to support quality instruction in all content areas at the elementary level. We are 
also tying instructional coaches to sites to limit the number of teachers they are working with. 
 
In addition, we know that Professional Development is needed in order to support and refine teachers' instruction, and we do our best 
to design professional development opportunities for teachers to best support their growth. However, our general feedback regarding 
PD from the annual Working Conditions survey we administer, was that teachers' general perception of professional learning has 
declined. While this is in contrast to the feedback we received after each PD session, we are working with our union leadership and 
SCIL teams to address the concerns about professional development to better meet teacher needs. 
         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There were no material differences between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual expenditures.          
 


 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
In the 2018-19 LCAP Goal 4, are adding Instructional Coaches, as noted in the Annual Updates Goal 3 section. We are moving 
Instructional Coaches from Goal 3 to Goal 4 as we see this is a better fit. Goal 4 specifically deals with collaboration and professional 
development, and Instructional Coaches are an essential component of this.          
 


 


194 of 778







Page 51 of 174


Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 


 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 


Goal 5 
SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 


State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #5        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
All district plans and budgets will be aligned with the six district goals. 
 
Data dashboards will be developed to monitor impact of key LCAP initiatives 
- RtI & Instructional Coaching 
 
FIT Report 
 
        
17-18 
100% of district and school sites plans will be aligned with district goals. 
 
Data dashboards will be in place 
 
Increase schools identified as "good" by the FIT report, 
        


 Goal met: 100% of district and school site plans are aligned with district 
goals. We are going to continue to align school plans throughout the 2018-19 
school year so they all have the same format and include a focus on our 
recently established 4 strategic areas of focus: Literacy, Mathematics, 
English Learner Progress, and School Connectedness. 
 
Goal met: Data dashboards are in place for RtI Coordinators and Instructional 
Coaches. RtI Coordinators at each grade span determined data sets that will 
be used each year to determine progress. Instructional Coaches 
implemented an Instructional Coaching feedback survey and CAASPP data is 
also being used to monitor their impact. 
 
Goal met: 10 of 11 schools were identified as "good" by the FIT report for the 
17-18 school year. 
 
 


195 of 778







Page 52 of 174


Expected Actual 


Baseline 
District plans are aligned with district goals.  The alignment could be more 
explicit. 
 
There are no currently no data dashboards for RtI or Instructional Coaching 
 
The FIT report 5 of 11 buildings scored "good" for the 16-17 school year. 
        
 


 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 


         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


*Site Program Coordinator Helps 
Monitor Supplemental Budgets and 
Expenditures 
 
*Administrative Secretary Helps 
Monitor Supplemental Budgets and 
Expenditures 
 
* Support sites and departments 
with plans and budget 
development to ensure alignment 
with district goals 
 
* Develop data dashboards to 
monitor impact of key LCAP 
initiatives -  RtI and Instructional 
Coaching 
 
* Provide sites and departments 
support with  budget monitoring 
 


 *Site Program Coordinator 
monitored supplemental budgets 
and expenditures 
 
*Administrative Secretary 
monitored supplemental budgets 
and expenditures 
 
* Supported sites and departments 
with plans and budget 
development to ensure alignment 
with district goals 
 
* Developed data dashboards to 
monitor impact of key LCAP 
initiatives -  RtI and Instructional 
Coaching 
 
* Provided sites and departments 
support with budget monitoring 
 


 .4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site 
Program Coord & .20 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Elementary) 2400 
CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG Supplemental 15,448  


 .4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site 
Program Coord & .20 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Elementary) 2400 
CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG Supplemental 11,664 


.4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site 
Program Coord & .20 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Elementary) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 8,563  


 .4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site 
Program Coord & .20 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Elementary) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 6,030 


.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .80 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Secondary) 2400 
CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG Supplemental 39,391  


 .94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .80 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Secondary) 2400 
CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG Supplemental 37,696 


.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .80 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Secondary) 3000 


 .94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .80 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Secondary) 3000 


196 of 778







Page 53 of 174


* Implement the Facilities Master 
Plan to improve school facilities 
 
 
 
 


* Began to implement the Facilities 
Master Plan to improve school 
facilities 
 
 


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 21,698  


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 19,939 


 


Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The following actions were taken to achieve the goal that SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective 
management: 
 
*Site Program Coordinator monitored supplemental budgets and expenditures 
 
*Administrative Secretary monitored supplemental budgets and expenditures 
 
* Supported sites and departments with plans and budget development to ensure alignment with district goals 
 
* Developed data dashboards to monitor impact of key LCAP initiatives -  RtI and Instructional Coaching 
 
* Provided sites and departments support with budget monitoring 
 
* Began to implement the Facilities Master Plan to improve school facilities 
         
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
All site and district plans are aligned with the LCAP goals.  We have further refined our areas of focus to support us in meeting our 
targeted outcomes for students.  District metrics have been revised and new dashboards have been developed to monitor impact of 
our key LCAP initiatives.  Our Facilities Master Plan and Bond program are being implemented to improve our facilities for students.          
 
 


197 of 778







Page 54 of 174


Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Our budget estimates were relatively close. We are using this year's actuals to help us refine our estimates for next year.          
 


 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
No changes are being made to this Goal.          
 


 


198 of 778







Page 55 of 174


Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 


 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 


Goal 6 
SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 


State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goals #6        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Increase participation in annual parent survey. 
 
Parent participation in District committees (parent survey) 
 
Parent participation in site committees (parent survey) 
 
Parent participation in Parent Education offerings (parent survey) 
 
Parents reporting that when they contact the school they receive courteous 
attention  (parent survey) 
 
Parents reporting that they receive sufficient information regarding their 
child’s program, progress and needs (parent survey) 
 
Provide an annual State of our Schools mailer for the broader SCCS 
community. 
 
        


 Goal met: 1036 parents participated in the parent survey in Fall 2017.  This 
represents a 16.5% increase over Fall 2016. 
 
Goal not met: 13% of parents responding to district survey report that they 
have participated in district committees 
 
Goal not met: 42% of parents responding to district survey report that they 
participate in site  committees 
 
Goal not met: 41% of parents responding to district survey report that they 
have participated in parent education offerings 
 
Goal not met: 87% of parents responding to district survey report that when 
they contact the school they "always or regularly" receive courteous attention 
 
Goal not met: 74% of parents responding to the district survey report that 
they "always or regularly" receive sufficient information regarding their child's 
program, process and needs 
 
Goal met: For the past three years, each October the State of our Schools 
Mailer has been produced 


199 of 778







Page 56 of 174


Expected Actual 


17-18 
We will increase parent participation in the survey by 3%. 
 
We will increase parent positive responses to survey questions by 5% 
 
We will continue to produce and send the State of our Schools mailing. 
 
 
        
Baseline 
889 parents participated in the parent survey 
 
13% of parents responding to district survey report that they have 
participated in district committees 
 
42% of parents responding to district survey report that they participate in 
site  committees 
 
41% of parents responding to district survey report that they have 
participated in parent education offerings 
 
89% of parents responding to district survey report that when they contact 
the school they "always or regularly" receive courteous attention 
 
76% of parents responding to the district survey report that they "always or 
regularly" receive sufficient information regarding their child's program, 
process and needs 
 
For the past two years, each October the State of our Schools Mailer has 
been produced 
 
 
 
        
 


 
 


 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 


                                    


200 of 778







Page 57 of 174


Planned  
Actions/Services 


Actual  
Actions/Services 


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


*District Advisory Committee 
Meetings 
 
*School Community Coordinators 
support access to school for 
monolingual Spanish speaking 
families.  They also provide 
outreach and support to all 
families. 
 
* Parents and community members 
participate in school and district 
level committees (School Site 
Councils, ELAC, DELAC, District 
Advisory Council; Parent Teacher 
Organizations, Home and School 
Clubs, /Wellness Committee, 
Green Schools, Tech Task Force 
and more) throughout the year. 
 
* Parent, staff and student surveys 
are conducted annually to solicit 
community input on LCAP, budget 
and program priorities. 
 
* Parent education opportunities 
are provided at both the site and 
district level -- One example is the 
annual Latino Role Models 
Conference sponsored in concert 
with Senderos.  This inspiring 
event, conducted all in Spanish, 
provides parent education on 
college admissions, A-G 
completion, financial aide, and 
more. 
 
 
 


 The following actions and services 
were provided in 2017-18: 
 
*District Advisory Committee 
Meetings were held with 
stakeholders 
 
*School Community Coordinators 
supported access to school for 
monolingual Spanish speaking 
families.  They also provided 
outreach and support to all 
families. 
 
* Parents and community 
members participated in school 
and district level committees 
(School Site Councils, ELAC, 
DELAC, District Advisory Council; 
Parent Teacher Organizations, 
Home and School Clubs, 
/Wellness Committee, Green 
Schools, Tech Task Force and 
more) throughout the year. 
 
* Parent, staff and student surveys 
were conducted to solicit 
community input on LCAP, budget 
and program priorities. 
 
* Parent education opportunities 
were provided at both the site and 
district level -- One example is the 
annual Latino Role Models 
Conference sponsored in concert 
with Senderos.  This inspiring 
event, conducted all in Spanish, 
provides parent education on 
college admissions, A-G 


 2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 2200 
CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES Supplemental 
103,111  


 2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 2200 
CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES Supplemental 93,731 


2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 76,661  


 2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 92,786 


3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, 
MHMS - 1.00 @ HRHS & Small 
Schools) 2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES 
Supplemental 107,621  


 3.50 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ MHMS - 
1.00 @ BRMS, HRHS & Small 
Schools) 2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES 
Supplemental 125,798 


3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, 
MHMS - 1.00 @ HRHS & Small 
Schools) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 84,256  


 3.50 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ MHMS - 
1.00 @ BRMS, HRHS & Small 
Schools) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 98,417 


DAC Meetings (1,495 E & 2,275 
S) 4395 FOOD FOR 
WORKSHOPS Supplemental 
3,770  


 DAC Meetings (1,495 E & 2,275 
S) 4395 FOOD FOR 
WORKSHOPS Supplemental 
3,770 


1% Parent Involvement - 
Translations & Babysitting (3,309 
E & 9,985 S) 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Title I 12,694  


 1% Parent Involvement - 
Translations & Babysitting (3,309 
E & 9,985 S) 4300 MATERIALS 
& SUPPLIES Title I 5,000 


Latino Role Model Conference 
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Title I 5,000  


 Latino Role Model Conference 
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Title I 2,672 


201 of 778







Page 58 of 174


completion, financial aide, and 
more. 
 
*We added student focus groups 
at all of the high schools to gather 
student input on our plans and our 
district goals. 
 
 


 


Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The following actions and services were provided in 2017-18: 
 
*District Advisory Committee Meetings were held with stakeholders. 
 
*School Community Coordinators supported access to school for monolingual Spanish speaking families.  They also provided 
outreach and support to all families. 
 
* Parents and community members participated in school and district level committees (School Site Councils, ELAC, DELAC, District 
Advisory Council; Parent Teacher Organizations, Home and School Clubs, /Wellness Committee, Green Schools, Tech Task Force 
and more) throughout the year. 
 
* Parent, staff and student surveys were conducted to solicit community input on LCAP, budget and program priorities. 
 
* Parent education opportunities were provided at both the site and district level -- One example is the annual Latino Role Models 
Conference sponsored in concert with Senderos and held at Cabrillo College.  This inspiring event, conducted all in Spanish, provides 
parent education on college admissions, A-G completion, financial aide, and more. Bus transportation was provided to participating 
students and parents. 
 
         
 
 


202 of 778







Page 59 of 174


Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
We were able to engage more families in our annual parent survey. Using a text link, seemed to help more of the parents of students 
targeted for LCAP supports access the survey.  In addition we were able to hold student focus groups this year to collect more input 
from our high school students on what is working to meet their needs and what needs are not being met.  Our school Community 
Coordinators continue to be instrumental in parent and community outreach.  They support the District in accessing parent input and in 
communicating the resources available to support students and families. Our community coordinators are also instrumental in 
garnering parent participation in both site and district level committees.   Our new Director of Curriculum Instruction and Assessment 
increased the number of district led parent education events and our school sites, PTAs and Home and School Clubs also sponsored 
important parent education opportunities this school year.          
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
The greatest percentage variance is for costs for translation.  With more hours for school Community Coordinators and more bilingual 
district staff, we needed fewer extra hourly agreements for translation.  The Latino Role Models conference also came in under budget 
as partner districts contributed to costs this year.          
 


 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
School Community Coordinators are being added to SCHS and SHS. Both of these schools have not had Community Coordinators up 
to this point. In addition, hours for school Community Coordinators at both middle schools will be increased to support access to 
school programs for all families.  With these additions, in the 2018-19 school year, 9 of 10 campuses will have school Community 
Coordinators.           
 


 


203 of 778







Page 60 of 174


Stakeholder Engagement 
 


 


LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 


 


Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis? 


Santa Cruz City Schools gathered input from a variety of stakeholders to make updates to our 2017-2020 Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP). A series of meetings were held over eight months from September 2017 – May 2018. A survey was 
administered to parents, students and all staff for input to inform our LCAP. SCCS community groups (Superintendent’s Parent 
Leader Advisory Group, District English Language Advisory Council (DELAC), Migrant Parent Advisory Council (PAC), District 
Advisory Committee (DAC), Student Focus Groups and Board Community Meetings) provided input on the LCAP through regularly 
scheduled meetings. DAC is a community group solely focused on giving input into the LCAP and is comprised of Union members, 
teachers, administrators, and parents. 
 
The LCAP stakeholder meeting dates included: 
 
I. DAC Meetings                   Nov 13, Nov 30, Dec 11, Dec 13, Jan 22, and Feb 12 
II. Parent Leadership Committee Oct 16, Nov 27, Feb 26 
III. DELAC/ PAC            Feb. 15 (Note: DELAC/PAC meetings were held each month, but only the Feb. 15 date focused on LCAP) 
IV. Parent and Student Surveys  Nov-Feb, 2017-18 
V.     Student Focus Group Meetings      Nov 27, Nov 30, Dec 4, Dec 12 
V.     Board Community Meetings           Sept 26, Nov 13, Jan 18, Feb, Mar 15 and April 17 
VI. Board Updates and Approval          Sept 27, Oct 18, Nov 8, Feb 28, Mar 7, April 18, June 13, and June 20 
 
The DAC, DELAC and PAC were all presented with information regarding the funding process, current action steps written into the 
2016-19 three-year LCAP, progress to date (including CAASPP data, local assessment data, graduation rates, English Learner 
redesignation rates, truancy, expulsions, and suspensions), and estimated funding for the 2018-19 school year. These parent groups 
discussed district data - local assessments, CDE Dashboard, input from parent, student and staff surveys.  They used this 
information to prioritize LCAP action steps and goals needing to be continued, removed, or revised.  Structured conversations 
allowed all stakeholders opportunity to review data and make recommendations.  To ensure access for our Spanish speaking 
community, we provided translated documents, bilingual surveys and interpretation in meetings. 
 
We are continuing to align our LCAP to our 6 District Goals: 
Goal 1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and  career opportunities. 


204 of 778







Page 61 of 174


Goal 2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social 
emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal 3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic  groups within the SCCS student 
community. 
Goal 4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching. 
Goal 5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal 6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 
Trends in the LCAP recommendations from DAC, DELAC, PAC, Community Meetings, Parent Leadership Committee, Student 
Focused Group meetings, and parent, staff, and student surveys included the following: 
 
Supports already in place that should continue: 
 
*After school homework supports 
*Advancement via Individual Determination (AVID) program to support first generation college bound students particularly Low 
Income, ELs and Foster Youth 
*Instructional aides in classes and tutors 
*School activities (e.g., athletics, band, clubs, etc.) 
*Counseling social/emotional supports 
*Bilingual Community Coordinators 
*Elementary SLT Program 
*Elementary Walk to Read Program 
*Social Workers (focused on building student connectedness) 
*Career Technical Education (CTE) classes 
 
Desired Supports: 
 
*A focus on teachers building relationships with students 
*Professional Development for teachers (with an emphasis on: supporting English Language Learners in the classroom, supporting 
struggling learners in the classroom, and supporting teachers with how to incorporate and support diversity) 
*Additional homework support (e.g., longer library hours with tutoring support, daily teacher office hours, time to begin homework in 
class and get help if needed, study hall, etc.) 
*Bilingual counselors 
*Additional social/emotional & academic/career counseling services 
*Additional social workers 
*Positive Behavioral Interventions and Support (PBIS) Coordinator 
*More communication with parents 
*Parent Education workshops focused on early childhood literacy 


205 of 778







Page 62 of 174


*Elementary Math Intervention(s) 
*Summer Enrichment Program 
*Build on work with foster youth collaborative to ensure wrap around services for foster youth 
 
 
Our stakeholder involvement process is part of our SCCS culture. This year, in our efforts to continue to improve our stakeholder 
engagement process regarding our areas of student need (specifically as they relate to English Learners, Foster Youth, and students 
from Low Income households) and how to meet these needs, we held a Leadership Retreat for teacher leaders, RtI Coordinators, 
District Instructional Coaches, Site and District administrators. At this retreat, we looked at subgroup data to help focus our efforts 
into 4 strategic focus areas. These strategic focus areas are: Literacy, Mathematics, English Learner Progress, and School 
Connectedness. Stakeholders then discussed the data, looked at current practices and initiatives, and recommended one Tier 1 and 
one Tier 2 program/practice to focus on at each grade span in each of the strategic focus areas. Stakeholders were then asked to 
outline the cost to implement each of these programs/practices. A smaller committee then reviewed the recommendations and looked 
at the district LCAP and other budgets to determine needed budget revisions to support the implementation of these Tier 1 & Tier 2 
practices. 
 
        


         
 


Impact on LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year? 


The consultations with stakeholders resulted in SCCS continuing many of the actions in our current LCAP.  Key shifts to the 2018-19 
LCAP that came as a result of input included: 
 
Elementary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas: 
2.0 FTE Elementary Instructional Coaching - tied to sites, not content specific (Note: .3 will be funded by Title 1) 
 
Background and Rationale for Change 
As we are in our third year of having instructional coaches, and are not yet seeing the impact of this work on student CAASPP 
scores, we see the need to make some shifts in the implementation of our Elementary Instructional Coaching Program. During our 
February MTSS Retreat with teacher leaders and administrators from each site, we heard from all that instructional coaching was 
desired. The desire was to have a full time instructional coach to support quality instruction in our three academic strategic focus 
areas: Literacy, Mathematics, and English Language Development to support English Learner progress. Instructional coaching was 
desired because it is a high impact research based educational practice when implemented well. 
 


206 of 778







Page 63 of 174


At this point, we do not have enough funds to have one instructional coach at each elementary school, but we do have enough to 
have one instructional coach split between several elementary sites. This structure enables an instructional coach to concentrate 
their work with all teachers at no more than two or three school sites and focus on needs as indicated by their CAASPP and MAP 
assessment data. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
To provide instructional coaching to all elementary teachers focused on high impact, evidence based instructional strategies. An 
emphasis would be placed on evidence based Integrated ELD instructional strategies. 
 
Strengths of the Proposed Program 
Shifting our coaching positions to two Instructional Coaches instead of one math coach and one English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher would allow the Instructional Coaches to be a more a part of the school staff instead of being a district coach. This 
would allow the coach to work with teachers in a more systematic way, resulting in more teachers working with a coach. Instructional 
Coaches would also be able to support quality, evidence based instruction that crosses over all content areas. These coaches will be 
able to support grade level PLC teams in cycles of inquiry, help gather and review data as well as model lessons. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement 
Ideally we would have a full time instructional coach at each of our three elementary schools that have a significant number of 
English Language Learners and Low Income students (Gault, Bayview, Delaveaga). With only 2 full time coaches, coaches time will 
still be split between many teachers, but the change will allow coaches to support only two or three sites at a time instead of all five. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
We are using a coaching survey with all teachers who work with an instructional coach. We are also using MAP and CAASPP scores 
as an indicator of the success of our current Instructional Coaching Program. While the survey data is very positive, the last three 
years of our elementary district CAASPP data indicates that we are not yet seeing the impact of instructional coaching that we desire. 
The coaching survey (see addendum) will be adjusted to promoting continuous instructional improvement. 
 
        
Elementary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas: 
1.0 FTE Positive Behavior Interventions and Support (PBIS) Coach/Behaviorist (focused on Tier 1 & Tier 2 support to increase 
School Connectedness and address barriers to academic success) 
 
Background 
PBIS supports schools and  districts to build systems capacity for implementing a multi-tiered approach to social, emotional and 
behavior support. PBIS works to clarify and align expectations for students school-wide.  It also includes explicit instruction of 
expectations and social emotional skills. PBIS improves social, emotional and academic outcomes for all students, including students 
with disabilities and students from underrepresented groups. 
 


207 of 778







Page 64 of 174


All of our elementary schools have implemented PBIS schoolwide. However, the success of the program is enhanced greatly by a 
PBIS coach who can work across the district to administer fidelity assessments, support site PBIS teams, and collaborate with 
regional PBIS supports. Two years ago, we had a part time PBIS coach who was a great asset to our sites. 
 
In addition to our PBIS needs, we are seeing a significant increase in behaviors that are impacting classroom safety.  Elementary 
sites are often requesting support from our Special Ed Behavior specialist on matters involving general education students.  Our 
elementary teachers at all of our school sites have requested more behavior supports to ensure behavior is not an obstacle to 
student achievement.  This has also been a request from elementary parents. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
With the creation of this position, the PBIS Coach/Behaviorist will be able to work with all five elementary sites to support PBIS teams 
and staffs - administrative, credentialed, and classified - to support their site PBIS teams in preventing behavior as well as to 
implement effective interventions for general education students with moderate to severe behavior. All sites are experiencing 
behaviors in general education students that fall into the severe category and are therefore not a candidate for PIP. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
PBIS Coach/Behaviorist will be under the supervision of the Director of Student Services. Effectiveness of the program will be 
measured by interviews with site teams, decreased behavior referrals and suspensions, and our PBIS fidelity tools. 
 
        
Elementary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas: 
SCIL Stipends moved from Title 1 and Title 2 to LCFF budget due to reductions in our Title 2 allocation 
 
Background 
SCIL (Santa Cruz Instructional Leaders) teams were introduced to SCCS in the 2010-2011 school year. Each year, grade level and 
department leads are tasked with leading the PLC work at their respective sites and leading the professional development days. 
Currently, at elementary, we have a SCIL member at each grade level. In addition to leading PLCs and PD, SCIL leaders are trained 
on two additional summer days and may have up to four after school meetings during the school year. They also meet monthly with 
site leadership outside of contracted hours. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
Each August our district invites instructional teacher leaders from each site as well as administrators to come together to engage in a 
day of professional learning to set the stage for the year’s instructional focus. This year, our 2017 SCIL PD day refocused our efforts 
with Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by tying this already established practice with “Collective Teacher Efficacy”, one of 
the highest yield educational practices that impact student learning. According to John Hattie, a highly regarded education 
researcher, Collective Teacher Efficacy has an effect size of 1.57, effectively tripling the speed of a student’s learning. Collective 
Teacher Efficacy is the belief that together teachers can positively impact student learning through collective action. We will continue 


208 of 778







Page 65 of 174


to focus on how to further our Collective Teacher Efficacy and increase our impact throughout the year at our follow up SCIL 
meetings. 
 
Strengths of the Program 
The SCIL program has brought professional learning and professional learning communities through our excellent teacher leaders. 
Sites can guide their professional learning needs and differentiate their learning for their own staffs. Administrators and SCIL have 
latitude in what the instructional foci should be the year, and grade levels/departments can collaborate in their PLCs to share effective 
strategies based on the analysis of student work. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement 
The effectiveness of the SCIL teams currently varies from site to site. We are in conversation about some changes and/or 
modifications to the SCIL structure to allow for more differentiation by both grade span and content area in professional development, 
depending on the individual needs of the teachers at each site. A slight reorganization of the structure of SCIL would allow for more 
teachers to be involved to be recognized leaders in a greater range of content areas. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) are constantly evaluating student learning and the effectiveness of the instruction. High 
functioning PLCs have the greatest impact. Student performance on collaboratively identified learning goals is the direct effect of 
PLCs. 
 
        
Secondary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas 
.2 FTE at each middle school for a math intervention class 
 
Background 
While both middle schools have been able to implement Tier 2 Math Interventions (Math Plus), they have not yet had the funds to 
implement Tier 3 Math Interventions for students in great need of math support. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
These Tier 3 Math Interventions will be intensive support classes focused on building students mathematics skills in their area of 
need. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
MAP Growth & CAASPP growth 
 
        
Secondary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas 


209 of 778







Page 66 of 174


.2 School Connectedness FTE at each middle school 
 
Background 
As we have identified a need to better monitor student engagement and connectedness to school, each middle school is looking at 
certificated staff to support student engagement.  Each site will work with the leadership team to identify the counseling / activities 
focus that will best meet site needs.  Each position will collect data on the engagement of all student groups with a particular focus on 
English Learners, Low Income Students and Foster Youth. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
The purpose of the program is to better engage and connect students to school.  This personnel resource will help develop full 
programs at each respective site in collaboration with site staffs. 
 
Strengths of the Program 
As programs are developed this spring and summer, an update will be provided to the Board on each site’s specific program goals. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement 
Program needs will be evaluated and reported in the first year of implementation. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
Specific site evaluation criteria will be established and monitored by each middle school.  All sites will be assessing increased 
participation in co-curricular programming and increase metrics for District Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school 
environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
        
Secondary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas 
.1 FTE increase in FTE for MS School Community Coordinators (increase to .6 from .5) 
 
Background 
School Community Coordinators 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
The purpose of the school community coordinator is to support access to the school for families and to support linking families to 
community resources. 
 
Strengths of the Program 
School community coordinators are the only access to the school for many of our monolingual Spanish speaking parents.  This 
position provides translation, interpretation and access to all school to home communications, school events, parent conferences and 


210 of 778







Page 67 of 174


for information about classroom curriculum and student progress.  School community coordinators also assist school leaders with 
home visits and outreach. 
 
Our school community coordinators connect families with community resources, helping them fill out forms to access health care, free 
and reduced lunch, scholarships and find support services for individual family needs.  This year, they are instrumental in 
implementing the new online enrollment program.  Further, our school community coordinators serve as liaisons for homeless and 
foster youth services. 
 
As we have held parent leader meetings and other stakeholder forums, parents have consistently noted the importance of the school 
community coordinators.  At the most recent parent leader meeting with the Superintendent, parents noted the crucial role community 
coordinators play in parent engagement. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement 
Our school community coordinators would benefit from continued on-going training and professional development.  Currently, they 
collaborate monthly at a job-alike meeting and work align practices and services to support all students. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
The school community coordinators have been in place for many years.  We piloted a log of contacts and services this year.  It will be 
fully implemented in the coming year. Further, our parent surveys provide feedback on the services and supports that they provide. 
        
Secondary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas 
.4 FTE at both Harbor & Soquel, .2 at Ark and .17 at SCHS for Math and/or Literacy based academic interventions 
 
Background 
All three comprehensive high schools are currently implementing math interventions.  Two of the three high schools are also 
implementing Tier 3 literacy interventions.  Data on the flexible Tier 2 math interventions has been positive.  We have more students 
successfully completing math courses. 
 
Student achievement data illustrates a need for more intervention courses to support student success.  Allocations of FTE were 
differentiated based on site achievement data.  Each site will build courses to address specific academic needs. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
These Tier 2 and 3 interventions will focus on building students’ mathematics and literacy skills in their areas of need. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
MAP Growth & CAASPP growth 
 
        


211 of 778







Page 68 of 174


Secondary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas 
.4 FTE SCHS & Soquel School Community Coordinator to support ELs and parent access and engagement (Note: Harbor already 
has 1.0 FTE School Community Coordinator) 
 
See elementary section above on School Community Coordinators for background, purpose, goals, etc. 
 
Secondary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas 
SCIL Stipends moved from Title 1 and Title 2 to LCFF budget because of reductions to the Title 2 budget. 
 
See elementary section above on SCIL Stipends being moved from Title 1 and Title 2 to LCFF budget. 
 
        
The following actions or expenditures are being removed from the 2017-18 LCAP: 
 
Elementary Positions to Stop Funding 
1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach 
1.0 FTE Elementary ELIRT (This position is currently funded from a portion of Title I) 
 
Background 
We are in our third year of having content based instructional coaches. We added instructional coaches to our district team when we 
had some additional funds coming to our district due to the shift in funding when we moved to the Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF). Instructional coaching was desired because it is a high impact research based educational practice when implemented well. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
To provide instructional support in the areas of mathematics and English Language Development to all elementary teachers, as both 
math and supporting our English Learners to be more academically successful are areas of great need in both elementary and 
secondary, as indicated by our CAASPP scores. 
 
Strength of the Program 
Teachers who worked with our district math coach gave very positive feedback. Also, the math coach and ELIRT worked together to 
deliver district elementary math PD. Each session focused on mathematical concepts, formative assessment, re-engagement in 
learning, and language routines in mathematics to support our English Learners and other learners. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement and Rationale for Proposed Change 
Having one math coach for all teachers in the elementary district did not provide many teachers the opportunity to work one-on-one 
with the math coach. Also, our coaching program did not have a systematic way for coaching teachers. It was up to teachers to 
volunteer and request to work with the math coach, which resulted in random samplings of teachers working with each of the 
coaches. 


212 of 778







Page 69 of 174


 
In researching effective instructional coaching models and working with districts that have implemented effective elementary 
instructional coaching models (yielding strong student achievement scores, especially when looking at their subgroups), we noticed 
several trends. One trend in these effective elementary instructional coaching models is that the instructional coach was connected to 
a site and thus a part of a school’s staff. This seems to be essential in order to be more systematic about supporting teachers 
(working with all teachers at a school throughout the year). In addition, when the coach was part of the school staff, the coach was 
seen as part of the team, and as a result there was high relation trust between the coach and teachers. 
 
In addition, another trend in effective elementary instructional coaching programs is that the focus of the coaching was on high 
impact, evidence based instruction that impacted all content areas and was not focused on a specific content area. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
We are using a coaching survey with all teachers that work with an instructional coach. We are also using MAP and CAASPP scores 
as an indicator of the success of our current Instructional Coaching Program. While the survey data is very positive, the last three 
years of our elementary district CAASPP data indicates that we are not yet seeing the impact of instructional coaching that we desire. 
 
        
Elementary Position to Stop Funding 
1.0 FTE District Technology Coach (.5 FTE Elementary & .5 FTE Secondary) 
 
Background 
We are in year 3 of having a District Technology Coach. The Technology coach is split between elementary (.5 FTE) and secondary 
(.5 FTE). Thus, this coach serves all teachers in the district. This position was created as we had an increasing need for teachers to 
better utilize and implement the instructional technology tools available to them. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
To support the infusion of education related technology into the classroom to enhance student engagement and relevance to 
learning. 
 
Strengths of the Program 
As we moved to Illuminate, our new student information system and data management system, this year, the District Technology 
Coach has been instrumental in training teachers on how to take attendance, enter grades, etc. The Technology Coach has also 
been instrumental in creating reports in Illuminate for gathering data more efficiently, and has also been the one to enter the district 
elementary report card and entering the district middle school School Wide Writing Assessments. In addition, the Technology Coach 
has run Google University trainings for teachers, and as a result we have had a number of teachers receive their Google Certification. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement 


213 of 778







Page 70 of 174


The Technology Coach position has ended up doing a lot of behind the scenes tech work with Illuminate, which could easily live 
within the realm of the technology department. This position does not need to be a teacher, an instructional coach, and could be 
handled by our new Systems Support Specialist. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
As we used data to identify our four key focus areas, technology integration did not rise to the top of identified needs.  We still have 
stipended technology teacher leads at each school site -- 1 per elementary and middle school and two at each high school.  These 
technology leads will continue to support technology integration at school sites. 
 
        
Elementary Positions to Stop Funding 
1.5 FTE PIP (Primary Intervention Program) Child Aide 
Targeted students-students with mild to moderate school adjustment concerns grades TK-5 in the comprehensive elementary 
schools. 
At least 96 students will be served in the 2017-18 school year. In the past the student demographics have averaged 52% Hispanic, 
41% white, 7% other. Foster and homeless youth are also a priority for this program 
 
Program purpose and goals 
The PIP program is designed to provide support to students who are having some form of difficulty in adjusting to school. 
 
Strengths of the program 
The data has shown that the students served in the program improve on teacher rating scales of school adjustment. The data also 
shows few students who are served in the program go on to need other social and emotional supports including and SSTs. 
 
Program needs for improvement 
Further research could be conducted to compare outcomes for those selected for PIP who do not receive permission to participate 
with those who participate. This research could illuminate the value added of the PIP program. 
 
PIP was established before we began our elementary counseling program, second step curriculum, Positive Behavior Interventions 
and Support program and group counseling interventions.  We have many more systems and supports in elementary school for our 
elementary students with mild and moderate needs.  The needs of our students and staff have changed. 
 
As PIP was designed to target mild to moderate school adjustment ratings, many of the behavioral challenges our elementary sites 
are facing are beyond the scope of the PIP program. Elementary staffs are requesting support for more severe behavioral 
challenges. 
Process for developing program 
The program was originally developed in our district in the 1990s through a California Department of Mental Health grant. It has been 
continued each year through various funding sources. 


214 of 778







Page 71 of 174


 
Evaluation Criteria 
The program is evaluated using the Participant Data Instrument (PDI) as well as feedback from teachers, principals and counselors. 
Teachers rate student change in six areas on a scale of -3 to +3. The chart shows the results for 94 students served. The majority of 
change as rated by the teachers is between +1 and +2. 
 
 
        
Elementary Program to Stop Funding 
Elementary Summer School 
 
Background 
Elementary Summer School has been offered in Santa Cruz with a variety of time frames, formats, curricular foci, and grade spans 
targeted. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
For the last many years, the focus of summer school has been for remediation for students who are not successful in the regular 
school program. Each year,  the focus has varied: literacy, mathematics, science, physical education, etc. We have not had the 
resources to offer an enrichment summer school program for at least 10 years. 
 
Strengths of the Program 
Summer school is a way to keep children engaged and connected to school during the summer months. Summer school also 
provides a good introduction to the profession for both new teachers and new administrators, and also offers veteran teachers a paid 
opportunity to experiment with new programs and or innovations. Summer school is also able to be a site for seamless summer 
feeding with our food services department to provide a nutritious lunch daily during the program. 
 
Program needs for Improvement 
Despite the benefits that summer school is able to offer, it has been difficult to measure the effect size on actual student learning in 
our various summer school programs. John Hattie’s research on effect size gives summer school an effect size of .23, slightly greater 
than class size reduction (.21) and slightly behind that of exercise and relaxation (.26) However, in order to use our resources wisely 
to have the greatest impact on student learning, it falls far below such practices as teacher-student relationships (.52), feedback (.70), 
teacher clarity (.72), RtI (1.29),  and finally collective teacher efficacy (1.57). 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
Evaluation criteria vary according to the design of the program, depending on the purpose and intention of the program.  As we have 
tracked data on students participating in various summer school program over the years, the impact has been limited.  The last two 
years attendance  programs have been very small - in 2016 and 2017, 104 and 67 students were served, respectively. 
 


215 of 778







Page 72 of 174


        
Secondary Programs/Positions to Stop Funding 
1.0 FTE Secondary Math Coach 
 
Background 
We are in our first year of having a full time secondary district math coach. Instructional coaching was desired because it is a high 
impact research based educational practice when implemented well, and we have a great need to increase our student achievement 
in mathematics. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
To provide instructional support in the areas of mathematics all secondary math teachers with a specific focus on supporting the 
implementation of our newly adopted high school mathematics curriculum, College Preparatory Mathematics (CPM). 
 
Strength of the Program 
Teachers who worked with our district secondary math coach gave very positive feedback. Our secondary math coach was 
specifically able to provide intensive support to Harbor High’s new math teachers. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement and Rationale for Proposed Change 
Because Soquel High and Santa Cruz High both have math focused Response to Intervention Coordinators who provide great 
instructional support to their respective math departments, there was not as great a need for a district math coach at these sites. 
Harbor recognized the need to have a math focused Response to Intervention Coordinator, and has hired one for the 2018-19 school 
year. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
We are using a coaching survey with all teachers that work with an instructional coach. 
 
        
Input from all stakeholder meetings and responses to surveys were presented to the Board of Trustees in the spring semester and 
were reviewed again at our LCAP public hearing on June 13, 2018. On June 20, 2018 the Board of Trustees voted to approve the 
LCAP.        


         
 


216 of 778







Page 73 of 174


Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 


 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 


Goal 1 
All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        


X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #1        
 
Identified Need: 
College and Career Readiness EAP Scores 2015-16 English Language Arts 22% college ready; Mathematics 14% college ready 
 
Common Core aligned instruction in math, ELA/ELD, and NGSS professional development and coaching, including scaffolding for 
English Learners, low income, foster youth, and students with disabilities is not fully in place at 100% of district schools. 
 
College and Career Ready 
53% of all 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements 2014-15; 54% of all 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements 2015-16. 
 
35% of LI 12th-grade meet A-G requirements 2014-15; 39% of LI 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements 2015-16. 
 
8% of EL 12th-grade meet A-G requirements 2014-15; 7% of EL 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements 2015-16 
 


217 of 778







Page 74 of 174


Cohort graduation rate for 2013-14 = 89.8%; Cohort graduation rate for 2015-16 = 92.5% 
 
High School dropout rate for 2013-14 = 4.7%; High School dropout rate for 2014-15 = 4.2% 
 
AP & Honors Course Enrollment 2016-17 - duplicated count 
All Students                              2,294 
Hispanic / Latino                       597 
Low Income                              575 
Students with Disabilities         46 
 
34% of the class of 2015 were rated prepared on the new state dashboard College and Career Readiness Indicator. 
 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


EAP Scores         2015-16 
 
ELA  22% College 
Ready 
Math 14% College 
Ready 
 
 


 Increase college 
readiness by 5% in ELA 
and Math 
 
2016-17 cohort 
 
ELA  27% College 
Ready - We met our 
goal on the EAP in ELA, 
by increasing 5%. 
 
Math 12% College 
Ready - We did not met 
our goal on the EAP in 
Math. We decreased 
2%. 
 


 Increase college 
readiness by 5% in ELA 
and Math 


 Increase college 
readiness b y 5% in ELA 
and Math 


A-G rates         2015-16 Graduates 
 


 Target 5% increase for 
each student sub group 
 


 Target 5% for each 
student sub group 


 Target 5% increase for 
each student sub group 


218 of 778







Page 75 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


All Students                              
54% 
Hispanic / Latino                     
38% 
African American                     
56% 
English Learners                       
7% 
RFEP                                         
56% 
Low Income                              
39% 
Students with 
Disabilities       12% 
 
 
 


A-G rates for 2016-17 
Graduates 
 
All Students                 
61% (increase of 7%) 
Hispanic / Latino         
44% (increase of 6%) 
African American        
43% (decrease of 7%) 
English Learners        
13% (increase of 6%) 
RFEP                          
45% (decrease of 11%) 
Low Income                
47% (increase of 8%) 
Students w/ Disabilities 
17 % (increase of 5%) 
 
We met our goal of 
increasing by 5% or 
more in each of our 
subgroups except for 
our African American 
subgroup and RFEP 
subgroup. 
 
 


Graduation Rate         2015-16 cohort 
 
All Students                              
92.5% 
Hispanic / Latino                     
83.4% 
English Learners                    
73.3% 
Low Income                             
89.1% 


 Target  3% increase for 
each student sub group 
 
NOT YET AVAILABLE 
 
2016-17 cohort 
 
All Students 
Hispanic / Latino 
English Learners 


 Target 3% increase for 
each student sub group 


 Target 3% increase for 
each student sub group 


219 of 778







Page 76 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


Students with 
Disabilities      83.7% 
 
 
 
 


Low Income 
Students with 
Disabilities 
 


Dropout Rate         2015-16 cohort 
 
All Students                              
4.2% 
Hispanic / Latino                     
6.4% 
English Learners                    
15.2% 
Low Income                             
6.3% 
Students with 
Disabilities      4.7% 
 
 


 Reduce by 1% for each 
student sub group, 
reduce by 3% for ELs 
 
NOT YET AVAILABLE 
 
2016-17 cohort 
 
All Students 
Hispanic / Latino 
English Learners 
Low Income 
Students with 
Disabilities 
 


 Reduce by 1% for each 
student sub group, 
reduce by 3% for ELs 


 Reduce by 1% for each 
student sub group, 
reduce by 3% for ELs 


AP and Honors 
Enrollment        


 2016-17 cohort - 
duplicated count 
All Students                              
2,294 
Hispanic / Latino                     
597 
Low Income                             
575 
Students with 
Disabilities       46 
 
 


 Increase subgroup 
participation by 5% 
 
2017-18 cohort - 
duplicated count 
 
Groups Total                    
Met Goal: 
 
All Students 2,322          
N    (increase of 1%) 
Hispanic / Latino 626      
Y    (increase of 5%) 
Low Income 577             
N    (no increase or 


 Increase subgroup 
participation by 5% 


 Increase subgroup 
participation by 5% 


220 of 778







Page 77 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


decrease) 
Students w/ Dis. 51        
Y    (increase of 11%) 
 
We met our goal of 
increasing by 5% or 
more in our Hispanic / 
Latino subgroup and 
Students with 
Disabilities subgroup 
 


College and Career 
Readiness Indicator - 
California Dashboard        


 34% of the class of 2015 
were rated prepared on 
the new state dashboard 
College and Career 
Readiness Indicator 
 


 Increase percent of 
students rated College 
and Career Ready by 
5% 
 
45.4% of the class of 
2016 were rated 
prepared on the new 
state dashboard College 
and Career Readiness 
Indicator. 
 
We met and surpassed 
our desired goal of a 5% 
increase. We increased 
11.4% on the College 
and Career Readiness 
Indicator. 
 


 Increase percent of 
students rated College 
and Career Ready by 
3% 


 Increase percent of 
students rated College 
and Career Ready by 
3% 


 


Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 


startcollapse 
Action 1 


221 of 778







Page 78 of 174


For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Counselors assist in ensuring access post-
secondary college and career 
opportunities (LCFF Supplemental, LCFF 
Base, Title 1) 
 
Provide 4 year planning workshops for all 
9th grade students 
 
Continue to implement Common Core 
Standards, following the Curriculum 
Master Plan 
 
Facilitate strategies for improving A-G 
completion rates including transcript audits 


 Counselors assist in ensuring access post-
secondary college and career 
opportunities (LCFF Supplemental, LCFF 
Base, Title 1). 
 
Provide 4 year planning workshops for all 
9th grade students. Our counselors are 
specifically focused on ensuring that our 
English Learners, Title 1 students, and 
Foster Youth have access, opportunity, 
and support in these plans so that they are 
successful in being A-G ready and able to 
take AP/Honors courses. 
 


 Counselors assist in ensuring access post-
secondary college and career 
opportunities (LCFF Supplemental, LCFF 
Base, Title 1). 
 
Provide 4 year planning workshops for all 
9th grade students. Our counselors are 
specifically focused on ensuring that our 
English Learners, Title 1 students, and 
Foster Youth have access, opportunity, 
and support in these plans so that they are 
successful in being A-G ready and able to 
take AP/Honors courses. 
 


222 of 778







Page 79 of 174


supported by the Riverside Counseling 
Collaborative 
 
Refine our articulation efforts with our 
partner school districts – Live Oak, Soquel 
and the county’s four small districts 
 
Build common assessments and adopt 
MAPS to monitor student progress on the 
standards 
 
Collaboratively determine math placement 
tools with partner districts 
 
 
        


Continue to implement Common Core 
Standards, following the Curriculum 
Master Plan. 
 
Facilitate strategies for improving A-G 
completion rates including transcript audits 
supported by the Riverside Counseling 
Collaborative. 
 
Refine our articulation efforts with our 
partner school districts – Live Oak, Soquel 
and the county’s four small districts, 
specifically monitoring our Title 1, English 
Learner, and Foster Youth needs. 
 
Use common assessments and MAP to 
monitor student progress on the 
standards, with a specific focus on English 
Learner and RFEP progress. 
 
Collaboratively determine math placement 
tools with partner districts 
 
 
 
 


Continue to implement Common Core 
Standards, following the Curriculum 
Master Plan. 
 
Facilitate strategies for improving A-G 
completion rates including transcript audits 
supported by the Riverside Counseling 
Collaborative. 
 
Refine our articulation efforts with our 
partner school districts – Live Oak, Soquel 
and the county’s four small districts, 
specifically monitoring our Title 1, English 
Learner, and Foster Youth needs. 
 
Use common assessments and MAP to 
monitor student progress on the 
standards, with a specific focus on English 
Learner and RFEP progress. 
 
Collaboratively determine math placement 
tools with partner districts 
 
 
 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        141,997  165,946  169,265 
        141,997  165,946  169,265 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        141,997  165,946  169,265 Budget 
Reference        


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.20 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .20 Monarch 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.20 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .20 Monarch 


223 of 778







Page 80 of 174


Amount        52,338  55,928  57,047 
        52,338  55,928  57,047 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        52,338  55,928  57,047 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.20 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .20 Monarch 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.20 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .20 Monarch 


Amount        141,997  146,806  149,742 
        141,997  146,806  149,742 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        141,997  146,806  149,742 Budget 
Reference        


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.00 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL  . 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.00 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL  


Amount        52,338  44,730  45,625 
        52,338  44,730  45,625 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        52,338  44,730  45,625 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.00 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL  . 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.00 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL  . 


Amount        52,437  58,254  59,419 
        52,437  58,254  59,419 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        52,437  58,254  59,419 Budget 
Reference        


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.70 FTE Total = .30 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 SCHS  & SQHS 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.70 FTE Total = .30 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 SCHS  & SQHS 


Amount        52,437  24,141  24,624 
        52,437  24,141  24,624 Source        Base  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        52,437  24,141  24,624 Budget 
Reference        


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.70 FTE Total = .30 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 SCHS  & SQHS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.70 FTE Total = .30 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 SCHS  & SQHS 


Amount        20,091     
        20,091     Source        Supplemental     
        20,091     Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 


  
 


  
 


224 of 778







Page 81 of 174


Amount        20,091     
        20,091     Source        Base     
        20,091     Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 


  
 


  
 


Amount        90,000  90,000  90,000 
        90,000  90,000  90,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        90,000  90,000  90,000 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
MAPS ASSESSMENT 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
MAPS ASSESSMENTS 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
MAPS ASSESSMENTS 


Amount          26,616  27,149 
          26,616  27,149 Source          Title I  Title I 
          26,616  27,149 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.40 FTE Total = .20 BRMS & .20 
HRHS 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
40 FTE Total = .20 BRMS & .20 
HRHS 


Amount          6,524  6,655 
          6,524  6,655 Source          Title I  Title I 
          6,524  6,655 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE Total = .20 BRMS & .20 
HRHS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE Total = .20 BRMS & .20 
HRHS 


Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


225 of 778







Page 82 of 174


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: High Schools        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Continue to work with the County Office to 
ensure a smooth transition of ROP staff to 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
Implement  new Computer Science 
pathways, support increased enrollment in 
pathway options 
        


 LCAP Supplemental: 
Continue to work with the County Office to 
ensure a smooth transition of ROP staff to 
Santa Cruz City Schools. 
 
Continue to provide Career and Technical 
Education (CTE) courses at all 
comprehensive high schools and 
Costanoa (LCFF Supplemental, LCFF 
Base, Measure O, CTEIG, Perkins). 
 
Increase number of Career Pathways at 
each comprehensive high school. 
 
Support increased enrollment and 
completion of Career Pathway options with 
an emphasis on supporting English 
Learners, Foster Youth, and Title 1 
students to have access to these courses 
and pathways. 
 
Implement the CA CTE District Self 
Assessment and use this to develop a 
comprehensive district CTE Plan. 
 


 LCAP Supplemental 
Continue to work with the County Office to 
ensure a smooth transition of ROP staff to 
Santa Cruz City Schools. 
 
Continue to provide Career and Technical 
Education (CTE) courses at all 
comprehensive high schools and 
Costanoa (LCFF Supplemental, LCFF 
Base, Measure O, CTEIG, Perkins). 
 
Increase number of Career Pathways at 
each comprehensive high school with an 
emphasis on supporting English Learners, 
Foster Youth, and Title 1 students to have 
access to these courses and pathways. 
 
Support increased enrollment and 
completion of Career Pathway options. 
 
Implement the CA CTE District Self 
Assessment and use this to develop a 
comprehensive district CTE Plan. 
 


 
226 of 778







Page 83 of 174


Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        672,351  629,203  711,253 
        672,351  629,203  711,253 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        672,351  629,203  711,253 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (3.585 FTE HRHS, 1.515 FTE 
SCHS, 3.00 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 
Costanoa) 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (3.40 FTE HRHS, 1.50 FTE 
SCHS, 2.60 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 
Costanoa) 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (3.40 FTE HRHS, 1.50 FTE 
SCHS, 2.60 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 
Costanoa) 


Amount        180,918  193,376  235,899 
        180,918  193,376  235,899 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        180,918  193,376  235,899 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (3.585 FTE HRHS, 1.515 FTE 
SCHS, 3.00 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 
Costanoa) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (3.40 FTE HRHS, 1.50 FTE 
SCHS, 2.60 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 
Costanoa) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (3.40 FTE HRHS, 1.50 FTE 
SCHS, 2.60 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 
Costanoa) 


Amount        94,386  99,301  101,287 
        94,386  99,301  101,287 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        94,386  99,301  101,287 Budget 
Reference        


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, 
.20 FTE SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa) 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, 
.20 FTE SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa) 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, 
.20 FTE SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa) 


Amount        40,654  31,576  32,208 
        40,654  31,576  32,208 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        40,654  31,576  32,208 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, 
.20 FTE SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, 
.20 FTE SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, 
.20 FTE SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa) 


227 of 778







Page 84 of 174


Amount        369,105  35,410  35,410 
        369,105  35,410  35,410 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        369,105  35,410  35,410 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
For Computer Science Pathway 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Supplies 
for Pathway's 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Supplies 
for Pathway's 


Amount          106,002   
          106,002   Source          Other   
          106,002   Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - MOU with 
COE (.40 FTE Mejia & .57 FTE 
Hess) 


  
All employees move to SCCS 


Amount          30,000  30,000 
          30,000  30,000 Source          Other  Other 
          30,000  30,000 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Software 
Licenses @ 3 HS 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Software 
Licenses @ 3 HS 


Amount          5,000   
          5,000   Source          Other  Other 
          5,000   Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 6400 EQUIPMENT 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Camera 
Equipment @ SQHS 


 6400 EQUIPMENT 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Camera 
Equipment @ SQHS 


Amount          128,000  128,000 
          128,000  128,000 Source          Other  Other 
          128,000  128,000 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 6500 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Lab 
replacements @ 2 HS 


 6500 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Lab 
replacements @ 2 HS 


228 of 778







Page 85 of 174


Amount          3,762  3,837 
          3,762  3,837 Source          Other  Other 
          3,762  3,837 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - IT Support 
at all sites 


 1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - IT Support 
at all sites 


Action 3 
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: High Schools        


 


Actions/Services 


  X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


         Continuation of above Actions/Services 
related to CTE. Not enough expenditure 
rows to accommodate.  


 Continuation of above Actions/Services 
related to CTE. Not enough expenditure 
rows to accommodate.  


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Amount          11,326  11,553 
          11,326  11,553 Source          Other  Other 
          11,326  11,553 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O @ All Sites 


 1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O @ All Sites 


Amount          2,946  3,005 
          2,946  3,005 Source          Other  Other 
          2,946  3,005 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Parcel Tax - Measure O @ All Sites 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Parcel Tax - Measure O @ All Sites 


 


229 of 778







Page 86 of 174


Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 


 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 


Goal 2 
SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social emotional 
well-being of all students.         


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        


X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #2        
 
Identified Need: 
There were 178 suspensions in 2015-16 school year and 144 suspensions during the 2016-17 school year. 
 
There were 19 expulsions in 2015-16 and 32 expulsions in the 2016 - 17 school year. 
 
Elementary chronic absenteeism rate is 13% for 2015-16. 
 
Middle School chronic absenteeism rate is 11.5% in 2015-16. 
 
High School chronic absenteeism rate is 12.5% in 2015-16. 
 
5th graders reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 65% in 2016-17 
 
7th graders reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 65% in 2016-17 
7th grade Hispanic students reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 64% in 2016-17 
 
9th graders reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 61% in 2016-17 


230 of 778







Page 87 of 174


9th grade Hispanic students reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 52% in 2016-17 
 
11th graders reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 54% in 2016-17 
11th grade Hispanic students reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 51% in 2016-17 
 
5th graders reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 59% in 2016-17 
 
7th graders reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 41% in 2016-17 
7th grade Hispanic students reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 42% in 2016-
17 
 
9th graders reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 30% in 2016-17 
9th grade Hispanic students reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 24% in 2016-
17 
 
11th graders reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 33% in 2016-17 
11th grade Hispanic students reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 29% in 
2016-17 
 
 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


Suspensions rates 
 
Expulsion rates 
 
Chronic Absenteeism 
 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey (added 2018-19) 
        


 2016-17: 
224 suspensions (in 
school and out of 
school) 
30 expulsions 
 
2016-17: 
Elementary Chronic 
Absenteeism    15.8% 
Middle School Chronic 
Absenteeism 12.9% 
High School Chronic 
Absenteeism    17.7% 


 DATA AS OF MAY 17, 
2018 
 
103 suspensions (in 
school and out of 
school) 
13 expulsions 
Elementary Chronic 
Absenteeism    13.70% 
Middle School Chronic 
Absenteeism 10.02% 
High School Chronic 
Absenteeism    14.82% 


 Reduce Suspensions by 
3% 
Reduce Expulsions by 
3% 
Reduce chronic 
absentee rate by 2% at 
each grade span 
Increase measures of 
school connectedness 
on California Healthy 
Kids Survey by 3% 
 


 Reduce Suspensions by 
3% 
Reduce Expulsions by 
3% 
Reduce chronic 
absentee rate by 2% at 
each grade span 
Increase measures of 
school connectedness 
on California Healthy 
Kids Survey by 3% 
 


231 of 778







Page 88 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


 
2016-17 
5th graders reporting 
high levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 65% 
 
7th graders reporting 
high levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 65% 
7th grade Hispanic 
students reporting high 
levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 64% 
 
9th graders reporting 
high levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 61% 
9th grade Hispanic 
students reporting high 
levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 52% 
 
11th graders reporting 
high levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 54% 


 


232 of 778







Page 89 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


11th grade Hispanic 
students reporting high 
levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 51% 
 
5th graders reporting 
High in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 59% 
 
7th graders reporting 
High in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 41% 
7th grade Hispanic 
students reporting High 
in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 42% 
 
9th graders reporting 
High in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 30% 
9th grade Hispanic 
students reporting High 
in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 24% 
 


233 of 778







Page 90 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


11th graders reporting 
High in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 33% 
11th grade Hispanic 
students reporting High 
in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 29% 
 
 


 


Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 


startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        


 


Actions/Services 


234 of 778







Page 91 of 174


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Counselors (See Goal #1) 
Youth Services Interns to provide social 
emotional counseling and supports 
Collaboration with County Office of 
Education on Foster Youth Services 
 
        


 Counselors (See Goal #1) 
Social Work / MFT Interns to provide 
social emotional counseling and supports 
with a particular focus on unduplicated 
students' needs 
Collaboration with County Office of 
Education on Foster Youth Services 
 
 


 Counselors (See Goal #1) 
Social Work / MFT Interns to provide 
social emotional counseling and supports 
with a particular focus on unduplicated 
students' needs 
Collaboration with County Office of 
Education on Foster Youth Services 
 
 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        24,000  17,500  17,500 
        24,000  17,500  17,500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        24,000  17,500  17,500 Budget 
Reference        


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
SCCCS Youth Services (8K Elem & 
16K Secondary) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
SCCCS Youth Services (6,500K 
Elem & 11K Secondary) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
SCCCS Youth Services (6,500K 
Elem & 11K Secondary) 


Amount        10,000  10,000  10,000 
        10,000  10,000  10,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        10,000  10,000  10,000 Budget 
Reference        


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Foster Youth Services (3,300 E & 
6,700 S) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Foster Youth Services (3,300 E & 
6,700 S) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Foster Youth Services (3,300 E & 
6,700 S) 


235 of 778







Page 92 of 174


Amount        1,000  1,000  1,000 
        1,000  1,000  1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        1,000  1,000  1,000 Budget 
Reference        


5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES 
Secondary 


 5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES 
Secondary 


 5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES 
Secondary 


Amount        2,500  1,000  1,000 
        2,500  1,000  1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        2,500  1,000  1,000 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
500 E & 2,000 S 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
500 E & 500 S 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
500 E & 500 S 


Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           Specific Grade Spans: TK - 5        
 [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide          Specific Schools: Elementary Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: TK-5        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X New Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 


236 of 778







Page 93 of 174


Primary Intervention Program for each 
intervention and social emotional support        


 Positive Behavior Intervention and 
Supports Aides will be available campus 
wide, but will particularly target needs for 
unduplicated pupils 


 Positive Behavior Intervention and 
Supports Aides will be available campus 
wide, but will particularly target needs for 
unduplicated pupils 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        53,986  59,388  60,576 
        53,986  59,388  60,576 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        53,986  59,388  60,576 Budget 
Reference        


2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 


Amount        5,142  5,612  5,724 
        5,142  5,612  5,724 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        5,142  5,612  5,724 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 


Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 Specific Student Groups: Students needing Tier 3 Interventions 
and Supports        


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]         


  Specific Grade Spans: Secondary Schools        
 [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


237 of 778







Page 94 of 174


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)          Specific Grade Spans: 6th - 12th grade        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Social Workers to remove obstacles to 
school success focused primarily on 
unduplicated pupils and their families        


 Social Workers to remove obstacles to 
school success focused primarily on 
unduplicated pupils and their families 


 Social Workers to remove obstacles to 
school success focused primarily on 
unduplicated pupils and their families 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        149,145  157,266  160,411 
        149,145  157,266  160,411 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        149,145  157,266  160,411 Budget 
Reference        


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 


Amount        53,227  59,374  60,561 
        53,227  59,374  60,561 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        53,227  59,374  60,561 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 


Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           Specific Grade Spans: TK-5        
 [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
238 of 778







Page 95 of 174


 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Schoolwide         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: TK - 5        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Part-Time Positive Behavior Intervention 
and Support Coach         


 Full-Time Positive Behavior Intervention 
and Support Coach / Behaviorist will 
particularly target needs for unduplicated 
pupils 


 Full-Time Positive Behavior Intervention 
and Support Coach / Behaviorist will 
particularly target needs for unduplicated 
pupils 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        24,595  84,348  86,035 
        24,595  84,348  86,035 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        24,595  84,348  86,035 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE PBIS/Behavior Specialist 
Coach Elementary 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE PBIS/Behavior Specialist 
Coach Elementary 


Amount        4,367  23,290  23,756 
        4,367  23,290  23,756 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        4,367  23,290  23,756 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE PBIS/Behavior Specialist 
Coach Elementary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE PBIS/Behavior Specialist 
Coach Elementary 


239 of 778







Page 96 of 174


Action 5 
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Schoolwide          Specific Grade Spans: High School 9-12        


 


Actions/Services 


  X New Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


         .4 Activities Director at each 
comprehensive high school and .1 at 
Costanoa Continuation High School to 
promote school connectedness for all 
students and to promote and monitor 
school connectedness for English 
Learners, Foster Youth and Low Income 
students 


 .4 Activities Director at each 
comprehensive high school and .1 at 
Costanoa Continuation High School to 
promote school connectedness for all 
students and to promote and monitor 
school connectedness for English 
Learners, Foster Youth and Low Income 
students 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Amount          99,971  101,970 
          99,971  101,970 Source          Supplemental  Supplemental 
          99,971  101,970 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
1.30 FTE Total = .40 @ HRHS, 
SCHS & SQHS, .10 @ Costanoa 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
1.30 FTE Total = .40 @ HRHS, 
SCHS & SQHS, .10 @ Costanoa 


Amount          28,925  29,504 
          28,925  29,504 Source          Supplemental  Supplemental 
          28,925  29,504 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.30 FTE Total = .40 @ HRHS, 
SCHS & SQHS, .10 @ Costanoa 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.30 FTE Total = .40 @ HRHS, 
SCHS & SQHS, .10 @ Costanoa 


240 of 778







Page 97 of 174


Action 6 
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Schoolwide         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: Middle School 


Grades 6 - 8        
 


Actions/Services 


  X New Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


         LCFF Supplemental 
Add an additional .2 counseling support at 
both middle schools to ensure students 
social emotional needs are addressed and 
to work to better connect 6th - 8th grade 
students to school with a strategic focus 
on connecting our English Learners, 
Foster Youth and Low Income students. 
 
Title I 
.2 Activities Director for Branciforte Middle 
School to promote school connectedness 
for all students and to promote and 
monitor school connectedness for English 
Learners, Foster Youth and Low Income 
students 
 


 LCFF Supplemental 
Add an additional .2 counseling support at 
both middle schools to ensure students 
social emotional needs are addressed and 
to work to better connect 6th - 8th grade 
students to school with a strategic focus 
on connecting our English Learners, 
Foster Youth and Low Income students. 
 
Title I 
.2 Activities Director for Branciforte Middle 
School to promote school connectedness 
for all students and to promote and 
monitor school connectedness for English 
Learners, Foster Youth and Low Income 
students 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 


241 of 778







Page 98 of 174


Amount          35,861  36,579 
          35,861  36,579 Source          Supplemental  Supplemental 
          35,861  36,579 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.40 FTE Total = .20 @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.40 FTE Total = .20 @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


Amount          15,036  15,336 
          15,036  15,336 Source          Supplemental  Supplemental 
          15,036  15,336 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE Total = .20 @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE Total = .20 @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


Amount          13,587  13,859 
          13,587  13,859 Source          Title I  Title I 
          13,587  13,859 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.20 FTE @ BRMS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.20 FTE @ BRMS 


Amount          4,138  4,221 
          4,138  4,221 Source          Title I  Title I 
          4,138  4,221 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.20 FTE @ BRMS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.20 FTE @ BRMS 


Action 7 
 Specific Student Groups: Homeless Students TK-12        
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]         


  [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        


 


Actions/Services 


  X New Action         X Unchanged Action        
242 of 778







Page 99 of 174


 


         Title I: 
Set aside for materials and resources to 
support homeless students 
 
Boys and Girls Club enrollment for 
summer for elementary homeless students 
 
Change bus route to include direct pick up 
at shelter for homeless students 
 


 Title I: 
Set aside for materials and resources to 
support homeless students 
 
Boys and Girls Club enrollment for 
summer for elementary homeless students 
 
Change bus route to include direct pick up 
at shelter for homeless students 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Amount          11,219  11,219 
          11,219  11,219 Source          Title I  Title I 
          11,219  11,219 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
2,807 Elementary / 8,412 Secondary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
2,807 Elementary / 8,412 Secondary 


 


243 of 778







Page 100 of 174


Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 


 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 


Goal 3 
We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS student community         


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        


X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #3        
 
Identified Need: 
The data is clear. Our Low Income (LI), English Language Learners (ELs), Foster Youth, Students With Disabilities (SWD), and 
Reclassified English Language Learners (RFEP) are the students in our system who continue to need the most support. English 
Language Learners, Low Income Students and Students with disabilities are the student groups for which performance levels were 
below the “all student” performance in both English Language Arts and Mathematics as measured by the CAASPP. 
 
2016 CAASPP Results Met or Exceeded Standards 
 
5th Grade ELA 
ALL           64% 
ELs           40% 
LI               38% 
SWD         30% 
RFEP        50% 
 
5th Grade Math 


244 of 778







Page 101 of 174


ALL           48% 
ELs            28% 
LI               18% 
SWD         26% 
RFEP       14% 
 
8th Grade ELA 
ALL            65% 
ELs            41% 
LI               46% 
SWD         24% 
RFEP        47% 
 
8th Grade Math 
ALL           51% 
ELs           35% 
LI               32% 
SWD         20% 
RFEP        30% 
 
11th Grade ELA 
ALL          46% 
ELs          41% 
LI              39% 
SWD        22% 
RFEP       46% 
 
11th Grade Math 
ALL         44% 
ELs          6% 
LI            24% 
SWD        8% 
RFEP       26% 
 
The percent of elementary ELs making one year’s growth in English = 58%  in 2016-17 (AMAO #1). 
The percent of secondary ELs making one year’s growth in English = 60% in 2016-17 (AMAO #1). 
We will no longer be able to provide updated AMAOs because of the elimination of the CELDT Assessment. 
 


245 of 778







Page 102 of 174


In 2017, 17% of our Ever ELs were identified as ALTEL (At risk of becoming a long term English Learner or a Long Term English 
Learner (LTEL).  In 2018, this number was reduced to 13% of our Ever ELs. 
 
9th Grade Integrated Course 1 (Algebra 1) pass rate for 2015-16 is 76% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


SBAC/CAASPP met or 
exceeds standards in 
ELA and Math 
 
9th Grade Integrated 
Course 1 Pass Rate 
 
Percent of Ever ELs 
who have been in our 
schools for more than 6 
years who are still ELs 
        


 SBAC/CAASPP Met 
standards: 
 
The percentage of EL, 
LI, and SWD students 
who scored Met or 
Exceeds Standard in 
ELA and Math in 5th, 
8th and 11th grade are 
listed below: 
 
2016 CAASPP Results 
Met or Exceeded 
Standards 
 
5th Grade ELA 
ALL           64% 
ELs           40% 
LI               38% 
SWD         30% 
RFEP        50% 
 
5th Grade Math 
ALL           48% 
ELs            28% 
LI               18% 


 The percentage of 
students in targeted sub 
groups scoring met or 
exceeds standards on 
the SBAC/CAASPP will 
increase by 5% 
 
The rate of 9th-graders 
passing Algebra 1 with a 
C- or better on the first 
try will increase by 3% 
from 79% to 81%. 
 
We will reduce the 
percent of Ever ELs who 
have been in our 
schools for more than 6 
years who are still ELs 
by 5%. 
 
SBAC/CAASPP Met 
standards: 
 
The percentage of EL, 
LI, SWD, & RFEP 
students who scored 


 The percentage of 
students in targeted sub 
groups scoring met or 
exceeds standards on 
the SBAC/CAASPP will 
increase by 3% 
 
The rate of 9th-graders 
passing Algebra 1 with a 
C- or better on the first 
try will increase by 3% 
from 81% to 84%. 
 
We will reduce the 
percent of Ever ELs who 
have been in our 
schools for more than 6 
years who are still ELs 
by 3%. 
 
 


 The percentage of 
students in targeted sub 
groups scoring met or 
exceeds standards on 
the SBAC/CAASPP will 
increase by 3% 
 
The rate of 9th-graders 
passing Algebra 1 with a 
C- or better on the first 
try will increase by 3% 
from 84% to 87%. 
 
We will reduce the 
percent of Ever ELs who 
have been in our 
schools for more than 6 
years who are still ELs 
by 3%. 
 
 


246 of 778







Page 103 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


SWD         26% 
RFEP       14% 
 
8th Grade ELA 
ALL            65% 
ELs            41% 
LI               46% 
SWD         24% 
RFEP        47% 
 
8th Grade Math 
ALL           51% 
ELs           35% 
LI               32% 
SWD         20% 
RFEP        30% 
 
11th Grade ELA 
ALL          46% 
ELs          41% 
LI              39% 
SWD        22% 
RFEP       46% 
 
11th Grade Math 
ALL         44% 
ELs          6% 
LI            24% 
SWD        8% 
RFEP       26% 
 
 
The rate of 9th-graders 
passing Algebra 1 with a 
C- or better on the first 
try will increase by 3% 
from 76% to 79%. 


Met or Exceeds 
Standard in ELA and 
Math in 5th, 8th and 
11th grade are listed 
below: 
 
2017 CAASPP Results 
Met or Exceeded 
Standards 
 
 
5th Grade ELA 
ALL           60% 
ELs           11%  - Goal 
Not Met 
LI               38% - Goal 
Not Met 
SWD         29%  - Goal 
Not Met 
RFEP        57%- Goal 
Met 
 
5th Grade Math 
ALL           48% 
ELs           3%   - Goal 
Not Met 
LI               23% - Goal 
Met 
SWD         31% - Goal 
Not Met 
RFEP        46% - Goal 
Met 
 
8th Grade ELA 
ALL            55% 
ELs            8% - Goal 
Not Met 


247 of 778







Page 104 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


 
In 2017, 17% of our 
Ever ELs were identified 
as ALTEL or LTEL (At 
risk of becoming a long 
term English Learner or 
a Long Term English 
Learner (LTEL). 
 
 
 
 
 


LI               30%- Goal 
Not Met 
SWD         24%- Goal 
Not Met 
RFEP        32%- Goal 
Not Met 
 
8th Grade Math 
ALL           42% 
ELs           5% - Goal 
Not Met 
LI               20%- Goal 
Not Met 
SWD         16%- Goal 
Not Met 
RFEP        21%- Goal 
Not Met 
 
11th Grade ELA 
ALL          59% 
ELs          3% - Goal Not 
Met 
LI              41%- Goal 
Not Met 
SWD        17%- Goal 
Not Met 
RFEP       42% - Goal 
Not Met 
 
11th Grade Math 
ALL         34% 
ELs          2%- Goal Not 
Met 
LI            18%- Goal Not 
Met 
SWD        3%- Goal Not 
Met 


248 of 778







Page 105 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


RFEP       24% - Goal 
Not Met 
 
The rate of 9th-graders 
passing Algebra 1 with a 
C- or better on the first 
try increased by 11% 
from 76% to 87%. Goal 
Met & Exceeded 
 
In 2018, this percentage 
of Ever ELs identified as 
ALTEL or LTEL (At risk 
of becoming a long term 
English Learner or Long 
Term English Learner) 
was reduced to 13% of 
our Ever ELs. 
 


 


Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 


startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


249 of 778







Page 106 of 174


X English Learners         X LEA-wide          Specific Grade Spans: TK-5        
 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
The overall implementation of the actions 
and services to achieve the articulated 
goals include: 
 
*Elementary English Learner Instructional 
Coach 
*RTI Coordinators Elementary - Walk to 
Read 
*Instruction Techs and Learning Assistants 
for Walk to Read and EL Support 
* EL Task Force Implementation and 
Progress Monitoring of EL Master Plan 
 
Elementary Site discretionary funds 
address various goals supporting targeted 
services and materials for unduplicated 
students as identified by individual sites 
and approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
        


 The overall implementation of the actions 
and services to achieve the articulated 
goals include: 
 
*RTI Coordinators Elementary - Walk to 
Read 
*Instruction Techs and Learning Assistants 
for Walk to Read and EL Support 
*EL Task Force Implementation and 
Progress Monitoring of EL Master Plan 
 
Elementary Site targeted support funds 
address various goals supporting targeted 
services and materials for unduplicated 
students as identified by individual sites 
and approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
 


 The overall implementation of the actions 
and services to achieve the articulated 
goals include: 
 
*RTI Coordinators Elementary - Walk to 
Read 
*Instruction Techs and Learning Assistants 
for Walk to Read and EL Support 
*EL Task Force Implementation and 
Progress Monitoring of EL Master Plan 
 
Elementary Site targeted support funds 
address various goals supporting targeted 
services and materials for unduplicated 
students as identified by individual sites 
and approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 


250 of 778







Page 107 of 174


Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        339,012  343,427  350,296 
        339,012  343,427  350,296 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        339,012  343,427  350,296 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL   


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 


Amount        108,183  110,515  112,721 
        108,183  110,515  112,721 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        108,183  110,515  112,721 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 


Amount        55,777     
        55,777     Source        Supplemental     
        55,777     Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 


  
 


  
 


Amount        14,035     
        14,035     Source        Supplemental     
        14,035     Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 


  
 


  
 


Amount        35,726     
        35,726     Source        Title I     
        35,726     Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 


  
 


  
. 


251 of 778







Page 108 of 174


Amount        10,475     
        10,475     Source        Title I     
        10,475     Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 


  
 


  
 


Amount        182,310  169,505  172,895 
        182,310  169,505  172,895 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        182,310  169,505  172,895 Budget 
Reference        


2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants & 
Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 


 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
5.1250 FTE - Learning Assistants & 
Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 


 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
5.1250 FTE - Learning Assistants & 
Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 


Amount        30,566  30,362  30,965 
        30,566  30,362  30,965 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        30,566  30,362  30,965 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants & 
Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
5.1250 FTE - Learning Assistants & 
Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
5.1250 FTE - Learning Assistants & 
Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 


Amount        95,884  121,237  121,237 
        95,884  121,237  121,237 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        95,884  121,237  121,237 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
All Elementary Sties - Site 
Discretionary  


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocations - 
Elementary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
All Elementary Sties - Site 
Discretionary  


Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


X Students with Disabilities         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: TK - 5        


 


OR 
 


252 of 778







Page 109 of 174


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Elementary Summer School Interventions         Discontinued Elementary Summer School 


Interventions for the 2018-19 school year. 
 Discontinued Elementary Summer School 


Interventions for the 2018-19 school year. 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        5,000     
        5,000     Source        Supplemental     
        5,000     Budget 
Reference        


1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - 
EWA 
Elementary Summer School 
Principal 


  
 


  
 


Amount        11,000     
        11,000     Source        Supplemental     
        11,000     Budget 
Reference        


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Elementary Summer School 
Teachers 


  
 


  
 


253 of 778







Page 110 of 174


Amount        6,400     
        6,400     Source        Supplemental     
        6,400     Budget 
Reference        


2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
Elementary Summer School - Instr 
Aides & Clerical Support 


  
 


  
 


Amount        6,600     
        6,600     Source        Supplemental     
        6,600     Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
All Elementary Benefits for 
Certificated & Classified 


  
 


  
 


Amount        1,000     
        1,000     Source        Supplemental     
        1,000     Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Elementary Summer School 
Supplies 


  
 


  
 


Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: 6-12        


 


254 of 778







Page 111 of 174


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Secondary RtI Coordinators 
Soquel High Counseling for Attendance 
Intervention 
Bilingual Math Tutors 
Math Coaches 
Advance via Individual Determination for 
first generation college bound and 
traditionally underrepresented students 
(Stipends;,Sections, Tutors; and Field 
Trips) 
        


 Secondary RtI Coordinators 
Soquel High Counseling for Attendance 
Intervention 
Bilingual Math Tutors 
Math Coaches 
Advance via Individual Determination for 
first generation college bound and 
traditionally underrepresented students 
(Stipends;,Sections, Tutors; and Field 
Trips) 
 


 Secondary RtI Coordinators 
Soquel High Counseling for Attendance 
Intervention 
Bilingual Math Tutors 
Math Coaches 
Advance via Individual Determination for 
first generation college bound and 
traditionally underrepresented students 
(Stipends;,Sections, Tutors; and Field 
Trips) 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        421,720  432,873  441,531 
        421,720  432,873  441,531 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        421,720  432,873  441,531 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary 


Amount        121,500  138,307  141,073 
        121,500  138,307  141,073 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        121,500  138,307  141,073 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary 


255 of 778







Page 112 of 174


Amount        14,695   26,400   26,400 
        14,695   26,400   26,400 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        14,695   26,400   26,400 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.20 FTE - Math Coach - Secondary 


 1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-EWA 
Counseling & Attendance - SQHS - 
Secondary 


 1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-EWA 
 Counseling & Attendance - SQHS - 
Secondary 


Amount        12,891  5,156  5,166 
        12,891  5,156  5,166 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        12,891  5,156  5,166 Budget 
Reference        


1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-EWA 
Counseling & Attendance - SQHS - 
Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Counseling & Attendance - SQHS - 
Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Counseling & Attendance - SQHS - 
Secondary 


Amount        60,354  72,141  72,141 
        60,354  72,141  72,141 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        60,354  72,141  72,141 Budget 
Reference        


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Bilingual Math Tutors & Homework 
Club @ HRHS, SCHS, SQHS, 
Costanoa - Secondary 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Bilingual Math Tutors & Homework 
Club @ HRHS, SCHS, SQHS, 
Costanoa - Secondary 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Bilingual Math Tutors & Homework 
Club @ HRHS, SCHS, SQHS, 
Costanoa - Secondary 


Amount        16,974     
        16,974     Source        Supplemental     
        16,974     Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.20 FTE - Math Coach - Ark, 
Counseling & Attndance - 
SQHS, & Bilingual Math Tutors & 
Homework Club @ HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS, Costanoa - Secondary 
 


  
 


  
 


256 of 778







Page 113 of 174


Amount        2,156  7,219  7,363 
        2,156  7,219  7,363 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        2,156  7,219  7,363 Budget 
Reference        


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Avid - Stipends & EWA's 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.10 @ Costanoa for CTE Early 
Childhood 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.10 @ Costanoa for CTE Early 
Childhood 


Amount        383  2,675  2,809 
        383  2,675  2,809 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        383  2,675  2,809 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Avid - Stipends & EWA's 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.10 @ Costanoa for CTE Early 
Childhood 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
.10 @ Costanoa for CTE Early 
Childhood 


Amount        40,000  40,000  40,000 
        40,000  40,000  40,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        40,000  40,000  40,000 Budget 
Reference        


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
UCSC - AVID Tutors for BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
UCSC - AVID Tutors for BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
UCSC - AVID Tutors for BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


Amount        10,000  10,000  10,000 
        10,000  10,000  10,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        10,000  10,000  10,000 Budget 
Reference        


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
AVID Field Trips for BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
AVID Field Trips for BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
AVID Field Trips for BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
257 of 778







Page 114 of 174


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: Middle and High 


School        
 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Read 180 & Reading Intervention Sections 
Middle and High School 
Math Plus Intervention Sections 
Credit Recovery Program Staffing and 
Materials 
Middle School After School Intervention 
Staffing 
Secondary site discretionary funds 
address various goals supporting targeted 
services and materials for unduplicated 
students as identified by individual sites 
and approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
        


 Read 180 & Reading Intervention Sections 
Middle and High School 
Math Plus Intervention Sections 
Credit Recovery Program Staffing and 
Materials 
Middle School After School Intervention 
Staffing 
Secondary site discretionary funds 
address various goals supporting targeted 
services and materials for unduplicated 
students as identified by individual sites 
and approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
 


 Read 180 & Reading Intervention Sections 
Middle and High School 
Math Plus Intervention Sections 
Credit Recovery Program Staffing and 
Materials 
Middle School After School Intervention 
Staffing 
Secondary site discretionary funds 
address various goals supporting targeted 
services and materials for unduplicated 
students as identified by individual sites 
and approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 


258 of 778







Page 115 of 174


Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        122,058  261,257  266,482 
        122,058  261,257  266,482 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        122,058  261,257  266,482 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
3.50 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Academic Intervention 
@ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
3.50 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Academic Intervention 
@ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 


Amount        149,445  165,429  168,738 
        149,445  165,429  168,738 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        149,445  165,429  168,738 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, AVID 
& Music @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, 
SCHS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
2.04 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's & 
AVID @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, 
SCHS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
2.04 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's & 
AVID @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, 
SCHS 


Amount        54,660  55,203  56,307 
        54,660  55,203  56,307 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        54,660  55,203  56,307 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 


259 of 778







Page 116 of 174


Amount        93,820  138,188  140,954 
        93,820  138,188  140,954 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        93,820  138,188  140,954 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, AVID 
& Music @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, 
SCHS 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
3.50 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Academic Intervention 
@ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 
2.04 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's & 
AVID @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, 
SCHS 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
3.50 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Academic Intervention 
@ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 
2.04 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's & 
AVID @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, 
SCHS 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 
 


Amount        15,170  15,170  15,170 
        15,170  15,170  15,170 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        15,170  15,170  15,170 Budget 
Reference        


4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS 
Credit Recovery Contract Cyber 
High 


 4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS 
Credit Recovery Contract Cyber 
High 


 4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS 
Credit Recovery Contract Cyber 
High 


Amount        288,622  261,563  261,563 
        288,622  261,563  261,563 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        288,622  261,563  261,563 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Discretionary @ Middle, High, 
Costanoa, Ark & AFE - Secondary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocation @ 
Middle, High, Costanoa, Ark & AFE - 
Secondary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocation  @ 
Middle, High, Costanoa, Ark & AFE - 
Secondary 


Amount        37,850  35,302  36,008 
        37,850  35,302  36,008 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        37,850  35,302  36,008 Budget 
Reference        


2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


260 of 778







Page 117 of 174


Amount        29,876  31,391  32,019 
        29,876  31,391  32,019 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        29,876  31,391  32,019 Budget 
Reference        


2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
.9375 Total - Instructional Techs @ 
BRMS & MHMS 


 2100 INST'L SUPV AND ADMIN 
1.00 FTE Total = Instructional Techs 
@ .50 BRMS & 
.50 MHMS 
 


 2100 INST'L SUPV AND ADMIN 
1.00 FTE Total = Instructional Techs 
@ .50 BRMS & 
.50 MHMS 
 


Amount        20,445  30,517  31,127 
        20,445  30,517  31,127 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        20,445  30,517  31,127 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS.9375 
Total - Instructional Techs @ BRMS 
& MHMS 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS 
1.00 FTE Total = Instructional Techs 
@ .50 BRMS & 
.50 MHMS 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS 
1.00 FTE Total = Instructional Techs 
@ .50 BRMS & 
.50 MHMS 
 


Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 Specific Student Groups: Struggling Learners        
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]         


  [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)          Specific Grade Spans: 6-12        


 


261 of 778







Page 118 of 174


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Middle and High School Summer School 
Interventions 
Secondary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher 
Newcomer Sections and Supports 
        


 Middle and High School Summer School 
Interventions 
Secondary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher 
Newcomer Sections and Supports 
 


 Middle and High School Summer School 
Interventions 
Secondary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher 
Newcomer Sections and Supports 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        30,000  14,850  14,850 
        30,000  14,850  14,850 Source        Supplemental  Title I  Title I 
        30,000  14,850  14,850 Budget 
Reference        


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Summer School Teachers for Middle 
& High Schools 


 1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


 1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


Amount        13,000  5,600  5,600 
        13,000  5,600  5,600 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        13,000  5,600  5,600 Budget 
Reference        


1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - 
EWA 
Summer School Principals for Middle 
& High Schools 


 1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - 
EWA 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


 1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - 
EWA 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


262 of 778







Page 119 of 174


Amount        16,500  10,337  10,337 
        16,500  10,337  10,337 Source        Supplemental  Title I  Title I 
        16,500  10,337  10,337 Budget 
Reference        


2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
Summer School for Middle & High 
Schools - LA,  Instr Techs, Clerical 
Support & Custodial Services EWA's 


 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


Amount        11,775  6,535  6,535 
        11,775  6,535  6,535 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        11,775  6,535  6,535 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Summer School Benefits for all 
Certificated & Classified for Middle & 
High Schools 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


Amount        4,500  2,678  2,678 
        4,500  2,678  2,678 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        4,500  2,678  2,678 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Summer School Supplies for Middle 
& High Schools 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


Amount        4,225  96,963  96,963 
        4,225  96,963  96,963 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        4,225  96,963  96,963 Budget 
Reference        


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Summer School Teachers for Middle 
& High Schools 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocation @ 
BVEL, DLEL, GAEL & Monarch 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocation @ 
BVEL, DLEL, GAEL & Monarch 


Amount        87,339   79,576   81,168 
        87,339   79,576   81,168 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        87,339   79,576   81,168 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary 


 2100 INST'L SUPV AND ADMIN 
 2.556 Total FTE - Learning 
Assistants & IT Intervention .8687 
BVEL, .5625 DLEL, .75 GAEL, .3750 
Monarch 


 2100 INST'L SUPV AND ADMIN 
 2.556 Total FTE - Learning 
Assistants & IT Intervention .8687 
BVEL, .5625 DLEL, .75 GAEL, .3750 
Monarch 


263 of 778







Page 120 of 174


Amount        22,304   7,519   7,669 
        22,304   7,519   7,669 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        22,304   7,519   7,669 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 2.556 Total FTE - Learning 
Assistants & IT Intervention .8687 
BVEL, .5625 DLEL, .75 GAEL, .3750 
Monarch 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 2.556 Total FTE - Learning 
Assistants & IT Intervention .8687 
BVEL, .5625 DLEL, .75 GAEL, .3750 
Monarch 


Amount        26,235  42,658  43,511 
        26,235  42,658  43,511 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        26,235  42,658  43,511 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 


Amount        5,456  11,493  11,723 
        5,456  11,493  11,723 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        5,456  11,493  11,723 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 


Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners         X Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)          Specific Schools: Gault, Branciforte Middle 
School, Harbor High School        


 


Actions/Services 


264 of 778







Page 121 of 174


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Newcomer Program Classes and Supports         Newcomer Program Classes and Supports  Newcomer Program Classes and Supports 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        9,300  9,628  9,821 
        9,300  9,628  9,821 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        9,300  9,628  9,821 Budget 
Reference        


2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS 


Amount        886  910  928 
        886  910  928 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        886  910  928 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS 


Amount        62,211  71,789  73,225 
        62,211  71,789  73,225 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        62,211  71,789  73,225 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, Tutorial, 
Sea Science, Math ELD) @ HRHS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, ELD, 
Marine Science, Math ELD) @ 
HRHS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, ELD, 
Marine Science, Math ELD) @ 
HRHS 


265 of 778







Page 122 of 174


Amount        19,852  23,557  24,028 
        19,852  23,557  24,028 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        19,852  23,557  24,028 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, Tutorial, 
Sea Science, Math ELD) @ HRHS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, ELD, 
Marine Science, Math ELD) @ 
HRHS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, ELD, 
Marine Science, Math ELD) @ 
HRHS 


Amount        35,681  46,893  47,831 
        35,681  46,893  47,831 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        35,681  46,893  47,831 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from 4201 & 4203 to = 1.00 
FTE) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


Amount        9,305  21,357  21,784 
        9,305  21,357  21,784 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        9,305  21,357  21,784 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from 4201 & 4203 to = 1.00 
FTE) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


Amount        40,894  46,893  47,831 
        40,894  46,893  47,831 Source        Title III  Title III  Title III 
        40,894  46,893  47,831 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - Newcomer 
@ Gault (Also funded from 4201 & 
3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


266 of 778







Page 123 of 174


Amount        10,703  21,357  21,784 
        10,703  21,357  21,784 Source        Title III  Title III  Title III 
        10,703  21,357  21,784 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - Newcomer 
@ Gault (Also funded from 4201 & 
3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


Amount        4,009  39,500  39,500 
        4,009  39,500  39,500 Source        Title III  Title I  Title I 
        4,009  39,500  39,500 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - 
Newcomer @ Gault (Also funded 
from 4203 & 3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Rosetta Stone (11,500 & Avid 
Contract 28,000) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Rosetta Stone (11,500 & Avid 
Contract 28,000) 


Amount        1,050  219,002  219,002 
        1,050  219,002  219,002 Source        Title III  Title I  Title I 
        1,050  219,002  219,002 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - 
Newcomer @ Gault (Also funded 
from 4203 & 3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocations (2 
MS, 3HS & Costanoa & Ark) 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocations (2 
MS, 3HS & Costanoa & Ark) 


Action 7 
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


X English Learners         X Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)          Specific Schools: Harbor High School        
 


Actions/Services 
X New Action         X New Action         X Unchanged Action        


 


         New Newcomer Classes and Supports  Newcomer Classes and Supports 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 


267 of 778







Page 124 of 174


Amount          68,942  70,321 
          68,942  70,321 Source          Title I  Title I 
          68,942  70,321 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.90 FTE @ HRHS (English 1 
Shadow, ELD 1, World History SD & 
AVID 1 & 2 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.90 FTE @ HRHS (English 1 
Shadow, ELD 1, World History SD & 
AVID 1 & 2 


Amount          22,086  22,528 
          22,086  22,528 Source          Title I  Title I 
          22,086  22,528 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.90 FTE @ HRHS (English 1 
Shadow, ELD 1, World History SD & 
AVID 1 & 2 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.90 FTE @ HRHS (English 1 
Shadow, ELD 1, World History SD & 
AVID 1 & 2 


 


268 of 778







Page 125 of 174


Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 


 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 


Goal 4 
We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        


X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   Goal #4        
 
Identified Need: 
At a Multi-Tiered Systems of Support retreat with 76 teachers, counselors, coaches, and administrators in February 2018, district staff 
used data to identify four areas for strategic focus to support closing the achievement gap that exists in our school district.  The four 
areas identified for focus are:  Literacy, Mathematics, English Learner Progress and School Connectedness.  This same group of 
educators worked to identify actions and training needed to support the success of all students.  It was determined that TK-12 we need 
focused professional learning on Integrated English Language Development.  Coaching is also needed to support the continued 
implementation and scaffolding of the Common Core State Standards and Next Generation Science Standards to ensure the success 
of all students. 
 
Our professional development feedback from staff on the working conditions survey did not improve with our coaching structure from 
2016-17 to 2017-18. We also did not see academic growth on the CAASPP as a result of coaching.  Given the results and feedback, 
we visited two districts that have seen better CAASPP results for English Learners, Low Income and Foster Youth.  We have 
restructured our instructional coaching model based on our learning from these visits. 
 
 
 


269 of 778







Page 126 of 174


Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


Teacher Working 
Conditions Survey 
 
MAP Assessments 
(These new 
assessments will be 
baseline in 2017-18) 
 
Develop a Coaching 
Survey (baseline data 
January 2018) 
 
 
 
        


 56% of teachers 
reported that they had 
sufficient training to fully 
utilize instructional 
technology. 
 
71% of teachers report 
that professional 
development deepens 
their content knowledge 
 
86.2% of teachers report 
that professional 
development enhances 
teachers' ability to 
implement instructional 
strategies that meet 
diverse student learning 
needs. 
 
63.5% of teachers report 
that professional 
development is 
differentiated to meet 
the individual needs of 
teachers. 
 
86.9% of teachers report 
that provided supports 
(i.e. instructional 
coaching, professional 
learning communities, 
etc.) translate to 
improvements in 
instructional practices by 
teachers. 


 Measures from working 
conditions survey will 
increase by the following 
percentages: 
 
+ 5% technology - Goal 
Not Met 
49% of teachers 
reported that they had 
sufficient training to fully 
utilize instructional 
technology. 
 
+ 3% - Goal Not Met 
76% of teachers report 
that PD enhances 
teachers ability to 
implement instructional 
strategies that meet 
diverse student learning 
needs. 
 
+5% - Goal Not Met 
54% of teachers report 
that PD differentiated to 
meet individual teacher 
needs 
 
+3% - Goal Not Met 
82% of teachers report 
that provided supports 
translate to 
improvements 
instructional practices by 
teachers 
 


 Measures from working 
conditions survey will 
increase by the following 
percentages: 
 
+ 5% technology 
 
+ 3% PD enhances 
teachers ability to 
implement instructional 
strategies that meet 
diverse student learning 
needs. 
 
+5% PD differentiated to 
meet individual teacher 
needs 
 
+3% Provided supports 
translate to 
improvements 
instructional practices by 
teachers 
 
MAP Targets TBD in fall 
2017 
 
Coaching Survey targets 
determined in spring 
2018 
 


 Measures from working 
conditions survey will 
increase by the following 
percentages: 
 
+ 5% technology 
 
+ 3% PD enhances 
teachers ability to 
implement instructional 
strategies that meet 
diverse student learning 
needs. 
 
+3% PD differentiated to 
meet individual teacher 
needs 
 
+3% Provided supports 
translate to 
improvements 
instructional practices by 
teachers 
 
MAP Targets TBD in fall 
2017 
 
Coaching Survey targets 
determined in spring 
2018 
 


270 of 778







Page 127 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


 
MAP Assessment data 
will be available in the 
fall of 2017. 
 
Coaching Survey data 
will be available in Jan. 
2018. 
 
 
 
 


MAP Targets TBD in fall 
2017 
 
Coaching Survey targets 
determined in spring 
2018 
 
 
 


 


Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 


startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


271 of 778







Page 128 of 174


X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide coaching to teachers: 
*Educational Techology Coach 
*Math Coaches 
*Next Generation of Science Standards 
(NGSS) Coach 
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) 
Coach 
* English Learner Instructional Resource 
Teachers to coach teachers on 
implementing CA ELD standards and 
scaffolding instruction in core content 
areas. (See Goal #3) 
 
Continue to support and refine roles of 
Santa Cruz Instructional leaders (SCIL) 
(Teacher leaders who support site 
Professional Development) (Title II & Title 
I) 
 
Continue to support our Teacher Leader 
PLC and work to support future school 
leaders through on-going trainings 
 
Determine metrics for evaluating impact of 
instructional coaches and develop a 
coaching effectiveness survey to collect 
baseline data in coaching impact. 
 
 
        


 Elementary - LCFF Supplemental and Title 
I: 
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) 
Instructional Coaches 
 
Elementary Title I: 
*Site Allocations to Title I eligible schools 
to support professional learning goals in 
single plans for student achievement 
*Silicon Valley Math Initiative Membership 
to support continued professional 
development on the Common Core 
Mathematics standards and assessments 
 
Secondary LCFF Supplemental: 
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) 
Instructional Coaches Middle School 
*Next Generation Science Standards 
Instructional Coach 
*.2 of Co-Director of Curriculum, 
Intervention and Assessment to support 
secondary professional learning 
 
Secondary Title I: 
* Secondary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher to support Middle 
School and Costanoa HS teachers with 
Integrated ELD 
*Silicon Valley Math Initiative Membership 
to support continued professional 
development on the Common Core 
Mathematics standards and assessments 


 Elementary - LCFF Supplemental and Title 
I: 
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) 
Instructional Coaches 
 
Elementary Title I: 
*Site Allocations to Title I eligible schools 
to support professional learning goals in 
single plans for student achievement 
*Silicon Valley Math Initiative Membership 
to support continued professional 
development on the Common Core 
Mathematics standards and assessments 
 
Secondary LCFF Supplemental: 
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) 
Instructional Coaches Middle School 
*Next Generation Science Standards 
Instructional Coach 
*.2 of Co-Director of Curriculum, 
Intervention and Assessment to support 
secondary professional learning 
 
Secondary Title I: 
* Secondary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher to support Middle 
School and Costanoa HS teachers with 
Integrated ELD 
*Silicon Valley Math Initiative Membership 
to support continued professional 
development on the Common Core 
Mathematics standards and assessments 


272 of 778







Page 129 of 174


*Site Allocations to Title I eligible schools 
to support professional learning goals in 
single plans for student achievement 
 
Continue to support our Teacher Leader 
PLC and work to support future school 
leaders through on-going trainings 
 
Utilize metrics for evaluating impact of 
instructional coaches and refine our 
coaching effectiveness survey to collect 
data on coaching impact. 
 
 


*Site Allocations to support professional 
learning goals in single plans for student 
achievement 
 
Continue to support our Teacher Leader 
PLC and work to support future school 
leaders through on-going trainings 
 
Utilize metrics for evaluating impact of 
instructional coaches and refine our 
coaching effectiveness survey to collect 
data on coaching impact. 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        94,643  137,828  140,585 
        94,643  137,828  140,585 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        94,643  137,828  140,585 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E & 
.50 S) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.70 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also .30 FTE paid from 
Title I) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.70 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also .30 FTE paid from 
Title I) 


Amount        23,576  39,537  40,327 
        23,576  39,537  40,327 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        23,576  39,537  40,327 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E & 
.50 S) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.70 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also .30 FTE paid from 
Title I) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.70 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also .30 FTE paid from 
Title I) 


273 of 778







Page 130 of 174


Amount        142,044  24,322  24,808 
        142,044  24,322  24,808 Source        Supplemental  Title I  Title I 
        142,044  24,322  24,808 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E & 
1.00 S) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.30 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also 1.70 FTE paid from 
LCFF Supplemental) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.30 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also 1.70 FTE paid from 
LCFF Supplemental) 


Amount        48,220  8,626  8,799 
        48,220  8,626  8,799 Source        Supplemental  Title I  Title I 
        48,220  8,626  8,799 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E & 
1.00 S) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.30 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also 1.70 FTE paid from 
LCFF Supplemental) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.30 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also 1.70 FTE paid from 
LCFF Supplemental) 


Amount        86,805  90,960  92,779 
        86,805  90,960  92,779 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        86,805  90,960  92,779 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 


Amount        21,749  24,258  24,743 
        21,749  24,258  24,743 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        21,749  24,258  24,743 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 


Amount        34,797  35,725  36,440 
        34,797  35,725  36,440 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        34,797  35,725  36,440 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 


274 of 778







Page 131 of 174


Amount        9,605  8,766  8,941 
        9,605  8,766  8,941 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        9,605  8,766  8,941 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 


Amount        21,000  100,980  100,980 
        21,000  100,980  100,980 Source        Title I  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        21,000  100,980  100,980 Budget 
Reference        


1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 
SCIL Stipends - Secondary 


 1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 
SCIL Stipends  (42,840 E  - 58,140 
S) 


 1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 
SCIL Stipends  (42,840 E - 58,140 
S) 


Amount        3,728  19,720  19,720 
        3,728  19,720  19,720 Source        Title I  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        3,728  19,720  19,720 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
SCIL Stipends - Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
SCIL Stipends  (8,366 E - 11,354 S) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
SCIL Stipends  (8,366 E - 11,354 S) 


Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


275 of 778







Page 132 of 174


X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide Professional Development for 
Integrated ELD 
Provide support for new teachers to clear 
their credential and for interns to earn their 
preliminary credential (Title 2) 
Continue to support and refine roles of 
Santa Cruz Instructional leaders (SCIL) 
(Teacher leaders who support site 
Professional Development) (Title II & Title 
I) 
        


 Provide Release time and hourly pay for 
professional development for Integrated 
ELD (Title III) 
 
Provide support for new teachers to clear 
their credential and for interns to earn their 
preliminary credential (Title 2) 
 
Continue to support and refine roles of 
Santa Cruz Instructional leaders (SCIL) 
The Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership 
Team (SCIL) districtwide will continue to 
support professional learning community 
work at all school sites. PD for SCIL will 
focus on Integrated ELD instructional 
strategies. We are working on building our 
SCIL teams capacity to lead and guide 
their colleagues in regards to supporting 
ELs. We are going to use MAP and 
CAASPP data (Goal 3 data) to determine 
the effectiveness of this PD focus. 
(Teacher leaders who support site 
Professional Development) (Title II) 
 
The Teacher Leader PLC will continue to 
support future school leaders through on-
going trainings. The focus of these groups 
is on equity and ensuring as instructional 
leaders, we are focused on closing the 
achievement gap. 
 
 
 


 Provide Release time and hourly pay for 
professional development for Integrated 
ELD (Title III) 
 
Provide support for new teachers to clear 
their credential and for interns to earn their 
preliminary credential (Title 2) 
 
Continue to support and refine roles of 
Santa Cruz Instructional leaders (SCIL) 
The Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership 
Team (SCIL) districtwide will continue to 
support professional learning community 
work at all school sites. PD for SCIL will 
focus on Integrated ELD instructional 
strategies. We are working on building our 
SCIL teams capacity to lead and guide 
their colleagues in regards to supporting 
ELs. We are going to use MAP and 
CAASPP data (Goal 3 data) to determine 
the effectiveness of this PD focus. 
(Teacher leaders who support site 
Professional Development) (Title II) 
 
The Teacher Leader PLC will continue to 
support future school leaders through on-
going trainings. The focus of these groups 
is on equity and ensuring as instructional 
leaders, we are focused on closing the 
achievement gap. 
 


 
276 of 778







Page 133 of 174


Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        12,740  27,960  27,960 
        12,740  27,960  27,960 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        12,740  27,960  27,960 Budget 
Reference        


1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES 
Subs for Integrated ELD - Secondary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
PD - Site Allocations (Bayview, 
Delaveaga, Gault & Monarch) 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
PD - Site Allocations (Bayview, 
Delaveaga, Gault & Monarch) 


Amount        2,262  84,583  84,583 
        2,262  84,583  84,583 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        2,262  84,583  84,583 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Subs for Integrated ELD - Secondary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
PD - Site Allocations (Branciforte 
MS, Harbor HS & Coastanoa) 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
PD - Site Allocations (Branciforte 
MS, Harbor HS & Coastanoa) 


Amount        133,742  146,898  146,898 
        133,742  146,898  146,898 Source        Title II  Title II  Title II 
        133,742  146,898  146,898 Budget 
Reference        


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(28,502 E 105,240 S) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(39,465 E 107,433 S) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(39,465 E 107,433 S) 


Amount        69,022  43,589  44,461 
        69,022  43,589  44,461 Source        Title II  Title I  Title I 
        69,022  43,589  44,461 Budget 
Reference        


1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 
SCIL Stipends (42,307 E & 26,715 
S) 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.60 FTE @ BRMS (.40 Math .20 Ed 
Tech) 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.60 FTE @ BRMS (.40 Math .20 Ed 
Tech) 


Amount        10,976  10,967  11,186 
        10,976  10,967  11,186 Source        Title II  Title I  Title I 
        10,976  10,967  11,186 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
SCIL Stipends (6,728 E & 4,248 S) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.60 FTE @ BRMS (.40 Math .20 Ed 
Tech) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.60 FTE @ BRMS (.40 Math .20 Ed 
Tech) 


277 of 778







Page 134 of 174


Amount          89,111  90,893 
          89,111  90,893 Source          Title I  Title I 
          89,111  90,893 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 English Learner Instructional 
Resource 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 English Learner Instructional 
Resource 


Amount          24,488  24,978 
          24,488  24,978 Source          Title I  Title I 
          24,488  24,978 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 English Learner Instructional 
Resource 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 English Learner Instructional 
Resource 


Amount          25,160  25,663 
          25,160  25,663 Source          Title I  Title I 
          25,160  25,663 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1300 CERT SUPRVSR & ADMN-
ADMIN 
Co-Director of Secondary 
Curriculum, Intervention and 
Assessment 


 1300 CERT SUPRVSR & ADMN-
ADMIN 
Co-Director of Secondary 
Curriculum, Intervention and 
Assessment 


Amount          7,465  7,614 
          7,465  7,614 Source          Title I  Title I 
          7,465  7,614 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Co-Director of Secondary 
Curriculum, Intervention and 
Assessment 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Co-Director of Secondary 
Curriculum, Intervention and 
Assessment 


Amount          6,000  6,000 
          6,000  6,000 Source          Title I  Title I 
          6,000  6,000 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
SVMI Math (3,000 E & 3,000 S) 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
SVMI Math (3,000 E & 3,000 S) 


 


278 of 778







Page 135 of 174


Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 


 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 


Goal 5 
SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management         


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        


X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #5        
 
Identified Need: 
As a District , we need support personnel in the central office to ensure our budgets are effectively managed. Further,  we need to 
focus on building and implementing efficient plans utilizing our supplemental and categorical resources.  (The LCAP, Single Site Plans 
for Student Achievement; Curriculum and Instruction Plan; and The English Language Learners  Master Plan).  And, we need to 
develop clear measures to monitor the impact of our key LCAP initiatives. 
Further, we need to have well maintained, well managed buildings.  Currently 5 of 11  buildings scored "good" on the FIT report for the 
16-17 school year. 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


All district plans and 
budgets will be aligned 


 District plans are aligned 
with district goals.  The 


 100% of district and 
school sites plans will be 


 100% of district and 
school sites plans will be 


 100% of district and 
school sites plans will be 


279 of 778







Page 136 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


with the six district 
goals. 
 
Data dashboards will be 
developed to monitor 
impact of key LCAP 
initiatives - RtI & 
Instructional Coaching 
 
FIT Report 
 
        


alignment could be more 
explicit. 
 
There are no currently 
no data dashboards for 
RtI or Instructional 
Coaching 
 
The FIT report 5 of 11 
buildings scored "good" 
for the 16-17 school 
year. 
 
 


aligned with district 
goals. 
 
Data dashboards will be 
in place 
 
11 of 11 "Good" Schools 
as determined by the 
FIT report, 
 


aligned with district 
goals. 
 
Data dashboards will be 
in place 
 
11 of 11 "Good" Schools 
as determined by the 
FIT report, 
 


aligned with district 
goals. 
 
Data dashboards will be 
in place 
 
11 of 11 "Good" Schools 
as determined by the 
FIT report, 
 


 


Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 


startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


X All         X All Schools        
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


280 of 778







Page 137 of 174


X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
*Site Program Coordinator Helps Monitor 
Supplemental Budgets and Expenditures 
 
*Administrative Secretary Helps Monitor 
Supplemental Budgets and Expenditures 
 
* Support sites and departments with 
plans and budget development to ensure 
alignment with district goals 
 
* Develop data dashboards to monitor 
impact of key LCAP initiatives -  RtI and 
Instructional Coaching 
 
* Provide sites and departments support 
with  budget monitoring 
 
* Implement the Facilities Master Plan to 
improve school facilities 
 
 
        


 *Site Program Coordinator Helps Monitor 
Supplemental Budgets and Expenditures 
 
*Administrative Secretary Helps Monitor 
Supplemental Budgets and Expenditures 
 
* Support sites and departments with 
plans and budget development to ensure 
alignment with district goals 
 
* Continue to refine metrics to monitor 
impact of key LCAP initiatives -  RtI and 
Instructional Coaching 
 
* Provide sites and departments support 
with  budget monitoring 
 
* Implement the Facilities Master Plan to 
improve school facilities 
 
*Work with site administrators to align their 
SPSA to the four strategic focus areas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 *Site Program Coordinator Helps Monitor 
Supplemental Budgets and Expenditures 
 
*Administrative Secretary Helps Monitor 
Supplemental Budgets and Expenditures 
 
* Support sites and departments with 
plans and budget development to ensure 
alignment with district goals 
 
* Continue to refine metrics to monitor 
impact of key LCAP initiatives -  RtI and 
Instructional Coaching 
 
* Provide sites and departments support 
with  budget monitoring 
 
* Implement the Facilities Master Plan to 
improve school facilities 
 
*Work with site administrators to align their 
SPSA to the four strategic focus areas. 
 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 


281 of 778







Page 138 of 174


Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        15,448  9,156  9,339 
        15,448  9,156  9,339 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        15,448  9,156  9,339 Budget 
Reference        


2400 CLASS CLERICAL 
SALARIES-REG 
.4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary) 


 2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG 
.20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary 


 2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG 
.20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary 


Amount        8,563  5,204  5,308 
        8,563  5,204  5,308 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        8,563  5,204  5,308 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary 


Amount        39,391  36,622  37,354 
        39,391  36,622  37,354 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        39,391  36,622  37,354 Budget 
Reference        


2400 CLASS CLERICAL 
SALARIES-REG 
.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .80 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Secondary) 


 2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG 
.80 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Secondary 


 2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG 
.80 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Secondary 


Amount        21,698  20,412  21,433 
        21,698  20,412  21,433 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        21,698  20,412  21,433 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .80 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Secondary) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.80 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.80 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Secondary 


282 of 778







Page 139 of 174


Amount          83,621  83,621 
          83,621  83,621 Source          Title I  Title I 
          83,621  83,621 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 7350 TFR INDIRECT 
COSTS/INTERFUND  I 
6.59% Indirects (20,787 E & 62,834 
S) 


 7350 TFR INDIRECT 
COSTS/INTERFUND  I 
6.59% Indirects (20,787 E & 62,834 
S) 


Amount          25,408  25,408 
          25,408  25,408 Source          Title I  Title I 
          25,408  25,408 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
2.5% Holding for entitlement 
changes - Secondary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
2.5% Holding for entitlement 
changes - Secondary 


Action 2 
 


OR 
 
 


Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Budget 
Reference        


 
 


  
. 


  
 


Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


 


Actions/Services 


283 of 778







Page 140 of 174


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount               
Budget 
Reference        


 
 


  
  


  
 


Action 4 
 


OR 
 
 


Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Amount               


 


284 of 778







Page 141 of 174


Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 


 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 


Goal 6 
SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        


X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        
Local Priorities:   District Goals #6        


 
Identified Need: 
In SCCS, parents and our broader community are essential partners in ensuring that we are able to provide an excellent education for 
all students.   
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


Increase participation in 
annual parent survey. 
 
Parent participation in 
District committees 
(parent survey) 
 
Parent participation in 
site committees (parent 
survey) 
 


 889 parents participated 
in the parent survey 
 
13% of parents 
responding to district 
survey report that they 
have participated in 
district committees 
 
42% of parents 
responding to district 


 We will increase parent 
participation in the 
survey by 3%. 
 
Goal met: 1036 parents 
participated in the 
parent survey in Fall 
2017.  This represents a 
16.5% increase over 
Fall 2016. 
 


 We will increase parent 
participation in the 
survey by 3%. 
 
We will increase parent 
positive responses to 
survey questions by 5% 
 
We will continue to 
produce and send the 


 We will increase parent 
participation in the 
survey by 3%. 
 
We will increase parent 
positive responses to 
survey questions by 5% 
 
We will continue to 
produce and send the 


285 of 778







Page 142 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


Parent participation in 
Parent Education 
offerings (parent survey) 
 
Parents reporting that 
when they contact the 
school they receive 
courteous attention  
(parent survey) 
 
Parents reporting that 
they receive sufficient 
information regarding 
their child’s program, 
progress and needs 
(parent survey) 
 
?? Two questions for 
this year's survey -- 
(baseline data will be 
available in fall 2017) 
 
Provide an annual State 
of our Schools mailer for 
the broader SCCS 
community. 
 
        


survey report that they 
participate in site  
committees 
 
41% of parents 
responding to district 
survey report that they 
have participated in 
parent education 
offerings 
 
89% of parents 
responding to district 
survey report that when 
they contact the school 
they "always or 
regularly" receive 
courteous attention 
 
76% of parents 
responding to the district 
survey report that they 
"always or regularly" 
receive sufficient 
information regarding 
their child's program, 
process and needs 
 
For the past two years, 
each October the State 
of our Schools Mailer 
has been produced 
 
 
 
 
 


 
We will increase parent 
positive responses to 
survey questions by 5%: 
 
Goal not met: 13% of 
parents responding to 
district survey report that 
they have participated in 
district committees 
(same as last year) 
 
Goal not met: 42% of 
parents responding to 
district survey report that 
they participate in site  
committees (same as 
last year) 
 
Goal not met: 41% of 
parents responding to 
district survey report that 
they have participated in 
parent education 
offerings (same as last 
year) 
 
Goal not met: 87% of 
parents responding to 
district survey report that 
when they contact the 
school they "always or 
regularly" receive 
courteous attention 
(decrease of 2% from 
last year) 
 


State of our Schools 
mailing. 
 
 
 


State of our Schools 
mailing. 
 
 
 


286 of 778







Page 143 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


Goal not met: 74% of 
parents responding to 
the district survey report 
that they "always or 
regularly" receive 
sufficient information 
regarding their child's 
program, process and 
needs (decrease of 2% 
from last year) 
 
 
 
We will continue to 
produce and send the 
State of our Schools 
mailing. 
 
Goal met: For the past 
three years, each 
October the State of our 
Schools Mailer has been 
produced 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 


startcollapse 
287 of 778







Page 144 of 174


Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
*District Advisory Committee Meetings 
 
*School Community Coordinators support 
access to school for monolingual Spanish 
speaking families.  They also provide 
outreach and support to all families. 
 
* Parents and community members 
participate in school and district level 
committees (School Site Councils, ELAC, 
DELAC, District Advisory Council; Parent 
Teacher Organizations, Home and School 
Clubs, /Wellness Committee, Green 


 *District Advisory Committee Meetings 
 
*School Community Coordinators support 
access to school for monolingual Spanish 
speaking families.  They also provide 
outreach and support to all families. 
 
* Parents and community members 
participate in school and district level 
committees (School Site Councils, ELAC, 
DELAC, District Advisory Council; Parent 
Teacher Organizations, Home and School 
Clubs, /Wellness Committee, Green 


 *District Advisory Committee Meetings 
 
*School Community Coordinators support 
access to school for monolingual Spanish 
speaking families.  They also provide 
outreach and support to all families. 
 
* Parents and community members 
participate in school and district level 
committees (School Site Councils, ELAC, 
DELAC, District Advisory Council; Parent 
Teacher Organizations, Home and School 
Clubs, /Wellness Committee, Green 


288 of 778







Page 145 of 174


Schools, Tech Task Force and more) 
throughout the year. 
 
* Parent, staff and student surveys are 
conducted annually to solicit community 
input on LCAP, budget and program 
priorities. 
 
* Parent education opportunities are 
provided at both the site and district level -
- One example is the annual Latino Role 
Models Conference sponsored in concert 
with Senderos.  This inspiring event, 
conducted all in Spanish, provides parent 
education on college admissions, A-G 
completion, financial aide, and more. 
 
        


Schools, Tech Task Force and more) 
throughout the year. 
 
* Parent, staff and student surveys are 
conducted annually to solicit community 
input on LCAP, budget and program 
priorities. 
 
* Parent education opportunities are 
provided at both the site and district level -
- One example is the annual Latino Role 
Models Conference sponsored in concert 
with Senderos.  This inspiring event, 
conducted all in Spanish, provides parent 
education on college admissions, A-G 
completion, financial aide, and more. 
 
*Homeless students receive supplies and 
supports (e.g., bus pass, backpack, etc.) 
(Title 1). 
 


Schools, Tech Task Force and more) 
throughout the year. 
 
* Parent, staff and student surveys are 
conducted annually to solicit community 
input on LCAP, budget and program 
priorities. 
 
* Parent education opportunities are 
provided at both the site and district level -
- One example is the annual Latino Role 
Models Conference sponsored in concert 
with Senderos.  This inspiring event, 
conducted all in Spanish, provides parent 
education on college admissions, A-G 
completion, financial aide, and more. 
 
*Homeless students receive supplies and 
supports (e.g., bus pass, backpack, etc.) 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        103,111  99,055  101,036 
        103,111  99,055  101,036 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        103,111  99,055  101,036 Budget 
Reference        


2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 


289 of 778







Page 146 of 174


Amount        76,661  93,703  95,577 
        76,661  93,703  95,577 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        76,661  93,703  95,577 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 


Amount        107,621  172,746  176,201 
        107,621  172,746  176,201 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        107,621  172,746  176,201 Budget 
Reference        


2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, MHMS - 
1.00 @ HRHS & Small Schools) 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
4.40 FTE Total - School Community 
Coordinators (.60 @ MHMS, .40 @ 
SCHS & SQHS - 1.00 @ BRMS, 
HRHS & Small Schools) 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
4.40 FTE Total - School Community 
Coordinators (.60 @ MHMS, .40 @ 
SCHS & SQHS - 1.00 @ BRMS, 
HRHS & Small Schools) 


Amount        84,256  151,370  154,397 
        84,256  151,370  154,397 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        84,256  151,370  154,397 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, MHMS - 
1.00 @ HRHS & Small Schools) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
4.40 FTE Total - School Community 
Coordinators (.60 @ MHMS, .40 @ 
SCHS & SQHS - 1.00 @ BRMS, 
HRHS & Small Schools) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
4.40 FTE Total - School Community 
Coordinators (.60 @ MHMS, .40 @ 
SCHS & SQHS - 1.00 @ BRMS, 
HRHS & Small Schools) 


Amount        3,770  3,767  3,767 
        3,770  3,767  3,767 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        3,770  3,767  3,767 Budget 
Reference        


4395 FOOD FOR WORKSHOPS 
DAC Meetings (1,495 E & 2,275 S) 


 4395 FOOD FOR WORKSHOPS 
DAC Meetings (1,492 E & 2,275 S) 


 4395 FOOD FOR WORKSHOPS 
DAC Meetings (1,492 E & 2,275 S) 


290 of 778







Page 147 of 174


Amount        12,694  11,219  11,219 
        12,694  11,219  11,219 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        12,694  11,219  11,219 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
1% Parent Involvement - 
Translations & Babysitting (3,309 E 
& 9,985 S) 


 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
1% Parent Involvement - 
Translations & Babysitting (2,807 E 
& 8,412 S) 


 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
1% Parent Involvement - 
Translations & Babysitting (2,807 E 
& 8,412 S) 


Amount        5,000  2,000  2,000 
        5,000  2,000  2,000 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        5,000  2,000  2,000 Budget 
Reference        


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Latino Role Model Conference 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Latino Role Model Conference 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Latino Role Model Conference 


 


291 of 778







Page 148 of 174


Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
 
LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 


Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 


$4,487,366  8.43% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 


$1,636,103 Elementary 
$2,851,263 Secondary 
$4,487,366 Total SCCS 
 
Based upon FCMAT’s Local Control Funding Formula Calculator, SCCS estimates that in the 2018-19 LCAP year it will receive 
$1,636,103 in Supplemental funding and $0 in Concentration funding for the elementary district, and $2,851,263 in Supplemental 
funding and $0 in Concentration funding for the secondary district, for a grand total of $4,487,366 in Supplemental and Concentration 
Grant funding.  The percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils (English Learners, Foster Youth, & Low-income Students) 
must be increased or improved over services for all students is 8.86% for the elementary district and 7.99% for the secondary district, 
or 8.43% for the entire K-12th district. 
 
The term “unduplicated pupils” means that we only count students once, even though they may belong to two or all three of the 
unduplicated pupil categories.  English Learners, Low Income students and Foster Youth are served through the base program with 
targeted support both during the day and outside of the day.  Teachers on special assignment for content area instruction are trained 
in best strategies for students who are learning English as a second language or who are school dependent. For these reasons, many 
programs are designed to improve services for students that struggle, regardless of the reasons for their difficulties or the 
demographic categories they may or may not belong to but are principally directed to our unduplicated student groups.  An example of 
this is the site discretionary funding that will enable schools to control the ways in which they can best meet the needs of their 
students.  All of these programs are above and beyond the core educational program provided to all students in the district. 


292 of 778







Page 149 of 174


Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 
 
 
Unduplicated Pupils 
The percentage by which services for all unduplicated pupils (English Learners, Foster Youth, & Low-income Students) must be 
increased or improved over services for all students is 8.86% for the elementary district and 7.99% for the secondary district, or 8.43% 
for the entire K-12 district.  The increase and/or improved services to each of the three targeted populations is enumerated below. 
 
Supporting the Foster Ed Initiative, even assuming there were additional dollars granted for them specifically (as opposed to FY 
automatically being included in the LI count), represents the single greatest proportional investment for a sub-population. This is 
justified because of the significant achievement gap demonstrated between students in foster care and all of other students, including 
subpopulations such as those in special education, low-income or English language learners. Therefore the proportionality, both in 
terms of quantitative expenditures and qualitative time and effort, will be greater than their small enrollment number (N=55 or .88%).  
Collaborating with other LEAs in SC County in the Foster Ed initiative led by the COE, and implementing the MOU is a service 
dedicated entirely to foster youth.  Further, our school Counselors, Social Workers and our School Community Coordinators all provide 
specific services for our Foster Youth as members of the Foster Youth Support Team. 
 
English Learners - 
At 11.73% (N=787) of enrollment, English Learners represent a significant minority of SCCS students.  In terms of the achievement 
gap, their demonstrated need is much greater than their numbers.  In addition to the challenge of learning a second language while 
learning the rigorous content curriculum, ELs may also confront cultural differences that can impede success.  English Learners in 
SCCS are usually also low-income students, and as such often struggle with economic barriers.  Targeted services for our English 
Learners include two English Learner Instructional Resource Teachers; School Community Coordinators to provide access to the 
school through translation and other family supports; Site Program Coordinators who facilitate language testing and support 
compliance with state and federal mandates, Additional Instructional Technicians, a Bilingual Social Worker, 1.4 total newcomer 
sections at both middle schools and Harbor High to support language acquisition and access to core content; Bilingual Math Tutors, 
and site based programs directed at EL supports.  There are also additional services provided via a new Newcomer teacher at the 
elementary level, expanding our Newcomer programs to TK-12.  We are also adding additional counseling services specifically for ELs 
through a grant from the City of Santa Cruz. 
 


293 of 778







Page 150 of 174


Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 
Low-Income Students - 
A large minority (N=2,459 or 36.65%) of SCCS students qualifies for free/reduced meals.  These students, on average, achieve well 
below their peers who are not challenged by poverty, necessitating an investment in programs that address their needs.  The following 
are programs and services that principally address the needs of our unduplicated pupils, particularly LI students:  RtI Coordinators, RtI 
Instructional Technicians, RtI Learning Assistants, AVID, Reading and Math Intervention sections, Summer School, Homework Clubs, 
Middle School After School Intervention Programs, PIP, Social Workers, PBIS Coach/ Behaviorist, PBIS Aides,  Counseling Interns, 
Elementary Counselors, the credit recovery program,  and site-based programs are designed to address the types of challenges that 
LI's frequently encounter in an academic setting.  As mentioned above, LI students frequently also belong to other subgroups.  All FY 
and migrant students are automatically part of the LI subgroup.  There is also a large overlap with the EL and immigrant subgroups.  
Additional resources have been added at the school sites for Site Councils to allocate towards targeting the success of struggling 
students. 
 
The 2017-18 LCAP allocation was $4,078,118 ($1,5888,815 for elementary and $2,489,303 for secondary), while the 2018-19 LCAP 
allocation is $4,487,366 ($1,636,103 for elementary and $2,851,263 for secondary), for an overall increase of $409,248). The ongoing 
costs of all personnel in the LCAP has increased due to step and column movement, a 2.0% increase in health and welfare costs and 
increased STRS 1.85% and PERS 2.531% costs for the District.  In addition, we have added the following programs and services: 
1) MOU with the County Office for the Foster Youth Collaborative 
2) Additional math coaches (increased from .6 secondary and .4 elementary to 1.0 elementary and 1.0 secondary)  -- This is the 
academic area that both parents and students have indicated there is need for significant support. 
3) Additional Services for Newcomer Students TK-12, including additional newcomer sections in secondary and a 1.0 elementary 
newcomer teacher (Title I), additional counseling services to address the specific needs of newcomer and refugee students 
4) Expanded Response to Intervention program services, using new screening tools to identify student needs and monitor students' 
academic progress 
5)  Initial steps to implement our Curriculum Master Plan and English Learner Master Plan, our road maps to ensure student 
achievement. 
 
All of these services in the coming LCAP year constitute a proportional increase in services for the targeted populations and were 
intentionally chosen as the best use of funds to meet our students' academic, social-emotional, and behavioral needs. 
------- 


294 of 778







Page 151 of 174


Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 


------- 


 


Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
LCAP Year: 2017-18 
 


Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 


$4,078,118  8.00% 
 


295 of 778







Page 152 of 174


Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 


$1,588,815 Elementary 
$2,489,303 Secondary 
$4,078,118 Total SCCS 
 
Based upon FCMAT’s Local Control Funding Formula Calculator, SCCS estimates that in the 2017-18 LCAP year it will receive 
$1,588,815 in Supplemental funding and $0 in Concentration funding for the elementary district, and $2,489,303 in Supplemental 
funding and $0 in Concentration funding for the secondary district, for a grand total of $4,078,118 in Supplemental and Concentration 
Grant funding.  The percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils (English Learners, Foster Youth, & Low-income Students) 
must be increased or improved over services for all students is 8.62% for the elementary district and 7.37% for the secondary district, 
or 8.00% for the entire K-12th district. 
 
The term “unduplicated pupils” masks the reality that many students belong to more than one category.  English Learners, Low 
Income students and Foster Youth are served through the base program with targeted support both during the day and outside of the 
day.  Teachers on special assignment for content area instruction are trained in best strategies for students who are learning English 
as a second language or who are school dependent. For these reasons, many programs are designed to improve services for 
students that struggle, regardless of the reasons for their difficulties or the demographic categories they may or may not belong to.  An 
example of this is the site discretionary funding that will enable schools to control the ways in which they can best meet the needs of 
their students.  All of these programs are above and beyond the core educational program provided to all students in the district. 
 
 
Unduplicated Pupils 
The percentage by which services for all unduplicated pupils (English Learners, Foster Youth, & Low-income Students) must be 
increased or improved over services for all students is 8.62% for the elementary district and 7.37% for the secondary district, or 8.00% 
for the entire K-12 district.  The increase and/or improved services to each of the three targeted populations is enumerated below. 
 
Supporting the Foster Ed Initiative, even assuming there were additional dollars granted for them specifically (as opposed to FY 
automatically being included in the LI count), represents the single greatest proportional investment for a sub-population. This is 
justified because of the significant achievement gap demonstrated between students in foster care and all of other students, including 


296 of 778







Page 153 of 174


Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 
subpopulations such as those in special education, low-income or English language learners. Therefore the proportionality, both in 
terms of quantitative expenditures and qualitative time and effort, will be greater than their small enrollment number (N=39 or .6%).  
Collaborating with other LEAs in SC County in the Foster Ed initiative led by the COE, and implementing the MOU is a service 
dedicated entirely to foster youth.  Further, our school Counselors, Social Workers and our School Community Coordinators all provide 
specific services for our Foster Youth as members of the Foster Youth Support Team. 
 
English Learners - 
At 14% (N=974) of enrollment, English Learners represent a significant minority of SCCS students.  In terms of the achievement gap, 
their demonstrated need is much greater than their numbers.  In addition to the challenge of learning a second language while learning 
the rigorous content curriculum, ELs may also confront cultural differences that can impede success.  English Learners in SCCS are 
usually also low-income students, and as such often struggle with economic barriers.  Targeted services for our English Learners 
include two English Learner Instructional Resource Teachers; School Community Coordinators to provide access to the school 
through translation and other family supports; Site Program Coordinators who facilitate language testing and support compliance with 
state and federal mandates, Additional Instructional Technicians, a Bilingual Social Worker, 1.4 total newcomer sections at both 
middle schools and Harbor High to support language acquisition and access to core content; Bilingual Math Tutors, and site based 
programs directed at EL supports.  There are also additional services provided via a new Newcomer teacher at the elementary level, 
expanding our Newcomer programs to TK-12. 
 
Low-Income Students - 
A large minority (N=2,620 or 38.5%) of SCCS students qualifies for free/reduced meals.  These students, on average, achieve well 
below their peers who are not challenged by poverty, necessitating an investment in programs that address their needs.  The following 
are programs and services that principally address the needs of our unduplicated pupils, particularly LI students:  RtI Coordinators, RtI 
Instructional Technicians, RtI Learning Assistants, AVID, additional Reading and Math Intervention sections, Summer School, 
Homework Clubs, Middle School After School Intervention Programs, Social Workers, PBIS Coach/ Behaviorist, PBIS Aides,  
Counseling Interns, Elementary Counselors, additional middle school counselors, the credit recovery program,  and site-based 
programs are designed to address the types of challenges that LI's frequently encounter in an academic setting.  As mentioned above, 
LI students frequently also belong to other subgroups.  All FY and migrant students are automatically part of the LI subgroup.  There is 
also a large overlap with the EL and immigrant subgroups.  Additional resources have been added at the school sites for Site Councils 
to allocate towards targeting the success of struggling students. 


297 of 778







Page 154 of 174


Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 
 
The 2017-18 LCAP allocation was $4,078,118 ($1,588,815 for elementary and $2,489,303 for secondary), while the 2018-19 LCAP 
allocation is $4,487,366 ($1,636,103 for elementary and $2,851,263 for secondary), for an overall increase of $409,248). The ongoing 
costs of all personnel in the LCAP has increased due to step and column movement, a 2.0% increase in health and welfare costs and 
increased STRS 1.85% and PERS 2.53% costs for the District.  In addition, we have added the following programs and services: 
1) MOU with the County Office for the Foster Youth Collaborative 
2) Additional math coaches (increased from .6 secondary and .4 elementary to 1.0 elementary and 1.0 secondary)  -- This is the 
academic area that both parents and students have indicated there is need for significant support. 
3) Additional Services for Newcomer Students TK-12, including additional newcomer sections in secondary and a 1.0 elementary 
newcomer teacher (Title I), additional counseling services to address the specific needs of newcomer and refugee students 
4) Expanded Response to Intervention program services, using new screening tools to identify student needs and monitor students' 
academic progress 
5)  Initial steps to implement our Curriculum Master Plan and English Learner Master Plan, our road maps to ensure student 
achievement. 
 
All of these services in the coming LCAP year constitute a proportional increase in services for the targeted populations. 
 
 
------- 
------- 
 


298 of 778







Page 155 of 174


Addendum 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student 
outcomes and overall performance. The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed and updated 
annually, as required. Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter 
school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. The LCAP and 
Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year. 


For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, 
goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by 
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English 
learners, foster youth, pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and 
any locally identified priorities. 


For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF student group funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile 
court schools, on probation or parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state 
priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may 
additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services funded by a school district that are 
provided to students attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education 
programs.  


If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a 
single LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070.  The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or 
county superintendent of schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned.  


Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of 
the state priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the 
charter school, and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description 
of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the 
nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements 
explicitly applicable to charter schools in the EC. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for 
charter schools that result from the annual update process do not necessarily constitute a material 
revision to the school’s charter petition. 


299 of 778







Page 156 of 174


For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 


Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
Plan Summary 
Annual Update 
Stakeholder Engagement 
Goals, Actions, and Services 
Planned Actions/Services 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students 
 


For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please 
contact the local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 
916-319-0809 or by email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.  


Plan Summary 
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a 
fixed three-year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year.  
When developing the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in 
these sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, enter the appropriate LCAP year and 
replace the previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP. 
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA. 
LEAs may also attach documents (e.g., the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics data reports) if desired and/or 
include charts illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and actual 
expenditures. 
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information 
specified in each prompt and the budget summary table. 
The reference to LCFF Evaluation Rubrics means the evaluation rubrics adopted by the State Board 
of Education under EC Section 52064.5.   
 
Budget Summary 


The LEA must complete the LCAP Budget Summary table as follows: 


 Total LEA General Fund Budget Expenditures for the LCAP Year: This amount is the 
LEA’s total budgeted General Fund expenditures for the LCAP year. The LCAP year 
means the fiscal year for which an LCAP is adopted or updated by July 1. The General 
Fund is the main operating fund of the LEA and accounts for all activities not accounted for 
in another fund. All activities are reported in the General Fund unless there is a compelling 
reason to account for an activity in another fund. For further information please refer to the 
California School Accounting Manual (http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/). (Note: For some 
charter schools that follow governmental fund accounting, this amount is the total budgeted 
expenditures in the Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund. For charter schools that follow 
the not-for-profit accounting model, this amount is total budgeted expenses, such as those 
budgeted in the Charter Schools Enterprise Fund.) 


 Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet the Goals in the LCAP 
for the LCAP Year: This amount is the total of the budgeted expenditures associated with 


300 of 778



mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov

http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/





Page 157 of 174


the actions/services included for the LCAP year from all sources of funds, as reflected in 
the LCAP. To the extent actions/services and/or expenditures are listed in the LCAP under 
more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once. 


 Description of any use(s) of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above 
for the LCAP year not included in the LCAP: Briefly describe expenditures included in 
total General Fund Expenditures that are not included in the total funds budgeted for 
planned actions/services for the LCAP year. (Note: The total funds budgeted for planned 
actions/services may include funds other than general fund expenditures.) 


 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year: This amount is the total amount of 
LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive pursuant to EC sections 42238.02 (for 
school districts and charter schools) and 2574 (for county offices of education), as 
implemented by EC sections 42238.03 and 2575 for the LCAP year respectively.  


Annual Update 
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the previous year’s* approved LCAP; in addition, list the state and/or local priorities 
addressed by the planned goals. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.   


* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 
2016/17 LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, 
LCAP year 2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 
2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP.  


Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as 
compared to the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the 
goal.  


Actions/Services 
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these 
actions toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented 
to meet the described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the 
actions/services. As applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, 
or to the planned location of the actions/services provided.   


Analysis 
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the LCFF Evaluation 
Rubrics, analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. 
Respond to the prompts as instructed. 


 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated 
goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the 
implementation process.  


 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal 
as measured by the LEA. 


 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not 
required. 


 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided 


301 of 778







Page 158 of 174


in the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 


Stakeholder Engagement 
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing 
the student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget 
process. EC identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices 
of education as consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local 
bargaining units of the school district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. EC requires 
charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, 
and pupils in developing the LCAP. In addition, EC Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the 
translation of notices, reports, statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian. 
 
The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory 
groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA 
may incorporate or reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet 
specific goals.   


Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The 
requirements for this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing 
the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the LCAP and Annual Update. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
enter the appropriate LCAP year and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe 
the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual 
Update. 


School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult 
with the Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, 
parents, students, school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community 
to inform the development of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the 
indicated LCAP year. 
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, 
administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of 
the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year.  


Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual 
update for the indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures. 


Goals, Actions, and Services 
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group 
of students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also 
include additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned 
actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to 
implement the specific actions. 


School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is 
reviewed and updated annually, as required.   
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the 
charter schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 
2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.   


302 of 778







Page 159 of 174


New, Modified, Unchanged 
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or 
expected annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are 
modified or unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new. 


Goal 
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A 
goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are 
directed. A goal answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?   


Related State and/or Local Priorities 
List the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal. The LCAP must include goals that 
address each of the state priorities, as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local 
priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities) 


Identified Need 
Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update 
process or performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 


Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track 
progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student 
groups. Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric or 
indicator available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. 
The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data as reported in the 
annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the three-year plan, as applicable. The 
baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. In the subsequent 
year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year cycle of the 
LCAP. Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years. 
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable 
required metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of 
LEA.  For the student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the 
rates as described in the LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d). 
 


Planned Actions/Services 
For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the 
section “For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement.” The LEA shall not complete both sections for a single action. 


For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement 


Students to be Served 
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those 
which are included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or 
improve services for unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from 
the actions/services by entering “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student 


303 of 778







Page 160 of 174


Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” is entered, identify the specific student group(s) as 
appropriate. 


Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must identify “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 


Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identifying the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 


For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement: 


Students to be Served 
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or 
improved services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), 
the LEA must identify the unduplicated student group(s) being served.   


Scope of Service 
For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement, identify the scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited 
to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”. The LEA must identify one of the following three options: 


 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of the LEA, enter “LEA-wide.” 


 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of a particular school or schools, enter “schoolwide”.  


 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students 
identified in “Students to be Served”, enter “Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”.  


For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” 
may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools 
operating multiple schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use 
“LEA-wide” to refer to all schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a 
single school authorized within the same charter petition. Charter schools operating a 
single school may use “LEA-wide” or “Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a 
consistent manner through the LCAP. 


Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 


304 of 778







Page 161 of 174


Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identify the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 


Actions/Services 
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the 
described goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may 
be grouped together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of 
reference. 


 


New/Modified/Unchanged:  
 Enter “New Action” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of 


the LCAP to meet the articulated goal.  


 Enter “Modified Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal 
and has been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description. 


 Enter “Unchanged Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated 
goal and has not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year 
description.   


o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the 
duration of the plan, an LEA may enter “Unchanged Action” and leave the 
subsequent year columns blank rather than having to copy/paste the 
action/service into the subsequent year columns. Budgeted expenditures 
may be treated in the same way as applicable. 


Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year 
LCAP. For example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 
of the preceding three-year LCAP will be from the prior year. 


Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget 
that is submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year 
budget to its authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the 
“Goals, Actions, and Services” section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not 
applicable, charter schools must specify as such. 


Budgeted Expenditures 
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to 
implement these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s 
budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures 
must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by EC sections 
52061, 52067, and 47606.5.  
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first 
appears in the LCAP. 
If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses 
to complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school 
district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.  


305 of 778







Page 162 of 174


 


Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for 
Unduplicated Students 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
copy the “Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students” table and 
enter the appropriate LCAP year. Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for 
the current year LCAP. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three years within the LCAP. 


Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds 
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and 
concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined 
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496(a)(5).  


Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 


Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for 
unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to 
services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in 
quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity.  This description must address 
how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more unduplicated student group(s), and any 
schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the appropriate description, taken 
together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated 
pupils. 


If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided 
on a schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required 
descriptions supporting each action/service as follows.  
For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis: 


 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter 
schools and county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed 
to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 


 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these 
services are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in 
the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of 
the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience or 
educational theory. 


For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a 
schoolwide basis: 


 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the 
state and any local priorities. 


306 of 778







Page 163 of 174


 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% 
enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and 
how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English 
learners, low income students and foster youth, in the state and any local priorities. 


307 of 778







Page 164 of 174


State Priorities 
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which: 


A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching; 


B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair. 


Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses: 
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 


students, which are:  
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for English Language Arts 
b. Mathematics – CCSS for Mathematics 
c. English Language Development (ELD) 
d. Career Technical Education 
e. Health Education Content Standards 
f. History-Social Science 
g. Model School Library Standards 
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards 
i. Next Generation Science Standards 
j. Visual and Performing Arts 
k. World Language; and 


B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency. 


Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses: 
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 


each individual school site; 
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and  
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 


needs. 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 


A. Statewide assessments; 
B. The Academic Performance Index; 
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy University of California 


(UC) or California State University (CSU) entrance requirements, or programs of study that align with 
state board approved career technical educational standards and framework; 


D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT); 


E. The English learner reclassification rate; 
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 


higher; and 
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 


Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness. 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 


A. School attendance rates; 
B. Chronic absenteeism rates; 
C. Middle school dropout rates; 
D. High school dropout rates; and 
E. High school graduation rates; 


308 of 778







Page 165 of 174


Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 
A. Pupil suspension rates; 
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and 
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 


school connectedness. 
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in: 


A. S broad course of study including courses described under EC sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable; 


B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and 
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs. 


Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under EC sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable.  
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils. 
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:  


A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement  
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 


services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports; 


C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and 


D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport. 


Local Priorities address: 
A. Local priority goals; and 
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals. 


309 of 778







Page 166 of 174


APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE 
CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS 
For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under EC sections 52060 
and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply: 


(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 


academic year (July 1 – June 30) who are chronically absent where “chronic absentee” 
means a pupil who is absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year when 
the total number of days a pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is 
enrolled and school was actually taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and 
school was actually taught in the regular day schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays 
and Sundays. 


(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 
the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 


(3) Divide (1) by (2). 
(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in 5 CCR Section 1039.1. 
(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:  


(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where 
“cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus 
pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 
1, 2, 3, and 4. 


(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 


(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an 


adult education high school diploma or passed the California High School Proficiency 
Exam] by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-
time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who 
transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4. 


(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 


(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 


suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 


the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 


(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 


expelled during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 


the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 


 
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 
2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 
52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 
Sections 6312 and 6314.  


310 of 778







Page 167 of 174


 


APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS 
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis 


1)  How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of 
those services result in the desired outcomes? 


2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified 
pursuant to EC Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income 
pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired 
outcomes?  


3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school 
sites and were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes? 


4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review 
progress toward goals in the annual update? 


5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? 
How effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What 
changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result 
of the review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services?  


6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual 
expenditures? What were the reasons for any differences? 


 


Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement 
1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated 


pupils and unduplicated pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education 
foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth 
stakeholders; community organizations representing English learners; and others as 
appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting 
implementation of the LCAP?  


2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for 
engagement in the development of the LCAP? 


3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to 
stakeholders related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting 
process? How was the information made available? 


4)  What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written 
comments or other feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement 
processes? 


5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement 
pursuant to EC sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01? 


6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 
Section 15495(a)? 


311 of 778







Page 168 of 174


7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement 
of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, 
related to the state priorities? 


 


Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services 
1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 


Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access 
(Priority 7)? 


2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil 
Achievement (Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled 
Pupils (Priority 9 – COE Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – 
COE Only)?  


3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil 
“Engagement”: Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School 
Climate (Priority 6)? 


4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities?  
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the 


development of meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level 
advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth 
school level data analysis, etc.)?  


6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in EC Section 42238.01 and 
groups as defined in EC Section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils? 


7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals 
annually and over the term of the LCAP? 


8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to 
develop goals to address each state or local priority? 


9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites? 
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in EC Section 52052? 
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant 


to EC Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or 
to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP? 


12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes?  
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  


Where can these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget? 
 
 
Prepared by the California Department of Education, October 2016 


312 of 778







Page 169 of 174


 


LCAP Expenditure Summary 
 


Total Expenditures by Funding Source 


Funding Source 
2017-18 


Annual Update 
Budgeted 


2017-18 
Annual Update 


Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


2017-18 
through 
2019-20 


Total 
All Funding Sources 6,319,782.00 6,269,565.00 6,332,036.00 7,567,548.00 7,678,829.00 21,578,413.00 
 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Base 1,272,644.00 1,166,206.00 356,863.00 281,536.00 285,367.00 923,766.00 
Other 369,105.00 358,681.00 1,357,414.00 1,275,902.00 1,292,452.00 3,925,768.00 
Supplemental 3,996,443.00 4,049,571.00 3,931,669.00 4,456,486.00 4,532,199.00 12,920,354.00 
Title I 411,194.00 441,769.00 415,694.00 1,338,476.00 1,352,298.00 3,106,468.00 
Title II 213,740.00 203,291.00 213,740.00 146,898.00 146,898.00 507,536.00 
Title III 56,656.00 50,047.00 56,656.00 68,250.00 69,615.00 194,521.00 


 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  


313 of 778







Page 170 of 174


Total Expenditures by Object Type 


Object Type 
2017-18 


Annual Update 
Budgeted 


2017-18 
Annual Update 


Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


2017-18 
through 
2019-20 


Total 
All Expenditure Types 6,319,782.00 6,269,565.00 6,332,036.00 7,567,548.00 7,678,829.00 21,578,413.00 
 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 1,847,692.00 1,778,171.00 1,847,692.00 2,235,147.00 2,349,317.00 6,432,156.00 
1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 107,735.00 102,357.00 107,735.00 18,612.00 18,687.00 145,034.00 
1140 TEACHER SALARIES-SUBSTITUTES 12,740.00 12,740.00 12,740.00 11,326.00 11,553.00 35,619.00 
1160 TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND 90,022.00 105,983.00 90,022.00 100,980.00 100,980.00 291,982.00 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 584,632.00 608,305.00 632,399.00 690,050.00 703,852.00 2,026,301.00 
1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-EWA 12,891.00 26,400.00 12,891.00 26,400.00 26,400.00 65,691.00 
1300 CERT SUPRVSR & ADMN-ADMIN 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,160.00 25,663.00 50,823.00 
1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - EWA 18,000.00 21,200.00 18,000.00 5,600.00 5,600.00 29,200.00 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-REGULAR 657,005.00 661,156.00 657,005.00 556,080.00 567,202.00 1,780,287.00 
2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 235,086.00 303,182.00 235,086.00 191,061.00 184,114.00 610,261.00 
2100 INST'L SUPV AND ADMIN 0.00 0.00 0.00 110,967.00 113,187.00 224,154.00 
2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT SALARIES 311,868.00 267,483.00 311,868.00 376,119.00 393,979.00 1,081,966.00 
2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-REG 54,839.00 49,360.00 54,839.00 45,778.00 46,693.00 147,310.00 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,225,510.00 1,209,375.00 1,244,772.00 1,480,646.00 1,546,173.00 4,271,591.00 
4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN TEXTBOOKS 15,170.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 45,510.00 
4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 859,805.00 824,728.00 864,305.00 983,023.00 985,832.00 2,833,160.00 
4395 FOOD FOR WORKSHOPS 3,770.00 3,770.00 3,770.00 3,767.00 3,767.00 11,304.00 
5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00 
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 282,017.00 279,185.00 222,742.00 474,041.00 368,039.00 1,064,822.00 
6400 EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 
6500 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 128,000.00 128,000.00 256,000.00 
7350 TFR INDIRECT COSTS/INTERFUND  I 0.00 0.00 0.00 83,621.00 83,621.00 167,242.00 


 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  


314 of 778







Page 171 of 174


Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 


Object Type Funding Source 
2017-18 
Annual 
Update 


Budgeted 


2017-18 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 


2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 


Total 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 6,319,782.00 6,269,565.00 6,332,036.00 7,567,548.00 7,678,829.00 21,578,413.00 
  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 


Base 672,351.00 598,925.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 


Other 0.00 0.00 672,351.00 629,203.00 711,253.00 2,012,807.00 


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 


Supplemental 1,086,895.00 1,076,450.00 1,086,895.00 1,365,379.00 1,392,687.00 3,844,961.00 


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 


Title I 88,446.00 102,796.00 88,446.00 240,565.00 245,377.00 574,388.00 


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - 
EWA 


Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,762.00 3,837.00 7,599.00 


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - 
EWA 


Supplemental 103,510.00 87,606.00 103,510.00 0.00 0.00 103,510.00 


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - 
EWA 


Title I 4,225.00 14,751.00 4,225.00 14,850.00 14,850.00 33,925.00 


1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES 


Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,326.00 11,553.00 22,879.00 


1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES 


Title I 12,740.00 12,740.00 12,740.00 0.00 0.00 12,740.00 


1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 


Supplemental 0.00 2,483.00 0.00 100,980.00 100,980.00 201,960.00 


1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 


Title I 21,000.00 22,500.00 21,000.00 0.00 0.00 21,000.00 


1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 


Title II 69,022.00 81,000.00 69,022.00 0.00 0.00 69,022.00 


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Base 236,383.00 239,725.00 194,434.00 146,806.00 149,742.00 490,982.00 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Other 0.00 0.00 94,386.00 99,301.00 101,287.00 294,974.00 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Supplemental 348,249.00 368,580.00 343,579.00 417,327.00 425,674.00 1,186,580.00 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Title I 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,616.00 27,149.00 53,765.00 
1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-
EWA 


Supplemental 12,891.00 26,400.00 12,891.00 26,400.00 26,400.00 65,691.00 


1300 CERT SUPRVSR & 
ADMN-ADMIN 


Title I 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,160.00 25,663.00 50,823.00 


315 of 778







Page 172 of 174


Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 


Object Type Funding Source 
2017-18 
Annual 
Update 


Budgeted 


2017-18 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 


2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 


Total 
1330 CERT SUPRVSR 
ADMIN - EWA 


Supplemental 5,000.00 6,880.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 


1330 CERT SUPRVSR 
ADMIN - EWA 


Title I 13,000.00 14,320.00 13,000.00 5,600.00 5,600.00 24,200.00 


1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 


Supplemental 453,356.00 451,753.00 453,356.00 348,861.00 355,839.00 1,158,056.00 


1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 


Title I 158,746.00 169,449.00 158,746.00 160,326.00 163,532.00 482,604.00 


1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 


Title III 44,903.00 39,954.00 44,903.00 46,893.00 47,831.00 139,627.00 


2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 


Supplemental 235,086.00 303,182.00 235,086.00 169,505.00 172,895.00 577,486.00 


2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 


Title I 0.00 0.00 0.00 21,556.00 11,219.00 32,775.00 


2100 INST'L SUPV AND 
ADMIN 


Supplemental 0.00 0.00 0.00 31,391.00 32,019.00 63,410.00 


2100 INST'L SUPV AND 
ADMIN 


Title I 0.00 0.00 0.00 79,576.00 81,168.00 160,744.00 


2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES 


Supplemental 302,568.00 267,483.00 302,568.00 366,491.00 373,821.00 1,042,880.00 


2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES 


Title I 9,300.00 0.00 9,300.00 9,628.00 20,158.00 39,086.00 


2400 CLASS CLERICAL 
SALARIES-REG 


Supplemental 54,839.00 49,360.00 54,839.00 45,778.00 46,693.00 147,310.00 


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base 273,910.00 243,111.00 72,429.00 44,730.00 45,625.00 162,784.00 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other 0.00 0.00 221,572.00 227,898.00 271,112.00 720,582.00 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 842,828.00 844,309.00 841,999.00 1,030,996.00 1,049,004.00 2,921,999.00 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 86,043.00 97,541.00 86,043.00 155,665.00 158,648.00 400,356.00 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title II 10,976.00 14,321.00 10,976.00 0.00 0.00 10,976.00 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title III 11,753.00 10,093.00 11,753.00 21,357.00 21,784.00 54,894.00 
4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS 


Supplemental 15,170.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 45,510.00 


4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES 


Base 90,000.00 84,445.00 90,000.00 90,000.00 90,000.00 270,000.00 


316 of 778







Page 173 of 174


Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 


Object Type Funding Source 
2017-18 
Annual 
Update 


Budgeted 


2017-18 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 


2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 


Total 
4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES 


Other 369,105.00 358,681.00 369,105.00 35,410.00 35,410.00 439,925.00 


4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES 


Supplemental 388,006.00 376,602.00 388,006.00 383,800.00 386,609.00 1,158,415.00 


4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES 


Title I 12,694.00 5,000.00 17,194.00 473,813.00 473,813.00 964,820.00 


4395 FOOD FOR 
WORKSHOPS 


Supplemental 3,770.00 3,770.00 3,770.00 3,767.00 3,767.00 11,304.00 


5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES 


Supplemental 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00 


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 


Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 136,002.00 30,000.00 166,002.00 


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 


Supplemental 143,275.00 168,543.00 84,000.00 149,641.00 149,641.00 383,282.00 


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 


Title I 5,000.00 2,672.00 5,000.00 41,500.00 41,500.00 88,000.00 


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 


Title II 133,742.00 107,970.00 133,742.00 146,898.00 146,898.00 427,538.00 


6400 EQUIPMENT Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 
6500 EQUIPMENT 
REPLACEMENT 


Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 128,000.00 128,000.00 256,000.00 


 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  


317 of 778







Page 174 of 174


Total Expenditures by Goal 


Goal 
2017-18 


Annual Update 
Budgeted 


2017-18 
Annual Update 


Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


2017-18 
through 
2019-20 


Total 
Goal 1 1,914,111.00 1,814,432.00 1,981,140.00 1,894,847.00 1,921,978.00 5,797,965.00 


Goal 2 327,962.00 322,648.00 327,962.00 627,515.00 639,251.00 1,594,728.00 


Goal 3 2,830,312.00 2,859,476.00 2,829,812.00 3,373,960.00 3,422,582.00 9,626,354.00 


Goal 4 769,184.00 775,506.00 714,909.00 956,943.00 968,358.00 2,640,210.00 


Goal 5 85,100.00 75,329.00 85,100.00 180,423.00 182,463.00 447,986.00 


Goal 6 393,113.00 422,174.00 393,113.00 533,860.00 544,197.00 1,471,170.00 


Goal 7   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 8   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 9   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 10   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 11   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 12   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 13   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 14   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 15   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.


318 of 778







  AGENDA ITEM 8.5.1.2. 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  18-19 LCAP Federal Addendum/Consolidated Application 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2018 
 
FROM:    Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board approve the LCAP Federal Addendum and Consolidated Application to 
participate in categorically funded programs, both state and federal.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
As part of the 2018-2019 LCAP process, SCCS is required to submit the LCAP Federal Addendum to ensure that 
we are meeting the Local Educational Agency (LEA) Plan provisions of the 2015 Every Student Succeeds Act 
(ESSA). At the same time, the district is required to submit the Consolidated Application (Con App) to 
document participation in the federal and state categorical programs and provide assurances that the district 
will comply with the legal requirements of each program. While the Con App has been in effect since Spring 
2017, this is the first year Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) have been directed to submit the LCAP Federal 
Addendum. The LCAP Federal Addendum is a new document that replaces the LEA Plan and it is due to the 
state on August 15th. 
 
Programs covered in the LCAP Federal Addendum are Title 1, Part A; Title II, Part A; Title III, Part A; and Title IV. 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is designed to work in conjunction with the LCAP, and is not intended to drive 
the development of the LCAP. Instead, ESSA funds are integrated into the LCAP development to promote 
strategic planning and coordinated use of all resources. In SCCS, ESSA funds are being used to support the Tier 
1 and Tier 2 actions (identified by data analysis during our district RtI retreat days) in Academic Literacy, 
Mathematics, English Learner Progress, and School Connectedness. By aligning our federally-funded programs 
with the strategic focus areas identified in our LCAP development process, we will maximize the impact of 
federal investments in support of Santa Cruz City Schools’ underserved students.  
 
Provisions of the ESSA that are not automatically in alignment with state’s priorities and need to be addressed 
separately in the LCAP Federal Addendum are: 


● Title I, Part A: Educator Equity; Parent and Family Engagement; Schoolwide and Targeted Support 
Programs; Homeless Children and Youth Services; Student Transitions. 


● Title II, Part A: Professional Growth and Improvement; Prioritizing Funding; Data and Ongoing 
Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement 


● Title III, Part A: Professional Development in support of English Learners; Enhanced Instructional 
Opportunities for Immigrant children and youth; Title III Programs and Activities; English Proficiency 
and Academic Achievement. 


319 of 778







  AGENDA ITEM 8.5.1.2. 


 


● Title IV, Part A: Activities and Programs (Note: We are converting all of our Title IV to Title II to support 


professional development) 


 
Effectiveness of the programs and activities identified in our LCAP and the LCAP Federal Addendum will be 
evaluated by our 2018-2019 district goals and metrics. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
The allocations of the federally funded programs will not be determined until October 2018, and is then still 
subject to revision. Below is the list of Federal allocations received in the 2017-2018 school year: 
 
Title I, Part A     Elementary:  $311,905 
Title I, Part A      Secondary:  $943,335 
Title I, Part A                Total:   $1,255,240 (Restricted) 
 
Title II, Part A     Elementary:  $63,740 
Title II, Part A      Secondary:  $147,497 
Title II, Part A                Total:  $211,237 (Restricted) 
 
Title III, English Learner   Elementary:  $55,496 
Title III, English Learner     Secondary: $40,004 
Title III, English Learner            Total:   $95,500 (Restricted) 
 
Title III, Immigrant  Elementary:  $0 
Title III, Immigrant     Secondary: $8,663 
Title III, Immigrant        Total:   $8,663 (Restricted) 
 
Title IV, Part A                Total:   $0 


 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college  
                 and career opportunities.              
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive 
                 skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the 
                  SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
  


 


320 of 778







Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)  
Federal Addendum Template 
 


LEA Name 
Santa Cruz City Schools         


 


CDS Code: 
44698150000000         


 


Link to the LCAP: 
(optional) 


 
 


For which ESSA programs apply to your LEA? 
 
Choose From: 
 
X TITLE I, PART A 


Improving Basic Programs Operated by  
State and Local Educational Agencies        


X TITLE II, PART A 
Supporting Effective Instruction        


X TITLE III, PART A  
Language Instruction for English Learners  
and Immigrant Students        


X TITLE IV, PART A 
Student Support and Academic  
Enrichment Grants        


 
(note: This list only includes ESSA programs with LEA plan 
requirements; not all ESSA programs.) 
 


 
 
 


In the following pages, ONLY complete the sections for the corresponding programs. 
 


321 of 778







 
Instructions 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to supplement the LCAP to ensure that eligible LEAs have the 
opportunity to meet the Local Educational Agency (LEA) Plan provisions of the ESSA.  


The LCAP Federal Addendum Template must be completed and submitted to the California 
Department of Education (CDE) to apply for ESSA funding. LEAs are encouraged to review the LCAP 
Federal Addendum annually with their LCAP, as ESSA funding should be considered in yearly strategic 
planning.  


The LEA must address the Strategy and Alignment prompts provided on the following page.  


Each provision for each program must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the LEA.  


In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within the 
LCAP Federal Addendum Template.  


Under State Priority Alignment, state priority numbers are provided to demonstrate where an ESSA 
provision aligns with state priorities. This is meant to assist LEAs in determining where ESSA provisions 
may already be addressed in the LEA’s LCAP, as it demonstrates the LEA’s efforts to support the state 
priorities. 


The CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA funds 
are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are 
encouraged to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic 
planning of all resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff 
will evaluate the LEA’s responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. 
LEAs will be asked to clarify insufficient responses during the review process. 
 


California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in 
support of underserved student groups. This LCAP Federal Addendum provides LEAs with the opportunity 
to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved 
students. 


The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for LEAs to innovate with their federally-
funded programs and align them with the priority goals they are realizing under the state’s Local Control 
Funding Formula (LCFF).  


LCFF provides LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The LCAP planning process supports 
continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement.  


Please respond to the prompts below, and in the pages that follow, to describe the LEA’s plan for making 
the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment with other federal, state, and local programs as 
described in the LEA’s LCAP. 
  


322 of 778







Strategy 
 
Explain the LEA’s strategy for using federal funds to supplement and enhance local priorities or initiatives funded with state 
funds, as reflected in the LEA’s LCAP. This shall include describing the rationale/evidence for the selected use(s) of federal 
funds within the context of the LEA’s broader strategy reflected in the LCAP. 
 


323 of 778







Since 2010, Santa Cruz City Schools has had the same six strategic goals: 
Goal 1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and  career opportunities. 
Goal 2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the 
social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal 3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic  groups within the SCCS student 
community. 
Goal 4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching. 
Goal 5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal 6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 
As part of the first cohort of instructional leaders to attend the California Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS) SUMS 
initiative grant, we used the MTSS framework to examine our progress towards our district goals and identified four 
strategic areas of focus: Academic Literacy, Mathematics, English Learner Progress, and School Connectedness. These 
focus areas were identified through examination of state and local assessments, attendance data, student mobility data, 
discipline data, drop out data, and A-G completion. We paid close attention to the results and needs of our English 
Learners, Low Income students, and foster youth, as well as other traditionally underserved student groups. 
 
In our efforts to continue to improve our stakeholder engagement process regarding our areas of student need (specifically 
as they relate to English Learners, Foster Youth, and students from Low Income households) and how to meet these 
needs, we held a two day Leadership Retreat for teacher leaders, RtI Coordinators, District Instructional Coaches, Site 
and District administrators. Using our strategic four focus areas and our corresponding data analysis, we identified two 
tiers of support for each focus area within each grade span that will provide supports to our English Learners, Low Income 
students, and Foster Youth. As part of the MTSS process, we worked to ensure our LCAP resources are strategically 
aligned to these identified tiers of support, which are aligned to our strategic focus areas. A smaller committee then 
reviewed the recommendations and looked at the district LCAP, Title I, Title II, Title III, Title IV, and other grants and Parcel 
Taxes to determine needed budget revisions to support the implementation of these Tier 1 & Tier 2 practices. 
 
RtI has been in place in our elementary and middle schools since the 2011 school year for both academics and social 
emotional supports, providing resources, professional development and coaching at the core, strategic and intensive 
levels. RtI expanded to our high schools in 2015. Academically, students are assessed using multiple measures and are 
monitored for progress during the year to provide strategic support (e.g., before/after school extended learning, flexible 
intervention groupings within the school day, or tutoring) or more intensive interventions (e.g., replacement for core 
programs, credit recovery) as required. Social emotional and behavioral supports are also provided at every school site. 
Every grade span is implementing tiered academic and social emotional supports to remove obstacles to achievement. In 
our elementary schools, these supports include the Walk to Read Program and math interventions, supported by RtI 
Coordinators, Instructional Technicians and Learning Assistants. In middle school, RtI Coordinators have had a 
concentrated focus on mathematics interventions and supports during the school day. For the 2018-19 school year, middle 
schools will also have one intensive math intervention at each school. They have also supported English Language Arts 
interventions. Our high school RtI Coordinators are building tiers of support with a concentrated focus on mathematics in 
response to parent and student feedback. The high schools are also implementing reading intervention courses for 
students in need of literacy supports. Summer and after school programs target filling academic gaps for students K-12. 
These programs focus on building math and English skills and provide opportunities for high school credit recovery. We 
are using the Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) assessment system as a local assessment to monitor the academic 
growth of all students as well as measure the impact of intervention programs. 
 
Further, we are refining our services for our English Learners. Using supplemental dollars, Title I, and Title III, we have 
implemented Newcomer programs at Gault Elementary, Branciforte Middle School, and Harbor High School. As a district, 
all grade spans have agreed to focus our instructional professional development on Integrated ELD, to support the 
academic growth and achievement of our English Learners. All principals and teachers in all subject areas will be receiving 
training on Integrated ELD, starting with at two day leadership training in June, 2018, which will continue at monthly 
leadership meetings. Teachers will receive the training on a district professional development day in August, and will 
continue in monthly professional development. Our teacher leaders that are apart of their site's Santa Cruz Instructional 
Leaders (SCIL) team, will be participating in ongoing Integrated ELD training throughout the year to build their capacity to 
support their fellow teachers. In addition, each Title 1 school will have a School Community Coordinator supporting our 
newcomers, Spanish speaking families, and homeless students. 
 
This year we are also focusing on monitoring and increasing our students' connection to school and removing social and 
emotional obstacles to student success. All comprehensive elementary schools are implementing Positive Behavior 
Interventions and Supports (PBIS) supported by counselors, a full time Behaviorist/PBIS coach, and part-time PBIS aides. 
LCAP resources also support middle school counseling and after school programs staffed with coordinators and 
instructional technicians. 
 


324 of 778







The California state dashboard highlights our areas of greatest need.  In our elementary district, our English Learners 
received an overall rating of "red" for English Language Arts and an overall rating of "orange" in mathematics.  Low Income 
students, Students with Disabilities and Hispanic students had overall performance ratings of "orange" in both English 
Language Arts and mathematics.  In our secondary district, our English Learners received an overall performance rating 
of "red" in English Language Arts and mathematics on the California state dashboard. Students with Disabilities received 
and overall performance rating of "red" for both English Language Arts and mathematics.  Foster Youth in our secondary 
schools had a "red" rating for suspension rates.  Homeless students in the secondary district received "red" ratings for 
English Language Arts, mathematics and graduation rate. 
 
The dashboard results for our Homeless students in the secondary district placed our district into "Differentiated 
Assistance" with the County Office of Education.  We have appreciated the technical support from the Santa Cruz County 
Office of Education's Educational Services Team.  In our initial meeting with county leadership, we discussed our need to 
focus on more than the Homeless student population as indicated by our data above.  The LCAP reflects our planning 
through our Multi-Tiered Systems of Support work and the guidance provided through the Differentiated Assistance 
process. 
 
In addition to the state measures, we looked closely at our local measures to inform our areas of greatest need.  In our 
elementary Response to Intervention Programs currently, 41%  of elementary students in grades 1 - 5 are being served in 
Walk to Read intervention groups. At the sites, the number of students in Walk to Read intervention groups ranges from 
29% to 58%. The large number of students currently served in our Walk to Read Intervention strongly indicates the need 
for an aligned, effective Tier 1 core literacy program in reading and writing that effectively meets the needs of 80 - 85% of 
our students, including English learners. 
 
This year our district implemented a progress monitoring assessment in English Language Arts and Math grades 3-10 
called Measures of Academic Progress (MAP). MAP predicts students ratings on the CAASPP, the end of year California 
standardized assessment.  The district average on these assessment for all students and our targeted sub group results 
on MAP indicate a need for strategic focus in these academic areas. Based on our MAP Reading data, MAP predicts that 
we will have 51% of our elementary students grades 3-5 meeting or exceeding the standard on the 2018 English Language 
Arts CAASPP assessment. 2% of our English Learners grades 3-5 are predicted to meet or exceed the standard on the 
2018 English Language Arts CAASPP. 21% of our Low Income students grades 3-5 are predicted to meet or exceed the 
standard on the 2018 English Language Arts CAASPP. (Note: We have too few foster youth in our elementary school 
district to get a CAASPP prediction). 
 
Similarly, based on our MAP Math data, MAP predicts that we will have 32% of our elementary students grades 3-5 
meeting or exceeding the standard on the 2018 Math CAASPP assessment. 5% of our English Learners grades 3-5 are 
predicted to meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 Math CAASPP. 9% of our Low Income students grades 3-5 are 
predicted to meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 Math CAASPP. 
 
In our secondary district, based on our MAP Reading data, MAP predicts that we will have 59% of our secondary students 
grades 6-8 meeting or exceeding the standard on the 2018 English Language Arts CAASPP assessment. 2% of our 
English Learners grades 6-8 are predicted to meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 English Language Arts CAASPP. 
34% of our Low Income students grades 6-8 are predicted to meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 English Language 
Arts CAASPP. (Note: We have too few foster youth in our secondary school district to get a CAASPP prediction). 
 
Similarly, based on our MAP Math data, MAP predicts that we will have 41% of our secondary students grades 6-8 meeting 
or exceeding the standard on the 2018 Mathematics CAASPP assessment. 2% of our English Learners grades 6-8 are 
predicted to meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 Mathematics CAASPP. 18% of our Low Income students grades 
6-8 are predicted to meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 Mathematics CAASPP. 
 
 
 
 


 
Alignment 
 
Describe the efforts that the LEA will take to align use of federal funds with activities funded by state and local funds and, 
as applicable, across different federal grant programs. 
 


325 of 778







Our student need as determined by the above data drives our focus and work. Using the MTSS framework and our LCAP 
stakeholder engagement planning process as described in our above stated strategy, we specifically identified the below 
priorities to supplement and enhance our state and local priorities and initiatives, which is also reflected in our LCAP. Using 
LCFF base and other local funding sources for our Tier I programs, we use federal dollars for more strategic activities for 
targeted student populations. 
 
This year our increased and/or improved services include: 1) Refining our Instructional Coaching program focusing on 
supporting teachers to implement instructional strategies that support English Learners and struggling students. 2) 
Providing mandatory Integrated ELD Professional Development to all site Santa Cruz Instructional Leader team members, 
Principals and Assistant Principals, and district office administrators. 3) Adding sections for academic intervention, Tier 2 
math and ELA support classes, and sections of a more comprehensive Tier 3 Math Support class at our comprehensive 
high schools and middle schools, with a strategic focus on support for unduplicated pupils. 4) Adding a full time elementary 
Behaviorist/PBIS Coach to support the implementation of PBIS and increase student connectedness, with a strategic focus 
on support for unduplicated pupils. 5) Adding Positive Behavior Instructional Technicians at our elementary schools to 
support school connectedness and remove obstacles for student learning, , with a strategic focus on support for 
unduplicated pupils. 6) Adding part time School Community Coordinators at Soquel High and Santa Cruz High and 
increasing the hours of the School Community Coordinators at the middle schools to ensure access and outreach for our 
families of unduplicated pupils.  All these services are coordinated through the LCAP planning process and are the result 
of stakeholder input, research (largely based on Hattie’s Visible Learning), and examination of student need. 
 
Title I: Instructional Coaches, Newcomer Teacher, Homeless student services, academic interventions and personnel 
supports, counseling specific to supporting ELs. Additionally, our schools with School-wide Title 1 Programs also receive 
Title 1 funds to provide targeted support to their Title 1 students and academically at-risk students. Principals and their 
School Site Councils are working to align their SPSAs and Tile 1 funds to the four strategic focus areas, which reflect our 
greatest areas of student need. 
 
Title II: New Teacher Project & administrative coaching and professional development in the strategic focus areas, 
professional development on CA ELA/ELD framework and Integrated ELD. 
 
Title III: Newcomer teacher, ELD PD (GLAD) 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP 
 
Within the LCAP an LEA is required to describe its goals, and the specific actions to achieve those goals, for each of the 
LCFF state priorities. In an approvable LCAP it will be apparent from the descriptions of the goals, actions, and services 
how an LEA is acting to address the following ESSA provisions through the aligned LCFF state priorities and/or the state 
accountability system. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards 


ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 


1112(b)(1) (A–D) 1, 2, 4, 7, 8 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will monitor students’ progress in meeting the challenging state academic standards by: 
 


(A) developing and implementing a well-rounded program of instruction to meet the academic needs of all students; 
(B) identifying students who may be at risk for academic failure; 
(C) providing additional educational assistance to individual students the LEA or school determines need help in 


meeting the challenging State academic standards; and 
(D) identifying and implementing instructional and other strategies intended to strengthen academic programs and 


improve school conditions for student learning. 
326 of 778







 
 
 
 
Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom 


ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 


1112(b)(11) 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will support efforts to reduce the overuse of discipline practices that remove students from the 
classroom, which may include identifying and supporting schools with high rates of discipline, disaggregated by each of 
the student groups, as defined in Section 1111(c)(2). 
 
 
 


 
Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities 


ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 


1112(b)(12)(A–B) 2, 4, 7 (as applicable) 
 
If determined appropriate by the LEA, describe how such agency will support programs that coordinate and integrate: 
 


(A) academic and career and technical education content through coordinated instructional strategies, that may 
incorporate experiential learning opportunities and promote skills attainment important to in-demand occupations 
or industries in the State; and 


(B) work-based learning opportunities that provide students in-depth interaction with industry professionals and, if 
appropriate, academic credit. 


 
 
 
 


327 of 778







 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Title II, Part A Activities 


ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 


2102(b)(2)(A) 1, 2, 4 (as applicable) 
 
Provide a description of the activities to be carried out by the LEA under this Section and how these activities will be 
aligned with challenging State academic standards. 
 
 
 


 


328 of 778







TITLE III, PART A 
 
Parent, Family, and Community Engagement 


ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 


3116(b)(3) 3, 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will promote parent, family, and community engagement in the education of English 
learners. 
 
 
 
 


329 of 778







 
ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System 
 
An LEA addresses the following ESSA provision as part of completing annual reporting through the Consolidated 
Application and Reporting System (CARS). 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Poverty Criteria 
 


ESSA SECTION(S) STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 


1112(b)(4) N/A 
 
Describe the poverty criteria that will be used to select school attendance areas under Section 1113. 
 
 
 


 


330 of 778







 
ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP  
 
For the majority of LEAs the ESSA provisions on the following pages do not align with state priorities. Each provision 
for each program provided on the following pages must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the 
LEA. In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within this addendum. 
 
As previously stated, the CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA 
funds are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are encouraged 
to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic planning of all 
resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff will evaluate the LEA’s 
responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. LEAs will be asked to clarify 
insufficient responses during the review process. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Educator Equity 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(2) 
 
Describe how the LEA will identify and address, as required under State plans as described in Section 1111(g)(1)(B), any 
disparities that result in low-income students and minority students being taught at higher rates than other students by 
ineffective, inexperienced, or out-of-field teachers. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
There are no disparities between low-income students and minority students taught at higher rates than other students by 
ineffective, inexperienced, or out-of-field teachers. We know this because we currently have 0 teaching mis-assignments 
of ELs and 4 total teacher mis-assignments (4 mis-assignments = 2% of our instructional staff). Thus, 98% of our 
instructional staff are compliant at this time, and given the year we are between 96% to 100% compliant. 
 
Across the district, we currently employ 54 teachers with less than 2 years of experience. Of these, 13 (24%) of them are 
assigned to Special Education. These teachers are distributed fairly equally across the district. Although we have low 
income and minority students at all of our schools, three schools (one at each grade span - Gault Elementary, Branciforte 
Middle, and Harbor High) have a greater proportion of low income and minority students. None of these schools have a 
disproportionate number inexperienced teachers, as there are inexperienced teachers at each of our schools. 
 
Our district has several practices in place to ensure equitable staffing in support of low income and minority students: 
Priority staffing is given to schools with high minority and low income student populations. Positions at these sites are filled 
first, allowing those sites first choice in finding qualified, experienced, and effective teachers. 
Consideration is given to the diversity of the student population when placing teachers. As much as possible, teachers 
representing the dominant minority and gender of students are placed in our most diverse schools. 
Attend recruiting fairs at colleges with diverse student population with the goal to increase the diversity of the teaching 
force. 
 
 
 
 


 
Parent and Family Engagement 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(B)(3) AND 1112(B)(7) 
 
Describe how the LEA will carry out its responsibility under Section 1111(d).  
Describe the strategy the LEA will use to implement effective parent and family engagement under Section 1116. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 


331 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools gathered input from a variety of stakeholders to make updates to our 2017-2020 Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP). A series of meetings were held over eight months from September 2017 – May 2018. A survey 
was administered to parents, students and all staff for input to inform our LCAP. SCCS community groups 
(Superintendent’s Parent Leader Advisory Group, District English Language Advisory Council (DELAC), Migrant Parent 
Advisory Council (PAC), District Advisory Committee (DAC), Student Focus Groups and Board Community Meetings) 
provided input on the LCAP through regularly scheduled meetings. 
 
The LCAP stakeholder meeting dates included: 
 
I. DAC Meetings               Nov 13, Nov 30, Dec 11, Dec 13, Jan 22, and Feb 12 
II. Parent Leadership Committee Oct 16, Nov 27, Feb 26 
III. DELAC/ PAC    Feb. 15 
IV. Parent and Student Surveys  Nov-Feb, 2017-18 
V.     Student Focus Group Meetings       Nov 27, Nov 30, Dec 4, Dec 12 
V.     Board Community Meetings            Sept 26, Nov 13, Jan 18, Feb, Mar 15 and April 17 
VI. Board Updates and Approval  Sept 27, Oct 18, Nov 8, Feb 28, Mar 7, April 18, June 13, and June 20 
 
The DAC, DELAC and PAC were all presented with information regarding the funding process, current action steps written 
into the 2016-19 three-year LCAP, progress to date (including CAASPP data, local assessment data, graduation rates, 
English Learner redesignation rates, truancy, expulsions, and suspensions), and estimated funding for the 2018-19 school 
year. These parent groups discussed district data - local assessments, CDE Dashboard, input from parent, student and 
staff surveys.  They used this information to prioritize LCAP action steps and goals needing to be continued, removed, or 
revised.  Structured conversations allowed all stakeholders opportunity to review data and make recommendations.  To 
ensure access for our Spanish speaking community, we provided translated documents, bilingual surveys and 
interpretation in meetings. 
 
Trends in the LCAP recommendations from DAC, DELAC, PAC, Community Meetings, Parent Leadership Committee, 
Student Focused Group meetings, and parent, staff, and student surveys included the following: 
 
Supports already in place that should continue: 
*After school homework supports 
*Advancement via Individual Determination (AVID) program to support first generation college bound students particularly 
Low Income, ELs and Foster Youth 
*Instructional aides in classes and tutors 
*School activities (e.g., athletics, band, clubs, etc.) 
*Counseling social/emotional supports 
*Bilingual Community Coordinators 
*Elementary SLT Program 
*Elementary Walk to Read Program 
*Social Workers (focused on building student connectedness) 
*Career Technical Education (CTE) classes 
 
Desired Supports: 
*A focus on teachers building relationships with students 
*Professional Development for teachers (with an emphasis on: supporting English Language Learners in the classroom, 
supporting struggling learners in the classroom, and supporting teachers with how to incorporate and support diversity) 
*Additional homework support (e.g., longer library hours with tutoring support, daily teacher office hours, time to begin 
homework in class and get help if needed, study hall, etc.) 
*Bilingual counselors 
*Additional social/emotional & academic/career counseling services 
*Additional social workers 
*Positive Behavioral Interventions and Support (PBIS) Coordinator 
*More communication with parents 
*Parent Education workshops focused on early childhood literacy 
*Elementary Math Intervention(s) 
*Summer Enrichment Program 
*Build on work with foster youth collaborative to ensure wrap around services for foster youth 
 
Our stakeholder involvement process is part of our SCCS culture. In addition to all of the above, each of our Title 1 schools 
have regular SSC, ELAC parent groups and parent school compact meetings. The parent compact is given out at the 
beginning of the school year. During these meetings parents give input in regards to the school SPSA and how the school 
Title 1 funds are spent. 


332 of 778







 
During parent and community meetings, parents spoke out about the strength of our counseling programs at both the 
elementary and secondary levels and the supports they provide to students. Parents also asked for additional counseling. 
This request for additional counseling was also seen in our annual LCAP parent survey. Parents also value the School 
Community Coordinators, which are all bilingual, and who provided communication services, community outreach, and 
support to families in navigating our school system. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(5) and 1112(b)(9) 
 
Describe, in general, the nature of the programs to be conducted by the LEA’s schools under sections 1114 and 1115 and, 
where appropriate, educational services outside such schools for children living in local institutions for neglected or 
delinquent children, and for neglected and delinquent children in community day school programs. 
 
Describe how teachers and school leaders, in consultation with parents, administrators, paraprofessionals, and specialized 
instructional support personnel, in schools operating a targeted assistance school program under Section 1115, will identify 
the eligible children most in need of services under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
All of the elementary and secondary schools in SCCS, with the exception of Westlake Elementary, receive Title 1 funds 
and have Title 1 School-wide Programs. Each school uses their SPSA to measure their students' academic progress and 
describe their instructional Tier 1 programs and Tier 2 interventions. Specifically in elementary, Title 1 funds are spent on 
our schoolwide Walk to Read programs, where our Response to Intervention coordinators collaborate with classroom 
teachers and learning assistants to provide leveled reading instruction to all students. Teams meet three times a year 
(SLTs or Student Learning Teams) to discuss the placement and needs of students who are below grade level in reading, 
as measured by local reading assessments, MAP, and CPAA assessments. Two instructional coaches are working with 
four elementary schools, coaching on the Common Core instructional practices specific to the subject areas, as well as 
Integrated and Designated ELD. 
 
At the secondary level, students performing below grade level are supported by RtI coordinators in mathematics. 
Additionally, there is an English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher (ELIRT) supporting teachers of English Learners 
with coaching on effective practices and implementation of both Integrated and Designated ELD. Finally, the AVID program 
provides targeted support for our traditionally underserved students in middle and high school. The AVID program supports 
students with the "hidden curriculum" of schools and with meeting the requirements to prepare for college and university 
admittance. 
 
At each site, staff assess their particular needs and develop their Single Plans based on those needs. SPSAs are being 
aligned to our strategic focus areas, with goals targeting one of the identified areas for improvement. Ongoing evaluation 
of the progress towards these goals are completed by looking at MAP data, attendance data, and other local indicators of 
progress. 
 
 
 
 


 
Homeless Children and Youth Services 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(6) 
 
Describe the services the LEA will provide homeless children and youths, including services provided with funds reserved 
under Section 1113(c)(3)(A), to support the enrollment, attendance, and success of homeless children and youths, in 
coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 United States 
Code 11301 et seq.). 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 


333 of 778







 
Santa Cruz City Schools has a designated liaison for students in transition. Our Student Services Director ensures that 
the rights of homeless students and youths are protected and ensures access to an equitable education, in accordance 
with the McKinney-Vento Act. Our Director of Student Services works with each school’s counseling and administration 
team as well as two district social workers to ensure our homeless students’ needs are met by providing  bus passes, 
school supplies, personal supplies (clothing, hygiene items, etc.,), and/or by supporting families to get connected with 
social services and supports when needed. 
 
Using Title I carryover, we are currently enrolling our homeless elementary students in the Boys and Girls Club summer 
program. In addition, we changed our bus route to have a pick up and drop off spot at the Rebele Family Shelter to 
support better attendance of homeless students. Principals have also reached out and are working to coordinate with the 
shelter Director to provide more support for families. We have dedicated Title I resources for Homeless students for 
supplies and materials. School Community Coordinators at our Title 1 schools provide services and support to homeless 
students, and additional FTE at selected schools will further support unduplicated count students and homeless students 
across the district. 
 
 
 
 
 
Student Transitions 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(8), 1112(b)(10), and 1112(b)(10) (A–B) 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will support, coordinate, and integrate services provided under this part with early 
childhood education programs at the LEA or individual school level, including plans for the transition of participants in 
such programs to local elementary school programs. 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will implement strategies to facilitate effective transitions for students from middle 
grades to high school and from high school to postsecondary education including: 


(A) coordination with institutions of higher education, employers, and other local partners; and 
(B) increased student access to early college high school or dual or concurrent enrollment opportunities, or career 


counseling to identify student interests and skills. 


 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
 
 
 


 
Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(13) (A–B) 
 
Provide any other information on how the LEA proposes to use funds to meet the purposes of this part, and that the LEA 
determines appropriate to provide, which may include how the LEA will: 
 


(A) assist schools in identifying and serving gifted and talented students; and 
(B) assist schools in developing effective school library programs to provide students an opportunity to develop 


digital literacy skills and improve academic achievement. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 


334 of 778







The counseling connection begins during the transition between fifth and sixth grade. The counselors have designed a 
series of lessons, school visits, parent night and teacher-led lessons to support this transition to middle school. Some 
examples of these lessons involve practice with opening a locker, learning how to read a schedule, following a map to find 
their way on a school visit, and viewing the PE locker room. They write letters to their 6th grade core teachers describing 
who they are, what their interests are and how they learn. Simultaneously, information is provided to parents on the 
developmental task and changes as their child moves from 5th to 6th grade ranging from hygiene to the new academic 
demands of six classes. 
 
The secondary Tier 1 counseling programs continue with 8th grade transition meetings in which students learn about 
credits, classes, 9th grade Four Year Planning workshops, 10th grade career inventories and career units including 
understanding CTE pathways, college search, application support and financial aid workshops, and senior checklists as 
students ready for the next stage of life. All of this support is being provided while counselors also respond to the day-to-
day needs of their students. They coordinate scheduling, course selection, credit checks, and work with teachers to provide 
for the special circumstances and needs of students and their families. In the social-emotional domain, counselors provide 
classroom lessons on bullying, harassment, and understanding feelings. In the Tier 2, support counselors are responding 
on a daily basis to the needs of their students ranging from short term challenges of adolescence to longer term mental 
health needs including depression, anxiety, grief, and mental illness. 
 
Finally, SCCS collaborates with districts across the county to provide a pathway and supports for students to go to college. 
The Santa Cruz County College Commitment (S4C) is a collaboration between all Santa Cruz County school districts, 
Cabrillo College, the University of California Santa Cruz, and California State University Monterey Bay. The mission of 
S4C is introducing and preparing students for post-secondary education. Another example is the annual Latino Role 
Models Conference, sponsored in concert with Senderos, and held at Cabrillo College. This inspiring event, conducted all 
in Spanish, provides parent education on college admissions, A-G completion, financial aid, and more. Bus transportation 
was provided to participating students and parents. 
 
 
 
 


335 of 778







 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Professional Growth and Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(B) 
 
Provide a description of the LEA’s systems of professional growth and improvement, such as induction for teachers, 
principals, or other school leaders and opportunities for building the capacity of teachers and opportunities to develop 
meaningful teacher leadership. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
SCCS strongly believes in the need for each staff member (teachers, administrators, office staff, etc.) to receive ongoing 
Professional Development. In looking at our district student data, there is a strong need for professional development that 
supports our English Learners (ELs) and Reclassified English Proficient (RFEP) students. As a district, all grade spans 
have agreed to focus our instructional professional development on Integrated ELD, to support the academic growth and 
achievement of our English Learners. All principals will be receiving training on Integrated ELD, starting with at two day 
leadership training in June, 2018, which will continue at monthly leadership meetings. Teachers will receive the training 
on a district professional development day in August, and will continue in monthly professional development. As such, the 
ongoing focus of Professional Development for teachers, teacher leaders (locally called SCIL, Santa Cruz Instructional 
Leaders), administrators, counselors, and classified staff is on supporting ELs and RFEP students each with a lens related 
to their role (e.g., instructor, principal, counselor, Community Coordinator, etc.). The focus of 2018-19 professional learning 
at elementary will be systematic training on Common Core State Standards in literacy and the ELA/ELD Framework. 
 
We are measuring the success of professional development in a variety of ways. After each Professional Development 
session a standard feedback survey is administered. We also use the New Teacher Project standardized Working 
Conditions Survey to measure the effectiveness of professional development. In addition, administrators conduct 
instructional walkthroughs focused on the instructional practices professional development teachers are receiving. 
Ultimately, we are using our CAASPP data and local district assessments to measure student growth, which is the greatest 
indicator of Professional Development success. In monitoring this data, we make adjustments to the style and delivery of 
professional development as well as the focus. 
 
In addition, secondary math teachers are receiving Common Core mathematics training through CPM (College Preparatory 
Mathematics) and all teachers have the opportunity to participate in the Silicon Valley Math Institute (SVMI) Twilight Series 
focused on implementing evidence based mathematics instruction. 
 
We also provide New Teacher Project coaches to our teachers in their first and second year of teaching, as well as 
administrator coaches to new administrators. Experienced administrators receive a yearly allotment for professional 
development outside of the district. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prioritizing Funding 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(C) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will prioritize funds to schools served by the agency that are implementing 
comprehensive support and improvement activities and targeted support and improvement activities under Section 1111(d) 
and have the highest percentage of children counted under Section 1124(c). 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 


336 of 778







Instructional coaches at the elementary level will provide ongoing, targeted support on research based, high yield 
instructional practices in the classroom. All teachers will be involved in a coaching cycle, analyzing data and measuring 
impact. Gault school, with a high proportion of low income and minority students, will receive more coaching support than 
the other schools (.8 FTE, as opposed to .5 FTE at two elementary sites and .2 at the fourth elementary site.) 
 
The impact of coaching will be measured in ongoing formative assessment of students work, teacher and administrator 
feedback, and summative assessment results. (MAP, CPAA, CAASPP). 
 
In addition, more professional development funds are given to teachers at our schools with the highest percentage of 
students from Low Income households (Gault Elementary, Branciforte Middle School, Harbor High School, and Costanoa 
Alternative High School) in comparison to the rest of the schools in our district. 
 
 
 
 


 
Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(D) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will use data and ongoing consultation described in Section 2102(b)(3) to continually 
update and improve activities supported under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Data is analyzed throughout the school year in a variety of ways. We have a year long data calendar which prioritizes data 
sets for each of our principal and leadership meetings. In August and September, CAASPP results will be analyzed by site 
and disaggregated by subgroup. Using Dataquest and our local data analysis program, Illuminate, site leaders along with 
staff will update progress on goals set out in their SPSAs. ELPAC scores will be studied as well.  We are following closely 
the progress of our Ever ELs - both current and reclassified ELs - to ensure continued academic progress through and 
beyond reclassification. Finally, we are making use of the “Distance from Met” metric in CAASPP to show growth within a 
performance band. 
 
Site leaders will also be analyzing Spring MAP and CPAA results (computer adaptive, nationally normed academic 
assessments), again by subgroup, to determine growth and identify areas of success as well as areas for improvement. 
Data from MAP and CPAA are studied each trimester at elementary, and at the fall and winter semesters in secondary. 
 
In addition to State testing and MAP/CPAA data, elementary sites will be studying the results of the local reading 
assessments and both elementary and middle schools will be analyzing their local common writing assessments. These 
results, as well as MAP/CPAA and state test results are used in determining placement into Tiered instructional reading 
groups in Walk to Read at elementary and are used in determining appropriate intervention in middle school. 
 
Data is shared with stakeholders in a variety of ways: at Site Council meetings, DELAC and ELAC meetings, District 
Advisory Council meetings, and Public School board meetings. The practice of publicly sharing SCCS data and comparing 
it to similar districts, begun in 2017-18, will continue as we evaluate our own progress, collaborate across districts, and 
make adjustments based on student need. 
 
Finally, we have a comprehensive list of metrics aligned with our six district goals and will continue to analyze growth and 
update them annually. 
 
 
 
 


 


337 of 778







 
TITLE III, PART A 
 
Title III Professional Development 
ESSA SECTION 3115(c)(2) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide effective professional development to classroom teachers, principals and other 
school leaders, administrators, and other school or community-based organizational personnel. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Further, we are refining our services for our English Learners. As a district, all grade spans have agreed to focus our 
instructional professional development on Integrated ELD, to support the academic growth and achievement of our English 
Learners. All principals and teachers in all subject areas will be receiving training on Integrated ELD (based on CA 
ELA/ELD Framework, The California English Learner Roadmap, and CA ELD Standards), starting with at two day 
leadership training in June, 2018, which will continue at monthly leadership meetings. Teachers will receive the training 
on a district professional development day in August, and will continue in monthly professional development. Our teacher 
leaders that are apart of their site's Santa Cruz Instructional Leaders (SCIL) team, will be participating in ongoing Integrated 
ELD training throughout the year to build their capacity to support their fellow teachers. 
 
In addition, ELD teachers and administrators will receive training on understanding and using the ELPAC to impact 
instruction. Secondary ELD teachers will also participate in a monthly PD session focused on implemented evidence based 
Designated ELD instructional strategies for Newcomers and Long Term English Language Learners. 
 
 
 
 
 
Enhanced Instructional Opportunities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3115(e)(1) and 3116 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 


338 of 778







In both elementary and secondary, we provide our immigrant students with Newcomer instructors. These Newcomer 
instructors specialize in teaching students beginning to learn English. In addition, our social workers and counselors 
support immigrant students in need of social emotional counseling. When funds allow, we also support our immigrant 
students with after school programs, homework help, and/or tutoring. We also work with our School Community 
Coordinators and our community partners to provide students and parents information pertinent to needs unique to 
immigrants. Our Title III Immigrant funds only cover a small fraction of these services. Title I and LCFF supplemental is 
used to fund what Title III Immigrant funds do not. 
 
As part of our stakeholder engagement process, we ask for input from stakeholders in a variety of ways. We invite parents 
to participate in community meetings with the superintendent where parents are provided with a venue to give input into 
the needs and services of students. DELAC and parent leadership meetings are also held as a means for parents to give 
input into the needs and supports of students. A parent, student, and staff survey is also administered each year as a 
means for seeking input and feedback into how we support our immigrant and other students. We also have a District 
Advisory Committee (DAC), which focuses on analyzing current practices and programs and determining if they are the 
most effective in meeting student needs as well as determining additional programs/supports to meet student needs. 
Student focus groups were also held as a means to seek student voice and input. Teacher leaders, counselors, 
administrators, district instructional coaches and other stakeholders were also invited to participate in a retreat focused on 
determining student needs, analyzing current practices and programs to determine effectiveness, and determining next 
Tier 1 and Tier 2 steps for the four areas of focus that were determined based on student needs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Title III Programs and Activities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(1) 
 
Describe the effective programs and activities, including language instruction educational programs, proposed to be 
developed, implemented, and administered under the subgrant that will help English learners increase their English 
language proficiency and meet the challenging State academic standards. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Using supplemental dollars, Title I, and Title III, we have implemented Newcomer programs at Gault Elementary, 
Branciforte Middle School, and Harbor High School. Elementary students receive ELD instruction in a variety of ways. 
Depending on enrollment, some site team across the grade level to provide leveled ELD. Some sites provide ELD 
instruction in the core classroom with designated, focused small group instruction. Teachers will be providing both 
designated ELD and integrated ELD using out adopted ELA/ELD programs as well as supplemental resources, such as 
Accessing Complex Text and Systematic ELD, as appropriate. In addition, each secondary school has a Designated ELD 
program as determined by their students’ needs. In these Designated ELD programs, Edge, English 3D, Rosetta Stone, 
and other evidence based ELD curriculum that is focused on developing students' literacy skills are used to support the 
growth of our ELD students’ academic English. 
 
CELDT/ELPAC, CAASPP, and MAP student scores are used to determine the effectiveness of our Newcomer and other 
Designated ELD classes and programs. 
 
 
 


 
English Proficiency and Academic Achievement 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(2)(A-B) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will ensure that elementary schools and secondary schools receiving funds under Subpart 
1 assist English learners in: 
 


(A) achieving English proficiency based on the State’s English language proficiency assessment under Section 
1111(b)(2)(G), consistent with the State’s long-term goals, as described in Section 1111(c)(4)(A)(ii); and 


(B) meeting the challenging State academic standards. 
339 of 778







 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
One of our four district strategic focus areas is on ensuring our English Learners are making adequate annual progress. 
Using supplemental dollars, Title I, and Title III, we have implemented Newcomer programs at Gault Elementary, 
Branciforte Middle School, and Harbor High School. Elementary students receive ELD instruction in a variety of ways. 
Depending on enrollment, some site team across the grade level to provide leveled ELD. Some sites provide ELD 
instruction in the core classroom with designated, focused small group instruction. Teachers will be providing both 
designated ELD and integrated ELD using out adopted ELA/ELD programs as well as supplemental resources, such as 
Accessing Complex Text and Systematic ELD, as appropriate. In addition, each secondary school has a Designated ELD 
program as determined by their students’ needs. In these Designated ELD programs, Edge, English 3D, Rosetta Stone, 
and other evidence based ELD curriculum that is focused on developing students' literacy skills are used to support the 
growth of our ELD students’ academic English. 
 
The results of ELPAC are studied annually, and each SPSA will have an English Language Development goal, as one of 
our strategic focus areas is English Learner Progress. As well as the ELCAP, English Learner Progress will be measured 
by CAASPP, MAP/CPAA, local assessments, as well as reclassification rate, A-G completion rates, and graduation rates. 
 
 
 
 
 


 


340 of 778







 
TITLE IV, PART A 
 
Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs 
ESSA SECTION 4106(e)(1) 
 
Describe the activities and programming that the LEA, or consortium of such agencies, will carry out under Subpart 1, 
including a description of: 
 


(A) any partnership with an institution of higher education, business, nonprofit organization, community-based 
organization, or other public or private entity with a demonstrated record of success in implementing activities under 
this subpart;  


(B) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting well-rounded education under Section 4107;  
(C) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting safe and healthy students under Section 


4108; 
(D) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting the effective use of technology in schools 


under Section 4109; and 
(E) the program objectives and intended outcomes for activities under Subpart 1, and how the LEA, or consortium of 


such agencies, will periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the activities carried out under this section based on 
such objectives and outcomes. 


 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
We are converting all of our Title IV to Title II. See details regarding Title II in the Title II section of the Federal Addendum. 
 
 


341 of 778







This page has been left blank







34
3 


of
 7


78







34
4 


of
 7


78







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.2.1 
2018-19 Budget Adoption cover 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


AGENDA ITEM: Adoption of the 2018-19 Budget and Certifications 


MEETING DATE: June 20, 2018 


FROM:  Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the adoption of the 2018-19 Budget, as presented at the public hearing on June 13, 
2018. 


BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools is on a single budget adoption cycle.  This means the Board adopts a 
budget by June 30th.  The preliminary budget presented to the Governing Board on June 13, 
2018 was based on current law as of June 7, 2018.   Subsequent to the generation of the 
preliminary budget presented to the Board, final 2018-2019 State Budget negotiations 
between the Governor and the Legislature were completed.  A summary of significant changes 
and other modifications to the SCCS budget is presented in a separate agenda item at this 
meeting.   


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 


1. All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and
career opportunities.


2. SCCS students will be motivated learners who leave our system as well rounded citizens
with a broad spectrum of interests and abilities


3. We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic
groups within the SCCS student community.


4. We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting
effective teaching.


5. SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.


6. SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.


Prepared by Greg Torr, Finance Director 


345 of 778







This page has been left blank







34
7 


of
 7


78







34
8 


of
 7


78







34
9 


of
 7


78







35
0 


of
 7


78







35
1 


of
 7


78







35
2 


of
 7


78







35
3 


of
 7


78







35
4 


of
 7


78







35
5 


of
 7


78







35
6 


of
 7


78







35
7 


of
 7


78







35
8 


of
 7


78







35
9 


of
 7


78







36
0 


of
 7


78







36
1 


of
 7


78







36
2 


of
 7


78







36
3 


of
 7


78







36
4 


of
 7


78







36
5 


of
 7


78







36
6 


of
 7


78







36
7 


of
 7


78







36
8 


of
 7


78







36
9 


of
 7


78







37
0 


of
 7


78







37
1 


of
 7


78







37
2 


of
 7


78







37
3 


of
 7


78







37
4 


of
 7


78







37
5 


of
 7


78







37
6 


of
 7


78







37
7 


of
 7


78







37
8 


of
 7


78







37
9 


of
 7


78







38
0 


of
 7


78







38
1 


of
 7


78







38
2 


of
 7


78







38
3 


of
 7


78







38
4 


of
 7


78







38
5 


of
 7


78







38
6 


of
 7


78







38
7 


of
 7


78







38
8 


of
 7


78







38
9 


of
 7


78







39
0 


of
 7


78







39
1 


of
 7


78







39
2 


of
 7


78







39
3 


of
 7


78







39
4 


of
 7


78







39
5 


of
 7


78







39
6 


of
 7


78







39
7 


of
 7


78







39
8 


of
 7


78







39
9 


of
 7


78







40
0 


of
 7


78







40
1 


of
 7


78







40
2 


of
 7


78







40
3 


of
 7


78







40
4 


of
 7


78







40
5 


of
 7


78







40
6 


of
 7


78







40
7 


of
 7


78







40
8 


of
 7


78







40
9 


of
 7


78







41
0 


of
 7


78







41
1 


of
 7


78







41
2 


of
 7


78







41
3 


of
 7


78







41
4 


of
 7


78







41
5 


of
 7


78







41
6 


of
 7


78







41
7 


of
 7


78







41
8 


of
 7


78







41
9 


of
 7


78







42
0 


of
 7


78







42
1 


of
 7


78







42
2 


of
 7


78







42
3 


of
 7


78







42
4 


of
 7


78







42
5 


of
 7


78







42
6 


of
 7


78







42
7 


of
 7


78







42
8 


of
 7


78







42
9 


of
 7


78







43
0 


of
 7


78







43
1 


of
 7


78







This page has been left blank







43
3 


of
 7


78







43
4 


of
 7


78







43
5 


of
 7


78







43
6 


of
 7


78







43
7 


of
 7


78







43
8 


of
 7


78







43
9 


of
 7


78







44
0 


of
 7


78







44
1 


of
 7


78







44
2 


of
 7


78







44
3 


of
 7


78







44
4 


of
 7


78







44
5 


of
 7


78







44
6 


of
 7


78







44
7 


of
 7


78







44
8 


of
 7


78







44
9 


of
 7


78







45
0 


of
 7


78







45
1 


of
 7


78







45
2 


of
 7


78







45
3 


of
 7


78







45
4 


of
 7


78







45
5 


of
 7


78







45
6 


of
 7


78







45
7 


of
 7


78







45
8 


of
 7


78







45
9 


of
 7


78







46
0 


of
 7


78







46
1 


of
 7


78







46
2 


of
 7


78







46
3 


of
 7


78







46
4 


of
 7


78







46
5 


of
 7


78







46
6 


of
 7


78







46
7 


of
 7


78







46
8 


of
 7


78







46
9 


of
 7


78







47
0 


of
 7


78







47
1 


of
 7


78







47
2 


of
 7


78







47
3 


of
 7


78







47
4 


of
 7


78







47
5 


of
 7


78







47
6 


of
 7


78







47
7 


of
 7


78







47
8 


of
 7


78







47
9 


of
 7


78







48
0 


of
 7


78







48
1 


of
 7


78







48
2 


of
 7


78







48
3 


of
 7


78







48
4 


of
 7


78







48
5 


of
 7


78







48
6 


of
 7


78







48
7 


of
 7


78







48
8 


of
 7


78







48
9 


of
 7


78







49
0 


of
 7


78







49
1 


of
 7


78







49
2 


of
 7


78







49
3 


of
 7


78







49
4 


of
 7


78







49
5 


of
 7


78







49
6 


of
 7


78







49
7 


of
 7


78







49
8 


of
 7


78







49
9 


of
 7


78







50
0 


of
 7


78







50
1 


of
 7


78







50
2 


of
 7


78







50
3 


of
 7


78







50
4 


of
 7


78







50
5 


of
 7


78







50
6 


of
 7


78







50
7 


of
 7


78







50
8 


of
 7


78







50
9 


of
 7


78







51
0 


of
 7


78







51
1 


of
 7


78







51
2 


of
 7


78







51
3 


of
 7


78







51
4 


of
 7


78







51
5 


of
 7


78







51
6 


of
 7


78







51
7 


of
 7


78







51
8 


of
 7


78







51
9 


of
 7


78







52
0 


of
 7


78







52
1 


of
 7


78







52
2 


of
 7


78







52
3 


of
 7


78







52
4 


of
 7


78







52
5 


of
 7


78







52
6 


of
 7


78







52
7 


of
 7


78







52
8 


of
 7


78







52
9 


of
 7


78







53
0 


of
 7


78







53
1 


of
 7


78







53
2 


of
 7


78







53
3 


of
 7


78







53
4 


of
 7


78







53
5 


of
 7


78







53
6 


of
 7


78







53
7 


of
 7


78







53
8 


of
 7


78







53
9 


of
 7


78







54
0 


of
 7


78







54
1 


of
 7


78







54
2 


of
 7


78







54
3 


of
 7


78







54
4 


of
 7


78







54
5 


of
 7


78







54
6 


of
 7


78







54
7 


of
 7


78







54
8 


of
 7


78







54
9 


of
 7


78







55
0 


of
 7


78







55
1 


of
 7


78







55
2 


of
 7


78







55
3 


of
 7


78







55
4 


of
 7


78







55
5 


of
 7


78







55
6 


of
 7


78







55
7 


of
 7


78







55
8 


of
 7


78







55
9 


of
 7


78







56
0 


of
 7


78







56
1 


of
 7


78







56
2 


of
 7


78







56
3 


of
 7


78







56
4 


of
 7


78







56
5 


of
 7


78







56
6 


of
 7


78







56
7 


of
 7


78







56
8 


of
 7


78







56
9 


of
 7


78







57
0 


of
 7


78







57
1 


of
 7


78







57
2 


of
 7


78







57
3 


of
 7


78







57
4 


of
 7


78







57
5 


of
 7


78







57
6 


of
 7


78







57
7 


of
 7


78







57
8 


of
 7


78







57
9 


of
 7


78







58
0 


of
 7


78







58
1 


of
 7


78







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM:  8.2.5 
Mural Matching Grant Agreement Update Cover 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Modified Fiscal Sponsorship Agreement and Mural Matching 


Grant Agreement  
 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2018 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the modified Mural Matching Grant Agreement regarding the Bayview Mural.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Beth Tobey from the City of Santa Cruz has advised that the primary fiscal sponsor for the Bayview 
Mural project has changed.  The new primary fiscal sponsor for the project is the Tim Brauch 
Foundation.  The City has sent for our approval amended documents which reflect the 
replacement of the primary  fiscal sponsor from COI (Clean Oceans International) to the Tim 
Brauch Foundation.   
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 


6. SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent 
 


583 of 778







This page has been left blank







Contribution Adjustments


As of 06/14/2018


Program


17-18 Working 


Budget


18-19 Preliminary 


Budget 06/13/2018 Difference


Additional 


Adjustments 


06/20/2018


Special Ed 12,748,665.66 14,280,938.00        1,532,272.34  (276,000.00) 
Partnership Academey 20,277.39        -                         (20,277.39)      -               
Routine Repair and Maintenance 2,136,930.25   2,479,538.00          342,607.75     -               
Contractual Benefits 9,300.00          -                         (9,300.00)        -               
New Teacher Project/BTSA 115,000.00      103,093.00             (11,907.00)      -               


Medical LEA Billings -                     335,634.00               335,634.00     (335,634.00)   


15,030,173.30   17,199,203.00          2,169,029.70  (611,634.00)   


Exhibit A


585 of 778







This page has been left blank







587 of 778







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Tentative Agreement between the Santa Cruz City Council of 


Classified Employees and Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2018 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, 


Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Tentative Agreement between the Santa Cruz City Council of Classified Employees 
and Santa Cruz City Schools for 2017-18 and the costs of the agreement. 
 
 
Background: 
A Tentative Agreement was reached on May 24, 2018.  
 


• SCCS offers SCCCE the increases recommended by the Personnel Commission for the 
positions of Behavior Intervention Facilitator, Occupational Therapist, Mental Health 
Specialist, Central Kitchen Coordinator, Lead Food Service Worker, and Delivery Driver – 
Food Services.  This will be implemented at the beginning of the 2018-19 school year. 


• Status Quo on Health and Welfare for the 2017-18 school year. 
• SCCS offers 9-month members of SCCCE an additional day before the beginning of the 


school year for Professional Development for the 2018-19 school year. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 


• $227,685 for six positions recommended by the Personnel Commission. 
• Status Quo for Health and Welfare. 
• $27,000 for Professional Development day. 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


• Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on 
supporting effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


589 of 778







This page has been left blank







405 Old San Jose Road, Soguel, California 95073 I (831) 429-3410 I www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us 
Kris Munro Molly Parks Patrick K. Gaffney Frank Wells 


Superintendent of 
Schools 


Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 


Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 


Tentative Agreement between SCCCE and SCCS 


May 24, 2018 


Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 


SCCS offers SCCCE the increases recommended by the Personnel Commission. See 
attachment. This will be implemented beginning in the 2018-19 school year. 


Status Quo on Health and Welfare for the 2017-18 school year. 


SCCS offers 9-month members of SCCCE an additional day before the beginning of the school 
year for Professional Development for the 2018-19 school year. 


Board of Trustees 


Sheila Coonerty, Deedee Perez-Granados, Jeremy Shonick, Alisun Thompson, Patricia Threet, Deb Tracy-Proulx, Claudia Vestal 


591 of 778







2017~2018 Compensation Study 
Fiscal Impact: Ewing Study Median 
with Personnel Commission Recommendation 
Hourly Rate Corrected 
May 22, 2018 


Bahavior Intervention Facilitator 
Occupational Therapist 
Mental Health Specialist 
Central Kitchen Coordinator 
Lead Food Service Worker 
Delivery Driver~Food Service 


Total 


Old New 


2181 22.81 
4258 56.74 
4258 56.74 
22.35 23.62 
18.82 19.27 
18.82 20.02 


Hours Days FTE 


8 196 10.5375 
8 215 2.40 
8 215 4.00 
8 196 1.00 
8 196 3.25 
8 196 1.00 


22.19 


Annual Annual 
Old Annual New Annual Salary Statutory Expense 


Salary Salary Increase Benefits Increase 


360,362 376,885 16,523 4,545 21,068 
175,770 234,223 58,452 16,080 74,533 
292,950 390,371 97,421 26,800 124,221 
35,045 37,036 1,991 548 2,539 
95,907 98,200 2,293 631 2,924 
29,510 31,391 1,882 518 2,399 


989,544 1,168,106 178,562 49,122 227,685 


592 of 778







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Revised Classified Job Descriptions 
      
DATE:   June 20, 2018 
 
FROM:   Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Final review and approval of 34 revised Classified job descriptions as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ewing Consultants completed a Classification and Compensation Study that included revising 75 
SCCS classified job descriptions. Throughout that process, employees and supervisors were 
given the opportunity to provide input through questionnaires and interviews. After Ewing 
Consultants finalized job descriptions, the Personnel Commission and Human Resources 
continued to accept feedback for employees and make appropriate revisions. 34 job 
descriptions are now ready for approval. These draft job descriptions have been posted on the 
Personnel Commission web site and employees have been given a link to this site. The 
Personnel Commission approved these job descriptions at their meeting on June 5, 2018. The 
remaining 4 job descriptions will be ready for approval at the earliest opportunity. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 


teaching. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  


593 of 778







This page has been left blank







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


ACCOUNTS PAYABLE TECHNICIAN 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director of Fiscal Services or his/her designee, perform a variety of technical                 
accounting duties in support of accounts payable functions; prepare, maintain, audit and verify accounts              
payable warrants and supporting documents; process, evaluate and assure accuracy of invoices; prepare             
and maintain related manual and automated records and reports; review, evaluate and adjust related              
accounts; respond to inquiries regarding vendor payments.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Perform a variety of technical accounting duties in support of accounts payable functions; assure              
proper processing of related forms and records according to established standards, requirements            
and procedures; assure accurate and timely payment of organizational financial obligations. 


● Process, code and verify invoices; check invoices and match with purchase orders and receivers;              
research discrepancies in a timely manner; contact staff and vendors to verify invoices; issue and               
distribute appropriate payments to purchase orders; assure proper signatures and authorization           
of invoices.  


● Input invoice and other financial data into an assigned computer system; maintain automated             
financial and statistical records and files; generate and distribute computerized reports, payments            
and financial statements; assure accuracy of input and output data. 


● Audit, analyze, compute, prepare and maintain up-to-date accounts payable data on all vendors             
of the district. 


● Post all data into computerized accounting system; pull payments for audit for County Office of               
Education. 


● Provide information for personnel, vendors and others regarding payment policies and           
procedures. 


● Compile, research and evaluate a variety fiscal information related to assigned fiscal functions;             
assemble and distribute related materials; assure mandated reports are submitted to appropriate            
agencies according to established timelines. 


● Assist in compiling information for audit visits. 
● Operate a variety of office equipment including a calculator, copier, computer and assigned             


software. 
● Communicate with personnel and various outside agencies to exchange information, coordinate           


activities and programs and resolve issues or concerns. 
 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school supplemented by college-level           
coursework in accounting or related field and two years clerical accounting experience including             
work with accounts payable functions. 
 


Knowledge of:  
● Practices, procedures and techniques involved in the processing of accounts payable. 
● Methods, procedures and terminology used in technical accounting work. 


Accounts Payable Technician Page 1 of 3 
 


595 of 778







 


● Financial and statistical record-keeping techniques.  
● Preparation of financial statements and comprehensive accounting reports. 
● Preparation, review and control of assigned accounts. 
● Data control procedures and data entry operations. 
● Policies and objectives of assigned programs and activities.  
● Use and processing of purchase orders, invoices and related documents. 
● General accounting and business functions of an educational organization. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy.  
● Oral and written communication skills.  
● Modern office practices, procedures and equipment. 
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 
● Arithmetic computations. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform a variety of technical accounting duties in support of accounts payable functions. 
● Process, evaluate and assure accuracy of invoices. 
● Assure accurate and timely payment of organizational financial obligations. 
● Utilize an assigned computer system to input data, maintain automated records and generate             


computerized reports. 
● Maintain accurate financial and statistical records. 
● Prepare and evaluate comprehensive accounting reports. 
● Assure accurate processing, coding and verification of invoices. 
● Identify, investigate and resolve financial errors and discrepancies. 
● Assemble, organize and prepare data for records and reports. 
● Compare numbers and detect errors efficiently. 
● Reconcile and balance assigned accounts. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others.  
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing.  
● Meet schedules and timelines. 
● Make arithmetic computations with speed and accuracy. 
● Operate standard office equipment including a computer and assigned software. 
● Calculate sales taxes; apply rules and regulations to practical situations. 


 
WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Office environment. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Sitting for extended periods of time. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


 


Accounts Payable Technician Page 2 of 3 
 


596 of 778







 


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 32 


Revised:   06/25/84; 09/17/98, 07/28/10 


Accounts Payable Technician Page 3 of 3 
 


597 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT  


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the assigned Director, perform clerical and complex secretarial duties in support of                
a District service division; prepare reports, memos, letters and school bulletins; plan, coordinate and              
organize office activities and coordinate flow of communications; schedules conferences and meetings. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Provide clerical, administrative and operational support to a District division office; perform public             
relations and communication services; screen and route telephone calls; take and relay            
messages as appropriate; schedule and arrange appointments, conferences and other events. 


● Enter and maintain current information in computerized system; prepare supplemental          
documentation to process employee pay; collaborate and confer with Director, Human Resources            
and Finance Departments to acquire approval and appropriate account numbers; correct errors            
as required.  


● Maintain records of employee timesheets and payroll entries; create “extra work agreements” and             
timesheets; enter employee hours and extra work completed into timesheet information system;            
process payroll; prepare hiring documentation for certificated and classified staff as directed;            
prepare student plans, class and service provider lists as requested. 


● Receive visitors, including administrators, staff and the public and provide information or direct to              
appropriate personnel; exercise independent judgment in resolving a variety of issues and refer             
difficult issues to the Director as necessary; provide technical information and assistance related             
to office or program operations, policies and procedures. 


● Prepare and maintain a variety of data, school bulletins, memos, letters, records and reports              
related to division services, financial activity, student information, personnel and assigned duties;            
ensure accuracy and completeness of data, records and reports; manage division’s           
record-keeping and bookkeeping systems and records.  


● Manage, monitor and maintain a variety of data, records and reports related to office programs,               
financial activity, student information, personnel and assigned duties; track hours for and            
expenditures in funding accounts and within received grant funds; ensure accuracy and            
completeness of data, records and reports; establish and maintain filing systems. 


● Coordinate, schedule and attend a variety of meetings; prepare and send out notices of meetings;               
maintain appointment and activity calendar; reserve facilities; collect and compile information for            
meetings, projects and conferences; take, transcribe and distribute minutes as directed; arrange            
for presenters; ensure consultant services agreement is on file for presenters; assist presenter in              
making copies of needed materials as needed.  


● Compose, independently or from oral instructions a variety of materials including inter-office            
communications, requisitions, forms, contracts, letters, memoranda, bulletins, flyers, agenda         
items and other materials; review and proofread a variety of documents. 


● Coordinate a variety of applications and requests including open enrollments or inter-district            
transfers, in-home instruction, facility rentals, work orders, transportation requests and meeting           
room set-ups; prepare work orders and purchase orders as needed.  


● Manage facility rentals; arrange for meeting room equipment and IT support; set-up maintain             
records of rental fees and send out invoices for past due rents; make copies of materials needed                 
in meetings; set-up and take down of meeting rooms; pick-up and make food delivery; ensure               
proper clean-up of facility upon event completion. 


● Approve invoices for payments; monitor inventory levels of office supplies; order, receive and             
maintaining inventory of office supplies; monitor program and office expenditures. 


● Operate a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned software. 


 
Administrative Assistant Page 1 of 3 
 


598 of 778







 


OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and two years of clerical and              
secretarial experience including work with spreadsheets, databases and frequent public contact.           
Bachelor’s Degree can be substituted for experience.  
 


Knowledge of:  
● Modern office practices, procedures and equipment.  
● Telephone techniques and etiquette.  
● Policies and objectives of assigned program and activities. 
● Applicable laws, codes, regulations, policies and procedures.  
● Record-keeping techniques. 
● Correct English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary.  
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy.  
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 
● Methods of collecting and organizing data and information. 
● Business letter and report writing, editing and proofreading. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform varied and responsible secretarial and administrative assistant duties. 
● Serve as secretary to the Director and coordinate communications between administrators,           


personnel, parents, students and the public. 
● Ensure smooth and efficient office operations. 
● Interpret, apply and explain laws, codes, rules and regulations related to assigned activities. 
● Work independently with little direction.  
● Compose correspondence and written materials independently or from oral instructions. 
● Type or input data at an acceptable rate of speed.  
● Understand and resolve issues, complaints or problems.  
● Maintain confidentiality of sensitive and privileged information. 
● Determine appropriate action within clearly defined guidelines. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others and maintain            


regular attendance. 
● Maintain records and files. 
● Compile and verify data and prepare reports. 
● Operate a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned software. 
● Complete work with many interruptions. 
● Plan and organize work. 
● Meet schedules and timelines. 
● Make arithmetical calculations with speed and accuracy. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor, office environment. 
● Fast paced work environment with changing needs.  


Administrative Assistant Page 2 of 3 
 


599 of 778







 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information in person and on the telephone. 
● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to file materials.  
● Lifting heavy deliveries. 
● Climbing stairs. 
● Pushing and pulling food carts. 


Hazards: 


● Dissatisfied, hostile or abusive individuals.  


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board: 


Salary Range: 32 


Revised: 08/12/98, 09/17/98 


Administrative Assistant Page 3 of 3 
 


600 of 778







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


BEHAVIOR TECHNICIAN - PBIS 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the general supervision of the school principal and PBIS Coach, within a broad                 
framework of standard policies and procedures work as a team with the teacher, school counselor,               
administration to provide additional support to students with high behavior needs. This position is              
intended to provide behavioral support to general education students and support the general education              
teacher in order to implement consistent positive behavior management strategies.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Implements behavior plans for students exhibiting severe behavior that is interfering with their             
learning, the learning of other students and/or posing a safety threat to themselves or others. 


● Creates and carries out learning activities to teach positive replacement behaviors to students. 
● Provides prompting, positive reinforcement and feedback to students for using replacement           


behavior skills.  
● Monitors small groups of students when necessary for the general education teacher to             


implement behavior strategies with target student. 
● Assists teachers and other school staff through the use of positive behavior management             


strategies, positive reinforcement and reactive strategies when necessary. 
● Consistently and accurately collects data as instructed.  
● Provides teacher and school administration with relevant feedback and information on students’            


progress through observation and daily contact.  
● Consistently communicates with the teacher regarding updates to the strategies being used with             


the student.  
● Escorts student outside of the classroom as needed; ensuring students’ safety, social integration             


or security. 
● Assists with lifting and moving students as needed.  
● Participates in available training. 


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination of experience and training which would indicate possession of the knowledge,             
skills and abilities listed herein. 


● Completion of two years of college or equivalent. 
● Two years’ experience working with students. 
● At least one year working with students in an educational setting is desired.  
● Specialized training in the areas of manual physical restraint, Therapeutic Crisis Intervention            


(TCI), Positive Behavior Support Systems and data collection desired.  
● Coursework in psychology, child growth and development, education, special education or other            


related field. 


Behavior Technician- PBIS 


Page 1 of 3 
 


601 of 778







● NCLB Compliance – Due to funding, all Behavior Intervention Facilitators must be No Child Left               
Behind (NCLB) compliant. Must pass Paraprofessional Exam or have equivalence of two years             
college completion or AA degree. 


● Education may be substituted for experience. 
 
 
Licenses and other Requirements: 


● A valid Class C California Driver’s License and evidence of appropriate insurance may be 
required in addition to a valid First Aid and CPR Certificate.  


● Personality and character traits suited to providing services for students with serious behavior 
challenges.  
 


Knowledge of:  
● Child Growth and development. 
● Development, emotional and behavior disabilities. 
● Application of curriculum as it applies to individual differences in children. 
●  Positive student behavior management techniques and strategies. 
● Non-verbal and physical intervention techniques. 
● Behavior intervention strategies. 
● Usage of proper oral and written English, Spanish or other target language.  
● Basic arithmetic concepts. 
● Basic computer and clerical skills.  


 
Ability to: 


● Ability to perform simple clerical tasks and operate standard office machines. 
● Communicate satisfactorily in both oral and written form. 
● Demonstrate an understanding, patient and receptive attitude towards children. 
● Distinguish steps in an intervention process. 
● Recognize and effectively respond to disruptive, abusive or dangerous behavior. 
● Ability to perform a physical restraint. 
● Understand and address the needs of students with special needs. 
● Rapidly learn methods, techniques, processes and materials used to provide instruction and            


behavioral interventions. 
● Work as a member of a team to assist in the provision of behavioral services.  
● May require the ability to work with the visually impaired. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative relationships with those contacted during the performance of            


required duties, including school personnel, students, parents and the community.  
● Maintain regular attendance. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor environment. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


Behavior Technician- PBIS 


Page 2 of 3 
 


602 of 778







● Visual ability to read handwritten or typed documents and the display screen of various office               
equipment and machines.  


● Ability to conduct verbal conversation and other designated language. 
● Hear normal range verbal conversation (approximately 60 decibels). 
● Sit, stand, stoop, kneel, bend and walk. 
● Sit for sustained periods of time. 
● Kneel or squat for extended periods of time.  
● Climb slopes, stairs, steps, ramps and ladders.  
● Lift up to 30 pounds frequently and 50 or more pounds occasionally. 
● Carry up to 30 pounds frequently and 50 or more pounds occasionally.  
● Push and/or pull objects weighing up to 50 or more pounds 
● Sustain moderate physical effort for 8 hours. 
● Exhibit full range of motion for shoulder external rotation and internal rotation, shoulder abduction              


and adduction, elbow flexion and extension, shoulder extension and flexion, back lateral flexion,             
hip flexion and extension and knee flexion. 


● Demonstrate manual dexterity to operate a computer and other classroom and office equipment             
in a safe and effective manner.  


● Working with cleaning solutions, disinfectants and sanitizer in a safe and effective manner without              
allergic reaction.  


● Demonstrate dexterity and physical condition necessary to maintain rigorous work schedule and            
meet standards of physical and mental health.  


● Moderate to high stress levels. 
 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 26 


Revised: 12/06/11 


Behavior Technician- PBIS 


Page 3 of 3 
 


603 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


BEHAVIOR TECHNICIAN - SPED 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Principal, assist School Counselor and Teachers to provide behavioral support               
and instructional assistance to students emotional and other related behaviors in an assigned classroom              
or other learning environment; provide positive behavior interventions and instructional support strategies            
to assigned students; collect, maintain and record data on student behavior; perform a variety of clerical                
and supportive tasks. 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Assist school staff in the implementation of behavioral intervention strategies which may involve             


use of approved behavior modification, physical management techniques or other skills or            
knowledge to establish and maintain appropriate behaviors. 


● Assist assigned students in reaching behavioral, emotional, social goals. 
● Perform a variety of clerical duties and supportive tasks including those to preserve the history of                


interventions; utilize Positive Behavior Support Systems; collect and track data on student            
behavior; record anecdotal notes on student progress; maintain records, logs and files as             
assigned. 


● Assist students with performing and developing academic, social, behavioral skills; assist in            
shaping student’s behavior through positive reinforcement, redirection and other strategies          
according to established techniques and procedures; provide positive behavior interventions. 


● Assure student understanding of classroom rules and procedures; assist students by answering            
questions, providing proper examples, emotional support, friendly attitude and general guidance. 


● Observe and direct the behavior of students in the classroom and outdoors according to              
approved procedures; monitor and interact with students during breaks, recess and other school             
activities as directed; escort students to and from designated school locations. 


● Assist students with performing and developing proper social, behavior and self-help skills; assist             
with lifting and moving students as needed. 


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and supplemented by two years of              
college coursework in psychology, child growth and development and two years experience            
working with children in an educational or organized learning environment. 


● Requirements specified under Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). Special qualifications          
supported by Title I funds include:  


o Completed at least two years of study at an institution of higher education or,  
o Obtained an associate’s or higher degree (college level) or, 


Behavior Technician - SPED Page 1 of 3 
 


604 of 778







 


o Met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal State or local               
academic assessment, knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading,            
writing and mathematics. 


 
Licenses and other Requirements 


● Mandatory participation in District specialized training in the areas of manual physical student             
restraint, Therapeutic Crisis Intervention (TCI), Positive Behavior Support Systems and data           
collection. 


● Valid First Aid certification (preferred). 
 
Knowledge of:  


● Child growth and development. 
● Developmental, emotional, and behavioral disabilities. 
● Behavior intervention modifications, techniques, strategies, plans, procedures and goals. 
● Problems and concerns of students with emotional disorders, learning disabilities, behavior           


disorders and other special needs. 
● Basic principles, goals and objectives of Individual Education Plans (IEP). 
● Basic understanding of applied behavior analysis, autism or pervasive developmental disorders           


and mental illness. 
● Basic subjects taught in local schools, including arithmetic, grammar, spelling, language and            


reading. 
● Basic instructional methods and techniques. 
● Techniques used in controlling and motivating students. 
● Positive student behavior management techniques and strategies. 
● Non-verbal and physical intervention techniques. 
● Correct English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary.  
● Classroom procedures and appropriate student conduct. 
● Operation of standard office and classroom equipment including a computer and assigned            


software. 
● Basic computer and internet skills. 
● Basic arithmetic concepts. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Basic data collection and record-keeping techniques. 


 
Ability to: 


● Assist with instruction and related activities in a classroom or assigned learning environment. 
● Reinforce instruction to individual or small groups of students as directed by the teacher. 
● Demonstrate an understanding, patient and receptive attitude toward children. 
● Distinguish steps in an intervention process. 
● Recognize and effectively react to disruptive, abusive, or dangerous behavior. 
● Perform a physical restraint. 
● Participate as member of a team supporting students' progress and behavior intervention plans. 
● Monitor, observe and report student behavior and progress according to approved policies and             


procedures. 
● Learn methods, techniques, process, and materials used to provide instruction and behavioral            


interventions. 
● Maintain regular attendance.  


 


Behavior Technician - SPED Page 2 of 3 
 


605 of 778







 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Classroom/Outdoor environment. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate standard office and classroom equipment. 
● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to assist students. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor student activities. 
● Lifting, carrying, or pushing moderately heavy objects or students.  
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 


Hazards: 


● Potential contact with dissatisfied individuals.  
● Potential contact with blood and other body fluids. 


 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 26 


Revised: 12/06/11 


 


Behavior Technician - SPED Page 3 of 3 
 


606 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


DIRECTOR -  CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL  


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Personnel Commission, plan, control and direct the functions of the Personnel                
Commission office in administering Personnel Commission Rules, State and Federal employment laws,            
Merit System and related provisions of the Education Code for classified employees; provide support to               
Personnel Commission services and activities including recruitment, selection, evaluation, classification,          
assignment and personnel records; ensure compliance and appropriate implementation of the Merit            
System, Education Code, Labor Code and negotiated contracts; maintain confidentiality of sensitive            
personnel-related information; supervise and evaluate the performance of assigned personnel. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Plan, organize, control and direct the functions of the Personnel Commission office; manage and              
participate in the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies and priorities for             
assigned programs; recommend, within Santa Cruz City Schools and Personnel Commission           
policy, appropriate service and staffing levels.  


● Recommend and administer policies and procedures; advise District leadership on issues and            
laws relating to classified employment. 


● Administer, review, interpret and distribute Personnel Commission rules and regulations within           
established Education Codes; identify and recommend opportunities for improvement. 


● Assess and monitor work load, administrative and support systems and internal reporting            
relationships; work with the Human Resource Department, sites, and other departments to create             
and improve systems. 


● Supervise and evaluate the performance of assigned personnel; interview and select employees 
and recommend transfers, reassignment, termination and disciplinary actions; monitor workload; 
assign work and projects; plan, coordinate and arrange for staff development, professional growth 
and training programs for subordinates. 


● Collaborate with employees to correct deficiencies; confer with supervisors to help direct            
classified employees to work more effectively; counsel classified employees on work issues;            
assist employees to identify and resolve conflicts; counsel employees on rights and procedures             
under merit system and collective bargaining. 


● Assist Assistant Superintendent-Human Resources to implement discipline and initiate         
termination procedures.  


● Plan, direct, coordinate and review the work plan and timeline for the Personnel Commission.  
● Direct the preparation and maintenance of a variety of narrative and statistical reports, records,              


and files related to assigned activities and including Personnel Commission records for all             
classified employees including information on employment status. 


● Review and evaluate work products, methods and procedures administered by the Personnel            
Commission and in collaboration with Human Resources.  


● Analyze and review budgetary and financial data; control and authorize expenditures in            
accordance with established guidelines; direct the forecast of additional funds needed for staffing,             
equipment, materials and supplies; direct and implement adjustments as necessary. 


● Provide responsible staff assistance to the Personnel Commission; provide guidance and           
consultative support to the district team and classified employee group representatives regarding            
activities related to the collective bargaining agreements. 


Director- Classified Personnel Page 1 of 4 
 


607 of 778







 


● Meet and confer with classified bargaining units to clarify issues, procedures and practices, and 
to obtain input and solve problems related to employee selection procedures, classification 
changes, career paths, position studies, rule changes and interpretations, hearing procedures, 
and other matters of interest to classified personnel. 


● Supervise and participate in the preparation of Personnel Commission meeting notices, agendas,            
minutes, correspondence and staff reports.  


● Apprise the Personnel Commission of modern personnel laws, techniques and practices; ensure 
equal employment opportunity and adherence to Merit System as defined in the California 
Education and Labor Code.  


● Conduct a variety of organizational studies, investigations, operational studies for the Personnel            
Commission.  


● Direct and conduct the Santa Cruz City Schools program of recruitment, selection and             
assignment of classified staff.  


● Develop selection plans for each job classification; ensure job requirements are maintained.  
● Prepare or supervise preparation of recruitment and selection materials for personnel including            


advertisements, job announcements, application forms and tests; determine eligibility status of           
applicants.  


● Advise Personnel Commission, managers, and supervisors on personnel related issues.  
● Serve as a liaison for the Personnel Commission with employees, administration and outside             


agencies; negotiate and resolve significant and controversial issues with the District and Union.  
● Provide leadership for the Santa Cruz City Schools District and local districts in the interpretation               


of Personnel Commission policies and administrative regulations regarding personnel         
procedures.  


● Review, process and approve all classified employment actions for compliance with the Merit             
Rules including employee requests for transfer, promotion and terminations from service; review            
bargaining unit contracts and personnel, recruitment and payroll files for Merit Rule compliance.  


● Oversee periodic classification studies and compensation studies to ensure internal relationships           
and equitable pay; provide input to classified salary negotiations. 


● Conduct periodic job analysis and reviews to determine appropriate employee functions and            
proper job classifications for classified staff; develop and review new job descriptions.  


● Investigate and determine out-of-class assignments and the effects of reclassification.  
● Prepare classification materials for Personnel Commission action.  
● Attend, conduct and participate in a variety of meetings, conferences, workshops and serve on 


assigned committees.  
● Operate a computer and other standard office equipment; drive a vehicle to conduct work.  
● Respond to a variety of technical, difficult and general questions, complaints and inquiries from 


employees, bargaining units, and the general public. 


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: Bachelor's degree in personnel management, business          
administration, or a related field and five years of responsible personnel management experience             
including two years of administrative or supervisory experience. Some experience in a civil             
service or merit system agency is desirable.  
 


Knowledge of:  
● Principles and practices of personnel administration including position classification, salary 


administration, recruitment, examination, selection and collective bargaining agreements 


Director- Classified Personnel Page 2 of 4 
 


608 of 778







 


● Merit System rules and regulations. 
● State and federal laws, codes and regulations concerning personnel administration including 


equal employment opportunity, affirmative action, workers’ compensation, and other assigned 
areas. 


● Principles, techniques and methods of recruitment, selection, training, classification and 
compensation. 


● Principles and practices of labor management relations, including negotiation and contract 
administration techniques. 


● Bargaining agreements, union contracts and employee/labor relations. 
● Employee and organizational development, leadership, team building, motivation and conflict 


resolution techniques. 
● Pay compensation plans for classified employees. 
● Budget preparation and control. 
● Oral and written communication skills.  
● Principles and practices of administration, supervision and training.  
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy.  
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 


Ability to: 
● Plan, organize, control and direct operations and activities related to the District’s Personnel 


Commission operations and activities 
● Coordinate the recruiting, interviewing, testing, selecting and placement of classified personnel. 
● Administer classification, compensation, organization development, layoff and reemployment        


activities. 
● Oversee specific employment categories for restricted, substitute and non-regular employment. 
● Enforce employee agreements, Personnel Commission rules and Board policies. 
● Coordinate communications between administrators and classified personnel. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing.  
● Interpret, apply and explain rules, regulations, policies and procedures.  
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others and maintain            


regular attendance. 
● Operate a computer and assigned office equipment. 
● Analyze situations accurately and adopt an effective course of action.  
● Meet schedules and timelines.  
● Work independently with little direction.  
● Plan and organize work.  
● Prepare comprehensive narrative and statistical records and reports. 
● Direct the maintenance of a variety of reports and files related to assigned activities. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Office environment. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Hearing and speaking to exchange information and make presentations. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 


Director- Classified Personnel Page 3 of 4 
 


609 of 778







 


● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Reaching overhead, above shoulders and horizontally. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching.  


Hazards: 


● Contact with dissatisfied or abusive individuals. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board: 


Salary Range: Class F - Management Salary Schedule  


Revised: 01/01/95 


Director- Classified Personnel Page 4 of 4 
 


610 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT I  


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Assistant Superintendent, perform a wide variety of highly responsible              
secretarial tasks in support of activities of the office of the Assistant Superintendent; compile reports;               
oversee and manage a variety of complex and confidential documents, reports and the District’s business               
and personnel records; interpret policies and regulations to officials, staff and the public; coordinate              
internal workflow and communication within the division; assemble, interpret and organize information and             
financial and statistical data related to assigned activities; maintain confidentiality of privileged and             
sensitive information.  
 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS: 
The Executive Assistant I performs highly responsible and confidential secretarial and administrative            
assistant duties to relieve an Assistant Superintendent of a variety of administrative details. The Executive               
Assistant II performs highly complex and confidential secretarial and administrative assistant duties to             
relieve the Superintendent of a variety of administrative details.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Perform highly responsible duties as the primary and confidential secretary to the Assistant 
Superintendent; relieving the administrator of a variety of secretarial and administrative details; 
prepare correspondences, meeting calendars and Board agenda items; plan, coordinate, and 
organize office and department activities and flow of communications for the administrator; 
maintain confidentiality of privileged and sensitive information. 


● Prepare and compose a variety of documents including those of a confidential nature; prepare 
business files, leases, conflict of interest forms, workers’ compensation records, meeting notes 
and employee complaint investigation reports; prepare, format, edit, proofread and revise written 
materials.  


● Research and compile a variety of information; gather data for research projects, complaint 
investigations and workers’ compensation claims; refer employees for fingerprinting; process and 
evaluate a variety of forms and applications related to assigned functions; duplicate materials as 
necessary.  


● Prepare board meeting agenda items; collect, review, and edit documents submissions from 
other departments; prepare and organize enclosure to be included in board packets; upload 
information onto computer system; distribute approved items to staff and consultants upon 
conclusion of board meeting.  


● Provide support for District committees; prepare orientations and in-service trainings; schedule 
meetings and events; maintain contact lists and prepare invitations; prepare meeting agenda and 
materials; arrange for rooms and food; take meeting notes; compose minutes; distribute as 
needed.  


● Maintain and coordinate the Assistant Superintendent’s calendar; prepare and disseminate 
calendar of events; coordinate and arrange special events and activities for the Assistant 
Superintendent.  


● Process a variety of claims, including property and liability insurance, workers’ compensation, 
accident and loss; gather and review information; compile necessary documentation; submit 
claims for processing; provide guidance to the Assistant Superintendent of possible concerns and 
issues.  


● Manage requests for certificates of insurance and conflict of interest form, update various forms, 
including field trips; student teacher verifications, safety and employee background clearance; 
gather and organize property and liability insurance information; coordinate with school sites to 
compile site specific date; update vehicle records and property records as needed.  


Executive Assistant I Page 1 of 3 
 


611 of 778







 


● Communicate with other departments, administrators and outside agencies to coordinate 
activities, exchange information and resolve issues or concerns.  


● Provide phone and front desk coverage as needed; answer phone calls and retrieve voicemails; 
answer inquiries from walk-ins; escort or direct visitors to destinations; receive deliveries; respond 
to requests for work permits and student transcripts.  


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: Associate’s degree in a related field and two years of responsible               
clerical and administrative work, involving frequent public contact.  
 


Licenses and other Requirements 
● Valid Class C California Driver's License. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Functions and secretarial operations of an administrative office.  
● Organizational operations, policies and objectives.  
● Applicable laws, codes, regulations, policies and procedures.  
● Modern office practices, procedures and equipment. 
● Record-keeping techniques. 
● Correct English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuations and vocabulary.  
● Oral and written communication skills.  
● Interpersonal Skills using tact, patience and courtesy.  
● Budgeting practices regarding monitoring and control.  
● Methods of collecting and organizing data and information.  
● Business letter and report writing, editing and proofreading.  
● Basic public relations techniques.  
● Operation of a computer and assigned software.  


 
Ability to: 


● Perform highly responsible and confidential secretarial and administrative assistant duties to           
relieve the Assistant Superintendent of a variety of administrative details.  


● Interpret, apply and explain laws, codes, rules, regulations, policies and procedures.  
● Plan, coordinate and organize office activities and flow of communications and information for the              


assigned administrator.  
● Organize complex material and summarize discussions and actions taken in report form.  
● Compile and prepare comprehensive reports concerning a broad spectrum of subject matter.  
● Compose effective correspondence independently.  
● Maintain a variety of complex and confidential files and records.  
● Assure efficient and timely completion of office and program and activities.  
● Understand and resolve issues, complaints or problems.  
● Type or input data at an acceptable rate of speed.  
● Operate a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned software.  
●  Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others.  
● Analyze situations and adopt an effective course of action. 
● Plan and organize work. 
● Meet schedules and timelines.  


Executive Assistant I Page 2 of 3 
 


612 of 778







 


● Prioritize and schedule work. 
● Work independently with little direction. 
● Work confidentially with discretion.  
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing.  


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor, office environment. 
● Constant interruptions.  


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Hearing and speaking to exchange information in person or on the telephone. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Sitting and standing for extended periods of time.  
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to retrieve materials. 


 
The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board: 


Salary Range: II Confidential Salary Schedule 


Revised: 08/12/98 


Executive Assistant I Page 3 of 3 
 


613 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


FOOD SERVICE WORKER I 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Site Lead in coordination with the Director-Food Services, assists in the                
preparation and serving of hot and cold foods in the central kitchen and/or a school cafeteria; perform                 
routine cashiering duties; maintain food service facilities, equipment and utensils in a clean and sanitary               
condition. 
 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:  
The Food Service Worker I classification is the entry-level class in this series. Incumbents perform               
routine food service activities at central kitchen or an assigned school site. Incumbents work under close                
supervision. The Food Service Worker II classification is the experienced-level position in the series and               
is distinguished from the Food Service Worker I classification by its independent responsibility for              
administering and overseeing the food service program at an assigned school site.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Assist in the preparation and serving of hot and cold food; heat, pan and arrange food items;                 
serve as part of a team to assemble various food items and ingredients as assigned; package                
and wrap food items according to established procedures and portion control standards; assure             
proper temperature of foods. 


● Prepare salads, sandwiches, fruits, vegetables, packaged foods, bakery items and other foods for 
distribution; measure, mix, chop, cut, slice, stir and/or blend a variety of ingredients used in food 
preparation activities as requested; open cans; label and date open food products. 


● Serve meals on serving lines; set out prepared foods; replenish containers as necessary; assist              
with setting up the cafeteria; assist with catering activities. 


● Clean and sanitize work areas, tables, serving counters, tables, chairs and food containers;             
prepare food and beverages for sale; count and set-up plates, trays and utensils. 


● Perform routine cashiering duties as assigned; receive and count money; reconcile cash and             
receipts; make correct change. 


● Operate standard food service equipment such as slicers, warmers, ovens, sealer and packing             
machines. 


● Follow established health, safety and sanitation principles applicable to food serving and kitchen 
maintenance. 


● Stock condiments, food items and paper goods; assist in the storage and rotation of food,               
leftovers, supplies in storage areas. 


● Prepare and maintain logs and records; inventory food and supplies; track food for daily              
production logs. 


● Maintain food service facilities, equipment and utensils in a clean and sanitary condition; sweep              
and mop floors to assure a safe and sanitary work environment; wash trays, pots, pans, plates,                
utensils and other serving equipment. 


● Operate a computer, calculator and assigned software; answer telephone calls; send and receive             
emails. 


● Train and provide work direction to student workers. 
● Attend meetings, in-service training and workshops as assigned. 


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


Food Service Worker I Page 1 of 3 
 


614 of 778







 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


 
 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to:  graduation from high school.  
 
Licenses and other Requirements 


● Valid ServeSafe certification within a six month probationary period. 
● Employees must participate in available training and complete required continuing 


education/training hours in order to meet USDA professional standards. 
● Valid California Driver’s License and insurance may be required.  


 
Knowledge of:  


● Basic food preparation including washing, cutting and assembling food items and ingredients. 
● Basic kitchen utensils and equipment. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Proper lifting techniques. 
● Packaging and distribution of large quantities of food. 
● Basic math and cashiering skills. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Basic record keeping. 
● Sanitation principles applicable to food serving and kitchen maintenance. 
● Quantify food preparation and handling. 


 
Ability to: 


● Provide timely service of foods for students and staff at an assigned school site. 
● Assist in maintaining food service facilities, equipment and utensils in a clean and sanitary              


condition. 
● Learn methods and procedures for preparing and serving food in large quantities. 
● Learn sanitation practices related to the handling and serving of food.  
● Wash, cut, slice, grate, mix and assemble food items and ingredients. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 
● Work cooperatively with others. 
● Understand and follow oral and written directions. 
● Operate cafeteria equipment and a cash register. 
● Operate kitchen equipment a computer and assigned software. 
● Learn and effectively apply proper sanitation and safety requirements.  
● Perform routine arithmetical calculations and make change accurately.  
● Meet the physical requirements necessary to safely and effectively perform the assigned duties. 
● Maintain regular attendance.  
● Work collaboratively as part of a team. 
● Complete work with interruptions. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Kitchen environment. 


Food Service Worker I Page 2 of 3 
 


615 of 778







 


● Subject to heat from ovens and cold from freezers. 
 


Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Standing for extended periods of time. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing or pulling moderately heavy objects as assigned by position. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate food service equipment. 
● Reaching overhead, above shoulders and horizontally. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching.  
● Seeing to monitor food quality and quantity.  


Hazards: 


● Exposure to very hot or cold foods, beverages, equipment, and metal objects. 
● Working around knives, slicers or other sharp objects. 
● Exposure to cleaning chemicals and fumes. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission:  06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range:  16 


Revised: 10/11/82, 09/17/98 


Food Service Worker I Page 3 of 3 
 


616 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


FOOD SERVICE WORKER II 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director-Food Services, prepare and serve a variety of hot and cold menu items                  
at an assigned elementary school site; coordinate the accounting of meals served; perform routine              
cashiering duties; maintain food service facilities, equipment and utensils in a clean and sanitary              
condition. 
 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:  
The Food Service Worker II classification is the experienced-level position in the series and is               
distinguished from the Food Service Worker I classification by its independent responsibility for             
administering and overseeing the food service program at an assigned elementary school site. The Food               
Service Worker I classification is the entry-level class in this series. Incumbents perform routine food               
service activities at a central kitchen or assigned school site. Incumbents work under close supervision.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Prepare and serve a variety of hot and cold menu items; ensure quality and quantity of food                 
served according to established procedures; assure proper temperature of foods; assure           
compliance with safety and sanitation regulations. 


● Heat, pan and arrange food items; assemble various food items and ingredients as assigned;              
package and wrap food items according to established procedures and portion control standards. 


● Prepare salads, fruits, vegetables, packaged foods, and other foods for distribution; measure, 
mix, chop, cut, slice, stir and/or blend a variety of ingredients used in food preparation activities 
as requested; open cans; label and date open food products. 


● Serve meals on serving lines; set out prepared foods; replenish containers as necessary; assist              
with setting up the cafeteria; assist with catering activities. 


● Determine appropriate quantity of food items for preparation; order and estimate food quantities. 
● Clean and sanitize work areas, tables, serving counters, tables, chairs and food containers;             


prepare food and beverages for sale; count and set-up plates, trays and utensils. 
● Perform routine cashiering duties as assigned; receive and count money; reconcile cash and             


receipts; make correct change. 
● Coordinate the administration of food program at satellite schools, including addressing problems            


and concerns related to the program. 
● Operate standard food service equipment such as slicers, warmers, ovens, sealer and packing             


machines. 
● Follow established health, safety and sanitation principles applicable to food serving and kitchen 


maintenance. 
● Stock condiments, food items and paper goods; assist in the storage and rotation of food,               


leftovers, supplies in storage areas. 
● Prepare and maintain logs and records; inventory food and supplies; track food for daily              


production logs and meal counts. 
● Maintain food service facilities, equipment and utensils in a clean and sanitary condition; sweep              


and mop floors to assure a safe and sanitary work environment; wash trays, pots, pans, plates,                
utensils and other serving equipment. 


● Assist in loading and reloading of meals and related items such as lunches, empty boxes, trays                
and racks.  


● May cook basic entrees at sites. 


Food Service Worker II Page 1 of 3 
 


617 of 778







 


● Operate a computer, calculator and assigned software; answer telephone calls; send and receive             
emails. 


● Attend meetings, in-service training and workshops as assigned. 
 
 


OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and one year experience in food              
preparation, kitchen maintenance or a related field.  
 


Licenses and other Requirements 
● Valid ServeSafe certification. 
● Employees must participate in available training and complete required continuing 


education/training hours in order to meet USDA professional standards. 
● Valid California Driver’s License 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Food preparation including washing, cutting and assembling food items and ingredients. 
● Packaging and distribution of large quantities of food. 
● Kitchen utensils and equipment. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Proper lifting techniques. 
● Basic math and cashiering skills. 
● Basic record keeping and inventory control. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Sanitation principles applicable to food serving and kitchen maintenance. 
● Quantify food preparation and handling. 


 
Ability to: 


● Provide timely service of foods for students and staff at an assigned central kitchen or an school                 
site. 


● Maintain food service facilities, equipment and utensils in a clean and sanitary condition. 
● Methods and procedures for preparing and serving food in large quantities. 
● Determine appropriate quantity of food items for preparation. 
● Order and estimate food quantities. 
● Sanitation practices related to the handling and serving of food.  
● Wash, cut, slice, grate, mix and assemble food items and ingredients. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 
● Work cooperatively with others. 
● Understand and follow oral and written directions. 
● Operate cafeteria equipment and a cash register. 
● Operate a variety of kitchen equipment, a computer and assigned software. 
● Learn and effectively apply proper sanitation and safety requirements.  
● Perform routine arithmetical calculations and make change accurately.  
● Meet the physical requirements necessary to safely and effectively perform the assigned duties. 


Food Service Worker II Page 2 of 3 
 


618 of 778







 


● Maintain regular attendance.  
● Work collaboratively as part of a team. 
● Complete work with interruptions. 


 
WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Kitchen environment. 
● Subject to heat from ovens and cold from freezers. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Standing for extended periods of time. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing or pulling moderately heavy objects as assigned by position. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate food service equipment. 
● Reaching overhead, above shoulders and horizontally. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching.  
● Seeing to monitor food quality and quantity.  


Hazards: 


● Exposure to very hot or cold foods, beverages, equipment, and metal objects. 
● Working around knives, slicers or other sharp objects. 
● Exposure to cleaning chemicals and fumes. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 18 


Revised: 10/11/82, 9/17/98 


Food Service Worker II Page 3 of 3 
 


619 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


FOOD SERVICE WORKER III 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director-Food Services, lead, organize, coordinate the preparation and serving              
of school breakfasts, brunches and lunches; oversee the preparation, packaging, serving and accounting             
of meals at an secondary school site; inventory, order and estimate food and supplies quantities; maintain                
food service facilities, equipment and utensils in a clean and sanitary condition; train and provide work                
direction to assigned staff. 
 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:  
The Food Service Worker III classification is the advanced-level position in the series. Incumbents work               
independently and serve as a lead to other food service staff. The Food Service Worker II classification is                  
the experienced-level position in the series and is distinguished from the Food Service Worker I               
classification by its independent responsibility for administering and overseeing the food service program             
at an assigned school site. The Food Service Worker I classification is the entry-level class in this series.                  
Incumbents perform routine food service activities at a central kitchen or assigned school site.              
Incumbents work under close supervision.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Organize, coordinate and oversee the preparation and packaging of food in sufficient quantities             
for serving in the school cafeteria. 


● Lead and provide work direction to assigned food service staff; train assigned staff in appropriate 
health and safety regulations. 


● Prepare and serve a variety of hot and cold menu items; observe quality and quantity of food 
served according to established procedures; label and date open food products; assure proper 
temperature of foods; assure compliance with safety and sanitation regulations. 


● Heat, pan and arrange food items; assemble various food items and ingredients as assigned; 
package and wrap food items according to established procedures and portion control standards. 


● Determine appropriate quantity of food items for preparation; inventory, order and estimate food             
and supplies quantities. 


● Perform complex duties and responsibilities according to State and Federal guidelines such as             
preparing daily production sheets, automated meal accounting and cash collecting.  


● Plan daily, weekly and monthly menu food orders according to established guidelines. 
● Follow recipes and estimate needed ingredients and time required for the preparation of food. 
● Perform routine cashiering duties as assigned; receive and count money; reconcile cash and             


receipts; make correct change.  
● Maintain food service facilities, equipment and utensils in a clean and sanitary condition; ensure              


that work sites are operated in a safe and sanitary manner and in accordance with State and                 
Federal regulations. 


● Ensure that food items are properly prepared, cooked, stored and served in a safe, sanitary and                
timely manner. 


● Assist staff preparing, cooking, serving and packaging all foods and in washing and cleaning              
kitchen equipment, kitchen areas and utensils;  


● Serves as a liaison between teachers, Principals, and food service staff. 
● Operate standard food service equipment such as slicers, warmers, ovens, sealer and packing             


machines. 
● Operate a computer, calculator and assigned software; answer telephone calls; send and receive             


emails. 
● Attend meetings, in-service training and workshops as assigned. 


Food Service Worker III Page 1 of 3 
 


620 of 778







 


 
 


OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and two years experience in quantity              
food preparation, cooking, kitchen maintenance or a related field.  
 


Licenses and other Requirements 
● Valid ServeSafe certification. 
● Employees must participate in available training and complete required continuing 


education/training hours in order to meet USDA professional standards. 
● Valid California Driver’s License and insurance may be required. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Proper methods, procedures and equipment used in ordering, preparation, cooking, packaging           
and distribution of large quantities of food. 


● Basic menu planning and nutritional principles. 
● Basic record keeping and inventory control. 
● Food preparation including washing, cutting and assembling food items and ingredients. 
● Kitchen utensils and equipment. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Proper lifting techniques. 
● Basic math and cashiering skills. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Sanitation principles applicable to food serving and kitchen maintenance. 
● Quantify food preparation and handling. 


 
Ability to: 


● Provide timely service of foods for students and staff at an assigned central kitchen or school site. 
● Maintain food service facilities, equipment and utensils in a clean and sanitary condition. 
● Methods and procedures for preparing and serving food in large quantities. 
● Determine appropriate quantity of food items for preparation. 
● Order and estimate food quantities. 
● Sanitation practices related to the handling and serving of food.  
● Wash, cut, slice, grate, mix and assemble food items and ingredients. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 
● Work cooperatively with others. 
● Understand and follow oral and written directions. 
● Operate cafeteria equipment and a cash register. 
● Operate a variety of kitchen equipment, a computer and assigned software. 
● Learn and effectively apply proper sanitation and safety requirements.  
● Perform routine arithmetical calculations and make change accurately.  
● Meet the physical requirements necessary to safely and effectively perform the assigned duties. 
● Maintain regular attendance.  
● Work collaboratively as part of a team. 


Food Service Worker III Page 2 of 3 
 


621 of 778







 


● Complete work with interruptions. 
 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Kitchen environment. 
● Subject to heat from ovens and cold from freezers. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Standing for extended periods of time. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing or pulling moderately heavy objects as assigned by position. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate food service equipment. 
● Reaching overhead, above shoulders and horizontally. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching.  
● Seeing to monitor food quality and quantity.  


Hazards: 


● Exposure to very hot or cold foods, beverages, equipment, and metal objects. 
● Working around knives, slicers or other sharp objects. 
● Exposure to cleaning chemicals and fumes. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 20 


Revised: 10/11/82, 9/17/98, 04/26/06 


Food Service Worker III Page 3 of 3 
 


622 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


GROUNDSKEEPER I 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director-Maintenance, Operations & Transportation and Supervisor-Custodial,           
Grounds & Maintenance, perform routine grounds maintenance and gardening functions in the            
beautification of grounds and landscaped areas at assigned site locations; operate a variety of              
power-driven equipment used in grounds maintenance work; utilize standard gardening hand tools;            
maintain a safe environment for students, staff and the public related to grounds maintenance activities. 
 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS: 
The Groundskeeper I classification is the entry-level position in the series. Incumbents work under close               
supervision and perform routine grounds-keeping duties and work at various assigned school sites. The              
Groundskeeper II works under general supervision at assigned school sites. Incumbents perform            
semi-skilled gardening, grounds maintenance duties on District-wide grounds, athletic fields and           
landscaped areas. The Groundskeeper III classification is the advanced-level position in the series.             
Incumbents work independently at assigned school sites and provide leadership, training and work             
direction to subordinate employees as assigned. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Mow, edge, trim, and water lawns, fields and other turf grounds; water various grounds areas by                
hand or by operating the irrigation system. 


● Plant, cultivate, prune, spray, and irrigate flowers, trees, grass and shrubs; hoe and pull weeds               
and rake leaves; edge walkways; sweep litter from walks and driveways. 


● Perform general grounds cleanup, including picking up paper, trash and debris on grounds areas,              
parking lots, playgrounds, athletic fields and other assigned areas; empty waste receptacles. 


● Operate a variety of power-driven equipment such as mowers, edgers, blowers, pruners,            
rototillers, electric shears, weed eaters, power pressure sprayers and other equipment used in             
grounds maintenance work; utilize standard gardening hand tools; follow district safety           
procedures when operating, maintaining, repairing and installing equipment; drive a vehicle to            
conduct work. 


● Maintain grounds maintenance equipment in safe operating condition; perform minor          
maintenance on equipment such as changing blades, greasing and changing oil; perform a             
variety of preventative maintenance functions. 


● Prepare soil for planting; dig out, chop and remove stumps, tree limbs and other debris; load and                 
haul trees and debris to appropriate refuse or dump site. 


● Assist in patching asphalt, pouring cement, laying sprinkler systems, repairing sprinkler systems,            
fences and playground equipment. 


● Assist maintenance and grounds personnel with repair and upkeep of grounds, buildings,            
facilities, athletic fields and/or equipment as necessary. 


● Utilize ladders, lifts, platforms and scaffolding. 
● Operate a computer and assigned software; input data as assigned. 
● Maintain routine records related to assigned activities. 
● Attend and participates in meetings and in-service trainings available. 


 
 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


Groundskeeper I Page 1 of 3 
 


623 of 778







 


 
 
 
 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and some grounds maintenance            
related work experience. 
 


Licenses and other Requirements: 
● Valid California Class C Driver’s License. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Basic grounds maintenance procedures including mowing, edging, raking and weeding.  
● Methods, equipment and materials used in gardening and groundskeeping work.  
● Cultivating, watering and spraying of flowers, trees and shrubs.  
● Safe operation, repair and maintenance of hand and power tools and equipment used in              


groundskeeping. 
● Basic record-keeping techniques.  
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 
● Health and safety regulations. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform a variety of grounds maintenance and gardening duties in the beautification of assigned              
grounds and landscaped areas. 


● Mow, edge, water, weed, rake and cultivate lawns, flower beds, athletic fields and other              
landscaped areas.  


● Safely operate and maintain hand and power tools and other equipment used in grounds              
maintenance.  


● Understand and follow oral and written instructions.  
● Perform heavy manual work functions pertaining to grounds maintenance, equipment operation,           


and gardening work. 
● Maintain routine records. 
● Observe health and safety regulations. 
● Work cooperatively with others. 
● Operate a variety of powered industrial vehicles. 
● Meet the physical requirements of the job. 
● Maintain regular attendance.  


 
WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor environment. 
● Seasonal heat and cold or adverse weather conditions.  
● Exposure to fumes, dust, odors, oil/grease, gases. 
● Driving a vehicle to conduct work. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


Groundskeeper I Page 2 of 3 
 


624 of 778







 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate grounds maintenance equipment. 
● Walking or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Seeing to perform gardening and grounds work. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing or pulling heavy objects as assigned by position.  
● Sitting to operate tractors, mowers and other machines. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching.  
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders and horizontally.  
● Heavy physical labor. 


Hazards: 


● Working around and with machinery having moving parts.  
● Exposure to chemicals and fumes. 
● Work in high noise level areas. 
● Work at various elevated heights on ladders, scaffolding, rigging, roofs and in restricted spaces. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 23 


Revised: 08/12/98 


Groundskeeper I Page 3 of 3 
 


625 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


GROUNDSKEEPER II 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director-Maintenance, Operations & Transportation and Supervisor-Custodial,           
Grounds & Maintenance, perform semi-skilled grounds maintenance and gardening functions in the            
beautification of grounds and landscaped areas at assigned site locations; operate a variety of              
power-driven equipment used in grounds maintenance work; utilize standard gardening hand tools;            
maintain a safe environment for students, staff and the public related to grounds maintenance activities. 
 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS: 
The Groundskeeper II classification works under general supervision at assigned school sites.            
Incumbents perform semi-skilled gardening, grounds maintenance duties on District-wide grounds,          
athletic fields and landscaped areas. The Groundskeeper I classification is the entry-level position in the               
series. Incumbents work under close supervision and perform routine grounds-keeping duties and work             
at various assigned school sites. The Groundskeeper III classification is the advanced-level position in              
the series. Incumbents work independently at assigned school sites and provide leadership, training and              
work direction to subordinate employees as assigned. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Perform semi-skilled grounds maintenance and gardening functions in the beautification of           
grounds and landscaped areas at assigned site locations. 


● Mow, edge, trim, and water lawns, fields and other turf grounds; water various grounds areas by                
hand or by operating the irrigation system. 


● Plant, cultivate, prune, spray, and irrigate flowers, trees, grass and shrubs; hoe and pull weeds               
and rake leaves; edge walkways; sweep litter from walks and driveways. 


● Perform general grounds cleanup, including picking up paper, trash and debris on grounds areas,              
parking lots, playgrounds, athletic fields and other assigned areas; empty waste receptacles. 


● Operate a variety of power-driven equipment such as mowers, edgers, blowers, pruners,            
rototillers, electric shears, weed eaters, power pressure sprayers and other equipment used in             
grounds maintenance work; utilize standard gardening hand tools; follow district safety           
procedures when operating, maintaining, repairing and installing equipment; drive a vehicle to            
conduct work. 


● Maintain grounds maintenance equipment in safe operating condition; perform minor          
maintenance on equipment such as changing blades, greasing and changing oil; perform a             
variety of preventative maintenance functions. 


● Monitor inventory levels of grounds maintenance supplies and equipment; assist in ordering,            
receiving and maintaining inventory of supplies and equipment. 


● Prepare soil for planting; dig out, chop and remove stumps, tree limbs and other debris; load and                 
haul trees and debris to appropriate refuse or dump site. 


● Assist in patching asphalt, pouring cement, laying sprinkler systems, repairing sprinkler systems,            
fences and playground equipment. 


● Apply pest control methods to eradicate weeds and other pests according to established             
procedures. 


● Assist maintenance and grounds personnel with repair and upkeep of grounds, buildings,            
facilities, athletic fields and/or equipment as necessary. 


● Operate a computer and assigned software; input data as assigned. 
● Maintain routine records related to assigned activities. 
● Attend and participate in meetings and in-service trainings available. 


 


Groundskeeper II Page 1 of 3 
 


626 of 778







 


 
 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 
 
 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and one year of experience             
performing general grounds maintenance duties. 
 


Licenses and other Requirements: 
● Valid California Class C Driver’s License. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Grounds maintenance procedures including mowing, edging, raking and weeding.  
● Methods, equipment and materials used in gardening and groundskeeping work.  
● Cultivating, watering and spraying of flowers, trees and shrubs.  
● Safe operation, repair and maintenance of hand and power tools and equipment used in              


groundskeeping. 
● Basic record-keeping techniques.  
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 
● Health and safety regulations. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform a variety of semi-skilled grounds maintenance and gardening duties in the beautification             
of assigned grounds and landscaped areas. 


● Mow, edge, water, weed, rake and cultivate lawns, flower beds, athletic fields and other              
landscaped areas.  


● Safely operate and maintain hand and power tools and other equipment used in grounds              
maintenance.  


● Understand and follow oral and written instructions.  
● Maintain athletic areas in a safe condition. 
● Apply specialized chemicals to control and eradicate weeds and other pests. 
● Perform heavy manual work functions pertaining to grounds maintenance, equipment operation,           


and gardening work. 
● Maintain routine records. 
● Observe health and safety regulations. 
● Work cooperatively with others. 
● Operate a variety of powered industrial vehicles. 
● Meet the physical requirements of the job. 
● Maintain regular attendance.  


 
WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor environment. 
● Seasonal heat and cold or adverse weather conditions.  
● Exposure to fumes, dust, odors, oil/grease, gases. 


Groundskeeper II Page 2 of 3 
 


627 of 778







 


● Driving a vehicle to conduct work. 
 


Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate grounds maintenance equipment. 
● Walking or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Seeing to perform gardening and grounds work. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing or pulling heavy objects as assigned by position.  
● Sitting to operate tractors, mowers and other machines. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching.  
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders and horizontally.  
● Heavy physical labor. 


Hazards: 


● Working around and with machinery having moving parts.  
● Exposure to chemicals and fumes. 
● Work in high noise level areas. 
● Work at various elevated heights on ladders, scaffolding, rigging, roofs and in restricted spaces. 


 
The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 28 


Revised: 08/12/98 


Groundskeeper II Page 3 of 3 
 


628 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


GROUNDSKEEPER III 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director-Maintenance, Operations & Transportation and Supervisor-Custodial,           
Grounds & Maintenance, perform skilled grounds maintenance and gardening functions in the            
beautification of grounds and landscaped areas at assigned site locations; perform specialized tasks and              
equipment operations in the maintenance, construction or repair of grounds areas, equipment and/or             
facilities; operate a variety of power-driven and specialized equipment used in grounds maintenance             
work; utilize standard gardening hand tools; train and provide work direction to groundskeeping crews in a                
lead capacity; maintain a safe environment for students, staff and the public related to grounds               
maintenance activities. 
 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS: 
The Groundskeeper III classification is the advanced-level position in the series. Incumbents work             
independently at assigned school sites and provide leadership, training and work direction to subordinate              
employees as assigned. The Groundskeeper I classification is the entry-level position in the series.              
Incumbents work under close supervision and perform routine grounds-keeping duties and work at             
various assigned school sites. The Groundskeeper II classification works under general supervision at             
assigned school sites. Incumbents perform semi-skilled gardening, grounds maintenance duties on           
District-wide grounds, athletic fields and landscaped areas.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Perform skilled grounds maintenance and gardening functions in the beautification of grounds            
and landscaped areas at assigned site locations; maintain a safe environment for students, staff              
and the public related to grounds maintenance activities. 


● Mow, edge, trim, and water lawns, fields and other turf grounds; water various grounds areas by                
hand or by operating the irrigation system. 


● Plant, cultivate, prune, spray, and irrigate flowers, trees, grass and shrubs; hoe and pull weeds               
and rake leaves; edge walkways; sweep litter from walks and driveways. 


● Perform general grounds cleanup, including picking up paper, trash and debris on grounds areas,              
parking lots, playgrounds, athletic fields and other assigned areas; empty waste receptacles. 


● Performs safety inspections at various sites and makes repairs of playground equipment. 
● Operate a variety of power-driven equipment such as tractors, mowers, edgers, blowers, pruners,             


rototillers, electric shears, weed eaters, power pressure sprayers and other equipment used in             
grounds maintenance work; utilize standard gardening hand tools; follow district safety           
procedures when operating, maintaining, repairing and installing equipment; drive a vehicle to            
conduct work. 


● Operates specialized equipment such as trencher, backhoe, tractor with blade, forklift, sweepers,            
mowers, loaders. 


● Coordinate, prepare and maintain athletic fields for physical education and other sporting events             
according to established procedures and specifications as assigned by the position. 


● Maintain grounds maintenance equipment in safe operating condition; perform minor          
maintenance on equipment such as changing blades, greasing and changing oil; perform a             
variety of preventative maintenance functions. 


● Pick up and deliver supplies to job sites; may assist with receiving, storing and inventory of 
grounds equipment and stock. 


● Monitor inventory levels of grounds maintenance supplies and equipment; assist in ordering, 
receiving and maintaining inventory of supplies and equipment. 


Groundskeeper III Page 1 of 3 
 


629 of 778







 


● Prepare soil for planting; dig out, chop and remove stumps, tree limbs and other debris; load and 
haul trees and debris to appropriate refuse or dump site. 


● Assist in patching asphalt, pouring cement, laying sprinkler systems, repairing sprinkler systems, 
fences and playground equipment. 


● Apply pest control methods to eradicate weeds and other pests according to established 
procedures. 


● Assist maintenance and grounds personnel with repair and upkeep of grounds, buildings, 
facilities, athletic fields and/or equipment as necessary; repair fences, potholes and drains as 
needed. 


● Operate a computer and assigned software; input data as assigned. 
● Maintain routine records related to assigned activities. 
● Attend and participate in meetings and in-service trainings available. 


OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 
 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and three years experience            
performing general grounds maintenance duties. 
 


Licenses and other Requirements: 
● Valid California Class C Driver’s License. 
● Some incumbents may be required to have a valid California Applicator's License for herbicides 


and insecticides. 


Knowledge of:  
● Grounds maintenance procedures including mowing, edging, raking and weeding.  
● Methods, equipment and materials used in gardening and groundskeeping work.  
● Cultivating, watering and spraying of flowers, trees and shrubs.  
● Safe operation, repair and maintenance of hand and power tools and equipment used in              


groundskeeping. 
● Procedures required to prepare athletic fields for a variety of events. 
● Principles of training and providing work direction. 
● Basic record-keeping techniques.  
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 
● Health and safety regulations. 


Ability to: 
● Perform a variety of skilled grounds maintenance and gardening duties in the beautification of              


assigned grounds and landscaped areas. 
● Train and provide work direction to groundskeeping crews in a lead capacity.  
● Mow, edge, water, weed, rake and cultivate lawns, flower beds, athletic fields and other              


landscaped areas.  
● Safely operate and maintain hand and power tools and other equipment used in grounds              


maintenance.  
● Understand and follow oral and written instructions.  
● Maintain athletic areas in a safe condition. 
● Apply specialized chemicals to control and eradicate weeds and other pests. 


Groundskeeper III Page 2 of 3 
 


630 of 778







 


● Perform heavy manual work functions pertaining to grounds maintenance, equipment operation,           
and gardening work. 


● Maintain routine records. 
● Observe health and safety regulations. 
● Work cooperatively with others. 
● Operate a variety of powered industrial vehicles. 
● Meet the physical requirements of the job. 
● Maintain regular attendance.  


 
WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor environment. 
● Seasonal heat and cold or adverse weather conditions.  
● Exposure to fumes, dust, odors, oil/grease, gases. 
● Driving a vehicle to conduct work. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate grounds maintenance equipment. 
● Walking or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Seeing to perform gardening and grounds work. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing or pulling heavy objects as assigned by position.  
● Sitting to operate tractors, mowers and other machines. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching.  
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders and horizontally.  
● Heavy physical labor. 


Hazards: 


● Working around and with machinery having moving parts.  
● Exposure to chemicals and fumes. 
● Work in high noise level areas. 
● Work at various elevated heights on ladders, scaffolding, rigging, roofs and in restricted spaces. 


 
The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 30 


Revised: 08/12/98 


 
 


Groundskeeper III Page 3 of 3 
 


631 of 778







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


INSTRUCTIONAL SPECIALIST-LIFE LAB 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Principal, plan, coordinate, implement and provide standards based, hands-on              
science, environmental science, nutrition instruction to groups of students in an outdoor environmental             
education classroom environment; research and prepare instructional materials and lesson plans utilizing            
approved curriculum guides; perform specialized duties in the care, operation and maintenance of an              
outdoor garden classroom. 
 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Plan, coordinate, implement and provide standards based, hand-on science, environmental          


science, nutrition instruction to groups of students in an outdoor environmental education            
classroom environment; adjust lessons and/or location based on weather and season. 


● Research and prepare instructional materials, lesson plans, safe equipment demonstrations and 
student assignments according to approved District policies and procedures; utilize approved 
curriculum guides. 


● Observe and manage behavior of students in an outdoor classroom according to approved 
District policies and procedures; report progress regarding student performance and behavior. 


● Perform a variety of specialized and general garden care and maintenance duties throughout the 
year including weeding, pruning, amending soil, and minor irrigation system repairs; utilize a 
variety of gardening tools, equipment and supplies. 


● Coordinate the operations and maintenance related to an assigned garden; supervise student            
projects in hands-on science, gardening, environmental education and nutrition; train and provide            
work direction to students and volunteers; assist volunteers, staff and students in the safe use of                
a variety of gardening tools, equipment, materials and supplies. 


● Order, receive, and store outdoor gardening supplies, materials and equipment; maintain           
inventories assuring the adequate quantities are available for timely instructional use; monitor            
expenses and maintain program budget; perform fundraising activities for garden supplies and            
curriculum materials. 


● Operate a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned software. 
● Assure the health and safety of students by following established practices and procedures;             


maintain outdoor learning environment in a safe, orderly and clean manner. 
● Perform a variety of clerical duties related to the Life Lab instructional program; prepare and               


maintain records and reports as necessary. 
● Communicate with volunteers, community supporters, interns, District staff and others to 


schedule garden maintenance, exchange information, and resolve issues or concerns regarding 
Life Lab programs and activities. 


● Attend meetings, workshops and in-services as assigned. 
 


OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


 
 
 
 
Instructional Specialist-Life Lab Page 1 of 3 
 


632 of 778







REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and two years of experience working              
with children in an educational or organized learning environment. College course work in             
environmental science, organic gardening, nutrition, child growth and development and education           
may be substituted for experience.  


● Requirements specified under Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). Special qualifications          
supported by Title I funds include:  


o Completed at least two years of study at an institution of higher education or,  
o Obtained an associate’s or higher degree (college level) or, 
o Met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal State or local               


academic assessment, knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading,            
writing and mathematics. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Principles, practices, procedures, concepts terminology, techniques and equipment used in          
environmental science, organic gardening and nutrition management. 


● Child guidance principles and practices. 
● General instructional techniques and strategies related to Life Lab programs. 
● Safe practices in outdoor classroom activities. 
● Operation of gardening tools and equipment. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Health and safety regulations. 
● Applicable laws, codes, regulations, policies and procedures related to assigned position. 
● Recordkeeping methods and procedures. 
● Correct English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary. 
● Training principles and techniques. 
● Proper methods of storing gardening equipment, materials and supplies. 
● Technical aspects of field of specialty. 
● Oral and written communications skills. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Basic arithmetic concepts. 


 
Ability to: 


● Plan, coordinate, implement and provide standards based, hand-on science, environmental          
science, nutrition instruction to groups of students. 


● Learn and apply knowledge of environmental education, gardening and nutrition management. 
● Plan and prepare instructional materials and ensure implementation of lesson plans. 
● Monitor, observe and report student behavior and progress according to approved policies and             


procedures. 
● Operate a variety of outdoor classroom and office equipment including a computer and assigned 


software. 
● Plan and organize work. 
● Utilize hand and power tools to maintain a garden. 
● Train and provide work direction to students and volunteers. 
● Work independently with little direction. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 
● Establish and maintain effective working and cooperative relationships with others. 
● Analyze situations accurately and adopt an effective course of action. 


Instructional Specialist-Life Lab Page 2 of 3 
 


633 of 778







● Perform arithmetic calculations quickly and accurately. 
● Meet schedules and timelines. 
● Maintain records and prepare reports. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Outdoor/Garden environment. 
● Seasonal heat, cold or adverse weather conditions. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an                 


employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may             
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Seeing to observe student behavior and to inspect gardening facilities. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a variety of gardening tools and equipment. 
● Lifting, carrying pulling and pushing moderately heavy objects. 
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders and horizontally.  
● Bending, kneeling or crouching to assist students and perform garden maintenance activities. 
● Walking over uneven surfaces. 


Hazards: 


● Working on ladders. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 30 


Revised: 08/12/98, 09/17/98 


Instructional Specialist-Life Lab Page 3 of 3 
 


634 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


LEAD ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director of Finance, perform responsible technical work in maintaining, and               
monitoring all general, categorical and special funds including but not limited to restricted and unrestricted               
funds, reconciling special education programs, cafeteria, adult education and various construction           
reserves.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Perform professional level accounting work in accordance with a prescribed accounting system            
and prescribed district policies, state laws, and generally accepted accounting principles. 


● Verify deposits and post to budget; make deposit to County treasury Office; manage accounts              
receivables for the District; send invoices and post to budget. 


● Establish and maintain accounts; audit claims; reconcile reports; maintain complete chart of            
accounts as required; analyze and verify accounting data for posting; review applicable laws and              
prescribed District policies for guidance in performing accounting operations. 


● Oversee the operation of the District's financial computer programs as required; post, adjust and              
balance accounts. 


● Prepare, analyze, and review estimates of reimbursements, expenditures, fund condition, and           
budgetary accounts; analyze and verify financial reports and statements; account for and record             
expenditures, revenues, or other budgetary accounts and financial transactions. 


● Schedule, prepare, review and evaluate various financial statements; analyze, evaluate and           
develop recommended procedures to meet needs of preparation, control and coordination of            
District budgets. 


● Perform internal audit, checks and reviews departmental accounts including student body funds;            
provide technical direction over accounting personnel; participate in the analysis and review of             
current and proposed data processing systems and procedures. 


● Gather, classify and summarize data in preparation for compiling financial reports; provide            
accounting assistance and advice to site managers, project directors and department           
supervisors; prepare District, state and federal financial and statistical reports as required. 


● Participate in available training to meet new technology standards.  
● Review and evaluate financial statements, records and reports to ensure accuracy, completeness            


and compliance with established guidelines. 
● Communicate with administrators, personnel and outside agencies to exchange information,          


coordinate activities and resolve issues or concerns; prepare and send letters as needed. 
● Operate a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned software. 


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school supplemented by four years of             
experience in accounts payable, accounts receivable, or the accounting field, i.e. accounting, or             
equivalent experience or 2 years college coursework in accounting with an Associate's Degree             
with 2 years of experience.  
 


Lead Accounting Technician Page 1 of 3 
 


635 of 778







 


Knowledge of:  
● Bookkeeping and financial record-keeping terminology, methods and practices. 
● Preparation of comprehensive account reports. 
● Accounting and auditing principles, practices and procedures. 
● Modern office practices, procedures and equipment. 
● District organization, operation and policies. 
● Correct English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Applicable sections of the State Education Code and other applicable laws. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Policies and objectives of assigned programs and activities.  
● General accounting and business functions of an educational organization. 
● Operation of a variety of office equipment, a computer and assigned software.  
● Technical aspects of field of specialty. 
● Arithmetic computations. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform specialized accounting and financial record-keeping duties to ensure accurate          
accounting of District funds at an assigned school site. 


● Balance accounts and reconcile bank statements. 
● Learn, interpret, apply and explain rules, regulations, policies and procedures related to the             


District and applicable sections of the California Education Code. 
● Meet schedules and timelines. 
● Prepare and maintain financial records and prepare reports. 
● Operate a variety of office equipment, a computer and assigned software.  
● Make arithmetic calculations quickly and accurately. 
● Understand and follow oral and written directions. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others and maintain            


regular attendance.  
● Plan and organize work. 
● Work independently with little direction. 
● Type and input data at an acceptable rate of speed. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Office environment. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate standard office equipment. 
● Seeing to read, post and assure the accuracy of accounting records. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to retrieve and file materials. 
● Sitting and standing for extended periods of time. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing or pulling moderately heavy objects. 
● Reaching overhead and above shoulders to retrieve items. 
● Repetitive hand and body motions.  


Lead Accounting Technician Page 2 of 3 
 


636 of 778







 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range:  38 


Revised:  6/25/1984, 08/12/98 


Lead Accounting Technician Page 3 of 3 
 


637 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


LEAD SCHOOL BUS DRIVER 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Supervisor-Transportation, serve as a lead school bus driver while performing               
assigned duties of a school bus driver; train and provide work direction and guidance to assigned staff;                 
plan, organize, conduct and schedule bus driver training programs; transport students over scheduled             
routes; ensure safety of students while being transported to an assigned location on a designated route;                
assist with coordinating, modifying and monitoring bus routing and scheduling activities to assure smooth              
and efficient bus operations; maintain order and discipline among passengers on the bus; perform regular               
safety inspections of the busses; operate the school bus in a safe manner at all times; act as a proxy for                     
the Supervisor-Transportation when assigned. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Serve as a lead bus driver; provide work direction and guidance to assigned staff; plan, organize                
and schedule bus driver training programs. 


● Coordinate and monitor bus routing, scheduling activities to assure smooth and efficient bus             
operations for regular and special event transportation; assign bus drivers and equipment as             
appropriate; address last minute scheduling changes as needed. 


● Assist in developing and maintaining school bus safety, accident prevention and investigation 
programs; assist in investigating accidents and completing necessary documentation. 


● Attend meetings and in-service trainings; plan, organize and conduct Behind-the-Wheel Training           
for potential drivers and on-going training for school bus drivers as directed; assist in classroom               
driver training; monitor and report on school bus drivers’ knowledge and skills. 


● Maintain required school bus driver knowledge and skills; meet the certificate requirements of a              
school bus driver and school bus Delegated Behind-the-Wheel trainer as directed. 


● Operate a computer and assigned software; input data; generate and utilize spreadsheets. 
● Prepare and maintain accurate records; prepare routine logs, route sheets and reports as 


required. 
● Drive a school bus or other transportation vehicle along a designated route, to field trips and                


special activities as assigned. 
● Escort and assist students on and off vehicles and across streets when required or necessary;               


meet scheduled departure and arrival times as assigned; observe legal and defensive driving             
practices; ensure compliance with applicable traffic and student transportation laws, codes and            
regulations.  


● Perform pre-trip and post-trip inspections to monitor fluid levels and vehicle condition; adjust tire              
pressure condition and mirrors; fuel, service and prepare vehicle for operation; ensure the safe              
operating condition of the vehicle; comply with mandated guidelines; clean assigned vehicles,            
both interior and exterior; ensure safety, appearance, and sanitation of vehicle; report mechanical             
malfunctions or other problems as required. 


● Maintain order and discipline among passengers on the bus; report observations and incidents             
including discipline, inappropriate social behavior; communicate effectively with school staff and           
parents regarding student behavior as needed. 


● Assess incidents, complaints, accidents and potential emergency situations including road          
hazards, medical emergencies, and accidents; resolve and recommend a resolution to the            
situation; determine appropriate action in emergency situations according to established          
guidelines; administer first aid/CPR to passengers as necessary. 


● Maintain buses in a clean and safe operating condition; wash, sweep and clean buses. 
● Assist students as needed in boarding, buckling, and loading, securing and unloading students in              


wheelchairs as assigned by the position. 


Lead School Bus Driver Page 1 of 4 
 


638 of 778







 


● Conduct emergency evacuation drills; ensure efficiency of procedures and complying with           
mandated requirements; administer first aid as necessary. 


● Attend meetings, classroom and behind the wheel training, safety meetings, in-services,           
administrative conferences; maintain required skills; meet the certificate requirements of a school            
bus driver. 


● Utilize two-way radios for bus to bus and bus to base communications; notify appropriate              
personnel of delays or accidents as needed;  


● Communicates with students, parents, staff and the general public in a courteous manner;             
respond to inquiries regarding assigned activities. 


● Read and interpret maps to assure most efficient routing based on prevailing traffic patterns. 
 
 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and three years of experience             
operating a bus or commercial vehicle. 
 


Licenses and other Requirements 
● Valid California Commercial Driver’s License Class A or B with appropriate passenger, school 


bus and air brake endorsements. 
● California Delegated Behind-The-Wheel Trainer Certificate within 12 months of employment.  
● Valid First Aid and CPR Certificate issued by an authorized agency. 
● Valid California Special driver's certificate (DL45), unrestricted except for #1-Automatic          


Transmission only. 
● Valid Medical Examiner's Certificate.  
● Comply with District policy and US Department of Transportation’s drug and alcohol testing             


regulations including random, reasonable suspicion and post-accident testing. 
● Attend in-services and training required to maintain licenses and certificates.  
● A safe driving record in accordance with the requirements of the California Department of Motor               


Vehicles is required.  
● Incumbents must be a minimum of 21 years of age. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Scheduling and coordination of bus driver training programs. 
● Curriculum requirements for behind-the-wheel and driver classroom bus training and refresher           


classes. 
● Principles and practices of training, guidance and providing work direction to assigned staff. 
● Transportation scheduling and routing methods and techniques. 
● Basic first aid procedures. 
● Safe and defensive driving practices. 
● Proper operation, inspection and maintenance of school buses. 
● Applicable Federal, State Local and District laws, codes, directives and regulations for the             


transportation of students. 
● Basic first aid procedures. 
● Basic record-keeping techniques. 
● Proper lifting techniques. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Health and safety regulations.  


Lead School Bus Driver Page 2 of 4 
 


639 of 778







 


● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Air brake systems. 
● Safe driving practices. 
● Child guidance practices related to students with special needs. 


 
Ability to: 


● Serve as a lead school bus driver while performing assigned duties of a school bus driver. 
● Train and provide work direction and guidance to assigned staff. 
● Plan, schedule and conduct behind-the-wheel classes for school bus driver trainees and licensed             


school bus drivers. 
● Operate all school bus and other transportation vehicles and equipment skillfully, safely and             


efficiently. 
● Make sound judgment in emergency situations.  
● Conduct safety inspections and perform routine preventive maintenance. 
● Learn and apply policies and procedures related to student discipline on buses. 
● Read and interpret maps. 
● Observe legal and defensive driving practices. 
● Learn and follow designated routes. 
● Maintain bus in clean and proper working condition. 
● Administer first aid/CPR as necessary. 
● Demonstrate an understanding, patient and receptive attitude toward students with special needs. 
● Learn proper lifting techniques. 
● Maintain routine logs and records. 
● Understand and follow oral and written directions. 
● Communicate effectively with others 
● Meet schedules and timelines.  
● Operate a two-way radio. 
● Meet the physical requirements necessary to perform the job. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others.  
● Maintain regular attendance.  


 
WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor environment. 
● Seasonal heat and cold or adverse weather conditions.  
● Evening or variable hours.  
● Exposure to fumes, dust, odors, oil/grease and gases.  
● Driving a vehicle to conduct work. 
● Frequent communication with Students, Parents, Teachers, District employees and the public. 


 
 


Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Sitting for extended periods of time while operating buses. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Climb ladders and ramps. 
● Reaching, pulling and pushing to open bus doors, move and secure wheelchairs. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to inspect and wash buses and secure wheelchairs. 
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders or horizontally. 


Lead School Bus Driver Page 3 of 4 
 


640 of 778







 


● Seeing to monitor passengers and operate a vehicle. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing or pulling moderately heavy children or objects. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate school bus control panel and operate a two-way radio. 


Hazards: 


● Traffic hazards. 
● Potential contact with dissatisfied or abusive individuals. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 30 


Revised: 05/04/99 


 


Lead School Bus Driver Page 4 of 4 
 


641 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


LIBRARY/MEDIA ASSISTANT 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the site administrator and School Librarian, provide support and maintain the library                
and media resources at a school site; assist students, parents and staff with library media center books,                 
material, library technology and equipment; perform clerical functions related to collection; process            
circulation; maintain inventory of library and media resources and materials; promote library and media              
service usage. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Inventory incoming library books, periodicals, media material, equipment, and resources; prepare           
materials for shelving; maintain availability of materials. 


● Perform circulation duties; check books and materials out and process returns as required; collect              
fees for overdue books; process and shelve textbooks and core literature book sets; maintain              
record of lost and damaged books and materials.  


● Assist teachers in gathering materials for study specific assignments; distribute various library            
books and teacher requested classroom materials; assist with instruction on the proper use of the               
library resources including classification system, and care of books and materials; assist in             
establishing procedures and regulations for checkout and library and media use.  


● Monitor and maintain circulation records; maintain an established system for create computerized            
lists of overdue books and send out bills and notices; create loan lists; collect computer use                
forms; update information on computerized system; receive and record donations.  


● Perform routine and preventive maintenance of media and computer equipment; repair damaged            
books; remove aged materials from circulation; update computerized database and records for            
active circulation materials.  


● Assist in training and directing student helpers and volunteers; supervise lunch time and recess              
and activities in the library; ensure facility is maintained in a neat, orderly and clean manner.  


● Participate and prepare for fundraising events and book fairs. 
● Participate in training to meet new library and media technology standards. 
● Operate a variety of office and library media equipment including a computer and assigned              


software. 
● Create and maintain eligibility lists for dances and school activities based on library overdue              


books and fines.  
 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and two years of general clerical              
experience. Associate’s degree can be substituted for work experience.  


● Requirements specified under Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). Special qualifications          
supported by Title I funds include:  


o Completed at least two years of study at an institution of higher education or,  
o Obtained an associate’s or higher degree (college level) or, 


Library/Media Assistant Page 1 of 3 
 


642 of 778







 


o Met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal State or local               
academic assessment, knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading,            
writing and mathematics. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Practices, procedures, tools and techniques involved in the ordering, processing and cataloging            
of library books, textbooks and other instructional materials. 


● Library practices, procedures, reference materials, resources and terminology. 
● Inventory practices, procedures and techniques. 
● Library cataloging and classification techniques. 
● Data control procedures and data entry operations. 
● General practices, standards, techniques and procedures involved in preparing, maintaining and           


updating automated catalogs. 
● Use and terminology of requisitions, purchase orders and invoices.  
● Record retrieval and storage systems. 
● Oral and written communication skills.  
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy.  
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 
● Record-keeping and report preparation techniques. 
● Mathematic calculations. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform a variety of technical duties involved in the receipt, processing, cataloging, distribution,             
and inventorying of District library books, textbooks, supplies and instructional materials. 


● Utilize a computer to catalog materials, maintain automated records, and process and input             
cataloging data, records and information. 


● Prepare and process new books, textbooks and library materials for distribution and circulation. 
● Review and inspect shipments of books and materials to verify accuracy.  
● Coordinate, lead and conduct regular and periodic inventories. 
● Identify and report inventory needs, shortages and discrepancies. 
● Research, assemble, and compile a variety of cataloging data and information. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing.  
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others and maintain            


regular attendance. 
● Operate a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned software. 
● Type or input data at an acceptable rate of speed. 
● Meet schedules and timelines.  
● Work independently with little direction.  
● Prepare and maintain narrative and statistical records and reports. 
 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Library environment.  
● Fast paced work environment with changing needs.  


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to /operate a computer keyboard. 


Library/Media Assistant Page 2 of 3 
 


643 of 778







 


● Seeing to read a variety of materials and view a computer monitor. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Sitting for extended periods of time. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling heavy objects as assigned by the position. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to shelve and retrieve books. 
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders and horizontally.  


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 24 


Revised: 08/12/98 


Library/Media Assistant Page 3 of 3 
 


644 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


MENTAL HEALTH SPECIALIST 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director of Special Education, provide educationally related mental health              
services including counseling, individual and group therapy, consultation and treatment and directed case             
management; provide crisis intervention support; participate in Individualized Education Plan (IEP)           
meetings and serve a part of a multi-disciplinary team; prepare reports and analyses; engage in planning                
and treatment plans with parents, treatment teams, mental health professionals and District staff.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Provide support and collaborate with mental health support staff to meet the educationally related              
mental health needs of students as per IEPs; provide counseling and therapy services both to               
individuals and in groups; assess threat and observe student behaviors; engage in crisis             
intervention as needed. 


● Meet with parents, teachers and staff to address student needs; make referrals to in-District and               
community resources; provide staff with the appropriate guidance and strategies needed to            
further enhance the student’s social and emotional development; assist Treatment Teams and            
Mental Health personnel in developing interventions for students including strategies, functional           
behavior assessments and behavior intervention plans. 


● Prepare therapy notes, progress notes, student goal outlines, present needs; update plans and 
student intervention plans on computer systems; monitor student attendance for individual and 
group therapy sessions; maintain records of student progress in targeted behavior areas. 


● Participate in student’s Individual Education Plan meetings; assist in the development of 
appropriate goals for students’ behavioral needs; provide training, guidance and strategies to staff 
to support students with significant behavioral concerns, reinforce learning and utilize behavior 
modification techniques to increase the use of replacement behaviors. 


● Perform a variety of clerical duties in support of assigned program activities such as preparing,               
typing, duplicating and filing instructional materials; create student service record file folders;            
maintain and manage therapy articles, reports and materials.  


● Attend and participate in meetings, in-services and professional development trainings; provide           
training on mental health issues to staff, students and families; perform home visits as needed;               
drive a vehicle to conduct work.  


● Conduct assessments; prepare reports regarding social and emotional needs; present reports to            
IEP teams; develop and monitor social and emotional goals.  


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: Master’s degree and at least three years of experience working              
with students with behavioral challenges and social/emotional concerns. 
 


Licenses and other Requirements 
● Valid California Class C Driver’s License. 
● Valid California license as a Marriage and Family Therapist or a Clinical Social Worker. 


 


Mental Health Specialist Page 1 of 3 
 


645 of 778







 


Knowledge of:  
● Child guidance principles and practices related to students with various mental health needs. 
● Basic concepts of mental health support and practices. 
● Basic instructional methods and training techniques. 
● Basic concepts of child growth and development and developmental behavior characteristics. 
● Behavior management strategies and positive reinforcement techniques. 
● Principles and practices of developing and implementing behavioral support and interventions. 
● Policies and procedures related to behavior modification techniques and behavior plans. 
● Routine record keeping and data collection techniques. 
● Individual Education Plans (IEP) goals and objectives. 
● Social, behavioral and academic needs of students with mental health needs. 
● Diverse academic, socioeconomic, cultural, disability, and ethnic backgrounds of students. 
● District organization, operations, regulations, policies and objectives related to position. 
● Correct English grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Operation of standard office and classroom equipment. 
● Public speaking techniques. 
● Basic subjects including arithmetic, grammar, spelling and reading. 


 
Ability to: 


● Learn behavior intervention strategies and procedures such as identifying antecedents and           
consequences of behavior, function of behavior, and replacement behaviors. 


● Appropriately manage student behavior and guide students toward more acceptable social           
behaviors.  


● Develop and implement behavioral support and interventions. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing in English. 
● Assist with instruction and training activities for staff and students related to mental health and               


behavior support. 
● Assist in the preparation of instructional materials. 
● Perform a variety of clerical duties including typing, filing and duplicating materials. 
● Assist in the implementation of Individual Education Plans (IEP). 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others and maintain            


regular attendance. 
● Demonstrate a patient, receptive, and empathetic attitude toward students. 
● Observe and control student behavior according to approved policies and procedures. 
● Operate standard office and classroom equipment. 
● Observe health and safety regulations. 
● Meet schedules and timelines. 
● Maintain records and confidentiality of student information 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor environment. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate standard office and classroom equipment. 


Mental Health Specialist Page 2 of 3 
 


646 of 778







 


● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to assist students. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information.  
● Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor student activities.  


Hazards: 


● Potential contact with dissatisfied or abusive individuals. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board: 


Salary Range: Licensed Professional Salary Schedule  


Revised: 02/25/15 


Mental Health Specialist Page 3 of 3 
 


647 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


PAYROLL TECHNICIAN 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director of Finance, perform a variety of technical payroll duties in the                 
preparation and processing of school district payrolls to ensure employees are paid in an accurate and                
timely manner; prepare, process, maintain and ensure accuracy of a variety of employee payroll              
information, forms, records and reports. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Perform technical calculations in preparing and maintaining payroll records; audit and verify            
payroll supporting documents.  


● Approve Position Control Actions for end of month payroll; make necessary adjustments when             
needed; enter W-4, banking information, appropriate retirement system into computerized payroll           
system; enter payroll voluntary deductions.  


● Generate payroll for District employees; make manual adjustments including correct hourly rates            
for certificated employees; enter sub differential pay for classified employees; ensure appropriate            
manual adjustments as needed.  


● Prepare and run various audit reports; correct for errors and re-run reports; close payroll; run and                
send requested reports to auditors and IT at the County Office of Education.  


● Prepare Supplemental Payroll; enter new hire information, hourly pay, W4 and banking            
information as required; audit sub reports against site entries; calculate pay on time sheets;              
compare hours input into computerized payroll system. 


● Process and deliver checks on assigned pay dates; distribute and send voluntary deduction             
checks; transmit payroll information to District administration for contributions.  


● Audit and maintain leave balances for all employees.  
● Process quarterly reporting of SUI reports and multiple site reports; request check for SUI report               


when needed.  
● Prepare emails for check distribution on school breaks; prepare and transmit information to             


County Office of Education for year-end W2 reporting, including Excess Life Report, Dependent             
Care and Use of Company Vehicles.  


● Update and record new year information including payroll deadlines to school sites; enter yearly              
calendars into payroll accounting system.  


● Communicate with County Office personnel, school districts and various outside agencies to            
exchange information and resolve issues or concerns. 


● Assist in assuring assigned payroll and accounting functions comply with established standards,            
guidelines, requirements, laws, regulations, policies and procedures. 


● Operate a variety of office equipment including a calculator, copier, fax machine, computer and              
assigned software. 


● Compose, distribute and respond to a variety of correspondence; duplicate, distribute, collect and             
request materials as needed. 


● Maintain current knowledge of laws, codes, rules, regulations and pending legislation related to             
payroll functions. 


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


 
 
 
Payroll Technician Page 1 of 3 
 


648 of 778







 


 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school supplemented by two years general             
accounting experience including work with payroll functions. 
 


Knowledge of:  
● Principles and techniques involved in payroll preparation and processing. 
● Methods, procedures and terminology used in technical payroll work including W-4’s. 
● Financial and statistical record-keeping techniques.  
● Preparation of financial statements and comprehensive accounting reports. 
● Tax withholding and voluntary deductions. 
● Verification and processing of payroll records and reports. 
● Data control procedures and data entry operations. 
● Payroll policies and procedures.  
● Modern office practices, procedures and equipment.  
● Operation of a computer and assigned software.  
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Interpersonal skills including tact, patience and courtesy.  
● Arithmetic computations. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform a variety of technical payroll duties in the preparation and processing of District payrolls               
to ensure employees are paid in an accurate and timely manner.  


● Maintain accurate financial and statistical records. 
● Prepare and evaluate comprehensive payroll reports and statements. 
● Monitor, audit, adjust and reconcile payroll.  
● Review, process, evaluate and verify a variety of financial information. 
● Identify, investigate and resolve financial errors and discrepancies. 
● Serve as a technical resource concerning payroll functions. 
● Process employee time information and related documents for payrolls. 
● Type or input data at an acceptable rate of speed. 
● Compare numbers and detect errors efficiently. 
● Learn, interpret, apply and explain laws, codes, rules, regulations, policies and procedures. 
● Operate standard office equipment including a computer and assigned software. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others. 
● Meet schedules and time lines. 
● Perform arithmetic calculations quickly and accurately. 
● Maintain confidentiality of sensitive and privileged information. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Office environment. 


 


Payroll Technician Page 2 of 3 
 


649 of 778







 


Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Sitting for extended periods of time. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to file and retrieve materials. 
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders and horizontally.  


 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 


Approved by Governing Board: 


Salary Range: 32 


Revised: 08/12/98, 09/17/98 


Payroll Technician Page 3 of 3 
 


650 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


PROGRAM ASSISTANT 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the department administrator, perform a variety of clerical duties related to support                
of an assigned school resource program and related activities. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Plan, organize and perform a variety of administrative support and technical duties in support of               
the day-to-day operations of assigned program and coordination of component functions. 


● Compile information and prepare and maintain a variety or records and reports related to              
students, participation, enrollment and assigned activities; establish and maintain filing systems;           
prepare and distribute a variety of correspondence, forms and other documents pertaining to             
program activities. 


● Compose and prepare reports, correspondence, memorandum and other written documents for           
assigned program; distribute information concerning program functions and monthly budget. 


● Maintain routine records, logs and files related to resource or related center use; assist in the                
coordination and dissemination of reports; respond to inquiries and requests for information;            
collect timesheets from program staff; create agendas for required monthly meetings.  
 


Migrant Student Services: 
● Plan, coordinate and monitor grant funding for Migrant Student program; monitor and manage             


student data, including eligibility of services; compile requested data into program reports and             
records. 


● Monitor program expenditures; budget summer and regular school year services; maintain           
records of invoices, mileage reimbursements, contract work agreements.  


● Coordinate Parent Advisory Committee meetings and parent education programs for          
preschoolers to out of school youth; plan and coordinate supplemental summer school services;             
manage student assessments. 


● Communicate with parents, students, site administrators to monitor student progress, invite to            
special events, and provide information of Migrant Student Services.  
 


Transportation Services: 
● Utilize two-way radio to maintain constant contact with bus drivers; respond to calls from parents               


regarding bus routes and schedules; communicate with classroom teachers regarding bus           
schedules; relay accident and emergency medical information to CHP, Fire Department, District            
staff, and parents; maintain flow of operations and communications of Transportation Department            
in absence of the Supervisor-Transportation. 


● Process requisitions; manage purchase and change orders; monitor monies available; arrange for            
budget transfers; log in invoices; submit for payments.  


● Serve as communication and logistics central contact for school bus routes, schedules and             
operational activities.  
 


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


 


 


Program Assistant Page 1 of 3 
 


651 of 778







 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to:  graduation from high school and one year of clerical experience 
with frequent public contact.  


Bilingualism in a designated second language is preferred.  


Knowledge of:  
● District practices, procedures and terminology. 
● Instructional reference materials and sources. 
● Books and materials appropriate for specific ages and grade levels. 
● Filing, indexing and inventory procedures. 
● Diverse academic, socioeconomic, cultural, and ethnic backgrounds of non-English speaking          


students. 
● Principles of training and providing work direction.  
● Modern office practices, procedures and equipment. 
● Record-keeping techniques. 
● Correct English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary.  
● Oral and written communications skills. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Basic research methods. 
● Basic computer operations. 


 
Ability to: 


● Provide instructional resource services and assistance to students and staff. 
● Utilize a two-way radio as needed by assignment.  
● Maintain instructional materials inventory and related records. 
● Provide circulation desk services and shelve resource materials. 
● Provide research skills and orientation. 
● Apply and explain District rules, regulations and policies. 
● Process a variety of instructional materials. 
● Train and provide work direction to others.  
● Basic operation of a computer terminal and data entry techniques. 
● Perform clerical duties such as filing, duplications and typing. 
● Maintain resource site in a neat and orderly condition. 
● Work independently with little direction. 
● Establish and maintain effective working relationships with others and maintain regular           


attendance.  
● Maintain records and prepare reports.  
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor environment. 
● Fast paced work environment with changing needs. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
Program Assistant Page 2 of 3 
 


652 of 778







 


● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 
● Sitting or standing for extended period of time.  
● Reaching overhead and above shoulders.  
● Repetitive hand and body motions.  


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 05/06/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 22 


Revised: 08/12/98 


Program Assistant Page 3 of 3 
 


653 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT II 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Principal, provide administrative assistance, skilled secretarial and clerical work              
in support of the daily operations of a school office or department; student data and enrollment                
information into assigned computer system; maintain student records; provide transcripts; prepare reports            
for teachers, administrators and other school staff. This position primarily operates out of the counseling               
office in middle schools.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Provide administrative and clerical support for school office daily operations; process transcript            
and student record requests; receive payments for transcripts and verify third party graduation             
verifications; organize annual forms and ensure student accessibility.  


● Enroll new students; prepare and print report cards and progress reports; maintain cumulative             
files; file student documents, including confidential information; prepare and distribute summer           
mailings and beginning of year packets.  


● Process requests for cumulative files and other documents; maintain and ensure accuracy of             
records, files and reports; maintain and manage databases for awards, certificates and diplomas;             
design certificates as needed; maintain inventory of awards; print certificates and diplomas;            
organize diplomas and certificates for distribution to students during ceremonies. 


● Assist students with questions regarding college applications, transcripts, schedule changes, aide           
information, physical education credit forms, college registration and work permits.  


● Provide front office coverage; assist students, parents, staff and the public with inquires,             
information and resources; schedule appointments and answer questions for counseling staff;           
screen and refer students and parents to requested information and resources; answer calls and              
emails from staff, parents, students, and partner organization. 


● Process requests for transcripts, student records and other requested documents; make school            
announcements; process incoming and outgoing forms and packets from feeder schools. 


● Create databases; extract data for requested needs and reports; maintain conference room            
schedules and calendars.  


● Manage and inform students of employment and volunteer opportunities; set up college            
representative visits; inform students of campus college visits and related events; prepare office             
space for representative.  


● Assign new lockers to students; record end date for locker use; assist students in accessing               
locked and opening jammed lockers.  


● Receive, process and distribute mail; update contact information for relocated students during            
school year; supervise and train student aides; maintain accurate record-keeping, filing, copying            
and labeling.  


● Prepare for academic planning workshops; set up appointments; set up rooms for workshops;             
create and flyers and folders for workshop participants.  


● Make calls and assist with text messages and emails as needed; assist with weekly flyer               
distribution to students.  


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 
● Assist home and school clubs, as needed; prepare labels for mailing for fundraisers.  
● May assist the routine first aid or health office duties in absence of health personnel. 
● May assist in monitoring locker rooms, as needed.  


School Administrative Assistant II Page 1 of 3 
 


654 of 778







 


 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and one year of clerical or secretarial               
experience involving frequent public contact. An Associates Degree can be substituted for            
experience.  


 
Bilingualism in a designated second language is preferred.  


 
Knowledge of:  


● Policies and objectives of assigned programs and activities. 
● Time management and organizational techniques and strategies.  
● Record-keeping and report preparation techniques. 
● Telephone techniques and etiquette. 
● Correct English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary. 
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 
● Methods of collecting and organizing data and information. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Basic math. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform a variety of diversified clerical and record-keeping duties in support of an assigned              
school office or program. 


● Answer telephones and greet the public courteously.  
● Learn, interpret, apply and explain applicable District policies and procedures, rules and            


regulations. 
● Maintain records and prepare reports. 
● Operate a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned software. 
● Understand and follow oral and written directions. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others and maintain            


regular attendance.  
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 
● Meet schedules and timelines. 
● Receive, sort and distribute mail. 
● Add, subtract, multiply and divide quickly and accurately. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Office environment. 
● Fast paced work environment with changing needs.  


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information in person and on the telephone. 
● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time. 


School Administrative Assistant II Page 2 of 3 
 


655 of 778







 


● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to file materials. 
● Reaching overhead and above shoulders to retrieve supplies. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling light objects.  


Hazards: 


● Dissatisfied, hostile and abusive individuals.  


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board: 


Salary Range: 28 


Revised: 11/29/00 


School Administrative Assistant II Page 3 of 3 
 


656 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT III 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Site Administrator act as, Counseling Secretary or Asst. Principal Secretary,               
perform varied secretarial and administrative assistant duties to relieve the administrator of administrative             
and clerical detail; plan and organize office activities and coordinate flow of communications and              
information; prepare and maintain a variety of manual and automated records and reports related to               
assigned activities. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Provide secretarial and clerical support to Site Administrator of administrative and clerical detail;             
plan, coordinate and organize office activities and coordinate flow of communications and            
information; respond to walk-in inquiries and emails from parents and students. 


● Provide information or direct to appropriate personnel; exercise judgment in resolving a variety of              
issues; refer difficult issues to the administrator as needed; provide technical information and             
assistance related to program or organizational operations and related laws, rules, regulations,            
policies and procedures; ensure smooth and efficient office operations.  


● Schedule appointments for parents and students. 
● Input a variety of data into an assigned computer system, including new student enrollments,              


withdrawals, current addresses, transcripts, documents and inter-district transfers; establish and          
maintain automated records and files; enter enrollment and grades into computer systems; initiate             
queries, develop spreadsheets, manipulate data and generate various computerized lists and           
reports as requested; ensure accuracy of input and output data. 


● Process transcript requests; verify student and staff documents, education credits completed and            
transcript information; manage and maintain scholarship information and update information as           
needed; coordinate student mentorship programs; arrange for graduation ceremony, including          
ordering of cap and gowns; schedule and arrange for student pictures.  


● Communicate information of updated scholarship and event schedules; ensure parents and           
students receive notifications for school and District events including but not limited to Back to               
School, 8th Grade Open House, Parents’ Night, Academic Awards Night, AP Testing and PSAT              
Testing; set-up student shadows.  


● Compile and prepare agenda items and other required information for meetings, workshops and             
other events; set up equipment and supplies for meetings and other events as needed; take,               
transcribe and distribute minutes as directed. 


● Prepare report cards and work permits; prepare and distribute notifications and mailers to parents              
and students for school events.  


● Perform a variety of clerical accounting duties in support of assigned program or office as               
assigned; monitor funds and verify transactions for program budgets and expenditures; assist in             
ensuring expenditures do not exceed established budget limitations as assigned. 


● Communicate with personnel and various outside agencies to exchange information and resolve            
issues or concerns; provide back-up and support to Attendance Technician and nurse, when             
needed.  


● Monitor inventory levels of office and designated supplies; order, receive and maintain            
appropriate levels of inventory as required; prepare, process and code purchase orders and             
invoices as assigned; arrange for billings and payments as directed. 


 


OTHER DUTIES: 


School Administrative Assistant III Page 1 of 3 
 


657 of 778







 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


 
 
 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and two years of clerical experience              
involving frequent public contact, or a Bachelor’s degree.  
 
Bilingualism in a designated second language preferred.  
 


Knowledge of:  
● District Department or program organization, operations, policies and objectives. 
● Policies and objectives of assigned programs and activities. 
● Terminology, practices and procedures of assigned office. 
● Record-keeping and filing techniques. 
● Business letter and report writing, editing and proofreading. 
● Telephone techniques and etiquette. 
● Methods, procedures and terminology used in clerical accounting work. 
● Modern office practices, procedures and equipment. 
● Correct English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary.  
● Data control procedures and data entry operations. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy.  
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Methods of collecting and organizing data and information. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform varied and responsible secretarial and administrative assistant duties to relieve the            
administrator of administrative and clerical detail. 


● Plan, coordinate and organize office activities and coordinate flow of communications and            
information for the administrator. 


● Assure smooth and efficient office operations. 
● Learn organizational operations, policies and objectives. 
● Learn, interpret, apply and explain laws, codes, rules, regulations, policies and procedures. 
● Compose correspondence and written materials independently or from oral instructions. 
● Perform a variety of clerical accounting duties in support of assigned department or program. 
● Type or input data at an acceptable words per minute. 
● Answer telephones and greet the public courteously. 
● Compile and verify data and prepare reports.  
● Maintain a variety of records, logs and files. 
● Utilize a computer to input data, maintain automated records and generate computerized reports. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others and maintain            


regular attendance.  
● Meet schedules and timelines. 
● Work independently with little direction. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 
● Add, subtract, multiply and divide with speed and accuracy. 


School Administrative Assistant III Page 2 of 3 
 


658 of 778







 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Office environment. 
● Fast paced work environment with changing needs. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Hearing and speaking to exchange information in person or on the telephone. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Bending the waist, kneeling or crouching to file and retrieve materials.  


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board: 


Salary Range: 28 


Revised: 11/29/00 


School Administrative Assistant III Page 3 of 3 
 


659 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT IV 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Principal, perform advanced level secretarial and administrative support duties;              
provide excellent customer service to administrators, faculty, staff, students, parents and the public;             
explain program services, policies and procedures; initiate and answer telephone calls; screen and route              
calls; respond to inquiries and provide information; retrieve and respond to messages as appropriate. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Compile information and prepare and maintain a variety of records, logs and reports related to               
programs, students, attendance, staff, projects and assigned duties; monitor certificated staff           
absences; arrange for substitute staff coverage; print substitute staff rosters; ensure substitutes            
have classroom keys, bell schedule and map of school campus.  


● Record and enter classified, certificated and supplementary employee attendance; verify          
attendance for both classified and certificated staff; ensure absences are charged to appropriate             
funding source and accounts per employee contract; print summary reports as needed; ensure             
accuracy of input and output data. 


● Receive, open, sort, screen and distribute incoming mail; compose replies independently or from             
oral direction; prepare and distribute informational packets and bulk mailings; follow-up on            
pending or required actions.  


● Maintain appointment and activity schedules and school calendars; organize assigned school           
events; send automated message to parents as announcement of events; create flyers,            
brochures and presentation materials for events, as needed.  


● Perform routine minor first aid to students and staff, as needed; dispense medication to students               
as directed by student’s doctor; maintain communication with school nurse in making            
announcements of District health concerns and exposure notices.  


● Monitor funds for income and expenditures; ensure expenditures do not exceed established            
budget limitations; calculate, prepare and revise accounting and budgetary data; balance and            
reconcile assigned accounts and budgets; create, process and submit work and purchase orders;             
serve as liaison to Principal, teachers and parent-teacher groups for financial operations,            
accounting procedures, funding sources and approved vendors for goods and services.  


● Assist with student registration and prepare necessary forms.  
● Prepare requisitions for work and purchase orders; monitor purchase orders and work            


requisitions for correct account codes; check invoices against merchandise received for accuracy            
and completeness; set up new accounts as needed; route invoices for approval and payments;              
establish and maintain accounts payable and receivable for assigned accounts.  


● Collect various monies and fees for assigned office or programs as required; receive, verify and               
prepare cash or check deposits. 


● Maintain record of certified, classified and temporary hires; monitor employees hired for            
supplementary assignments; enter information of supplementary hires, including hourly rate and           
specific work to be completed into computer system.  


● Submit work orders; follow-up on work orders; evaluate need for emergency repairs; coordinate             
repairs with Facility Department; ensure appropriate stock of custodial supplies. 


● Approve and provide facility permits; ensure availability of facilities for external users.  
● Train and provide work direction and guidance to designated clerical personnel as assigned. 
● Communicate with personnel and various outside agencies to exchange information, request and            


provide materials, coordinate activities and resolve issues or concerns; maintain confidentiality as            
it relates to student data.  


● Operate a variety of office equipment including a calculator, copier, fax machine, computer and              
assigned software; arrange for equipment repairs as required. 


● Dispense medication to students as directed by student’s doctor.  
School Administrative Assistant IV Page 1 of 3 
 


660 of 778







 


● Provide worker’s compensation forms to injured employees. 
 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and five years of clerical or              
secretarial experience involving frequent public contact. A Bachelor's Degree or higher can be             
substituted for experience.  


 
Bilingualism in a designated second language is preferred. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● School operations, policies and objectives. 
● Public relations and effective customer service.  
● Policies and objectives of assigned programs and activities. 
● Applicable laws, codes, regulations, policies and procedures. 
● Record-keeping and filing techniques. 
● Business letter and report writing, editing and proofreading. 
● Telephone techniques and etiquette. 
● Methods, procedures and terminology used in clerical accounting work. 
● Modern office practices, procedures and equipment. 
● Correct English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary.  
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy.  
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Record retrieval and storage systems. 
● Basic public relations techniques. 
● Mathematic calculations. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform a variety of complex secretarial and administrative assistant duties to relieve the             
Principal of administrative and clerical detail. 


● Plan, coordinate and organize office activities and coordinate flow of communications and            
information for the Principal. 


● Ensure smooth and efficient office operations. 
● Interpret, apply and explain laws, codes, rules, regulations, policies and procedures. 
● Compile and prepare comprehensive reports concerning a broad spectrum of subject matter.  
● Compose effective correspondence independently. 
● Perform a variety of clerical accounting duties in support of assigned department or program. 
● Type or input data at an acceptable word per minute.  
● Answer telephones and greet the public courteously. 
● Complete work with many interruptions.  
● Maintain a variety of records, logs and files. 
● Utilize a computer to input data, maintain automated records and generate computerized reports. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others and maintain            


regular attendance. 
● Meet schedules and timelines. 


School Administrative Assistant IV Page 2 of 3 
 


661 of 778







 


● Work independently with little direction. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 
● Determine appropriate action within clearly defined guidelines.  
● Add, subtract, multiply and divide with speed and accuracy. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor, office environment. 
● Fast paced work environment with changing needs.  


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Hearing and speaking to exchange information in person or on the telephone. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Bending the waist, kneeling or crouching to file and retrieve materials.  


Hazards: 


● Dissatisfied or hostile individuals. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board: 


Salary Range: 33 


Revised: 08/12/98 


School Administrative Assistant IV Page 3 of 3 
 


662 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


SCHOOL BUS DRIVER 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Supervisor-Transportation, transport students over scheduled routes; ensure            
safety of students while being transported to an assigned location on a designated route; maintain order                
and discipline among passengers on the bus; perform regular safety inspections of the busses; operate               
the school bus in a safe manner. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Drive a school bus or other transportation vehicle along a designated route, to field trips and                
special activities as assigned. 


● Transport students and discharge students in accordance with time schedules; escort and assist             
students on and off vehicles and across streets when required or necessary; meet scheduled              
departure and arrival times as assigned; observe legal and defensive driving practices; ensure             
compliance with applicable traffic and student transportation laws, codes and regulations.  


● Perform pre-trip and post-trip inspections to monitor fluid levels and vehicle condition; adjust tire 
pressure and mirrors; fuel, service and prepare vehicle for operation; ensure the safe operating 
condition of the vehicle; comply with mandated guidelines; clean assigned vehicles, both interior 
and exterior; ensure safety, appearance, and sanitation of vehicle; report mechanical 
malfunctions or other problems as required. 


● Maintain order and discipline among passengers on the bus; report observations and incidents             
including discipline, inappropriate social behavior; communicate effectively with school staff and           
parents regarding student behavior as needed. 


● Assess incidents, complaints, accidents and potential emergency situations including road          
hazards, medical emergencies, and accidents; resolve and recommend a resolution to the            
situation; determine appropriate action in emergency situations according to established          
guidelines; administer first aid/CPR to passengers as necessary. 


● Maintain buses in a clean and safe operating condition; wash, sweep and clean buses. 
● Assist students as needed in boarding, buckling, and loading, securing and unloading students in              


wheelchairs as assigned by the position. 
● Conduct emergency evacuation drills; ensure efficiency of procedures and complying with           


mandated requirements; administer first aid as necessary. 
● Prepares routine logs, route sheets and reports as required. 
● Attend meetings, classroom and behind the wheel training, safety meetings, in-services,           


administrative conferences; maintain required skills; meet the certificate requirements of a school            
bus driver. 


● Utilize two-way radios for bus to bus and bus to base communications; notify appropriate              
personnel of delays or accidents as needed;  


● Communicates with students, parents, staff and the general public in a courteous manner;             
respond to inquiries regarding assigned activities. 


● Read and interpret maps to assure most efficient routing based on prevailing traffic patterns. 
 
 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


 
 
 
School Bus Driver Page 1 of 3 
 


663 of 778







 


 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and two years of experience             
operating a motor vehicle. 
 


Licenses and other Requirements 
● Valid California Commercial Driver’s License Class A or B with appropriate passenger, school 


bus and air brake endorsements. 
● Valid First Aid and CPR Certificate issued by an authorized agency. 
● Valid California Special driver's certificate (DL45), unrestricted except for #1-Automatic          


Transmission only. 
● Valid Medical Examiner's Certificate.  
● Comply with District policy and US Department of Transportation’s drug and alcohol testing             


regulations including random, reasonable suspicion and post-accident testing. 
● Attend in-services and training required to maintain licenses and certificates.  
● A safe driving record in accordance with the requirements of the California Department of Motor               


Vehicles is required.  
● Incumbents must be a minimum of 21 years of age. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Safe and defensive driving practices. 
● Proper operation, inspection and maintenance of school buses. 
● Applicable Federal, State, Local and District codes, directives and regulations for the            


transportation of students. 
● Basic first aid procedures. 
● Basic record-keeping techniques. 
● Proper lifting techniques. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience, kindness and courtesy. 
● Health and safety regulations.  
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Air brake systems. 
● Safe driving practices. 
● Child guidance practices related to students with special needs. 


 
Ability to: 


● Ability to operate all school bus and other transportation vehicles and equipment skillfully, safely              
and efficiently. 


● Make sound judgment in emergency situations.  
● Conduct safety inspections and perform routine preventive maintenance. 
● Learn and apply policies and procedures related to student discipline on buses. 
● Read and interpret maps. 
● Observe legal and defensive driving practices. 
● Learn and follow designated routes. 
● Maintain bus in clean and proper working condition. 
● Administer first aid/CPR as necessary. 
● Demonstrate an understanding, patient and receptive attitude toward students with special needs. 
● Learn proper lifting techniques. 
● Maintain routine logs and records. 


School Bus Driver Page 2 of 3 
 


664 of 778







 


● Understand and follow oral and written directions. 
● Communicate effectively with others 
● Meet schedules and timelines.  
● Operate a two-way radio. 
● Meet the physical requirements necessary to perform the job. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others.  
● Maintain regular attendance.  


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor environment. 
● Seasonal heat and cold or adverse weather conditions.  
● Evening or variable hours.  
● Exposure to fumes, dust, odors, oil/grease and gases.  
● Driving a vehicle to conduct work. 
● Frequent communications with Students, Parents, Teachers, District employees and the          


Community. 
 


Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Sitting for extended periods of time while operating buses. 
● Climbing slopes, stairs, steps ramps and ladders. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Reaching, pulling and pushing to open bus doors, move and secure wheelchairs. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to inspect and wash buses; to secure wheelchairs. 
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders or horizontally. 
● Seeing to monitor passengers and operate a vehicle. 
● Lifting, dragging and carrying moderately heavy children or objects. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate school bus control panel and operate a two way radio 


Hazards: 


● Traffic hazards. 
● Potential contact with dissatisfied or abusive individuals. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 27 


Revised: 10/11/82; 08/12/98, 10/12/17 


School Bus Driver Page 3 of 3 
 


665 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


SITE ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Site Administrator, perform responsible accounting, record-keeping and            
reporting tasks in support of a school site; prepare various financial, administrative and statistical reports               
and records of funds administered by the site, including, ASB and District fund sources; ensure funds are                 
allocated to appropriate funding sources and are aligned with District policy and procedures, state and               
federal mandates, California Education Codes and FCMAT guidelines.  
 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Assist Site Administrator in the development of school site and department budgets; ensure             


appropriate allocation and expenditures of funds administered by school site including ASB,            
District allocations, grants, donations and other funding sources; comply with District policies and             
procedures, state, local and federal statutes and mandates, FCMAT guidelines and California            
Education Codes.  


● Prepare school site and department budget reports; monitor accounts, fund allocations and            
department and school-wide account balances; meet with administrators and staff to identify            
purchasing and spending needs; initiate budget transfers as appropriate.  


● Serve as information resource to administrators, teachers, students, and parent groups; provide            
up-to-date information on funding sources, approved vendors for goods and services and current             
balances on individual and departments accounts; assist staff with vendor search and obtaining             
price quotes.  


● Assist Athletic Directors with team budgets; monitor team accounts on an on-going basis; advise              
administrators, Athletic Directors, Activity Directors, coaches, team parents, club advisors and           
student club officers on ASB policy and procedures; ensure budgets and activity funds are in               
compliance with ASB policy and procedures, District, FCMAT and Education Code guidelines.  


● Enter District requisitions and change orders with proper fund codes into computerized system;             
generate ASB purchase orders and send to vendors by site; receive and process funds for               
deposits from state, federal and local grants, apportionments, student clubs, donation, athletics            
events, student store, scholarship accounts, parking permits and other student fees.  


● Set up and maintain fiscal records on all school activities, including ASB accounts, and other               
funding sources.  


● Establish and maintain accounts payable and receivable for assigned accounts.  
● Review and process ASB fundraisers and pre-approval requests; audit expense reimbursements           


and petty cash requests; prepare petty cash checks; submit petty cash reports and staff expense               
reimbursements to District office; reconcile bank statements for petty cash and ASB checking and              
savings accounts.  


● Verify bank deposits for ASB and District direct deposits; prepare direct deposit report and submit               
to District offices; issue checks for ASB invoices and reimbursements; verify information by             
purchase orders and pre-approvals. 


● Process District stipend bill; receive and process goods and services received; route invoice to              
staff and appropriate department; resolve invoice discrepancies; advise vendors of payment           
policy.  


● Sell and provide receipts for yearbooks, PSAT, AP Tests, lost books, parking passes, tickets and               
Physical Education uniforms.  


● Prepare cash boxes and ticket reports for admission to school events and fundraisers.  
● Enter student fees in computerized system; process and remove fees paid. 
● Prepare annual closeout including closing of purchase orders and other financial transactions;            


balance end of the year bank statements; compile information for audit visits.  
● Prepare ASB Year End Financial and ASB Vendor 1099 Reports.  


Site Accounting Technician Page 1 of 3 
 


666 of 778







 


● Communicate with personnel and outside agencies to exchange information and resolve issues            
or concerns. 


● Operate a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned software. 
● Perform various clerical duties in support of assigned functions as required; prepare routine             


correspondence; duplicate and distribute materials. 
 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and three years clerical accounting             
and bookkeeping experience, or a Bachelor’s degree can be substituted for experience. .  


 
Knowledge of:  


● Methods, procedures and terminology used in clerical accounting work. 
● Financial and statistical record-keeping techniques.  
● Preparation, review and control of assigned accounts. 
● Preparation of financial statements and comprehensive accounting reports. 
● Data control procedures and data entry operations. 
● Modern office practices, procedures and equipment. 
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Arithmetic computations. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform a variety of complex clerical accounting duties in support of assigned accounts and              
functions. 


● Prepare and maintain accurate financial and statistical records and reports. 
● Verify, balance and adjust assigned accounts. 
● Compare numbers and detect errors efficiently. 
● Reconcile, balance and audit assigned accounts. 
● Assemble, organize and prepare data for records and reports. 
● Process and record accounting transactions accurately.  
● Prepare and reconcile statements, ledgers, balance sheets and other financial documents. 
● Operate standard office equipment including a computer and assigned software.  
● Understand and follow oral and written instructions.  
● Meet schedules and timelines. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing.  
● Establish and maintain effective working and cooperative relationships with others and maintain            


regular attendance. 
● Make arithmetic computations with speed and accuracy.  


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Office environment. 


 


Site Accounting Technician Page 2 of 3 
 


667 of 778







 


Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an                 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may             
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Sitting for extended periods of time.  


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range:  31 


Revised: 05/20/15 


Site Accounting Technician Page 3 of 3 
 


668 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


SITE PROGRAM COORDINATOR 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Principal or Program Director, plan, organize, coordinate and implement the               
daily operations and activities of support programs; assist with budget development and accountability of              
expenditures; provide leadership, training, guidance and direction to assigned personnel; create and            
maintain necessary records, files, and reports for an assigned program. 
 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Plan, organize, coordinate and implement the activities for assigned students such as dance, 


music, theatre, art, visual arts or related programs. 
● Assist with decisions regarding the master schedule and staffing related to programs. 
● Provide leadership, training, guidance and direction to assigned personnel; coordinate schedules;           


monitor and review staff time sheets, and assure substitute staff coverage. 
● Interpret, apply and disseminate Federal and State guidelines as applicable to support programs. 
● Assist in the development and monitoring of the school plan including overseeing its progress;              


revise and evaluate program plans; collaborate with site administrator in budget and staffing             
considerations including writing the final evaluation of the year in relation to plan expectations. 


● Provide support to staff applying for grants and award applications; assist in the implementation              
of fundraising efforts. 


● Plans and coordinate parent advisory groups and parent education programs as required by             
programs and the school plan. 


● Assure the health and safety of students by following established practices and procedures;             
maintain learning environment in a safe, orderly, and clean manner. 


● Prepare and maintain a variety of reports, records and files related to personnel and program               
activities; generate and maintain spreadsheets; track progress of Title I and LEP students. 


● Secure guest speakers and professional to conduct assigned categorical and other support 
programs and activities. 


● Communicate with other administrators, personnel and outside organizations to coordinate 
activities and programs, resolve issues and conflicts and exchange information; confer with 
teachers and parents regarding the effectiveness of support programs. 


● Compile and input data; operate a computer and assigned software programs; operate other 
office equipment as assigned; drive a vehicle to conduct work; make home visits and home 
contacts as needed. 


● Attend and participate in meetings and in-service trainings as required; serve on committees or              
special task forces; schedule and coordinate special events, field trips and exhibits; plan and              
conduct oral presentations as directed. 


 
 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


 
 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience:  


Site Program Coordinator Page 1 of 3 
 


669 of 778







 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and one year experience working             
with children in an organized or learning environment including some experience conducting            
educational program activities. 


● Incumbents must meet requirements specified under Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA).           
Special Qualifications upon hire for positions at a school site that is supported by Title I funds                 
include:  


o Completed at least two years of study at an institution of higher education OR 
o Obtained an associate’s or higher degree (college level) OR 
o Met (pass) a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal State or               


local academic assessment, knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading,             
writing and mathematics. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Planning, organization, coordination and implementation of assigned categorical and other          
support programs, activities and services. 


● Student instructional and recreational activities.  
● Principles and practices of training and providing work direction. 
● Basic understanding of grant writing. 
● Diverse academic, socioeconomic, cultural, disability and ethnic backgrounds of students. 
● Applicable laws, codes, regulations, policies and procedures. 
● Basic instructional methods and techniques. 
● Student behavior management strategies.  
● Correct English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary.  
● Community service organizations. 
● Oral and written presentations techniques. 


 
Ability to: 


● Train, and provide guidance and direction to assigned personnel. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others.  
● Analyze situations accurately and adopt an effective course of action.  
● Meet schedules and timelines.  
● Work independently with little direction.  
● Plan and organize work.  
● Prepare and maintain records and files. 
● Learn policies, program, and grant requirements and apply them with good judgment in a variety               


of procedural situations. 
● Maintain accurate records and prepare reports. 
● Prepare and present oral presentations. 
● Work independently and constructively contribute to a collaborative team. 


 
WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor environment.  
● Constant interruptions. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an                 


employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may             
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate standard office equipment. 


Site Program Coordinator Page 2 of 3 
 


670 of 778







 


● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information.  
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission:  06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 34 


Revised: 9/27/2005, 08/12/98 


Site Program Coordinator Page 3 of 3 
 


671 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


STUDENT DATA & ASSESSMENT SPECIALIST 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director of Curriculum, Intervention and Assessment, support ongoing and              
annually scheduled local and state assessment activities for Santa Cruz City Schools (SCCS), including              
coordination of testing for CAASPP, SAM (SRI/SMI), Illuminate, Fitness and CELDT; provide data             
analysis and collection for District’s student assessment data reporting needs; provide data and system              
support to site leadership team; manage login information for internal data systems; assist site based               
leads and staff in use of various software and assessment systems.  
 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Coordinate and manage the District state and local test operation management systems, data             


and assessments and educational applications; provide assistance and support the          
comprehensive implementation of assessment system and educational data and applications.  


● Set-up and centrally manage educational applications for teacher and student use; collaborate            
with District information technology department to ensure effective application implementation;          
review plans to pilot or establish new assessment software programs and applications; ensure             
applications and programs operate at optimal levels including appropriate network system           
specifications, bandwidth, device and with proper Site Education Tech support. 


● Manage user credentials for test operation management systems, data, assessments and           
educational applications.  


● Provide consistent support to District leadership, school leadership and staff in the use of test               
operation management systems, data, assessment and educational applications.  


● Monitor and review records, reports and data in the state and local test operation management               
systems, data and assessments for accuracy and completion; ensure accessibility and security of             
assigned databases.  


● Provide data collection and analysis for CIA department data reporting needs.  
● Create and monitor actionable reports for District leadership, school leadership and SCCS            


stakeholders. 
● Compile reports for a variety of educational agencies, state and local entities.  
● Collaborate with District and School leadership to create and maintain the District Assessment             


Calendars.  
● Communicate with the California Department of Education for clarification on state and federal             


laws governing assessment and public education.  
● Monitor and update the Assessment and Technology website and the District Assessment            


webpage. 
● Attend conferences, trainings and workshops, as directed; participate in administrative and school            


site meetings, as required.  
● Operate a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned software.  


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


Student Data & Assessment Specialist Page 1 of 2 
 


672 of 778







 


● Any combination equivalent to: Associate’s degree in a related field and two years of experience               
with data entry and analysis and advanced-level skills in technology. Bachelor’s Degree can be              
substituted for experience.  


 
Knowledge of:  


● Student information system, spreadsheet and data processing systems. 
● Operation of a computer and other office equipment. 
● Interpersonal skills including tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Correct English usage, punctuation, spelling and grammar. 
● Statistical record-keeping and report-writing techniques. 


 
Ability to: 


● Manage the accuracy of the database to compile statistical reports. 
● Maintain confidentiality of student information. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others and maintain            


regular attendance. 
● Prepare comprehensive statistical reports. 
● Type or input data at an acceptable rate of speed. 
● Operate a computer and assigned software and other office equipment. 
● Prioritize and schedule work. 
● Meet schedules and timelines. 
● Verify accuracy of data input and output. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Office environment. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an                 


employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may             
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 
● Sitting or standing for extended period of time.  
● Reaching overhead and above shoulders.  
● Repetitive hand and body motions.  


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board: 


Salary Range: 40 


Revised: 04/26/06, 06/07/12, 05/11/16 


Student Data & Assessment Specialist Page 2 of 2 
 


673 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


SUPERVISOR-CUSTODIAL, GROUNDS & MAINTENANCE 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director of Maintenance, Operations and Transportation, organize and direct              
the activities and operations of the custodial, grounds and maintenance divisions throughout the district;              
inspect and assure campus buildings and adjacent grounds areas are maintained in a clean, orderly and                
secure condition; oversee and prioritize work order system requests; train and supervise the performance              
of assigned custodial, grounds and maintenance staff; schedule and arrange outside contractors and             
vendors used by district for special projects. 
 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Organize and direct the activities and operations of the custodial, grounds and maintenance             
divisions throughout the district; coordinate and participate in custodial, grounds and maintenance            
activities at an assigned district locations and school sites; confer with site administrators, other              
departments and outside agencies regarding the care, cleaning, scheduling and maintenance of            
school buildings, grounds and facilities. 


● Train, schedule and supervise the performance of a custodial, grounds and maintenance            
personnel; prepare cleaning and maintenance schedules; adjust work schedules to fit the needs             
of assigned sites; coordinate assignments for substitute personnel; inspect completed work for            
accuracy and compliance with instructions and established standards; interview and select           
employees and recommend transfers, reassignment, termination and disciplinary actions. 


● Assure campus buildings and adjacent grounds areas are maintained in a clean, orderly and              
secure condition; confer with site administrators to assess site needs. 


● Provide technical expertise, information and assistance to the Director of Maintenance,           
Operations and Transportation and administrators regarding assigned functions and building and           
grounds projects; interpret, apply and explain rules, regulations, policies and procedures.  


● Receive, screen, prioritize and respond to staff custodial, grounds and maintenance needs. 
● Communicate with administrators, contractors, personnel and outside organizations to coordinate          


activities, resolve issues and conflicts and exchange information; schedule and arrange outside            
contractors and vendors used by district for special projects. 


● Serve as a liaison with architects, contractors, engineers, inspectors, agency representative and            
other personnel involved in District building or repair projects as directed. 


● Follow district safety procedures when operating, maintaining and repairing equipment; operate a            
variety of large and small power equipment such as power washers, vacuum cleaners, polishers,              
blowers; operate other custodial or grounds equipment as assigned. 


● Oversee and prioritize work order system requests; submit work orders for needed facility repairs 
and supplies; monitor inventory levels of custodial, grounds or maintenance supplies; order, 
receive, store and distribute supplies and materials as directed.  


● Assist in minor maintenance repair work and other projects as assigned; perform periodic visual 
inspections of building systems. 


● Inspect school sites and work completed by custodial, grounds and maintenance staff for 
accuracy and compliance with instructions and established standards; report safety, sanitation 
and fire hazards to appropriate authorities; drive a vehicle to conduct work. 


● Prepare and maintain a variety of records and reports related to assigned activities and 
personnel; assist with preparation and expenditures of the annual department budget. 


● Respond to or coordinate a response to emergency calls after hours as assigned. 
● Operate a computer, assigned software and a two-way radio.. 
● Attend staff meetings and trainings as directed. 


Supervisor-Custodial, Grounds & Maintenance Page 1 of 3 
 


674 of 778







 


 
 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 
 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and five years of increasingly             
responsible experience in custodial, grounds or maintenance work including three years serving            
in a lead or supervisory capacity.  


 
Licenses and other Requirements 


● Valid Class C California Driver's License. 
 
Knowledge of:  


● Principles of training and providing work direction. 
● Proper methods, techniques, materials, tools and equipment used in modern custodial, grounds            


and maintenance work. 
● Requirements of maintaining buildings in a safe, clean and orderly condition. 
● Principles and practices of administration, supervision and training. 
● Appropriate safety precautions and procedures. 
● Understanding of sketches, diagrams, blueprints, plans and specifications. 
● Proper methods of storing equipment, materials and supplies. 
● Record-keeping and report preparation techniques.  
● Inventory methods and practices.  
● Basic budgeting practices regarding monitoring and control. 
● Oral and written communication skills.  
● Applicable laws, codes, regulations, policies and procedures including CAL OSHA Title 8, 23 and 


19. 
● Automated work order programs and processes. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy.  
● Operation of a variety of office equipment including a computer. 
● Proper lifting techniques. 
● Care and maintenance of custodial, grounds and building equipment and tools. 


 
Ability to: 


● Organize and direct the activities and operations of the custodial, grounds and maintenance             
divisions throughout the district. 


● Train, supervise and evaluate the performance of assigned personnel. 
● Confer with site administrators, contractors, vendors and others regarding custodial, grounds,           


maintenance needs, schedules and concerns. 
● Supervise routine custodial, grounds or maintenance activities at assigned school sites or 


facilities. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing.  
● Observe and enforce health and safety regulations. 
● Interpret, apply and explain rules, regulations, policies and procedures.  
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others.  
● Operate a computer and assigned software. 


Supervisor-Custodial, Grounds & Maintenance Page 2 of 3 
 


675 of 778







 


● Assist with preparation and expenditures of the annual department budget. 
● Analyze situations accurately and adopt an effective course of action.  
● Assure compliance with established rules, guidelines, timelines, regulations and schedules. 
● Estimate quantity and types of supplies needed. 
● Maintain buildings and adjacent grounds areas in a clean, orderly and secure condition. 
● Operate and maintain a variety of custodial, grounds and maintenance equipment and tools. 
● Observe and report safety hazards and need for maintenance and repair.  
● Prepare and maintain a variety of records and reports. 
● Work independently. 
● Plan and organize work.  


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor work environment. 
● Subject to noise, fumes, dust and odors. 
● Driving a vehicle to conduct work. 
● Work evening, weekends or variable hours. 
● Emergency call-out. 
● Fast-paced environment with changing needs. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a variety of custodial equipment. 
● Walking or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Seeing to perform custodial duties. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing or pulling heavy objects.  
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching.  
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders and horizontally.  
● Climbing ladders and working from heights to conduct work. 


Hazards: 


● Exposure to cleaning agents and chemicals. 
● Working on ladders. 
● Potential contact with dissatisfied individuals.  


 
The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board: 


Salary Range: Class H - Classified Management Salary Schedule  


Revised: 01/15/15 


 
 


Supervisor-Custodial, Grounds & Maintenance Page 3 of 3 
 


676 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


SUPERVISOR-TRANSPORTATION 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director-Maintenance, Operations and Transportation, organize and direct the             
activities and operations of the Transportation department; schedule, coordinate and supervise the            
scheduling and dispatch of bus routes, field trips and extracurricular events; supervise the Bus Driver               
training programs and activities; prepare and maintain accurate records related to vehicles and drivers;              
provide safe, on-time, efficient transportation for district students; assure transportation service is            
compliance with applicable codes, laws, policies, regulations, procedures and industry best practices;            
assign and review the work of drivers; train, supervise and evaluate the performance of assigned staff. 
 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Organize and direct the activities and operations of the Transportation department; participate in             


the development and implementation of departmental policies and procedures; initiate and           
develop programs for proper coordination and utilization of transportation vehicles, equipment           
and personnel. 


● Schedule, coordinate and dispatch buses and contracted services for bus routes, field trips and              
extracurricular events; prepare and assign work schedules; coordinate bell times; collaborate with            
other departments to route new students and adjust transportation when student programs            
change; attend student transportation IEP’s. 


● Train, supervise and evaluate the performance of assigned staff; recruit, interview and assist in              
the selection of employees and recommend transfers, reassignment, termination and disciplinary           
actions. 


● Prepare and maintain accurate records related to vehicles and drivers; assure proper licenses for              
subs and drivers and maintain accurate records of expiration dates. 


● Ensure school bus drivers properly operate and maintain busses and equipment; ensure drivers             
maintain required certificates and receive mandated Federal, State and District training; send            
drivers for random post-accident and reasonable suspicion drug and alcohol testing; ensure            
drivers stay within mandated hour-of-duty restrictions; evaluate drivers on a daily and annual             
basis; ensure drivers understand and follow assigned routing; provide guidance to drivers in             
post-accident reporting. 


● Supervise, coordinate, develop, evaluate and schedule the school bus driver training program;            
participate in the instruction of drivers for original and renewal licensing; act as a liaison with the                 
California Highway Patrol regarding laws and requirements applicable to the proper driver            
licensing and operation of school buses. 


● Provide technical expertise, information and assistance to the Director of Maintenance,           
Operations and Transportation and administrators regarding assigned transportation functions         
and projects; interpret, apply and explain rules, regulations, policies and procedures.  


● Make field decisions and recommendations regarding adverse weather, road, bus stop conditions            
and student safety issues; supervise, coordinate and evaluate the bus evacuation safety            
program. 


● Respond to school bus accidents, inspect and photograph accident scene, follow accident            
protocol. 


● Assist in development and monitoring of the annual budget; monitor expenditures. 
● Drive a school bus or other assigned vehicle as needed; evaluate equipment condition; swap out               


non-operational buses; follow district safety procedures when operating, maintaining and          
repairing vehicles and equipment. 


● Evaluate equipment condition; follow District safety procedures when operating, maintaining and           
repairing vehicles and equipment. 


Supervisor-Transportation Page 1 of 3 
 


677 of 778







 


● Schedule and coordinate vehicle inspections, repairs and routine maintenance for Transportation           
vehicle; develop and maintain a variety of transportation related documents and logs to ensure              
compliance with Federal, State and District rules and regulations. 


● Prepare and maintain a variety of records, reports and files related to personnel, mandated              
reporting and assigned activities. 


● Communicate with administrators, personnel, vendors and outside organizations to coordinate          
activities, resolve issues, conflicts and exchange information; respond to complaints. 


● Operate a computer and assigned software programs; operate other office equipment as            
assigned; operate a two-way radio. 


● Seek grant opportunities for transportation equipment and infrastructure. 
● Attend and conduct a variety of meetings and training as assigned; coordinate safety in-service              


and classroom workshops; serve on committees and attend conferences and professional           
development sessions as assigned. 


● Respond to or coordinate a response to emergency calls after hours. 


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and five years of increasingly             
responsible experience in dispatching, scheduling, bus driving, transportation or fleet operations           
work.  


Licenses and other Requirements 
● California School Bus Driver Trainer certification or the ability to obtain certification. 
● Valid California Commercial Driver’s License Class A or B with appropriate passenger, school             


bus and air brake endorsements. 
● Valid First Aid and CPR Certificate issued by an authorized agency. 
● Valid California Special driver's certificate (DL45), unrestricted except for #1-Automatic          


Transmission only. 
● Valid Medical Examiner's Certificate.  
● Comply with District Policy and U.S. Department of Transportation’s drug and alcohol testing             


regulations, including Random, Reasonable Suspicion and post-accident testing. 
 
Knowledge of:  


● Supervising, training, dispatching, scheduling and coordination of the transportation program. 
● Proper operation, inspection and maintenance of school buses. 
● California School Bus Driver Trainer practices, policies, rules and regulations. 
● Principles and practices of supervision and training.  
● Transportation routing methodology. 
● Cost containment principles, efficiency of operations and full asset utilization. 
● Operational experience in transport management 
● Applicable Federal, State, Local and District laws, codes, directives and regulations for the             


transportation of students. 
● Record-keeping techniques. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 


 
Ability to: 


● Schedule, coordinate and supervise the dispatch of buses for bus routes, field trips and              
extracurricular events. 


● Prepare and maintain accurate records related to vehicles and drivers. 
● Train, supervise and evaluate personnel.  
● Maintain periodic preventative maintenance inspection program as outlines in HPH 84.6. 


Supervisor-Transportation Page 2 of 3 
 


678 of 778







 


● Estimate and requisition supplies and equipment. 
● Drive a school bus safely and efficiently. 
● Maintain safe discipline level among passengers. 
● Apply and interpret policies and procedures related to student discipline. 
● Observe legal and defensive driving practices. 
● Read and interpret maps. 
● Administer first aid to ill or injured children. 
● Communicate effectively with others to exchange information. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others. 
● Operate a computer and assigned software. 
● Operate a two-way radio. 
● Work independently with little direction. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor environment. 
● Seasonal heat and cold or adverse weather conditions.  
● Evening or variable hours.  
● Emergency call-out. 
● Exposure to fumes, dust, odors, oil/grease and gases.  
● Driving a vehicle to conduct work. 
● Communicating with students, parents, teachers, administrators, employees and the public. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an                 


employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may             
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Sitting for extended periods of time while operating buses. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Climb ladders and ramps. 
● Reaching, pulling and pushing to open bus doors, move and secure wheelchairs. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to inspect and wash buses and secure wheelchairs. 
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders or horizontally. 
● Seeing to monitor passengers and operate a vehicle. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing or pulling moderately heavy children or objects. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate school bus control panel and operate a two-way radio. 


Hazards: 


● Traffic hazards. 
● Potential contact with dissatisfied or abusive individuals. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board: 


Salary Range: Class H - Classified Management Salary Schedule  


Revised: 12/17/74, 01/06/15 


Supervisor-Transportation Page 3 of 3 
 


679 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


SYSTEM SUPPORT SPECIALIST 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director of Information Technology, perform a variety of administrative and               
technical duties in the management of data in the District’s Student Information System (SIS); prepare,               
process and file a variety of attendance records and student data information; ensure the accuracy and                
timeliness of data input and data management.  
 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Utilize the District’s student information system to process, print and distribute data related to 


grading, attendance, scheduling and financials; initiate queries and generate computerized 
reports for submission to State, Office of Civil Rights and various other entities; ensure accuracy 
of input and output data.  


● Ensure state certification of student and staff data; disseminate a variety of reports for use by 
Cabinet; manage integrity of database by collecting and organizing new and existing student data 
and modifying student information as required; ensure current student data. 


● Provide reports, spreadsheets and other documents as needed for school personnel; prepare 
reports for outside agencies including educational institutions as requested, including California 
Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS) reports, 


● Create user accounts; maintain list serves. 
● Document and disseminate software application procedures for staff use.  
● Drive a vehicle to conduct work. Conduct in-service training in district’s own student information 


system.  


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and two years of experience in a               
technical field which demonstrates the ability to perform the duties of this position.  


● A thorough knowledge of a Windows environment which includes platforms. 
● Must have proper knowledge and experience with Microsoft Excel. Ability to extract, aggregate             


and import data to and from a database application and provide custom reports in a timely                
manner.  


 
Licenses and other Requirements 


● Valid California Class C Driver’s License. 
 
 
Knowledge of:  


● Student information system, spreadsheet and data processing systems. 


System Support Specialist Page 1 of 2 
 


680 of 778







 


● Graduation requirements, high school curriculum and other school policies related to the            
enrollment of students. 


● Operation of a computer and assigned software.  
● Operation of a variety of standard office equipment. 
● Interpersonal skills including tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Correct English usage, punctuation, spelling and grammar. 
● Statistical record-keeping and report-writing techniques. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform a variety of technical duties in the management of the student information database for               
an assigned school.  


● Create and maintain master school and student database for information and analysis.  
● Ensure accuracy of data input and management. 
● Coordinate departments to comply with project timelines throughout the school year. 
● Manage the accuracy of the database to compile statistical reports. 
● Type or input data at an acceptable rate of speed. 
● Maintain confidentiality of student information. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others. 
● Prepare comprehensive statistical reports. 
● Prioritize and schedule work. 
● Meet schedules and timelines. 
● Verify accuracy of data input and output. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Office environment. 
● Constant interruptions. 
● Drive a vehicle to conduct work.  


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an                 


employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may             
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Sitting for extended periods of time. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to file materials.  


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 34 


Revised: 05/23/07 


System Support Specialist Page 2 of 2 
 


681 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


TEXTBOOK/MEDIA ASSISTANT 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Principal, or site administrator manage and monitor the acquisition, processing               
and distribution of textbooks, audiovisual and other instructional materials for school site; maintain             
circulation procedures and the check-in/check-out of books and materials; inspect warehouse shipments            
for conformity to purchase order specifications.  
 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Gather and organize textbook orders from school site teachers; submit orders to vendors; inspect              


and record receipt of textbook orders; number, stamp and barcode textbooks as required; make              
repairs to textbooks as needed; store textbooks for future use; inventory textbooks at storage              
sites throughout school campus.  


● Communicate with teachers to ensure textbook orders are complete as requested; note and             
report shortages, damages or other discrepancies; contact vendors regarding discrepancies;          
assist students with textbook payment arrangements.  


● Check out books to students as needed throughout the school year; maintain textbook storage              
shelves in correct order with appropriate signs and labels. 


● Ensure payments for textbooks for transferring and graduating students is up-to-date; request            
and receive student textbooks no longer required for class use; process notices for late              
submission of textbooks; clear and process completion for students as payments are made,             
textbooks returned, and information updated.  


● Communicate with publishers and suppliers as needed; maintain records, receipts and materials            
for textbook received and in-process orders. 


● Operate office equipment such as computers, multimedia devices and various library technology            
applications; monitor and order office supplies as needed.  


● Interact with students, staff and teachers; participate in available training in order to meet new               
technology standards. 


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and one year of library or clerical               
experience; education may be substituted for experience.  


 
Knowledge of:  


● General textbook circulation functions. 
● Modern office methods, practices and procedures. 
● Basic inventory practices and procedures. 
● Record keeping and filing techniques. 
● Operation of a variety of related office equipment including a computer and assigned software. 
● Textbook and instructional material cataloging and classification. 
● Data control procedures and data entry operations. 
● Correct English usage, grammar, spelling, punctuation and vocabulary. 


Textbook/Media Assistant Page 1 of 2 
 


682 of 778







 


● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Basic research methods. 
● Basic arithmetic concepts. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform a variety of clerical duties involved in the circulation, maintenance and distribution of 
textbooks and assigned instructional materials. 


● Check books in and out of the school library. 
● Type or input data at an acceptable rate of speed. 
● Process and shelve textbooks and instructional materials. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing.  
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others and maintain 


regular attendance. 
● Maintain records and files.  
● Perform routine arithmetical calculations 
● Operate a variety of office equipment including a computer and assigned software. 
● Understand and follow oral and written instructions. 
● Meet schedules and time lines. 
● Complete work with many interruptions. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Library/Warehouse environment. 
● Fast paced work environment with changing needs. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an                 


employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may             
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Sitting, standing or walking for extended periods of time. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling moderately heavy objects as assigned by position. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to shelve and retrieve materials. 
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders and horizontally. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 22 


Revised: 9/17/1998 


Textbook/Media Assistant Page 2 of 2 
 


683 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


THEATRE TECHNICIAN 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of an assigned supervisor, perform skilled and technical duties related to the               
construction and development of stage sets or costumes; perform technical duties related to sound and               
lighting system operation. 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Construct stage sets, flats, properties or stage costumes. 
● Prepare or modify working plans and drawings for specific situations. 
● Mix and apply paints and flame-proofing to sets. 
● Operate and maintain stage counterweight and lighting systems or costume shop equipment as             


assigned. 
● Maintain safety standards in operation of stage equipment. 
● Rig curtains. 
● Attend rehearsals, shows and lectures and operate stage and auditorium equipment. 
● Operate movie projectors and lighting and sound systems as required. 
● Demonstrate the correct use of stage equipment to teachers, students and operators. 
● Perform minor maintenance on lighting and counterweight systems and power and hand tools. 
● Oversee student workers and hourly personnel as assigned 


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school supplemented by college course            
work in theater production, stage craft or related field and two years of experience in the                
construction of sets or stage costumes and the operation of sound and lighting equipment. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Methods, equipment and materials used in stage and set design and construction. 
● Costume design and construction. 
● Types and uses of lighting, sound, counterweight and other stage and costume equipment. 
● Basic electrical theory, sound and lighting effects. 
● Carpentry, painting and other skills required in set construction. 
● Sound effect techniques. 
● Specialized costume craftsmanship and design. 
● Health and safety regulations. 


 
Ability to: 


● Perform skilled and technical duties related to the construction and development of stage sets or               
costumes. 


● Construct and paint stage sets or theater costumes. 
● Improvise stage property, sound and other stage effects or costume property. 


Theatre Technician Page 1 of 2 
 


684 of 778







 


● Operate and oversee the operation of stage equipment including projectors and lighting systems             
or costume shop equipment. 


● Maintain records of equipment and supplies. 
● Operate hand and power tools. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Theatre environment. 
● Evening or variable hours. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an                 


employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may             
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate assigned tools and equipment. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching.  
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information.  
● Climbing ladders and stairs to rig lighting equipment. 
● Seeing to perform assigned activities. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing or pulling heavy objects. 
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders and horizontally. 


 
Hazards: 


● Working at heights. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board: 


Salary Range: 23 


Revised: 11/04/14 


Theatre Technician Page 2 of 2 
 


685 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


TRANSLATOR 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Principal, Division or Department Administrator, provide oral translation of              
communications and written translation of complex District correspondence, IEP’s, forms, letters, flyers,            
handbooks, reports and other documents between English and designated second language for both the              
district and school sites; serve as a translator for meetings, conferences, hearings and other events;               
provides written and oral translation for District, Special Education meetings and other District programs;              
serves as a resource to other district personnel, parents and other community members requiring              
assistance with non-English speaking persons. 
 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Provide translation services to facilitate communications between various individuals, parents and           


district personnel; communicates with staff, administrators, teachers, students, parents and          
others in English and a designated second language. 


● Serve as an interpreter for meetings, conferences, events, presentations including expulsion           
hearings and School Attendance Review Board meetings; explain word meaning and phrases            
and serve as a technical resource to administrators and other District personnel.  


● Assist District Office/site staff in translating complex District documents, forms, letters, notes,            
reports, handbooks, presentations and various other correspondence and materials from English           
to a designated second language, and from a designated second language to English; proofread              
and assure accuracy of translated materials; review, edit and revise translations; maintain            
confidentiality of sensitive information. 


● Prepare written and oral translations such as Individual Education Programs (IEP’s), behavioral            
contracts, psychological, speech and language, physical therapy, occupational therapy and          
adaptive physical education evaluations and/or other assessments; provide translation and          
interpretation of technical, educational, legal and general materials as directed. 


● Initiate and receive telephone calls; reply to inquiries and provide assistance to callers, visitors              
and others in a designated second language concerning related activities, programs, standards,            
practices, goals, objectives, processes, policies and procedures. 


● Perform various clerical duties in support of assigned functions as required; duplicate and             
distributes materials; type and input data into an assigned computer system; send and receive              
emails.  


● Operate a variety of office equipment including a copier, a computer and assigned software.  
● Participate in initial placement interviews with students from other countries. 
● Prepare and maintain a variety of reports, records and files related to translation requests and 


assigned activities. 
● Travel to various District sites, offices, student residences and other locations to provide 


translation, interpretation and educational support services as needed; drive a vehicle to conduct 
work. 


● Attend and participate a variety of meetings, community meetings, conferences, in-service 
trainings and workshops serving as an interpreter of conversations between English and a 
designated second language; coordinate and schedule meetings. 


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


Translator Page 1 of 3 
 


686 of 778







 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


 
 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and two-years of experience            
translating and interpreting materials and communications between English and a designated           
second language. Bachelor’s Degree can be substituted for experience. 


 
Licenses and other Requirements 


● Valid Class C California Driver's License. 
● Candidates in this classification are required to speak, read and write in a designated target               


second language. 
  
Knowledge of:  


● Extensive vocabulary and correct usage, grammar, syntax, semantics, spelling and punctuation           
of English and a designated second language.  


● Consecutive interpretation techniques.  
● Basic Special Education terminology, procedures and practices. 
● Different dialects, regionalisms, idiomatic expressions and cultural sensitivity.  
● District organization, operations, regulations, policies and objectives related to position.  
● Oral and written communication skills in English and a designated second language. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy.  
● Modern office practices, equipment and procedures. 
● Business letter and report writing, editing and proofreading.  
● Telephone techniques and etiquette.  
● Public relations techniques. 


 
Ability to: 


● Provide oral and written translation services to facilitate communications in a variety of settings              
using methods such as simultaneous, consecutive and sight interpretation.  


● Read, write, translate and interpret English and a designated second language.  
● Translate and interpret documents, forms, letters, notes, reports, presentations and various other            


correspondence and materials between English and a designated second language.  
● Serve as an interpreter for meetings, hearings, conferences and other events.  
● Type and input data at an acceptable rate of speed.  
● Proofread and edit final translated versions.  
● Meet schedules and timelines.  
● Maintain confidentiality of sensitive information. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing.  
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others and maintain            


regular attendance.  
● Operate a variety of office equipment, a computer and assigned software.  
● Understand and follow oral and written instructions. 


 
 
 
 


Translator Page 2 of 3 
 


687 of 778







 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Office environment. 
● Driving a vehicle to conduct work. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an                 


employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may             
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time.  


 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:   


Salary Range: 30 


Revised: 08/12/98 


Translator Page 3 of 3 
 


688 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


WAREHOUSE WORKER 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director-Maintenance, Operations & Transportation, perform a variety of duties              
related to the shipping, receiving, storing and issuing of goods including supplies, equipment and              
materials at the central warehouse; drive a vehicle to various locations along assigned routes to deliver                
goods, equipment and mail; prepare and maintain related records and reports. 
 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Perform a variety of duties related to the shipping, receiving, storing and issuing of goods               


including supplies, equipment and materials.  
● Receive, unload and inspect shipments for damage and conformity to purchase order 


specifications and packing slips; receives, files and submits receipts for delivered goods; reviews 
shipments for accuracy and conformity. 


● Receive, sort and deliver mail on a daily basis; wrap, package and prepare parcels and goods for                 
shipping and delivery. 


● Drive a district vehicle to various locations along assigned routes to deliver goods; transport 
goods, equipment and materials between various District sites; pick up and remove obsolete 
equipment from various sites as assigned. 


● Assure compliance with established timelines and delivery schedules; determine effective          
delivery routes and prioritize the order of deliveries at assigned sites. 


● Store, stock, rotate and issue goods and materials; maintain shelves and goods in an orderly 
condition; plan storage areas and bin locations for supplies and equipment. 


● Prepare and maintain a variety of records and reports related to warehouse transactions,             
purchase orders, surplus, deliveries and assigned activities. 


● Establish storekeeping standards, shipping and receiving procedures, issuance controls. 
● Train and provide work direction to other warehouse and delivery employees. 
● Maintain inventories as assigned; monitor stock levels; review and verify accuracy of orders;             


assist in ordering equipment and supplies as necessary. Oversee the selling of surplus items.  
● Operate a variety of warehouse equipment and hand tools including forklifts, pallet jacks, hand 


trucks, carts and dollies; operate a computer, assigned software and postage machine. 
● Clean, service and maintain delivery vehicles including washing, checking tires, gasoline, oil and 


water levels; run safety checks on assigned vehicle. 
● Maintain warehouse in a clean, orderly and safe condition; maintain warehouse equipment            


according to established procedures. 
● Advise on the buying of supplies and equipment in order to maintain adequate inventory. 
● Note and report shortages, damages or other discrepancies; receive major equipment and            


furniture deliveries and accept or reject deliveries as necessary. 
● Fill school, department and cafeteria requests for deliveries and process all emergency orders as              


requested. 
● Communicate with personnel, various departments, vendors and outside agencies to exchange 


information, coordinate deliveries and resolve issues or concerns related to purchase orders, 
deliveries, discrepancies, inventory and assigned functions. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
Warehouse Worker Page 1 of 3 
 


689 of 778







 


OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and one year warehouse, delivery or              
related experience in a warehouse environment. 


 
Licenses and other Requirements 


● A valid Class C California Driver's License. 
● Valid forklift certification. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Methods, practices, procedures and terminology used in warehouse, distribution and delivery           
operations.  


● Use and terminology of requisitions, purchase orders, invoices and other warehouse documents.  
● Proper loading and unloading of trucks.  
● Proper methods of storing equipment, materials and supplies. 
● Traffic laws, defensive driving techniques and rules of the road. 
● Shipping and receiving procedures.  
● Operation of equipment used in the receipt, storage and shipping of supplies, materials and              


equipment.  
● Safe driving practices and operation of delivery trucks. 
● Operation of a computer and assigned software.  
● Basic record-keeping and report preparation techniques.  
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy.  
● Proper lifting techniques.  
● Basic inventory techniques.  
● Health and safety regulations.  
● Basic mathematical calculations. 


 
Ability to:  


● Drive a vehicle to various locations to pick up and deliver supplies, equipment and mail. 
● Assist in filling and processing service orders. 
● Load and unload shipments of goods, supplies and equipment. 
● Inspect and receive deliveries. 
● Meet schedules and timelines.  
● Maintain inventory, pull and stock items.  
● Operate a computer and assigned software. 
● Maintain and prepare routine records and reports. 
● Maintain regular attendance.  
● Operate a truck, forklift, pallet jack, dolly, hand truck, cart and other warehouse equipment. 
● Understand and follow oral and written instructions. 
● Observe legal and defensive driving practices.  
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others. 
● Follow and assure compliance with safety requirements. 
● Add, subtract, multiply and divide quickly and accurately. 


Warehouse Worker Page 2 of 3 
 


690 of 778







 


 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor/Warehouse environment. 
● Driving a vehicle to conduct work. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an                 


employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may             
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard and a variety of warehouse               
equipment. 


● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Walking. 
● Climbing ladders. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling heavy objects. 
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders and horizontally. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling and crouching. 
● Heavy physical labor. 


Hazards: 


● Working around and with machinery having moving parts. 
● Driving a vehicle during adverse weather conditions. 
● Working at heights. 
● Traffic hazards. 


 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 26 


Revised: 08/12/98 


Warehouse Worker Page 3 of 3 
 


691 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


WAREHOUSE WORKER-FOOD NUTRITION & SERVICE 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Director-Food Nutrition & Service, perform a variety of duties related to the                 
shipping, receiving, storing and issuing of food products, supplies and equipment at a food service &                
nutrition warehouse; drive a vehicle to various school sites along assigned routes to deliver food products,                
supplies and equipment; prepare and maintain related records and reports; train and provide work              
direction to assigned food service & nutrition services warehouse personnel. 
 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Perform a variety of duties related to the shipping, receiving, storing and issuing of food products,                


supplies and equipment.  
● Receive, unload and inspect shipments of food items and supplies; shipments for damage and 


conformity to purchase order specifications and packing slips; receives, files and submits receipts 
for delivered goods; review shipments for accuracy and conformity. 


● Drive a district vehicle to various school sites along assigned routes to deliver food products, 
supplies and equipment; return delivery containers. 


● Assure compliance with established timelines and delivery schedules; determine effective          
delivery routes and prioritize the order of food product deliveries at assigned sites. 


● Store, stock, rotate and issue food products, supplies and equipment; ensure distribution 
activities comply with safety and sanitation requirements; maintain shelves and goods in an 
orderly condition; pull, stage and ship food products and supplies. 


● Place food items on racks, coolers or freezers as required; ensure proper temperature of food 
items; record proper temperatures for freezer and coolers. 


● Prepare and maintain a variety of records and reports related to warehouse transactions,             
purchase orders, deliveries and assigned activities. 


● Establish storekeeping standards, shipping and receiving procedures, issuance controls. 
● Train and provide work direction to other warehouse and delivery employees. 
● Maintain inventories as assigned; monitor stock levels; review and verify accuracy of orders;             


check product expiration dates; order food products, supplies and equipment from various            
vendors for the food service & nutrition department. 


● Operate a variety of warehouse equipment and hand tools including forklifts, pallet jacks, hand 
trucks, carts and dollies; operate a computer and assigned software. 


● Maintain warehouse in a clean, orderly and safe condition; maintain warehouse equipment            
according to established procedures. 


● Note and report shortages, damages or other discrepancies; receive food products, supplies and             
equipment deliveries and accept or reject deliveries as necessary. 


● Fill school, department and cafeteria requests for deliveries and process all emergency orders as              
requested. 


● Communicate with food service personnel, various departments, vendors and outside agencies to 
exchange information, coordinate deliveries and resolve issues or concerns related to purchase 
orders, deliveries, discrepancies, inventory and assigned functions. 


 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


Warehouse Worker-Food Nutrition & Service Page 1 of 3 
 


692 of 778







 


 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and two years warehouse, delivery             
or related experience in a warehouse environment. 


 
Licenses and other Requirements 


● A valid Class C California Driver's License. 
● Valid forklift certification. 
● Valid ServSafe certificate or equivalent. 
● Employees must participate in available training and complete required continuing          


education/training hours to meet USDA professional standards. 
 
 
Knowledge of:  


● Methods, practices, procedures and terminology used in warehouse, distribution and delivery           
operations.  


● Use and terminology of requisitions, purchase orders, invoices and other warehouse documents.  
● Proper loading and unloading of trucks.  
● Food safety and proper food storage temperatures related to handling and transporting food. 
● Storage and rotation of perishable foods, equipment, materials and supplies. 
● Traffic laws, defensive driving techniques and rules of the road. 
● Inventory, shipping and receiving procedures.  
● Operation of equipment used in the receipt, storage and shipping of supplies, materials and 


equipment.  
● Safe driving practices and operation of delivery trucks. 
● Operation of a computer and assigned software.  
● Basic record-keeping and report preparation techniques.  
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy.  
● Proper lifting techniques.  
● Health and safety regulations.  
● Basic mathematical calculations. 


 
Ability to:  


● Drive a vehicle to various locations to pick up and deliver food items, supplies and equipment. 
● Assist in filling and processing food service orders. 
● Load and unload shipments of food items, supplies and equipment. 
● Inspect and receive deliveries. 
● Meet schedules and timelines.  
● Ensure proper temperature of food items, freezers and coolers. 
● Maintain inventory, pull and stock items.  
● Maintain and prepare routine records and reports. 
● Operate a computer and assigned software. 
● Operate a truck, pallet jack, hand truck, cart, dolly and other delivery/warehouse equipment. 
● Understand and follow oral and written instructions. 
● Observe legal and defensive driving practices.  
● Operate a computer and assigned software. 


Warehouse Worker-Food Nutrition & Service Page 2 of 3 
 


693 of 778







 


● Maintain regular attendance.  
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others. 
● Follow and assure compliance with safety requirements. 
● Add, subtract, multiply and divide quickly and accurately. 


 
WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor/Warehouse environment. 
● Driving a vehicle to conduct work. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an                 


employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may             
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard and a variety of warehouse               
equipment. 


● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Seeing to read a variety of materials. 
● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time. 
● Climbing ladders. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling heavy objects. 
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders and horizontally. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling and crouching. 
● Heavy physical labor. 
● Walking. 


Hazards: 


● Working around and with machinery having moving parts. 
● Driving a vehicle during adverse weather conditions. 
● Exposure to cold temperatures including freezers, coolers and refrigerators. 
● Working at heights. 
● Traffic hazards. 


 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 26 


Revised: 08/12/98 


 


Warehouse Worker-Food Nutrition & Service Page 3 of 3 
 


694 of 778







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


YARD DUTY MONITOR 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Principal, supervise and monitor the behavior of students at various times                
during the day and assure that the health and safety of assigned children are protected within an                 
assigned area; enforce campus rules and regulations. 
 
 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  
● Interact positively with students.  
● Oversee and supervise the conduct, safety and welfare of children within a cafeteria, lunchroom, 


playground, or other areas as assigned;  
● Enforce campus rules and regulations; inform students of acceptable school behavior in a 


positive manner.  
● Assist in planning, organizing, and conducting playground and/or noon activities; set out            


playground materials and equipment. 
● Assist students with resolving conflicts with other students; provide assistance to staff with             


students referrals as necessary. 
● Patrol and supervise assigned areas of campus, ensuring students are safe, orderly and within              


supervised areas. 
● Inspect buildings, restrooms, playgrounds, or other facilities for possible hazards to the safety and              


welfare of children and reports such hazards to appropriate authority. 
● Escort students to and from administration offices as necessary; retrieve students as requested             


by administrators; escort ill or injured students to school health office as necessary. 
● Assure non-students on campus are authorized visitors; monitor for proper identification and/or            


direct visitors to the office prior to going to a classroom or any other location on the school                  
grounds.  


● Communicate with students, administrators and staff concerning student behavior and assigned           
activities; report incidents involving students to school administrators and complete required           
accident or incident forms. 


● Utilize school site positive behavior protocols. 
 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and some experience working with             
school age children. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Basic methods of individual and group supervision. 
● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Health and safety regulations. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Usage of proper oral and written English, Spanish or target language. 


Yard Duty Monitor Page 1 of 2 
 


695 of 778







 


● Cross cultural awareness and sensitivity. 
● Operation of a computer and assigned software. 
● District and school policies, rules, positive behavior protocols and procedures. 


 
Ability to: 


● Patrol and supervise campus activities to assure the well-being and safety of students and staff in                
non-classroom activities. 


● Assure student compliance with school and organizational policies and regulations. 
● Investigate occurrences of property damage and suspicious or criminal activity. 
● Prevent or break up student conflicts and fights. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others. 
● Understand and follow oral and written instructions. 
● Demonstrate patience and a receptive attitude towards children. 
● Determine appropriate action within clearly defined guidelines. 
● Communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 
● Observe health and safety regulations. 
● Learn district and school policies related to the conduct, safety, and welfare of pupils in assigned                


areas. 
● Maintain regular attendance.  


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor environment. 
● Seasonal heat and cold or adverse weather conditions. 


 
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an                 


employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may             
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Standing and walking for extended periods of time. 
● Seeing to monitor student activities. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Bending, kneeling or crouching to assist students. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/05/18 


Approved by Governing Board: 


Salary Range: 16 


Revised: 08/12/98 


Yard Duty Monitor Page 2 of 2 
 


696 of 778







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.3 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Staff Report: Partnership between Administration and Labor (PAL) 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2018 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, 


Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
We have a commitment in Santa Cruz City Schools to create a District that is a great place to 
work and learn. Further, we know that effective collaboration between all educators in our 
learning community is critical to meeting our collective mission of ensuring student success.   
 
This past fall, the GSCFT leadership, SCCCE leadership and Assistant Superintendent Parks and 
Superintendent Munro attended a West Coast Labor Management Conference together to 
learn about effective labor management partnerships.  As a result of our learning, we planned 
the first SCCS Partnership between Administration and Labor (PAL) with our certificated union 
site representatives and site administrators.  
 
GSCFT President Casey Carlson and Assistant Superintendent Molly Parks will share about work 
on PAL this year.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Approximately $5,000 (Substitute cost for PAL meeting and conference costs) – Funding source: 
LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
This work in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 


teaching. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 


697 of 778







This page has been left blank







PAL
(Partnership for 


Administration and Labor)
June 20, 2018


699 of 778







Desired Outcome


Build a Positive, Problem 


Solving, Collaborative district 


beginning at the District and 


Eboard levels to all of the 


school site teams


700 of 778







History: How Did We Get Here?


 We had a collaborative desire to change how we were working 


together- this was a part of the Superintendent goals


 2014-15 Changed the manner in which we negotiated to a 


more collaborative manner


 We (Classified Leaders, Certificated Leaders, Management 


and Board Members) attended two CMLI (California 


Management Labor Initiative) meetings.  2014-15 and 2015-16


 We (Classified Leaders, Certificated Leaders, and 


Management ) attended a conference in the ABC School 


District .  2017-18


701 of 778







History Continued


 Brent Kline (Principal at SCHS) and Veronica Zahela


(Site Rep at SCHS) attended a CMLI training in Salinas 


with Casey and Molly. 2017-18


 Began reaching out to the sites to build site teams 


between the site reps and building administration. 


2017-18


 1st Annual SCCS PAL Meeting Spring 2017-18


702 of 778







Collaborative Structures


 Monthly Cabinet and Eboard Meetings


 Site meetings monthly with Site Reps and Admin


 Site Reps have one of their adjunct duties count as 


being a Site Rep


 Yearly District Wide PAL Meeting


 First Year focused on communication


 Second Year focused on curriculum


703 of 778







Next Steps


 Extending the collaboration with Classified leaders by 


building site teams


 Continue building structures and practices for site 


teams to work together 


 Examining other structures for both the district and 


sites around curriculum and PD sessions


704 of 778







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


AGENDA ITEM: Tentative Agreement between the Greater Santa Cruz Federation 
of Teachers and Santa Cruz City Schools 


MEETING DATE: June 20, 2018 


FROM: Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, 
Human Resources 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Tentative Agreement between the Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers and 
Santa Cruz City Schools to replace the language in Article XIV – Evaluation Procedure. 


BACKGROUND: 
A Tentative Agreement was reached on June 1, 2018 regarding evaluation language – Article 
XIV. The new language will replace the current Article XIV effective July 1, 2018.


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 


Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


705 of 778







 
 


 
AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.3.4 


706 of 778







70
7 


of
 7


78







This page has been left blank







 


 


 


Certificated 
Teacher 


Evaluation 
Packet 


 


709 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation                              July 2018  Page 1 
 


EVALUATIONS 
ARTICLE XIV-EVALUATIONS 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Evaluation Procedures 


Evaluation is the process the District uses through its evaluators to assess the performance of unit 
members.  This process is based upon job description, provisions of this contract, evaluation criteria, 
District policies and regulations, county, state and federal laws and regulations, adopted course outlines, 
learner goals and other duties and responsibilities as assigned. 


The Santa Cruz City Schools District’s (SCCS) evaluation process can be conducted through one (1) of 
three (3) methods: Administrative Evaluation “Method 1”, Project-Based Evaluation “Method 2”, or Peer-
Based Evaluation “Method 3”, each based on the unit members’ professional standards. 


The standards as described in the Evaluation Article for Certificated Staff act as a guide for discussion 
regarding professional growth and serve as a basis for unit member evaluation. Each certificated unit 
member is responsible for meeting the unit member’s professional standards as described in the 
Evaluation article for Certificated Staff to show growth in the unit member’s practice as an educator. 
Administrators have the right and responsibility to observe certificated unit members in their work setting 
at any time.  Administrators always have the right and responsibility to identify any concerns related to 
meeting the standards. 


Three Evaluation Methods 


There are three (3) methods for certificated unit member evaluation. Each method uses self- assessment 
and reflection and is linked to the unit members’ professional standards. 


Administrative Evaluation “Method 1”: Administrative Evaluation is the required method for 
probationary unit members and temporary unit members and permanent unit members every six (6) years. 
It is also a required method for permanent unit members who have a general ranking of Does Not Meet or 
Emerging in their previous overall evaluation. This is an optional method every three (3) years for 
permanent unit members who have met Proficient or Distinguished standards in their previous overall 
evaluation rating. 


Project-Based Evaluation “Method 2”: With administrative approval, this is an option every other three 
(3) year cycle for permanent unit members who have met Proficient or Distinguished standards in their 
previous overall evaluation rating and would like to develop and implement a project in order for the unit 
member to examine practices and demonstrate proficiency via a professional project related to their 
current practices and the unit members’ professional standards. 


Peer-Based Evaluation “Method 3”: With administrative approval, this is an option every other three 
(3) year cycle for permanent unit members who have met Proficient or Distinguished standards in their 
previous overall evaluation rating and would like to work with a peer using observation in order for each 
peer/partner to examine practices and demonstrate proficiency related to their current practices. 


710 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation                              July 2018  Page 2 
 


Evaluation Method 1: 
Administrative Evaluation Method 
 


Eligibility 


The Administrative Evaluation method for permanent unit members: 
• A permanent unit member rated Proficient or Distinguished in the previous overall evaluation 


rating may elect to be evaluated under the Administrative Evaluation option.   
• Permanent unit members shall be evaluated using this method every other three (3) year cycle. 


 
The Administrative Evaluation method is the only option for the following: 


• Temporary unit members 
• Probationary unit members 
• Unit members under an Improvement Support plan due to an overall evaluation rating of Does 


Not Meet or Emerging on standards in the previous year  
• Unit members who have failed to complete previous Peer-based or Project-based Evaluation 


cycle deadlines in the previous year 
 
Administrative evaluations will be conducted for two (2) consecutive years or more until the unit member 
has reached permanent status and has met Proficient or Distinguished standards on the overall evaluation 
rating. A unit member under an Improvement Support plan will remain on the Administrative Evaluation 
method until the unit member achieves a Proficient or Distinguished on standards on the overall 
evaluation rating.  
 
Evaluation Process: 
(Preparation for Fall Planning) 
 
Unit members shall be notified of and given access to district evaluation materials, including notification 
of primary evaluator by September 15th. In preparation for the initial meeting with the evaluator unit 
members will: 
 


• Use your professional standards to reflect upon and mark areas of focus in each standard/domain 
(up to 6).  


 
• Will use their self-assessment to complete the Professional Goals form identifying strengths and 


areas of growth. All Permanent unit members’ need to create three (3) goals from three (3) 
different standards. Temporary, Probationary and Permanent unit members’ under the “Does Not 
Meet or Emerging” need to create a goal for each of the standards/domains. These goals shall be 
written and be ready to present to the supervisor during the Fall Planning Conference. 


 
Fall Planning Conference: 
 
1. By October 31st: Supervisors and unit members will meet to collaboratively present, discuss and agree 


upon professional goals using the standards/domains and Goal Setting Form.   
 
2. Circumstances, such as class composition, class size, instructional materials, and physical setting that 


affect the certificated unit member's working situation shall be discussed and documented in the 
conference notes on the Goal Setting Form with the evaluator at the Fall Planning Conference. 


 


711 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation                              July 2018  Page 3 
 


3. By the conclusion of the Fall Planning Conference, the evaluator and the unit member shall sign and 
date the Goal Setting Form. If needed, any party may have ten days past the Fall Planning Conference 
to agree and sign the Goal Setting Form (even if the date falls after October 31st). 


 
4. In the event that the unit member and the evaluator cannot reach an agreement concerning standards of 


performance, a mediator agreeable to both parties shall be utilized in an attempt to reach an agreement.  
The Superintendent of Schools or his/her duly authorized representative, if necessary, shall render a 
final decision. 


 
5. Changes in any of the goals of the unit member should be reviewed with the evaluator throughout the 


school year.  Unit member or administration may administrate a review.  These changes shall become 
a part of the Fall Planning Conference.  


 
Timeline for Fall Planning Conferences: By October 31st 
 
 
Observations: 
 
1. Each temporary and probationary unit member shall be observed by his/her site administrator, or 


immediate supervisor a minimum of two (2) times per year in his/her working environment prior to 
completion of each Summative Evaluation.  One (1) of these observations shall be made by 
appointment.  Permanent unit members’ will be evaluated at least one time during the observation 
cycle.  This observation needs to be scheduled.  Additional observations may occur without an 
appointment. 


2. The evaluator shall be responsible for using the Observation Form.  This form will be shared at the 
post observation conference. A copy shall be given to the unit member within ten (10) workdays of the 
post observation conference. 


3. The evaluation of personnel shall involve more than one evaluator at the request of either the evaluator 
or the evaluatee.  Such an additional evaluator shall be selected from those assigned administrative 
responsibilities in the District. 


 
Timeline for Observations: 


• Temporary and Probationary Teachers: By the 3rd Friday in December  
• Permanent Teachers: By the 1st Friday in May  


 
Summative Evaluation: 
 
Summative Evaluation Reports for probationary and temporary unit members shall occur no later than the 
3rd Friday in January. The evaluator may hold other summative evaluation conferences as he/she deems 
necessary, or upon the request of the unit member. If the unit member achieves a rating of “Proficient or 
Distinguished” a second summative evaluation will be optional, and will occur only if requested by the 
unit member or their evaluator. If the unit member receives rating of “Does Not Meet or Emerging” a 
second cycle of evaluation will occur, including a minimum of two (2) observations and a summative 
evaluation, prior to March 1st. 
 
The Summative Evaluation Conference for Permanent unit members shall occur not later than thirty (30) 
work days before the last school day scheduled on the school calendar adopted by the governing board for 
the school year in which the evaluation takes place.  Permanent unit members shall be evaluated on the 
mutually agreed upon three (3) goals a minimum of once every three (3) years. The evaluator may 
complete up to two (2) summative evaluation reports a year as he/she deems necessary, or upon the 
request of the unit member.  When a Permanent unit member has received an overall “Does Not Meet or 
Emerging”, the District shall annually evaluate the unit member until the unit member achieves a 


712 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation                              July 2018  Page 4 
 


Proficient or Distinguished, or is separated from the District.  When a permanent unit member has 
satisfactorily completed his/her Improvement Needed Plan, the unit member shall be evaluated by 
Administrative Evaluation “Method 1” of the following year. 
 
A copy of the Summative Evaluation, signed and dated, will be given to the unit member and evaluator no 
later than ten (10) workdays following the Summative Evaluation Conference.   
 
In the event of difference of opinion between the evaluator and the unit member, the unit member may 
attach a statement to the Summative Evaluation outlining his/her differences. 
 
If a unit member's evaluation shows an overall rating of “Does Not Meet or Emerging” the procedures 
outlined under Improvement Support plan may be followed.   
 
Timeline for Summative Evaluations: 


• Completed Summative Conferences for Temporary and Probationary Teachers: Third 
Friday in January 


• Completed Summative Conferences for Permanent Teachers: 30 days before the last 
student day of school. 


 
Improvement Support Plan: 
 
1. If the overall ranking is marked “Does Not Meet or Emerging”, an Improvement Support plan shall be 


completed.  The plan includes a timeline during which improvement shall be achieved, and a 
description of intervention and supports to assist the unit member in meeting the standards.  If the unit 
member wishes to extend the timeline, the unit member may appeal to the Superintendent or his/her 
designee, whose decision shall be final. 


 
2. When an evaluator makes a recommendation for Improvement Support plan needed, the evaluator 


assumes an obligation to provide assistance. 
 
3. The evaluator shall make a written record of all observations, including recommendations and 


assistance.  The unit member shall be given a copy of all written records and will have the opportunity 
to respond to each. 


 
4. The unit member will receive and participate in assistance from a district assigned professional 


specialist as outlined in the Improvement Support plan.   
 
  


713 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation                              July 2018  Page 5 
 


 
Evaluation Method 2: 
Project-Based Evaluation  
 
Eligibility:  In order to be eligible to participate in the Project-Based Evaluation, a unit member must: 


• Be a permanent employee of the district. 
• Have received Proficient or Distinguished evaluations for the previous evaluation cycle. 
• Have administrator approval. 


 
Procedures: 
Work with evaluator on a mutually agreed upon Project-Based evaluation plan aligned with the unit 
members’ professional standards. 
 
By September 15th: 
At each work site, unit members shall be notified of and given access to district evaluation materials, 
including notification of primary evaluator. In preparation for the initial meeting with the evaluator, unit 
members will: 


• Use the standards/domains to reflect upon and mark their level of performance for each element 
of all of standards.  


• Using the completed standards/domains submit the Goal Setting form with strengths and areas of 
growth and develop three (3) professional goals. These goals should be written and be ready to 
present to the supervisor during the Fall Planning Conference. 


 
Fall Planning Conference: 
 
1. Unit members meet with their primary evaluator to review the standards/domains and present, discuss 
and agree upon professional goals. Unit member and primary evaluator create a mutually agreed upon 
Project-based evaluation plan based on one (1) of the options listed in the Resource Appendix titles 
Project-based Evaluation. 
 
2. If agreement cannot be reached on a Project-based evaluation plan, the unit member will be under 
Administrative Evaluation “Method 1” for that cycle. 
 
3. Unit members will receive notice by October 31st of final approval on professional goals and project-
based evaluation plan.  
 
Mid-Year Check-in: 
4. By the last Friday in January:  Supervisor will review progress with unit member if requested by either 
party. 
 
Final Submission of Project: 
5. By the second Friday in April:  All projects and supporting documentation, including the completed 
SCCS Reflection 1 and Reflection 2 will be submitted to the Supervisor. 
 
30 days prior to the end of the school year 
1. The unit member will meet with primary evaluator to review the Summative Evaluation and other 
documentation at a mutually agreed upon time.  
 
2. If the unit member receives a “Does Not Meet or Emerging” final rating, the unit member will begin a 
new evaluation cycle at the start of the next school year under Administrative Evaluation “Method 1”. 
 


714 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation                              July 2018  Page 6 
 


3. If a unit member has not completed the Project-Based Evaluation option by the second Friday of April, 
the evaluator will meet with the unit member and utilize the Summative Evaluation to document that the 
unit member did not meet the deadline and that the unit member will be placed on Administrative 
Evaluation at the start of the next school year. 
 
4. If the primary evaluator does not meet with the unit member by the 30 days prior to the end of school 
year to review the project, then the unit member may submit the project to Human Resources for review.  
The Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources will meet with the unit member to review the project.  
  


715 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation                              July 2018  Page 7 
 


Evaluation Method 3: 
Peer-Based Evaluation 
 
Eligibility:  In order to be eligible to participate in the Peer-Based Evaluation, a unit member must: 


• Be a permanent employee of the district. 
• Have received Proficient or Distinguished evaluations for the previous evaluation cycles. 
• Have administrator approval (include administrator approval for possible needed release time for 


observations). 
 
By September 15th: 
At each work site, unit members shall be notified of and given access to district evaluation materials, 
including notification of primary evaluator. In preparation for the initial meeting with the evaluator, unit 
members will: 


• Use the standards/domains to reflect upon and mark their level of performance for each element 
of all of standards.  


• Using the completed standards/domains submit the Goal Setting form with strengths and areas of 
growth and develop three (3) professional goals. These goals should be written and be ready to 
present to the supervisor during the Fall Planning Conference. 


• Mutually choose a professional partner who is eligible for participation. 
 
Fall Planning Conference 
 
1. By October 31, meet with the evaluator and the partner to discuss goals and objectives as written in 


the Goals-Setting Form according to the unit members’ professional standards.  Fill out Peer-Based 
Evaluation – Planning Sheet. 


 
Procedures 


 
1. Hold two (2) observations and post observation meetings. The observations must be documented on 


the Peer Classroom Observation Form and the Post Observation Meeting notes must be documented 
to be submitted.   


2. Write a reflection about your learning experience this year using the Project-Based or Peer-Based 
Evaluation Final Reflection form. 


 
Final Submission of Project: 
By the second Friday in April:  All observations and supporting documentation will have been completed 
and submitted to Supervisor. 
 
30 days prior to the end of the school year 
1. The unit member along with their peer partner will meet with primary evaluator to review the 


Summative Evaluation and other documentation at a mutually agreed upon time.  
 


2. If the unit member receives a “Does Not Meet or Emerging” final rating, the unit member will begin a 
new evaluation cycle at the start of the next school year under Administrative Evaluation “Method 1”. 
 


3. If a unit member has not completed the Peer-Based Evaluation option by the second Friday of April, 
the evaluator will meet with the unit member and utilize the Summative Evaluation to document that 
the unit member did not meet the deadline and that the unit member will be placed on Administrative 
Evaluation at the start of the next school year.  Unless the timeline is extended with administrative 
approval.   
 


716 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation                              July 2018  Page 8 
 


4. If the primary evaluator does not meet with the unit member by the 30 days prior to the end of school 
year to review the project, then the unit member may submit the project to Human Resources for 
review.  The Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources or administration designee will meet with 
the unit member to review the project.  


 
General Post-Evaluation Procedures 
 


• No evaluation documents shall be placed in the unit member's file unless the unit member has 
received a copy and has had an opportunity to discuss the document with the unit member’s 
evaluator. Within ten (10) working days of the receipt of a written evaluation, the unit member 
may submit a written response to be attached to the evaluation. 


• During a school year, the unit member may request a conference with the Superintendent or 
designee to discuss evaluation of the unit member. 


 
• The substance and supporting documents of a summary evaluation shall not be subject to the 


grievance procedure. 


717 of 778







 
 


 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
 


Administrative Evaluation  
  


Method 1 Forms 
 
 


 


718 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   California Standards for the Teaching Profession                                     July 2018 


 


SCCS Teaching Rubric “Methods 1, 2, 3” 
 
Purpose and Use of the SCCS Teaching Rubric 


 


1. This document will be formally used as a reflective tool to demonstrate growth and used throughout the 
year.   


2. Use the rubric as a resource in reflecting on identifying effective teaching practices.  


3. Read through the Six Standards.  


4. Highlight where you think your performance level currently is for all six standards. 


5. Use the Rubric to guide your goal setting based on your self-assessment of each standard, professional 
growth goals, (i.e. where would I like to be on the rubric at the end of your evaluation?) 


6. You will use the Rubric twice during your evaluation cycle 


7. Reflection 1 will be completed and turned in prior to or at Fall Planning 


8. Reflection 2 will be completed and turned in prior to or at Summative Conference 
  


719 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   California Standards for the Teaching Profession                                     July 2018 


 
Overview of the California Standards for the Teaching Profession (as modified for use  in Santa Cruz City Schools) 


Standard 1: Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning 
Teachers… 
1.1 Connect students’ prior knowledge, life experience and interests with 


classroom learning. 


1.2 Use a variety of instructional strategies to respond to students’ diverse needs. 


1.3 Facilitate learning experiences that promote autonomy, interaction and choice. 


1.4 Engage students in problem solving, critical thinking and other 
activities that make subject matter meaningful. 


1.5 Promote self-directed, reflective learning of all students. 


Standard 4: Planning, Designing and Delivering Learning Experiences for All 
Students 
Teachers… 
4.1 Design long-term and individual lesson plans to foster and support 


student learning. 


4.2 Value students’ backgrounds, interests, languages, and 
developmental needs. 


4.3 Establish and articulate student learning outcomes, consistent with State 
Standards. 


4.4 Sequence and use instructional time effectively. 


4.5 Modify instructional plans to adjust for student needs. 


Standard 2: Creating and Maintaining an Effective Environment for 
Learning 
Teachers… 
2.1 Create a physical environment that engages all students. 


2.2 Establish a learning environment that promotes fairness and respect. 


2.3 Promote social development and group responsibility. 


2.4 Establish and maintain standards for student behavior. 


2.5 Plan and implement classroom procedures and routines that support student 
learning. 


Standard 5: Assessing Student Learning 
Teachers… 
5.1 Establish and communicate learning outcomes for students. 


5.2 Use multiple sources of information to assess learning. 


5.3 Involve and guide students in assessing their own learning. 


5.4 Use results of assessment to guide instruction. 


5.5 Communicate with students and families about progress. 


Standard 3: Understanding and Organizing Subject Matter 
Knowledge 
Teachers… 
3.1 Demonstrate knowledge of subject matter. 


3.2 Organize curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter 
based on State Standards and Core Curriculum. 


3.3 Interrelate ideas and information within and across subject matter areas. 


3.4 Develop student understanding through instructional strategies that are 
appropriate to the subject. 


3.5 Use materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matter 
accessible and engaging to students. 


Standard 6: Developing as a Professional Educator 
Teachers… 
6.1 Reflect on teaching practices. 


6.2 Work with families to foster collaboration and ensure student success. 


6.3 Work with communities to foster collaboration and ensure student 
success. 


6.4 Establish professional goals and pursue growth opportunities. 


6.5 Work with colleagues to improve professional practice. 


6.6 Share in responsibility for implementing school expectations, priorities, 
policies, and procedures. 


  


720 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
Standard 1: Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning 


  
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard  Proficient Distinguished 
Element 1.1: Connect students’ prior knowledge, life experience, and interests with classroom learning. 
The teacher makes few or no connections 
between the classroom learning and the 
students’ prior knowledge, experiences, 
backgrounds, and perspectives. The 
teacher rarely elicits relevant student 
questions or comments during a lesson. 


The teacher makes some connections between 
classroom learning and students’ prior 
knowledge, experiences, or interests. The teacher 
elicits some questions from students during a 
lesson to monitor their understanding. 


The teacher makes substantial connections 
between classroom learning and students’ 
prior knowledge, experiences, and interests. 
Teacher elicits students’ cultural, class, and 
ethnic perspectives, and uses students’ 
questions and comments during a lesson to 
extend their understanding. 


The teacher helps students make connections in 
classroom learning and their own prior knowledge 
and experiences. The teacher facilitates activities 
that focus on students’ interests, experiences and 
diverse individual perspectives. The teacher adjusts 
instruction to enhance student voice. 


Element 1.2: Use a variety of instructional strategies to respond to students’ diverse needs. 
The teacher uses instructional strategies, but 
they lack variety, and are sometimes 
inappropriate to the students’ learning 
needs. Few or no accommodations are made 
to respond to students’ individual needs. 


The teacher uses 2-3 alternate instructional 
strategies that are appropriate to address the 
students’ developmental needs, learning styles, 
and language needs. The teacher sometimes 
makes accommodations through scaffolding to 
respond to students’ individual needs. 


The teacher uses a variety of instructional 
strategies to effectively address the 
students’ developmental needs, learning 
styles, and language needs. The teacher 
consistently makes accommodations to 
respond to students’ individual needs 


The teacher engages students in a variety 
of learning experiences that accommodate different 
learning styles. Instructional strategies consistently 
address students’ diverse needs. Strategies include 
adaptations, accommodations and differentiations 
to meet students’ individual needs. Students 
identify optimal strategies for their learning. 


Element 1.3: Facilitate learning experiences that promote autonomy, interaction, and choice. 
The teacher directs the learning experiences, 
and student interactions are infrequent and 
limited. Student autonomy or choice is 
rarely encouraged. 


The teacher usually directs the learning 
experiences, although s/he permits some student 
interaction. The teacher sometimes encourages 
student independence or choice. 


The teacher facilitates the learning 
experiences to promote constructive student 
interactions, and to develop student 
decision-making responsibility through 
choices about learning, and the use of time 
and materials. 


The teacher uses a variety of collaborative 
structures to promote interaction and student 
leadership in support of learning. Students 
regularly work independently and collaboratively, 
and manage their learning, time and materials. 


Element 1.4: Engage students in problem solving, critical thinking, and other activities that make subject matter meaningful. 
The teacher provides few opportunities for 
students to problem solve, analyze, or 
investigate in lessons. Teacher encourages 
student questioning, but most are low order, 
fact based. 


The teacher models and encourages open ended, 
higher order questions, and provides 
opportunities for students to ask questions and 
solve problems within a subject, but seldom 
directly develops students’ questioning skills. 
Teachers and students ask higher order 
questions. 


The teacher regularly provides opportunities 
and support for students to engage in 
problem solving, and to explore diverse 
perspectives of concepts within a subject 
matter area. Students’ questions are higher 
order. Teacher scaffolds skill building for 
these activities. 


The teacher frequently engages students in problem 
solving and higher–order question posing, and the 
investigation and critical analysis of diverse 
perspectives of concepts within a subject area. 
Students identify and explore their own interests to 
extend understanding of content. 


Element 1.5: Promote self-directed, reflective learning in all students. 
The teacher provides few or no 
opportunities for students to initiate, make 
decisions about, or reflect upon their own 
learning. 


The teacher usually directs the learning activities 
and provides some choices for student learning. 
S/he monitors student learning, and provides 
some opportunities for students to reflect 
individually on their learning. 


The teacher supports students in developing 
the skills needed to monitor their own 
learning and make decisions during 
activities. Students use State Standards and 
other criteria to assess their learning and 
discuss it with peers.  


The teacher creates opportunities for all students to 
initiate their own learning and to monitor and 
describe their learning process and progress. 
Students use State Standards and other criteria to 
assess their own and their peers’ learning, and to 
set new learning and improvement goals. 


 
  


721 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
Standard 2: Creating and Maintaining an Effective Environment for Learning 


 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard  Proficient Distinguished 
Element 2.1: Create a physical environment that engages all students. 
The physical environment may have one or 
more safety hazards, and materials are 
difficult to access by students with special 
needs. There are few or no room displays 
and few or no student work products 
displayed. 


The physical environment is clean and arranged 
for safety and accessibility for all students in the 
classroom. It facilitates individual student 
engagement in learning and access to necessary 
instructional materials. The teacher creates room 
displays which include some student work and 
are related to current topics of study. 


The physical environment allows for group 
interaction and movement between 
activities, or different simultaneous 
activities. The teacher creates room 
displays, which contain key information, 
are used in learning activities and represent 
current topics of study. A variety of student 
work is regularly displayed and related to 
current topics of study. 


The physical environment reflects, promotes, and 
supports student learning and responsibility. The 
teacher manages materials, technology, and 
resources to accommodate individual student 
needs, and promote positive interactions. Students 
help create room displays used in learning activities 
that represent current study topics. A variety of 
student work is regularly displayed, related to 
current study topics, and represents all students. 


Element 2.2: Establish a climate that promotes fairness and respect. 
Teacher has not established a classroom 
environment that promotes fairness or 
respect with regard to race, class, culture, 
language, sexual orientation, religion, or 
gender. Teacher responses to student 
behaviors are often unfair, inconsistent, or 
inequitable. 


Teacher establishes a climate of caring, equity 
and respect. Teacher has developed relationships 
and rapport with students. The pattern of teacher 
response to students is usually fair, consistent, 
and equitable. Teacher acknowledges and shows 
respect for student race, class, sexual orientation, 
religion, culture, language, and/or gender. 


The teacher models and promotes fairness, 
caring, equity, and respect. Teacher 
acknowledges and shows respect for student 
race, class, sexual orientation, religion, 
culture, language, and/or gender. The 
teacher encourages students to take risks 
and be creative. 


The teacher actively responds to and respects 
diversity. S/he encourages, supports, and 
recognizes creativity, risk-taking and unique 
contributions of all. The teacher's response to 
student behavior also demonstrates flexibility and 
adaptations as needed. 


Element 2.3: Promote social development and group responsibility. 
The teacher does not actively support 
students’ social development, self-esteem, 
or diversity. Students have little or no sense 
of responsibility for one another. Teacher 
rarely provides opportunities for students to 
work collaboratively.  


Students respect each other’s differences most of 
the time and work together fairly well. The 
teacher provides some opportunities for students 
to assume individual responsibility. The teacher 
sometimes provides opportunities for students to 
work collaboratively. 


Students respect each other’s differences 
and points of view. The teacher regularly 
provides opportunities for students to work 
independently and collaboratively, and to 
take responsibility for themselves and their 
peers. 


The students effectively communicate and 
collaborate. Teacher helps students to develop and 
practice leadership skills, demonstrate 
responsibility, and to understand differences in 
experiences, feelings, and points of view. 


Element 2.4: Establish and maintain standards for student behavior. 
Few or no standards for behavior appear to 
have been established or enforced. The 
teacher's response to student behavior is 
consistently and often inappropriate. 


The teacher has established and consistently 
enforces standards for behavior that are aligned 
with the school and district standards. The 
patterns of teacher responses to student behavior 
are generally appropriate, if limited in variety. 


The teacher consistently models and 
maintains standards for behavior. The 
teacher's response to student behavior 
reflects a range of appropriate and effective 
responses. 


The teacher establishes/maintains opportunities for 
students to share in decision-making, establishment 
of rules and conflict resolution. Teacher's response 
to student behavior reflects students' developmental 
and personal needs. 


Element 2.5: Plan and implement classroom procedures and routines that support student learning. 
Classroom procedures and routines are not 
clearly established or effectively enforced, 
resulting in teacher and student confusion 
and loss of instructional time. Teacher 
rarely monitors or holds students 
accountable for being ready and on task. 


Classroom and routines work moderately well. 
Teacher periodically clarifies or reinforces a 
procedure or timeline, with little loss of 
instructional time. Teacher sometimes monitors 
student readiness and time on task.  


Procedures and routines work smoothly. 
Students can explain and follow classroom 
procedures and routines with no loss of 
instructional time. Students understand and 
follow directions with no loss of 
instructional time. Teacher holds all 
students accountable for time on task. 


The teacher implements reasonable and flexible 
schedules and routines that promote student self-
sufficiency. S/he adapts procedures and rules to 
support student learning. 


      
722 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
 Standard 3: Understanding and Organizing Subject Matter Knowledge 


 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard  Proficient Distinguished 
Element 3.1: Demonstrate knowledge of subject matter. 
The teacher’s lack of knowledge of subject 
matter is frequently evident. Student 
learning outcomes are rarely evident, or 
rarely linked to subject knowledge 


The teacher has a clear, basic knowledge of 
subject matter and understands which skills and 
key concepts to teach. The teacher sometimes 
makes direct connections between subject 
knowledge and expected student outcomes. 


The teacher’s knowledge of subject matter 
has breadth and depth and incorporates key 
concepts and different perspectives. Teacher 
consistently and directly connects subject 
knowledge to student learning outcomes. 


Teacher knowledge of content has depth, is current 
and consistently incorporates key concepts, themes, 
connections, and student learning outcomes. 
Teacher actively has students address a variety of 
perspectives in demonstrating depth of knowledge. 


Element 3.2: Organize curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter based on the State Standards. 
The teacher rarely organizes the curriculum 
or incorporates key concepts, themes or 
skills; curriculum is often not directly 
connected to the State Standards. 
Teacher may not encourage students to 
think critically. 


The teacher organizes and designs curriculum 
based on essential, grade level appropriate State 
Standards, which results in students 
demonstrating understanding of key concepts 
within those standards. The teacher encourages 
critical thinking about standards. 


The teacher clearly organizes State 
Standards. The curriculum design clearly 
focuses on key themes and concepts and 
facilities standards based achievement. 
Teacher frequently engages students in 
critical thinking about standards. 


The teacher builds curriculum that is 
developmental, demonstrates depth, and connects 
various concepts and themes. The State Standards 
are used to plan and adapt instruction, creating 
specific outcomes for all students, which include 
demonstrating critical and higher order thinking 
about the subject matter.  


Element 3.3: Interrelate ideas and information within and across subject matter areas. 
The teacher rarely identifies or integrates 
key concepts and information when 
presenting curriculum. S/he rarely relates 
content to previous learning to enhance 
understanding. 


The teacher usually identifies and connects the 
key concepts within the content being taught. 
S/he sometimes relates content to previous or 
future learning, other subject areas, and students’ 
needs and experiences. 


The teacher identifies and integrates for 
students the key concepts and information 
within the State Standards, routinely makes 
connections to other subjects and routinely 
relates content to students’ lives, previous 
and future learning. 


The teacher routinely uses strategies and activities 
that integrate concepts and information within and 
across subject areas and Standards. S/he challenges 
students to make their own connections and extend 
and apply knowledge. 


Element 3.4: Develop student understanding through instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject. 
Instructional strategies are rarely matched 
appropriately to subject matter content or 
concepts and may not encourage students to 
think critically or engage with the content. 


The teacher uses at least one appropriate 
instructional strategy from a larger repertoire to 
make content accessible to students. S/he 
encourages students to think critically and to 
extend their knowledge of the subject matter by 
engaging with the content. 


The teacher uses a variety of appropriate 
instructional strategies to make content 
accessible to students and develop 
understanding. S/he challenges and supports 
students to think critically and to extend 
their knowledge and engagement of subject 
matter. 


The teacher selects from a wide variety of 
appropriate instructional strategies to address 
individual learning styles and needs so all students 
understand. S/he challenges and supports students 
to construct their own knowledge, think critically, 
and see relationships. 


Element 3.5: Use materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matter accessible and engaging to students. 
Instructional materials, resources and 
technologies are either not adequately used, 
or may be inaccessible to some students. 
Teacher makes little effort to locate 
supplementary materials, to reflect diverse 
perspectives or to relate to cultural or 
linguistic backgrounds of students. 


The teacher sometimes uses varied instructional 
materials, resources, and technologies to convey 
key subject matter concepts, and sometimes 
provides opportunities for student use. Teacher 
locates or adapts some supplementary materials 
to reflect diverse perspectives, or to relate to 
cultural and linguistic backgrounds of students. 


The teacher consistently uses varied 
instructional materials, resources, and 
technologies, including adaptive 
technologies if needed, to promote students’ 
understanding of core content and 
standards. A rich variety of resources is 
consistently available to students and 
reflects diverse perspectives, experiences, 
and cultural and linguistic needs of 
students.  


The teacher selects and uses a variety of 
instructional resources to organize curriculum, 
address learning styles, and promote student 
understanding. Students can independently access a 
variety of materials, resources, and technologies 
that reflect the diversity of the classroom and 
support students’ learning needs and styles. 


 
  


723 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
 Standard 4: Planning, Designing and Delivering Learning Experiences for All Students 


 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard  Proficient Distinguished 
Element 4.1: Design long-term and individual lesson plans to foster and support student learning. 
Individual lesson plans rarely have effective 
structure or often lack some elements 
necessary for student learning. They rarely 
relate to a continuum of learning outcomes 
in a unit or long-range plan or make 
connections to other learning or content 
areas. 


Individual lesson plans have a structure with 
pertinent lesson plan elements that will develop 
students’ conceptual understanding and 
application of content knowledge. They fit 
within a unit or long-range context. Provision for 
review and assessment may be inconsistently 
evident. 


Individual lesson plans have all pertinent 
components, are well sequenced, and build 
upon previous learning to promote 
understanding of content area concepts, and 
provide review and assessment. Long-term 
plans are organized, coherent, and 
developmental 


Individual, weekly, unit, and long-term curriculum 
plans are organized, developmental in nature, and 
provide for review and assessment. They include 
differentiated opportunities for all students to 
access challenging and diverse content and apply 
learning in a variety of contexts. 


Element 4.2: Value students’ backgrounds, interests, languages, and developmental needs. 
The teacher’s instructional plans show 
limited reflection of students’ backgrounds, 
experiences, interests, and developmental 
needs. 


The teacher’s lesson design uses information 
about students’ backgrounds, experiences, 
language, and developmental needs. 


The teacher’s lesson design and 
instructional strategies consistently reflect 
students, backgrounds, experiences, 
interests, language, and developmental 
needs. The teacher utilizes appropriate 
adopted and supplementary instructional 
materials to address these needs. 


The teacher solicits students’ input for curriculum 
design which reflects their backgrounds, 
experiences, interests, and languages. Lessons 
challenge and extend students at their own 
physical, social, and academic developmental 
levels. 


Element 4.3: Establish and articulate student learning outcomes, consistent with State Standards. 
The teacher rarely establishes clear 
instructional learning outcomes, or aligns 
outcomes with standards. Expectations for 
students are usually low or unrealistic. 


The teacher sometimes articulates student 
learning outcomes and success criteria. 
Expectations for most students are generally high 
and realistic. 


The teacher clearly articulates short term 
and long-term student learning outcomes 
that are challenging and represent State 
Standards and success criteria. 
Expectations for students are generally high 
and realistic. 


The teacher consistently articulates how 
instructional activities are related to student 
learning outcomes, success criteria, and Standards. 
Expectations promote achievement by all students 
at high levels. 


Element 4.4: Sequence and use instructional time effectively. 
Pacing and time spent on learning activities 
is either rushed or too long. Transitions are 
rough or confusing, resulting in a loss of 
instructional time. 
There is rarely an effective opening or 
closing to the lessons. 


Instructional time is paced so that most students 
complete the learning activities. Transitions are 
used to move students into activities with little or 
no loss of instructional time. Lessons have a 
clear opening and closing. 


Pacing and the time spent on lesson are 
appropriate to the activities and enable all 
students to engage successfully with the 
content. Transitions are efficient and 
smooth. Students have time to complete 
learning activities. Lesson opening and 
closing effectively engage students in 
learning. 


Individual, weekly, unit, and long-term curriculum 
plans are paced so that all students have adequate 
time for learning, remain engaged, and have time 
for reflection and assessment. Beginning and 
closing activities make connections to previous 
make connections to previous and future learning. 


Element 4.5: Modify instructional plans to adjust for student needs. 
Instructional plans are rarely adapted or 
differentiated in spite of evidence that 
accommodations would improve student 
learning. 


The teacher sometimes adapts instructional plans 
to address aspects of the lesson that were 
ineffective and some of the individual learning 
needs of the students. 


The teacher adapts instruction to enhance 
student learning based on formal and 
informal assessment. The teacher uses 
strategies identified in pertinent assessment 
resources.(IEP, 504, Standardized Tests, 
etc.) 


The teacher adapts plans, and differentiates 
instruction, to ensure opportunities for all students 
to successfully participate in learning activities. 
Teacher revises plans and instructional practices 
based upon on-going assessment. 


 
  


724 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
Standard 5: Assessing Student Learning 


 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard Basic Proficient Distinguished 
Element 5.1: Establish and communicate learning outcomes for students. 
There are few or no student learning 
outcomes established or clearly 
communicated to students or families. 


The teacher establishes expected learning 
outcomes for students based on State Standards. 
Teacher communicates student learning 
outcomes and a clearly defined success criterion 
to all students and families. 


The teacher establishes student learning 
outcomes based on the State Standards. 
Teacher communicates the outcomes to 
students and their families, and revises them 
as needed. The success criteria   is aligned 
with the outcomes and relevant standards 
and clearly described to students and 
families. 


The teacher uses the State Standards to guide and 
modify specific student learning outcomes, 
ensuring that outcomes are appropriate to students’ 
developmental, language, or other special needs. 
The success criteria is designed to provide ongoing 
feedback on student progress toward achievement 
of outcomes and standards. 


Element 5.2: Use multiple sources of information to assess learning. 
The teacher does not regularly use 
appropriate data or strategies to monitor and 
assess student learning and achievements. 


The teacher regularly uses one or two 
appropriate sources of information and strategies 
to monitor student progress and assess student 
learning. 


The teacher uses a variety appropriate 
assessment strategies to monitor and assess 
student progress on an ongoing basis, 
including formative and summative 
assessment. Assessment strategies are 
aligned to State Standards. 


The teacher uses a wide variety of assessment 
strategies aligned with State Standards. The teacher 
uses student work to reflect upon and adapt 
assessment strategies and adapt instruction. 


Element 5.3: Involve and guide students in assessing their own learning. 
The teacher rarely provides opportunities 
for students to reflect on or assess their own 
work. 


The teacher encourages and guides student 
reflection during some learning activities. The 
teacher provides some opportunities for students 
to discuss and assess their work with peers. 


The teacher includes student reflection and 
self-assessment in most learning activities. 
The teacher has established success criteria, 
and teaches a variety of tools to help 
students assess and reflect upon their own 
work as well as discuss it with their peers. 


The teacher uses assessment to help students 
understand and articulate their learning process. 
S/he uses reflective tools which may include 
rubrics and portfolios that help students assess, 
monitor, and reflect upon their own work as well as 
discuss work with peers. 


Element 5.4: Use results of assessment to guide instruction. 
The teacher rarely uses results of assessment 
to plan, guide, or adjust Instruction. 


The teacher uses information from one or two 
assessment sources to plan learning activities, 
but not necessarily to adjust instruction during a 
lesson. 


The teacher uses information from more 
than two sources of assessment to plan and 
adapt learning activities as well as to adjust 
instruction during a lesson to meet class and 
individual needs. 


The teacher uses ongoing formal and informal 
assessments to guide planning and adjust 
instruction. Assessment data is used to address 
individual student needs. Teacher uses student 
information system frequently and fully utilizes 
student information system. 


Element 5.5: Communicate with students and families about progress. 
The teacher provides little or no information 
about student progress to students and their 
families, aside from report card grades.  
Teacher does not use student information 
system. 


The teacher provides information about student 
learning to students and families to promote 
understanding and academic progress. This 
information may be at the end of the grading 
period or in response to learning difficulties 
exhibited by the student minimally uses student 
information system. 


The teacher regularly provides all students 
with information about their learning 
including updated student information 
system. The teacher regularly exchanges 
information about student learning with 
students and families. This communication 
may occur as ongoing progress reports or 
reviews of student work regularly. 


The teacher provides all students, and their families 
with ongoing information about their progress 
towards learning outcomes and relevant Standards. 
Students and their families frequently communicate 
academic and social progress with the teacher, 
based on a variety of assessments. 


 


725 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


Standard 6: Developing as a Professional Educator 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard Basic Proficient Distinguished 
Element 6.1: Reflect upon teaching practices 
The teacher does not demonstrate reflection 
on his/her practices. The teacher does not 
make professional development growth 
plans based on analysis student information 
system of school priorities and 


The teacher reviews student work and examines 
the results of his/her teaching in relation to 
student achievement and performance. 
Professional development growth plans may not 
be related to the review teacher’s own practices 
or not reflect school priorities. 


The teacher reflects on student work and 
achievement in designing his/her 
professional growth plans. The Professional 
Growth Plan is related to the teacher’s 
instructional practices and content expertise 
and school priorities. 


The teacher assesses own growth over time by 
analyzing his/her practices related to student 
learning. The teacher makes Professional Growth 
Plans and decisions based on individual and 
collaborative reflection and analysis of student 
work and school priorities. 


Element 6.2: Work with families to foster collaboration and ensure student success. 
The teacher does not use families as a 
source of information about students, 
actively communicate with families, or 
involve them in opportunities for student 
learning. 


The teacher provides periodic communication to 
families about student learning and achievement. 
The teacher does not engage families in learning 
opportunities at school. 


The teacher engages families in two way 
communication as a source of information 
related to student needs in a timely manner. 


The teacher promotes interactions with families, 
and responds to their concerns about student 
progress in a timely manner. 


Element 6.3: Work with communities to foster collaboration and ensure student success. 
The teacher does not actively utilize or work 
with school or community services, 
businesses, agencies or universities to 
enhance student learning or improve his/her 
own professional knowledge. 


The teacher uses school or community services 
or agencies to provide support to students in 
identified areas. The teacher seeks greater 
understanding of students’ community and life 
experiences. 


The teacher uses a variety of school and 
community services to support student 
learning and personal areas of need. The 
teacher seeks greater understanding of 
student’s personal, cultural, language and 
learning strengths, and individual areas of 
need. 


The teacher promotes school/community 
collaboration. S/he identifies and uses community 
services and resources to benefit students and 
families. The teacher initiates the connectivity to 
the community to a variety of activities such as 
guest speakers, refer to services, and field 
experience. 


Element 6.4: Establish professional goals and pursue growth opportunities. 
The teacher does not engage in ongoing 
learning opportunities or participate in 
school or district professional development 
opportunities. 


The teacher participates in school-based and/or 
district offered professional development 
activities. The teacher may participate in 
professional growth opportunities through 
universities, professional organizations, or 
community agencies. 


The teacher participates in a variety of 
school and district professional 
development activities aligned with school 
priorities, and includes learning from these 
activities in her/his personal growth goals, 
in his/her lesion planning and in addressing 
the identified needs of students. 


The teacher establishes professional goals and 
pursues continuous professional growth. S/he 
refines skills and strategies, uses research, 
resources and engages in opportunities to improve 
practice such as coaching, peer support, job alike 
groups or mentoring to increase understanding of 
teaching and learning. 


Element 6.5: Work with colleagues to improve professional practice. 
The teacher rarely collaborates with 
colleagues in meeting to improve 
professional practice, or to implement 
school, department, or grade level activities. 


The teacher collaborates and actively works with 
colleagues in grade level and/or content areas to 
ensure that all students’ diverse learning needs 
are met. 


The teacher actively collaborates with 
colleagues in school-wide activities to 
promote student learning. S/he works with 
others to solve problems and address school 
goals and objectives. 


The teacher maintains positive relationships with 
others, takes leadership roles in the school, district 
or professional organizations. S/he actively seeks to 
solve problems, resolve conflicts, and advance 
common school goals. 


Element 6.6: Share in responsibility for implementing school expectations, priorities, policies, and procedures. 
The teacher does not meet basic 
professional expectations to follow 
procedures or participate in required teacher 
activities. 


The teacher participates in most schoolwide 
activities, meets basic professional expectations, 
and follows procedures and policies including 
timely record keeping, attendance, grading, and 
enforcement of school regulations. 


The teacher consistently participates in 
school-wide activities, follows policies and 
procedures, meets professional expectations 
including accurate reflection of student 
progress, and actively supports school 
expectations for students and staff. 


The teacher regularly exhibits leadership in support 
of school and student needs. The teacher models 
professional expectations including active 
contributions to school planning, and school 
programs. 


 


726 of 778







  
Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 


Goal-Setting “Method 1,2,3” 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
Professional Goals: For permanent employees, write three (3) professional goals.  Temporary, 
probationary, and permanent employees who received “Does Not Meet or Emerging” need to write 
six (6) goals (if you have less than six (6) professional standards/domains, write a goal for each of the 
standards/domains).  These goals are submitted to your primary evaluator at the Fall Planning Conference based on the 
standards/domains and relate to your reflection on the rubric.   
 
 


   
Name of Evaluatee School/Site Date 
 
 
Evaluator:    
 


 
1. This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                       , I plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
2. This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                      , I also plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
3. This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                      , I also plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
Conference Notes 
 


 
 
 
 


  
Evaluatee’s Signature Date Evaluator’s Signature Date 
 
(This signature will be considered an acknowledgement of outlining the goals for the             to               School Year.   


  


727 of 778







  
Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 


 


 
Goal-Setting “Method 1,2,3” 


 (continued)  
professional goals four to six 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
 
 


 
4.      This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                      , I plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
5.       This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                     , I also plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
6.      This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                     , I also plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
Conference Notes 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


  
Evaluatee’s Signature Date Evaluator’s Signature Date 
 
(This signature will be considered an acknowledgement of outlining the goals for the             to               School Year.   


728 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 


Observation Form “Method 1” 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


Based on California Standards for the Teaching Profession 
 
 


   
Name of Evaluatee School/Site Date 
 
Grade level:               Subject:                                          Time:  to   # of Students:              
 
Type of Observation:  
 


Administrative   [ ] Scheduled  [  ] Non-scheduled  
 
Evaluator / Observer:    
 
Lesson Topic:    


 
 
 


California Standards for the Teaching Profession Check area(s) of focus 
 
 Engaging and Supporting all Students in Learning  Planning Instruction and Designing Learning Experiences 


for all Students 
 Creating and Maintaining Effective Environments for Student 


Learning 
 Assessing Students for Learning 


 Understanding and Organized Subject Matter for Student Learning  Developing as a Professional Educator 
 


 


Student learning goal(s) and success criteria 


Observations 
 


Learnings/Outcomes 
 
 
 


Suggestions and Recommendations 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 


  
Evaluatee’s Signature Date Evaluator’s Signature Date 
(This signature will be considered an acknowledgement of having read and discussed this form, not an agreement or disagreement with the content.) 


729 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 
 


 


 


Summative Evaluation –Classroom Teacher “Method 1, 2, 3” 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
METHOD OF EVALUATION: Administrative Evaluation “Method 1” 
 Project-Based Evaluation “Method 2” 
 Peer-Based Evaluation “Method 3” 
 
NAME         ASSIGNMENT                                         DATE       
 
SCHOOL/LOCATION   EVALUATOR     
 
CERTIFICATED STATUS (Check One): 
 


Permanent Temporary Probationary 1st Year 2nd Year  
 
 


1 = Practice Does Not Meet Standard  
2 = Practice Partially Emerging Standard  
3 = Practice Proficient  
4 = Practice Distinguished  


 
 


1 


 
 


2 


 
 


3 


 
 


4 
 


1. Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning      
 1.1 Using knowledge of students to engage them in learning. 


1.2 Connecting learning to students’ prior knowledge, backgrounds, life experiences, and interests. 
1.3 Connecting subject matter to meaningful, real-life contexts. 
1.4 Using a variety of instructional strategies, resources, and technologies to meet students’ diverse needs. 
1.5 Promoting critical thinking through inquiry, problem solving, and reflection. 
1.6 Monitoring student learning and adjusting instruction while teaching. 


 


2. Creating and Maintaining Effective Environments for Student Learning      
 2.1  Promoting social development and responsibility within a caring community. 


2.2  Creating physical or virtual learning environments that promote student learning. 
2.3  Establishing and maintaining learning environments that are safe. 
2.4  Creating a rigorous learning environment with high expectations and appropriate support. 
2.5  Developing, communicating, and maintaining high standards for individual and group behavior. 
2.6  Employing classroom routines, procedures, norms, and supports for positive behavior. 
2.7  Using instructional time to optimize learning. 


 


3. Understanding and Organizing Subject Matter for Student Learning      
 3.1 Demonstrating knowledge of subject matter, academic content standards, and curriculum frameworks. 


3.2 Applying knowledge of student development and proficiencies to ensure student understanding. 
3.3  Organizing curriculum to facilitate student understanding of the subject matter. 
3.4  Utilizing instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject matter. 
3.5 Using and adapting resources to make subject matter accessible to all students. 
3.6 Addressing the needs of English learners to provide equitable access to the content. 
3.7 Addressing the needs of students with special needs to provide equitable access to the content. 


 


4. Planning Instruction and Designing Learning Experiences for All Students      
 4.1 Using background knowledge of students to plan instruction. 


4.2 Establishing and articulating goals for students learning. 
4.3  Developing and sequencing instructional plans to support student learning. 
4.4 Planning instruction that incorporates appropriate strategies to meet the learning needs of all students. 
4.5 Adapting instructional plans and curricular materials to meet the assessed learning needs of students. 


 


5. Assessing Student Learning      
 5.1  Applying the knowledge of the purposes, characteristics, and uses of different types of assessments. 


5.2  Collecting and analyzing assessment data from a variety of sources to inform instruction. 
5.3 Reviewing data, both individually and with colleagues, to monitor student learning. 
5.4 Using assessment data to establish learning goals and to plan, differentiate, and modify instruction. 
5.5  Involving all students in self-assessment,  goal setting, and monitoring progress. 
5.6  Using available technologies to assist in assessment, analysis, and communication of student learning. 
5.7 Using assessment information to share timely and comprehensible feedback with students and families. 


 
 
 
 


730 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 
 


 


 


Narrative Summary Checklist –Classroom Teacher (continued) 
 


1 = Practice Does Not Meet Standard  
2 = Practice Partially Emerging Standard  
3 = Practice Proficient  
4 = Practice Distinguished  


 
 


1 


 
 


2 


 
 


3 


 
 


4 


 


6. Developing As a Professional Educator      
 6.1  Reflecting on teaching practice in support of student learning.     


6.2 Establishing professional goals and engaging in opportunities for professional growth.     
6.3 Collaborating with colleagues and the broader professional community to support professional growth.     
6.4  Working with families to support student learning     
6.5  Engaging local communities in support of the instructional program.     
6.6  Managing professional responsibilities to maintain motivation and commitment to all students.     
6.7  Demonstrating professional responsibility, integrity, and ethical conduct.     


 


NARRATIVE SUMMARY:  
1. Comments pertaining to progress toward professional goal(s). 
2. If any standard checked 1 “Does not meet Standard” or 2 “Emerging Standard”, specific recommendations for improvement for each area 


of need must be listed. 
3. Unit member with an overall rating below Proficient needs an Improvement Support Plan, aligned with the Summative Evaluations.  The 


improvement plan shall include suggestions for remediation in the specific areas of deficiency, recommended support through the upcoming 
evaluation cycle, and realistic timelines for improvement. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
EVIDENCE/DATA SUMMARY:  
 


 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
OVERALL EVALUATION RATING 
  


Does Not Meet Standards  
Emerging Standards  
Proficient  
Distinguished  


 
 
 
  


EVALUATEE SIGNATURE DATE EVALUATOR SIGNATURE DATE 
This signature will be considered an acknowledgement of having read and discussed this form, not an agreement with the content. Unit members who have an overall 
evaluation lower than “proficient” are encouraged to invite a GSCFT representative to the summary evaluation conference in order to create the required remediation 
plan. 


 


 


 


731 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation        July 2018 


Improvement Support Plan “Method 1”
Santa Cruz City Schools 


Instructions: This form MUST be completed when the overall summary evaluation is Does Not Meet or Emerging Standards. This 
document will serve as the improvement plan for the unit member for the upcoming school year and evaluation cycle. Administrators 
must address all areas on Improvement Support Plan in the Narrative Summary, but may choose to focus on 2-5 critical areas for improvement goals. 
Unit members will be under Administrative Evaluation Method 1 for the next school year.  


 


Evaluatee:                                                                                          School:                                                                     
 
California Standards for the Teaching Profession Check area(s) of focus 
 
 Engaging and Supporting all Students in Learning  Planning Instruction and Designing Learning Experiences 


for all Students 
 Creating and Maintaining Effective Environments for Student 


Learning 
 Assessing Students for Learning 


 Understanding and Organized Subject Matter for Student Learning  Developing as a Professional Educator 
 


 
A. Description of 
Improvement need in meeting 
standard(s): 


B.  Intervention/Supports necessary in order to meet the 
standard(s) (may refer to separate list of intervention and 
support ideas): 


C. Timeline and Evaluation 
Process: 


   


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   


EVALUATEE SIGNATURE DATE EVALUATOR SIGNATURE DATE 
 


This signature will be considered an acknowledgement of having read and discussed this form, not an agreement with the content. Unit members who have an improvement plan are encouraged to invite a GSCFT representative 
to each conference in order to create and review the requirements contained within the plan.  


732 of 778







 
 


 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
 


Project-Based Evaluation  
 


Method 2 Forms 
 
 


 


733 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   California Standards for the Teaching Profession                                     July 2018 


 


SCCS Teaching Rubric “Methods 1, 2, 3” 
 
Purpose and Use of the SCCS Teaching Rubric 


 


1. This document will be formally used as a reflective tool to demonstrate growth and used throughout the 
year.   


2. Use the rubric as a resource in reflecting on identifying effective teaching practices.  


3. Read through the Six Standards.  


4. Highlight where you think your performance level currently is for all six standards. 


5. Use the Rubric to guide your goal setting based on your self-assessment of each standard, professional 
growth goals, (i.e. where would I like to be on the rubric at the end of your evaluation?) 


6. You will use the Rubric twice during your evaluation cycle 


7. Reflection 1 will be completed and turned in prior to or at Fall Planning 


8. Reflection 2 will be completed and turned in prior to or at Summative Conference 
  


734 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   California Standards for the Teaching Profession                                     July 2018 


 
Overview of the California Standards for the Teaching Profession (as modified for use  in Santa Cruz City Schools) 


Standard 1: Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning 
Teachers… 
1.1 Connect students’ prior knowledge, life experience and interests with 


classroom learning. 


1.2 Use a variety of instructional strategies to respond to students’ diverse needs. 


1.3 Facilitate learning experiences that promote autonomy, interaction and choice. 


1.4 Engage students in problem solving, critical thinking and other 
activities that make subject matter meaningful. 


1.5 Promote self-directed, reflective learning of all students. 


Standard 4: Planning, Designing and Delivering Learning Experiences for All 
Students 
Teachers… 
4.1 Design long-term and individual lesson plans to foster and support 


student learning. 


4.2 Value students’ backgrounds, interests, languages, and 
developmental needs. 


4.3 Establish and articulate student learning outcomes, consistent with State 
Standards. 


4.4 Sequence and use instructional time effectively. 


4.5 Modify instructional plans to adjust for student needs. 


Standard 2: Creating and Maintaining an Effective Environment for 
Learning 
Teachers… 
2.1 Create a physical environment that engages all students. 


2.2 Establish a learning environment that promotes fairness and respect. 


2.3 Promote social development and group responsibility. 


2.4 Establish and maintain standards for student behavior. 


2.5 Plan and implement classroom procedures and routines that support student 
learning. 


Standard 5: Assessing Student Learning 
Teachers… 
5.1 Establish and communicate learning outcomes for students. 


5.2 Use multiple sources of information to assess learning. 


5.3 Involve and guide students in assessing their own learning. 


5.4 Use results of assessment to guide instruction. 


5.5 Communicate with students and families about progress. 


Standard 3: Understanding and Organizing Subject Matter 
Knowledge 
Teachers… 
3.1 Demonstrate knowledge of subject matter. 


3.2 Organize curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter 
based on State Standards and Core Curriculum. 


3.3 Interrelate ideas and information within and across subject matter areas. 


3.4 Develop student understanding through instructional strategies that are 
appropriate to the subject. 


3.5 Use materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matter 
accessible and engaging to students. 


Standard 6: Developing as a Professional Educator 
Teachers… 
6.1 Reflect on teaching practices. 


6.2 Work with families to foster collaboration and ensure student success. 


6.3 Work with communities to foster collaboration and ensure student 
success. 


6.4 Establish professional goals and pursue growth opportunities. 


6.5 Work with colleagues to improve professional practice. 


6.6 Share in responsibility for implementing school expectations, priorities, 
policies, and procedures. 


  


735 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
Standard 1: Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning 


  
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard  Proficient Distinguished 
Element 1.1: Connect students’ prior knowledge, life experience, and interests with classroom learning. 
The teacher makes few or no connections 
between the classroom learning and the 
students’ prior knowledge, experiences, 
backgrounds, and perspectives. The 
teacher rarely elicits relevant student 
questions or comments during a lesson. 


The teacher makes some connections between 
classroom learning and students’ prior 
knowledge, experiences, or interests. The teacher 
elicits some questions from students during a 
lesson to monitor their understanding. 


The teacher makes substantial connections 
between classroom learning and students’ 
prior knowledge, experiences, and interests. 
Teacher elicits students’ cultural, class, and 
ethnic perspectives, and uses students’ 
questions and comments during a lesson to 
extend their understanding. 


The teacher helps students make connections in 
classroom learning and their own prior knowledge 
and experiences. The teacher facilitates activities 
that focus on students’ interests, experiences and 
diverse individual perspectives. The teacher adjusts 
instruction to enhance student voice. 


Element 1.2: Use a variety of instructional strategies to respond to students’ diverse needs. 
The teacher uses instructional strategies, but 
they lack variety, and are sometimes 
inappropriate to the students’ learning 
needs. Few or no accommodations are made 
to respond to students’ individual needs. 


The teacher uses 2-3 alternate instructional 
strategies that are appropriate to address the 
students’ developmental needs, learning styles, 
and language needs. The teacher sometimes 
makes accommodations through scaffolding to 
respond to students’ individual needs. 


The teacher uses a variety of instructional 
strategies to effectively address the 
students’ developmental needs, learning 
styles, and language needs. The teacher 
consistently makes accommodations to 
respond to students’ individual needs 


The teacher engages students in a variety 
of learning experiences that accommodate different 
learning styles. Instructional strategies consistently 
address students’ diverse needs. Strategies include 
adaptations, accommodations and differentiations 
to meet students’ individual needs. Students 
identify optimal strategies for their learning. 


Element 1.3: Facilitate learning experiences that promote autonomy, interaction, and choice. 
The teacher directs the learning experiences, 
and student interactions are infrequent and 
limited. Student autonomy or choice is 
rarely encouraged. 


The teacher usually directs the learning 
experiences, although s/he permits some student 
interaction. The teacher sometimes encourages 
student independence or choice. 


The teacher facilitates the learning 
experiences to promote constructive student 
interactions, and to develop student 
decision-making responsibility through 
choices about learning, and the use of time 
and materials. 


The teacher uses a variety of collaborative 
structures to promote interaction and student 
leadership in support of learning. Students 
regularly work independently and collaboratively, 
and manage their learning, time and materials. 


Element 1.4: Engage students in problem solving, critical thinking, and other activities that make subject matter meaningful. 
The teacher provides few opportunities for 
students to problem solve, analyze, or 
investigate in lessons. Teacher encourages 
student questioning, but most are low order, 
fact based. 


The teacher models and encourages open ended, 
higher order questions, and provides 
opportunities for students to ask questions and 
solve problems within a subject, but seldom 
directly develops students’ questioning skills. 
Teachers and students ask higher order 
questions. 


The teacher regularly provides opportunities 
and support for students to engage in 
problem solving, and to explore diverse 
perspectives of concepts within a subject 
matter area. Students’ questions are higher 
order. Teacher scaffolds skill building for 
these activities. 


The teacher frequently engages students in problem 
solving and higher–order question posing, and the 
investigation and critical analysis of diverse 
perspectives of concepts within a subject area. 
Students identify and explore their own interests to 
extend understanding of content. 


Element 1.5: Promote self-directed, reflective learning in all students. 
The teacher provides few or no 
opportunities for students to initiate, make 
decisions about, or reflect upon their own 
learning. 


The teacher usually directs the learning activities 
and provides some choices for student learning. 
S/he monitors student learning, and provides 
some opportunities for students to reflect 
individually on their learning. 


The teacher supports students in developing 
the skills needed to monitor their own 
learning and make decisions during 
activities. Students use State Standards and 
other criteria to assess their learning and 
discuss it with peers.  


The teacher creates opportunities for all students to 
initiate their own learning and to monitor and 
describe their learning process and progress. 
Students use State Standards and other criteria to 
assess their own and their peers’ learning, and to 
set new learning and improvement goals. 


 
  


736 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
Standard 2: Creating and Maintaining an Effective Environment for Learning 


 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard  Proficient Distinguished 
Element 2.1: Create a physical environment that engages all students. 
The physical environment may have one or 
more safety hazards, and materials are 
difficult to access by students with special 
needs. There are few or no room displays 
and few or no student work products 
displayed. 


The physical environment is clean and arranged 
for safety and accessibility for all students in the 
classroom. It facilitates individual student 
engagement in learning and access to necessary 
instructional materials. The teacher creates room 
displays which include some student work and 
are related to current topics of study. 


The physical environment allows for group 
interaction and movement between 
activities, or different simultaneous 
activities. The teacher creates room 
displays, which contain key information, 
are used in learning activities and represent 
current topics of study. A variety of student 
work is regularly displayed and related to 
current topics of study. 


The physical environment reflects, promotes, and 
supports student learning and responsibility. The 
teacher manages materials, technology, and 
resources to accommodate individual student 
needs, and promote positive interactions. Students 
help create room displays used in learning activities 
that represent current study topics. A variety of 
student work is regularly displayed, related to 
current study topics, and represents all students. 


Element 2.2: Establish a climate that promotes fairness and respect. 
Teacher has not established a classroom 
environment that promotes fairness or 
respect with regard to race, class, culture, 
language, sexual orientation, religion, or 
gender. Teacher responses to student 
behaviors are often unfair, inconsistent, or 
inequitable. 


Teacher establishes a climate of caring, equity 
and respect. Teacher has developed relationships 
and rapport with students. The pattern of teacher 
response to students is usually fair, consistent, 
and equitable. Teacher acknowledges and shows 
respect for student race, class, sexual orientation, 
religion, culture, language, and/or gender. 


The teacher models and promotes fairness, 
caring, equity, and respect. Teacher 
acknowledges and shows respect for student 
race, class, sexual orientation, religion, 
culture, language, and/or gender. The 
teacher encourages students to take risks 
and be creative. 


The teacher actively responds to and respects 
diversity. S/he encourages, supports, and 
recognizes creativity, risk-taking and unique 
contributions of all. The teacher's response to 
student behavior also demonstrates flexibility and 
adaptations as needed. 


Element 2.3: Promote social development and group responsibility. 
The teacher does not actively support 
students’ social development, self-esteem, 
or diversity. Students have little or no sense 
of responsibility for one another. Teacher 
rarely provides opportunities for students to 
work collaboratively.  


Students respect each other’s differences most of 
the time and work together fairly well. The 
teacher provides some opportunities for students 
to assume individual responsibility. The teacher 
sometimes provides opportunities for students to 
work collaboratively. 


Students respect each other’s differences 
and points of view. The teacher regularly 
provides opportunities for students to work 
independently and collaboratively, and to 
take responsibility for themselves and their 
peers. 


The students effectively communicate and 
collaborate. Teacher helps students to develop and 
practice leadership skills, demonstrate 
responsibility, and to understand differences in 
experiences, feelings, and points of view. 


Element 2.4: Establish and maintain standards for student behavior. 
Few or no standards for behavior appear to 
have been established or enforced. The 
teacher's response to student behavior is 
consistently and often inappropriate. 


The teacher has established and consistently 
enforces standards for behavior that are aligned 
with the school and district standards. The 
patterns of teacher responses to student behavior 
are generally appropriate, if limited in variety. 


The teacher consistently models and 
maintains standards for behavior. The 
teacher's response to student behavior 
reflects a range of appropriate and effective 
responses. 


The teacher establishes/maintains opportunities for 
students to share in decision-making, establishment 
of rules and conflict resolution. Teacher's response 
to student behavior reflects students' developmental 
and personal needs. 


Element 2.5: Plan and implement classroom procedures and routines that support student learning. 
Classroom procedures and routines are not 
clearly established or effectively enforced, 
resulting in teacher and student confusion 
and loss of instructional time. Teacher 
rarely monitors or holds students 
accountable for being ready and on task. 


Classroom and routines work moderately well. 
Teacher periodically clarifies or reinforces a 
procedure or timeline, with little loss of 
instructional time. Teacher sometimes monitors 
student readiness and time on task.  


Procedures and routines work smoothly. 
Students can explain and follow classroom 
procedures and routines with no loss of 
instructional time. Students understand and 
follow directions with no loss of 
instructional time. Teacher holds all 
students accountable for time on task. 


The teacher implements reasonable and flexible 
schedules and routines that promote student self-
sufficiency. S/he adapts procedures and rules to 
support student learning. 


      
737 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
 Standard 3: Understanding and Organizing Subject Matter Knowledge 


 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard  Proficient Distinguished 
Element 3.1: Demonstrate knowledge of subject matter. 
The teacher’s lack of knowledge of subject 
matter is frequently evident. Student 
learning outcomes are rarely evident, or 
rarely linked to subject knowledge 


The teacher has a clear, basic knowledge of 
subject matter and understands which skills and 
key concepts to teach. The teacher sometimes 
makes direct connections between subject 
knowledge and expected student outcomes. 


The teacher’s knowledge of subject matter 
has breadth and depth and incorporates key 
concepts and different perspectives. Teacher 
consistently and directly connects subject 
knowledge to student learning outcomes. 


Teacher knowledge of content has depth, is current 
and consistently incorporates key concepts, themes, 
connections, and student learning outcomes. 
Teacher actively has students address a variety of 
perspectives in demonstrating depth of knowledge. 


Element 3.2: Organize curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter based on the State Standards. 
The teacher rarely organizes the curriculum 
or incorporates key concepts, themes or 
skills; curriculum is often not directly 
connected to the State Standards. 
Teacher may not encourage students to 
think critically. 


The teacher organizes and designs curriculum 
based on essential, grade level appropriate State 
Standards, which results in students 
demonstrating understanding of key concepts 
within those standards. The teacher encourages 
critical thinking about standards. 


The teacher clearly organizes State 
Standards. The curriculum design clearly 
focuses on key themes and concepts and 
facilities standards based achievement. 
Teacher frequently engages students in 
critical thinking about standards. 


The teacher builds curriculum that is 
developmental, demonstrates depth, and connects 
various concepts and themes. The State Standards 
are used to plan and adapt instruction, creating 
specific outcomes for all students, which include 
demonstrating critical and higher order thinking 
about the subject matter.  


Element 3.3: Interrelate ideas and information within and across subject matter areas. 
The teacher rarely identifies or integrates 
key concepts and information when 
presenting curriculum. S/he rarely relates 
content to previous learning to enhance 
understanding. 


The teacher usually identifies and connects the 
key concepts within the content being taught. 
S/he sometimes relates content to previous or 
future learning, other subject areas, and students’ 
needs and experiences. 


The teacher identifies and integrates for 
students the key concepts and information 
within the State Standards, routinely makes 
connections to other subjects and routinely 
relates content to students’ lives, previous 
and future learning. 


The teacher routinely uses strategies and activities 
that integrate concepts and information within and 
across subject areas and Standards. S/he challenges 
students to make their own connections and extend 
and apply knowledge. 


Element 3.4: Develop student understanding through instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject. 
Instructional strategies are rarely matched 
appropriately to subject matter content or 
concepts and may not encourage students to 
think critically or engage with the content. 


The teacher uses at least one appropriate 
instructional strategy from a larger repertoire to 
make content accessible to students. S/he 
encourages students to think critically and to 
extend their knowledge of the subject matter by 
engaging with the content. 


The teacher uses a variety of appropriate 
instructional strategies to make content 
accessible to students and develop 
understanding. S/he challenges and supports 
students to think critically and to extend 
their knowledge and engagement of subject 
matter. 


The teacher selects from a wide variety of 
appropriate instructional strategies to address 
individual learning styles and needs so all students 
understand. S/he challenges and supports students 
to construct their own knowledge, think critically, 
and see relationships. 


Element 3.5: Use materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matter accessible and engaging to students. 
Instructional materials, resources and 
technologies are either not adequately used, 
or may be inaccessible to some students. 
Teacher makes little effort to locate 
supplementary materials, to reflect diverse 
perspectives or to relate to cultural or 
linguistic backgrounds of students. 


The teacher sometimes uses varied instructional 
materials, resources, and technologies to convey 
key subject matter concepts, and sometimes 
provides opportunities for student use. Teacher 
locates or adapts some supplementary materials 
to reflect diverse perspectives, or to relate to 
cultural and linguistic backgrounds of students. 


The teacher consistently uses varied 
instructional materials, resources, and 
technologies, including adaptive 
technologies if needed, to promote students’ 
understanding of core content and 
standards. A rich variety of resources is 
consistently available to students and 
reflects diverse perspectives, experiences, 
and cultural and linguistic needs of 
students.  


The teacher selects and uses a variety of 
instructional resources to organize curriculum, 
address learning styles, and promote student 
understanding. Students can independently access a 
variety of materials, resources, and technologies 
that reflect the diversity of the classroom and 
support students’ learning needs and styles. 


 
  


738 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
 Standard 4: Planning, Designing and Delivering Learning Experiences for All Students 


 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard  Proficient Distinguished 
Element 4.1: Design long-term and individual lesson plans to foster and support student learning. 
Individual lesson plans rarely have effective 
structure or often lack some elements 
necessary for student learning. They rarely 
relate to a continuum of learning outcomes 
in a unit or long-range plan or make 
connections to other learning or content 
areas. 


Individual lesson plans have a structure with 
pertinent lesson plan elements that will develop 
students’ conceptual understanding and 
application of content knowledge. They fit 
within a unit or long-range context. Provision for 
review and assessment may be inconsistently 
evident. 


Individual lesson plans have all pertinent 
components, are well sequenced, and build 
upon previous learning to promote 
understanding of content area concepts, and 
provide review and assessment. Long-term 
plans are organized, coherent, and 
developmental 


Individual, weekly, unit, and long-term curriculum 
plans are organized, developmental in nature, and 
provide for review and assessment. They include 
differentiated opportunities for all students to 
access challenging and diverse content and apply 
learning in a variety of contexts. 


Element 4.2: Value students’ backgrounds, interests, languages, and developmental needs. 
The teacher’s instructional plans show 
limited reflection of students’ backgrounds, 
experiences, interests, and developmental 
needs. 


The teacher’s lesson design uses information 
about students’ backgrounds, experiences, 
language, and developmental needs. 


The teacher’s lesson design and 
instructional strategies consistently reflect 
students, backgrounds, experiences, 
interests, language, and developmental 
needs. The teacher utilizes appropriate 
adopted and supplementary instructional 
materials to address these needs. 


The teacher solicits students’ input for curriculum 
design which reflects their backgrounds, 
experiences, interests, and languages. Lessons 
challenge and extend students at their own 
physical, social, and academic developmental 
levels. 


Element 4.3: Establish and articulate student learning outcomes, consistent with State Standards. 
The teacher rarely establishes clear 
instructional learning outcomes, or aligns 
outcomes with standards. Expectations for 
students are usually low or unrealistic. 


The teacher sometimes articulates student 
learning outcomes and success criteria. 
Expectations for most students are generally high 
and realistic. 


The teacher clearly articulates short term 
and long-term student learning outcomes 
that are challenging and represent State 
Standards and success criteria. 
Expectations for students are generally high 
and realistic. 


The teacher consistently articulates how 
instructional activities are related to student 
learning outcomes, success criteria, and Standards. 
Expectations promote achievement by all students 
at high levels. 


Element 4.4: Sequence and use instructional time effectively. 
Pacing and time spent on learning activities 
is either rushed or too long. Transitions are 
rough or confusing, resulting in a loss of 
instructional time. 
There is rarely an effective opening or 
closing to the lessons. 


Instructional time is paced so that most students 
complete the learning activities. Transitions are 
used to move students into activities with little or 
no loss of instructional time. Lessons have a 
clear opening and closing. 


Pacing and the time spent on lesson are 
appropriate to the activities and enable all 
students to engage successfully with the 
content. Transitions are efficient and 
smooth. Students have time to complete 
learning activities. Lesson opening and 
closing effectively engage students in 
learning. 


Individual, weekly, unit, and long-term curriculum 
plans are paced so that all students have adequate 
time for learning, remain engaged, and have time 
for reflection and assessment. Beginning and 
closing activities make connections to previous 
make connections to previous and future learning. 


Element 4.5: Modify instructional plans to adjust for student needs. 
Instructional plans are rarely adapted or 
differentiated in spite of evidence that 
accommodations would improve student 
learning. 


The teacher sometimes adapts instructional plans 
to address aspects of the lesson that were 
ineffective and some of the individual learning 
needs of the students. 


The teacher adapts instruction to enhance 
student learning based on formal and 
informal assessment. The teacher uses 
strategies identified in pertinent assessment 
resources.(IEP, 504, Standardized Tests, 
etc.) 


The teacher adapts plans, and differentiates 
instruction, to ensure opportunities for all students 
to successfully participate in learning activities. 
Teacher revises plans and instructional practices 
based upon on-going assessment. 


 
  


739 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
Standard 5: Assessing Student Learning 


 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard Basic Proficient Distinguished 
Element 5.1: Establish and communicate learning outcomes for students. 
There are few or no student learning 
outcomes established or clearly 
communicated to students or families. 


The teacher establishes expected learning 
outcomes for students based on State Standards. 
Teacher communicates student learning 
outcomes and a clearly defined success criterion 
to all students and families. 


The teacher establishes student learning 
outcomes based on the State Standards. 
Teacher communicates the outcomes to 
students and their families, and revises them 
as needed. The success criteria   is aligned 
with the outcomes and relevant standards 
and clearly described to students and 
families. 


The teacher uses the State Standards to guide and 
modify specific student learning outcomes, 
ensuring that outcomes are appropriate to students’ 
developmental, language, or other special needs. 
The success criteria is designed to provide ongoing 
feedback on student progress toward achievement 
of outcomes and standards. 


Element 5.2: Use multiple sources of information to assess learning. 
The teacher does not regularly use 
appropriate data or strategies to monitor and 
assess student learning and achievements. 


The teacher regularly uses one or two 
appropriate sources of information and strategies 
to monitor student progress and assess student 
learning. 


The teacher uses a variety appropriate 
assessment strategies to monitor and assess 
student progress on an ongoing basis, 
including formative and summative 
assessment. Assessment strategies are 
aligned to State Standards. 


The teacher uses a wide variety of assessment 
strategies aligned with State Standards. The teacher 
uses student work to reflect upon and adapt 
assessment strategies and adapt instruction. 


Element 5.3: Involve and guide students in assessing their own learning. 
The teacher rarely provides opportunities 
for students to reflect on or assess their own 
work. 


The teacher encourages and guides student 
reflection during some learning activities. The 
teacher provides some opportunities for students 
to discuss and assess their work with peers. 


The teacher includes student reflection and 
self-assessment in most learning activities. 
The teacher has established success criteria, 
and teaches a variety of tools to help 
students assess and reflect upon their own 
work as well as discuss it with their peers. 


The teacher uses assessment to help students 
understand and articulate their learning process. 
S/he uses reflective tools which may include 
rubrics and portfolios that help students assess, 
monitor, and reflect upon their own work as well as 
discuss work with peers. 


Element 5.4: Use results of assessment to guide instruction. 
The teacher rarely uses results of assessment 
to plan, guide, or adjust Instruction. 


The teacher uses information from one or two 
assessment sources to plan learning activities, 
but not necessarily to adjust instruction during a 
lesson. 


The teacher uses information from more 
than two sources of assessment to plan and 
adapt learning activities as well as to adjust 
instruction during a lesson to meet class and 
individual needs. 


The teacher uses ongoing formal and informal 
assessments to guide planning and adjust 
instruction. Assessment data is used to address 
individual student needs. Teacher uses student 
information system frequently and fully utilizes 
student information system. 


Element 5.5: Communicate with students and families about progress. 
The teacher provides little or no information 
about student progress to students and their 
families, aside from report card grades.  
Teacher does not use student information 
system. 


The teacher provides information about student 
learning to students and families to promote 
understanding and academic progress. This 
information may be at the end of the grading 
period or in response to learning difficulties 
exhibited by the student minimally uses student 
information system. 


The teacher regularly provides all students 
with information about their learning 
including updated student information 
system. The teacher regularly exchanges 
information about student learning with 
students and families. This communication 
may occur as ongoing progress reports or 
reviews of student work regularly. 


The teacher provides all students, and their families 
with ongoing information about their progress 
towards learning outcomes and relevant Standards. 
Students and their families frequently communicate 
academic and social progress with the teacher, 
based on a variety of assessments. 


 


740 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


Standard 6: Developing as a Professional Educator 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard Basic Proficient Distinguished 
Element 6.1: Reflect upon teaching practices 
The teacher does not demonstrate reflection 
on his/her practices. The teacher does not 
make professional development growth 
plans based on analysis student information 
system of school priorities and 


The teacher reviews student work and examines 
the results of his/her teaching in relation to 
student achievement and performance. 
Professional development growth plans may not 
be related to the review teacher’s own practices 
or not reflect school priorities. 


The teacher reflects on student work and 
achievement in designing his/her 
professional growth plans. The Professional 
Growth Plan is related to the teacher’s 
instructional practices and content expertise 
and school priorities. 


The teacher assesses own growth over time by 
analyzing his/her practices related to student 
learning. The teacher makes Professional Growth 
Plans and decisions based on individual and 
collaborative reflection and analysis of student 
work and school priorities. 


Element 6.2: Work with families to foster collaboration and ensure student success. 
The teacher does not use families as a 
source of information about students, 
actively communicate with families, or 
involve them in opportunities for student 
learning. 


The teacher provides periodic communication to 
families about student learning and achievement. 
The teacher does not engage families in learning 
opportunities at school. 


The teacher engages families in two way 
communication as a source of information 
related to student needs in a timely manner. 


The teacher promotes interactions with families, 
and responds to their concerns about student 
progress in a timely manner. 


Element 6.3: Work with communities to foster collaboration and ensure student success. 
The teacher does not actively utilize or work 
with school or community services, 
businesses, agencies or universities to 
enhance student learning or improve his/her 
own professional knowledge. 


The teacher uses school or community services 
or agencies to provide support to students in 
identified areas. The teacher seeks greater 
understanding of students’ community and life 
experiences. 


The teacher uses a variety of school and 
community services to support student 
learning and personal areas of need. The 
teacher seeks greater understanding of 
student’s personal, cultural, language and 
learning strengths, and individual areas of 
need. 


The teacher promotes school/community 
collaboration. S/he identifies and uses community 
services and resources to benefit students and 
families. The teacher initiates the connectivity to 
the community to a variety of activities such as 
guest speakers, refer to services, and field 
experience. 


Element 6.4: Establish professional goals and pursue growth opportunities. 
The teacher does not engage in ongoing 
learning opportunities or participate in 
school or district professional development 
opportunities. 


The teacher participates in school-based and/or 
district offered professional development 
activities. The teacher may participate in 
professional growth opportunities through 
universities, professional organizations, or 
community agencies. 


The teacher participates in a variety of 
school and district professional 
development activities aligned with school 
priorities, and includes learning from these 
activities in her/his personal growth goals, 
in his/her lesion planning and in addressing 
the identified needs of students. 


The teacher establishes professional goals and 
pursues continuous professional growth. S/he 
refines skills and strategies, uses research, 
resources and engages in opportunities to improve 
practice such as coaching, peer support, job alike 
groups or mentoring to increase understanding of 
teaching and learning. 


Element 6.5: Work with colleagues to improve professional practice. 
The teacher rarely collaborates with 
colleagues in meeting to improve 
professional practice, or to implement 
school, department, or grade level activities. 


The teacher collaborates and actively works with 
colleagues in grade level and/or content areas to 
ensure that all students’ diverse learning needs 
are met. 


The teacher actively collaborates with 
colleagues in school-wide activities to 
promote student learning. S/he works with 
others to solve problems and address school 
goals and objectives. 


The teacher maintains positive relationships with 
others, takes leadership roles in the school, district 
or professional organizations. S/he actively seeks to 
solve problems, resolve conflicts, and advance 
common school goals. 


Element 6.6: Share in responsibility for implementing school expectations, priorities, policies, and procedures. 
The teacher does not meet basic 
professional expectations to follow 
procedures or participate in required teacher 
activities. 


The teacher participates in most schoolwide 
activities, meets basic professional expectations, 
and follows procedures and policies including 
timely record keeping, attendance, grading, and 
enforcement of school regulations. 


The teacher consistently participates in 
school-wide activities, follows policies and 
procedures, meets professional expectations 
including accurate reflection of student 
progress, and actively supports school 
expectations for students and staff. 


The teacher regularly exhibits leadership in support 
of school and student needs. The teacher models 
professional expectations including active 
contributions to school planning, and school 
programs. 


 


741 of 778







  
Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 


Goal-Setting “Method 1,2,3” 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
Professional Goals: For permanent employees, write three (3) professional goals.  Temporary, 
probationary, and permanent employees who received “Does Not Meet or Emerging” need to write 
six (6) goals (if you have less than six (6) professional standards/domains, write a goal for each of the 
standards/domains).  These goals are submitted to your primary evaluator at the Fall Planning Conference based on the 
standards/domains and relate to your reflection on the rubric.   
 
 


   
Name of Evaluatee School/Site Date 
 
 
Evaluator:    
 


 
1. This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                       , I plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
2. This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                      , I also plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
3. This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                      , I also plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
Conference Notes 
 


 
 
 
 


  
Evaluatee’s Signature Date Evaluator’s Signature Date 
 
(This signature will be considered an acknowledgement of outlining the goals for the             to               School Year.   


  


742 of 778







  
Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 


 


 
Goal-Setting “Method 1,2,3” 


 (continued)  
professional goals four to six 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
 
 


 
4.      This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                      , I plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
5.       This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                     , I also plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
6.      This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                     , I also plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
Conference Notes 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


  
Evaluatee’s Signature Date Evaluator’s Signature Date 
 
(This signature will be considered an acknowledgement of outlining the goals for the             to               School Year.   


743 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation                July 2018 


Project-Based Evaluation “Method 2”   
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
Planning Sheet for    


                      (name of unit member) 
 


Directions: Please complete the items below and have ready to present to your evaluator at your 
Fall Planning Conference.  Refer to the standards/domains and Goal-Setting sheet for guidance 
with your project. 
 
Project Title:  
Brief description of the 
purpose of the project: 
What project are you going to 
complete?  


 


What data or artifacts might 
you collect:    


 


Brief explanation of what you 
intend to do to achieve your 
goals: What do you hope to 
learn about your teaching or 
about student learning by 
completing your project? How 
will this advance your 
proficiencies? 


 


What is your timeline: 
What will you have done 
regarding your project by the 
December break? 


 


By the second Friday in 
April:  What project 
documentation will you be 
submitting to your evaluator 
before your Summative 
Conference? 
 


 


How will you measure 
success: 
In other words, how will you 
determine if the project has 
been worthwhile to you as you 
continue to develop your 
craft? 


 


 
 


                  
Evaluatee’s Signature Date      Evaluator’s Signature                Date 


744 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018  


 
Project-Based Evaluation Ideas “Method 2”  


Santa Cruz City Schools 
 


Video Recording: Video record two (2) teaching sessions, watch the recordings, and complete an observation 
form for each (included in Resource Appendix). Submit each observation form to evaluator once it is completed. 


 
Cross-Curricular Collaboration: Collaborate with a colleague in another department (secondary) or another grade level 
(elementary) to create a cross-curricular common project. Submit to evaluator a written description of the project, 
including purpose of collaboration, learning outcomes for students, key concepts taught from each content area, and a 
brief summary of the results of the student work collected during this project. 


 
Peer Mentoring: Mentor a year-one or year-two teacher by establishing a collegial relationship. Meet at least four times 
with the new teacher to review best teaching practices in the content area, such as use of common assessments, pacing 
guides, grading policies, and any other school-related responsibilities. After each meeting, submit to evaluator a brief 
written reflection on the process of mentoring. (This is self-reflection on the mentor’s professional growth as a teacher, 
NOT an evaluation of the new teacher’s performance. Reflect on the best practices that are shared with the new 
colleague.) 


 
Professional Research: Research an area of teaching or learning in the content area by attending a professional 
conference, or by reading articles in professional journals, or by reading a relevant book. Share your findings at a grade 
level team or department meeting and submit to evaluator a summary of your research (indicating how/where you 
obtained information) and the date you presented to your colleagues. 


 
Articulation: Work with a colleague who teaches students in the grade above or below (or the course preceding or 
following) the level you teach in order to improve the achievement of students in a subject area. Meet at least four times 
to compile a list of specific recommendations to share with other staff members. Share the recommendations at a 
department or grade level team meeting, and submit a copy of the recommendations and the date                     of your 
meeting to your evaluator. 


 
Curriculum Development: Assist your department or grade level team in curriculum development at your site. You may 
choose to work on items such as curriculum maps, pacing guides, unit development, common assessments, benchmarks, 
rubrics, project menus, or any other agreed upon curricular need. Create a useful product and share the product at a 
meeting with your department or grade level team. Submit to your evaluator a copy of your product and the date of the 
meeting where you shared your ideas with colleagues. 


 
Staff Development: Present two hours of staff development, at the site or district level, in an area of your professional 
expertise. The professional development sessions may be offered on a voluntary basis outside the school day. Submit 
your staff development plan and attendance sheets to evaluator. 


 
Portfolio: Create a portfolio of students’ work, organized in one of the following ways: 


 
• Document the growth of three of your students over the year. As you collect their work samples, reflect on 


what their work reveals about the learning in your classroom. Submit copies of the students’ work and a 
summary of your reflections. 


• Choose three assignments and sort the entire class’ work into three categories: “exceeds standards,” “meets 
standards,” and “does not meet standards.” Write a reflection after each assignment focusing on 
what the student work reveals about teaching and learning in your classroom. For each of the three assignments, 
submit a reflection and a sample range of students. 


• Provide a student work sample from three different projects over the year that demonstrate equity in meeting 
social and cultural needs of students or differentiation in instruction in order to meet different learning 
modalities. Submit each student work sample with a description of the project and how it addresses the goals of 
equity and/or differentiation, along with a reflection about the overall successes and/or challenges accompanying 
the project. 


 
Other: Create any other project-based evaluation plan and review your ideas with your evaluator for approval. 


745 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 
 


 Project-Based or Peer-Based Evaluation 
Final Reflection “Method 2, 3” 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
 


 


Directions: This final reflection sheet needs to be completed by the Second Friday in April. 
 
 


 
1. To reflect on your growth during this evaluation cycle, highlight your progress on your three 


selected goals from the fall.  
 


 
2. Describe your overall professional growth this year as a result of the evaluation cycle? 


 


 
 


 
 
3. How will you implement your learnings into your practice? 


 


 
 
 
4. How might you share or expand your project or what you learned as a result of a Peer-Based 


Evaluation to a department-wide or school-wide benefit? 
 


 


746 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 
 


 


 


Summative Evaluation –Classroom Teacher “Method 1, 2, 3” 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
METHOD OF EVALUATION: Administrative Evaluation “Method 1” 
 Project-Based Evaluation “Method 2” 
 Peer-Based Evaluation “Method 3” 
 
NAME         ASSIGNMENT                                         DATE       
 
SCHOOL/LOCATION   EVALUATOR     
 
CERTIFICATED STATUS (Check One): 
 


Permanent Temporary Probationary 1st Year 2nd Year  
 
 


1 = Practice Does Not Meet Standard  
2 = Practice Partially Emerging Standard  
3 = Practice Proficient  
4 = Practice Distinguished  


 
 


1 


 
 


2 


 
 


3 


 
 


4 
 


1. Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning      
 1.1 Using knowledge of students to engage them in learning. 


1.2 Connecting learning to students’ prior knowledge, backgrounds, life experiences, and interests. 
1.3 Connecting subject matter to meaningful, real-life contexts. 
1.4 Using a variety of instructional strategies, resources, and technologies to meet students’ diverse needs. 
1.5 Promoting critical thinking through inquiry, problem solving, and reflection. 
1.6 Monitoring student learning and adjusting instruction while teaching. 


 


2. Creating and Maintaining Effective Environments for Student Learning      
 2.1  Promoting social development and responsibility within a caring community. 


2.2  Creating physical or virtual learning environments that promote student learning. 
2.3  Establishing and maintaining learning environments that are safe. 
2.4  Creating a rigorous learning environment with high expectations and appropriate support. 
2.5  Developing, communicating, and maintaining high standards for individual and group behavior. 
2.6  Employing classroom routines, procedures, norms, and supports for positive behavior. 
2.7  Using instructional time to optimize learning. 


 


3. Understanding and Organizing Subject Matter for Student Learning      
 3.1 Demonstrating knowledge of subject matter, academic content standards, and curriculum frameworks. 


3.2 Applying knowledge of student development and proficiencies to ensure student understanding. 
3.3  Organizing curriculum to facilitate student understanding of the subject matter. 
3.4  Utilizing instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject matter. 
3.5 Using and adapting resources to make subject matter accessible to all students. 
3.6 Addressing the needs of English learners to provide equitable access to the content. 
3.7 Addressing the needs of students with special needs to provide equitable access to the content. 


 


4. Planning Instruction and Designing Learning Experiences for All Students      
 4.1 Using background knowledge of students to plan instruction. 


4.2 Establishing and articulating goals for students learning. 
4.3  Developing and sequencing instructional plans to support student learning. 
4.4 Planning instruction that incorporates appropriate strategies to meet the learning needs of all students. 
4.5 Adapting instructional plans and curricular materials to meet the assessed learning needs of students. 


 


5. Assessing Student Learning      
 5.1  Applying the knowledge of the purposes, characteristics, and uses of different types of assessments. 


5.2  Collecting and analyzing assessment data from a variety of sources to inform instruction. 
5.3 Reviewing data, both individually and with colleagues, to monitor student learning. 
5.4 Using assessment data to establish learning goals and to plan, differentiate, and modify instruction. 
5.5  Involving all students in self-assessment,  goal setting, and monitoring progress. 
5.6  Using available technologies to assist in assessment, analysis, and communication of student learning. 
5.7 Using assessment information to share timely and comprehensible feedback with students and families. 


 
 
 
 


747 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 
 


 


 


Narrative Summary Checklist –Classroom Teacher (continued) 
 


1 = Practice Does Not Meet Standard  
2 = Practice Partially Emerging Standard  
3 = Practice Proficient  
4 = Practice Distinguished  


 
 


1 


 
 


2 


 
 


3 


 
 


4 


 


6. Developing As a Professional Educator      
 6.1  Reflecting on teaching practice in support of student learning.     


6.2 Establishing professional goals and engaging in opportunities for professional growth.     
6.3 Collaborating with colleagues and the broader professional community to support professional growth.     
6.4  Working with families to support student learning     
6.5  Engaging local communities in support of the instructional program.     
6.6  Managing professional responsibilities to maintain motivation and commitment to all students.     
6.7  Demonstrating professional responsibility, integrity, and ethical conduct.     


 


NARRATIVE SUMMARY:  
1. Comments pertaining to progress toward professional goal(s). 
2. If any standard checked 1 “Does not meet Standard” or 2 “Emerging Standard”, specific recommendations for improvement for each area 


of need must be listed. 
3. Unit member with an overall rating below Proficient needs an Improvement Support Plan, aligned with the Summative Evaluations.  The 


improvement plan shall include suggestions for remediation in the specific areas of deficiency, recommended support through the upcoming 
evaluation cycle, and realistic timelines for improvement. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
EVIDENCE/DATA SUMMARY:  
 


 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
OVERALL EVALUATION RATING 
  


Does Not Meet Standards  
Emerging Standards  
Proficient  
Distinguished  


 
 
 
  


EVALUATEE SIGNATURE DATE EVALUATOR SIGNATURE DATE 
This signature will be considered an acknowledgement of having read and discussed this form, not an agreement with the content. Unit members who have an overall 
evaluation lower than “proficient” are encouraged to invite a GSCFT representative to the summary evaluation conference in order to create the required remediation 
plan. 


 


 


 


748 of 778







 
 


 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
 


Peer-Based Evaluation  
  


Method 3 Forms 
 
 


 


749 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   California Standards for the Teaching Profession                                     July 2018 


 


SCCS Teaching Rubric “Methods 1, 2, 3” 
 
Purpose and Use of the SCCS Teaching Rubric 


 


1. This document will be formally used as a reflective tool to demonstrate growth and used throughout the 
year.   


2. Use the rubric as a resource in reflecting on identifying effective teaching practices.  


3. Read through the Six Standards.  


4. Highlight where you think your performance level currently is for all six standards. 


5. Use the Rubric to guide your goal setting based on your self-assessment of each standard, professional 
growth goals, (i.e. where would I like to be on the rubric at the end of your evaluation?) 


6. You will use the Rubric twice during your evaluation cycle 


7. Reflection 1 will be completed and turned in prior to or at Fall Planning 


8. Reflection 2 will be completed and turned in prior to or at Summative Conference 
  


750 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   California Standards for the Teaching Profession                                     July 2018 


 
Overview of the California Standards for the Teaching Profession (as modified for use  in Santa Cruz City Schools) 


Standard 1: Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning 
Teachers… 
1.1 Connect students’ prior knowledge, life experience and interests with 


classroom learning. 


1.2 Use a variety of instructional strategies to respond to students’ diverse needs. 


1.3 Facilitate learning experiences that promote autonomy, interaction and choice. 


1.4 Engage students in problem solving, critical thinking and other 
activities that make subject matter meaningful. 


1.5 Promote self-directed, reflective learning of all students. 


Standard 4: Planning, Designing and Delivering Learning Experiences for All 
Students 
Teachers… 
4.1 Design long-term and individual lesson plans to foster and support 


student learning. 


4.2 Value students’ backgrounds, interests, languages, and 
developmental needs. 


4.3 Establish and articulate student learning outcomes, consistent with State 
Standards. 


4.4 Sequence and use instructional time effectively. 


4.5 Modify instructional plans to adjust for student needs. 


Standard 2: Creating and Maintaining an Effective Environment for 
Learning 
Teachers… 
2.1 Create a physical environment that engages all students. 


2.2 Establish a learning environment that promotes fairness and respect. 


2.3 Promote social development and group responsibility. 


2.4 Establish and maintain standards for student behavior. 


2.5 Plan and implement classroom procedures and routines that support student 
learning. 


Standard 5: Assessing Student Learning 
Teachers… 
5.1 Establish and communicate learning outcomes for students. 


5.2 Use multiple sources of information to assess learning. 


5.3 Involve and guide students in assessing their own learning. 


5.4 Use results of assessment to guide instruction. 


5.5 Communicate with students and families about progress. 


Standard 3: Understanding and Organizing Subject Matter 
Knowledge 
Teachers… 
3.1 Demonstrate knowledge of subject matter. 


3.2 Organize curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter 
based on State Standards and Core Curriculum. 


3.3 Interrelate ideas and information within and across subject matter areas. 


3.4 Develop student understanding through instructional strategies that are 
appropriate to the subject. 


3.5 Use materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matter 
accessible and engaging to students. 


Standard 6: Developing as a Professional Educator 
Teachers… 
6.1 Reflect on teaching practices. 


6.2 Work with families to foster collaboration and ensure student success. 


6.3 Work with communities to foster collaboration and ensure student 
success. 


6.4 Establish professional goals and pursue growth opportunities. 


6.5 Work with colleagues to improve professional practice. 


6.6 Share in responsibility for implementing school expectations, priorities, 
policies, and procedures. 


  


751 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
Standard 1: Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning 


  
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard  Proficient Distinguished 
Element 1.1: Connect students’ prior knowledge, life experience, and interests with classroom learning. 
The teacher makes few or no connections 
between the classroom learning and the 
students’ prior knowledge, experiences, 
backgrounds, and perspectives. The 
teacher rarely elicits relevant student 
questions or comments during a lesson. 


The teacher makes some connections between 
classroom learning and students’ prior 
knowledge, experiences, or interests. The teacher 
elicits some questions from students during a 
lesson to monitor their understanding. 


The teacher makes substantial connections 
between classroom learning and students’ 
prior knowledge, experiences, and interests. 
Teacher elicits students’ cultural, class, and 
ethnic perspectives, and uses students’ 
questions and comments during a lesson to 
extend their understanding. 


The teacher helps students make connections in 
classroom learning and their own prior knowledge 
and experiences. The teacher facilitates activities 
that focus on students’ interests, experiences and 
diverse individual perspectives. The teacher adjusts 
instruction to enhance student voice. 


Element 1.2: Use a variety of instructional strategies to respond to students’ diverse needs. 
The teacher uses instructional strategies, but 
they lack variety, and are sometimes 
inappropriate to the students’ learning 
needs. Few or no accommodations are made 
to respond to students’ individual needs. 


The teacher uses 2-3 alternate instructional 
strategies that are appropriate to address the 
students’ developmental needs, learning styles, 
and language needs. The teacher sometimes 
makes accommodations through scaffolding to 
respond to students’ individual needs. 


The teacher uses a variety of instructional 
strategies to effectively address the 
students’ developmental needs, learning 
styles, and language needs. The teacher 
consistently makes accommodations to 
respond to students’ individual needs 


The teacher engages students in a variety 
of learning experiences that accommodate different 
learning styles. Instructional strategies consistently 
address students’ diverse needs. Strategies include 
adaptations, accommodations and differentiations 
to meet students’ individual needs. Students 
identify optimal strategies for their learning. 


Element 1.3: Facilitate learning experiences that promote autonomy, interaction, and choice. 
The teacher directs the learning experiences, 
and student interactions are infrequent and 
limited. Student autonomy or choice is 
rarely encouraged. 


The teacher usually directs the learning 
experiences, although s/he permits some student 
interaction. The teacher sometimes encourages 
student independence or choice. 


The teacher facilitates the learning 
experiences to promote constructive student 
interactions, and to develop student 
decision-making responsibility through 
choices about learning, and the use of time 
and materials. 


The teacher uses a variety of collaborative 
structures to promote interaction and student 
leadership in support of learning. Students 
regularly work independently and collaboratively, 
and manage their learning, time and materials. 


Element 1.4: Engage students in problem solving, critical thinking, and other activities that make subject matter meaningful. 
The teacher provides few opportunities for 
students to problem solve, analyze, or 
investigate in lessons. Teacher encourages 
student questioning, but most are low order, 
fact based. 


The teacher models and encourages open ended, 
higher order questions, and provides 
opportunities for students to ask questions and 
solve problems within a subject, but seldom 
directly develops students’ questioning skills. 
Teachers and students ask higher order 
questions. 


The teacher regularly provides opportunities 
and support for students to engage in 
problem solving, and to explore diverse 
perspectives of concepts within a subject 
matter area. Students’ questions are higher 
order. Teacher scaffolds skill building for 
these activities. 


The teacher frequently engages students in problem 
solving and higher–order question posing, and the 
investigation and critical analysis of diverse 
perspectives of concepts within a subject area. 
Students identify and explore their own interests to 
extend understanding of content. 


Element 1.5: Promote self-directed, reflective learning in all students. 
The teacher provides few or no 
opportunities for students to initiate, make 
decisions about, or reflect upon their own 
learning. 


The teacher usually directs the learning activities 
and provides some choices for student learning. 
S/he monitors student learning, and provides 
some opportunities for students to reflect 
individually on their learning. 


The teacher supports students in developing 
the skills needed to monitor their own 
learning and make decisions during 
activities. Students use State Standards and 
other criteria to assess their learning and 
discuss it with peers.  


The teacher creates opportunities for all students to 
initiate their own learning and to monitor and 
describe their learning process and progress. 
Students use State Standards and other criteria to 
assess their own and their peers’ learning, and to 
set new learning and improvement goals. 


 
  


752 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
Standard 2: Creating and Maintaining an Effective Environment for Learning 


 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard  Proficient Distinguished 
Element 2.1: Create a physical environment that engages all students. 
The physical environment may have one or 
more safety hazards, and materials are 
difficult to access by students with special 
needs. There are few or no room displays 
and few or no student work products 
displayed. 


The physical environment is clean and arranged 
for safety and accessibility for all students in the 
classroom. It facilitates individual student 
engagement in learning and access to necessary 
instructional materials. The teacher creates room 
displays which include some student work and 
are related to current topics of study. 


The physical environment allows for group 
interaction and movement between 
activities, or different simultaneous 
activities. The teacher creates room 
displays, which contain key information, 
are used in learning activities and represent 
current topics of study. A variety of student 
work is regularly displayed and related to 
current topics of study. 


The physical environment reflects, promotes, and 
supports student learning and responsibility. The 
teacher manages materials, technology, and 
resources to accommodate individual student 
needs, and promote positive interactions. Students 
help create room displays used in learning activities 
that represent current study topics. A variety of 
student work is regularly displayed, related to 
current study topics, and represents all students. 


Element 2.2: Establish a climate that promotes fairness and respect. 
Teacher has not established a classroom 
environment that promotes fairness or 
respect with regard to race, class, culture, 
language, sexual orientation, religion, or 
gender. Teacher responses to student 
behaviors are often unfair, inconsistent, or 
inequitable. 


Teacher establishes a climate of caring, equity 
and respect. Teacher has developed relationships 
and rapport with students. The pattern of teacher 
response to students is usually fair, consistent, 
and equitable. Teacher acknowledges and shows 
respect for student race, class, sexual orientation, 
religion, culture, language, and/or gender. 


The teacher models and promotes fairness, 
caring, equity, and respect. Teacher 
acknowledges and shows respect for student 
race, class, sexual orientation, religion, 
culture, language, and/or gender. The 
teacher encourages students to take risks 
and be creative. 


The teacher actively responds to and respects 
diversity. S/he encourages, supports, and 
recognizes creativity, risk-taking and unique 
contributions of all. The teacher's response to 
student behavior also demonstrates flexibility and 
adaptations as needed. 


Element 2.3: Promote social development and group responsibility. 
The teacher does not actively support 
students’ social development, self-esteem, 
or diversity. Students have little or no sense 
of responsibility for one another. Teacher 
rarely provides opportunities for students to 
work collaboratively.  


Students respect each other’s differences most of 
the time and work together fairly well. The 
teacher provides some opportunities for students 
to assume individual responsibility. The teacher 
sometimes provides opportunities for students to 
work collaboratively. 


Students respect each other’s differences 
and points of view. The teacher regularly 
provides opportunities for students to work 
independently and collaboratively, and to 
take responsibility for themselves and their 
peers. 


The students effectively communicate and 
collaborate. Teacher helps students to develop and 
practice leadership skills, demonstrate 
responsibility, and to understand differences in 
experiences, feelings, and points of view. 


Element 2.4: Establish and maintain standards for student behavior. 
Few or no standards for behavior appear to 
have been established or enforced. The 
teacher's response to student behavior is 
consistently and often inappropriate. 


The teacher has established and consistently 
enforces standards for behavior that are aligned 
with the school and district standards. The 
patterns of teacher responses to student behavior 
are generally appropriate, if limited in variety. 


The teacher consistently models and 
maintains standards for behavior. The 
teacher's response to student behavior 
reflects a range of appropriate and effective 
responses. 


The teacher establishes/maintains opportunities for 
students to share in decision-making, establishment 
of rules and conflict resolution. Teacher's response 
to student behavior reflects students' developmental 
and personal needs. 


Element 2.5: Plan and implement classroom procedures and routines that support student learning. 
Classroom procedures and routines are not 
clearly established or effectively enforced, 
resulting in teacher and student confusion 
and loss of instructional time. Teacher 
rarely monitors or holds students 
accountable for being ready and on task. 


Classroom and routines work moderately well. 
Teacher periodically clarifies or reinforces a 
procedure or timeline, with little loss of 
instructional time. Teacher sometimes monitors 
student readiness and time on task.  


Procedures and routines work smoothly. 
Students can explain and follow classroom 
procedures and routines with no loss of 
instructional time. Students understand and 
follow directions with no loss of 
instructional time. Teacher holds all 
students accountable for time on task. 


The teacher implements reasonable and flexible 
schedules and routines that promote student self-
sufficiency. S/he adapts procedures and rules to 
support student learning. 


      
753 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
 Standard 3: Understanding and Organizing Subject Matter Knowledge 


 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard  Proficient Distinguished 
Element 3.1: Demonstrate knowledge of subject matter. 
The teacher’s lack of knowledge of subject 
matter is frequently evident. Student 
learning outcomes are rarely evident, or 
rarely linked to subject knowledge 


The teacher has a clear, basic knowledge of 
subject matter and understands which skills and 
key concepts to teach. The teacher sometimes 
makes direct connections between subject 
knowledge and expected student outcomes. 


The teacher’s knowledge of subject matter 
has breadth and depth and incorporates key 
concepts and different perspectives. Teacher 
consistently and directly connects subject 
knowledge to student learning outcomes. 


Teacher knowledge of content has depth, is current 
and consistently incorporates key concepts, themes, 
connections, and student learning outcomes. 
Teacher actively has students address a variety of 
perspectives in demonstrating depth of knowledge. 


Element 3.2: Organize curriculum to support student understanding of subject matter based on the State Standards. 
The teacher rarely organizes the curriculum 
or incorporates key concepts, themes or 
skills; curriculum is often not directly 
connected to the State Standards. 
Teacher may not encourage students to 
think critically. 


The teacher organizes and designs curriculum 
based on essential, grade level appropriate State 
Standards, which results in students 
demonstrating understanding of key concepts 
within those standards. The teacher encourages 
critical thinking about standards. 


The teacher clearly organizes State 
Standards. The curriculum design clearly 
focuses on key themes and concepts and 
facilities standards based achievement. 
Teacher frequently engages students in 
critical thinking about standards. 


The teacher builds curriculum that is 
developmental, demonstrates depth, and connects 
various concepts and themes. The State Standards 
are used to plan and adapt instruction, creating 
specific outcomes for all students, which include 
demonstrating critical and higher order thinking 
about the subject matter.  


Element 3.3: Interrelate ideas and information within and across subject matter areas. 
The teacher rarely identifies or integrates 
key concepts and information when 
presenting curriculum. S/he rarely relates 
content to previous learning to enhance 
understanding. 


The teacher usually identifies and connects the 
key concepts within the content being taught. 
S/he sometimes relates content to previous or 
future learning, other subject areas, and students’ 
needs and experiences. 


The teacher identifies and integrates for 
students the key concepts and information 
within the State Standards, routinely makes 
connections to other subjects and routinely 
relates content to students’ lives, previous 
and future learning. 


The teacher routinely uses strategies and activities 
that integrate concepts and information within and 
across subject areas and Standards. S/he challenges 
students to make their own connections and extend 
and apply knowledge. 


Element 3.4: Develop student understanding through instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject. 
Instructional strategies are rarely matched 
appropriately to subject matter content or 
concepts and may not encourage students to 
think critically or engage with the content. 


The teacher uses at least one appropriate 
instructional strategy from a larger repertoire to 
make content accessible to students. S/he 
encourages students to think critically and to 
extend their knowledge of the subject matter by 
engaging with the content. 


The teacher uses a variety of appropriate 
instructional strategies to make content 
accessible to students and develop 
understanding. S/he challenges and supports 
students to think critically and to extend 
their knowledge and engagement of subject 
matter. 


The teacher selects from a wide variety of 
appropriate instructional strategies to address 
individual learning styles and needs so all students 
understand. S/he challenges and supports students 
to construct their own knowledge, think critically, 
and see relationships. 


Element 3.5: Use materials, resources, and technologies to make subject matter accessible and engaging to students. 
Instructional materials, resources and 
technologies are either not adequately used, 
or may be inaccessible to some students. 
Teacher makes little effort to locate 
supplementary materials, to reflect diverse 
perspectives or to relate to cultural or 
linguistic backgrounds of students. 


The teacher sometimes uses varied instructional 
materials, resources, and technologies to convey 
key subject matter concepts, and sometimes 
provides opportunities for student use. Teacher 
locates or adapts some supplementary materials 
to reflect diverse perspectives, or to relate to 
cultural and linguistic backgrounds of students. 


The teacher consistently uses varied 
instructional materials, resources, and 
technologies, including adaptive 
technologies if needed, to promote students’ 
understanding of core content and 
standards. A rich variety of resources is 
consistently available to students and 
reflects diverse perspectives, experiences, 
and cultural and linguistic needs of 
students.  


The teacher selects and uses a variety of 
instructional resources to organize curriculum, 
address learning styles, and promote student 
understanding. Students can independently access a 
variety of materials, resources, and technologies 
that reflect the diversity of the classroom and 
support students’ learning needs and styles. 


 
  


754 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
 Standard 4: Planning, Designing and Delivering Learning Experiences for All Students 


 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard  Proficient Distinguished 
Element 4.1: Design long-term and individual lesson plans to foster and support student learning. 
Individual lesson plans rarely have effective 
structure or often lack some elements 
necessary for student learning. They rarely 
relate to a continuum of learning outcomes 
in a unit or long-range plan or make 
connections to other learning or content 
areas. 


Individual lesson plans have a structure with 
pertinent lesson plan elements that will develop 
students’ conceptual understanding and 
application of content knowledge. They fit 
within a unit or long-range context. Provision for 
review and assessment may be inconsistently 
evident. 


Individual lesson plans have all pertinent 
components, are well sequenced, and build 
upon previous learning to promote 
understanding of content area concepts, and 
provide review and assessment. Long-term 
plans are organized, coherent, and 
developmental 


Individual, weekly, unit, and long-term curriculum 
plans are organized, developmental in nature, and 
provide for review and assessment. They include 
differentiated opportunities for all students to 
access challenging and diverse content and apply 
learning in a variety of contexts. 


Element 4.2: Value students’ backgrounds, interests, languages, and developmental needs. 
The teacher’s instructional plans show 
limited reflection of students’ backgrounds, 
experiences, interests, and developmental 
needs. 


The teacher’s lesson design uses information 
about students’ backgrounds, experiences, 
language, and developmental needs. 


The teacher’s lesson design and 
instructional strategies consistently reflect 
students, backgrounds, experiences, 
interests, language, and developmental 
needs. The teacher utilizes appropriate 
adopted and supplementary instructional 
materials to address these needs. 


The teacher solicits students’ input for curriculum 
design which reflects their backgrounds, 
experiences, interests, and languages. Lessons 
challenge and extend students at their own 
physical, social, and academic developmental 
levels. 


Element 4.3: Establish and articulate student learning outcomes, consistent with State Standards. 
The teacher rarely establishes clear 
instructional learning outcomes, or aligns 
outcomes with standards. Expectations for 
students are usually low or unrealistic. 


The teacher sometimes articulates student 
learning outcomes and success criteria. 
Expectations for most students are generally high 
and realistic. 


The teacher clearly articulates short term 
and long-term student learning outcomes 
that are challenging and represent State 
Standards and success criteria. 
Expectations for students are generally high 
and realistic. 


The teacher consistently articulates how 
instructional activities are related to student 
learning outcomes, success criteria, and Standards. 
Expectations promote achievement by all students 
at high levels. 


Element 4.4: Sequence and use instructional time effectively. 
Pacing and time spent on learning activities 
is either rushed or too long. Transitions are 
rough or confusing, resulting in a loss of 
instructional time. 
There is rarely an effective opening or 
closing to the lessons. 


Instructional time is paced so that most students 
complete the learning activities. Transitions are 
used to move students into activities with little or 
no loss of instructional time. Lessons have a 
clear opening and closing. 


Pacing and the time spent on lesson are 
appropriate to the activities and enable all 
students to engage successfully with the 
content. Transitions are efficient and 
smooth. Students have time to complete 
learning activities. Lesson opening and 
closing effectively engage students in 
learning. 


Individual, weekly, unit, and long-term curriculum 
plans are paced so that all students have adequate 
time for learning, remain engaged, and have time 
for reflection and assessment. Beginning and 
closing activities make connections to previous 
make connections to previous and future learning. 


Element 4.5: Modify instructional plans to adjust for student needs. 
Instructional plans are rarely adapted or 
differentiated in spite of evidence that 
accommodations would improve student 
learning. 


The teacher sometimes adapts instructional plans 
to address aspects of the lesson that were 
ineffective and some of the individual learning 
needs of the students. 


The teacher adapts instruction to enhance 
student learning based on formal and 
informal assessment. The teacher uses 
strategies identified in pertinent assessment 
resources.(IEP, 504, Standardized Tests, 
etc.) 


The teacher adapts plans, and differentiates 
instruction, to ensure opportunities for all students 
to successfully participate in learning activities. 
Teacher revises plans and instructional practices 
based upon on-going assessment. 


 
  


755 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


 
Standard 5: Assessing Student Learning 


 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard Basic Proficient Distinguished 
Element 5.1: Establish and communicate learning outcomes for students. 
There are few or no student learning 
outcomes established or clearly 
communicated to students or families. 


The teacher establishes expected learning 
outcomes for students based on State Standards. 
Teacher communicates student learning 
outcomes and a clearly defined success criterion 
to all students and families. 


The teacher establishes student learning 
outcomes based on the State Standards. 
Teacher communicates the outcomes to 
students and their families, and revises them 
as needed. The success criteria   is aligned 
with the outcomes and relevant standards 
and clearly described to students and 
families. 


The teacher uses the State Standards to guide and 
modify specific student learning outcomes, 
ensuring that outcomes are appropriate to students’ 
developmental, language, or other special needs. 
The success criteria is designed to provide ongoing 
feedback on student progress toward achievement 
of outcomes and standards. 


Element 5.2: Use multiple sources of information to assess learning. 
The teacher does not regularly use 
appropriate data or strategies to monitor and 
assess student learning and achievements. 


The teacher regularly uses one or two 
appropriate sources of information and strategies 
to monitor student progress and assess student 
learning. 


The teacher uses a variety appropriate 
assessment strategies to monitor and assess 
student progress on an ongoing basis, 
including formative and summative 
assessment. Assessment strategies are 
aligned to State Standards. 


The teacher uses a wide variety of assessment 
strategies aligned with State Standards. The teacher 
uses student work to reflect upon and adapt 
assessment strategies and adapt instruction. 


Element 5.3: Involve and guide students in assessing their own learning. 
The teacher rarely provides opportunities 
for students to reflect on or assess their own 
work. 


The teacher encourages and guides student 
reflection during some learning activities. The 
teacher provides some opportunities for students 
to discuss and assess their work with peers. 


The teacher includes student reflection and 
self-assessment in most learning activities. 
The teacher has established success criteria, 
and teaches a variety of tools to help 
students assess and reflect upon their own 
work as well as discuss it with their peers. 


The teacher uses assessment to help students 
understand and articulate their learning process. 
S/he uses reflective tools which may include 
rubrics and portfolios that help students assess, 
monitor, and reflect upon their own work as well as 
discuss work with peers. 


Element 5.4: Use results of assessment to guide instruction. 
The teacher rarely uses results of assessment 
to plan, guide, or adjust Instruction. 


The teacher uses information from one or two 
assessment sources to plan learning activities, 
but not necessarily to adjust instruction during a 
lesson. 


The teacher uses information from more 
than two sources of assessment to plan and 
adapt learning activities as well as to adjust 
instruction during a lesson to meet class and 
individual needs. 


The teacher uses ongoing formal and informal 
assessments to guide planning and adjust 
instruction. Assessment data is used to address 
individual student needs. Teacher uses student 
information system frequently and fully utilizes 
student information system. 


Element 5.5: Communicate with students and families about progress. 
The teacher provides little or no information 
about student progress to students and their 
families, aside from report card grades.  
Teacher does not use student information 
system. 


The teacher provides information about student 
learning to students and families to promote 
understanding and academic progress. This 
information may be at the end of the grading 
period or in response to learning difficulties 
exhibited by the student minimally uses student 
information system. 


The teacher regularly provides all students 
with information about their learning 
including updated student information 
system. The teacher regularly exchanges 
information about student learning with 
students and families. This communication 
may occur as ongoing progress reports or 
reviews of student work regularly. 


The teacher provides all students, and their families 
with ongoing information about their progress 
towards learning outcomes and relevant Standards. 
Students and their families frequently communicate 
academic and social progress with the teacher, 
based on a variety of assessments. 


 


756 of 778







 Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation   July 2018 Reflection 1 __________         Reflection 2 __________ 


Standard 6: Developing as a Professional Educator 
 


Does Not Meet Standard Emerging Standard Basic Proficient Distinguished 
Element 6.1: Reflect upon teaching practices 
The teacher does not demonstrate reflection 
on his/her practices. The teacher does not 
make professional development growth 
plans based on analysis student information 
system of school priorities and 


The teacher reviews student work and examines 
the results of his/her teaching in relation to 
student achievement and performance. 
Professional development growth plans may not 
be related to the review teacher’s own practices 
or not reflect school priorities. 


The teacher reflects on student work and 
achievement in designing his/her 
professional growth plans. The Professional 
Growth Plan is related to the teacher’s 
instructional practices and content expertise 
and school priorities. 


The teacher assesses own growth over time by 
analyzing his/her practices related to student 
learning. The teacher makes Professional Growth 
Plans and decisions based on individual and 
collaborative reflection and analysis of student 
work and school priorities. 


Element 6.2: Work with families to foster collaboration and ensure student success. 
The teacher does not use families as a 
source of information about students, 
actively communicate with families, or 
involve them in opportunities for student 
learning. 


The teacher provides periodic communication to 
families about student learning and achievement. 
The teacher does not engage families in learning 
opportunities at school. 


The teacher engages families in two way 
communication as a source of information 
related to student needs in a timely manner. 


The teacher promotes interactions with families, 
and responds to their concerns about student 
progress in a timely manner. 


Element 6.3: Work with communities to foster collaboration and ensure student success. 
The teacher does not actively utilize or work 
with school or community services, 
businesses, agencies or universities to 
enhance student learning or improve his/her 
own professional knowledge. 


The teacher uses school or community services 
or agencies to provide support to students in 
identified areas. The teacher seeks greater 
understanding of students’ community and life 
experiences. 


The teacher uses a variety of school and 
community services to support student 
learning and personal areas of need. The 
teacher seeks greater understanding of 
student’s personal, cultural, language and 
learning strengths, and individual areas of 
need. 


The teacher promotes school/community 
collaboration. S/he identifies and uses community 
services and resources to benefit students and 
families. The teacher initiates the connectivity to 
the community to a variety of activities such as 
guest speakers, refer to services, and field 
experience. 


Element 6.4: Establish professional goals and pursue growth opportunities. 
The teacher does not engage in ongoing 
learning opportunities or participate in 
school or district professional development 
opportunities. 


The teacher participates in school-based and/or 
district offered professional development 
activities. The teacher may participate in 
professional growth opportunities through 
universities, professional organizations, or 
community agencies. 


The teacher participates in a variety of 
school and district professional 
development activities aligned with school 
priorities, and includes learning from these 
activities in her/his personal growth goals, 
in his/her lesion planning and in addressing 
the identified needs of students. 


The teacher establishes professional goals and 
pursues continuous professional growth. S/he 
refines skills and strategies, uses research, 
resources and engages in opportunities to improve 
practice such as coaching, peer support, job alike 
groups or mentoring to increase understanding of 
teaching and learning. 


Element 6.5: Work with colleagues to improve professional practice. 
The teacher rarely collaborates with 
colleagues in meeting to improve 
professional practice, or to implement 
school, department, or grade level activities. 


The teacher collaborates and actively works with 
colleagues in grade level and/or content areas to 
ensure that all students’ diverse learning needs 
are met. 


The teacher actively collaborates with 
colleagues in school-wide activities to 
promote student learning. S/he works with 
others to solve problems and address school 
goals and objectives. 


The teacher maintains positive relationships with 
others, takes leadership roles in the school, district 
or professional organizations. S/he actively seeks to 
solve problems, resolve conflicts, and advance 
common school goals. 


Element 6.6: Share in responsibility for implementing school expectations, priorities, policies, and procedures. 
The teacher does not meet basic 
professional expectations to follow 
procedures or participate in required teacher 
activities. 


The teacher participates in most schoolwide 
activities, meets basic professional expectations, 
and follows procedures and policies including 
timely record keeping, attendance, grading, and 
enforcement of school regulations. 


The teacher consistently participates in 
school-wide activities, follows policies and 
procedures, meets professional expectations 
including accurate reflection of student 
progress, and actively supports school 
expectations for students and staff. 


The teacher regularly exhibits leadership in support 
of school and student needs. The teacher models 
professional expectations including active 
contributions to school planning, and school 
programs. 


 


757 of 778







  
Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 


Goal-Setting “Method 1,2,3” 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
Professional Goals: For permanent employees, write three (3) professional goals.  Temporary, 
probationary, and permanent employees who received “Does Not Meet or Emerging” need to write 
six (6) goals (if you have less than six (6) professional standards/domains, write a goal for each of the 
standards/domains).  These goals are submitted to your primary evaluator at the Fall Planning Conference based on the 
standards/domains and relate to your reflection on the rubric.   
 
 


   
Name of Evaluatee School/Site Date 
 
 
Evaluator:    
 


 
1. This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                       , I plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
2. This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                      , I also plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
3. This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                      , I also plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
Conference Notes 
 


 
 
 
 


  
Evaluatee’s Signature Date Evaluator’s Signature Date 
 
(This signature will be considered an acknowledgement of outlining the goals for the             to               School Year.   


  


758 of 778







  
Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 


 


 
Goal-Setting “Method 1,2,3” 


 (continued)  
professional goals four to six 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
 
 


 
4.      This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                      , I plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
5.       This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                     , I also plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
6.      This year, aligned with Standard/Domian                     , I also plan to  


 
 


Professional growth will be measured by (data, student work, student assessment, other evidence, etc) 
 
 


Desired impact on student learning: 
 
 
 


 
Conference Notes 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


  
Evaluatee’s Signature Date Evaluator’s Signature Date 
 
(This signature will be considered an acknowledgement of outlining the goals for the             to               School Year.   


759 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 


Peer-Based Evaluation – Planning Sheet “Method 3” 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
Planning Sheet for    


                       


(name of unit member) 
 


Directions: Please complete the items below and submit to your evaluator by September 15. Your 
evaluator will set up periodic meetings to review your progress on your Peer-Based Evaluation sheet. 


 
Partner: 


Department or Grade Level: 


Brief description for choosing 
this method: 
What do you hope to learn about 
your teaching or about student 
learning? How will this advance 
your proficiencies? 


 


Observation: What practices do you 
plan to observe closely?  Have you 
and your partner identified 
Standards/Domains to focus on 
during your observation?  


 


What is your timeline: 
• Anticipated Pre/Post 


Observation dates? 
• Anticipated Observation dates? 
• Will you need coverage for your 


class?  If so, have you discussed 
this with your evaluator? 


 


 
 


                  
Evaluatee’s Signature Date        Evaluator’s Signature                                Date 


  


760 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 


Peer-Based Observation Form “Method 3” 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


   


Name of Unit Member 
being observed School/Site Date 


 


Grade level:               Subject:                                          Time:  to   # of Students:              
 
 


Observer:    
 


This form should be used to for observations for Peer-Based - Method 3  


Student learning goal(s) and success criteria 


Observations 
 


Learnings from observations 
 
 
 


Follow up Items for post conference 
 


 
 
 


 


761 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 


Post Observation Meeting Notes “Method 3” 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 


   


Name of Unit Member  
being observed School/Site Date 


 


Grade level:               Subject:                                          Time:  to   # of Students:              
 
 


Observer:    
 


This form should be used to for observations for Peer-Based - Method 3  


Items We Discussed 


Learning to Apply Them to Classroom 
 


Next Steps 
 
 
 


 


                  
 


Evaluatee’s Signature Date Evaluator’s Signature                Date 


(This signature will be considered an acknowledgement of having read and discussed this form, not an agreement or disagreement with the 
content.) 


762 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 
 


 


 


Summative Evaluation –Classroom Teacher “Method 1, 2, 3” 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
METHOD OF EVALUATION: Administrative Evaluation “Method 1” 
 Project-Based Evaluation “Method 2” 
 Peer-Based Evaluation “Method 3” 
 
NAME         ASSIGNMENT                                         DATE       
 
SCHOOL/LOCATION   EVALUATOR     
 
CERTIFICATED STATUS (Check One): 
 


Permanent Temporary Probationary 1st Year 2nd Year  
 
 


1 = Practice Does Not Meet Standard  
2 = Practice Partially Emerging Standard  
3 = Practice Proficient  
4 = Practice Distinguished  


 
 


1 


 
 


2 


 
 


3 


 
 


4 
 


1. Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning      
 1.1 Using knowledge of students to engage them in learning. 


1.2 Connecting learning to students’ prior knowledge, backgrounds, life experiences, and interests. 
1.3 Connecting subject matter to meaningful, real-life contexts. 
1.4 Using a variety of instructional strategies, resources, and technologies to meet students’ diverse needs. 
1.5 Promoting critical thinking through inquiry, problem solving, and reflection. 
1.6 Monitoring student learning and adjusting instruction while teaching. 


 


2. Creating and Maintaining Effective Environments for Student Learning      
 2.1  Promoting social development and responsibility within a caring community. 


2.2  Creating physical or virtual learning environments that promote student learning. 
2.3  Establishing and maintaining learning environments that are safe. 
2.4  Creating a rigorous learning environment with high expectations and appropriate support. 
2.5  Developing, communicating, and maintaining high standards for individual and group behavior. 
2.6  Employing classroom routines, procedures, norms, and supports for positive behavior. 
2.7  Using instructional time to optimize learning. 


 


3. Understanding and Organizing Subject Matter for Student Learning      
 3.1 Demonstrating knowledge of subject matter, academic content standards, and curriculum frameworks. 


3.2 Applying knowledge of student development and proficiencies to ensure student understanding. 
3.3  Organizing curriculum to facilitate student understanding of the subject matter. 
3.4  Utilizing instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject matter. 
3.5 Using and adapting resources to make subject matter accessible to all students. 
3.6 Addressing the needs of English learners to provide equitable access to the content. 
3.7 Addressing the needs of students with special needs to provide equitable access to the content. 


 


4. Planning Instruction and Designing Learning Experiences for All Students      
 4.1 Using background knowledge of students to plan instruction. 


4.2 Establishing and articulating goals for students learning. 
4.3  Developing and sequencing instructional plans to support student learning. 
4.4 Planning instruction that incorporates appropriate strategies to meet the learning needs of all students. 
4.5 Adapting instructional plans and curricular materials to meet the assessed learning needs of students. 


 


5. Assessing Student Learning      
 5.1  Applying the knowledge of the purposes, characteristics, and uses of different types of assessments. 


5.2  Collecting and analyzing assessment data from a variety of sources to inform instruction. 
5.3 Reviewing data, both individually and with colleagues, to monitor student learning. 
5.4 Using assessment data to establish learning goals and to plan, differentiate, and modify instruction. 
5.5  Involving all students in self-assessment,  goal setting, and monitoring progress. 
5.6  Using available technologies to assist in assessment, analysis, and communication of student learning. 
5.7 Using assessment information to share timely and comprehensible feedback with students and families. 


 
 
 
 


763 of 778







 


Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 
 


 


 


Narrative Summary Checklist –Classroom Teacher (continued) 
 


1 = Practice Does Not Meet Standard  
2 = Practice Partially Emerging Standard  
3 = Practice Proficient  
4 = Practice Distinguished  


 
 


1 


 
 


2 


 
 


3 


 
 


4 


 


6. Developing As a Professional Educator      
 6.1  Reflecting on teaching practice in support of student learning.     


6.2 Establishing professional goals and engaging in opportunities for professional growth.     
6.3 Collaborating with colleagues and the broader professional community to support professional growth.     
6.4  Working with families to support student learning     
6.5  Engaging local communities in support of the instructional program.     
6.6  Managing professional responsibilities to maintain motivation and commitment to all students.     
6.7  Demonstrating professional responsibility, integrity, and ethical conduct.     


 


NARRATIVE SUMMARY:  
1. Comments pertaining to progress toward professional goal(s). 
2. If any standard checked 1 “Does not meet Standard” or 2 “Emerging Standard”, specific recommendations for improvement for each area 


of need must be listed. 
3. Unit member with an overall rating below Proficient needs an Improvement Support Plan, aligned with the Summative Evaluations.  The 


improvement plan shall include suggestions for remediation in the specific areas of deficiency, recommended support through the upcoming 
evaluation cycle, and realistic timelines for improvement. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
EVIDENCE/DATA SUMMARY:  
 


 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
OVERALL EVALUATION RATING 
  


Does Not Meet Standards  
Emerging Standards  
Proficient  
Distinguished  


 
 
 
  


EVALUATEE SIGNATURE DATE EVALUATOR SIGNATURE DATE 
This signature will be considered an acknowledgement of having read and discussed this form, not an agreement with the content. Unit members who have an overall 
evaluation lower than “proficient” are encouraged to invite a GSCFT representative to the summary evaluation conference in order to create the required remediation 
plan. 


 


 


 


764 of 778







Santa Cruz City Schools Certificated Evaluation  July 2018 
 


 Project-Based or Peer-Based Evaluation 
Final Reflection “Method 2, 3” 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
 


 


Directions: This final reflection sheet needs to be completed by the Second Friday in April. 
 
 


 
1. To reflect on your growth during this evaluation cycle, highlight your progress on your three 


selected goals from the fall.  
 


 
2. Describe your overall professional growth this year as a result of the evaluation cycle? 


 


 
 


 
 
3. How will you implement your learnings into your practice? 


 


 
 
 
4. How might you share or expand your project or what you learned as a result of a Peer-Based 


Evaluation to a department-wide or school-wide benefit? 
 


 


765 of 778







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.5 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


AGENDA ITEM: Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators 


MEETING DATE: June 20, 2018 


FROM:  Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education adopt the annual Declaration of Need for 
Fully Qualified Educators as submitted.  This comes on an annual basis as a California 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CCTC) requirement to allow for credentialing flexibility 
for both elementary and secondary schools.  The estimated numbers needed listed here are 
not necessarily a determinant of current need but an educated guess to cover all areas of 
potential need. 


BACKGROUND: 
Beginning July 1, 1994, any public school district wishing to employ individuals on emergency 
permits or limited assignment permits must file a Declaration of Need with the CCTC on an 
annual basis.  Under the guidelines established, this Declaration of Need must be presented to 
the Governing Board at a regularly scheduled public meeting of that Board and it may not be 
presented as part of a consent calendar. 


It should be noted that the Estimated Number Needed (of emergency permits and limited 
assignment permits) refers to the number of emergency permits and limited assignment 
permits that may be applied for, not FTE.  A properly credentialed teacher may agree to an 
assignment which requires a limited assignment permit as part of their full time position (e.g.: 
60% taught in credentialed area and a 40% taught in an area requiring an emergency permit).  
This is not the District’s preferred practice.  SCCS will adhere to NCLB requirements as well as 
Williams’ compliance, but in the rare circumstance that the above situation occurs, the District 
needs this flexibility as an option for compliance.  Adoption of the attached Declaration of 
Need will allow us to continue to offer employment to those candidates we feel are the most 
qualified for the position.  (Emergency credentials cannot be issued without substantial course 
work in the area of the credential.) 


Fiscal Impact:  None 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


767 of 778







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.5 


Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 


Goal #2:  SCCS students will be motivated learners who leave our system as well-rounded 
citizens with a broad spectrum of interests and abilities 


Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 


Prepared by Desiree Dominguez, Human Resources Manager 


768 of 778







769 of 778







770 of 778







771 of 778







This page has been left blank







773 of 778







774 of 778







775 of 778







This page has been left blank







 
   AGENDA ITEM 8.5.4.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting Agendas 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the May 23, 2018 Governance Session, the Board of Education agreed that each board 
meeting agenda would include an opportunity for discussion of future agenda items.  
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 


community. 
 
 


777 of 778







This page has been left blank





		Agenda 6-20-18 FINAL

		Cover - Item 8.1.1- Certificated Personnel Actions

		Attachment - Item 8.1.1 - Certificated Personnel Actions.doc

		Cover - Item 8.1.2- Classified Personnel Actions

		Classified Personnel Actions Report

		vendor warrants cover

		Vendor warrants list

		Budget Transfers cover

		Budget Transfers May 2018 list

		surplus cover

		Surplus Student Sv audio vision equip

		Surplus Ad Ed office furniture.doc

		Cvr CSA Carolyn Post 2018-19

		CSA Carolyn Post 2018-19

		Cvr Boardvantage Electronic Board Book Program

		Santa Cruz City Schools_Nasdaq Boardvantage Proposal_060118

		Russell Williamson CSA bus driver trainer cover

		CSA Russell Williamson bus driver trainer

		Rosetta Stone Contract Board Cover

		Rosetta Stone 1819 contract

		Mural Matching Grant Agreement Update Cover

		Mural Contract for Bay View Elementary

		Cvr Cabinet Member Contracts Approval 6.20.18

		ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT.MUNRO.6.20.18

		ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT - Gaffney

		ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT - Parks

		Employment Agreement - Coito

		CVR Kleinfelder Proposal B40SS Classroom Buildings

		Kleinfelder Proposal B40SS Classroom Buildings

		1 - SAL18P79330 - Branciforte Geotech Geohaz Proposal_Santa Cruz City Schools_2 Bldgs

		2 - 18-0529 -New CTE and AFE_Proposed boring locations

		Sheets

		1 - SITE PLAN

		2 - FLOOR PLAN





		3 - WO

		CVR CenCon Change Order1 SQH Marquee

		CenCon Change Order1 SQH Marquee

		CVR 2018-19 LCAP Approval

		2018 SCCS LCAP.Final

		Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template

		2017-20 Plan Summary

		The Story

		LCAP Highlights

		Review of Performance

		Greatest Progress

		Greatest Needs

		Performance Gaps

		Increased or Improved services



		Budget Summary



		Annual Update

		Goal 1

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Analysis



		Annual Update

		Goal 2

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Analysis



		Annual Update

		Goal 3

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Analysis



		Annual Update

		Goal 4

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Analysis



		Annual Update

		Goal 5

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Analysis



		Annual Update

		Goal 6

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Analysis



		Stakeholder Engagement

		Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update

		Impact on LCAP and Annual Update



		Goals, Actions, & Services

		Goal 1

		State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

		Identified Need:

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions / Services



		Goals, Actions, & Services

		Goal 2

		State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

		Identified Need:

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions / Services



		Goals, Actions, & Services

		Goal 3

		State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

		Identified Need:

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions / Services



		Goals, Actions, & Services

		Goal 4

		State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

		Identified Need:

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions / Services



		Goals, Actions, & Services

		Goal 5

		State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

		Identified Need:

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions / Services



		Goals, Actions, & Services

		Goal 6

		State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

		Identified Need:

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions / Services



		Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils

		Addendum

		Instructions: Linked Table of Contents

		Plan Summary

		Budget Summary



		Annual Update

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions/Services

		Analysis



		Stakeholder Engagement

		Goals, Actions, and Services

		New, Modified, Unchanged

		Goal

		Related State and/or Local Priorities

		Identified Need

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions/Services

		For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

		Students to be Served

		Location(s)



		For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:

		Students to be Served

		Scope of Service

		Location(s)



		Actions/Services

		New/Modified/Unchanged:



		Budgeted Expenditures





		Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students

		Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds

		Percentage to Increase or Improve Services





		State Priorities

		APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS

		APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS

		Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis

		Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement

		Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services



		LCAP Expenditure Summary



		Cvr LCAP Federal Addendum 6.20.18

		2018_LCAP_ESSA_Federal_Addendum_Plan_SCCS

		Instructions

		Strategy

		Alignment



		ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP

		TITLE I, PART A

		Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards

		Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom

		Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities



		TITLE II, PART A

		Title II, Part A Activities



		TITLE III, PART A

		Parent, Family, and Community Engagement





		ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System

		TITLE I, PART A

		Poverty Criteria



		ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP

		TITLE I, PART A

		Educator Equity

		Parent and Family Engagement

		Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children

		Homeless Children and Youth Services

		Student Transitions

		Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part



		TITLE II, PART A

		Professional Growth and Improvement

		Prioritizing Funding

		Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement



		TITLE III, PART A

		Title III Professional Development

		Enhanced Instructional Opportunities

		Title III Programs and Activities

		English Proficiency and Academic Achievement



		TITLE IV, PART A

		Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs



		LCAP Consolidated Application

		CVR 2018-19 Budget Adoption

		2018-19 Adopted Budget

		2018-19 Adopted Budget SACS Report

		Mural Matching Grant Agreement Update Cover

		Exhibit A Contribution Adjustments

		Exhibit B MYP

		Cover - Item 8.5.3.1 - Tentative Agreement between SCCCE and SCCS

		SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT

		FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent,

		Human Resources

		THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent

		Recommendation:

		Background:

		Attachment - Item 8.5.3.1 - Tentative Agreement between SCCCE and SCCS

		Cvr Revised Classified Job Descriptions #2

		Attachment - Item 8.5.3.2 Revised job description

		Accounts Payable Technician

		Administrative Assistant

		Behavior Technician.PBIS

		Behavior Technician.SPED

		Director-Classified Personnel

		Executive Assistant I

		Food Service Worker I

		Food Service Worker II

		Food Service Worker III

		Groundskeeper I

		Groundskeeper II

		Groundskeeper III

		Instructional Specialist-Life Lab

		Lead Accounting Technician

		Lead School Bus Driver

		Library_Media Assistant

		Mental Health Specialist

		Payroll Technician

		Progam Assistant

		School Administrative Assistant II

		School Administrative Assistant III

		School Administrative Assistant IV

		School Bus Driver

		Site Accounting Technician

		Site Program Coordinator

		Student Data and Assessment Specialist

		Supervisor-Custodial_Grounds and Maintenance

		Supervisor-Transportation

		System Support Specialist

		Textbook_Media Assistant

		Theatre Technician

		Translator

		Warehouse Worker

		Warehouse Worker-Food Nutrition and Service

		Yard Duty Monitor

		CVR Item 8.5.3.3 Staff Report Partnership between Administration and Labor PAL

		PAL PResentation

		CVR Item 8.5.3.4 - Tentative Agreement GSCFTand SCCS  Evaluations Article XIV.NL

		Attachment - Item 8.5.3.4 _ Tentative Agreement GSCFT SCCS Evaluation Article XIV

		Attachment - Item 8.5.3.4 SCCS Certificated Teacher Evaluation Packet

		SCCS Certificated Teacher Evaluation Packet

		Certificated Teacher Evaluation Packet Cover

		SCCS_Certificated Evaluation

		SCCS_Administrative Evaluation Method 1 Cover

		SCCS_Teaching Rubric Method 1-2-3

		SCCS_Goal Setting Form Method 1-2-3

		SCCS_Observation-Form Method 1 v2

		SCCS_Summative Evaluation Form -Teacher-Method 1-2-3

		OVERALL EVALUATION RATING



		SCCS_Improvement Support Plan Method 1

		Instructions: This form MUST be completed when the overall summary evaluation is Does Not Meet or Emerging Standards. This document will serve as the improvement plan for the unit member for the upcoming school year and evaluation cycle. Administrator...

		Evaluatee:                                                                                          School:

		EVALUATEE SIGNATURE DATE EVALUATOR SIGNATURE DATE



		SCCS_Project-Based Evaluation Method 2 Cover

		SCCS_Teaching Rubric Method 1-2-3

		SCCS_Goal Setting Form Method 1-2-3

		SCCS_Project-Based Planning Sheet Method 2

		SCCS_Project-Based-Evaluation-Options-Method 2

		SCCS_Project_Peer-Based Evaluation Method 2-3

		SCCS_Summative Evaluation Form -Teacher-Method 1-2-3

		OVERALL EVALUATION RATING



		SCCS_Peer-Based  Evaluation Method 3 Cover

		SCCS_Teaching Rubric Method 1-2-3

		SCCS_Goal Setting Form Method 1-2-3

		SCCS_Peer-BasedEvaluation Method 3

		SCCS_Peer-Based Observation Form Method 3

		SCCS_Post Observation Meeting Notes Method 3

		SCCS_Summative Evaluation Form -Teacher-Method 1-2-3

		OVERALL EVALUATION RATING





		SCCS_Project_Peer-Based Evaluation Method 2-3

		CVR.1 - Item 8.5.3.5   Declaration of Need Fully Qualified Educators

		Attachment - Item 8.5.3.5  Declaration of Need-Elementary

		Attachment - Item 8.5.3.5  Declaration of Need-Secondary

		Cvr Discussion Possible Agenda Items








